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TRAFFICKING IN BROADCAST STATION LICENSES 
AND CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 15, 1967 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SPECIAL SUBCOMMITTEE ON INVESTIGATIONS, 

COMMITTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE, 
Washington, D .0. 

The special subcommittee met at 10 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room 
2123, Rayburn -House Office Building, Hon. Harley 0. Staggers 
(chairman) presiding. 

The CHAIRMAN. The committee will come to order. 
I would like to welcome all of you gentlemen from the Federal 

Communications Commission and thank you for coming to see us 
this morning to answer questions that we wanted to ask. 

On Monday of this week the Federal Communications Commission, 
by a 4-to-3 decision, issued an order which had the effect of authorizing 
the transfer by the D. H. Overmyer Co. and related interests of five 
permits previously issued by the FCC for the construction of tele­
vision facilities in: San Francisco, PH!tsburgh, Newport, Ky. ( in the 
Cincinnati market), Atlanta and Rosenburg, Tex. ( in the Houston 
market), plus an operating TV station in Philadelphia. (File Nos. 
BTC-5376, BTC-5377, BTC-5378, BTC-5379, BTC-5380, and 
BALCT-327.) 

All of these stations are located in the top 25 TV market areas. 
These transfers were made in a single transaction to the U.S. Com­

munications Corp., a subsidiary of A VC Corp., a diversified invest­
ment company which has several thousand shareholders and whose 
stock is listed on the American Stock Exchange. According to the 
statements by members of the Commission who dissented from this 
opinion, and according to the information on file with the FCC, the 
D. H. Overmyer Corp. had incurred expenses, at the outside, of about 
$1,300,000 to obtain and advance these construction permits. 

The records of the Federal Communications Commission reveal 
that the Overmyer interests received the following amounts from 
A VC Corp. for the five construction permits: 

Paid $1 million for 80 percent of the stock of all the construction 
permit corporations. 

Plus a so-called loan of $3 million secured by the remaining 20 per­
cent of the stock of the permit corporations ( and other security). 

AVC Corp. has the right, under a complicated formula, to pur­
hase the remaining 20 percent of the stock of these corporations for 

not more than the $3 million loan which it simultaneously made to 
the Overmyer interests. 

The dissenting Commissioners have characterized the entire trans­
action as a sale by the Overmyer interests of their five construction 

(1) 



rermits for a total of $4 million. In any event, under the Commis­
s10n's order, the A VC Corp. is empowered and authorized to become 
the owner of 100 percent of these construction permits in the top 25 
market areas for $4 million. 

rhis decision and the procedures which the Commission followed 
raise many questions, which this committee earnestly seeks to hav� 
answered now. 

Today we will hear from members of the Federal Communications 
Commission. In the near future we intend to follow this up by hearinO' 
other _witnesses _ including the principals in the transfer of these con': 
stru�t101:1 permits, D. H. Overmyer, the transferor, and U.S. Com­
mumcat10ns Corp., the transferee. 

Before we start, on May 9, 1966, I wrote to the Chairman of the 
Fed_eral Communications Commission, the Honorable Rosel H. Hyde. 
I might read my lettel' to you. 

DEAR MR. HYDE: The trade press reports that a 12-year record of broadcast 
station trading ( 1954-1965) shows that the total dollar volume of transaction 
was F,400,32�,051 and rthat the number of radio startions transfers was 4,002; 
combmed rad10-TV, 192 ; and TV only was 304 (Broadcasting Feb 21 1966 
pp, 58, 60) . 

' ' ' ' 
I assume that the foregoing figures were computed from authentic sources. 

. F_or the pe_riod 1954-1965 will you kindly supply the Committee with the follow­
mg mformat10n: 

1. With respect ,to TV only and combined radio-TV stations now located in
the top 50 TV markets a list showing: 

(a) Names and location of stations transferred two or more times.
( b) Date of each transfer and names of transferors and transferees
( o) Date of issuance of original license and to whom

2. With resp�ct ,to radio only stations now located in th� metropolttan areas or
New Yor�,, Ch1ca1p, Los Angeles, Philadelphia, Cleveland, Boston, and Detroit 
the s_ame rnformat�on requested in items (a), ( b), and ( o). 

Will you also k_mdly supply us with a list of TV station transfers covered by 
the 50-market policy for which the Commission has waived a hearing. 

I have a reply to that letter. It is very short and I might give it: 
I am _ in receipt of your letter of May 9 regarding the requested information 

concermng th� s1;1,le of TV �nd radio stabions during the past 12 years. 
The Comm1ss10n staff rs presently engaged in securing the information 

requeste?-. Ho�ever, the facts necessary to compile the requested report are 
not readily a varlable. As a result, a lengthy search of the Commission files will be 
necessary. 

Y?u can be sure that a complete answer will be furnished you as soon aspossible. 
To �y knowledge we have not received any of that information.I believe that I am correct, am I not, Mr. Lishman, on this? 
Mr. LISHMAN. 1Ve have received no report. 
The CHAI�MAN. This was in May of 1966. 
_ (A letter. m_ reply, dated December 21, 1967, was subsequently sub­mitted by Chairman Hyde, and appears on p. 593 of the appendix.) The CHAIRMA�. This transfer has ta�en place. It has brought on a lo� of conversations an� � lot of quest10ns by members of this com­mittee and by the public m general. That is the reason that we haveasked you gentlemen to come here this morning. 
Mr. Hyde, you may proceed as you see fit. 

' 

'TATEMENT OF HON. ROSEL H. HYDE, CHAIRMAN, FEDERAL 

COMMUNICATIONS: COMMISSION 

'.\1 r. JlxDE. Mr. Chairman, I regret very much there has been a delay 
111 s11pplying information to the committee. 

l was not aware tha,t such a delay had taken place. If it _had been
brought to my a_ttention I would have certainly done somethmg about 
ii long before this. 

I grant you that it is perhaps my responsibility to follow through 
011 it, and this I will do as expeditiously as I can. . l_was called about this proceeding yesterda.y afternoon at approxi­
mately 3 o'clock. It is my understanding that you wished the Com-
111 i sioners to be here. 

We do not have a statement. There was no opportunity to prepare 
(Ille, 

As a matter of fact, we were told that the committee simply wished 
115 to come here-to meet you and discuss the matter as it suited the 
convenience of the committee. 

I will state that th.is matter, this application which you have dis­
cussed, was filed with the Commission in accordance with the regular 
procedures. It had the usual public notice required in all such cases. 

No opposition whatever was filed to it. The Commission nevertheless 
on its own initiative did study it very carefully. ·when we did act 
upon it, there was a division of opinion. The majority, which includes 
myself, issued an opinion which we will supply for the record. 

(The opinion referred to appears in the appendix, p. 305.) 
Mr. HYDE. The essentials of that opinion are simply these: 
We have here a group of UHF stations, some partly constructed, 

some in the just beginning stages, relating to an interest which, as 
everyone will concede, was proceeding in good faith to develop UHF 
operations in the several cities. 

Because of untold financial difficulties, because of conditions beyond 
ihe control of this permittee, because of financial difficulties, it found 
itself in a position ,vere it was unable to go ahead with the development 
of the stations; all UHF stations. 

It did secure another interested party, AVC Corp., which does 
have :funds, and is interested in the development of UHF stations. It 
is in a position to provide substantial economic support for it, and so 
the Commission was presented with an opportunity to authorize the 
transfer of these TV projects from an entity unable to carry forward 
with it, to an entity which is prepared to do so. 

We found it in the public interest to authorize this transfer. 
The CHAIRMAN. Is there anyone else of the Commissioners who 

wants to make a statement? 
Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Chairman, it is not my purpose to create any dis­

sension from the Commission on this matter, but I note, I believe that 
Commissioner Johnson, Commissioner Bartley, and Commissioner Cox 
presented some very excellent views with regard to this matter. I cer­
tainly would like to hear from any of them or each of them for such 
comments as they might choose to make to this committee, perhaps 
based upon the very excellent dissenting views that they presented. 
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STATE.MENT OF ROBERT T. BARTLEY, COMMISSIONER, FEDERAL 
COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Mr. BAR'rl:EY. Mr. Chairman, I think it may be 0£ some assistance 
to the co~1ttee in connection with this subject to refer to the Senate 
Subcommittee on Communications 0£ the Commerce Committee 0£ the 
U.S. Senate, 89th Congress. The document that I have is Serial No 
89-18. . 

This subject 0£ the top 50-market proposal is rather folly discussed 
ther~. I cann?t ~d the page number. Yes, page 150. It would save 
cons1d~rable time 1£ that could be reviewed. 

qha1rman Henry at_ that time_ gave the reasons why an interim , 
pol~cy. had been e~tabhshed. I thmk he expressed the opinion 0£ the 
maJonty _at that tune as to the reason for the proposal. 

Followmg that7 there was a discussion on the part 0£ other mem­
bers 0£ the committee and the Commission on this matter and I testi­
fied there beginning at page 185. I am attempting to save time. That is 
what I am attempting to do. 

Give the chairman--
Mr. BROTZMAN. I am not clear what you are readino- from. Is that 

the Senate report ? 0 

Mr. B~T1'.EY. It is a Senate committee hearing, Subcomm~ttee on 
Commumcations 0£ the Commerce Committee 89th Cono-ress dated 
February 25 or 26, 1965. The serial number is 89.:._18. 0 

' 

The CHAIRMAN. You may proceed, Mr. Bartlev. 
. Mr. BARTLEY. The stafoments that I have indicated there more or 
less £ul~y expr:ess my vi~ws on this. I,t refers back to my comments on 
so!11~ b1_1ls which_ were mtroduced by Chairman Harris at the Com­
m1ss10n's ~uggesti?n, one of which was proposed by the majority 0£ 
the Comm1ss10n with respect to the amendment 0£ section 310 (b). The 
other was an amendment of section 310 (b) which I proposed on my 
own. 

He introd~ced both bills i:1 th3:t Congress, and they are referred to 
here. ~n the mterests of savmg trme, and the time of the staff 0£ the 
cormmttee, I would ha~e n<? more to s_ay _excep~ ~ne thing with respect 
to some of the reasonmg m the maJonty opm10n £or allowino- this 
transfer to take place. 0 

O~e of t~e principal arguments, it seems to me that the majority 
has, ~s that if we op~n these channels up, open these permits up to other 
applicants, there will be long delays before they can be implemented. 

The facts 0£ the matter are ~hat in_ a top market, not too long ago, 
Overm:ver surrendered a permit and Just Wednesday of this week we 
granted a new permit. There was no contest for it. 

The CHAIRMAN. Excuse me. I did not hear that. 
Mr. _BARTLEY. I sa:id some time back, a short time ago-I did not 

have time to get the date- Overmyer surrendered one permit in the 
Dallas market. It was £or channel 27. That permit was QTanted to 
another applicant just this past Wednesday. "' 

The CHAIRMAN. Thank you. 
Mr. DINGELL. What was the time interval between the surrender? 
Mr. BARTLEY. Mr. Dingell, I did not have time to look that up. 

We can find that out. My recollection is sometime last summer. Maybe 
we know here. 

iJ 

I lo 11·p, have that here? 
I 11· i 11 correct this i£ it is incorrect. My impression is it was only an 

11 ppl i ·a Lion that was dismissed this year, in October. The grant was 
1,111dc in November. 

Til e CHAIRMAN. I won't ask you any questions now. Proceed. Go 
1il1t' :1d. 

J\1 r. BARTLEY. That is all I have, Mr. Chairman. 
I >o you have any questions? 
The CHAIRMAN. I would rather get all testimony in first from these 

of !ir,r gentlemen. 
J\Ir. Cox. 

STATEMENT OF KENNETH A. COX, COMMISSIONER, FE,DERAL 
COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Mr. Cox. Mr. Chairman, I would, like Commissioner Bartley, prefer 
to let my dissents stand as a statement of my position. I wonld be 
happy to answer any,_questions about them. I have dissented not just 
to the grant of these applications; I also dissented to the Commission's 
approval of transfers of permits in contravention of the interim policy 
in Denver, in Cleveland, and with respect to two stations in Boston. 

I would simply say in response to Chairman Hyde's comments that 
always in these situations we have to make a choice among interests. 
It is true that when someone has acquired a permit to build a station . 
:t nd then runs into difficulties and wants to sell the permit, you always 
l1ave then the situation that it probably will expedite the construction 
of the station and putting it into service to allow the permit to be 
transferred to a stronger financial entity-which usually turns out 
to be a company owning other broadcast permits, or in this case, 
A VC, who has no prior broadcast experience but is acquiring almost 
the maximum allowable number 0£ authorizations even under the 
old rule in one transaction. 

On the other hand, I think we have to consider our well-est ablished 
concerns about the long-range overall development of broadcasting, 
and historically-I think almost from the very beginning-the Com­
mission has had a concern, and I believe Congress has shared this 
concern, about the dangers of undue concentration of control 0£ these 
media. 

Our history has been, and it is still reflected even in our interim 
policy, that once these concentrations develop, we have not moved 
to break them up. · 

Therefore, i£ in the period of this interim policy we continue to 
follow the road of granting waivers-or i£ when we finally come to a 
·onsideration 0£ our proposed rule, the majority decide not to adopt 

fL tighter policy on ownership with respect to the UHF portion of the 
television service that is now developing-I think we can look forward 
to a time when we will have across-the-board, in UHF as well as VHF, 
a degree of concentration which I, for one, find difficult to accom­
modate to the public interest. 

So I think that if we simply are going to say that it serves the 
public interest to take the actions which will most quickly get broad­
cast stations on the air, then we might as well forget efforts to hold 
down developing concentration. because in the nature of things we 
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are almost always going to have this situation. I would be happy to 
supply for the record copies of my dissents in all of these matters, if 
the committee would like to have them. 

(The material referred to appears in the appendix, p. 314.) 
The CHAIRMAN. Thank you, Mr. Cox. 
Mr. HARVEY. Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRMAN. I would rather you hold questions just a minute. 
Mr. Johnson, do you have any comments? 

STATEIVIENT OF NICHOLAS JOHNSON, COMMISSIONER, FEDERAL 
COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Mr. JOHNSON. Mr. Chairman, I would have only very brief remarks. 
Like Commissioners Bartley and Cox, I would rely principally, I think, 
on my statement and the citation there of some nine prior opinions in 
which I have spelled out my views on this subject more fully. 

In fairness to my colleagues of the majority, I think that perhaps 
a rationale could be developed for their position, although I believe 
it has not been done in this case. 

Needless to say, I do not believe it is my obligation to develop it. My 
concerl!- ~eally deals with very fundamental propositions, very simple 
proposit10ns. 

I think that there is nothing more important in our country today, 
in any free society, and to the political system of which you gentlemen 
are a part, than the greatest possible diversity of sources of informa­
tion, opinion, ideas, entertainment. I think that is important to you. 
I th ink that is important to everybody in this country. 

The _other side of that coin is t~at I think there is nothing that is as 
potennall~ dangerous to our N at10n than the concentration of power­
concentration of control over the outlets of information and opinion 
and entertainment in a country like ours-in a few hands. 
~ think that was in the forefront of the thinking of those who began 

this country a good many years ago, and I think their jud<Yement was 
sound, and I think that ~here is even more reason for coicern today 
t~~n there was the_n. I thmk that th!: CongreS6 has given us responsi­
b1l~ty for ownei:ship and concentration of control in broadcast prop­
erties, and I thmk the Congress has been concerned about this. 

In short, I think t:hat the FCC could do a better job in this regard 
than 1t has ~1een domg. ~ would ~onc]ude, however, once again with 
the observat10n that I thrnk a rationale could be developed althouah 
it would not be one I would support. It would at least be a reasonable 
position for the end that the majority has here sought to follow. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Loevinger. 

STATEMENT OF LEE LOEVINGER, COMMISSIONER, FEDERAL 
COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Mr. LoEVINGER. Mr. Chairman, it might be appropriate for me to say 
a few words bec3:us~ I find myself in complete agreement with most 
of the general prmciples that have been stated by Commissioner Cox 
and Commissioner Johnson. Furthermore, I am unable to say as they 
do,.that I rest s~m.ply 0"!1 the published opinions. This is due ~~re to an 
accident of admmistrabve procedure than to anything else. 

' 

I II fortnnately, administrative agencies do not operate quite like 
1· 1•11rt,s, and for very good reason, because the volume or material 
f 111 y handle is so very much greater than any court in the country 
f l1 1tt they necessarily adopt shortcuts. In this case, what happened was 
, 1ml. the order involved here, in the first place it came to the Commis­
i; io11c r Cox, as is evident from his opinion, prior to the time it was 
i11 its final form, and he wrote an opinion which he subsequently 
l'lin.ng-ed. 

lt came to me with Commissioner Cox's opinion and I thought that 
I Im majority order was slightly too short, so I wrote a brief page-and-
11 hnH comment indicating my views, the reason I would concur, with­
out joining in the order. 

I then left for 1 day. The Commission order had been on my desk 
for less than 1 day. By the time I got back, the thing had issued with 
Ii re pages of comment by Commissioner Cox on my page and a half 
o f comment and an additional opinion by Commissioner Johnson, 
11 one of which I had seen prior to the time that this thing issued. 

So that this is merely by way of explanation why it appears with 
what looks like a greater rationale for the dissent than for the majority 
01 m10n. 

Basically, let me say a word about the underlying issues. 
Commissioner Bartley has. been consi~tent and very likely wise, 

although I may not necessarily agree with every view that he has. 
Hut he has been consistent in following the view that the law is 
·wrong. He has asked for an amendment of the statute and he has 
continued to press for the objectives that he has sought in that amend­
ment o! the statute. ~ don't consider_ myself at liberty to follow a rule 
that might be established under a different statute if the statute were 
amended. If the question before us were whether or not section 310 (b) 
should be amended, I would have to give consideration to it. 

I might very well support a different statute. At the present, I am 
operating under the law as it now st.ands. 
. I agree coI?-pletely ;Vith the need for both diversity and competition 
m broadcastmg. I thmk, however, that both Commissioner Cox and 
Commissioner Johnson are dealing in generalities unsupported by the 
facts. The facts re~ited in the order, which is the basis of the present 
controversy-that 1s the June 21, 1965, order-show that durina the 
period from 1956 to 1964 the total number of VHF stations i; the 
top 50 markets increased. The number of separate owners of VHF 
stat ions in the top 50 markets increased. They further show that every­
body who owns more than one station is called a multiple owner and 
~hat the averag~ number of stations he~d by all multiple owners 
m those markets IS two and four-tenths stat10ns. 

In otl_ier words, all of the multiple owners together average about 
t.wo stations each. 

Of the largest owners, the 28 largest owners, or approximately third 
largest owners, who are said to control 93 VHF stations or 60 percent 

f the total, these owners own an average of three stations apiece. 
So that when we talk about concentration here we are talkin"' about 

people that own three stations. The least number that you can,..,own is 
one. So that the range here that we are talking about is from one to 
three stations. 

This raises the fundamental question of what are the ultimate 
objectives; are we seeking the most atomistic possible organizations of 
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this industry or are we seeking something else? I don't believe that 
any serious economist or any serious anti-t rust enforcer or any 
serious student of this subject has ever contended that we are or should 
be seeking an atomization or breaking up of this industry or business. 
What we are actually seeking is effective competition and effective 
diversity in it. 

In the broadcasting business, particularly television, it requires 
a certain reasonable size in order to provide either effective compe­
tition or effective diversity in the sense of program origination. The 
cost of originating television programs is shockingly high. The ex­
periment with the Public Broadcasting Laboratory, the recent evi­
dence before Congress in connection with the authorization of the \ 
corporation for public broadcasting, both illustrate this. 

The cost of television programing runs from $100,000 an hour on 
up. It may go very far up if you are going to produce outstanding 
programs. You can not have little, tiny corner-grocery-store-type 
opera_ti<?ns producing independent programing. I do not think that 
permittmg owners to get as many as three stations and having as 
many a? over 90 owners in the top 50 markets is what any responsible 
e~onomist would call_ concentration in any significant sense. This is 
sun ply not concentrat10n. 

To the degree there is concentration in the broadcasting business it 
is concentration in program origination principally with respect' to 
networks. If we are to get more competition with respect to networks, 
what we have to have are strong, economically viable enterprises. I£ 
should not be overlooked that the Overmyer interests here are the 
i~te:ests which did undertake to start a new television network. They 
d:d m fact get so far as to actl:ally _start the network and get it on the 
air for a month. However, it failed because of lack of economic 
resources. 

The not!on that we are going to have a single-station operator or 
a two-station operator start a network seems to me to be unreal and 
quixotic. The one hope we have of getting competition in the concen­
trated sector of this business, that is, in program origination and in 
net~orking, is to permit reasonably sized enterprises with susbtantial 
economic strength to develop. I thing that by permitting this group 
of stations which was interested in starting a network, and in fact did 
go so far as to undertake to start a network, to permit this group of 
stations to be given the economic strength that transaction now before 
us permits it, is not going to do anything by way of increasing signi­
ficant concentration in the broadcasting business but may provide 
th~ ~asi~ for increased competition and increased diversity in program 
ongmation. 

The CHAIRMAN. Thank you, Mr. Loevinger. 
Does any other Commissioner have any statement to make? 

. Mr. HYDE. Mr. Chairman, I would appreciate an opportunity to 
Just make a brief statement about the overall situation, that is, this: -

As you know, the TV channels are divided into VHF and UHF. 
T~is is a matter which has been discussed frequently before this com­
mittee so I am sure that you are aware of that. The VHF assignments 
provide greater co,verage. They are the first ones to be developed, but 
there are only 12 such channels. 

The number of assignments would necessari ly be limited. 

I II the interest of diversity, in the interest of competition, the Com-
111 i1-1; ion has sponsored ,the develo:p~ent of t~e UHF channels. . 

Con<rress has responded to this m enacb~g the all-channel_ legisla-
1 io n wl1ich requires that any consumer buymg a TV set sold m mter-
1 I 11,I commerce must be giv:en receptio~ of UHF as well as VHF. 
( '.onsumers are making their mvestments n~ (!"HF. . 

Co nsistent with that policy, the Comnussion must give encourage-
1111'11t t o the development of the UHF staticJn~ .. 

In this situation here that we are reexammmg, we ~av~ a prop?sal 
of ,the A VC Co., with the assets to do so, to put new hfe mto stat~ons 
whi-ch may otherwise fail completely: ~here is no_ stampede toge! mto 
lJIIF. There is no need for any conmvmg to attam th~ opportumty to 
·httllenge the multiple VHF stations and net,yorks i~ th~se several 
markets. As a matter of fact, one of these stations which is th~ sub­
ject of the tra~sfor h_as lost $1 million in operation. I am referrmg to 
t,lte Philadelphia station. . . 

In the other instance, Overmyer, or the A VC Co. no"'. with the U:):IF 
will be challenging rtetwork op_erations of well-~s~abhs_hed orgamz~­
Lions with the challenge of makmg UHF competitiv~ with th_e1T1·. This 
is going to limit competition.. ~hat "'.e ha':e here _is a :possi~nhty of 
introducing some viable operations wlu_ch will P:"ovide div~r.sity. And 
back of the whole thing is the necessity, I ~eheve, of givmg every 
assistance possible every encouragement possible to the development 
of 70 channels ,to b~ used in addition to the 12 V~F. . . 

I think that the committee should have this perspective of it as 
you look at ,the problems related to this P:trt.icular case, wher~ 3:s I 
pointed out in my first statement, the maJority of the Com~ss10n 
found it appropriate to authorize the investment of new capital lest 
the UHF should fail completely. 

Thank you. . 
The CHAIRMAN. I thank all of you for your presentation. I have 

a few questions I would like to ask and then I am sure members of the 
committee would like to ask some. 

There was no hearing held? 
Mr. HYDE. There was none. 
The CHAIRMAN. There is a lot of money involved in these transac-

tions, or will be ultimately? . . . . 
Mr. HYDE. The consideration was $1 million or 80-per_ce?-t mterest. 
The CHAIRMAN. Does not the transaction call for $4 million? 
Mr. HYDE. No, sir. 
The CHAIRMAN. What does it call for? . 
Mr. HYDE. The transferor has loaned $3 million to the transfe~ee_. 
I am sorry. The transferee has loaned to the transfe,r?r $3 million 

on the security of its properties other tI:an the broa1castmg, although 
the 20-percent stock would be included with the security . 

The CHAIRMAN. What will it involve? 
Mr. HYDE. Eventually-- . 
The CHAIRMAN. I want to know what is involved if everythmg goes 

through. . 
Mr. HYDE. If the UHF stations should prosper, if they should at-

tain receipts of the order me~tioned in tl!e. formula, the transferee 
would have the option of buymg t~1e addit10nal 20 pe_rc~nt, and on 
that basis they would then have an mvestment of $4 m1lhon. 

97-537-69-pt. 1-2 
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The CHAIRMAN. $4 million. That is what I was trying to get at. I 
have just one question. I shall try to make myself clear. If these per­
mit transfers are granted, somebody will receive a $3 million profit? 

Mr. HYDE. There will not be a $3 million profit. 
The CHAIRMAN. The traJ1sferor would not have gotten aJ1y profit? 
Mr. HYDE. I mean to be responsive ,to your questions, but the Com-

mission has not approved a profit in the transfer. 
The CHAIRMAN. I just wonder, if these permits came back to the 

FCC and had been reassigned, if adtion would have been as rapid. 
Mr. HYDE. Chairman Staggers, we could not assume there would be 

immediate applications at all. I call to your attention that recently 
we have had applications dismissed by Harcourt Brace and World \ 
Book publishers, people of substance, who applied for stations at 
R ochester, Phoenix, and Portland, which they dismissed. They were 
no longer interested. 

This week, as Commissioner Bartley has mentioned to you, we 
had occasion to examine an application for Dallas, Tex., an important 
market. There was no contest for that at all. This was available. Ap­
plication was filed last March.No other interest. 

The CHAIRMAN. If I may interrupt you, I do not want to talk 
about other markets or permits. We are talking about the 25 top 
markets of the Nation in which these are located. 

Mr. HYDE. I believe Dallas, Portland, and Rochester would be 
there. I would have to check that for purposes of this statement. 

The CHAIRMAN. I want to ask you this just as a matter of record. 
W'nat requirements does the Federal Communications Act impose 
before the Commission can authorize the assignment of a construe­
hon permit? I am, of course, referring to the provisions of section 
310(b) of the act. 

Mr. HYDE. The act does require that the Commission find the public 
interest, convenience, and necessity would be served by approval. 

T he CHAIRMAN. Did you find that in this case? 
Mr.HYDE. Wedid,sir. Wedid. 
The CHAIRMAN. Did the majority of the Commission make a specific 

finding that the public interest, convenience, and necessity would be 
served by the transfer of all of these construction permits in a bundle 
to the A VC Corp., and did they state their reasons for that finding? 

Mr. HYDE. My answer is "Yes." We are required to make our de­
cision on the basis of the applications before us. The applications did 
include the several stations. vVe did give a reason. 

The CHAIRMAN. I did not see it. 
Mr. HYDE. Sir, it is in our opinion. I suggest, as I proposed at the 

time I made my initial statement, that I offer a copy for the record. 
I t sets forth what I consider to be the essential reasons why the grant 
is in the public interest. 

The CHAIRMAN. I would like to ask, did the Commission examine 
the competitive situation in each of the five areas where construction 
permits are available, to determine whether the transfer of each in­
dividual construction permit would, measured by the circumstances 
in each of these five market areas, be in the public interest? 

Mr. HYDE. We did, sir. The analysis of the application that was 
before each Commissioner contained a resume of the competitive sit­
uation in each market. 

The CnAIRMAN. I could not find this information in your order. 
Mr. HYDE. This was before the Commissioners when they acted. 
The CHAIRMAN. Each individual market? 
Mr.HYDE. Yes,sir. 
T he CHAIRMAN. I could not find it. . 
Mr. HYDE. This detail is not included in our decision, but it was 

in the information before the Commissioners when they acted. 
The CHAIRMAN. As I say, I could not find it. Is it _not a fa~t that 

when an application is made to ~ransfer a _constr1_1ction pe~~1t, ~he 
Commission has its choice of holdmg a public hearmg or wa1vmg_ it? 
---Mr. HYDE. We always have th~ ross~bility of_ holding a_hearmg. 
The act provides th'.1t i~ the Comm1ss10~ 1s not satisfied from i~s exam­
ination of the apphcat10n and suppo_rtmg data, th~n before it wo~ld 
make a final decision it must give the mterested parties an opportumty 
for hearing. • · d ·t 

T he CHAIRMAN. I should think in a transfer of this magmtu e 1 

would have been wise at least to have held a hearing. . .. 
Mr. HYDE. Chairman Staggers, I believe _that the possrb~hty of 

refinancing the UHF stations would have failed had we designated 
the matter for hearing. . . 

The CHAIRMAN. It has been suggested that the _Commun_1cat10ns 
Act should be amended to provide that if a cons~ruction pern:utholder 
cannot fulfill his obligation to construct the sta~1on, the,pe~mit should 
automatically revert to tl:e FCC and the_ permitholder s ri_ght should 
be terminated so there is no opportumty for the permitholder to 
attempt to sell'his permit to broadcast, which is really public property. 

Mr. HYDE. I would be very doubtful of the ~1sdom of such an 
amendment because I fear it would discourage mvestment and de-' . . veJopment of rad10 properbes. . 

The CHAIRMAN. ln a highly competitive thing such as this, and 
with the money that is involved in this and many other _transfers, 
I think the public interest ought to come first. I_ a~ talking about 
the amendment suggested here. If. we shoul~ ~o this, 1t would pr?tect 
the public .. A _license or ?o~struct10n permit lS not a property right. 
It is a public right, a public mterest. . 

Mr. HYDE. What I wished to say in response to your quest101; was 
that an amendment such as you descr~be woul~ _provide that if the 
applicant and grantee found himself m a posit~on where he coul_d 
not ao forward with the development of the stat10n,. he _must forfeit 
his p0ermit to the Commission and not be allowed_ to assign it or tra1;s-f'er 
it. My suggestion is that this may "?"ery well d1scourag~ an applicant 
or an entrepreneur from 1;1-ndertak~ng such . an enterpri~e b~cause he 
would be on notice that 1f anythmg should happen, if his health 
should fail, if his financial position s~ould _su:ff~r for some reason 
beyond his control, h~ could not get h_is cap11tal mvestment back. I 
think that would be a chscouragement to mvestment. . 

The CHAIRMAN. I do not think you can guarantee anybody will 
make monev. You are not in that business. 

Mr. HYDE. No,sir. . 
The CHAIRMAN. That is what I am talki_ng about. An:ybo_dy who 

o-ops into this business takes a chance. This affects pubhc mteres_t. 
1·1iis is public property. You are down t~ere to protect _th~ pubhc 
in1crest not private interests. I am talkmg about pubhc interest. 
Yon nr/ discussing private interest. 
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I will have to turn this over to Mr. Moss at the present time. I am 
called outside. I will be back in a moment. 

Mr. LoEVINGER. I would like to give you a little further answer 
to what Chairman Hyde has said. 

The CHAIRMAN. If you will make it brief, yes; go ahead. 
Mr. LOEVINGER. The point is simply this: If you say a person cannot 

transfer a construction permit---and there is good argument to be 
made for it---what you do is increase vastly the risk that anybody 
applying for a construction permit undertakes. ·when you increase 
the financial risk and the financial cost of applying for these things, 
what you do is raise barriers to individuals and to small enterprises" 
and insure that the applicants will only be the large, well-heeled \ 
corporations. So, the net effect ?f such an ~mendment, I am_ convinc~cl, 
would he to increase concentrat10n of holdrngs of construction permits 
and licenses in the large, wealthy corporations, and to discourage 
the smaller and less wealthy corporations from getting into the· 
business. 

The CHAIRMAN. That is where I must disagree with you. I think 
what you are trying to do is to let the wealthy boys take over. ""\V'e 
will crive you a milfion dollars." Then they buy it up and away they 
go. You are not protecting the small person. You are just handing it 
over to the larger ones. "We can give you a million" or a couple of 
million or 4 million. 

I will be back. 
Mr. Moss (presiding). I have a few questions. Did the Commission· 

make any finding in each of these_instanc~s of transferring_ o~ a con­
struction permit or of any operatmg stat10n, that the public mterest 
would be served by that ~ransfer? . . . 

Mr. HYDE. Our Opimon treats the matter as an appli_cat10n n~volv­
incr several stations in one transaction, and makes a findmg applicable b 

to all of them. 
Mr. Moss. I might point out to you that your opinion does not do, 

that. I will read the exact verbiage of that opinion. 
The Commission is of the view that • • •. 

That is not a finding. The Commission is of the view. 
• • • That to grant the applications would foster the development of U1:JF' 

TV stations. This would be consistent with the Commission's effort to provide 
* * •. 

I am very conversant with the interest of both t~e Co!Ilmissi?n ~nd 
the Congress to expand UHF. I also understand m this apphcat10n 
we have one VHF, have we not? 

Mr. HYDE. No. 
Mr. Moss. No VHF? 
Mr. HYDE. That is right. 
Mr. Moss. But there were some operating and some construction 

permits. 
Mr. LEE. One operating station. 
Mr. Moss. That was put into the package in June, is that correct? 

The original application was for five in March. 
Mr. HYDE. l think that is right. I will have _to check that for: y~m. 
Mr. Moss. Has it been the established practice of the Comm1ss10n­

on these transfers of construction permits that the only thing you 
permit the applicant to recover is out-of-pocket expense? 

J\Ir. HYDE. It has been the general policy of_ the Com1;1-~ssio_n, al­
t.hough there is no regulation on this and there is no provision m the 
act, to examine- . 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, I specifically stated, has it not ~een the 
policy? I did not ask about the ~ct. Y o_u and ;I went over ~his. I be-
1 ieve that we have crone over this particular issue many times b~ck 
in the days of the _~d Oversight 9ommittee wh~n we came up with 
the virtually unammous findmg m that committee that there . was 
too much trafficking in licenses and :Ve. made some rec?mm~ndati?ns. 
Then by your own actions the Co~miss10n adopted an mtenm policy. 
'f]'iis even goes contrary to that_policy. . 

Mr. HYDE. Mr. Moss, there is no statement of pohcy s? far as I am 
aware, but there is a large body of precedent under w_hich the Com­
mission does not approve the transfer of a bare permit for amounts 
above the out-of-pocket expense. . 

Mr. Moss. You did in this instance, did you not? 
Mr. HYDE. No. h h $4 
Mr. Moss. Where is a breakdown which would prove t at t e , 

million here invoh:ed does not permit recovery of more than the out.-
of-pocket expense? . 

Mr. HYDE. The consideration for the transfer on which the Com-
mission acted is not $4 minion. . . . 

Mr. Moss. All right. One million dollars w_it1?- a $3 million loan. 
Eicrhty percent of the stock was sold for $1 million, and then a loan 
wa~ given of $3 million for the other 20 percent of the stock. 

Mr. HYDE. May I-- . . • i D ·t 
Mr. Moss. Do you think that ~~an is gomg to be paid off . oes 1 

draw interest? "\V'hat are the condit10ns of the loan? . 
Mr. HYDE. The loan will either be paid off or the lender will un­

doubtedly realize on his security on the one hand, or the lender may 
see fit to buy the remaining 20 perc~n~. . . 

Mr. Moss. As far as the Commiss10n is concerned, d the Ovei:my~r 
Corp. decides not to pa.y off the loan, the 20 percen_t stock which is 
security for it would be picked up by A VC, wo:uld it not? . 

Mr. HYDE. That is only a small part, and mconsequential part, 
really, of the security. 

Mr. Moss. $3 million? . 
Mr. HYDE. This loan is secured by mortgages on 23 pieces of non­

radio property. It is secured by the _endorsem~nt of Overmyer. There 
is other security which I cannot give you without referrmg to the 
documents. There are some guarantees. Before the loan w_as made on 
the securities there was an appraisal by independent appraisers to find 
.assurances that the securities were adequate to the loan. I understand 
that the securities are in the rrutio of 2 to 1. . 

Mr. Moss. I think it would be interesting to supply_ t~e committee 
with a list of all of the collateral that backs this $3 million loan. 

Mr. HYDE. We will be pleased to do that. . 
(The information submitted appears in the appendix, p. ~28.) 
Mr. Moss. And give us a breakdown of what the sal~s price was and 

a breakdown of wii.at the out-of-pocket costs were. It is out-of-pocket 
costs we are talking about. . . . 

(The information submitted appears_m the appendix, p. 329.) 
Mr. Moss. In this instance, you waived hearmgs on. every o_ne_ of 

these, and you also went contrary to your own rules m permittmg 
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A VC to acquire stations in more than three of the top 50 markets. 
You permitted them to acquire six here in the top 25 markets. 

Mr. HYDE. We granted a waiver of an interim proceduDal policy 
which provides on its face that the Commission may, where 1an appro­
priate or compelling showing is made, grant such a waiver. We felt, 
under the circumstnaces of .this case, a waiver was justified. 

Mr. KEITH. Mr. Chairman, how many stations does Overmyer have 
in his portfolio, other than those that are involved here? 

Mr. HYDE. He would have one remaining. He would have a station 
in Toledo, a UHF station. All the rest of his broadcast interests are 
represented in this application here. He would retain a 20-percent 
interest, in which he would now have an investment of $332,000, this , 
being •the amount ab.ove the $1 million. 

Mr. KEITH. He could show on his statement when he made a loan 
application elsewhere, a $332,000 equity in this corporation? 

Mr. HYDE. I believe so. Here is the situation. He received a million 
dollars, but his out-of-pocket expense was $1,332,000. You will excuse 
me if I do not have the exact figures here. 

Mr. KEITH. Surely. I am not interested in pennies, but I just want 
to have it--

Mr. HYDE. For the million dollars he transferred 80 percent of h is 
interest, leaving him 20 percent. So, he has a 20-percent stock interest, 
and he ·also has an investment of $332,000 for which he is not being 
compensated in this transfer. 

Mr. KEITH. I will leave it to others to develop this particular point. 
Mr. Moss. Will you yield for one moment. I will ask Mr. Dingell 

to take the Chair. I have an a,ppointment with our Ambassador to 
Brazil on a matterof foreign aid. I must now keep that •appointment. 
Mr. Dingell will take the Chair. 

Mr. KEITH. Going back to the circumstances prevailing at the time 
this man acquired the construction permits; you had to be certain 
tha,t he had the capital with which to proceed. 

Mr. HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. KETTI-I. ·what was his net worth at the time he made the appli­

cation for these five stations? 
Mr. HYDE. I cannot give you that figure offhand. I will supply it to 

you. We had an analysis of his financial ability at the time he acquired 
the permit. 

I am advised by my colleague it was in the ·area of $11 million. 
Mr. KEITH. Where did he make this $11 mil1ion? 
Mr. HYDE. He is basically in the warehouse business. 
Mr. KEITH. So he had no expertise in this area? 
Mr. HYDE. That is right. Congressman, in that connection we can 

put a lot of emphasis on past experience, but if we push that to the 
exclusion 0£ other consid1m1tions. tlwn we limit the field to those who 
are ·already in it. If you bring people in without experience in broad­
casting but who are interested anrl who have funds to employ talent 
and expertise, then you can bring diversitv. 

In this particular case that we are considering, one of the reasons for 
the A VC Co. buying the Philadelphia, one was to acqnire the experience 
and talent that were available there. 

Mr. BARTLEY. Mr. Keith, may I say that the point you are raising 
is extremely important. One of the responsibilities of the Commission 
in granting applications is to determine the financial qualifications of 

the licensee .. In this particular case, in the Overmyer case, I will have to 
go back and dig up the records, but I am sure that in certain of those 
cases I dissented because I felt that he did not have the financial qual i­
fications to go ahead. 

Mr. KErrH. This is a very important point. I asked you what h is 
net worth was. This would mean assets over liabilities. Eleven million 
dollars is ,a good chunk of cash. Even so, it may be hypothecated or 
involved so that he does not have liquidity to move. Is this the point you 
were making? 

Mr. BARTLEY. I wanted to make the point that at the time some of 
the applications were filed, the showing made as to how he intended 
to finance the stations led me to believe that he had not made adequate 
finanical provision for them, and I voted against the grant on that 
basis. 

Mr. KEITH. Had this gentleman any experience other than in the 
trucking busi!less, which is notorious for its ability to operate on a 
shoestring~ 

Mr. HYDE. This applicant was a warehouseman, and he seemed to be 
eminently successful at the time. We did have economic and finaneial 
information about him. I will be glad to supply further information 
on that which I do not have immediately before me now. 

(The information submitted appears in the appendix, p. 331.) 
Mr. HYDE. Commissioner Lee. 
Mr. LEE. I think perhaps I could give you just a description of 

what Mr. Overmyer was doing. 
Mr. KEITH. I do not believe that it is necessary to expose all of that 

at this time for the purposes of this hearing, when so many others are 
interested in shedding light on the problem. Now we are talking 
about his financial situation. What about the financial situation of 
U.S. Communications Corp. and the interest controlling that organiza­
tion? Did you talk with the principals of A VC? 

Mr. HYDE. No, we did not. We did rely on an analysis of the written 
submissions and sworn statements submitted in the applications. 

Mr. KEITH. "\Vould you repeat that, please? 
Mr. HYDE. We relied upon the written submissions which were 

submitted to the Commission. You asked me did I speak to the prin­
cipals. No, I did not. I am not certain-members of the staff may have 
had some communications with them. The Commission in considering 
the applications relied upon the information that was submitted by 
applicants in their written file and on the analysis made by the staff. 

Mr. Cox. In this case I think I talked to two principals. of A VC at 
one stage about their plans for taking over. 

Mr. KEITH. Would you care to comment as to your reaction to t his 
kind of owner as contrasted to others who might have taken up these 
franchises? 

Mr. Cox. I had some problem, although I did not dissent here on 
I.hat ground, with the ownership of broadcast facilities by a diversified 
investment company. I think there is a problem with these men hav­
ing a wide range of concerns and a division of their responsibility for 
broadcast operations. I think in a corporation of this kind you have 
some difficulty in understanding who is responsible for• what is going 
on. As I recall it, here I think the largest block of stock is held by the 
guardianship of an incompetent and by a very elderly woman, I 
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believe. Actually, control is in a family grouJ.). I assume it would be 
to them that you would look for responsibility here. We did not 
really go into this in talking to them. They were simply telling me of 
their interest in broadcasting and their hope to go ahead and become 
a significant part in it. vVe did not get into the details of the applica­
tion because I was not familiar with it at that point. 

Mr. KEITH. This will be my last question. What method does the 
-Commission use to get a competitive situation in the acquisitions of 
such significant businesses? How do they make certain about the con­
cern of Congress which was so eloquently stated by Mr. Johnson, that 
we do not have concentration but have competition, that whoever 
acquires these stations has the capital to make reasonably certain "· 
that they will be successful?' How does the word get around so we 
get a truly competitive situation as far as possible? 

Mr. Cox. As far as financial qualifications are concerned, our pro­
•cedures require them to show that they have available liquid 
resources --

Mr. KEITH. I understand the individual buyers must do that, but 
I refer to efforts to find other buyers so it is not only an offer collected 
by an individual who is in hot water. Now that it is up for transfer, 
how does word get around? 

Mr. Cox. vVe are pretty well barred by the present language of the 
act from considering whether the public interest would be better served 
by the transfer of permits or licenses to someone else. Basically, the 
licensee or permitJtee does select his successor and, obviously, one of 
the primary considerations in that selection is who will pay the most 
money. I think our only barrier against unlimited acquisition and 
concentration of control has been the policy, revised over the years, 
as to the maximum number o:f strutions which can be owned. At one 
time in television it was three. Then it got up to five. Then it was 
five plus two UHF. Then in December 1964, and again in June 1965, 
the majority of the Commission thought that while that might be 
a satisfactory limit in the smaller markets, in the major markets where 
concentration has its greatest impaot, we should look toward reduc­
ing this to three stations, of which not more than two should be V's. 

Mr. BROWN. May I ask a question on this problem? 
Mr. KEITH. I have concluded my questioning. 
Mr. DINGELL (presiding). We shall proceed under the 5-minute rule. 

The Chair recognizas Mr. Rogers. 
Mr. ROGERS. Gentlemen, I n,m quite concerned about limiting the 

transfer of construction permits to so-ca:lled out-of-pocket expenses. 
As I understand, $1,:100,000 was what was received. 

Mr. HYDE. This wn,s Jess than the ont-of-pocket expense, as he 
justified it to us. but he did retain a 20-percent interest. 

Mr. RoGERS. \iVhat was the out-of-pocket expense? 
Mr. HYDE. The out-of-pocket expense, as I have it, was $1,3:12,000. 
1\fr. Romms. So, they obtained an 80 percent interest for $1 million. 
Mr. HYDE. Thn,t is right. 
Mr. ROGERS. He did i10t mortgage the other 20 percent for the 

remaining $300,000, did he? 
Mr. HYDE. He mortgaged the other 20 percent and, in addition, 

,extensive other properties as security for the $3 million Joan. 
Mr. ROGERS. He did not have a competitive agreement. Why did he 

have to get into the other properties? If this was to be a clean deal, 

if the sales price was only for out-of-pocket expenses, why did he IlOt 
just mortgage the other 20 percent for the remaining $300,000 of 
out-of-pocket expense? 

Mr. HYDE. I do not know, but it would appear that Mr. Overmyer 
had found a source of capital to also rescue some other operations. 

Mr. ROGERS. This gets back to the policy. ,ve are thereby avoiding 
the policy. It works out that here is a man who has five or six stations 
in the top markets? 

Mr. HYDE. Permits for six, and five of them are subject to this 
transfer. 
- -Mr. ROGERS. Is it possible under your policy for anyone to come in 
as an origina:l requestee and get five stations in the top market under 
the ownership of one person? 

Mr. HYDE. Under the interim procedural policy, he would be re­
quired to go through a hearing unless he made ,a COfi;.pelling sho"'.ing 
that the public.interest would be served by a grant without a hearmg. 

Mr. ROGERS. In effect, have you not allowed this man to come in 
and get the five sta:tions in the top market? 

Mr. HYDE. No. Congressman Rogers-­
Mr. ROGERS. Five subsidiary companies. 
Mr. HYDE .. We are, of course, dealing with public interest considera­

tions here and not individual equities, but let me mention this-­
Mr. ROGERS. Let me say this before we go further with that. Your 

basic policies, I presume, are set in the public interest. 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. ROGERS. In any waiver, there must be an overwhelming show­

ing, I should think, that it should be waived in order to sho,Y an 
overriding public interest. 

Mr. HYDE. Yes, sir. ,v e believe that such a showing was made for 
the purpose of this transfer. 

I did want to mention to yon that when Overmyer got his original 
permit, there was no such policy. vVhat has happened to Overmyer 
is that he has found himself subjected to a procedural policy adopted 
after he made his acquisition. 

Mr. ROGERS. This often happens. He has protected himself. But 
this does not mean someone else can come in and violate the policy; 
does it? 

Mr. HYDE. It does not mean someone else can come in unless it can 
be shown in a compelling way that the public interest would warrant 
a waiver of that policy. 

Mr. RoGERS. I do not see the showing in the record. __ 
Mr. HYDE. The basis on which the majority finds such n, showing 

is that yon have the UHF stations in five more markets unable_ to 
go aher,d with the capital avn,ilable, and another source of capital 
:Lvailable which will assure the,ir operation. 

Mr. RoGERS. Does it not seem strange to have a man come in and 
try to avoid a basic policy which he knows exists, first 0£ all, to get 
into a market with five stations, which is generally against i;olicy 
now, and second, to arrange for payment over and beyonn the 
out-of-pocket expenses, because he went beyond just dealing with the 
eonstmction permit. He tied this into another dea:l entirely. Did it 
11 t seem strange and should there not lmve been a hearing on this? 
I should have thought you would Vyant to go into this and question 
liint. I certainly would have. It seems to me a strange way to operate. 
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Mr. HYDE. Congressman, we believe that a very thoroughgoing 
examination has been made of this. If we had felt there were any 
relevant ·and important considerations that were not known--

Mr. ROGERS. Why did you let them bring in other properties, and 
so forth? vVhy was it not kept to just the permit to make sure it 
was limited to out of pocket? As a matter of fact, you are claiming 
110 w that the sale includes out-of-pocket expenses. 

Mr. HYDE. I understand the sale does not include funds above 
out -of-pocket expenses. 

Mr. ROGERS. Does this not trigger something strange that a man 
wa.nts to get more than his out-of-pocket expenses out? Would that 
not be enough to trigger some suspicion that the Commission should go ' 
t o hearing and find why he does not want to get his out-of-pocket 
expenses? 

Mr. HYDE. vVe are satisfied with the bona .fides of this proposal. 
"\Ve see no evidence of any misstatement of the matter at •all. 

Mr. ROGERS. It appears to me that without any hearing we cannot 
t en, and this is why we want to go into it. I am concerned that this is 
a reasonable exercise of delegated regulatory power. It seems to me 
here you have all of these UHF stations which you say are so weak. 

Mr. HYDE. That is right. 
Mr. ROGERS. Do you want to allow all of this weakness to be concen­

t rated in the hands of one group? Do you not want to spread it out so 
you can get a broader base? 

Mr. HYDE. What we have here is a substantial entity ready to as­
sume the challenges of operating these stations. What I am suggesting 
to the Congress is that we should not apply to them restrictions which 
do not apply to stations with which they must compete. 

Mr. ROGERS. But you ought to apply the general policy. 
Mr. HYDE. May I respond to the question? 
Mr. DINGELL. You may, and then the Chair recognizes the gent1eman 

from Nebraska. 
Mr. HYDE. The Commission has considered applications for waivers 

in a number of instances. There are about eight other instances where 
t he Commission felt that, notwithstanding the interim procedural 
policy, public interest would be served by making the grant. 

Mr. RoGERS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. DINGELL. The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Nebraska, 

Mr. Cunningham. 
Mr. CUNNINGHAM. I yield my time to Mr. Brown. 
Mr. BROWN. I would like to pursue the question which was being 

9-eveloped by Mr. Keith. The question is whether the sale of stations 
1s generally for a higher price if the stations are sold as a package 
or if they are sold individually. 

Mr. HYDE. No; I cannot say. My impression is that this would not 
really affect the price of a particular station. I have no information on 
which t_o say that they bring higher amounts in a group than they 
would smgly. 

I can imagine, Congressman--
Mr. BROWN. I notice some other reactions among the Commission. 

Has anybody else any comment? 
Mr. HYDE. They might have an opinion rubout it, but I doubt if 

t here is an analysis of this matter available. 

Mr. LoEVINGER. Mr. Brown, I do not know whether it is relevant to 
your question, but Mr. Keith was asking C?1:1mis_sion~r Cox what the 

·Commission does to see that there are compet1t1ve situations. 
Mr. BROWN. That is the next question I will ask, if I may get to that. 

I would like to pursue the other thing. I gather from the Chairman's 
r eaction there is no definitive study within the Commission of this mat­
ter. Are there any contrary_ opinions that pri?es a~e ~igher if you sell 
stations as a package than 1f you sell ~he stations ;1nd1v1duall~? 

Mr. Cox. Mr. Chairman, I agree with the Chairman that 1t has to 
be an opinion, because we do not have studies. But I have t~lked_ to 
many broadcasters, and I believe that when they get to a s1tuat10n 
where someone who has he]d several stations is selling, he apparently 
always finds it in his interest to sell the whole P'.1ckage-unl~ss he !S 
dealino- with someone who will run into our multiple-ownership poli-
cies, aid then he may split up the stations. . . . 

In most transactions, where he can dispose of his holdmgs to a 
single party witho-qt running into the maximum limit, he does sell all 
of the~ togeth~r. '- . . 

I thmk m this case, as was suggested earlier~ believe by ~r. :Uogers, 
it would appear to me that if AVC had applied for permits m these 
five markets, it would not have gotten them, not only because_ of our 
interim policy, but because it would have run into comparativ~ ap­
plications from other parties and it would have been under !he disad­
vantage of being inexperienced, absentee owned, and after 1t got one 
permit, it would have been under the additional disabilit}: of having 
some ownership in broadcasting and, as against a party with no such 
ownership, it would be at a comparative disadvantage. 

Mr. BROWN. But there is an economic advantage which inures to 
someone owning several stations in terms of economies of tec)mical 
assistance, networking, programing, talent, and that sort of thmg. 

Mr. Cox. I believe this is true, and I believe this is one of the reasons 
for being concerned about the competitive impact of such_ groups, 
because if this advantage inheres in group ownership, then 1t repre­
sents a disadvantage for someone trying to compete against a group­
owned station. 

Mr. BROWN. On the point that you were raising, is there a bod:y of 
opinion on the Commission which feels the FCC should have the right 
to determine thn,t to transfer the license to one person is more in the 
public interest than to transfer the license to another? 

Mr. LoEVINGER. I believe generally the Commissioners feel the Com­
mission should have that right, but I believe the statute -is perfectly 
plain that the Commission does not have that right. Section 310(b) of 
t itie 47, which is part of the Communicati?ns Act, ~ays that_ in c_onsid­
ering any proposed transfer of a construct10n permit or stat10n license, 
th e Commission may not consider-this is the wording of the statute­
"The Commission may not consider whether the public interest, con­
venience, and necessity might be served by the transfer, assignment, or 
disposal of the permit or license to a person other than the proposed 
t ransferee or assignee." 

This is a plain mandate, a statutory mandate from Congress that 
we cannot have such a competitive situation. I think this is probably 
rm unwise provision, and I think most of us would favor seeing it 
ch:u1ged, but my oath was to enforce the laws and Constitution of the 
l J n ited States, and I have no choice but to follow this law. 
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Mr. ThN?ELL. Th~ time of the gentleman from Nebraska has expired. 
The Chair recogmzes the gentleman from California. 

. Mr. VAN lliERLIN. Mr. Hyde, page 2 of Mr. Cox's dissent goes 
mto the expenses that were being set against the out-of-pocket costs. 
About half_ of the total was provided by firms elsewhere among the 
Overmyer m~erests not related to the broadcasting companies. It 
covers items li~e personnel payroll, and it goes on into public relations 
and other services. 

Wha_t would costs like these be imposed for? What was Overmyer 
preparmg to do? Put these stations on the air? 

Mr. H;YDE. Yes, he was. Oyermyer was making an all-out effort 
to establish not only these stat10ns but to get a fourth network going. ' 
These ':'ere part of the expense of promotmg and developing such an 
enterprise. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. And the staff of the FCC presumably followed 
up and explored this? 

Mr. HYDE. Right. 
~Ir .. VAN DEERLr:r:i-. So while it was unusual to have a division of 

th~s kind-the. outside companies being compensated as well as the 
prime compames-you feel all these were leo-itimate expenses that 
were to be assessed against this operation? 0 

Mr. HYDE. I was satisfied that they were. I am relyino- strono-ly 
on staff analysis, of course. 0 0 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. And y~u, Mr. Cox, felt only that there should 
be a longer loo~ take1;1 at tlus before the approval was given? 

Mr. Cox. I thmk this was a novel approach. Generally in transfers 
of_ construction permits the sums involved are much smaller than 
tlus. I~ some cases they get down to mere hundreds of dollars. 

I thu:ik, t_hough ~ am rn?t. sure of this, that our staff has usually 
~een qmte rigorous_ m reqmrmg substantiation of these expenses, and 
m ~any _cases I thmk they go as far as getting actual copies of bills 
and mv01ces. 

W~at I was pointing out here is that this was novel. They sub­
stantiate about half ot thi~ $1,300,000 in t1:e form of direct payments, 
such '.'s legal and engmeermg fees . The prices paid for some of these 
per~uts are shown, because Overmyer bought some of them from 
earlier hol_ders. He purchased equipment, and perhaps has acquired 
progr'.'m ngh~s for film ::rnd other programs on many of these stations. 

To Jump this sum by more than double without testing this new ap­
proach in a hearing seemed to me unsound. 

It may ~e that so~e part, perhaps_ a substaJ?-tial part, ?f the upper 
half . of. this calculat10n. really was mcurred m connect10n with the 
acqmsit10n of the permits and preparation to go on the air but I 
would feel a lot more comfor~able about this if our hearing attorneys 
ha1 a chance to cross-examme the parties who are making these 
claims. 

Mr. VA~ DEE:lLIN. Without regard specifically to the transfers 
under cons1derat10n, has there been evidence in other transfers that 
1:ave _come withi~ ~h.e purview of the Commission of outright specula­
tion m the acqms1t10n and transfer of construotion permits? 

Mr. HYDE. I would have to say that the Commission has been con­
cerned a;bout the possibility that our processes were being used for 
speculat10n. 

As Commissioner Lee reminds me here, this is the justification for 
Che Commission's regulation which forbids the assio-nment or trans­
fer of a station except_ in some very limi_te~ exce;tional situations 
unless t~ey have had 1t for 3 years. This 1s designed to prevent 
, peculat10n. 

Mr. VA~ DE1".RLIN .. In California, in _the ear~y fifties, we ha~ quite 
a speculative hmge m the matter of liquor licenses. These licenses 
which were acquired for fees of about $250 from the State, were found 
to be worth as much as $15,000. When a place was sold, in addition 
to the modest real property, there would be a $15,000 added charge 
for the liquor license. 

Mr. HYDE. _We fe_el strongly that when alf applicant :i,pplies to build 
a TV or radio stat10n he must show he will operate 1t m the public 
interest and not that he will speculate in it. ,iV e also have these other 
policies designed to prevent him from speculating if he should un­
dertake to do so. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. It happens, of course, that the fees that accrue 
to the Government, do not even pay for the operation of the Commis-
sion, do they? .', 

Mr. HYDE. That is right. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Do you think some new legislation may be in 

order in that area? 
Mr. HYDE. I believe not. I believe-and I may be contradictino­

what has bee:f1; said by my colleague who suggests thrnt perhaps som~ 
of the ;_Commissioners wo~l~ prefer a little more _authority, partic-
1ilar]y m terms of determmrng who we may consider as a possible 
f ransferee~but I think we have adequate discretion at the present 
Lime. I think we need the flexibility of the present law. 

Mr. DINGELL. The time is up. 
The _gentleman from Michigan, Mr. Harvey . 

. Mr. I-LmvEY. Mr. Chairman, the section we are talking about here 
1s the only one where there is any possibility of any violation and non­
compliance with the law as far as I see, section 310 (b). Is that 
correct? 

Mr. HYDE. The only section of the statute. This is the only pro­
vision of law which has been cited as relevant here. 

Mr. HARVEY. And that is a confusing section indeed. 
Mr. HYDE. Could I give a bit of statutory history as to the 1952 

amendment which Mr. Loevinger read? 
Mr. HARVEY. He didn't read the last sentence, did he? I didn't hear 

it. 
Mr. HYDE. I think he did. 
Mr. RoGERS. I didn't think he read the first sentence. He read only 

the last. 
Mr. HYDE. I think I can give you some o:f the folklore or the history 

which will explain why we have such a provision as this. 
Mr. HARVEY. I have limited time. Am I correct in reading this that 

! he first part of 310 (b) specifically requires a finding of public 
,nteresH 

Mr. HYDE. It does. 
Mr. HARVEY. Without question that was the intention, that that 

p11blic interest be retained. There is no doubt in your mind about that, 
,g there 1 
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Mr. HYDE. Not at all. I also would take the view, although Chair­
man Moss disagreed with me, that we have made such a finding. 

Mr. HARVEY. The latter part of the section, where we speak of the· 
Commission not making a finding in the public interest, refers only 
to any other transfer to any other person other than the one bein<Y· 
considered here. Is that correct? '"' 

Mr. HYDE. That is right. The statute prohibits us from looking at 
alternative transferees. 

Mr. HARVEY. In the work of this committee in 1950 and 1960 in their 
reports they recommended changes in 310(b). Were any changes ever 
made? 

Mr. HYDE. I think the last change I can recall was 1952. That was " 
the only one. 

I am reminded by our counsel that the Commission has suggested 
the elimination of that last sentence but there was no action on that 
suggestion by the Congress. 

Mr. HARVEY. So we still are bound by it today? 
Mr. HYDE. We are. 
Mr. HARVEY. You mentioned before the policy that Commissioner 

Cox refers to on page 1 where he states: 
It strikes at our long established policy against allowing the holder of a eon­

struetion permit to sell for more than the out-of-pocket expenses reasonably­
incurred in acquiring the permit. 

Mr. HYDE. Commissioner Cox disagrees with the finding of the 
majority that he is not receiving an amount above his out-of-pocket 
expenses. 

Mr. HARVEY. I appreciate that. My specific question is this­
I understood you to say there was no such statement of policy bnt a 
vast body of precedent. Is this spelled out somewhere in past decisions 
o:f the Commission? 

Mr. HYDE. I think I could find you illustrations of these precedents. 
I will undertake to do that. 

Mr. HARVEY. If you will, I am sure others will be interested in· 
having those, also, so we will know whether that truly is a past policy 
or whether this is just something --

~fr. f"1YDE. I will undertake to supply you with precedents on 
this pomt. 

(The material submitted appears in the appendix, p. 337.) 
Mr. Cox. While it is true that this does not directly relate to trans­

fers, in section 311 ( c) Congress enacted provisions to govern the set­
tlement between two parties who filed competing applications. They 
specincally said there that the parties could not settle this matter be­
tween themselves, so that one stepped out or they merged, unless thev 
came to the Commission, and if there was a payment to be made, th~ 
payment should be limited to : 

The aggregate amount determined by the Commission to have been legiti­
mately and prudently expended and to be expended by such applicant in con­
nection with preparing, filing, and advocating the granting of his application. 

_I think th~t this re:presents a con_gressional agreement in principle 
with the pohcy that is spelled out m the cases that the Chairman is 
undertaking to supply. 

Mr. HARVEY. T~at is 311 ( c) to which you refer? 
Mr. Cox. Yes, sir. 

Mr. DINGELL. The Chair recognizes now the gentleman :from Texas, 
Mr. Pickle. 

Mr. PICKLE. It seems to me that a great deal of discussion this morn­
ing has evolved around the question of whether the Commission d id 
in fact hold full hearings with reference to these transfers. Was it a 
hearing in your sense or should we have had a public and official full­
blown hearing? 

Assuming we had a full hearing, and it would seem to me as one 
member that there was more to be gained from a full hearing, but as­
suming we had had a full hearing would the matter as far as lour 
Commission is concerned have been decided just on the basis o t he 
nearing? 

Mr. HYDE. Yes, of course. 
Mr. PICKLE. That would have satisfied the questions involved. In 

other words, you are not asking for additional legislation? 
Mr. HYDE. No, we are not asking for additional legislation. 
Mr. PICKLE.- Would :full hearings have caused unusual delays? 
Mr. HYDE. I thi:qk so. I believe it might very well have defeated 

this effort to salvag_e a sinking enterprise. 
Mr. PICKLE. Is it typical the way this case is handled as compared 

to other cases? 
Mr. HYDE. It was typical. We handle a great majority of the trans­

fers upon the same basis--
Mr. PICKLE.. You transfer many o:f these licenses and permits on 

the basis of your "hearing" ? 
Mr. HYDE. "\Ve handle a great majority o:f the cases on the basis of 

written applications and analysis. 
Mr. PICKLE. This was a written application. 
Mr. HYDE. That is right. This was handled--
Mr. PICKLE. So most o:f your cases are handled as this one was 

handled? 
Mr. HYDE. They are, sir. 
Mr. PICKLE. Without really a satisfactory hearing in the sense you 

have majority and minority! 
Mr. HYDE. That is right, sir. I would like to add that the majority 

:feels they had :full information. 
Mr. PICKLE. Do you have any different policy with respect to new 

construction permits as compared to the transfer of a license of a 
station which has been operatmg for, say, 5 years or a longer time? 

Mr. HYDE. The act specifies the same test--public interest, con­
venience, and necessity. I believe it specifically says that the test should 
he the same as on an original application. -

Mr. PICKLE. I would hope that any of the Commissioners would 
snbmit to this committee any recommendations :for additional legisla­
Lion if in his opinion such is needed other than the public necessity 
11 11 <l convenience. 

One question is related to this indirectly with reference to CATV. 
Yon rtre not involved in the transfer o:f any CATV are you? 

Mr. HYDE. No, we are not. 
M:r. PICKLE. Is that handled as between the licensee and the trans­

fPmr? Do they have to get approval of a local governing agency or 
1111111 icipality? 
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lVlr. HYDE. Generally speaking this has been handled as a fran­
chising matter by the municipality, the county, the State. We have not 
undertaken to license--

Mr. PICKLE. In the transfer of a CATV do you know whether they 
must show public convenience and necessity? 

Mr. HYDE. They need not make any representation to us or get any 
consent from us under the present statutes. 

Mr. PICKLE. Some of the CATV chains I suppose have 30, 40, 50 
different ownerships all under one. 

Mr. HYDE. I understand that in some States there are certain-­
Mr. PICKLE. Do you think that is !t good public policy? 
Mr. HYDE. I think this business of authorizing CATV's and the 

transfers needs to be researched. I think they need to be examined for 
the purpose of development of appropriate public policy. This thing 
has grown. Although it has a bit of history and a good deal of size 
now we are undertaking a study that will cover the point that you raise. 

Very often microwave systems are used in connection with CATV. 
These are subject to our licensing power and they may not be trans­
ferred without our approval. Some applications have been denied. 

Mr. DINGELL. The gentleman from Colorado, Mr. Brotzman. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. I have had some difficulty understanding the section 

of the question involved here. I have read it several times and perhaps 
I am catching up a little bit. 

Is there a difference of opinion on the Commission as to legal con-
struction of that particular section? 

Mr. HYDE.No; there is not. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. You are all agreed on what it means? 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. If the chairman would give me a moment at my 

expense to explain how we got that I think it might help. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. If you take that out of your time I will be glad to 

doit. 
Mr. DINGELL. The Chair will try to give you that opportunity. 
Mr. HYDE. The Commission did at one time undertake to make regu­

lations which would authorize the Commission to hold up a proposed 
transfer for consideration of competing bids. These were called AVCO 
procedures. They did not work very well. 

·· They did 1;rnt delays on the assignment or transfer of stations and 
the Commission itself voluntarily deleted the regulations but Congress 
was not satisfied to have them deleted. They enacted the amendment of 
1952 to preclude the Commission from even reviving such a regulation. 

Mr. BROTZMAN. The idea is to permit more alienability so it could 
be transferred. Is that correct? 

Mr. HYDE. That would seem to me to be it. I would construe this as 
an expression of congressional intent to permit alienability without the 
limitations the Commission had proposed. 

Mr. BROTZMAN. You seem to be in ,agreement on the law. You dis­
agree as to the transaction somewhat, I would glean. 

Let me ask a couple somewhat legally related questions. First of all, 
I would understand that 100 percent of the stock was actually trans­
ferred from A to B. Is that correct? 

Mr. HYDE. In this instance? 
Mr. BROTZMAN. Yes. 
Mr. HYDE. Eighty percent. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. Eighty percent was transferred. 

i\ Ir. 1 { YDK This is the Overmyer station. 
i\1 r. BROTZMAN. And was the consideration for that $1 million-plus? 
1\ r r. T h'DE. $1 million. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. $1 million even? 
Mr. HYDE. Right. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. Who owns the 20 percent now? 
Mr. HYDE. Overmyer. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. Overmyer owns that? 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. He has pledged thrut plus other property for a $3 

+14 illion loan? 
Mr. HYDE. Correct. 
Mr. BROTZMAN. My question really is this: In trying to arrive at 

f hi s thing called ~onsideration, was the granting of the loan a condition 
precedent to makmg of the sale? 

Mr. HYDE. I am sure it was worked out as part of the proposal. 
Actually what you have here is a contract for the transfer of the con­
I rolling interest in ,'the ~vermyer stations plus a substantial loan of 
<·a pital to Overmyer'for his purposes. 

Overmyer has a continuing investment in the station, the difference 
\ipfween this $1 million and his out-of-pocket expense which is at risk 
i II f he further operation of the five stations. 

!\fr. BROTZMAN. So that the transfer of the remaining 20 percent of 
1 IH' stock would occur upon a breach of the collateral agreement, a 
r,, ,·c'closure or picking up of the pledge? This is the way A VC would 
,,•pf f he 20 percent? 

i\1 r . HYDE. Yes. They would exercise their option. 
i\1 r. BROTZMAN. No agreement to sell it to them at this point? 
:\1 r. HYDE. They would exercise their option to buy or foreclose 

i l1Pi1 · mortgage. 
1\1,· . BROTZMAN. There is an option to buy? 
M 1·. HYDE. Thel'e is. 
M ,._ BROTZMAN. In conjunction with the collateral agreement? 
Mr. HYDE. That is right. There is an option to buy the other 20 

\H' r("ent as well as a mortgage on the other 20 percent and other 
\ l ro pm-ties. 

Mr. RomiRs. Would the gentleman permit one question? 
Mr. BROTZMAN. Yes. 
J\fr. ROGERS. Is it true tha•t under the agreement that you approved it 

is sf :,Led it is understood the price to be paid for the stock sh.all not in 
1111 y event exceed $3 million? 

~rr. HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. RocERS. The price for the stock. Now the stock is the 20 percent 

o f I he permit that the out-of-pocket expense amounts to about $300,000 
Oil 'i 

Wh y d idn't the Commission restrict that price of the 20 percent 
I oc- k to $300,000? You restricted the first 80 percent to $1 million. 

I f yo 11 rrally are carrying out the intent to hold these trnnsfer 
\H' r111if s lo out-of-pocket expense you should have restricted the 20 
111'IT<•1d. Lo what the out-of-pocket expenses were. 

( )f \Jpnvi sr an_y one cn,n come in, make a mortgage agreement, and 
/'1'I ll'iinl<'V<'t· money thry want. 

Y1111 sn_y " vV\·11 , iL is l:tf r r o11. ' ' 
11, 1: t nn 11 1. 1 
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Mr. HYDE. A VC Corp. has not contracted to pay $3 million for it. 

They have an option to pay--
Mr. RoGERS. They didn't contract to pay out-of-pocket expenses for 

it, either. You have not seen to that. 
Mr. HYDE. I think we have. 
Mr. ROGERS. Show me the language. . . . 
Mr. HYDE. We have required a submission of their costs so that we 

could make a determination as to whetl~er or not an amount- , " 
Mr. RoGERS. In their own agreement it says they can pay up to $0 

million for that 20 percent but no more. 
Mr. HYDE. They can. 
Mr. ROGERS. I thank the gentleman. 
Mr. BROWN. Mr. Hyde-go ahead and finish what you ha~ to say. 
Mr. HYDE. I was checking some information. ~xcus~ me, sir. 
Mr. BROWN. Is there an analysis available eitl:ier m me~orandum 

form or any other form as to the value the Commission ascribes ~o the 
20 percent of the stock which" w3:s _mortgaged and the other items 
which were mortgaged for the $0 million? . . . . 

Mr. HYDE. There is attached to the apphcat10n i~1formation regard­
ing an independent appraisal oi the other properties that wer:e mort­
gaged. My recollection is that there is a 2 to 1 value as agamst the 
amount of the mortgage. . 

What I am saying is that an independen~ a_ppraisal was made_ of 
the properties that were mortgaged and this mdependent appraisal 
values them at twice the value--

Mr. BROWN. $6 million? 
Mr. HYDE. That is right. . 
Mr. BROWN. Is'there any place a specific breakdown of the value of 

the 20 percent of the stock? 
Mr. HYDE. No, sir. . . 
Mr. BROWN. Versus the value of the other properties wluch made 

up the package of t~e mortgage for the $3 million? 
Mr. HYDE. There is not. . 
Mr. BROWN. Do you know whether in the 2 to 1 ratio which 

assumes $6 million what_the stock wa~ valued ~t? . 
Mr. HYDE. I think it was practically disregarded. I believe the 

loanor is depending upon the mortgages on the other ~roperty. 
Mr. BROWN. In other words, you have only the generalized assurance 

that there was a 2 to 1 ratio but no breakdown --
Mr. HYDE. There is a 2 to 1 ratio without regard to the stock. . 
Mr. BROWN. Does that presume a valuation on the other properties 

not counting the stock? 
Mr. HYDE. It certainly does. 
Mr. BROWN. Do you have those broken down by items? 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. BROWN. In other words, the other pieces of property were as-

sumed to be worth $6 million by an independent appraisal? 
Mr. HYDE. They were found to have that value. 
Mr. BROWN. And they are part of the $3 million mortgage? 
Mr. HYDE. They are. 
Mr. BROWN. Are they the total of the $11 million of net worth that 

Mr. Overmyer had when he went into this whole business of broad­
casting? 

Mr. HYDE. I do not know. 
Mr. Lee may have some information on that. 

-.:. ' 
STATEMENT OF ROBERT E. LEE, COMMISSIONER, FEDERAL 

COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

J\lr. LEE. If I may correct that figure. At the time he applied our 
. t :dt found it was $5,900,000, which was ~is net worth. . . 

From that time to this he has come mto very hard times, and lns 
P111 pire has collapsed. . . 

'What his net worth is as of the moment of transfer I assume it 1s 
J1retty nil. . . 

Mr. BROWN. Did he mortgage the entire empire that he had at the 
·t 111,e he began broadcasting? . . 

Jl\1r. LEE. I don't believe all of 1t. We have already put m the record, 
1, r we will put in the record, the list of 1th~se_ 23 properties that were 
11 1, praised which is the mortgage on t~e $3_ million. . . 

Mr. DINGELL~ If the gentleman will yield_ for a brief quest1011. 
Mr. BROWN. The chairman usually gets his own time at the end of 

Lhc hearing. I will be glad to yield at this point if you want ,to develop 
't. l, is line of questioni,:Q-g. . . 

Mr. DINGELL. We want to ask whether the property mvolved m 
th remaining 20 percent of the stock was valued at 20 percent or 
;t,(' I'(). 

Mr. HYDE. I do not have a valuation on the remaining 20 percent 
. Io ·le. I can say this-opposite it there is this $300,000 worth of un­
('0 mpensated out-of-pocket expenses. 

Mr. BROWN. If I may continue my line of questioning, it would 
1·1·1i1 to me that 80 percent of the stock is really worth $1 million; 

if that is so, then 20 percent of the stock is worth something less than 
$~r,0,000 because 20 percent is not needed for control. You have con­
t ro I with the 80 percent. 

Actually, on that basis the total value of the stock in the broadcast­
i11g interest would have to be put down as something less than 
$ I ,250,000. 

I s this the contention of the members of the Commission who sup­
po rtcd this sale? 

Mr. HYDE. I believe they will state their views about that. 
MiO'ht I say one further thing about the mortgages? They are 

s1•<·,ond mortga~es. There is a first mortgage ahead of the one. 
M,·. BuowN. un the warehouse properties? 
,'\Jr.HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. BROWN. And the stock, or just warehouse properties? . 
;\Ir. HYDE. Just warehouse properties, as I understand it. 
I wa.nt to add this: The equities beyond the requirements of the 

Ii rs l. rnor! gage are $6 million, or 2 to 1 as far as the loan is concerned. 
MI'. BROWN. I have one other question for the record, and if you 

,·11 1111ot answer it gives us statistics if they can be easily developed. 
I 11 111 ajor markets, what percentage of the stations now in operation 

f., ,. whi h construction permits have been granted are in multiple 
,,1, 111q·s liip ? 

\ I 1·. 11 .-n,~. I will have to ask for time. 
~I 1·. llnowN. MuJtiple ownership in contradiction to the interim 

,,. ,1 11· ,1 011 rnultipJe ownership. 
\Ir . 11 Yll M. T think we can get ,that for you. I believe I have a full 

I 1· I 111 frn11 t. o I' m . I think ·there are eight instances where transfers 
1111," 111•11 11 in n de. 
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Mr. BuowN. I would like to know the number of stations, owner­
ships--

Mr. HYDE. Oh, this is a larger order. The interim policy was, on its 
face, not designed to have retroactive --

Mr. BROWN. I understand that. I would like to know whether these 
were, prior to the adoption of the interim policy, developed before or 
after the policy of the interim policy. 

Mr. HYDE. "\Ve will undertake to get you the information. 
Mr. BROWN. This is not the first case of frustration of the interim 

policy, is it? 
Mr. HYDE. This is not the first waiver; that is right, sir. 
(The information submitted appears in the appendix, p. 342.) 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Dingell? 
Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Chairman, I would like to direct first of all a 

request through the Chair for permission that niernbers of this com­
mittee be afforded the privilege of asking certain questions as appro­
prirute both insofar as helpful information and other matters are 
concerned. 

The CHAIRMAN. That may be permitted. I will ask the Commission 
to stand ready when we resume Congress if we need further answers to 
questions. 

Mr. DINGELL. I would like to direct the first question to Commis­
sioner Cox who discussed rather eloquently a statement on page 2, re­
ferring to permits being held to actual expenses. 

The statement goes on to say "Certainly it represents a novel a.p­
proach which I think would ha.ve to be tested in a hearin~ before it 
could be accepted." 

Then he goes on to make further sta.tements and makes a further 
comment with rega.rd to the nature of these expenditures and how they 
conform to previous Commission practices. 

Mr. Cox. I don't believe we have ever had this method of justifying 
expenses used before. That does not mean it ma.y not be valid, but I 
feel before it is accepted in such a significant amow1t it would have 
been desirable to test it in a hearing. 
·· As I understand the procedure, they took a part of the period during 
which Overmyer was acquiring and holding t hese permits for which 
they had some records as to the services provided by other parts of his 
empire. They then applied a certain percentage factor to these for 
other parts of the per-iod, for which records were not available. This is 
all supported by affidavits of individuals in the Overmyer enterprises 
as ,to what part of their time they devot-ed to broadcast aspects of his 
operation. 

To simply accept the aggregate of these figures without detailed test­
ing seems to me to be unsound. That is why I suggested a hearing 
would have been appropriate. 

Mr. DINGELL. Commissioner, on page 3 of your dissent you discuss 
the realities of the situation in the second parn,graph. 

I would like to direct this question to the other members of the 
Commission. 

Does any member of the Commission take issue with the factual 
statement made by Commissioner Cox in 1that language on pa.ge 3? 

I refer now to the second paragraph on that page. 
Mr. HYDE. I take the position that the consideration was not $4 

million. It was $1 million. 

!\1 r. D 1NG ELL. If you were an intelligent businessman and knew 
11111 1. you were going to, within a matter of a year or so, have certain 
ill•,111 s clumped back into your lap which a.ppeared to be of rather 
Ii 111 if C'd value, would you include in such agreement the option to pur­
<· I 1:i se them then for $3 million? 

\Ir. HYDE. If I .. ere certain there was going to be a substantial 
i11C'.rease in the value of them I would be interested in the option, 
<·PrLainly. 

l\ Ir. DINGELL. Does it not strike you it is rather extraordinary that 
0 11 one hand .we have an option ·to purchase and on the other hand we 
liH+O a mortgage so widely divergent? Has the Commission taken steps 
I() :1sreitain "·hether there were under-the-table agreements in fact to 
1·< · J lll rchase? 

:\fr. HYDE. \Ve have examined the whole matter carefully to assure 
n1 11·.·elves tha,t we have full information. If we felt we did not have it 
11'll would either_ undertake further inquiries or have a hearing. 

There is nothing here to suggest any misr~presentation in the sub­
!ll i ssions made to the Commission. 

Mr. DINGELL. Yolt have not had opportunities tote.st these aUega­
t ions from these bare affidavits in an adversary proceeding in cross 
<1xamination? 

Mr. HYDE. Both parties to this .a,p,plication 1will continue ,to have 
l111 siness with the Commission. They would be taking a very serious 
1111<1 grave risk to be :prosecuting ,aptPlication--

\J r. DINGELL. Are you telling me, then, that misrnpresentation will 
11 ll'l•!'f the rights and the interests of persons who make false statements 
:1f. some later time? 

l\ti-. HYDE. There is hardly any offense more serious in our proc­
Pss i11g than to file an application which is untruthful. There have been 
rm·oc:itions of licenses on j,ust that ha.sis. 

l\fr-. DINGELL. I think if I recall the figures correctly with regard to 
n·,·ocaition of licenses there have been two or three. 

!\fr. HYDE. Oh, no. 
!\fr. DINGELL. During the life of the Commission. 
Mr. HYDE. There has been a substantial number. 
!\Ir. DINGELL. I would like to have you submit those £or the record. 
(Tlie information submitted appears in the appendix, p. B4B.) 
l\fr. DINGELL. I 1rnuld like vou also to advise this committee whether 

.1•011 revoke licenses of these riarties if you find there are fraudulent 
~ I 11 I <' 111 cnts ,mRcl e. 

Mr. HYDE. vVe ,~ould institute proceedings in any case wh(;lre we find 
I l1t•rn kive been m1sre;presentations submitted to us in an application 
1111 ll'iiiC'h ,Ye have acted. 

!\Ir. DINGELL. vVhat consideration .went info the Commission's 
iil ·ln111ination of no hearing? 

1\1 ... 11 YDE. I didn',t hear you. 
l 1·. lhNGELL. What consideration went into the consideration of 

11111 111 :11 !C'r that no hearing was required in this matter? 
\11 ·. I IY1m. One, we fel:t we did ha.ve full .information. 
' l 'wo1 it, is a matter where in the nature of thinO'.S expeditious action 

1 >'l''f 1, 11·<,rf if Orn Commi~sio?- is, in fact, going to :Ct. · 
1\11 ·. l)1 Nois LL. vVhat 1s m the record to show ex.peilition was 

1;oq11ir1•d 1 
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Mr. HYDE. The financial distress of the permittee. . 
Mr. DINGELL. You are required under the FCC Act to make a find· 

ing in the public interest? 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. DINGELL. Where is there the requirement that you come ~ the 

conclusion that the permittee is under financial stress? There 1s no 
place in the act .where this is required, is there? 

Mr. HYDE. No. 
Mr. DINGELL. Public interest is the sole test. . 
Mr. HYDE. That is right, but I am suggesting to you that the phght 

of a station and the effect of the distress of the operator upon t he 
public service is a relevant consideration. . ,, 

Mr. DINGELL. Can you tell me how a company hke A VC can apply · 
for all five construction permits i~ 25 top markets_ in this ?ountry and 
achieve them in the course of a simple comparative hearmg? 

Mr. HYDE. We don't have such a case. 
Mr. DINGELL. This is a most extraordinary circumstance, is it not? 
Mr. HYDE. There are many instances where a station has been_ a?-

quired by transfer which perhap~ would.not go to t l:ie transferee if 1t 
had been a subject of a comparative hearmg, dependmg upon who t he 
other applicants might be. 

Mr. DINGELL. Commissioner Johnson, did you have a comment~ 
Mr. JOHNSON. I think it might be useful in_this context to point out 

the distinctions between the ways to reach this pot of gold at the end 
of the rainbow. We are talking about two here this morning. 

Th ere are, in fact, about seven. 
The fact of the matter is, although my colleagues might 4isagree 

with me on this, I think in all candor it is quite clear that this Com­
mission, like other comparable institutions, respond~ to :er~ss~res and 
tends to hold hearings and conduc~ more c?mplete mqmries m t??Se 
cases where there are in fact competmg applicants or other competitive 
interests in the matter before the Commission. 

I think that those matters in which there is not such interest receive 
rather cursory attention. I think that that !flight ::i,s wel_l be said. . 

I n the case of applying for a broadcast license, m trymg to get mto 
the broadcasting business, there is one way to get into it which invo~ves 
expenditure of tens of thousands of dollars and many months of time 
and a tremendous amount of effort. That is the comparative hearing 
route. That involves applying for construction permits, for a new 
channel where there are other people who want to get it. 

There are many other ways of getting into the broadcasting business, 
one of which you direct your attention to this morning-that is, pur­
chasin_g_ a construction permit fr?~ someone else whe~e. the!e is no 
oppos1t10n, where there is no pubhc mvolvement or partic1pat10n, and 
in those cases it will be handled in a very cursory fashion. That is 
what happened here. 

I think for us to pretend that this case receives the same kind of 
degree of attention and inquiry and hearing and examination that a 
comparative hearing would is simply not the case. There is no reason 
to suspect that it would be. 

You can apply for a new channel. You can apply for a new channel 
where there is no competitor and then there will not be a hearing. You 
wiJl simply be given the channel. 

) 0 11 can ask for transfer o~ a channel _t? your com~unity which 
d1J1• ,.; not exist there. If there is no opposition, that will be granted 
11 11 Ii r lative ease. 

( )n the other hand, a fourth option would ~e to ask_ ~or t?e transfer 
ll r a, channel to your co~uni~y where there is opposit10n m the _com-
11 111 11 iLy from which you wish 1t trans~erred. In that case there will be 
!l r11 lemaking proceeding and you agam have a pr_oblem on your hands. 

F ifth you can intervene in a renewal proceedm_g for someone who 
11nw ha; a license. There again you have a competitor on your hands, 
, . , p<.mse and time. . . . . 
_ • ' ixth, you can go_ out and p~rchase a s~at10n tha~ is _m operation 

11 11d without opposit10n there will be v~ry h~tle examma~10n. 
;o;cventh, you can do what was done m this case, that is, purchase a 

,·1 ,11:-;Lruction permit. . . . 
I think it is useful for you to see this m context as si_mply one _of 

111 :111y routes in_to the br?adcasting ~usiness, some of which are qmte 
ri!!orous and some of which are relatively easy. . .. 

,\fr. ROGERS. I can't understand this. ·where the~e ~s no opposit~on 
I •.an see where you '.feel a hearing is not necessary 1f it complies with 
11 111 r eo-ulations and waivers of policy are not necessary. 

But where waivers and exemptions of policy are necessary, I would 
11, i 11 k it would automatically trigger a hearing: This is ~y concern. . 

:\fr. JOHNSON. You understand I do not disagree with you. I dis-
.,. 111 din this case. . . . 

What I am trying to do is simply to_ explain wh3:t I thmk is gomg 
111 1 a.t the FCC in terms of our regulat10n of entry mto a very profit-
" I il n business. . 

T here are many entry ways. Some are very difficult and expensive. 
( >I IH' J'S are relatively easy. Those that are difficult a_nd expensive tend 
Io involve application by us of very much more ngorous standards 
111 :1 11 the more easy entry ways. . . 

I\fr. HYDE. The Commission does not handle any such case as this m 
:1 c· 111·sory manner. This thing has been exa_m}ned at_leng;th. There was 
110 ('• mpetincr applicant. There was no petit10n aga1_nst it. 

The Co~ission did not find any need for a hearmg. That does not 
111(•[\n t hey were not interested in the relevant facts in the cas~ .. 

;\ ( r. DINGELL. You granted a waiver of several of your policies. 
:\fr. HYDE. I have a list of eight of them here. 
\fr. DINGELL. You granted a waiver on the prehearing rule? 
\fr. HYDE. No. 
.\11-. DINGELL. You have crranted a waiver to the established prac-

1 in• in the Commission that you don't authorize multiple ~ownership 
111 arc:Ls of the top 50. You have not three but five in the top 25 and 
, 11 ,I Lhe Lop 50, so you waived that. 

\ \' hat other broad public policies and quest~ons d_id yo1;1 waive? 
\Ir. HYDE. I think the very comprehensive clissentmg statements 

1111 v('. r:Liscd all the possible objections that you co~ld identify. . 
I wo11ld like to say that the 3-year rule provides an exception for 

I 1 11 11s 1'<.•rs where there is financial distress. 
\Ir. DINGELL. But there is no financial distress to a station in 

l 11>1 11 g- ? 
\l 1·. lf,, 0J1c. Yes. 
\I, ·. I )1 NOELL. Simply financial distress to a particular construction 

I 1, , . II f•(. \ 1 
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Mr. HYDE. No. The station in San Francisco is essentially complete. 
It will go on the air soon. 

Mr. DINGELL. Not one of these five is on the air? 
Mr. HYDE. The investment has been made. The point I make is 

that these are not bare certificates; they are projects in which sub­
stantial funds have been invested. 

Mr. RoaERS. If they h ad assets for which they could obtain $3 
million, where they could secure a loan for $3 million, surely there was 
not enough financial distress that they could not have O'One out on the 
money market and obtained capital? 0 

Mr. HYDE. Our information is that this was the only source of 
funds that he could find. " 

Mr. RoGERS. Did you go into that? Is there anything in the record · 
to show he made a real effol't? 

Mr. HYDE. There is a statement by the applicant. 
Mr. DINGELL. vVas this matter tested in a hearing before the 

Commission ? 
Mr. HYDE. There was no hearing on this case. 
Mr. DINGELL. You really don't know whether there were alternative 

measures and methods available to the transferor. 
Mr. HYDE. I am satisfied that these stations would have been lost 

e~cept that a new applicant was found who was willing to assume the 
risks. 

Mr. DINGELL. Here you have a situation where a man mortaao-es for 
$3 million with an option to purchase for $3 million 20 perce~t°of the 
value of these stations. 

If tha,t kind o~ deal_ w_ere sufficiently appealing to A VC it would 
appear there :Vas a distmctly mortgageable asset available to Mr. 
Overmyer to d~spose of on the market or an interest he could dispose of 
on the market rn such a way that he could have derived some economic 
benefit which would have enabled him to bail himself out of his 
financial distress. 

Did you make any scrutiny of this point at all? 
Mr. HYDE. We acted upon the--

. Mr. DINGELL. I want a responsive answer. Did you make any 
scrntiny of th.is point? 

Mr. HYDE. Not outside the application. 
. Mr .. DINGELL: ,~ ell, did you get any information on this point out­

side of the apphcat10n? 
Mr. HYDE. Th.ere is a report in the staff analysis that the applicant 

Overmyer, the transferor, asserted that he was not able to find 
another alternn,ti ve. 

Mr_. DINGELL. You conducted no hearings on this matter to as­
certarn whether that fact was so or not? 

Mr. HYDE. We d~d not conduct a hearing. 
Mr .. DI~GE~L. p1d you make. any independ~nt inquiry with other 

~nancial mstitutions to ascertam whether this was a mortO'ao·eable 
item or whether other buyers were available to bail Mr. Ove~y~r out 
of the trouble in which he found himself? 

Mr. ~YDE. If I may have a moment ,to check with staff. 
vVe did not ma~e an independent investigation in this. vVith the 

resources we have 111 our place, ,we don't undel'take to substantiate the 
~sual ap~1ication. We examine them and if we find indications of any 
irregularity we do make a study. 

,~Lr. DINGELL. ,:Vhat you are saying is that you swallow the papers 
Ii kd with the application whole without chewing. 

Mr. HYDE. What I am saying is tha:t we found the application 
s1d,mitted to us a very formidable one adequate for the findings we 
111 :1cle. 

Mr. DINGELL. Did you make any independent check as to alternative 
1ndhods of financing or whether or not these statements that were 
s11hmitted to you were in fact true? 

Mr. HYDE. I don't believe this was required of us under the cir­
c·1 1 mstances. 

__ p1r. DINGELL. Do you believe it is required before you waive a 
l1 Pn ring? 

1\ir. HYDE. Our policy, and it is procedural,. says that if an applicant 
111:1kes a ~ompelling s~owing tha_t public interest would be served by 
11, ;.rrant without a hearmg, we do 1t. vVe feel they made such a showing. 

Mr. DINGELL. You concede you have granted an application in­
,, o I ving matter~s which under ordinary circumstances you would have 
li t>:t ring, that you haiVe waived the broad procedural--

Mr. HYDE. No; r .~mnot. 
Mr. DINGELL. There was no outside check of the factual content of 

11,c· n.pplications presented to you? 
i\fr. HYDE. No; I am not saying tha;t at all. 
Mr. DINGELL. I want you to tell me where I am wronO'. 
Mr. HYDE. I would say that in 95 percent of the case~ that the appli-

1·: ll ion is acted upon without hearing. 
~ r r , DINGELL. Here you have something ,that contravenes the 3-year 

I'll I<·, the rule with regard to concentration of ownership in the 50 top 
111:1rkC'f-s, and these are only the top 25. You have also allowed the 
1•1 ol11t ion of a rather interesting financial arraiwement on which 
111!',1 \1 is broad controversy as to whether or not it is a $4 million 
1·0 111 pensation or not. 

Ywt had n_o scrutiny in the form of an objective hearing to find 
n11t i he real ci_rcumstances. You conc~de you have engaged in no inde­
Jii'11(lr1:t ~crutmy of the truth or falsity of the papers submitted to the 
( 0 ll l 1111 SSlOn . 

Yo11 further say the way you will police this is by waiting to see 
11 11('1 her or not these statements were true or false with the later hope 
I 11111 _perhaps 1:1aybe you w_ill consider these in some relicensing pro­
•·vc·< l1 ng t.hat will take place rn the vague future. 

l\l r. fhDE. I don'~ :vant to give t~e impression that I have any 
cl11 11ht.s about the validity of the showrnO'S before us or that I feel it 
,, 11<'1'Pssary for us to police it to make ~ure that the representations 
1111·1· n1:ulc were true. 

i' illl,1 sa,ying that should they, unknown to us, have made misrepre-
1· 11 11111011s, thern are sanctions adequate to deal with it. 

,\I 1·. ·' )1 NflF.LL. D<_m'_t you think )'.'OU have a responsibility as Chair-
111 1111 n I Lim L Comm1ss10n to ascertarn the truth or falsity of statements 
11 l1 c·rc· LIH·re itrc questions of the kind we see here and where the rules 
,ii 111<· ( '0111111i ssion regarding hearings are beino- so broadly and 
111 1111 q11 l,v w:1 ivc<l by the Commission? "' 

\Ir . I I n11~: I think we have a respons~bility to see that the docu-
1111 •111 . 1111 wl 11<:h we act are truthful. 

I 1,I o I 11 i nlc we are not required to go out and investiO'ate to see 
, 111' I li, ·1• 1 IH •rc• :ire- go out on a witch hunt- 0 
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Mr. DINGELL. I am asking whether you made an independent in" 
vestigation. You said you have not? 

Mr. HYDE. There is no evidence of irregularity that would warrant 
a special investigation. 

Mr. DINGELL. How do you know there is no evidence of irregular" 
ity? You conducted no hearing and made no independent scrutiny '? 

Mr. HYDE. This is the way we must act. TVe do not undertake field 
investigations of every application filed with us. vVe could not do our 
business with the resources we have if we had to proceed in that way. 

Mr. DINGELL. But you have an extraordinary situation. Commis­
sion rules say you will have a hearing in circumstances where the 
license is under 3 years old when transferred, and you will have ~. 
hearing where there is a tendency tmrnrd concentration because of 
the excessive number of licensees operating in five or whatever the 
number is of the top 50. Here you have five of the top 25. You made 
no independent investigation and had no hearing. 

J\fr. HYDE. There is no tendency to monopoly or concentration here 
in the transfer of five UHF stations in markets where they will be 
competing with the strongest forces in the broadcasting industry. 

Mr. ROGERS. One of the reasons you give is the public interest. T his 
is not stated in the order, however. 

Mr. HYDE. I take the view the finding we make is a public interest 
finding. 

Mr. Romms. I do not see edification of what the basis is. As I under­
stand it, one of the reasons for the finding is that you found there was 
financial difficulty, and the station might go under 'and might not he 
operated. 

Mr. HYDE. It 'is consequences to the public rubout which I am 
concerned. 

Mr. RoGERS. That may be. You said the stations were in financial 
difficulty. 

Mr. HYDE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. ROGERS. By a public hearing you could have questioned O ver­

myer and found out if he had tried to raise cash, how much assets 
h,e needed. He must have had considerable assets to get a $3 million 
loan. 

Mr. HYDE. I believe to have ordered a hearing in this case would 
have been the finish of the whole project. 

Mr. RoGERS. It may not. Some of' your brethren disagree with that; 
I believe three do. 

Is it normal when you have a transfer of license or construction 
permits that the whole amount, the full permit, or the full license is 
sold? 

Mr. HYDE. No. 
Mr. RoGERS. Only a majority share of it? 
Mr. HYDE. My colleagues seem to feel that the typical case would 

involve a transfer of the entire ownership. There are instances where, 
minority interests have been--

Mr. RoGERS. Is it tied to compensation out of pocket? 
Mr. HYDE. I didn't get that. 
Mr. RoGERS. When you allow such a transfer, as I understand it, 

if it is 100 percent, you allow reimbursement of 100 percent out of 
pocket? 

._,._, 

'\Ir. llYoE. In the case of a permit. 
1 r. ROGERS. How many permits do you have; four? 

Mr. l [ YDE. As distinguished from a license. 
M r. ROGERS. Five permits? 
tr. HYDE. Yes. 

Mr. RoGERS. So you would have allowed only out of pocket? 
,'\fr. HYDE. Yes. 
1\fr. RoGERS. As I understand it from the agreement, when that 

pi•nnit was to change hands, they said, ""\¥ e will pay you for only 
'O 1 >er cent of it right now"? 
- M:r. HYDE. Right, sir. 

"\'fr. ROGERS. "I am giving you $1 million for this." 
,\ lr. HYDE. Yes. 
M:r. ROGERS. "But this 20 percent I will pay you $3 million for under 

t lie ao-reement." 
,'\'[t HYDE. -The buyer has an option to pay $3 million for it-up to 

t l1:1L or less- whic11 he is not obliged to exercise. 
:Vf r. RoaERS. I agree he does not have to. . 
, Vhy did you not, in your investiga~ion, require that to be restricted 

f,11· the 20 percent of the stock, restricted to the actual out-of-pocket 
n p1'nse prorated~ . 

;\1 ,·. HYDE. I don't think it would have been appropnate or neces­
, 11 ,·v for this reason: 

<'h1'1·myer does not o-et his full out-of-pocket expenses. There are . b 
. ·, :'.'\000 left uncompensated. . . . 

Ir ill' wants to risk that for 4 years as an mvestment, a vent ure m 
11 I•' , why should he not be permitted to do it? . . 
,\Ir. ROGERS. 'Why should not everybody do the same thmg 3:ny time 

I l1(•v wa.nt to buy ,a permit, sell a 60-, 70-, or an SO-percent mterest, 
11 I I t<'h controls the permit, and simply say a:liter 3 years_you oan buy the 
n· t, up t o $3 million $4 million, $5 million? Does this really not get 
11ro1 1n<l your policy 'of trying to hold it to 0~1t-of_-pocket e:ll:pense? 

.\Ir. HYDE. I don't believe the arrangements m this get outside our 
poli('_y . . . . . 

M ,·. DTNGELL. Suppose you run mto this circumstance agam; are 
,·rn , croino· to waive a hearing in that proceeding too? You have al_ready 
;1 pp~ovcd this set of circumstances which seems r~ther extrf;ord_mary. 

l\1 r. HYDE. This is an unique situation. There 1s a combmat1on of 
f11,·to rs here of great significance. One is the impact upon. ~he develop-
1111·111 o f' UHF stations and the development of competitive network 
I'" ihi lit,i c . . . . . . 

' l' liPrP. is t-he 1musual s1tuat10n of an enterpnse wl~1ch started o:ut 
, ti 11 s1il>sLantial resources at the time suddenly meetmg adverse cir­
,,,,,11 ·I 1111( '!\S such as we have here. 

I do 1101. know of any other such situation. I do not know of any 
1, 1•p li<':i l ions at all lilrnthis. . . . . 

\I 1·. Hom~ns. Would it be helpful to you and the Comm1ss1on if we 
1• , 1·d 11. lit_w sa.ying th~t in any sue~ case of :i, cha1:,ge of perm1~ or 
, l,11 11,r11 of l 1ccnse where rt wourd reqmre the waiver of a rule or policy, 
1 l1P1 ,~ 11111 sL ho a hearing? Would you say this would be helpful to the 
1 11111 111i HH io11 in cttingapolicy? . 

I\ I, ·. 11, m:. T do not think it would be helpful. I would hke to say 
1 '11 t II y 011. You establish a Commission like this to have flexibility, to 
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~eet the exigencies of particular cases as they come, to apply the public 
m~erest test to conditions which you cannot possibly anticipate. I 
~lunk you would be acting contrary to that principle if you 
imposed--

Mr. ROGERS. To require a public hearing, you think--
. Mr. HYDE. A hearing is ,a very severe sanction. I have participated 
m a number of efforts to simplify the hearings procedure, to limit 
the costs, and to expedite the whole business. There has not been any 
real success in the endeavor. Notwithstanding the efforts, they 
become longer ,and more expensive, and in my judgment we ha.ve to 
find ways to get at the essential facts and conclude matters without 
the ordeal of hearings which exhaust the resources of both the appli- \. 
cant and the agency. 

Mr. RoGEns. Thank you. 
M:r. DINGELL. Mr. Chairman, do you not find yourself in a situation 

where a very ingenious method has been found to circumvent the 
long-established policy of the Commission to avoid concentration of 
multiple ownership of licenses, and to avoid the historic policy of the 
Commission to prevent any one company from owning more than 
three licenses in the top 50 markets? 

Mr. HYDE. I do not be] ieve so. 
M:r. DINGELL. Is it not also a :fact that were A VC to come in with 

an application for these five licenses, they would each •and every one 
of them have been denied under the traditional practices and· rules 
of the Commission if there had been an adversary proceedings or 
comparative hearing? 

Mr. HYDE. I do not know, and under the circumstances, it is a 
matter of record that each one of these Overmyer applications was 
granted without a hearing. 

M:r. DINGELL. It is most likely if A VC came in, they probably would 
not have been a1lowed the licenses if you had had other applicants. 
The fact is, in the Overmyer case, there were other applicants. 

Mr. HYDE. I think we may not assume that. I called to your attention 
earlier that one applicant who had three applications pending before 
us dismissed them all because of their discouragement as to the pros­
pect of UHF. 

Mr. DINGELL. Have there ever been instances in the records of the 
Commission where the transferor received more than his out-of-pocket 
expenses? 

M:r. HYDE. The advice I get here is not in the case of a bare 
certificate. 

,M:r. DINGELL. Have there ever been instances where hearings have 
been waived on questions like those involved in this case? 

Mr. HYDE. Oh, yes. 
Mr. DINGELL. I again renew my request that I be permitted to sub­

mit pertinent questions. 
The CHAIRMAN. The request will be granted. 
I want to thank a11 of you g-entlemen for your patience and fore­

bearance during this special sitting and, most of all, during the who~e 
of this session. We have had a hard year, and I hope we can end 1t 
on a pleasant note. 

Mr. HYDE. Mr. Cha.irman, I thank you :for the courtesy of your 
hearing. I shall endea~or to get a prompt answer to the letter re.quest 

\\'hich you mentioned earlier. I regret very much that you have not 
had an answer before this time. 

The CHAIRMAN. Each one of us has been under constJant and heavy 
pressure during the whole session. A great deal of it has come from 
individuals or groups who could have benefited privately if we had 
acted in a certam way. It is our bus,iness to promote private interests 
so long as they do not conflict with the broader and deeper interests 
of the public as a whole. But I feel that we can best serve private inter­
ests if we look first to what would benefit the general concern of all 
the people. 
--- Someone has said that the statesman must do what he would do if 
he possessed infinite knowledge and complete unselfishness. That is 
the ideal toward which we should strive. 

Again, I want to thank you for your attention to duty, and to hope 
that the sentiments attached to the Christmas season may take control 
of our minds and prepare them for the year ahead. 

Mr. HYDE. Thank you very much. 
("Whereupon, at ~2: 40 p.m., the subcommitt,ee adjourned.) 
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TRAFFICKING IN BROADCAST STATION LICENSES 
AND CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 

TUESDAY, JULY 16, 1968 

HousE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SPECIAL SUBCOMMITTEE ON INVESTIGATIONS, 

CmunTTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE, 
Washington, D.O. 

The subcommittee met at 10 a.m., pursuant to notice in room 2123, 
"R ayburn House Office Building, Hon. Harley 0. Staggers ( chairman) 
presiding. \ 

The CHAIRJ.\'IAN. The committee will come to order. 
Today's hearing is a continuation of proceedings before the Special 

, ubcommittee on Investigations begun on December 15, 1967. 
At that time, this subcommittee directed certain preliminary ques­

t ions to members of the Federal Communications Commission with 
rt'. pect to their 4 to 3 decision of September 8, 1967, which authorized, 
ll' ithout a hearing, the transfer of five major-market, UHF television 
· I ations, construction permits from D. H. Overmyer interests to U.S. 
<' mmunications Corp. and waived their interim policy on multiple 
ow nership of TV stations. 

[n line with our intention, expressed then, to receive all pertinent 
i 11 formation pertaining to this matter, we shall now proceed to hea.r 
ol hor witnesses, including the principals in the transfer itself. 
I ;(i f-ore calling our first witness, certain fundamental facts should be 
n • i I orated. 

[t is the duty and responsibility of the House Committee on Inter­
I aLo and Foreign Commerce, under section 136 of the Legislative 

1, P,organization Act of 1946, to exercise legislative oversight or con­
Ii 1111 <ms watchfulness over the execution by the administrative agencies 
11 I' 11 n_y Jaws, the subject matter of which is within the jurisdiction 
"r i li< i committee. 

( !011 1munications is one of such subject matters. House Resolution 
I ti K, D0th Congress, authorizes this special subcommittee to make inves-
11 •11 1 ions and studies concerning communications and the administra-
1111 n by Lhe Federal Communications Commission of the statute which 
I I II ,I II I i n i t ers. 

' l' l,111,, Lhese present hearings have two fundamental purposes, which 
I 11 I I w i I hi n the jurisdiction of the special subcommittee: First, to ascer-
1 1111 wl11,1 li er the Federal Communications Commission has adequately 
1,d 1,1i11i sl1•rrd those provisions in its organic statute which pertain to 
111, 1'11,· ls ;111 d circumstances involved m the proceedings before us; 
11111, 11·1· rnHI , wl1 ether the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 

111 111 I•'(' ( ! r1'g11l at ions contain provisions which are adequate to protect 
I I, 11 )' 1 ii ii 1" i I II I' n'. t in light of the testimony and evidence to be received 
1111111, 1111• 1·011rs of these proceedings. 

(39) 
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Over the past months, staff personnel ?£ the special subcommit~ee 
have continued their investigation 0£ stat10n transfers, a study whi?h 
began many Congresses ago. Indeed, s<;>me 0£ you gentleme~ w1;ll 
recall that the subject of broadcast stat10n transfers-traffickmg m 
licenses-has for years been of particnlar concern to the full Comme~ce 
Committee as well as to its special subcommittees such as the Speci_al 
Subcommittee on Le(Tislative Oversight. The Overmyer transfer is, 
therefore but one of ~ountless other assignments examined in further­
ance of this important congressional oversight fm1c~ion .. 

Chairman Hyde, of the FC<;J, told _our,,subco_mmittee m D~cemb~r 
that this transfer was handled m "typic~l . fash10n. H~weve_r, 111 thei\ 
dissents, some members of the Commission have raised important 
issues about this transfer which it is our duty to explore further. 

It is a well-known fact that station licenses and construction permits 
cost their holders virtually nothing; that there is not enough radio 
spectrum for all_ those wh? desi_re to ~se i~; and ~hat tho:3e chosen f~w, 
privileged to enJoy orer:itmg n _ghts m t_h1s_ public domam, must abide 
by the overall "public mterest·' proscnpt10ns of tl~e law. 

Unfortunately, however, some have so~gl~t these mvaluable broad­
cast trusteeships not to serve the publ_1~ mterest, as ple~ged, bu~, 
instead to enrich themselves at the publics expense. Such irresponsi­
bility c~nnot be tolerated by this ?r any othe1;· Congre:3s, and it is the 
necessary and proper role of this subcommittee to msure tha~ the 
Communications Act and its administration by the FCC effectively 
preclude undesirable and unlawful activity of this kind. 

I want to stress ao-ain that this subcommittee is concerned with the 
Overmyer transfer inly as relates, if at all, to the broader_problem ~f 
trafficking in broadcast licenses and construction permits. In tlus 
regard, it should be made plain at the outset that members of this 
subcommittee have no intentions whatsoever o:£ subverting the good 
reputations o:£ Mr. Overmyer, of any of his organizations, or, for that 
matter, the good reputations o:£ any persons. 

In accomplishing its legislative duty, the subcommittee will observe 
scrupulously all the :fundamental safeguards afforded by our Consti­
tution to corporations and individuals, whose rights and privileges 
will be protected and preserved during the course o:£ these hearings. 

Witnesses will be permitted to be accompanied by counsel, who may 
advise them o:£ their constitutional rights. 

Moreover, a copy of rule XI, 26 of the Rules of the House of Rep­
resentatives, o:£ section 136 o:£ the Legislative Reorganization Act o:£ 
1946 and of House Resolution 168, 90th Congress will be given to each 
witness prior to his testimony. 

vVe shall now call our first witness and have him sworn in. 
Mr. Robert F. Adams, former executive vice president of the Over­

myer Permittees, will you please come forward. 
Mr. Adams, will you raise your right hand. _ 
Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are about to 

give before this subcommittee will be the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth, so help you God? 

Mr. RonERT ADAMS. I do. 

'l'l •'.STIMONY OF ROBERT F. ADAMS, FORMER EXECUTIVE VICE 
PRESIDENT, D. H. OVERMYE.R COMMUNICATIONS CO. AND D. H. 
OVERMYER BROADCASTING CO. ; ACCOMPANIED BY MICHAEL 
P1NKELSTEIN, COUNSEL 

The CHAIRMAN. State your name and occupation and the gentle­
' 111111 's mime accompanying you, :for the record. 

1\ 1 r. H OBERT ADAMS. My name is Robert F. Adams. I am sel:£-em­
l'lo_yl'<L The gentleman on my left is Michael Finkelstein, my counsel. 

'l'li c CHAIRMAN. Mr. Lishman, would you proceed. 
-riTr. LISHMAN. Mr. Chairman, before interrogating the witness, I 

11 011 l<l like to place in the record certain foundation material. 
' l' l1 c-. CnAIRMAN. That may be done. 
1\1 r. LISHMAN. Specifically, the complete files on the Overmyer pro-

1·1•1•di11gs before the FCC have been transmitted to the subcommittee 
1111iJ ,, r chtte of A1)ril 15, 1968 together with letters from the secretary 
11 r I lw FCC certifying\ them. 

I 11·011ld like these in the record. The files themselves are stacked in 
1l,t1111 id <lle of the podium. They are so voluminous I should like them to 
I 1<1 111·1·ppted for the record and placed in the files of the committee but 
11111 j,rinted unless the committee desires otherwise. 

' I ' ,o C rrAIRMAN. Without objection, your request is so granted. 
1\ 1 r. I Jt SHMAN. I would also like to have placed in the record various 

il1 ·111 i,; ll'iii ch deal with the rules of the FCC and Overmyer's financial 
'111 1ililirnt.ions to obtain the five construction permits in issue. 

I 111'l1 1d.cd in these items are balance sheets that were submitted by 
1 !111 ( )v('rmyer Communications and Broadcasting Companies, the 
I> , 11 . Overmyer "\Varehouse Co. & Affiliates, letters from various 
I 1,1 1 ii, H pnrtainmg to the financing that was necessary, and excerpts 
I 111111 1'11rrns that the FCC requires to be completed in connection with 
I I" ' 11 r, H'essing of a construction permit application. 

I I I Ii 11 k this material, Mr. Chairman, should be printed in the record. 
' 1' 11<1 C 11AIRMAN. vVithout objection, that may be done. 
( '1'1111 documents referred to appear in the appendix; see items 10 

11111 I I I or <'o ntents for individual listing.) 
1\1 r . L1s11MAN. :May I say at this point, Mr. Chairman, I think in 

1'111 r111 •ss Lo everyone concerned that the Overmyer interests should be 
111 •r 111 i 11 t•d to correct or rebut any o:£ this foundational material in 

11 , 1r11 sl aLcmcnts or in audited statements in order to make sure that 
1111 is 1L completely objective record. I would suggest that they be 
I' 1, 1•11 •I w 'eks from the date o:£ this hearing within which to comply 
111 111 11111 suggestion, if that is agreeable with the committee. 

Tl 11 1 ( : 11 A rnMAN. From the closing date of the hearings? 
l1 •. l ,1i-; 11 MAN. Yes,sir. 

' l ' I,., ( ' 11 A1B M:AN. Without objection, the request is so granted. 
\11·. L1 i,; 11 ~1AN. Mr. Adams, will you please describe your official 

11• 1 111111 1 wil h the Overmyer Co.? 
\ I 1· I,, 111i-: 11T .A DAMS. I was executive vice president. 
\Ir, I ,1 1-; 11 M "N. 0:£ what company? 
\I 1 1'11m:11·1· .ADAMS. Of each o:£ the broadcast companies that held 

1111 , , 111 ,I 1'111'1 io11 permits. 
\11 I o1 11 ~1 ,, N. In other words, you were executive vice president of 

11,, I 1 11 ( )\'n 111 ynr Broadcast Co., Inc.? 
\I I I '111 11 11·1· A nA M"S. I believe that was one o:£ the companies. 

11, + 1 110 pl , I - -1 
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Mr. LISHMAN. And the D. H. Overmyer Communications Co., Inc.? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I believe that was another company. 
Mr. LISHMAN. At what time were you engaged in your duties as 

such executive vice president? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. From approximately June 1964 until Decem­

ber 23, 1965. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you play any part in preparing the applications 

to the Federal Communications Commission whereby these broad­
casting companies sought construction permits in Newport or Cin­
cinnati, Atlanta, Pittsburgh, Houston, and San Francisco? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Just what part did you play in drafting these ap­

plications to the Commission on behalf of these companies? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Could you be a little more specific, please? 
Mr. LISHMAN. I will be glad to. To be specific, £or the Cincinnati 

CP, which was granted March 10, 1965, to D. H. Overmyer Broadcast­
ing Co., Inc., a submission was made to the Federal Communications 
Commission concerning the financial capability of the applicant. 

Sueh statement showed that the costs would total $975,928. For the 
financing of this cost the Cincinnati application also showed capital of 
$1,000, a bank loan of $400,000, equipment credit of $357,000 and first 
year estimated revenues $225,000. 

D id you have anything to do with estimating these cost figures for 
the Cincinnati station ? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, I did. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Will you please describe what that role was? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. I determined the amount of equipment that 

would be required. And at the same time negotiated for the terms for 
that equipment. 

Mr. LISHMAN. With whom did you negotiate? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. With the various broadcast equ~pment manu­

f acturers such as General Electric, RCA, Ampex, the usual suppliers 
of broadcast equipment. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did you estimate the construction cost as being 
$575,928? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. What was the basis for that estimate? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. It was a combination of cash required, total 

commitment that is needed at the time to build and construct and 
operate, I don't recall whether this was on a 3-month or year basis. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I think this station was on a 3-month basis. 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. The total operating cost of the station includ­

ing the cash requirement, there were many things that had to be gone 
over both with equipment manufacturers and the philosophy insofar 
as the modus operandi would be concerned. 

It is never possible to have an absolute final figure. Of course, it is 
subject to having the land, equipment, and other such things made 
arnilable on the basis that you originally project. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Adams, at this point could you please describe 
some of your background and expertise in the field of broadcasting? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. I have been 18 years in this business. 
Mr. LISHMAN. In what role? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. From station sales, station management, from 

radio, television, promoting the station sales, single station sales man-

1 ,, 1111 1111. i11 Now York rund Chicago until the time I joined Mr. Over­
"'\ I I ' 111 I !)(;,J,. 

I r. I ,1 r, 11 ~1 AN. Now I would like to ask you, do you think that tl1e 
1,,(111 rns t. shown the FCC of $975,928--

1 r. l{,rnn:1t'l' ADAMS. That was including the first year operating 
,. p1 •11 1-,1 '1 

\ Ir. I ,11-, 11 J1uN. Yes, sir. This is cost, which includes $300,000 for the 
111 1 yP,1tr operating expenses. 

11,; yo11 Lhink that is a realistic figure to accomplish placing the sta-
1 i. o11 0 ;1 Ll1 () a.ir within 6 months? 

41 r. Ho11imT ADAMS. Yes. I represented it as such and I will stand 
1,, 1111 fi g ure. 

\11·. LH, 11MAN. Has that station gone on the a:ir? 
\ Ir. ltonERT ADAMS. Not to my knowledge. 
\ I r. I ,11-, 11 1,rAN. ,Vhen you left in 1965, how near completion was the 

1 I H I ii 1( _, 

\Ir. Bo111mT ADAMS. At the time that I left we were just in the process 
,d w·11Linl-;' our appropriate site, location for our transmitter and 
I II I I'. ' '-

\1 1. I ,11-1 11 ~1 AN. Had equipment been ordered? 
\Ir, I'< 11 rn 1!'I' ADAMS. Partially, yes. 
'\I 1, I ,1 1-, 11 ~1 AN. Had you obtained a bank loan? 
\I 1, 1' 01n:1rr ADAMS. I believe we had a credit letter from a bank but 

I d11 11 't tl1i11k theloanhadbeenobtained. 
I I I ,1H11 ~1 /\N. I would like to read this credit letter, addressed to you 

11 I d id 1·1' .\ 11 g nst 14, 1964, by the First National Bank of Cincinnati: 
1 ,, , 11 ~1 •t nAMS: It is our understanding that you have entered in a purchase 

" ti 11 1 .. t1 ,,.,,<'l' 1uent with the Tri-City Broadcasting Company calling for the 
1 1 1 h,, ,, o i' r,.rtuin assets of a UHF TV station known as WNOP-TV. 

I"" l111v1• 11 ~ked us to consider in connection with the construction of such 
, 111 1111 11 t1 $ 100,000 term credit. 

I\, 11 , ,, w 1111 ng to extend such a credit which would be represented by a note 
, II 111 , Hll111·11 nt,'ed by or indorsed by Mr. D. H. Overmyer based upon the submis­

' 11 .. r ,·<· rl lfi (•d audited figures satisfactory to us of the broadcasting company 
, , d ul' ~1 r, OvPrmyer. 

I 1,, , 1011 11 wonld also be contingent upon such terms and conditions as might 
1,, ,, ,111111111 ,v H11lisfactory to both your company and the bank. 

1 111 111 '"' pleased to pursue the matter further as your plans progress. 
11,• 11 H . 11 . Brookes, Vice President, First National Bank of Cincinnati. 
"", I.Ii is lcLter was submitted by Overmyer to the FCC as evidence 

1 I 1 11 II I 111 d :i, <·ommitment for a bank loan? 
I r. 1'1 1111rnT ADAMS. Yes, sir, I believe it was. 
I r. l ,11-, 11 ~1AN. Now I would like to read to you a letter that we 

,, , 1•11 1•1' l'rn111 the bank dated April 18, 1968, in answer to an inquiry 
I, f I Ii •i , ·1, 111111 i Ltcc as to the bank's own interpretation of that letter, 
11 I II I 11'1 I II' r or not such letter was a commitment. 

I l11• l1• f l1• 1, n ' :tds : 
1, 1, , ,.,., .,. I,< 11 11 1ci (' to your letter of April 15 in which certain questions were 

,1 11 •111 1111• 111 11 p rsonal request of the D. H. Overmyer Broadcasting Com-
111 \ 11 1,; 11 I ol' I !H,4, Answering your questions in order. 
I 11 1111 111 11 1,; 111 y kll C' r of August 14, 1964, there was no further request for 

11111111111 1, 11 , 11 ,,,. 1111 ,v part thereof, We are not aware of any reason for the 
, 11 ' 1'111111 1·,· 1 n roll ow up on the loan request. . 

1 , ti l t! ,,.,1 1·,111 sitl (' r onr letter a legally binding commitment to provide the 
1," , , 1 1 I 11 • 111111' I"" letter was written there was no meeting of the minds 

I• 'Ill 
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3. If certified audited financial statements had been submitted to us aud· 
were ,satisfactory then we would have worked out a mutually agreeable repay­
ment program supported by a loan agreement with the company. 

If the statement had not been satis factory then perhaps effort would have 
been made to support ,the loan in some other fashion. 

However, this is conjecture since, as indicated above, there was no follow-up 
on the loan request. 

4. Our loan agreement which would have been part of the credit ,a,rrangement 
would have provided for arnorti11fl tion ~chedule plus covenant as to working 
capital requirement, dividend restrictions, ,salary restrictions, ,prohibiti ons 
against the encumbrance of a ssets, default provisions under which the maturity 
of the note could have -b'een accelerated and perhaps restrictions as to changes 
in capital stock, management and ,so for th. 

Naturally, all of these provi:~ions would ha n ; been worked out in negotiation,~ 
between company management and the I.Jank. ,ve trust that these explanations· 
will be l1elpful and that you will let us know if we can be of further assistance 
to the ,subcommittee." 

SLgned R.H. Brooke,;, Vi ce President. 

Now, ,vhen you submitted on behalf of (herrnyPr the letter of Au­
gust 14, 1964, did you do so with the underst anding that it was a firm 
commitment that a $400,000 loan would be forthcoming? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Under the provisions of the let ter, yes. 
Mr. LISHMAN. ,Vhat do you think about the ans\Yel' we got from the 

bank, itself, interpreting it as not being a commitment? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. There might be a reasonable explanation for 

that. I understand, for one, we had no idea how long it vmuld be before 
the Commission would act to approve or ''-'Ould in fact approve the 
request for the transfer of the construction permit. 

These things have been known to go on sometimes for 2 or 3 years. 
It is very difficult for the bank at that time to give a firm commitment 
as such unless at that time we are ready to take a loan. It might be 
as much as a year or two, any length of time. They wanted it on the 
basis where they wanted to take a re,·iew of Mr. Overmyer's financial 
condition at the time that we were ready to take the loan. 

I think that might have been, perhaps, the reason for the condition 
as in the letter. I was under the impression at the time and at that par­
ticular meeting at the bank there was a gentleman from the warehouse 
company with me. 

,Ve were both under the impression that had we wanted the loan 
at that time that we would have probably been able to probably have 
worked the Joan out at that time. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Are you familiar with form 314-, section III, of the 
FCC, which must be used in connect ion "·ith the acquisition of a con­
struction permit? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LrsI-IMAN. I would like to read to you from a portion of that 

form, subparagraph c.4, section III: 
For each person who has agreed to fnrnish funds, purchase stock or extend 

credit submit a verified copy of the agreement by which each person is so 
obligated showing the amount, terms of repayment, if any, and security, if any. 

,Vas any such document supplied to the FCC in connection with 
this bank loan? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. The only document I know is this letter. 
1Mr. LISHMAN. Aren't you familiar with the fact that this is a re­

quirement of the Commission? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. No, sir. 

\11 l.1 1-- 11~1 ,,N . vVas any substitute f~r~ of ~nan~ing submitted to 
1 I H' ( '11 111111 iss ion in connection with the Cmcmnati stat10n? 

\ I 1. 1111111rnT A.DAMS. Not that I know of. 
\11 •, l ,1 1-- 11M AN. vVere any verified statements showing fi_nancial ~a-

11111 •1l y :-;1d1111itted ,Yith respect to any of the five construct10n permits 
1111, .ll't·d li <•r('? 

:\I, ·. Hom:1tT ADAMS. \Voulcl you repeat the question? 
,\Ir. L1 s 11 MAN. vVould the reporter repeat the question? 
I C,l11l'HI ion mad by the reporter.) . . 
;\I, ·. l{,0111o:1n' ADAMS. Verified statement, I believe ; there we'.·e tunes 

, 11uu I lie Overmyer warehouse statement~ were eith~r su1?mitted or 
11 "1·1 i p rcs<'.n I eel or used in some way to venfy the quahficat10ns of the 
·•11 ' 11( 11 ·:d,e warehouse company. . . . 

:\1 r . I ,1:-;11MAN. According to the mate~·rnl submitted to this subcom-
1111 111·1· l1 y the FCC there were no such venfied statements. 

I )n .,· ,;11 recall a:r:iy? , 
~1 r. nom,nT ADAMS. I do remember that the warehouse company s 

l1il 1•111t ,nl s, I don't remember if they were filed with the Commission, 
I do r1'111 cmber that th,~y were used, maybe perhaps verbally upon S<?me 

q11 1•-. I i1 111 :-; 1-lmt the staff members might ha;ve brougl~t up at s?me time 
111 1 Ii n•spcct to one or more of the permits or durmg the time they 
111 <1 •,· 111m i t ing transfer. . . . . . 

:'II r. I ,1s 1 JMAN. Getting hack to the Crncu~nati stat10n which, when 
11t11 li-f'L in 1965 was nowhere near complet10n as I understand your 
,, ., 11 11101,y, what were ,the causes that prevented this station from 
I 11 111" ,·011 :-;tructe.d? 

\\ '11-. it ln rkofmoney? 
\1 r. 1:rn1F;n.-r ADAMS: vVell, in answer to your question, the construc-

11,111 111· 1·111it was granted on March 10. So 30 days was April IO_before 
, ,, l11 1d :1 nn:11 closing. I believe that is correct. At that very time we 
I 1 11 I 1,l >i 11 i ned this station by_ way _of a transfer so that !,he engi~eering 
,·,·I 1t1 11 Ill' !he 314 had been rnher1ted, that is the techmcal section, the 

,,11.,1 11t·l'ri1w "·e had inherited from the seller. 
I ll' !incl ~;roposcd the site in New1~ort, Ky. Techni?ally it was not 

111 11 11• opi11inn a suitable site to provide the best services to the coi:n-
11111 111I i1 •-; ol' N e,q )ort a,1cl Cincinnati, ,\·hich, as you are perhaps fam1l-
111 .. 1n• :11; 1111i!es-:tpart. . . 

~" 11·1' I li Pn commenced a search for Janel to try to find the right s1f:e. 
\\ '11 11 ,111lcl l1n,ve preferred enough property to put a guyed tower m 
111·, •11 11 :-;11 111 <1 cost is corn3idernbly Jess for a guyed tower than to put 
11 p II st• ll' ,rnpportinp: tower,_sometimes_as muc~1 as three of four 
111111• v n· :11 <' r, the cost dependmg on the height. This took many months 
,,f 11nr l,. I don't think that we were anywhere near able to locate a 
1,11 •,·1• 111' pn perty nntil September or October of that year. 

\Ir . l ,1!'4 11M /\ N. ,vhat vear was that? 
\ 11 ·. I: n111rnT An., J\rn. Tl1is was 1965. That was within 4 or 5 months, 
111'1"'~·1· , l'ollo,Ying the grant; 5 or 6 months. In that a_rea. \Ve had 

111 ,, I ,•11 Hi v p sP:i.rch for propertv that took place at that time. I would 
, 1 I l11 d w11s probably the first delay and ~he i:nost important delay 

l,1 1• 11 1 1· i11 on ln 1·0 properly locate a stati<?n m order ~hat it may 
, 11 11 1 111 i I Io I Ill•, hom e it must have a proper site and locat10n of tower 
111 11 11• prnpt' r· position. . . 

l,11 1 I ol' 1· v1·r_ything else, it is contingent on that. If a si~e is to? far 
11 111 11 1 l1111 11 , 1111 :t mountain range for the sake of propagatmg a signal 
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into the home sites, that will determine to some extent where you p ut 
your studio which is the second physical entity. 

From there it is then a matter of building your staff of people. 
Really everything was waiting on the site. The land we were interested 
in was a 3-mile radius within the center of Cincinnati or were areas 
wh~ch the engineers had advised was the best area for propagating 
a signal. 

We were interested in building the best facility we could build. In 
order to achieve this we had to find the proper site first. Short of that , 
it migh~ have been. very disastrous in the way of going ahead and 
completmg the station. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Wha.t difficulty did you have in finding the site? "' 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. As I explained before, we had to find a piece 

of land within 3 miles of the center of the community because of the 
mountain range that came clown. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did you ever find such a site? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. In my opinion, we found a site in about October 

or November of that year. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you bring that to the attention of your principal, 

Mr. Overmyer? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir; I did. 
Mr. LISHMAN. What did you tell him? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I told him we had located a site, I believe the 

mountain was Bald Mountain, something like that. It was a site 
within the 3-mile area that had been the restrictions that the engineers 
had advised and the site had been determined to be available and 
that I wished to proceed to purchase this particular site. 

Mr. LISHMAN. vVas any price mentioned? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes. Mr. Overmyer asked to have the ware­

house appraisers look at the site. They did so and they had said the 
rnlue of the land was in the $80,000 to $100,000 bracket. 

Mr. LISHMAN. \i\That was the price that vou had been dickerirw 
for? • b 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. $100,000 had been the price that Mr. Rose , the 
owner of t~e land, who was willing to sell us the 5 acres on top of 
the mountam, what we wanted and easements for the guy wires coming 
down. 

Mr. LISHMAN. What did Mr. Overmyer say when you reported to 
him that you could get the site for $100,000? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. He suggested that we offer $30,000. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you? Did you make that offer? 
Mr. RoBE~T ADAM~. I don't think we did, no. I think we went back 

and sat on it and tried to figure another way ,to come up with wha t 
would be appropriate out there. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Now is it correct that if you don't have a suitable 
site, you can't order the antenna? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I would not recommend otherwise. I would not 
order my anfonna un~il I had my site; that is correct. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Is it a fact that antennas have to be tailor made t o 
fit the contour of the surroundings? 

Mr, ROBERT ADAMS. In some cases. A UHF antenna is tuned to {l 

specific channel. In that respect I might say that we had originally 
been granted channel 74. The transfer, I believe, was channel 74 to. 

, l1 11,111 I 111 , ,, I, i<'l1 j14 it very high frequency, and the signal on the higher 
),, , 111 I 111 ·1 1111111s doll ' (, bounce-they bounce more severely. . . 

\\" 11111,1 looki 1w for a lower channel and had a request m, agam 
l111 l1 ,, 11<11 111 0Lhnt'rcason for part of our delay. vVe were at that t ime 

t 1111111• wtil1 Lil( Commission, we might even have filed for _a request 
I 111 11 11,1, 1•r (' 11111\n el so that we could then have our antenna tailor made 
111 1 1111 p1•1·ilir (" h:tnnel we hopefully would eventually get. 

\ I 1 . I ,1 .. 11 ~1 ,, N. "Without a site you could not construct and put the 
I ,11111111i100 1rnn1.tion? 

:\I, l'11111•: 1rrA1>AMS.No,sir. 
\I, I ,1 H11 ,,1., N. Did vou have any discussions with Mr. Overmyer 

,.-i-~iltl I l,( 1:-- il. 11<1.Lion? • 
\I, . I\ 11111 ,: ,n· AoAMS. Yes. 
\l 1. I ,1H11 MAN. Diel he attribute the failure to purchase the site for 

I I H 1,000 I H'('11 ll SC i t was overoharged or because he didn't have the 
1111111 1' 1 1,1 l111 y iL? 

'\ I 1 '. 1',1111,: ;rl' 1\DAMS. I don't believe I am privy to Mr. Overmyer's 
t l111il, 11 11 •· l l11•1·p_ 

\II I ,IHI I ~I .\ N". vV.hat did he tell you? 
\11 li 11 111rn'I' ADAMS. He told us that $30,000 is what he would offer 

I, ,1 111, 111 ,,ii :1 nd to proceed to buy it at that price. That is what we were 
I • I ' I II 

\I I I .t H11 ~1 ,1 N'.Did you have anything to do with estimating the first 
,, 11 1111·011H•l' romthatstation? 

\1 1 li1,m·1t·1·AoAl\iS. Yes,sir. . 
11 I ,, 11 ,11.1N'. You estimated that first year revenue would be 
', 11111 1 < 111 wlta,tdid voubasethatestimate? 
I I li 11 111-:ic·1· AoAMs:I probably had, to the best of my k~1owledge, I 

, 111 , t 1 ,., 1111 ('X: ictly because there are several "·ays to do this. _Penet r?,-
11 .. 11 , ,1· 111, , l l I IF market at the time to some extent has a bearmg on i t. 
11111 1 1111·1· 1111.ion tothedatewhenyougetontheair. 

' 1'l1111. w11 s one contributing factor. Others are the revenues that t he 
f 1 ,f 11 I 111 11 rlwL had been reportmg for the total market reported each year 
1,, 111( 11'(; ' . You take a look at what the total amount of dollars a re. 
' 1111111 11L Cho same time you might take a look to see ho,y the other 

111 I 11111., 11111 vile in similar market situations have been domg and r e­
l"" I 111 ,·, p11;., icnlarly UHF independent stations, even though at that 
I 1111 11 111( ' 1'( ' ,1·<•rc very few to draw a parallel fr01n, and try to come up 
, 11 I, 11 n•11 l isti e figure. . 

\ I ,·. I , 11-1 11 ~, AN. In connection with Cincinnati, did you also on bP half 
11I < h 1< 1'111\'('r Ill e an amendment to the application? 

\11 ·. l,1 ,;,1,: 1n· AoAMS. An amendment? 
, I 1·. I ,1i- 11 M ,IN. Yes, increasing the equipment credit from RCA? Or 

1111 111111 11lforyourtime? 
l\l 1·. li1,1n:11·1· °A.DAMS. I don't recall making that change, sir. 
\Ir. I ,1 1-< 11 " ,1 N. \ iVhile you were executive vice president were any 

1 !1•11 i1111 s l'orf.hcCPrequestedfromFCC? 
Ir. I '11111,: 11'1' A DAMS. ·viTith respect to Cincinnati I think at the t ime 

11 1· ll11•n· 11·P<lidfileforoneextension. 
\ I 1•. I ,1H11 ~, ,1 . vVhat reason was assigned for that? 
\I, . li111 11•:11'I' ;\ J)AMS. Sir? 

I 1· I ,1 H 11 ~, ,1 . \i\Tl1at reason was assigned for seeking such an 
1 I I I I 1111 I 'I 
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lVlr. l"OBERT ADAMS. vVe were still in the throes of trying to o-et a 
low_er channel straightened out with the Commission, at the same time 
try mg to find the proper site. I am trying to recall. This is to the best of 
my knowledge. I have not refreshed myself from these files since the 
date they were filed. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Adams, you were executive vice president of the 
D. H._ Overmyer Communications Co. when it obtained its construction 
perm1t for Atlanta ? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISifMAN. Did you assist in preparing the financial figures that 

were submitted to the Federal Communications Commission? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. As you know, under section 308 of the act there mtist 

be a showing o:f financial capacity to operate the station. Are you 
:familiar with that? 

Mr. Rom,RT ADAMS. At that time, yes. 
Mr. LisI-IMAN. In this Atlanta construction permit which was 

gi:anted Mr. Overmyer originally on May 12, 1965, the costs sub­
mitted to the FCC incl udecl purchase price, $100,000; construction, 
~455,004; and, first-year operating expense, $800,000; for a total of 
$855,005. 

Did you participate in the preparation o:f any o:f these estimates? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Do you think you could have put the station on the 

air for that amount of money? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir; I could have done a much better job 

with four or five times greater dollars. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVell, it would seem that you have already testified 

with respect td Cincinnati that you couldn't get the ideal site :for 
$100.000 and you certainly didn't get it :for $30,000. 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I am referring specifically to operating expenses. 
Mr. LISHMAN. For the financing of this $855,000, revenue figures 

were submitted to the FCC showing capital o:f the corporation as 
$1,000, a bank loan of $400,000, equipment of credit of $:300,000 and 
first-year estimated revenue of $200,000 for a total financing of 

.. $901,000 to defray the total cost of $855,000. 
Did you have anything to do with these figures? 

· ]\fr. ROBERT ADAMS. On the financing of the station? 
Mr. LISHMAN. On financing the costs o:f construction and initial 

operation. 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. You mean arriving at the expenses? 
Mr. LrsI-Il\LAN. Yes. 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISIIMAN. How much of the construction cost included cost of 

the site? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I wouldn't remember that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you have difficul t ies with the site in Atlanta? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. And how. 
Mr. LISHMAN. When you 1ef,t the Overmyer Co., how near comple­

tion was the Atlanta station? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. We hadn't looated our site. We had nothing at all 

except having looked at ,a site. To the best o:f my recolleotion, nothing 
had been done except trying to plan a site. Again we were con­
fronted with the same pr:oblem, only four times greater in Atlanta. 

11 

. d . ~ 11 l ,1 11 ~11N. ll ow<l icl yougo •abouUrymg ,t<?fin a~ite. 
\I I l,rn111 11• \ ,ni\ MS. "\Ve went to our consultmg engmeers who fold 
111 111 1111· 1·1· " its nn •area the size of a ;triangle, small, maybe 4 or 5 

111111 •11 111 l ' i' I I l"l' IL. • • ~ .· • . , 
0

° f . .. " 
\ 1 I 1111 11 11 11s :-rn rro11 nclecl by four airport'?. The~ ~\._A. 1estuc 1~n. :' a., 

., 111 111 1 1111 i11 . \V e wanted .to fse~ ~qual height with other telecastmg 
11,. 11i11, • \\' 1, 1111 111 ('( la n equal facility. vVe ,vanted to be first class. 

I 11,111 , :11 11·P. lia.d to get equal height first. '~o. cl<? that we had t-0 get 
, 11 , 111 ,pi•, 11 :11 :ind (,'AA approval. So, to mm1mize our first_hazard; 

11 , 1 ,1, ,, ,.1., 11 ·,I ll'il.h the triangular a:ea that _we refer t~ as the tr1~ngulbr 
1 1,.11 ,111 I Ii i• 111 :1p ,that the consultmg engmeers a~v,ised_ wou . P7 -
11-d-, 1·1,1,1, i vi\ (1'AA approv,al if we could find :a piece of land m bat 
111 t I • 1 

\ t t I 111s11111 n ti me we then proceeded with the local real estate peop e 
, 11, I , >I I 11 · 1·s i 11 . \ I l,LllhL to find a site. . . . 

\ 11 I \ico\l' . "\V,ill the gentleman yield for Just one technical ques-
f111111 - . ~ 

\\ ' ii 11 I is t 111\ size of,J.and that you were lookmg for, how many ~c!es • 
\I I li11111-:1t1· AoAJVJ:{l. vVe preferred the guyed tower as I expJiained 

, 11 I 11•1. It wn s considerably less expensive. In Atlanta we wa1;tecl ap-
1,, II 11 111 1f1 •l_y 1,:100 feet as I recall now. That_ would have requ~r~d_ap-
11111 1111 11 1, ·l_y 22 acres. Now we would ~ave Iiked to have had a tnan: 
1 ,I ,1• 1,1,,, .,. lli1L you usually c11:n't find ~t this way so_you have_t? bnJ 
1 1, ,1, 11111, I, ' l'I 1ore were many different sites look~d ,at m that particular 

11, , 11 I 1, r 11 rnn which had been set by the engmeers, 20, 24 ·acres, de-
' ,11111• 111 1 f11p sl1apeof ,thelan_cl. . . . . . 
\I 1 1,1 11 ~, ,1 N. Mr. Adams, m connect10n with the financrng, rep re­

'1tl 1111111 11 11s 1w1,de .to the FCC that there would be a bank loan of 
11111 ,rn II I. I Ht lmt correct? 

I I Ii , 111 1•: 1<·1· ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
\11 I ,1H1, ~1.1 N" . That loan was supposed to come from the Girard 

I 111 I ( '11 . or Philadelphia? 
\11 . 1111m:1t·1· An AMS. Yes, sir; it was._ . . . 
\I, l ,1H11M i\N. Did you have meetmgs with officials o:f the bank m 

, 11111 1, ·,· t 1rn I II' i Lh that loan? 
'\ II' 1111111•:1rl' ADi\MS. No sir; I did not. . . . 
\11• l ,1t-1 11~1i\N. But this loan you ultimately obtamed, is that cor-

1 ,. I I 

\I I' . 1-, 111 1rnT /\ l)AMS. It was obtained by the compa1;y. ~ . 
\11 ·, l.1 H11MAN. Do you know when it was obtamed? Would it be 

, ., , 11 •1 ·! t lint ii. was more than a year and a half after the Atlanta CP 
1111 •l"111if 1•dhytlieFCC? · 

'\I, . li 1111 1rn·1· ADAMS. The date that the loan was obtained from 
f, 111 1, ·d / 

11 l ,1H11~1.1N .Yes. d 
\I I li, 1111:1<T ArlAMS. I didn't know that there had been a loan ma e. 

11 l,1 H11 ~1.1N."\\Thatisthat? 
"1 H11 1,1•: 1n · An,, MS. I was not aware that there was a loan made. 

I I I ,1 11 ~, 1 N. IL may have been after your time. 
\I I l/ 11 111,·11·1· A DAMS. Yes. 
\ II I ,1 11 ~, 1 N. "\Vere you executive vice president of th~ D. H_. Ov~r-

1111 , 1 ( ',,1111111 111i c·11 Lion s Co., Inc., on July 28, 1965, when it received its 
, .. 111 111 1111111111•r111it· for Pittsburgh? 
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II 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr._LISHMAN. Did you participate in estimating the costs of its con­

st ruct10n? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHll~AN. I will read them to you as submitted. vV ere you the 

person that signed the papers presented to the FCC? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 

. M_r. LISHMAN. _In a~l of th~se five construction permits you were 
signrng as e~ecutffe n~e president of the respective communications 
or broadcastmg compames? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 

9 ::\fr. _ ~ISHMAN. _The _c~sts for pittsburgh were: pur?hase price, 
$-8,_00{J, construct1011, $000,000; estimated first-year operatmg expense 
$400,000 ; for a total of $933,000. ' 

N ?"'., again I am going to ask you, do you think t hat this was a 
real rntic figur~ for placi~1g i!1to operation a U HF station of the type 
contemplated m the apphcat10n? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
~:- LISHMAN. Do you have any comparative data to support this 

,op1mon? 

Mr. RoBE:RT ADAM~. Well, I would say that actually supporting data, 
no-i, 9 per_atmg experience, _yes. "'\iVe are entering into an area, you are 
de, ,mg m an area of philosophy. You can buy an automobile for 
$20,000; you can buy one for $2,000. Both automobiles will o-et you 
there. 0 

T }:e principle of _the com_p~i~y was tlu1,t we would operate at a very 
sm all low base durmg the 1mtial development years particularly the 
~eve]~~ment of the all-chan~el law wi~h re~pect to UHF set perietra­
t 10n .. "'\i\ e knew that we were 111 a precar10us mcome area because of the 
accepta?ce of the newer UHF which directly relates to the income of 
the stat10n. 

01:ir viewers can't get a~vertising dollars. vVe looked at it very 
cauti_ous!y so far ~s operatmg overhead is concerned and o-eared the 
app]1cat10n accord111gly. 0 

Mr. LrsI~MAN. In t he financing of this Pittsburgh station the state-
0mer~t sub~1tted to ,th~ FCC _showed, capital, $1,000; I:iank loan, $350,-
0QO, eqmpment credit, $3lb,000; and first-year estunatecl revenues 
$4-50_,000, for a total of $1,116.000. · ' 

D id you have anything to do with these estimates? 
Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you participate in estimatino- the first year's 

revenue of $450,000? 0 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir . 
. Mr. LISHMAN. Can you s tate what elements you took into considera­

t10n ,vh@you made such estimates? 
Mr .. ROBERT ADAMS. The UHF penetration at that time. 

. M:r, LISHMAN. How many VHF stations were there at that time 
111 Pittsburgh? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Three. 
Mr. LISHMAN. How many UHF stations? 
Mr. RoBERTADAMs. On ti1e air? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes. 

11 l i,111 1,: 11 '1' /\1>/\M. Commercially there were none. "'\iVe proposed 
I' II 1111 1 ,11 wo uld be Lhe firs t independent TV service for the com­
,, 111111 \ 

11 l ,1H11M ,1N. l just would like to know on wha.t basis you made 
I 111 1111n 111' yo ur first year's estimated advertising or revenue from 

I l1t I II I 111 11 . 
I, lio111•Hr1· /\oAMS. Like all projections they are difficult to pin 

o1, 1• 11 ~ I 11 . I, of i L l 1ad to do with your operating experience in sales and 
1111 '" ' ' I lwlil'vo I.hat at the time the FCC reported television revenues 
1., , l '11 I • li 1ll'g l1 wore $20 million and we had assumed a very modest 
I'!_~• 1·11 I n r I.I ml,. T think it was 2 percent, if we could get 2 percent of 
1111 l1d11 I Hp11L d oll ars, which would not be unrealistic to expect if we 
l'I 1 111 , •111 •d programs that would receive good attention, we would 
•c 1d11'1'1 i1-11• r : 11pport. 

11,i l, 11:-1 p rove-cl itself to be pretty much true with the other U's 
1 I, cl 1111 1 ,, s 11l>soquent.ly gone on, particularly an independent in a 
111 11 I •·I 111 1 lt e Lop 10 cities. 

l\l1 l,1 :-1 11 Mi1N. You are familiar with the fact that according to 
I I I 1·1· q II i rrnnents r1nder the so-called ultra vision rule you have to 
1 , 1 1d , . 1 H'< :i fi e data to support first-year estimated revenues. Did 

11 1 , 11• r :-111 pply any such detailed backup information to the F CC 
11 111, 111 111 • Lit ,. <'stimate~ 

1\1, , li 11 11 p:1<T A nAMS. Yes, sir; I believe we did in the case of Cin-
11111 "' 

I I I , 1 11 ~, ii N". Could you refer to the document? 
I I Ii, ,111:11• 1• ;\ 0AMS. I am afraid I ca.n't remember. I think we r1id 

I , 11111 d, ·111 i I. I t might h ave been in the general classification of pro-
I 11 , I ,•l'li II i<·.:tl , G. & A. and sales. I am not so sure that we went 

Ill I I I I ll I. 
11 I ,Pm ~," N. '\Ve have ]wen unable to find anything that you sub-

111 11, ii 11 ii I, yo1 1r Pittsburg-h appJication justifying this estimated fi rst 
, 11 ' 'lll'l'lt.i i1 1g r evenue. vVould it be likely that this would be some-

11, ,, .. 1111d . . 1•0 11 11·onld tell the Commission orally? 
1\11 Ii, ,11 1•: i.'I' A nill\fS. No, sir. You •are talking about the income on the 

I 11 I 1,11·1!1 ~? 
I\ I I I ,1 11 M ii N . Yes, the estimated income. 
1\1, lin111,: 1tTAnil MS.Isee. 
1 111 1 IH' i 11 r:o mc I believe that on the financial statements that were 

I , .. 1 1d1•d I linl we did not have to use the revenues. I don't believe we 
, , ii 11111 projrct-.ed revenues as part of the funds that we would be 
,,q1111 ,·d lo ha ve available in order to build the station and operate 
, , r .. , 111,1 1•<'11 .. . · -

I,, o l ltc:r wol'(l,;, I don't think we relied on those revenues, the in­
• 11111• r, 11•1•1111 Ps. Thrrefore, if we did not provide a statement that is 
1 I, 1 "'I 1<1 11 wit v wr did not, any detailed backing up of those revenues. 

I\ I ,. I 11 1-1 11 ~, ,~, . '\iV ere any of the financial statements and ba}a~ce 
I , 1 1 1ii1111 i I.I P<l hy you on behalf of Overmyer to the Comm1ss10n 
I I I illl' d 111 ' II 11di1<•<l ~ 

~I •, l ',111 1•: 11·1· /\nA11rs. Let me make a statement, if I may, with re-
l", I 1111111":o fi11 :1111:i-a.l statements. 

\II 111, li11 1111 <" in.l statements that were filed with the Commission 
, 11 ,111111 10 111Hi11 a r eview by the FCC counsel for the corporation 

1111 I 1 , 1 1 11 fl 1· 11 i.lH• finan cial statements were not my direct doing so 
, , ,, 111111 i 11 , i II formally or otherwise that might have taken place 
C 111111 c 111111111i M:-1 io 11. 
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,Ve received two or t hree ]ettcrs asking about further detail on 
certain credit letters. Very often this ,vas handled by counsel and I 
was not always directly involved. 

Mr. LISHMAN. If I were to tell you that none of the financial state­
ments submitted to the FCC on behalf of Overmyer were either 
certified or audited, would you deny that? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS.No, I would not. 
Mr. DINGELL. You say, sir, that you denied that or would not deny 

it? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. To my knowledge, I did not see certified state­

ments while I was an employee of the company. 
Mr. KEITH. Mr. Chairman, while we are on that point, did you ¥r. 

Adams, make an inquiry into the finances of your employer before you 
went to work for him? 

Mr. ROBERT AnAJ\fS. I did not. 
Mr. KEITH. When you learned htter that he was trying to obtain 

property worth $80,000 at a price of $30,000, did you have any ques­
tion in reference to financial problems which later dealings might 
bring in the establishment of other stations. · 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes. I had my own questions that I asked of 
myself at that time. 

Mr. KEITH. vVhat was your annual salary at this point? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I believe my salary was $30,000. 
Mr. KEITH. Thank you. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now, Mr. Adams, let us turn to the Houston CP 

which was granted by the Commission to the D. H. Overmyer Broad­
casting Co., Inc., on August 12, 1965. 

Did you submit the material to the FCC upon which this c0111struc-
tion permit was issued? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. The application? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. ROBERT AD,u,rs. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. According to that submission the construction costs 

for this station were $1,147,744 and estimated first year operating ex­
penses $320,000, for a total of $1,467,744. 

Did you have any difficulties with the site in Houston? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir; we had problems there. 
Mr. LISHMAN. ,Vill you explain what those difficulties were? 
Mr. RonERT ADAMS. ,Ve again had the orientation requirement, as 

in all the ci,foes that we have discussed. vVe had to try to find an area, 
a piece of land in the ::irca, "-here t he three existing on-the-air trans­
mitting television stations exist. 

In the Rosenberg-Houston area the Houston VHF stations were· 
operating from a candelabra tower approximately 15 miles from do,vn­
town Houston. 

This candelabra tower had three a~1tennas--I beg your pardon, at 
the time there were only two stations. Two of the three VHF statiions 
were on that tower and another was south of t:hat area. We were going 
to try to find a place in between the two to make certa in of our orienta­
tion. ,Ve had negotiations with many of the realtors there, with sev­
eral landowners. I think at the time prior to application we fina.lly 
obtained a letter of intent that the Texaco Co. would agree to lease 
to us or sell to us a piece of land large enough for us to put a guyed 
tower in of equal height with the VHF candelabra tower. 

\ 11 I ,1 11 1 1 'l. \\ ' \int ,rns tbe status of construction when you left 
111 11111 111 11 1"111 · 11 s IIH' l louston operat ion _was con~erned\ . .. 

\Ii 1· 1111 1 IIT ,\ 1>,1~1i-; . LP.t me go bade for JUSt ammute. "\i\ e ong~nally 
1111 t1 11 ii 111 lil)st•11hPrg, Tex. vYe applied for channel 17. That was on 
1l1, 111,11 •1 1111111 l 11l>l e. . . 

I >111 111 , 111 1• p('l'iod that we were waiting for_ Commi~s10n approval 
11 11 11 1 I, It'll I il) ll In hl f\ was redone and we were given a higher ?hannel, 
1 11 111 i1, fill -.;111111 •11 1ing , ;) or 4. Of cour~e, we were no~ pl~ased with that. 
1,, 1 , , 11 11 1111 w!t ll' t' ll' l''llt ahead and modified our apph~at10~ to show that 
11 , . 1 11i tltl t q 1ti 1e:icl with 54 we had to make an engmeerm_g ~tatement, 

. J l11 •l1 .. ,·11 11 11d olhce papers were asked fo_r by the Comm1ss10n. 
\\ 1 ... 11 '111 mm wPrc complete we then wa_itecl ~fterwarcl to try_ to get 

1 1111 1·1· 1·1111 1111 11I. ,Ve went through an engmeen~g searc~ out w~th our 
1" ,i111·1·rs I I) I r y I o locate a lower channel. That 1s one or the thmgs. 

\ \ ' 1, 11 1111 1 t ,1 I i O t. ry to drop back if we could in the lower 30 channels. 
11 1., , I 111ink 1t finally e_nclecl up 3:s ch3:nneI_ 45. I am not sure 

11 111 •1 l11•r t llili was granted clurmgmy penocl with 1nm or ~ot. . 
~11· li1 1-1 11 ~1.1N . l-low near completion would you say 1t was m 1965 

111•11 \'fi ll ldt ? ·'- . 
\ 11." 11,,111':H'I' J\nAMS. \Ve were just searchmg for land. That was 

•1 1111, ·il i11 ,\1w11 st,1yasitnot? 
\11 li1 i- 11 ~1.~N. Yes; August 12. . 
\l i i, 111 u,:1n AnAMS. I think I left rn 3 months so there would not 

, ,, l,, ,1•11 11 n'11 ewal period at that time. 
\ 11 1 ,1 14 11 M ., ~- In your application.for the CP at Houston, the financ~ 

111 , ll ,111 ,1,:-,; s 1ilimittecl ineluded capital, $1,000; bank loan, $550,000, 
, pit 11111 .1i1 1-1·(•(lir , $713,058; first-year estimated revenue, $350,000; for 

I'"' 11 ,il'$ 1,(i14•,058. . i 
1i1 11 ,11 1 k11ow whether the bank loan was everobtamecl. 
\I 1• l!111n:11·1· A1HMS. No, sir; I don't know. 
\I; •, 1,1i-; 11 ~1AN. Diel you submit on behalf of the company a letter 

11 11111 1111• ~01 1thern National Bank? 
\I 1• l,111•.1•: wl' ADAMS. Yes, sir. . . 
\ I 1· I ,1s 11 ~1 ,1 N . I ,voulcl like to read tlns mtothe record. . 
' I Ii j I ii- ;i IPI 1·rr dated ,January 19, 1965, from t~1e Southern N 3:t10nal 

I ', 11 t!, 11 t! t!n·s. Nl to D. H. Overmyer l3roaclcastmg Co., attent10n of 
\ l 1 1;11iwl'I l1'. :\,lams,vicepresident: 

1:,, 11 11, ,1111 .11 , wt· want to thank you for apprising us of your plans to apply t? '.he 
1, ,1 1 " " 1 •1111 111111 ni cations Commission for permis·sion to construct telev'.s~on 
1 1, 1111 1 111 llos ,• iihrrg. 'J'ex-as. We understand this is one of several telev1s10n 
1 , "),·, 1 1 , ·,nil .. 11111 1:1 tPd by ~•our organization. You p~an to purchase the nec~s-

11 1 ,•q 1i lp11 1,·11I on ("redit terms tJhat are customary 1n such cases .and you will 
111111 111 , 11 ,1,1111 011 111 INm financing in the approximate amo~nt of $550.000. b 

\ 1111 lin v,· I 111 1 i(•JI tpd that Mr. D. H. Overmyer ~vhose financial s~atem~nt has een 
1., .,11<1, ·il w ll I support such credit per,sonally m :1 _manner sat1sfa?tory to us. k 

' I'll• • 1111 1·posi• of' lhi s letter is ~o express ?u.r willil!:gness to J?ro~_i,de_ su~ ban_ 
11 11111 ,,111 ,. 11 ,- wi ll IH• r<•qnired subJect to obtammg the FCC permit ,nthm a reason 
1111, 11111 lod 111' 11111('. . . h tl t 

1 11, ,, 11 n ·11111-:1 •111 <• 11 t.R will be subject further to you provi-dmg ~ A· 1en r:urrP:n_ 
11 11 , 11 , 111 1 111 1,•1111•11f s of the company and Mr. Overmyer s?o~mg no m~te!rnl 

1111111,., 111 ~1,·. < )v,, ,,myC'r's financial .position and substantiatrng the pr1ncipal 
1 ,1 l11111111111111•r,i11(lformsatisfactory tous. 

11 1 111111, ,r..i l,>,ld 11l;.;o that these arrangements will be subject to customary 
i., ,ii 11 .11 ,i1 11 ... 11 .11 1H ,i11rl a mutually acceptable loan agreement. We look forward 
1 , "" I I 111 11 I I 11 you . 

.. 111 11·11! ,1•. 
F. MAX SHOUETT, 

Vice President. 
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You received this letter? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. This was submitted to the FCC as an indication of 

a commitment for a bank loan? 
Mr. ROBERT AD.urs. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now I would like to read a letter that the subcom ­

mittee has received under date of May 2, 1968 from Mr. Shouett with 
respect to this matter : 

This is in reply to your letter of April in regard to D. H. Overmyer Broad­
casting Company. 

1. There were no developments regarding the loan discussed in the letter of 
January 19, 1965, until the spring of 1966. At that time there were discussions 
regarding the plans of Overmyer Communications pertaining to the Rosenberg 
station but we did not then consider ourselves bound in any way by our letter 
because of the lack of time. 

We did, however, remain interested in discussing with Overmyer the financial 
requirements for this project. 

2. The bank letter of January 19, 1965, was intended as a commitment 
conditioned, however, upon a number of requirements that we attempted to 
spell out in as clear detail as possible under the circumstances. 

As the letter points out we would have required financial statements of t he 
D. H. Overmyer Broadcasting Company and D. H. Overmyer, individual. 

Inasmuch as Mr. Overmyer's statement reflected a substantial investment in 
a closely held interrelated company we would have required a certified statement 
substantiating the principal assets of Mr. Overmyer and his company. 

This also I attempted to spell out in our letter. Mr. Overmyer's personal 
guarantee would very likely have been requested. Other security arrangements 
would, of course, depend on the matters disclosed by the personal corporate 
statement provided to us at the time of the actual loan and other financing 
arranged for in connection with this project. 

4. The manner and form of substantiation by Overmyer of his principal a ssets 
also would have depended upon the matter disclosed in the current statements 
of the company and him individually. 

This, of course, relates to the nature of the assets revealed by such statement . 
Inasmuch as Mr. Overmyer's assets were represented by interests in real eiit.ate 
in a considerable degree we might have required substantiation in the form of 
appraisal reports. 

At the time our letter was written it was not possible to spell out in any greater 
detail what would have been required by us. 

5. Customa:ry leg,al requirements were the legal documentation that would be 
requi,red to implement the credit ,a,rrangements that would have been specifically 
agreed to at the time of 'the borrowing. 

Again let me ,say that our commitment was intended to be conditional in 
nature inasmuch as we eould not at that time foresee all the eonUngencies that 
might arise. It was nevertheless ,a eommitment which wa,s considered a nd .ap­
proved by our 1oan eommittee and intended to be something more than a mere 
expression ,of interest. 

If there is ,a,ny further question you may have regarding this matter please 
let me hear from you. 

Do you know of any instance where Mr. Overmyer has ever sub­
mitted ,a certified ,statement to a lending institution? 

Mr. RoBERTADAMS. I donotb1ow of any. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now in connection with the Houston application it is 

correct, is i,t not, 1that the original ,application was amended to reflect 
certain changes ? 

I will refresh your memory. 
l\fr. RonER'.r ADAMS. Thank you. 
Mr. LISHMAN. You amended the method of financing. The original 

presentation contemplated $1,614,058 but your ,amended estimate was 
this: Capital, $1,000; bank loan, $550,000; equipment credit, $808,133 ; 

I I II 111 I II 11 11r, •l1 011 s11 lo:111, $250,000; first-year estimated revenue, 
\ ii 11 II 111 1· . i 

., 11 , ii 1d I 111 1 Ov(•rmycr warehouse _loan ever b~come ,a rea 1t y , . 
11 !1 11111111' /\ 1>,1M s. To my recollect10n, at the time I was there , 1t 

11 I ii 11 111 . . 
\11 I ,1 11 ~1 1 N . Diel the bank loan ever n!atenahze_? , 

11 l ' 11 11i,11,1· i\n11 M, . No. '\Ve dicln',t discuss takmg the loan at t he 

I 11111 ' . $550 000 L l I I I ,1 11 ~1 ,1 N . , 'o you had two items for financmg: 'a. , . uan;: 
111 111 11 11d f 11 11 ( )v rmyer warehouse loan of $250,000 which durmz t he 
11 111 11 \ "II 11·1•rn flic·rc; never ma,terialized? 
--- I 1 · li 11 m:1rr J\ DAMS. That is ,the bes~ I can remember. i 

f I li11m\11H. 'l'Vould the gentleman yield for a moment. 
\11· l ,114 11 ~1.1N. Y es. . . 

I I Ii 11, i 1-: HN. J s it normal when you go into th~ btlSmess of oper:atmg 
11 •l• •1 1 i1111 sL:tLi on before you ,apply for a permi1t ,that you would look 

, " ,., 1 I 11 1 .i i I 1111 Lion to see about what the cost v:ould be, where you would 
1111 ,1 ., f ill' lnw1•r whrutproperty would be,avmlable? . . 

\\' 11 111.J I lii s l ~ clore before you would normally go m and ,ask for 3J 

i II I I ) II I / 
'\l1 li 1,111,:1tTADAMS. Yes,sir. 
\ I I H 11m 11 N. vVas it done in this instance? 
'\I I li111n:11T .L\DAMS. Yes, sir. . 
'\I I li11(1(rnN. You knew where you were gomg fo locate your 

I I "I'"' f I' I . 
'\ 1 I '11111·1,T /\ n11Ms. We knew approximately where 1t would be; yes. 
\I I I' 1,1 11-: wi. I thought I understood you to say you had not, and 

11 11 l111il dilli ·1dty locating land. . . 
, 11 li1,111 ,:1cT ADAMS. There are two different types of apphcat10ns 

1 I 1 11 11 , , 111 ·11 ii iscnssing. One is the transfer where you ~ake fr:om a;1other 
, , 11 ,11· 11 11.i 11c(j11ire. In that case, you would accep_t his_ e~gineer~ng . . 

'1'1111 1·1111Hon Lhat it is not required-I don't.behe;ve it is reqmred m 
11 111 < '11 11111,i Hsion rules-that you do new engmeermg_ ":hen some h as 
,.J t l'JI iJ I' I H'll ll :tccepted by the engineers at the Commiss~on-, 

", l, 11m:m,. I am talking about your stockholders. D1dn t you lo?k 
11 1, r f 11111•11o·inccrino- didn't you know whether the property was smt-

,.... ""' h i ,1,1, , 11r 11 01 ll1 at you would not have to c ange. 
I 1• li 0t1,\n· ADAMS. We realized we would not have to change. T h at 

,!,., ,, 11 .,f 111 ·1·01110 part of the application in the transfer request. 
,\I 1•. l.11m:11H. I understand that. 
\I,. lin111rn'I' ADAMS. We knew we had to find other land_._ 
l\ l 1·. 1/ 0<11•: HH. W as this indicated in the application i 
\I I lin1n:1n ADAMS. I don't recall. . 
l\l 1· 1/,11 11':HH. A.nd the cost contingent upon 1H 
'11· li11111':H'I' A n,\MS. I don't recall. 
'1 11· f ,114 11~1 .1 . Mr. Adams, I notice that in the Houston present a-

1, .. 111l11· li 1··· I 1'1•;11·\•cJ,imatedrevenuewas$350,900. . . . 
I '11 11 1,111 11 °tld 1tnything as to the manner m w~1eh this ~gure was 

,, 11, 111 -1 !, .. 111 ,, ,. tlm;, what you have already testified to with r egard 
111 I 111 11! l11'1 ·1-, '( 

11 li11m 11 '1· An 11111s. In the very same similar way. 
\11 !1 11n11N, \Viii the gentleman yield? 
11 l.1 11 ~1 I N. Y S. 
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11 

Mr. BROWN. You made reference twice to that estimate relating 
to the time of hearing. As I understand, that is not necessarily a 
12-month estimate? Is that correct? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. There was a rule change in the middle of all 
this. The first three stations which I believe were obtained, that we 
are discussing, Cincinnati and Pittsburgh, were under the 3-vear 
qualification of being able to show figures for 3 months and the ·rule 
changed and you had to show 12 months. 

Mr. BROWN. My question is whether the 350 or 313-1 didn't get it. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Whether the $350,000 estimate is an estimate of the 

first 12 months of on-the-air operation. 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir; it would have been the first 12 mQpths. 
Mr. BROWN. ·were the other figures that the counsel gave, $415,000, 

I think, and so forth, were those 12-month estimates? · 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes. I indicated all the applications were 

12-month estimates. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Turning to the application--
Mr. KEITH. 1iVill counsel yield for a moment? I am a little bit con­

cerned, Mr. Lishman, about the amount of time we have here, as 
I am sure you must be. 1iV e are dealing with an agent of Overmyer. We 
have only this session and tomorrow's session to deal with this entire 
matter. How much longer do you plan to question Mr. Adams? 

Mr. LISHMAN. I think in 5 or 6 minutes I will be through. I am 
sorry. These are foundation questions, I may add, that will be referred 
to in later testimony. 

Mr. KEITH. Thank you. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Turning to the San Francisco construction permit 

which was granted to the D. H. Overmyer Communications Co., Inc., 
on October 20, 1965, certain cost and financing figures were submitted. 

Did you participate in the submission of such figures? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS.Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I will read to you the cost estimates as submitted 

to the FCC: Construction, $475,000; estimated first-year operating ex­
pense, $400,000; total, $875,000. 

On the financing for this eost: ea pita], $1,000; bank loan, $350,000; 
equipment credit, $300,000; first-year estimated revenue, $400,000; for 
a total of $1,051,000. 

Did you have trouble with locating a site for the Houston station? 
Mr. RonERT ADAMS. The San Franciseo market has been in the throes 

of a lot.of site problems, al~ the stations. There has been a proposed tall 
to,ver for all the TV stations both for the V's and the U's for 3 or 
4 years, at least. 

Mr. LISHMAN. 1Vhen you left in 1965, what was the construction 
status of that station? 

Mr._ ROBERT ADAM~. W c were participating in the meetings with the 
American Broadcastmg Co. and the other UHF and VHF owners in 
trying to arrive at a tall tower so that we could build first our tower 
and get the location set. 

That is a matte_r of court record, I _believe. 1~e were participating. 
1iVe wanted to be m on the tall tower if " ·e possibly could at the time 
I was employed with the company. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Was it one-third coml)lcted or two-thirds completed 
when you left in 1965? ' 

\ I 1 . I' 0111m1· ADAMS. There was nothing that had been done except 
1 I, 11 11 , , w re trying to get the site. Really very little can be done in any 
"" ' o r I hose instances; we can't do a thing until we have a site. Site 
, l,, .. 111>11 Im. to be done first. 

1\1 r. I ,1H11MAN. You had the permit but practically nothing was 
111t111111,v going ahead? 

\I,·. lto11ERT ADAMS. That is right. 
\I I' . L1SUMAN. \iVhat was the reason for not going ahead with any 

"1"' "rth e five stations? 
1\1 r. l< OBERT ADAMS. During my employment, I would have certainly 

111tl t 11 :d, t·he biggest holdup we had was site location, at the time I was 
-·111,• n·. W c had a lot of trouble finding sites. 

'1 r. L1 snMAN. Was there any question of money? 
\1 r. !\OBERT AoAMS. The only question of money came up when I 

, l,1•1 I Mr. Overmyer for the funds for the site that met all requirements 
111 ( ' i rH'i rmati and he didn't like the price. 

\1r. L1SJ-IJ\£AN. Now in connection with the San Francisco applica-
1 I! ,11, 1111 itrnended ~pplication was filed with respect to the financing. 

I w i 11 read it off so that the record will be complete. Under the 
11111P 111l cd applicat'ion the capital wa.s $50,000; Corwin loa.n, $80,000; 
I,, 111< lo,m, $475,000; equipment credit, $340,000; first-year estimated 
1, , ,,11 uc, $400,000; for a total of $1,345,000. 

ow on behalf of Overmyer Communications Co., you submitted 
I, il1111 1·0 sheets dated August 31, 1964, a.nd August 31, 1965, to the 
I ·,., IP rn I Communications Commission; is that correct? 

I w i 11 show them to you. They have already been submitted for the 
1, nn l. 

( '1'l10 <locuments referred to appear in the appendix, pp. 348-350.) 
\ I r. ROBERT ADAMS. Fine. If you say they are there. 
\1 r. LrsnMAN. You are welcome to look at them. 
\ Ir. RoBERTADAMS. Yes,sir. 
~1 r. LrsHMAN. I won't take the time of asking you any detailed 

q 11 1•:41 ions on the balance sheets at this time. I think other witnesses 
11111 y r('Spond to that. 

I would like to conclude by reading you a letter which you sent to 
11 11, (i deral Communications Commission under date of February 3, 
I: 1n1,, itddressed to the secretary: 

1 •11 r1< 1111 nt to informal conversations with the staff there are submitted herewith 
lo11l 1111 1·1· :-,lice ts of D. H. Overmyer individually and D. H. Overmyer Warehouse 
1 11 .'I., Allilin.tes. 

' I' ll<· warehouse company is owned by Mr. Overymer as is each of the above 
111111ll<-1111t8. Although the financing plan of each of the above proposals relies on 
, •11il 111111•nl nedit and bank loan, the resources of ,both Mr. Overmyer individually 
11 11t1 III H wn.rcbouse company are available and will be used to the extent neces-

11 .Y Io 1·11 rry on the above proposals. 
V1 •ry truly yours, 

D. H. OVERMYER COMMUNICATIONS Co., 
By ROBERT F. ADAMS, 

Exeoutive Vice President. 
D. H. OVERMYER BROADCASTING Co., 

By ROBERT F. ADAMS, 
Exeoutive Vice President. 

I >11 ,\ q 11 n•c· n 11 submitting that letter? 
"' l'rn11•: H'rAnAMS. Yes. 

Ill f,:1 , I ll ) p t .1--5 
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Mr. LISHMAN. Did Mr. Overmyer authorize you to make a personal 
commitment o:f his resources to carry out these proposals? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did he do it in writing? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I don't recall. I don't believe so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did any other official o:f the warehouse company au­

thorize you to commit its resources to carry out these proposals? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. No, sir. The financial commitments o:f the Over­

myer Co. as my employer aHd the company were solely those given 
by Mr. Overmyer. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Chairman, I have concluded with this witness. 
The CHAIRMAN. Does anyone have :my questions? '\ 
Mr. KEITH. I have just one question. 
,Vas there any interface between you and members o:f the FCC in 

the negotiation process when Mr. Overmyer was given these licenses? 
"Inte/race" is a new Government term meaning meeting between the 
principals involved. 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. ,Vere there meetings witli the members o:f the 
Commission ? 

Mr. KEITH. In other words, did the Commission interview you at 
any time during its efforts to satisfy itself as to the ability o:f Mr. 
Ornrmyer to operate these stations acceptably in the public interest? 

11r. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes. 
Mr. KEITH. Extensively, would vou say? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. No, not extensively but on various different ap­

plications, on different matters thev would ask questions. 
We wrote some of them formally and others were informally. 
Mr. KEITH. ['here was discussion at meetings between you and the 

members o:f the FCC? 
:Mr. RonERT ADAMS. Ye8, sir. 
Mr. KEITH. ·would you say the discussions prior to your being 

()'ranted the first application were in depth and gave them real knowl­
:dge about your qualifications? Did they interview you as thoroughly 
as Mr. Overmyer did when he hired you? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Well, I think that the questions that they had 
were in the application. What we had to say was there according to 
tbe standards set. 

Mr. KEITH. That was on paper. What about personal conversation? 
How much actually took place? . 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I don't think there was very much. They Just 
called me in. 

Mr. KEITH. For an bonr? 
Mr. ROBERT A DAMS. Maybe an hour, perhaps. 
Mr. KEITH. Thank yon. 
The CHAIRMAN. 1fr. Rogers. . . . 
Mr. ROGERS. Mr. Adams, did you submit a letter of resignation to 

Mr. Overmyer? . . 
J\fr. RoBERT A nAMR. Yes, sir; T did. 
Mr. ROGERS. \V11y did you do that? . . . 
Mr. RommT ADAME<. I suppose I grew a little ii:npatrnnt, perhaps I 

was a little disbeli.eving and also :frustrated. I did not feel thn;t the 
promises that had been conveyed-;-a schedule more ~,h~n promise, a 
schedule which we had and promised to the Comm1ss10n would be 
followed. 

I , 11< ,11111 11 •1·1·<1 obstacles in the way of obtaining the :funds :f~om Mr. 
11 , 1111 11 1 1111d 11111 needed personnel from 1fr. Overmyer and JU~t felt 
11 111 1 I 11" ,·11 11ld nnL li sten to the advice that I :felt was expert rn my 
I I I, I f 11 , f 111, •I'(' wou Id be no need to have an association any longer. 

11 I 1 , . ,i I' 111 ·d 011 L wo cl i fferent occasions. . . 
I, I; 11111 ti-. . 1\ I ay 1 ask i:f :Mr. Overmyer ever rnd1cated to you that 

111 ,l1 ol 11111 i11frnd io use the bank lmws that yon have discussed here? 
11 li11111-:t1' t' A1>AJ\1S. Yes,sir. 

\ II Ii, 10 1,' Jls. Alt hough this ,Yas submitted to the FCC? 
\ II Ii, oi 11:HT J\ D .. \MS. 1--Ie indicated-he did not make a statement-he 

. .. 11, I 111• 111 i1• Iii 11 ot take the lo~ns. , . 
I I I, 1,111rns. '\Vas any act10n taken to get the Toledo stat10n on the 

I I 

\ I, '111111 ,: ti'I' AD.nm. Any action on Toledo? 
11, li11111 :1is. Yes. 

\ I 1, Ii, ,1rnHT .. \DAMS. Getting it on the air? 
\11 1:1 11:1 ·1ii-;. Yes. 
~ I 1, I: 111 11,:11'1' A.nAirs. Yes, we proceeded to purchase ~he land. vVe pur­

, I,, ,,ii .,.,_.~ 11('res. Vil.e ordered the tower and the eqrnpment i1nd broke 
I 111, I 111 11 I 111' ll'e re o-ettinO' ready to build and operate Toledo. 

\I , I; • u 11,:nH. ,Vliat ft bout the other stations now? vY erc any such 
, 111111 l11l-1·11inregardtothem? 

\ l 1 1'1111 1,· nT J\oAJ\fS. No, sir; we weren't making as much progr~ss 
111, 1!,11 l11 11d in the other cities. Toledo had a very fortunate site 

,11o I l,1 •1':111s11 it was in a farmland area where land was plentiful. 
I 1, 1 Ii,, 111 l11'r cities we were a little closer. V{e had complications. 
\I I I '11m ""· Did you ever obtain the impression ~rom Mr. Over-

,11 , l11ol ill', 11 evcr intended to put these other stat10ns on the air, 
111 1 1 1 1 l,1111-ing o:f selling the construction per~its? 

\ I 1 1: 1,111 H' t ' .\nA:MS. I suppose that passed my mmd; yes. 
I 1 1/, ,m 1:K. It· passed mine, too. . . . 

\ I 1 111 '-im;u ,. Did Mr. Overmyer ever md1cate to you specifically 
111 ti 1111 111i ;~ l1L 110t take advantage o:f these bank loans tlrn;t had been 
, , 1 , 11 , .. ,.i r"" 't 

\ I , li11111,: 1n· ADAMS. Not specifically. . . . . . 
1, I >i N•:1,; 1,1,. Not specifically, but he did g1ve you i1n md1cat10n, I 

, 11 111 ,, 11111 ~nid tlrntto1vfr.Rogers. . . 
'\ I 1•, l/111 11,· 1n· J\DAMS. He wanted the bank loans, he said he might need 

'" 111 , 
\I I I 11 m:1.1 ,. He said he might? 
\l 1 1:11111,· tn ' ADAMS. Yes. 
'\ I I I lt Nm:1,1. . He never indicated that he intended to take advantage 

" I f I I I I I I I • • 

1, li"m:1n· ADAMS. Mr. Overmyer runs the ~n:incial affair~ o:f _the 
,,, 111 1111 11 • I don 't think that I was in a pos1t10n to q~iest10n ]USt 
J,,. 11111-itdl'd lo finance the various broad.cast corp?rat1on~. . 

I I I 11 , 1•1 ,1 .. I )id he indicate some alternative financmg device, smce 
"" 1,dl 11 lit · i111li('ated that he might not take advantage o:f the bank 

I I II I 

11 1 / 11111 uT /\ nA MS. He just reiterated when it oame time that we 
,I, ,I I Iii · 1110111'y that we would have the money, not to worry about 

1 l,1 11111111'\ . . . 
11 I !t , 11 ,,1,. I )id he indicate any alternative financmgdevice~ 
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Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. No, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did he indicate he was considering alternate 

financing? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. He indicated at the time we need the money there 

migh t be other ways to obtain the money. He might find it more ad­
vantageous rather than to take down a bank loan at a certain interest 
rate at that time, perhaps to do it through one of a number of other 
ways that only he had access to. 

Mr. DINGELL. Wnat were those other ways? 
i\fr. ROBERT ADAMS. That is what I don't know. 
Mr. RoGERS. One more question. 
As a matter of fact, Overmyer in your organizat ion submitted to the 

FCC the financing that was proposed as indica:ted by the letters from 
banks that they would. give you loans. 

I sn't that what you based your financing on, the possibility of loans ? 
Mr. RoBERT A DAMS. It was always our intention and it was always 

our intent and I don't think in any way-those letters were submitted 
were done so with the idea that those letters met the Commission rules 
and each letter and, in fact, all applications, but specifically all letters 
were reviewed and approved by Washington counsel. 

Mr. ROGERS. The point I am making is that you showed to the Com­
mission that you were going to try to use bank loans to help finance 
vour stations . 
. , Mr. RonERT ADAMS. At the time that is the way Mr. Overmyer wished 
to proceed and that was his prerogative, and we proceeded accordingly. 
If he had w,anted to obtain the money in a different way he would 
ha-ve notified us. 

Mr. ROGERS. Would he have notified the FCC? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. I believe he would. 
1\fr. ROGERS. ,v as it ever done? 
Mr. RonERT ADAMS. I don't know there was a need to. 
Mr. ROGERS. Then the FCC was never notified although no loans 

were ever made from the bank, is that right? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Again, I left in September. I don't know what 

happened afterward, whether the loans were taken or not. 
Mr. RoGERS. Thank you. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Brown. 
Mr. BROWN. I just want to pursue one area of question. That is the 

problem that dev~loped on land acquisition. Am_I t~,1;mderstand there 
was no probl.;m m T_oledo beca_use of the ava1~abrnty_ o~ land at a 
reasonable price but m the vanous other locations withm the area 
set out by the engineers as a desirable area you could not find land 
for sale or you couldn't find land at a price that you wanted to pay 
or for some other reason ? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. It was a combination of both. First, it was the 
finding of the piece of land large enough to guy the tower; and second, 
we wanted it within a price range that Mr. Overmyer would feel 
was acceptable. 

Mr. BROWN. In each of the locations did you pin down what the 
problem was specifically? 
· Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes. Toledo we covered. We went from there 
to Atlanta. We had a terrible limitation, very high cost of land. 

Mr. BROWN. But you could find--

l, ll,111 11(1' A1>1\ ~1:-:. Yes; there were many, many parcel_s of land 
, \II 111111 1\1 r. Overmyer believed they were too expensive, those 

1 I, ti 1 , •·11 11i;1 "\' wiLI, and recommended. 
I, , I \1111 11· N. >id he indicate what the per acre cost was? 

\I, li111w.1t·1· A11,u1::;. I just remember compar~d to the other markets 
, ,., ,, 11111 1, i 110· :d . it was by far the most expensive. 
\ 1, 11111,w N. >o you remember what the price was in Cincinnati ? . 

l I li11 111rn·1· An,\lvrs. It was $100,000 that th~y asked for ~hat hill 
1111 , , , , 11nt>s pins easements. So that wasn t too ~xP.ensrv:e con-

1,, 111 1 11. 11·:,s ri ght within the view of downtown Cmcmnati; very 
T - I I 

,, ,1 1111 ·11'1. particularly attractive for other devel?pments. For 
111, 11111 p11 ,1• ii. mio·ht have been worth three or four times to us to 
1 11, 11 11' I ' 1·11p1•r fll':=;'pagation of the television sig?,al. . . 

\I, , l \11ll ll' N. vVh en you went to purchase this land w_as it a blmd 
1,111, l11, ,, nr d~d you have to reveal the purpose for which you were 
1 111 , 1111 ,111 , I lt11 la,nd? . . . . 

\I, l.11111-:1i' t' .'\.oxi\,rs. No; we revealed it was for_a televi~10n station. 
1 I 1111 \ ., :1 n· li op'eful that the seller doesn't realize how important a 

11h11 11111 :. l111.in ni s. 
1111 1., w,, or tJ1e land had been approved by the Overmyer !=LP-

1 1 , , , , , , , 11 tt• 11 rca of $80,000 to $100,000. Then we had the appraisal 
, f I I 11 1 ,'.11 1 1• I 11 I e people themselves. Mr. Overmyer had his warehouse 
11" 11 ,., 1111 pra ise thelandforhim.. . 

~I, l\ ," 111 N. l>id you have any sellmg problems m these areas? 
I I I' , 11 , ii, ,. \ n/\MS. No, sir, not on th e tower.. . 
I, , I ,, "" 'L \\/:ts the Atlanta property considered to be higher than 

, l111111,1 l,1, Iii(\ Overmyer appraisers or by the local real estate men 
Ii, , 1 l ,·il 1•,11t in the search? 

I, I., ,11 1r1i'-1· A DAMS. Combination of both. Both by our men in At­
,il , 1111d I 1111 real estate men. I am not trying to determine what the 
, I 11• 111111, I II m not a real estate man. I left this for the appropriate 
''I ,1 .. ii r I IHI Overmyer ,varehouse Co. to look into. 
\\, l,111 w from the real estate men and they knew we had our own 

,, ,1 , , f1il11 pvoplc. We usually got pretty accurate figures. 
11 , l \11111\' N. In Atlanta you revealed to the real estate people the 

1 111 I"' ,, 1'1,r \\' Ii id1 you were purchasing the land? 
\11 1:1111111·1• .\nAMS. Yes,sir,inallcases. 
\I, 11111 ,w N. A nd ,the prospective seller? 
~ I 1, I :, ,m:1n· A DAMS. Yes, sir. 
1111 1' 111111~1/\N. J\fr. VanDeerlin. 
,1, \ 1N l h:1m1.1N.Thankyou,Mr.Chairman. 
I 111I I Ii, , l11 lk 1t rnoncr your companies in the planning stages involve 

b • 2 1 l 11 11, , "r I" og- r:1111 ing at all for these five stations. 
1, li,11111 !'1" .\n A11rs. We filled out proposed program schedules that 

"111,11111"l li1111pplicati.on. 
I, \ 1 N I >i:1•:1n ,1 N . Di.d you have network affiliations? 
I 1 1 ·, 11 11 1i ,, ,\ tM M R. No, sir. 
I 1 \ 1 I h l',H1,1 N . Did the FCC, e~ther staff or any of the Commis-

111 , 1 , l11111 1111,v i 11t crest in what programing you were going to bring 
111 ' 11 \ l'l "lill lli llllliti es ? 
11 l/11 111111· ,\11, MR. They didn't ask any questions on the subject. 

\I 1 \ , 11, 1:1<1,1 N. All the discussions turned on the acquisition of 
1 , 1•11 111 11,l li1111rll'i11gplans,notatallonprograming? 
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I I 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Except in the particular program section of 
the 314. 

Mr.VAN DEERLIN. What about market surveys and contacts with the 
principal advertisers and other television outlets? Was any of that 
done to estimate the revenue resources which might be expected? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. Yes. I was in each city, many days in the city 
looking around talking to people, retailers, advertisers, to try to come 
up with what would be required, what we would need out there. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. vVere programing plans to any extent submitted 
to the FCC with ,these applications? 

:Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Yes, sir, in each case. , 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Does this include plans for news and special 

service? 
Mr. RonERT ADAMS. Yes, we had community affairs programing, 

news programing, the regular entertainment, sports, -weather, farm 
news. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. How would you briefly summarize the intended 
thrust of these stations? Were you going to bring anything new or 
different into the broadcasting? 

Mr. RonERT ADAMS. Yes, we were going to bring a fourth facility 
to the public of each city that had been deprived of a fourth station 
for about 20 years. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. What do you call it? 
. Mr. _R-OBERT ADAMS. A fourth facility, a fourth choice on your televi­

~1~m d1~~- These town~, most of them had only three operating facil­
ities. l'I' 1th the exccpt10n of San Francisco there were only three sta­
tions serving Cincinnati, three in Atlanta, three in Pittsburo-h, and 
we ,,anted to give them another choice on their dial. "' 
. Mr.YAN D_EERLIN. Obviously in the time we have vrn can't go deeply 
mto tl11s bnt m essence -what was going to be the fourth choice? \Vhat 
were you going to use to draw them in? 

1~r. RmrnRT A_DAMS. The same type of programing put on any other 
stat1~:m, entertarnmcnt fare, sports, news, weather, entertainment, 
movies. 

Mr. VAN D1~ERLIN. In other words, a fourth choice of the same old 
stuff? 

Mr. RoRERT ADAMS. I don't like to refer to it as a carbon copv but 
we don't have the availability of a fomth network. Therefor~, the 
programs which we would hopefully be able to-I might go a little bit 
further and say that we had planned for a production facility in the 
San Francisco station bec::iuse of its nearness to the film capital there, 
we hoped to produce programs which we would not only offer and put 
through our own station chain but offer in syndication to other stations. 

,ve\vere hopeful to be able to create and in the long haul we hoped 
this might be the foundation of what might be eventually in some 
way, whether it be a bicycling of taped progrn,ms to other stations, the 
availability of new, fresh, different prngrnming. 

This had all been part of the planning stage with Mr. Overmyer. 
However, when we were first starting we had to, of course, rely on the 
syndicated available programs, repeats, any network programs that 
are not cleared by the affiliates in that market that the network would 
permit us to have, the availa:bility of syndicated taped programs which 
might be available in any one of the various station groups that are 

Ou 

1 11,, 11i• 11 1,111, 1111d, of course, local creative community affairs pro­
''"' 11111111 ·11 ,1 , Wt'a(her, ports. 

I 1 \ 1 I h:1•:io ,1 N . I notice in your letter of intent of resignation to 
I 1 1, '" 111 ,1•,1 1· i.lHd, there was an emphasis on the inexperience of the 

I,, I 1,111 ii 11, , 11 ppn,rn 11tl y was going to provide you. 
\\ 1 Ii .10111· i11,prc, sion based on shopping for tower sites ,that Mr. 

11 , 11111111 1111,I !'dilogcthistalentfor30centsonthedollar? 
\I, ll11111.1n · A n11 MS. Yes, I ,think I would have to say that was my 

I,, l111v ,ii i lH 1-illle l resigned. 
~I, \ 1 !'l I h:i,: 1n,1N. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
1, 111 ,11,: 1,1, (presiding). Mr. Pickle. 
I I I '11 -,, ,,,,:. ' l 'h,t1,nk you, Mr. Chairman. 
I 1 \, I 11 111s, i I' you were going to set up a produotion facility in San 

I , 111, 1 ,· 11 11s II base to serve other stations, would this indioate a bona 
ti• , 111111 l11~oi111io ,thebusiness? 

\11 I,, 1111 ,: 1n·-An11Ms. Would this what, sir? 
\I, 1'11 111 ,1-:. \Vould ,this be a bona fide intent of your organization 

I, 1 I 11111 11 ,·r,• ,Ll'LuaJly going into the broadcast business? 
\ I I li11 111,111·1· ADAMS. Yes, sir, it was very much part of our intent. We 

I, II 11 11,1, 11 vP r_y important part of the lifeline which is program sup­
iii ii t•111 I 111 io11 s. 

\ 1, I' w 111,1,: . You testified earlier that it crossed your mind thrut may­
' 1II , ,1111 ••r 11· 011 Id never do anything . 

\I, li11111 1C'1' ,\1>AMS. The time this crossed my mind was •at the time 
I cl• 1• ,, l, •d l' r11111 Lhc company. All during the building, the pl,anning, 
I, ti, ,ii 111 1 , 11111. st·age of how ,to build the television group for Mr. 

1 1 , 1111 \ ,, 1 l11·n• was never any question in my mind we should have it. 
1 , , 1 11111 _1 i\ l 1·. Overmyer had g-iven me his blessing ,that he thought 

Ii , lli1•riir l1Lthingtodo . 
\I , 1'11 '1\1 ,1•: . Then the question of whether the oompany would 

, , 111 , 11 l d11 11 11 .\' I Iii ng with the permittee's license, this occurred to you 
I 1, 1 1, ,11 11 ,., ,,. ~epar-ated from the company? 

I 1, t: 11m 1n A.DAMS. Yes, this was probably one of the reasons why I 
I • 111 •,I l'1'1l111 Llic company. 
\ 1 I ' 11·11 1,1,: . l 1~ven before you resigned, didn',t it? 

I' 111 11:11'1' A 1>.1Ms. Yes, it passed my mind. 
I '" ' ,, , ,,,:. Yon were making $30,000 ,a vear? 

I, l, 1111 1.1i'1' AoAMS. Yes, sir. "' 
"1 I ' 11 • ,, 1,1,: . I) id you resign and go to a bebter job? 
\I 1 1:111 11>1 H'1' /\DA11fS. No, sir. My income the seoond year was $12,000 

, 11, 1 I I,· l'I ( )v(•nnycr. · 
11 1'1 1•1,1 ,1,:. "\,Vn,s there any specific inst,ance of unpleasantness or 

1, ' I' ', 1·1111·1!1 wil Ii Mr. Overmyer or his organization thrut caused you 
111 I, , , ,, 111 :il ('0111pany, any aot ,that brought something to a head that 

11• ,·11 lll'r di smi ssed or you qui1t? 
I I l/11111 :1e ,. An11Ms. I was not being permitted to staff the way I 

, 1t1, ,I I ,i I H 11' i I. I wasn'-t being permitted to hire ,the people that I 
111111 li 1 111• ~'1111 ,ld have. There were many thino-s that should have 

I I ti, >11, 11 I 1111• l.i IIH\ . 
0 

I 1 11 11 11 lil1· lo C'O nvince Mr. Overmyer thrut we should have those at 
I I, ti I 11111• 

I I I ' 11 ,, 1 ,:. Y 0 11 testified earlier, I don't remember the exact words 
, , I ,,., , 11, 11 • 1rn rl1ap, tired or disillusioned and you submitted you; 
1!1, ., 1 11 • 1 ,11 111 ion. I don't question the fact thait that might not be 
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something you would want to do but it crosses my mind that you would 
leave a $30,000 job just because you were growing tired of the compruny. 

L et me ask another question. Did you testify earlier that before 
you ever put a station on the air that the first thing you did was t o 
go out and get a site, locat e a site? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. That is one of the very first things. 
Mr. PICKLE. I don't question that. I don't know what is required. 

I once had an interest in a radio station. We were concerned about 
getting that permit first almost totally. After that permit then we 
worried about finding a site. 

Now, this was 20 years ago and it was not the same problem as per­
haps it would be now in a larger area. I s this required by the F CC 
that you must have your site, proposed site, in mind, when you make 
applica,tion? 

Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. No. The Commission rul es in this respect, as 
I recall, are limited. They say that you must have received an intent 
from the owner of a particular piece of land, subject to the Commis­
sion approval of your transfer and/or the new station, that they would 
be willing to negotiate with you. 

My reason for that is that often these things go on for 2 or 3 years. 
You can't pay a man sometimes enough for an opt ion for a time like 
that and it is going to tie up his property for several years. 

The Commission recognizes this and, therefore, they don't make it 
a very specific part of that application which should tie that down 
for you. 

But we have to go back later, and often it is a year, 6 months, or 
8 months, th~ property that you thought you had has been disposed 
of and you have to start all over again. 

Mr. PICKLE. Thank you. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Adams. 
Mr. ADAMS of °'\V-ashington. I have no questions. 
The CHAIRMAN. Are there any further questions of anyone? 
If not, Mr. Adams, thank you very kindly for coming here and 

giving us your testimony. 
At this time you may step aside. 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. Thank you. 
The CHAIRMAN. Is Robert L. Bryan here? 
Mr. Bryan, would you hold up your right hand, please? 
Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are aJbout 

to give before this subcommittee will be the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth, so help you God? 

Mr. BRYAN. I do. 

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT L. BRYAN, TELEVISION ADVERTISING 
REPRESENTATIVE, FORMER PRESIDENT, OVERMYER COMMUNI­
CATIONS CO. 

The CHAIRMAN. You may be seated. 
Give us your name and your position now for the benefit of the 

record. 
Mr. BRYAN. Robert L. Bryan, television advertising representative. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Bry,an, did you succeed Mr. Adams as execut ive 

vice president of the Overmyer Communications Co. 9 

I I I lit, 1 N. I succeeded Mr. Adams as president of the Overmyer 
1 1111 11111111, •i tl inns Co. 

I I I i11u 1 ~•A N. What date was that? 
, I , 1111, ,1 N. I would approximate it about the end of February or 

I ,,, 11111' IIHHi. 
, I 1 . I ii H II M ,1 rs. When you assumed that post did you eng~ge in 

1111111 11 ·111 ii ii'. ' in connection with getting the Toledo TV station on 
•I 111 

11, 11111 .1N. Ye sir;wegotitontheair. 
I, , I , tH 11 1,... rs. I (ow long were you with Overmyer? 
l 1 1111 ,, ,... N. From March through December 9, 1966. 
I I I ,1H11 ~1 /\ N. Could you estimate how much o:f the time you were 
1 o1 1111• Io 11 ·Li vation of the Toledo station? . 
I 1 11111 ,, rs. T o accomplish that I had to ~ngage the staff qmte a 

t 11 I wo1tlcl say that a great deal o:f our time the first 3 months­
' •111 1110 HL1tLion on the air I believe it was May 3, 1966--a great deal 

1t1 11 1 I 111111 wn s spent in doing that. We only had 2 or 3 months from 
I, 11111 I voLt.lteretogetontheair. 

\ I , I ,, n,, 1 A, . . •::Would you say that a relatively _minor p~oport~on 
\ 111 1 ,. Ii 11 1(1 wrts devoted to the filing o:f construction permits wlnch 

'",, ,I iH1·11 ss i ng this morning? 
11 11111 IN. No,Iwouldn't. i 
I I I ii H 11 M,... N. How much time did you devote to tha~ area: . 
I 1 11 ,1, ,, N. We had to go ahead in all markets. Qmte a bit of time 

ti l11,l1 11 1 lltP,Hlaff. 
I I ,1 ' 11 ~1 .1N. How many did you have? 
11 11 111 IN. At]eastsix. . . . . 
I , 1 ,1 11 ~1,... N'. Six for the five CP's mvolved an~ me addition those 

111 I, ,111 •11 wc r(\ also working on the Toledo station . 
\1 1 I \11, , N. They were. 
1, l ,1 14 , 1~1,\N. 'Were any of these five locations involved in the 

1 I' 1,,,11111 l.(•d while you were there? 
, I I I I 11, ,1 N. The five excluding Toledo? 
\ I 1 - I ,1H11 ~"'rs.Excluding Toledo. 
1, I II r II N. Activated on the air; no. 

\ 11· I il t-1 11 M,... N. Could you state approximately how close to comple-
111 111,•1 11·1•rnwhenyouleft? 
'I I I I IH, ,... N. Sites had been located and started to be wor~ed_on on 

1 \ 11, I I\ 111 >Ii . \ V c had located our tower on San Bruno Mountam m San 
I 1111· 1 ,·n. 11:q11ipmenthad beenordere1. . 

\\ 1 11 1,rn i11 nC'gotiation for the specific site, we had to have ·a clear-
' 1111 f l11· Hif (\ ,1·e determined to be the correct one. 

\\ , 1111 d I li <1 site on a piece of proper_ty in Pittsburgh but when we 
11 1,l,,d 111 HI 11,rL excavating we found 1:1me sh~fts so that delayed that. 

I I I 111 11, 111 n L is rubout the five that are m question. 
\I 1 1,1H11 M /\ rs. Did you have any difficulty in staffing for the opera-

' 11 111 I In nf 11.? 
11 11111 IN. Yc, , sir. 1 h 
I I I .i 11 ~1,... rs. ,¥ ere you directed by Mr. Overmyer to fire al t e 

I' I ,111111 I 'I 
I, 1\1111 N. otn,11. 
I, l ,1 ,,~1 ,\ N. TTo,-..many? 

1\11, I N.Sir? 
1,, 111 , \ N. I low many? 
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-·~~ ...... __.. ... ~_... ... ... ...... ,, ...., .1..1.U,\.A uvH.u t...uv1.v uu1. ge11era1 111c.utager, our cn1et 
engineer, two secretaries, a chief bookkeeper, and our salesman. I had 
to discharge our business manager, one of the secretaries, and the sales­
man who had left tlrn radio station down there. 

Mr. LISHMAN. 1Vhat reason was given for discharging the people 
who were working on the Atlanta station? 

Mr. BRYAN. At the moment we had inadequate financing. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it a fact you had obtained a loan from the Girard 

Trust Co. to activate that Rtation? 
Mr. BRYAN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVas the loan obtained from the Girard Co. used to 

activate that station? 
Mr. BRYAN. I can't answer that. I don't think so, directly. , 
Mr. LISHMAN. 1Vhere did the proceeds of that loan go to if they 

didn't go to the Atlanta station? 
Mr. BRYAN. I don't know. I just don't know. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Are you familiar ·with the fact that Overmyer had 

a central disbursing office? 
Mr. BRYAN. Not as such. Not central disbursing; no, I didn't know 

that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Or central accounting office? 
Mr. BRYAN. Yes. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Are you familiar with the fact that this loan went 

into a pool? 
Mr. BRYAN. As it ultimately turned out I learned that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. "\Vhocould draw on that pooJ? 
Mr. BRYAN. The vice president in charge of financing of the com­

munications company as far as I know, was told to-the expression 
was "take it down." 

Mr. LISHMAN. Wasn't that money available to the warehouse opera­
tions? 

Mr. BRYAN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Are you familiar with the fact that in Cincinnati the 

warehouse corporation made a loan of $100,000? 
Mr. BRYAN. I did not know that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. You are not familiar with that? 
Mr. BRYAN. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did there ever come a time when you requested that 

Mr. Overmyer supply the communications corporation with promis­
sory notes from the warehouse companies who were dipping into the 
pool for money that you believed was earmarked for station construc­
tion? 

Mr. BRYAN. I did suggest that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. W1rnt response did you get? 
Mr. BRYAN. Nothing happened. Nothing happened while I was there. 

I understand that since then it has happened. Promissory notes were 
drawn. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I have no other questions. 
The CHAIRMAN. Are there any questions of the witness? 
Mr. Dingell '1 
Mr. DINGELL.No questions. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Van Deerlin ? 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. I do not wish to prolong this. There were more 

questions of Mr. Adams regarding hi s background in broadcasting. No 

II• I 1p11 • I i rn1 K II' 'J'C asked of you, Mr. Bryan. ,vm you give us a 
111111111111111 I lu· !l-11 o t' vours ? 

\11 I l1t, ., N. I was a salesman for a reJ?resentative company, general 
,., ,1, 11,. 0 1111•111 lt·l ev is ion stations, and I did some research, and am now 
l11I 111 • 11 l1'~. 

\I 1 \ 1 I h :1rn1,TN. 1Vere you able to add to the staff anybody with 
, I'' 111 •11 1·1'011 lhcprogramingside? 

\ l1 11111,1N . Yes,sir. 
\ I 1 \ ,1 N I )i.:1rnuN. Were you satisfied that you got competent talent? 
\l I l111, \N. Very much. . . 
, I, \ ' , N I )i-:1rnLTN. 1Vere you able to pay them sat1sfactonly? 

l1 l l 1n·,, N . Yes. 
\11 \ ' ., N DE"ERLIN. Things were looking up during the time of 

O!I II 

\11 l\11\'AN. Tthoughtso. 
1 1 \ ' ,, N I) 1mm.,rN . Thank you. 

11 "' C 1 11 ,\lu~1:AN. }.fr. Adams. 
'\ I 1• \ 11., w, of "\Vashington. I have no questions, Mr, Chairman .. 
1111' ( ' 11 .1111:MAN'. Mr. Bryan, that will be all. Thank you very kmdly. 
\1 1· \ "' hui· M~ Dorfner? 
\1 1· l,1 ;.. 11 ~1AN. May I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Dorfncr, Mr. 

1 h, 1 111y n , :1 11d Mr. B,yrnes all appear t<_>ge~her. 
111< • C 111 \lint AN. "\Vill each hold up his nght hand, please~ 
I in 1 011 ,;oll'mnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are about 

1,, "11 i°• I 11· f' orc this subcommittee will be the truth, the whole truth, and 
11111l111w l11 !1 . lhc truth, so help you God 1 

\I 1· I >1111FNlrn. I do. 
'\ I, ( )1 1rnl\1 YER. I do. 
\ Ir. ll rnNi-::-;.ldo. 
' l' li1• ( 1 11.1 111MAN. You may be seated. 

'11 ·'. ~'l' IMONY OF ARTHUR M. DORFNER, PR!ESIDENT, D. H. OVER­
M y 1,: n. TELECASTING CO.; D'. H. OVERMYER, CHAIRMAN OF THE 
IIOA HD OF THE OVERMYER COS.; AND THOMAS J. BYRNES, EX-
1,: c: IJTlVE VICE PRESIDENT, OVERMYER 00.; ACCOMPANIED BY 
llOIJN EL RUSSELL MORTON BROWN AND- BENITO GA:GUINE 

' 
' 1111 C 11 ,11HMAN. Will each of you identify yourselves for the com-

1111111·1 1·1·1·orrl, starting on our left. 
i\ I, •, I\ tJHts I~LL BROWN. I am Russell Morton Brown. I am counsel for 

111,• ( )v1• 1'111ycr Co. too-ether with Mr. Benito Gaguine of Washington, 
11 I ' \\ ,1 11;·0. both'fro0m Washington , D.C. ·-

I I 11 ( ' 11 "IRMAN. Mr. Overmyer. . 
\1, . ( h 1rnMYER. My name is Daniel Harrison Overmyer. I am chair-

1111 11111' 1 l11· b1>ardofthe Overmyer Cos. . 
\I 1·. I l1,11FrrnH. My name is Arthur M. Dorf!1-er. I am p_re.sident of the 

11 11 < h 1· 1'111 _yer Telecasting Co., Inc., an Oh10 corporat101_1. . 
\I I I \, 1, •H:s. My name is Thomas ,J. Byrnes. I am executive vice pres­

,, I, 11 I , , r I I Io () verinyer Co. and the various Overmyer affiliates. 
I I 11• < ' 11 , 111 ~rAN. Thank you . 
'\1 1 I ,IMhlll l\ ll. 
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Mr. LISHMAN. Gentlemen, I will try to be as brief as possible. I will 
direot the question to all three of you and the one most competent to 
answer may do so. 

In the balance sheet of D. H. Overmyer vVarehouse Co. & Affiliates at 
August 31, 1964, filed with the Commission, there was a showing of 
total assets of $15,644,333.73. 

Are any of you gentlemen familiar with that figure? 
Mr. BYRNES. I am, sir. 
Mr. GAGUINE. Mr. Lishman, do you happen to have extra copies? I 

am sorry,I don't have one. I don't like to rely on memory. 
Mr. LISHMAN. ,v e will get one. Are you also familiar that the balance 

sheet of the same date submitted to the Internal Revenue Service for 
the Federal income tax return for the warehouse group shows total 
assets of $10,600,000? 

Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Can you explain this discrepancy of the $15 million 

figure you gave to the.FCC and the $10 million figure you gave IRS ? 
~Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir. At the time we had a great many of our 

subsidiaries still in the process of constructing their first buildings. 
We therefore had two separate groups, one which in its entirety was 
the parent warehouse company which is designated as the Ohi~ Co. and 
all of its warehouse subsidiaries, whether they were in operation or to 
become in operation. 

The other group was just those that were actually in operation, had 
completed at least construction of one building and were formerly in 
operation of the warehouse company and not just a real estate devel­
opment. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Could you please enumerate the names of the com­
panies? 

Mr. BYRNES. If I may, sir, we were incorporated separately in each 
State where we intended to construct and pursue the warehouse 
business. 

So with possible rare exceptions the corporation was always called 
D. H. Overmyer vVarehouse Co. and in parentheses the State name. 
This would be about 35 different States, 35 different corporations, plus 
several small warehouse companies that we had acquired from others 
during our history. 

So, the difference between the two statements, the larger one . is 
the all-inclusive statement including all of the warehouse compames 
whether or not they were still under construction, whereas in our 
consolidated tax return we chose to file separate returns for those 
which were still under construction but file a consolidated return for 
those which had operations. That is the difference between the two 
groups of figures, sir. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Now I refer you to the balance sheet that was sub ­
mitted on behalf of D. H. Overmyer Warehouse Co. & Affiliates to 
the FCC at August 31, 1965. 

There you show total assets of $34,800,000. For the same period you 
show to the Internal Revenue Service assets of $23,500,000, a difference 
of $11,300,000. 

How do you explain that difference? 
Mr. BYRNES. It is the same situation, sir, of two different groups of 

companies, one being all inclusive and those just under operation. 

\ I I I ,1, 11 , 1 N. I )o you have records that could be made available 
I I 11 , "' 11111iii1'1111.x plaining these differences? 
\ l 1 l l 111N 1'1., YN,, ir. 

1111 111 111 111 wi th 111 , ·ir? 
'111 l ,1111 1~1 IN . No. 
~I 1 < ' l, 11 irn11u1, l would like to have the company be directed to 

,q ii d 1 11 d11I ai lt·d n nd verified explanation of these differences between 
t 111 I 1'11 11 1•1 111>111it,f(\d lio the Federal Communications Commission and 
1111 1111111 11111 l{,1w1 rrncService. 

1, li11 H1-n:1,r. B11owN. I am sure, Mr. Chairman, we will be glad to 
--- 111 \''"" 1111d H11i>rn it the kind of statements that Mr. Lishman wants. 

\ 1 I li N111•: r. 1, (presiding). Very well, gentlemen. The Chair will 
, , )1 11111 r1•1·ord opr n for an appropriate period. 

1 1 11, 1l1w111111'11( H r equested appear in the appendix; see item 34(b), 
oll 1, l11111q i/ , I C, p. 43.) 

\I I I' 11H1s+:1.1. B1t0wN. I would like to explain that was never re­
q 11 1 11 , I l11d'c ,rP. \,Ve would have been glad to make the information 
1 11il11 ltl1 , ' 

\ I I VIN I h :r,: hL1N. Mr. Chairman, I don't mean to be picayunish 
I 111 I 11111 11d poi11L outonlythreeofthefivegentlemenatthetable are 

Ill 11 II ii Iii \ :-l l l:i . 

"1 I >1 Nt 1,: 1.1 .. Ce11tlemen, may I ask--
I , 11 111 ,w 1.1. B HOWN. Mr. Van Deerlin, I am counsel and Mr. Ga-

11111, I 1'11 1111 1\lll. 
\ 1 I h :1rn r.1N. I understand that. 
I 11 N111 ·1.r ,. re you saying that you are appearing as counsel 1 

\I, I ' 111 1i1,1, I IHOWN. Yes, sir; we are not witnesses. We don't pro­
p 1, I In' " 11 I fy 111. all. 

:\ I I I >1 Nrn, r.r ,. [ [eel I am not qualified to decide, in view of the fact 
I 1111 11111 ,·lin ir1111w of the subcommittee. I will be willing to reserve 
11 11 •1111 1• I 11111 1t 11 Ll bring it to the attention of the chairman of the full 

11111111 II I 1•1 , 
I I 11,, , 1•1·, 1•·1• 111 lcinen , under the circumstances the present occupant 

,,r 1111 < '1111 i r iw<'o rnpelled to rule that persons not sworn and appearing 
, , 111111 1,I r11 11y 11 0L Lcstify. 

I\ I I I i 11111rn1.r. I\ H0WN. We have no intention of testifying. 
l\ l I I 1, N<1 1•: 1,r. . I II the event you testify--
'1 11 I i I i 11'1.1 , I\H OWN. I assure Congressman Van Deerlin we have no 

1111111111 11 ,.r 11•:;1 i fy irio-. 
i\ l I I It Nm 1,1,. IL wi11 be the responsibility of the Chair in accordance 

11 11 111, , 11 vv 1•HI io 11 of the gentleman from California to assure that 
111 I" 111111111., ,, 11 ppcar as counsel and that you will not testify. 
:\ 11 111 11 ,1, l l1n>wN. Yes,sir. 
I , 111,1.1 .. I a rn sure we can work this out appropriately, Mr. 

11" 1 N . Mr. Byrnes, is it not correct that in the application 
, 1 I , , ti 111 111 111· d Io Lhc Federal Communications Commission a state­
" 111 ,ii ,.,, 111111 •H wit:; not furnished because the surplus figure given 

1 , I '/111 1 1 I/ 11111 1-111rpl11s ::ind there were, in fact, no earnings? 
I I h, 111 I 11 111 :;orry , sir. I don't think I understa_nd the question. 
I I I , , , 11 , . I w i 11 rephrase the question. 

11 I Ii I I 'li •11 :-i l'. 

I 1 11 11 , L /\ ugust 31, 1964, did you submit a statement to 
l,1111111, 1111 innease in surplus? 
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Mr. BYRNES. Well, to the best of my knowledge, sir, the statements 
which would have been submitted with any FCC applications, docu­
ments, would have been the last published official statement of the 
company. 

I frankly am not familiar with what exactly would have been at-
tached to any given FCC document. . . . . . 

Mr. LISHMAN. Is anyone here at the taLle fam1har with tlus matter? 
Mr. BYRNES. Perhaps if I could see-I might be able to answer your 

question if I could see the document in question. [Witness handed 
document referred to.] 

Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Chairman, to save time while these gentlemen 
are looking at the document, I would like to have it introduced in the 
record at this point. 

It is a staff review of 0vermyer's Federal income tax returns and a 
comparison with the application m?vterial submitted to the Federal 
Communications Commission. 

The CHAIRMAN. 'With.out objection, it will Le included in the record. 
(The document referred to appears in the appendix; see item 17, 

p. 546,.) . 
Th.is committee will have to go answer this rollcall. I don't see any 

better time than to do it riaht now. So, we will adjourn until 2 o'clock. 
Mr. V,,N DEERLIN. Mr.""' Chairman, before we adjourn may I ask 

if Mr. Robert Adams and Mr. Robert Bryan are excused or whether 
they will be recalled? . 

The CnAIRMAN. I assume that they will understand they are to be 
here at the call of the Chair for at least this afternoon. 

Mr. Lishman was the question comp1eted that had been asked here? 
Mr. LISI-IMA;. I have about 15 more minutes of questions for these 

gentlemen. 
The CHAIRMAN. Is there any question pending right now? 
Mr. LISHMAN. The only matter pendmg is putting in the recor_d the 

exhibit showing the figures submitted to Internal Revenue Se~v1c!'l as 
compared with the figures submitted to the Federal Commumcat10ns 
Commission. 

The CHAIRMAN. Permission has been granted for that to be in­
cluded in the record. 

The committee will recess until 2 o'clock. 
OVhereupon, at 12 :22 p.m., the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene 

at 2 p.m. the same day.) 
AFTER RECESS 

(The subcommittee reconvened at 2 :15 p.m., Hon. Harley 0. Stag­
gers, chairman, presiding.) 

The CHAIRMAN. The bells h ave rung for a vote. I think it would be 
wise if we just went ahead and voted now and came back, and then 
we will not have to stop. So, we will just have to adjourn now 
until 2 :30. 

( A brief recess was taken.) 
The CHAIRMAN. The committee will come to order. 
When we had the recess, I believe Mr. Lishman was doing some 

questioning. 
Mr. Lishman, you may continue. 
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I I MON Y O Ji' ARTHUR M. DORFNER, D. T. OVERMYER, AND 
1 11 II MA J. llYRNES; ACCOMPANIED BY COUNSEL, RUSSELL 
lllll 'l'ON BILOWN AND BENITO GAGUINE-Resumed 

\ I I I , 1 H, , ~, ,1 N. M r. Chairman, a statement was made this morning 
1 I, ti 1111 I )\'n 111 _yt· 1· ('ompanies had furnished compiete information as 
1,, ,di 111, ,11· ,· ,1111p1111i es reporting of Federal income tax during the 

I II 1'11 \ I 1111d JUG5. 
I 11 "' ,11•1' lo umkc the record clear, I would like to have inserted in 

-,ii" , , , , ".I 11 1111.1 r written by you dated May 27, 1968, to Mr. Daniel H. 
11 , 1111111r, r1 •q1wsting the complete tax information returns that we 

, , , ol 1 1· 11 HHi Ilg' t,h is morning. 
I 1,, 11 11 111'111' .Y l'or Mr. Overmyer said that we had not requested 

11,, 111 I 11 1 11111 I io11. vVell, we did and we did not get it. 
I 1 1111 I, I Ii lu1 Lli is letter to go into the record. 
1111 t ' 11 1111 ,11,1N. vVithout objection, that may be done. 
1 11 11 • ,l11 ,• 11111<' 11L ' refen-ecl to appears in the appendix; see item 13, 

I' 1•1•1 l ', 
:\ I 1, I , 1H11 ~1 ,1 N . Now, I notice, Mr. Byrnes, that the balance sheet of 

\ 11 11 I :1 I, I !Hi I, and the one of August 31, 1965, were submitted to the 
I,,, , 1,I ( '111111111111ications Commission. It speaks of fixed assets at 
I lflllll ,,d 1'11 i11 11,Li o11.vVhodidthatappraising? 

\11 I!, 11 ,,: H. Tl1e appraisals on the individual pieces of real estate 
11q l, I 11, , 111nde normally by independent appraisers. I think we 
'" 111 1 I I 1 1·p l'Pr lo t hem as MAIA's, members of the American Institute 
I \ l' I l\'111 11 I. 

\I, l ,1H11 ~1i1N. You say normally. vVere they AIA members in the 
I 11111• 111'1'111 

I 1 11, 11 ,,:1- . They were in most instances, sir, possibly all but at 
I , I 111 111, 1:sL. The exception that I can think of is one large mortgage 
I, 1111! 1 11 l1i1 ·li li 11s its own staff which makes its own appraisals; none 

11 I 111 11 I '' '' 1pl <1 tll'<'I' made such appraisals. 
I , l , 1 11 ~1 ,1 N. Were the appraisals based on cost less clepreci ation ~ 
I ,•, 11, H N 1,:1-. I don't know that I can speak with any great authority 

I I 11 

\I, , I ,, 11 ~1.1 N. Ts there anyone that can? 
I I I \ , 1< N ,,: H. I Chink Mr. Overmyer might know a lot more about 

1l 1t1 1il, 1, ·l'lllt1111l. 
"1 t 111 11" n :11. I did not hear the question. I was consulting with 

1, 1111 .. 11 -i . \Viii yonrepeatit,please? . , 
I, I ,1 11 ~, ,1 N. ·1 was asking whether the ,appraisals were made on 

, 1 I, di • 111 ·1·1· i II I ion or some other basis~ 
"1 I>, 1, 11 ~•, 1m. They were market value appraisals; fair market 

,I Ill 

I I I .i 11 1, N. netting back fo rthe balance sheet supplied to rthe 
I 1 .. 1 I' II\ I 

\ I,,, \ \ ' i 11 yon y ield at this point? 
I 1 11 \I IN. Y P,S. 

\I " 111 )11' 1:11 rTent were the appraisals? 
11 1 1 H. Tl 11•, :i rprnisals were made, sir, shortly before construe­

' , o1 t Ii, r 11· i Ii I .Y for the purpose of obtaining first mortgage funds 
, 1 Ii ti I " 1 I I Iv . 'l'li ey would be, therefore, relatively current. 

11 \I ,, l/ 1·l11livc'l_y; within90days ? 
I I I No, sir ; but within 1 year normally. 
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Mr. Moss. Wi,thin 1 year? 
Mr.BYRNES. Yes,sir. 
Mr. LISHM~N. Getting back to the August 31, 1964, balance sheet 

that you subnnbted ,to the FCC and ,the August 31, 1965, bal,ance sheet­
lookmg at the two together, they show that you had an increase in sur­
plus from $3.2 ,to $5.7 million. 

Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. What does that indicaJte? 
Mr. BYRNES: Basically, ,that would be the result of the increase in 

r~al esta•te eqmty created during ,the intervening period. These addi­
t10~al appraisals on new real esbat~ tha:t have been cr:eated during the 
per10d which, as a ma:tter o~ fact, rif I can go off for Just one mpment, 
would also be part of the differences that you asked about before on 
the tax return balance sheet versus the published balance sheet since 
one is appraisal .and one is cost. 

There would also be a •difference there, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Would you say that it indicated paid-in capital sur­

plus due to appreciation in ,assets? 
Mr. BYRNES. Surplus due to appreciation in assets new assets 

specifically. ' 
·~~-LISHMAN.Did you inform the Federal Communications Com­

m1ss10n bhat was what was indicated? 
Mr. BYRNES. I don't believe so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Wouldn't the FCC, looking at this, be likely ,to take 

your surplus figure •as showing earnings and profits 1 
~r. BYRNES._ I really don't know. They •are both sta:tements at ap­

pr•a~sed v,aluat10n. I really oan't ·answer how they would have taken 
it, sir; I don't know. 

Mr. LISHMA~. You would expect ~hat the word "surplus" with a dif­
ference of $2 milhon or more would md1ca;te earnings ,and profit? 

Mr. BYRNES. The words "earned surplus" would indicate that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. In 1964, isn't it a fact that you reported to the In­

ternal Revenue Service an operating loss of $29,000? 
Mr. BYRNES. I don't have the return in front of me; I assume vou 

have a copy of that. • 
Mr. LISHMAN. We will be glad to show it to you. 

. Mr. BYRNES. I am sure it is a photostat we gave to Mr. Druhan 
m our office. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I want to be clear on this. 
Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir; it reads a loos of $29,066.95. 
Mr. LISHMAN. In 1965, you showed to the Internal Revenue Serv­

ice an operating loss of $94,000? 
Mr. BYRNES. That is correct. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Were these losses ever revealed to the Federal Com­

munications Commission? 
Mr. BYRNES. No. We gave the Federal Communications Commission 

our published statements, not the tax returns, with the differences I 
spelled out before. 

If I may, sir, I may point out that the statements given to the Fed­
eral Communications 1Commission were la;beled that the fixed assets 
were carried at a pp raised valuation. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Now, in the balance sheet of August 1965 that you 
submitted to the Federal Communications Commission, you show a 
cash account of $2,300,000. 

l1 lll11 N1\ts. Ye ,sir. . . 
:\ I I I " 11 11 M /\ N. At the same time, you were show mg to the Internal 

I , , 1111 " :-;I' r vi co a cash account of $1,300,000. 
I I I II 11 N ,,:H. l don't have it in front of me, sir, but I would have 

111 1 1111111 11•ntin that this was the difference between the two groups 
" I , 11 111p1111 i,~.., , ne being all of th~ affiliate?, the larger amount, and 
1111 111111 r 011 bcinO' those already m operation. . 

\I, I ,11-1 11 MAN. Were you projecting the cost of completmg some of 
1111 , rilli I i1d cs' warehouses and using that as an actual figure? 

\1, I \ , rtN r•:H. Projecting cost of completion? 
\11 L1 1s 11MAN. Yes. 
\I I I \ rn N ,,:fl. N·o, sir. 

Wl d.d th ar·ehouses come into operating \Ir l ,1H11M/\N. 1en 1 ese w ., 
I I 11' 111 '111/ 

1\ 11 l\rnN1•:s . vVe began the major ~onstruction ~n 1964. 
11 I ,1,; 11 ~rAN. These new compames I am talkmg about that you 

, 1 1 111 1donot havefigureson. . . • k d . 
\II I h Ii N 1•:s. This would have begun bas1ca_lly. m 1964, pie e up 

1, 111 I '" 111 I D(i5, go all through 1966. During this time, we constructed 
'I ' I' ',, , 1,,111.I oly 20 million square feet of space. . i 

l\ l 1•. 1,,1s 11.MAN. vVhen was thecash ·available f~rthese new compam~s • 
\I, I I n lN ES. The cash would become availaible for c~:mstruct10n 

111 11 11, 11 :,cLually had received a fir~t mortgage commitment and 
.. 1rltl IH'«in clearinO' land and construct10n. 
1\1,· l ,1 ~11MAN. W~s it available in 1965, August.1965? 
\ I , I I r rc ES. If we had, in fact, begun constfuct10n. h d 

I, . 1 ,1811 JlfAN. I am just asking. You don t know whether you a 
l11iq111 1• 011sLn1ction? • · · 0 th ~ 

1\11' llrnN1~s. Well, there are hundreds of !mildmgs, sir. n oc.e 
11, ,o1 l111d Ht.ltrted, yes, the cash had become •available. d fl 1966 

1 r 1111 y were just commitments that we had not starte un 1 •. , 

11111 ,·11. 11 ·would not be available. This is mortgage funds we are talkmg 
tl11111t . - h" h O' 

I 1• t 1H11:MAN Returning to your 1965 balance sheet w 1c you oave 
1,, 11,,; 11'.C . Yo~ show current assets over lia?ilities of $2,100,000. The 
I r1 11 ,1 yo11 crave to the Internal Revenue Service was $863,000. 

11 1111: (it) you explain that difference? . b 
I, ·. Hr ,; Nll:S. Again, sir, I a~ sure it is because we are talkmg a out 

1 , 1, tlill'<•rnnt sets of compames. . .. 
1\1 ,. t,, 1rn M"AN. We are going to get a venfied statement reconciling 

1111 ,l1ll'Pr(~n e? 
\11· IIYHNisS. Yes,sir. . fi i 

I, ·. l ,1 H11MAN. We will have an opportumty to check those gures. 
11· I\YrcNES. Yes,sir. · t k 

1\1 1 1,11-1 11.111/\N. Now, on your statement to the FCC concernmg soc -
l11, lol, 1 ,, Pqu·ity you have used the figure $7,711,344, wher~as you 
I 1 11 I l11 I ,it l rn~l Revenue Service that the stockholders' eqmty was 

\ W l,!IK7. 
11 .. w do you explain that discrepancy? .. 

t, . I 1, ;1 N1,:s. I would assume again the same re~onc1lmg factors. 
1 I \ 1, ,Ii lforo11t group of companies and, (2) the_ difference between 
11• 1•1 11 1 11 1 1111d cost due to the methods of accountu~g.... . 

~1, 1,114 1, ~i /\N . Was the $2,100,000 in assets over hab1hties available 
[,,I ltt11111\\ i11gi 

11 ,I 11!1 pl.J - 6 
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Mr. BYRNES. For borrowing, sir? You mean by other companies? 
Mr. LISHMAN. To secure a loan from a bank. 
Mr. BYRNES. No. 
Mr. LISI-IMAN. Was it available to construct and operate a station? 
Mr. BYRNES. It was free corporate funds which could be used for 

,any corporate purpose. Working capital would be one of those. 
Mr. LISI-IMAN. Could it be used to construct a station? 
Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISI-IMAN. Yes? 
Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. When was the Overmyer interest established? , 
Mr. BYRNES. The Overmyer Co.? ' 
Mr. LISI-IMAN. Yes. 
Mr. BYRNES. The Overmyer Co. was formed came into existence as 

an acting corporate entity, I believe, in Septe~ber of 1966. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is that what you told the FCC? 
M~. BYRNES. ~ don't know if we ever had any conversations with 

the FCC concernmgthe Overmyer Co. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I mean materials supplied in wrrtino-. 
Mr. BYRNES. In the application? 0 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. Yes. 
Mr. BYRNES. I believe so, sir. 
Mr. LISI-IMAN. Didn't you inform the Internal Revenue Service that 

such company was established March 28, 1966? 
11r. BYRNES. I !hink ,the diffennce was probably a corporate charter 

date, not necessanly the da;te that operations, as such beaan. 
Mr. LISH¥AN. Did you also inform the Internal Re:enue Service 

that. the Overmyer Co. expenses had been recorded from January 
1, 1966? 

Mr. BYRNES. Recorded where, sir? 
Mr. L ISI-IMAN. Recorded on your own books, wherein you kept a rec• 

ord of the expenses. 
Mr. BYRNES. Prior to September 1? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Prior to March. 
Mr. BYRNES. Prior to September 1, ,the figures, any expenoos would 

have bee~ included in the D. H. Overmyer ·warehouse Co. I don't 
have copies of the tax returns that you are referrino- to, sir. 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. I would like to ask a question about°the Auo-ust 1965 
balance sheet difference with respect-to current •assets over liabilities. 

Is it not a fact that in that balance shert you supplied to the FCC 
assets exceeded the liabilities by $2,100,000 '/ ' 

Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it not a fa~t that in the Lalnnce sheet you furnished 

to the Internal Revenue S erv10e current assets exceeded liabilities by 
only $863,000? 

Mr. BYRNES. _That figure I don't ham in front of me, sir, the tax 
return. Is that m these papers ? Excuse me, s ir; did you say 1965 or 
1966? vVbat is ,that? Was the question on 19GG or 1966.? 

Mr. LISHMAN. 1965. 
_Mr. BYRNES. The figures I have in front o-f me, sir, are run down 

without subtotals of the current assets and current liabilities. I can't 
immediately answer your question. HmYever, ap·ain we would be talk• 
ing about a different group of companies. "" 

~ 11 \1 , 111 I r LI I g-en tl eman will yield for a moment, I confess t~at 
, 1 ,I,, 11 , 1, 1 l,i 1-1 111 orning can be w~at lt::ads to my state of c~nf1,1;s1on 

1 , I 1•,• i i •1·111 i 11g Lhc response, "'Ih_e chffere.nt _set of 0omp~mes. 
11 1, 1 1111 (11-rstand it, we are mterested m the ap12hcant co_m-

1111 , ,• I 11 1-1 11111(1 <'Orporate entities, for the five construction permits. 

111,!111111 ,•1 •11 h b a· td 
I , I \ 1 11 'I t•:1-1 . No, s ir. The question of your counsel as een irec e 

1 "", 11 11,'11rn1 :-.1• <·1)rnpany groups. 
\ I ,,: 1-1. \\' ,,re they applicants for licenses? 
I ll 11 N1•:H. No. . db 1 h t 

1 , \ 11 nt I) id they operate under a consolidate a ance s ee or 
Ill ,,l11 l11l1·d :-4('[ or books? 

11 l \\11"1 1•:H . No, sir. 
11 1,1 , 111 ., N. Tl1c evidence in the record shows that the Overmyer 

did 11 1, , I 1· 1111,i 1:111 i l\S 1yere going to l?ersonally guar:1ntee_ and st~nd_ be-
111,,, It l,11 ,-11 111=11 rndion of these permits. It was on the basis-I will read 
I I II \ 1111 \ . d h 

1, \I ,, H. T l,eit the assets of all the affiliates were ~ommrtte tot e 
Ill I I IH I 11 )11 nl' t.lie five stations which had been applied for by D. 1-r 

1 1 , 1111\ ,, ,. !lrrn~dcasting Co., Inc., and D. H. Overmyer Commum-

' I I 1111 ( ' t 1. • f 
11 I ,1 11 11 1 N . y cs. And the Commission, in approvmg the trans ers, 

1 I , , I 1111 1 Iii· r:id, t-Jrn,t Mr. Overmyer'.s pers~nal resources and those 
1111·l 11) 11 sc •ompanies werestandmg behu_td the.whole deal._ 
111, 14 • 1\1 y next question is: Are we dealmg with a consolidated 

1 l111• 1 :11;d('onsolidatedtaxretur11s'? 
I, 1111 .1N. Yes. . d b 1 

1 1 111 H. , \ 11 0 f the affiliate companies were consolidate on a a · 

1 1 l111· tll11dat: tx: r et urn ? 
I , I , 11 11 , N _ \ \'e1l, we don't know that. 
I \ 11 H. \\ 'e ll, 1Yhy don'twefindout? . 
1,, 1,1 11 ,,1 1 N . \ Ve have already asked them to supply that mforma· 

•II 
\l 1, !11"·· l)o11't t heyknow? . . 
11 I ', ,1 1 :s. y cs, sir ; i:f: I may. For the purpose of published state· 

J., , "· I :1 111 not interested in that. 
I\ 11 1:H . That is the statement we gave the FCC. 
1111 >-1 . ' l' l, 1• published statement. 

1,111" 1s . ( )11r 11orma1 pnbhshed yea rend b rr1ance sheet. 
I 11 .. \ 11d ( lrnt satisfied them ~ 

l'.111 :si 1::s. Y<'s, sir;appar~ntly. . 
\ 11 \I 11•,1-1. 'l'li: 11, docs not reqmre a lot of figures; does it? 
\ I I I \, 11 N 1•:H . I I.I 1 ink it is a standard balan~e sJ:ieet. . 

, 1, ,1 1 :-; j 1 :-;( a ndard practice on apphcatio?-s for permits or loan 
11 11, 111 ,. 11 r t l1:il (·,ype to hand them the published sheet or do you 

1111 di 1' 11·p:1n• :1,speci.aloneforthat? . . . _ 1 • 
11 I',, 11 , 1 ~- 11 I ean put my answer, for loans the ~verage lenc,er 

1 11 1 111 , 1,1, t li e <·,onsolid.ated group and, yes, they did .accept these 
I II 11 1 : 1 \1111 is \\'hy we published them, for lenders, pnm_anly. ~or 

II I ( ( •• I\ ' ' di ii ' i I\ r :tct, use these same statements. "\Vhat their req mre· 
11,, I i\ ll11't l1i1 rnanyexpert~seonit. 
I 1 1 11 1. \\' (' r, t.hcy authenticated by a CPA? 
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,I Mr. BYRNES. No, sir. The warehouse company has never been audited 
by a CPA. 

Mr. KEITH. Would that not be a logical requirement :for the FCC? 
Mr. Moss. I might say to the gentleman it seems to me very loo-icaL 

But apparently it is not the current practice. 0 

lfr. LISHMAN. Mr. Byrnes, do you have in front of you now the 
:footnote on the tax returns for 1965 which indicates that the expenses 
of the Overmyer Co. had been recorded from January 1? 

Mr. BYRNES. Of 1965 ? 
Mr. LISHMAN. 1966. 
Mr. BYRNES. There is a footnote which reads, "Represents ~st of 

acquisition period from January 1, 1966, to August 31, 1966." , 
But, frankly, I don't see that that implies that it is a note just for 

the Overmyer Co. There are several other corporations, sir, such as 
the Overmyer "\Varehouse Co. of California. 

Mr. LISHMAN. You mean the note refers to all Overmyer warehouse· 
companies? 

Mr. BYRNES. It d~es,_but the dat~ of January 1 is the earliest date 
of runy of the compames mvolved which would be one of the other ware­
house companies which probably had been on a calendar year prior 
to consolidation. 

Mr. LISHMAN. What was the amount of claimed out-of-pocket ex­
penses that Overmyer incurred in connection with the transfer of 
his five permits to United States Communications? 

Mr. BYRNES. May I refer to my files, sir? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes. 
Mr. BYRNES. Our computations which were labeled exhibit 3 sched­

ule A, in the' filing, showed a total invested cost of $1,331,900. ' 
Mr. LISHMAN. That was broken down into two large overall' 

amounts? 
Mr. BYRNES. Well, we have four specific categories, sir. 
The net worth for the capital contribution :for stock of $53 500 · 

the cancellation of moneys due to other Overmyer entities by thes~ 
communication companies which Mr. Overmyer foro-ave and then 
in effect that became an additional capital contributio~ or $253 000 · 
assets which were donated by Mr. Overmyer or at his' directio~ b~ 
oth~~ Overmyer: entities of $358,000; and unreimbursed staff and 
:facility charges mcurred by <_)ther Overmyer entities of $666,500. 

Mr. LISHMAN. "\Ve would hke to concentrate on the justification for 
the $66_6,514 allocation of charg~s for services performed by employees 
of affihated Overmyer compames for the benefit of the Communica­
tions Corp. 

Mr. KEITH. "\Vill the gentleman yield? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. KEITH. As 'a matter o:f curiosity, and because the answer will 

shed some light o~ ht?w this was handled, I assnme that your financial 
statement figures mdicate, to a large deo-ree whether or not you could 
handle the effort required to operate one"' of these stations. 

You show in one of your statements t hat was furnished to the FCC 
or t_o me, as a member of the committee, an extraordinary gro,vth in 
capital assets and yet no taxes appear to have been paid in the inter­
vening years or in the years involved. 

My question is: Do these capital assets reflect a true picture of the 
corporate structure ? Specifically, is it possible that by reason of a 

l " 1 l, ,o1 1111 l l\'1' 1\ ,tss igned to these CP's, that rather than what they 
1, 1111111 1,111·11 i<'d fo r, which was very modest, they have a year or 

1,1, 1 111 •, ·1,111( •, worth millions of dollars and are used as ,assets in 
11 , , .. 11,1,111 111 rnlr, picture? 
I I t h, 11" nm. ( ;ongrcssman Keith, if I may answer this question. 
I I I I I I ' ll . y I'S. 

th, 11~1 1·1:1C . "\Ve did have during the period 1963 through 1966 
, 11 ,, , 1111 t I, i II a s:-;rt value. Mr. Byrnes has testified it was our policy 

111I ,, 111 I'' 11 1'1 in1 Lo :Lppraise each piece of real estate and to put its true 
11 , I ii 111l111•1111011rb::tlancesheet. 
---1 ,, I 111 , 1 ,,1 , ,. of' I 066, because of economic difficulties, we commenced 

1 11 I I"· , l 111 i Id i ngs. In most part, they had been sold at the ap­
, ,I ,11 · 1,1 11 r lrnt ,·alue. 

I, 1,,111 •111•1·ific: in slances, if I may quote some documents I have 
I I", 1111 11 ·1 I for 11 1c here, we had an asset value of a piece of prop -

11 i l11 1il-:1, 011 an appraised basis of $113,605. It was sold for 
I 1111 I 

I 11 I 11 \ 111 •1·l<•s, ,re had a building with an appraised value above the 
11 , ,, . 11 r $~~fi ;B67. It was sold for $200,000. 

I 11 11 11 I >1,,,,0, Cn.lif., .ve had a building appraised at $227,222. It 
, 1,1 l',,1· $: \00 ,000, above the mortgage. 

It I , , \ •'1 •11 :-; , ;°{ev., ,rn had a building valued at an appraised value 
' 1 111 11 !in s been sold or is being sold for $300,000. 

1•111p1, 11 of this is to show the asset growth was real and the 
11 11•11 I ; I lie buildings were sold at or close to their appraised 
I I 

I , , 1 11 . I i I Ii 11 k you missed the point of my question. 
11111 1 l\lr. Keith? 
I , 11 1, . \',· :,. 
I I , 11 , , , I I hi nk I understood you. 

,, ' "" 11 l, i11 g, ;\re the market values of the construction permits 
I, " I I I' ,t II I !I ~;:;<'! ~ 
I I h I I I 11 . \' p -;_ 

Ii II 1 11 N 1,.H . The answer is "No," sir; this is a warehouse company 
I 1, 1111 111 '1'l111 warehouse company did not own and had no title to 
111 " '' I, 11, ·I io n pPnnits. There would have been no place in the ware-

h,,., , , 1111q 11 , 11_y Hf at·cments for such assets. . . . . 
I, h , , 1 11 . 'l'li 1tL is the answer I wanted. This raises a question 1n 

" "' 111 d 1,111 1011 ,, ]i it is not necessarily pertinent to the specific applica­
' 1111 I,, ii I,, 11, , · , · x I en t that your financial statements have been used by 
l , I 1 ' ( ' 111 d1 ,t ermin ing your capability :for developing_ these em-

Ii .. 11 11 !1•li vi io 11 stations. 
\\, l1,11\ l1 Pn' ,inder fixed assets appraisal on a consolidated finan-
1 t II I 111111 11 I , $!) n1 ill ion in 1964; $18 million in 1965; $17 million in 

I ,n, 
1111 11 t II w1 •: t lmL you gave were smaller.amounts which when sold, 
'", ,,111 111 •11 1 i,w, w r e less than the appraised value. 

I, 111 , 11~1, 1'.1c. t-, i,·, I think the aggregate total of the four is equal 
I lu ,q 'I 11 1• 1 ,1,d vn I no of the four. These four specific buildings are 

I II I \ 1 · 111,q,I,, , 
I " "'" l,11 w y11 11 many, many others over and above these four. But 

I 11 111 I ,\1,11 I hitL indicate the sale value of the building is equal 
,, 1111il,111tppraised value and that the fair market appraisal 
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which we procured placed on that balance sheet, and so labeled, is a 
fair statement 0£ the value 0£ the property. 

Mr. KEITH. I don't want to pursue this i£ counsel is ready to con­
tinue his questioning but i£ he is not ready or would like to have me 
continue along the lines that I have established I will be happy to 
doso. 

M~. Lishman, are you ready to resume or would you like to have me 
contmue? 

Mr. LISHMAN. I am ready to resume. 
Now, this figure 0£ $666,000 was an estimate; isn't that correct? 
Mr. BYRNES. Pardon me? 

. Mr. LISHMAN. That figure 0£ $666,000 allocable to charges for serv­
ices performed £or ,the bene,fit 0£ the communications companies was 
an estimate ? 

Mr. BYRNES. No, sir. It was a calculation or computation. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Will you briefly explain how that was computed i 
Mr. BYRNES. Yes, sir. 
"\Ve had at our disposal at that time I believe 4 months 0£ what we 

might call the clean cost 0£ the staff company, the Overmyer Co. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Four months in what year? 
Mr. BYRNES. 1966. I believe the months were September October 

N ' ' ovember, and December 0£ 1966, when we had switched all staff 
nonline personnel into this management company. ' 

Mr. LISHMAN. Will you describe the £unctions 0£ the company? 
Mr. BYRNES. Yes,sir. 
The Overmyer Co. or the staff company, as we refer to it housed all 

0£ the personnel 0£ the v,arious prior Overmyer companies wl10 were not 
day~to-day line operating people but who were rather staff type people, 
service people, such as legal, personnel, advertisina accounting and 
the like; service type departments. bl ' 

. So, we grouped them into this company so that the resultant fi!mres 
m the operatmg companies, warehousi1w, leasina and com1mfnica­
tions,_wou_ld have only ~ine cost directly ch;rged. bl 

Tlus bemg the first time that we had grouped all 0£ these costs under 
one corporate head, we used this base to determine through various 
percentages what effort had been expended bv the service arms of the 
Overmyer Co. in connection with communications work. 

N ow,_we did this by goi:ng direct~y to the department heads who were 
responsible for the funct10ns, havmg them review ,Yhat type of work 
they had performed for the benefit of the communications comnanies 
and assigned percentages 0£ time to the people under their contr~l. "\Ve 
chose the people, the srrlaries, since salaries and related expenses were, 
I belJeve, in the neighborhood 0£ 70 percent of the total expenses 0£ the 
service group. '7\Te therefore felt that this was a very logica.l and fair 
method of allocation under the circ1tmstanccs. 

M~. LISH~iAN. Now, Mr. Byrne_s, is it a f_act that for advertising and 
pubhc relations department scrv1ces provided to the communications 
company you set up, a figure of $92.067? 

Mr. BYRNJ<,s. I don't find t he figure that you are referrino- to in mv 
statement, sir. b • 

Mr. LISHMAN. As I understand it, this was for the period 1964 
through 1967. 

Mr. BYRNES. The figures by department--

\I, I .i 11 1 \ N . You have the figures by department? 
1, 11, 11 N , ,· :-:. Y Ps, but the figures I have in front 0£ me by department 

1,, 11 11 11 ,,,!,il1iL :\ schedule "E" ,of our presentation to the Federal 
t 00 11 111 11111w11 l irn 1s Commission, detailed the departmental expenses for 
1111 I" 1 1111 I S 1• 1>1 rn11bcr 1966 through December 1966; not from 1964 on, 

/\ 1, , I ,1 11 ~, ,, N. I am going to ask :Mr. Druhan, an accountant, to 
11 11 •li l, ·11 ll1i :-: thing out because applying the same percentage that 

,11 ,, ,,,! 111 I 1111 pn'. cntation to the FCC we derive the fi!mre 0£ $92 067 
1 11111 11111!11 11,L of expenses which is a.ttributed to advertising 'and 
l''tld1, 11 1l11 lio11 s expenditures £or the benefit 0£ the communications 
I llll! ll llfil •:, 

I, 1111, , , N. On your schedule "E" for advertising and public rela-
1 , , , 1 , 111 , I 1, 1 w Lh c total expense 0£ $84,000 £or your total expenses. 

\1q il 11111•' lh:1L to the formula that you use, breaking down your 
11111111 1 l, y tl ll prutments, by years, which can be attained through 

1111 111•11 11 " - .V"" snbmitted to the FCC by applying the percentage 
'"' ,, 1tl 11 111 111<1 departmental expenses 0£ the Overmyer Co., we have 
I , 11 ·iltl, 111 d1·.~i sc the individual expense items for the individual 

It 111 1 I ,,,.,11! '1 . 

11 .. 1 I"" 11 , 1rds, where you came up with a total expense of $129,000 
'"" ' l, " I pnriod, applying that to the various periods by de-

1,,,, 11 1, 111 11 1·1111 ohtain what you allocated by department by period. 
I , 1 ,, 11" , N. l)o you follow that, J\fr. Byrnes? 
1, 1h 11 111. I l'ollowitmathematically;yes. 
1, 11,, 11 1 N. I )oing that, we have devised a schedule which shows 

11 !1 ,ii 111 I l1r1 •:1kclo,Ynbydepartmentofthe$666,000. 
I , 11, 1 1 M ~Ir. Lishman, would it be possible for me to see this 
l(lttf • ( , l11 ·cl1111'? 
I I I , 1 1 " , • Y cs, sir . 
I, I 111 1 11 1 . Yon will note we have broken down each department 

1 I 1111 11 f1tl ,1-t1 into consideration undistributed gener·al expenses 
II I I ii, , lw l 1@ for the portion applicable to Toledo and the portion 
'' I" , tl ol ,• l11ll11•le:i singcompany. 

, 1 , ii I 11 1 1111 rd s, th is is a breakdown of your submission to the FCC 
I I, I, 11 I 1111 • 1 it 11 11 <l by period. So, we can from this point discuss the 

11 , 11 I, wl, w1·roallocated to each department. 
I, 11, 11 1 H. I fol low your schedule. 
I I I 11 1 11 , N_. N OIi', the question is with regard to the advertising 

11 11 111 iii II l1 "'" shows a total expense 0£ $92,067. 
I I I\, , , . 1 s<'t\ yo ur figure. 
I I 1, 1 11 1 N. Th e question is, is the comparison between that and 

11I p1wl<l'L expense or direct expenses for advertising of 

, , l11 11' l1:1 tpcriod? 
f 1111 11 1N . :1'11 , total preoperating expenses 0£ the communi.ca­
'"'i' 11111 " ,,, ~!)70,000. You had a direct advertisina expense of· 

1 1 I ''" q1 11' 11 i1J11 11·0 ,\·ould like to ask is, vVhat Rervi~es ,yere per­
,, I l11 11 11• , I 11 11' o-f the Overmyer Co. to justify indirect ex-

11 1 •1' 11111 111, opposed to directexpensesof$48,000? 
II,, , I 1·1·1 ·1n i11 ly do~1't have all of that detail at my disposal 

I 1·1111 Sl\Y t~11s: In the area of both advertising and 
1, l1t1 '" " 111 1 HHtllltam staff departments during this period. 

, I 1 11 It I 11 1r departments would all be indirect cost. The in-
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direct_ cost that you allude to I assume is actual bills :from advertising 
agencies. 

Mr. DRUHAN. If it is preoperating expenses, we are not questioning 
that. We are questioning the indirect expenses. 

Mr. B~NES. The indirect expenses would have all the staff people, 
h_owever _mv<_>lved, plus any out-of-pocket expenses incurred profes­
s10nally m either of these areas. You can and do spend a o-ood deal 
o_f mon~y with profess~onal people !n advertising and in p1~hlic rela­
tion~ without necessarily ever puttmg an ad in the paper. You pay 
retamer fees to professional people in both of these lines. 

Mr. DRUHAN. That would not be an indirect expense, though. That 
would be a direct expense, would it not? , 

Mr. B~NES. That would be in this particular department's expense. 
T he public relations department and advertising department would 
gather all of the expenses pertinent to its :function. 

Now,_ for the sake of argument, if you have a retainer to an outside 
profess1on_al firm for gen~ral. public relations purposes, they don't or 
at least with us they don t bill us for breakdown of that retainer as 
to how many hours spent for communications or leasing or ware­
h ousing. 

Mr. DRUHAN. What we are comparing now is the fact that Mr. 
Adams testified this morning that in 1964 and in 1965 the main thrust 
of your effort was to get sites for your stations. 

Mr. BYRNES. That was the main thrust of his efforts. 
Mr. DRUHAN. The main thrust of his efforts and the fact that the sites 

had not been obtained at the time he left. And we concluded that in 
~964 and in 1965 the stations were not too far along toward comple­
tion. The·question is, ·what advertising was clone in 1964 and in 1965 
that would justify an indirect expense between the 2 years o:f $38,000? 
. What was done in that period when it has been testified that very 

little had progressed in getting the stations on the air? 
Mr. BYRNES. ~ can only answer the question in a very general 

manner, but I will say this: As a matter o:f normal policy within our 
cornpames, we have always been firm believers in advertising and 
p ublic relations and for all of the companies; giving an analogy o:f 
the warehousing company, before we would ever build a warehouse 
we would expend time, effort, and money in public relations and in 
advertising in given communities. 

~ow, :we do the same thing, I am quite sure, to the best o:f my recol­
lection, 1t was the same policy for the communications companies, to 
pave t~e way. I do know that I can recall seeing advertising material, 
t~e po~nt of sale type of thing which was made up for individual sta­
t 10ns like Cincinnati, San Francisco, to be distributed to pave the way 
for activation of the station. 

For many, ~any months before we anticipated going on the air, 
we knew that 1t was our intention to put these stations on the air. We 
kne~ that we had m_an:r physica~ difficulties to overcome in the way of 
findmg proper stud10 sites, findmg proper antenna sites, et cetera, as 
:you h_e~rd testified this morning. But we didn't believe as a company 
rn wa1tmg to prepare the community for this new facility. 

So, public relaitions and advertising work went on all the time even 
though the thrust of the technical people in the communications com­
pany, as was testified, perhaps was on finding sites. That did not stop 

U.L 

p11lol11 , , 111( ionH or advertising or other types of functions :from going 
1111 

\11 I 1111111 AN. Tn point o:f fact, did they advertise for the Cincinnati 
11111111111 IDM ? 

, 1, I I , 11N 1,:14. I, personally, cannot answer the question. 
I 1 '\ I 1 ,:114 ( I) 1·rsi cling). We will short circuit this. The chairman will 

1111 ,111 1 lo prepare and present to the committee for this record a 
I "I 11 I I 11 d v<'rLising contracts for the promotion of the stations under 

1I 11 11111 nnd all of those for which applications were made, all 
111tl d "' 11 •111.I ions contracts, copies of all advertisements utilized in 

--- , I, ,,I' t 111 communities, and the names of any agencies employer! 
I 11 1111 Id nsk that this be prepared and supplied very promptly to 

I I 11111 111 ii [ c. 
I, < lv1,: 11M y·i,;n. We will do so, Mr. Moss. 
I, 11, I! N ,,:s. Sir, we will comply with it as promptly as we can. 

1111 ,, 11n1 1>r ior yea.rs. I don't know as to the immediate availability 
ii 11!,111111 tli on . , 

\ I 1 \ I 11 1414. l imagine if you are keeping reasonable records ,that this 
I "I II ii It ill the period of time for which those records must be 
111111tl11 111 Pd in definitive detail. ,Ve expect to receive those r ecords 

,1l,t1 d1'111il. 
r, I\\ H N 1•:s. W e will comply as well as we can, sir. 

( 11,, i111'orrnation r equested was subsequently supplied and placed 
11 , 1111, 111 i LI cc files.) 

I, I >1w 11 AN. On the same type of questioning, Mr. Byrnes, would 
••11 1, .. ,11 nf !.he tax and insurance department where you have a total 

, , I" 1, r !ji~;3,G81 for the period 1964 through 1967? 
I I w ,I ,1 I on ,cnt made to the FCC indicaites that the bulk of this time 

1, 111,, I ,~ tr company was directed toward preparing Federal tax re-
11111, oliln.ining insurance, filing claims for insurance-I will read 

,11 l1tl<'111ent.Itsays: 
11 11, 11, 1111 rl tn C' nt filed Federal, State, and local income/franchise tax returns; 
I .i, 111HI 111u11idpal sales-use tax returns; State, county, and local property 

, , I 1111111; 11 11 d applications for such local business and other licenses as may 
1,, , '" ,,11 rpquirC'd. Correspondence with taxing officials or with other company 
11•, ,,1111 ,,1 ,~ l111 11clled by this department. · 

111 ,1, ,1, ,,·,11 l11i11g the amount of time, and thus of expenses allocable to the 
• ,.,11111 1111l1 ·11 I lo11H Company, I relied upon my personal experience in this field, 

\ \ 1 I I I rP ;~:1 r(l. to ,the insurance company, it says: 
I Id • 11,,(111 rl lllC'nt negotiated coverage in all fields for the Communications 

, '""'""" ''" 1111\1 handled claims, correspondence and followed up .on all insurance 
II ~II I I • 

t 1,, 11 11 111•11 I ion of time to the Communications Companies was based upon 
,, ,,, , ,,11111 111owlcdgeandexperience. 

I II I l11 tl r<1g-itrd, we question how much effort was directed toward 
I 111r 11·1•1 l1 w:1 I returns for the communications companies. 

I , I \, 11 N 1~14. T think the percentage of effort and time given by the 
I, , .. ,111111·111. li Ntd was all inclusive in his judgment and certainly was 

11 1 I ,1111 1• 11 down as to how much was Federal income tax and some 
11 11, I 

", 111 111 11 ,1N. Did this statement come out of the Manual o:f S tand­
' ltl111•111 l111{Procedures? 

I I I I I II N 1,:14. vVhat statement? 
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Mr. DRUIIAN. That you filed with the FCC? The one that I read 
that t he tax department filed Federal returns. 

Mr. BYRNES. Comes out of an operating manual? Not that I know of. 
. Mr. DRUHAN. My question is : vVho filed these Federal returns? Was 
it not Arthur Young? 

Mr. BYRNES. For the communications companies? I don't honestly 
know. I would have to check. I don't have the returns in front of me. 
. Mr. M?ss. We will hold the record open at this point to receive this 
mformat10n. 

(1:he information requested appears in the appendix; see item 12, 
p.49 ,. ) \ 

Mr. BYRNES. However, if I may add, whether or not they filed 
~hem does not mean that the internal people would not have worked 
m tl!e prf:paration. The filing by a public accountant can be a very 
routme thmg. 
. Mr._DRUHAN. You say here you had correspondence with tax officials. 
That 1s part of your allocable cost. How much correspondence did you 
have ? '\iVas there any? We didn't see any. 

Mr. BYRNES. I don't recall your asking for any. I don't know. 
Mr. DRm-IA~. The tax_ returns that you showed me said that the 

comp~ny was moperable m 1964 and 1965; it was a one-page form. It 
was signed by Arthur r-: oung. To the best of my knowledge, your 
dep artment chd not enter mto the tax field until the 1966 return which 
was filed after March 1967. 

~;r. BYRNES. ~at was your last question? 
. ll'. D_RUHAN. _Did the tax department of the Overmyer Co. perform 

the service of filmg the tax returns except for the 1966 return which 
was fil ed after Marc_h 1_967 which is the cutoff date for these expenses? 

So, we ar_e quesb<?rnng what work would be performed by your 
dep::atment 1f they didn't file the returns. 

Mr. BYRNES. Any type of underlying tax work plus other taxes 
not inst Federal, and insurance. ' 

Mr. DRuHAN. By the same token--
~r. BYRNJ~S. I point out the $23,000 we are referring to over the 

penod of 3½ years comes down, I suppose, to about $6,000 or $7,000 
a year. 

'r ser io1;1sly doubt-I know that w~ couldn't have hired a competent 
t~x and m surance clerk for that kmd of money for that period of 
t ime. 

Mr. DRUI-IAN. You did not have one man dedicatina 100 percent of 
his t ime by your own submission. 0 

Mr. BYRNES. That is right. 
If we had proposed such a person and put him on the payroll I think 

the money would have been a great deal higher than that. ' 
Mr. DRUHAN. That would not be pertinent to this hearing, would it? 
Mr. BYRNES. I don't know. 
Y ou are_ asking me to g? into a figure ,vhich you have compiled 

over a penod of years. It Just occurs to me that that is not a great 
deal of money for that type of work over that period of years. 

Mr. DRUHAN. You say ~ere in regard to the insurance department 
that they handled the claims. Do you recall any claims that were 
handled by the department? 

~r. BYRNES. I, personally, have nothing to do with the handling of 
claims. 

Ou 

I , l.1 11 ~, ., N. '\iVho would have? 
I, I I , 11 N ,,:H. The manager of the insurance department, sir. 

\ l1 l,1 H11~1 ,1N. Could you supply for the record any claims that 
, " I, 111dl1·d by the ~epartment? 

I , I I , 11 N 1•:H. We will attempt to do so. 
1111 1111'11rn1:d,ion requested appears in the appendix; see item 12, 

I,, ) 
\ I , I ,, H 11 ~, 11 N. How much income did these five communications 

11 , , , 11111 •, l, :1vc during this period over which charges were allocated? 
___ I I I h II N 1•:H. To the best of my know ledge, they would have had no 

, 00 1,, ,., i,·. ' l' l1 cy were not operating. 
\1 1 l,1 11 ~1i1N. In this $666,514 allocation of charges to the Over­
' 1 '' ,111 11 ,11111i <"a t ions Co. , you aL~o han , a charge of $307,715 for the 

11111 , 1111d dnvelopment department; is that correct? 
I , I I, 11 N 1,:s. The combination of the last two amounts~ That is 

\1 1 I ll' 11l 11 1n 's· n11mber, yes. 
\ I , I ,,., ,,~, /\N. Now, you stated that 37 of 61 employees in the New 
, I , dlii-o devote<;! 5 to 30 percent of their time to communication 

11111 1. 1 " .I' :wt ivity . 
I, lh 1, N1•:s. I belieYe the department involved indicated that vari-

11 1 l''" ·H 1111 H li:td various percentages. I don't believe they were all 
I II I 1 •ol , 

\11 I ,1,'-l 11~1 11N. You also stated that 48 or 62 employees in regional 
dlt, , .J1•1•olPd 10 to 30 percent of their time to these duties. 

I I I I,. H N 1,:s. I don't know how many employees were involved, 
I 1I 1111 111s ("111ployees were engaged over a period of years. 

~ I , , I , , H 11 ~, 11 N. And you indicated the allocated amount for the seven 
11 111 11 , I 11l1ic<'S 11 :ts $137,048. 

I I 11 , . , 11111n it t e1~ has sent letters to 106 fo rmer employees of Overmyer 
1 , 111 11 1 11·1•, ha ,·e received answers from 70. We inquired as to what 
11 11 ,,11 111 Il l' li111 c th ese employees-and they were for mer employees­

!, 11 11111 ll 1111L o f' t ime they devoted to communications company duties. 
\, 1,11111 d prndically without variat ion that very little, i£ any, time 

, , 1 , , ,. d1·1·0Le1l by them to the performance 0£ any services for the 
•11 11 1111 11 il' 11 I ions companies. 
\\ ii Ii n·:, pt'(' L specifically to the finance and development charge of 
11, 1111ri, I li t• lei ters we received from the persons engaged in that 

, l 1 I' ,111,11·11 1 showed that 17 out of 18 of the persons responding per-
11 '"' ' ' I 1,0 S('rv iC'es whatever for the communications companies. 

111, , 11 11 :1 1 j11Ht,ification can be offered for that type of situation 
,, 11 11 11 ~·1•tl ,1 ba ,:e period of your own sel ect ion ; and; ,vith inst a 

,, 11 11 1111111 11111011nt of checking we find out that persons to whom 
111 1111 1• 111 I rilrnted wages and salaries for performing services for 

I , ,,, ,,,,,11, i,· :1 Lions companies tell us they performed no such services? 
I, 1 ll, 11~1 nm. Mr. Lishman, may I answe.r this question? I think 
I II I I, 11 n I t"q 1lm1ation is quite simple. Our staff headquarter s in 

\ ,,, I , 11111•r:1I ing tts we did, provided almost every seryi.ce for 
11 111 11 •, ,· 11111 pn nies in •the Overmyer group whether they be ware­

' .. 11111 11111il' ,d,ions, leasing, construction, or whatever . ViTe h ad 
1 , , , , 1, 1'11111 I ofli ccs. It should be clear from the testimony of the t wo 

1 ,,1 Ii 111;, 11 11' 110 prnceded Mr. Dorfner in this position as head of the 
111111 11111, ·11 11011s <'ompany that the communications staffs as well as 

I 11 1 111 11 I' , 11 I, r operating companies were not large enough to 
ol, 1 J, ,, ,•1•vi(•1'S necessary. The Finance and Development Depart-

11 1 1, , ,. 1111 11 sihl c for the select.ion of sites and for the financing. 
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11 

I 

I am confident that many thousands of hours were spent by our staff 
people in these functions. 

Now, Tom, if you want to add something, go ahead. 
Mr. BYRNES. I can only say, of course, that we don't know who the 

ex-employees are and to whom you referred. 
Mr. LISHMAN. At this point I would like to offer in the record a 

staff report on verification of Overmyer's claimed out-of-pocket ex­
penses with copies of the inquiries to and answers :from Overmyer 's 
former employees attached thereto. 

Mr. Moss. '\V-ithout objection the material will be received for inclu ­
sion in the record. 

(The documents referred to appear in the appendix; see item 14, 
p. 499.) 

Mr. B YRNES. Mr. Lishman, would it be possible to see the letter that 
is also directed to the employees? 

Mr. LISHMAN. It is part of the record. 
Mr. DRUHAN. His point was that for the Finance and Development 

Department, or any other department that we selected, we took the list 
of employees that you furnished with the percentage applicable to their 
efforts and those former employees that we h ad addresses for we sent 
a confirmation letter. Although I don't doubt Mr. Overmyer's explana­
tion, our question is that the employees that you selected for your 
submission to FCC were not the ones that devoted this effort. 

Mr. Moss. The Chair is inclined to be extremely indulgent of the 
activities of counsel but he would direct counsel's attention to page 2 
of the rules of the House which have been employed, and would sug­
gest tha~ CO)l~Sel read them and so comfort himself as to being in 
conformity with that. I heard no request for consultation on a matter 
of constitutional r ights. Therefore, I ask that the counsel be seated. 

Mr. BYRNES. May I answer? 
Mr. Moss. Now we will have to recess for 10 minutes to permit the 

committee to keep within the rules, which require two to be present. 
Mr. Van Deerlin will be back shortly. 

(Brief recess.) 
Mr. Moss. The committee will resume its sitting. I want to say that 

the Chair 'Nill not countenance an action by indirection which he 
would not countenance as direct action. So the caution to the counsel 
stands. 

Mr. GAGDINE. I assume that the Chair will permit me to advise the 
counsel of his constitut ional right? 

Mr. Moss. I was very explicit in stating that that was the purpose 
of your being here under the rules of the House. I do not intend to 
conduct thece hearings in any manner not in accordance with those 
rules. It is up to the gentlemen who request that advice when there 
would be reasonable grounds to assume a constitutional issue is in­
volved. 

Mr. Lishman, you may proceed. 
Mr. BYRNES. May I ans,ver Mr. Druhan's last question, please? 
Mr. Moss. Yes, you may. 
Mr. BYRNES. I can only say that in the first place, I had not before 

seen your computations or your letters or the answers of the ex-em­
ployees. So it is difficult, if not impossible, to comment on them until 
I have reviewed them. In addition, we received our information £rom 
what we believe is the best possible source, which was the department 
heads who directed the efforts of the many people. 

It 1 , iii 1l'lll_y possible, and I think a normal occurrence, that the 
11 11 , , 111pl 11y1•11, l' p ecially after a passage of time, either exaggerates 

I • 111111 11111 111' work he did on something or completely eliminates it. 
1 111 l11 I", 11 1· l>11 li ve, and this is the reason we used this approach, 

ii 11111 11 p111io11 :, aJld the judgments of the executives who were in 
I 111• 1 111' 111111-111 ,Ltea · <luring this period were much more accurate 

111 , t 11••.1 l1 11 d n. nrnch broader idea 0£ what was going on, a much 
I 11 ,ii, , I 111111 il',d~ o.f vd1y assignments were made to individuals as 

11, 11 111111 1111 ol' 11·ork that was being performed, and for whom. 
", I .! 11 11'1. U,i11k I ran really say anything intelligent concerning 

1! , 11 1 \11q • ,ll' IH• d11I C's orletters. 
I I I >11 1111 ,1 N. The supervisor would know more about what the 

1 il 11 111 g , Lil a,n the man himself? 
I 1, 11 N 1.11 . I t hink in many cases,yes. 
I >t 111 111 N. We are saying 17 out of 18 employees from whom we 

t 1 11 •·ti " ' p11 11 HN, were allocated 30 percent of their time and they 
111, l1 11 I, 11 111I :-inid none. I would agree with you if it were semantics 

I I 1, ,,111 pl'r<'c' 11tages but when you are talking of no time as com­
' I 1, 1 111 111 :'.O percent of your time, there is a wide variance. 
11 l \ , 11 N 1,·1-1. I appreciate your question. Since I have not had a 

111 11 wil'w _your papers I can only reiterate that the department 
, 1d l 1111 1, 1 · li :it·. work their departments performed durino- those 

111 ii , 11 1,il 11 s in g their memory to the best of their ability, since 
l1il 11 11I l1 :11·0 di aries or anything 0£ that sort, they did their best 
1,II 11 '11 1· \1 indi viduals did it and to what extent. This is their 

pt1 \ j' ll ll'III . 

I I I 1, , 11 , -.. . Th <' individuals for whom you are applying this per­
' ,,, ,11· 11 1>1• riod, were they employed for the whole period? 

1 lli11 N1'1-1 . !-,pecifi cnJlv, I don't know. We would have to look 
, 11 11 111 id1111\ one at a"time. 
I 111 1 11 i1 r-. . I) id. you 1 ook at it at the time you made your computa-

1 \ 1 11 N 1 1-1, Tllr department heads would have; I didn't. 
I , I 1,11 , , 1 N. /\ n l ,,e to assume that these employees that you al­
"' ii 11 1,1 I i11 10 Lo when you were allocating on a percentage basis 

11 1111 111 11•,•p11f 111ro i n 1964, a certain percentage in 1965 and 1966: 
t 1l1111 1•111 11111ployrdforthewholeperiod? 
1, I\ , 11 1•H . of , ,_, c,cessarily, no. But someone, if not they, would 

,111 1111 f l11if wo rk rn HJG4 and 1965, some counterpart. No, they used 
1111 1d11y1•1•1, i f _yo 11 r ecall, who were on payroll during that test 

o1 1 1• 11111 til PH. IL mi ght have been a replacement of someone be­
),111 11 f l11il 11 t pnHsibl e. The questions are: What work was done 

I, 1 I I i 11 , I " r prohl rn, and what man? So there could be a sub~ 
I 1,i 11 11 "' 11111,1l1> \'t't_'H ovr r a period of time. It might be that a regional 

11 , 111 d 11 ,, 1111 1, ,11 1sL to make an example, on the west coast, was 
I 11 1 I" 1 , 1 11 f , 11 1· II, pncent, or whate_ver :percentage the d~partment 

111 11 Iii 1 11· :1d,•q11 ntc. Actually 1t might have been m 1965 or 
i 11 11111• ., fl 1l'l' _P1_1 1_1 loyee_was working at that 30 percent of 
1 111 ii 1 11 1111•;Hil>il1t.y. This was an average composite recollec-
1 I 11,11 I I \ " 111 l1•d. 

I \ 11 · 1111 1 :-;;1_y ing, then, if we find employees who were 
1 I , ,I J., , " 111 n11l h or two during that test period that you 

II ti Ii , 11,i,!11,\'t·<'s, not like numbers, but comparable? 
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Mr. BYRNES. Comparable effort would have been expended. 
Mr. DRuHAN. Comparable effort during the preceding period? 
Mr. BYRNES. By someone. 
Mr. DRUI-IAN. Is it not true that the test period was a peak in the 

Ove~rmyer Co. ? 
Mr. BYRNES. A peak as to communications? 
Mr. DRUHAN. A peak as to warehouse ::wtions. In other words, the 

expenses for the communiettions company are based on a per­
centage of the warehouse company, is that correct ? 

Mr. BYRNES. Of the staff group. 
Mr. pmn-IAN. Yes, the Overmyer Co. Yon used 11 percent of those 

expenses. \, 
Mr. BYRNES. That is correct. 
Mr. DRm-IAN. I s it not true that the test period of September through 

D ecember, was that when the expenses for the Overmyer Co. were 
at this peak? 

Mr. BYRNES. No. In general 1966 was our biggest year, yes. But 
whether these 4 months were the peak, I don't honestly know. I don't 
recall. But 1966 was our peak year, yes. . . 

l\i[r. DRUHAN. We are getting back to the quest10n that Mr. Lish­
man was asking previously as to why we were using that 4-month 
period. You are contending that the expenses started to be recorded 
in September 1966. ,¥ e are questioning then why you didn't use the 
test period through March 1967 when the expenses of the warehouse 
company were certainly available after December. . . 

Mr. BYRNES. Frankly, because at the time we ,vere makmg th1s up 
our accounting has never been that up to date. ,V-e didn't have those 
periods on the books. This period was closed in the accounting de­
partment and therefore available to us. 

Mr. DRUHAN. By May and June, December was not completed? 
Mr. BYRNES. December was completed. 
Mr. DRUHAN. January was not completed by May or .Tune? 
Mr. BYRNES.No; it wasn't, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Can't we test fairness and propriety of this base 

period allocation approach by pointing ou_t various examples of th e 
real foolishness of it? For example, here 1s ·an employee, Albert E. 
Owens. He is letter No. 17. He was employed only 1 mont_h. F.[e earned 
$665. Now a total of $5,428 was charged to t~e c<_>mrnumcat10ns com­
panies for the services of this employee which 1s $4,763 more than 
his total earnings. 

In the first place, I don't understand why you have to have a base 
period at all. Out-of-pocket expenses are out-of-pocket expenses. When 
you ru~ it up on an estimate~ allocated basis of $666,000 ~n d worlf out 
some km d of -formnla that " ·111 take a peak period, I certamly don t see 
anv eqnitv or justice. 

Hr.BYRNES. It was the onlv period i11 whif'h these allocated expen"es 
harl hern cct ont in snch fl way t]1nt they con ld he nsed, sir. 

~fr. LIPHJ\L\N. '\V-e have a situation where yon have five construc­
tion f'~"mits i.ssned and nothing done on them. You had not even ac­
qnired the .zround to put up the antenna. How could you be having this 
hig·h -nowered advertising, this high-powered tax servi_ce, this finance 
and development work, when you were not even dra:'l'mg down loans 
:from the banks and you did not even get firm commitment letters? I 
don't understand it. It is beyond me. 

I, l \1 11. 1.1-1 .. \ s to the financial element I don't know, perhaps ,ve• 
l111tl 111 11 , I don't know how many banks would have been ap -

111 11 I,, t I I it• 1'1, n', t I te ones who had decided to commit did commit. I do 
1 I I ii 11 ,. I ook down three of those loans, three of those commit-
1 I 111 I I 11 11·1· been alluded to were taken down. 

I 1 \ i11r,1-1. I low ~nany employees would normally be engaged in the 
111 1 I 1, "I rn1 it :tc! mg; banks for the purpose of arranging financing ? 

I , , I, , 11 1•.H. Our finance and development department. l don't know 
It I 11111tiil('I' of employees, sir, but it was the largest department 

i 11111 t 1111 q 1: 111 y because the company ,vas on a very large development 
•~:-111111 11 w:1 s the people w!10_ were employed in this department of 
It• 1111 11 11d il ovclopment. This 1s real estate people, land acquisition 

11 Jdt, 1111 :,,1•l<·dors, negotiators with banks, insurance companies and 
11111 I 1, 11 I 10 n re ucied for this purpose in addition to their other duties. 
I'll 1 \I , L'<N. I ,d us try another approach. The $666,000 was for the 

11111, t• 11 11d d1·rnl oprnent? 
I I I >1n 111 .1 N. -N o, sir; $307,000 for finance and development. 
I I I"""· \Vh:tt percentage of the total cost of financino- and <level­
'" iii /t 11 · 111<' (''. >'.1 cur-~·ent period d_oes the $307,000 represeit? 
I • I , 1 Ii N 1,:1-,. I here are two splits. One was 13.4 and the other was 

11 , " :t>1>111w h re in the neighborhood of 14 percent of the depart-
w rd, I I , 

I 1 \I 1 '""· l!onghly 14 percent of the department was allocated to 
It Iii t' 111111 ·1 i1·<• <·011struction permits. 

\ I , I \ , 11 N 1,:s. Fou rtcen percent of the department was allocated to 
111 1 I 11 1 t 1·, 1 >1'1 HINl in searching out financino- real estate sites et 

,11, f' •• l'll11 •s1• /i, ·eC'P's. b' ' ' 

I , \lrn,H. I low 111auy applications were made for financino- of these 
I I ' I b 

I , I\, 11 N ,,:H. I don 't have a number available, sir. 
I 1 \ I ,, H. I~ 11 L _yo ur records would reflect tha:t. 
I, I : , 11 N ,,:14. I <·onld discuss it with the department and get an an-

' 1 I, 111 11 I I 11 •111, s i 1·. 

I, \I, 1HH. I don 't want an estimate. I want the ,exaot contacts. 
I I I II 11 N 1,:H. I don '•t think any such record exists sir. ,¥ e did not 
, "1 11 p1 •11pl11k('ep<liaries,orthatsortof·thing. ' 
I 1 \I ,, . Yo, 1 lmd to make out applications, didn't you? 

\I, I I, 11 ,,·.'-!. oL necessarily, sir. A good deal of time would he ex-
' • I, ,I 11 , 11 I 11 11 s 1• x p ·nded, I personally was inV'olved on occasion on 
ti 111,, 11 ti I, Ii n 11 , win I people and spending an hour or sev,eral h~urs 

I I, 1111•111, , 11 ing t lit' m verbally a presentation--
I , \1 11· , \\ ' I"· 11 did you acquire your first siJte for the construction 
11, , ,1 il11 , li 1,• li1·1•11 s(' orconstructionpermits? 
I, I 11 11 1 I p<' rso nally don't know, sir. I will have to defer to 

111 ,. ,1, , I 1• 1,, 11 11 "l w1·r t,hat. 
I , 11, 1111 1 11 ( 'o,wrcs.-man, you refer to the five particular CP's 

111 ' I 11'1'1' '( 

11111' iHl'Ol'l'CCL 
I, 1 t,,,, , ,, I l1, ,li1•vn Cincinnati would have been the first which 
ii 111, t 1 .. , 1, 1111 , 1,1·n pc\l't·y discussed in earlier testimony which was 
I Iii I 11,dl p1 11 pl'l'i_y whi ch was obtained by the leasing company 

I I I" ' ,,t II)() , 
t 11 111 11111 d11I (•? 
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Mr. DoRFNER. I believe the option was contracted in March and it 
was exercised by June of that year, 1966. 

Mr. Moss. June 1966, and the option was executed in March. And 
what did you have, a maximum of 30 days' negotiation leading up to 
th e option? 

Mr. DoRFNER. No. I believe Mr. Adams indicated that negotiation 
had begun the previous fall and was concluded in March as my memory 
recalls. As I say, the option was picked np and exercised in June 1966. 
So it was 6 months or more of negotiation. 

Mr. Moss. You acquired during this time one site. Subsequently, 
how many sites were acquired for the five? 

Mr. DoRFNER. Atlanta was another. San Francisco was an(')ther. 
Houston was already testified to, a filing which was an option to buy 
on the Texaco property. 

Mr. Moss. Did you acquire four or five or six~ 
hfr. DoRFNER. Three were acquired. T,rn w-ere options. 
Mr. Moss. How many sites or property packages or deals of finance 

and development were obtained for the affiliated companies in the 
same period of time? 

Mr. DoRFNER. I don't have that information. 
Mr. OVERMYER. I believe I can answer that, Mr. Congressman. 
Mr. Moss. All right. 
Mr. OVERMYER. I would estimate that--
Mr. Moss. Unless you can give it precisely, I would not want the 

answer. I would rather hold the record and ask you to supply the pre-
cise figure, again, very promptly. · 

Mr. OVERMYER. Let me give you my answer. If you wish some­
thing further, we will furnish it. 

Mr. Moss. Only, Mr. Overmyer, i:f you want to say that your 
answer is accurate. If it is an estimate, I do not want it at this point in 
t he record because it will not add to the record. 

Mr. OVERMYER. Mr. Moss, we have completed 350 buildings in ap­
proximately that period time. Each of those sites would have had to 
be investigated. 

Mr. Moss. They would have been investigated by this same finance 
and development group? 

Mr. OVERMYER. That is correct, sir. 
Mr. Moss. 300 different sites? 
Mr. OVERMYER. 350 sites. 
Mr. Moss. 350 sites. Yet for the securing of three sites and two 

options, 14 percent of the total cost was allocated to those three sites 
and two others. 

Mr. OVERMYER. Excuse me. I made an incorrect statement. We com­
pleted 350 buildings on approximately 175 sites. 

Mr. Moss. ·well, the buildings would also require, I assume, the 
a.rranging of finance. So the negotiation would be reasonably compara­
ble; contact with financial institutions. 

Mr. OVERMYER. '\Ve would look at at least 10 sites for every one we 
select. 

Mr. Moss. A ratio would hold reasonably firm and I would con­
cur in counsel's observation that that does not make too much sense 
out o:f the allocation o:f 14 percent o:f the total cost for this very mini­
mal activity when you had such a massive amount going on. 

l 1 11 11 1 ", 1 11. I I' I 111:1y read from the December 1965 memorandum 
111 11 I l,, 1 < ',1111111i ss io11 cr L ee of the Federal Communications Com-

111, 1111 ,I 1il1111ill1•il lo hirn, a copy to me, which in substance is a 
11 1111 1 I II I' 11 H' 1·01nn I uuications activities as directed by Robert 

11111 111" 1111' .\ '(•ar 1DG5, I think this might clear up some of 

111 I i l1i1il, you could submit it to counsel and he can examine 
, I, I, 1, ,, 111 1111 • 11 liPI lil'r or not it is pertinent. 

I , t , , 1 1111, 1,,11. I 11· i 11 be happy to do so. 
I I I .i 11" 1 N. I 1rou ld ~ike_ to have in the record the report pre­

, - -I 111 \11' . 1>1'1111:111 rene1nng the Overmyer transfer of the five 
1 1, 11, 111111 jll'l'lltit s lo U.S. Communications Corp. 
I, 111 . Is llil'rt\ objection to the request that the items be in-

' 11 ,J 111 I 11 1• 11·1· ,11 ·,I :ti tliispoint 'i 
I I I 1 11 1 1 N . ,\ \'OJ>Y has been furnished to Mr. Byrnes, I believe. 
11 \I ,, l l1 ·:1F111 p; 11 oue, t he material is received for the record. 

,11) 
,1 111 111111 •1!1 rl'i'l'( 't•ed to appears in the appendix; see item 22, 

I I l li. 1 11 1 ,, . _1\I r. Hyrnes, could I ask one :further question there: 
,1,1 1 "II,., pin 111 t ltl\ difference between the finance and development 

I 11 1111 1•111 1111 tl _1111• treasury department of the Overmyer Co. as to 
I 1 11 11 <l 111•s I\ 111 1 n•p;anl to tryina to obtain financino- '/ 

It 1 ,. 1il 11i1 1l',I i11 your submi~~ion to FCC that b~th departments 
, d 1111 11 . \\ ' :1 s I li t•re :t difference between the two? 

I, 11, 11 · 1:-.. '1'111• bas ic difference is that the finance and develop­
,!, I' 11 I 1111 •111 111 011r company 1s charged with the initial investio-a­
' 11, 1111,.,• 1'11r 11l('lit0cls of financino- :for areas of financ·ino- with 

111 il1l1• li 11 :111 1· i:1l institution whicl~~1io-ht be interested in financ-. ,.., 
11 1 111<1 11 " 1• 1il t• l'pr1 scs, ,vhether they be warehouse buildino· con-

t 11 ,11, 11 lt1 •1 l1n I i1l' .Y be equipment leasirio- financina whethe~ they 
I . fi . ,.., ,..,, 
111 111 11 1·11 11 sl1_11d.1l;)n 1nancmg. They would also be responsible 
Ii, 1111 1tl 11111 _o l d (•::,; 1rable 1·eal estate :for the various companies 
I 1 11 11 I 1·1wl 11111 prngram. The treasury department on the other 
I .. 1 1,1 lw jtl' i111:1rily responsible for the handlino· ~f cash funds 

, , 111, 11 · :111 i11i(•r11al function, but since most of your bankers 
• •1111p1111iP::;, l'L <'ete ra, financial people insist on having a rela~ 

11 1• "11 11 1111 • 1·11 1· porute treasurer, the rnan who handles the funds, 
11 1 111,• 1 1111,I nss1sl:1nt treasurer would also have to become quite 
It 11 , 1 I I 1 11 I I 1 > r I I 11• sc financing sources, visit them periodically to 

11 1 lt 1 111 ' II I I 1, d11 I 1·, :111d be in communication with them a o·ood deal. 
111 t 111•11'1'111 ·11 1" ;1 <·l·rtain overlap but the basic differe~1ce is the 

1 I, 1111 1i1 , '1'111' li11a11c·c and cleveloJ)ment peonle comina in verv 
I . £ ,.., J' 

11 , fl 11 ,. I ,1111 •:1 I ol'y group almost, an arranging group, a nego-
1 "' II, , 1, 11, I 11 11 1• 11 I lie arrangement has been consummated and 

t I I 1 ,, 1 1 I 11111 I Ii I' lt:Ls been estaL>lished between one of our com-
1111 I 1 11111 111, ·1:1 1 i11 stitution, a good deal then of the follow-

11111,I I 11 • ,·.11Ti 1• t! on by the treasurer's department. There 
I" I 11• 111 •ri()( I it' overlaps, however. 
I '" ,1111 1 l'l•t· l th at the $28,000 plus is a reasonable a lloca­
l 11 1111· I r(•:ts11ry department to service dra,,ing down 

, , 11 1111 1ilil l1 t' I li e servicing of dnrn-ing down three loans, 
1111<1\ 111 ·, I 11pposl', the paperwork involved and so forth 
I 11iil1111 1i1· 1111 · 1'111,tl s, the spending of the funds the trans~ 
1 I 1111 .! I lt1• rn1il i 11c treasury function plus, h~,,-eyer, the 

1 I I 
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I 
I 

ar~a you just asked me a:bout, the other type o:f continual relation­
ship o:f treasurer and assistant treasurer with bankers and financial 
instit~ti~ns who eit~er were_ alre~dy ?r might become interested in 
estabhs1:nng a financial relat10nship with one o:f our communications 
compames. 

While we might have a commitment from a hank for ultimate use we 
wo~ld al~o be constan~Iy on the_alert for the availability of other types 
of financmg, whether it be pens10n funds or insurance companies lona­
term financing possibly at more attractive rates than a bank lo:n 
might be and better payment schedules. 

. The _treasurer_ in ~is c~ntacts with these people would alweys be 
d1SC\lS~1!1g the situa~ioi:is m the communications companies with the 
possib1_hty of e~tabhshmg another _fm~J?-Cial relationship there. 

~gam, there is that overlap. Agam, 1f I may say so, over a 3½-year 
per10d t~at does not come down to an awful lot of money a year. a lot 
less, obviously, than you pay an assistant treasurer. , 

Mr. Moss. Would not the more important point be the total number 
of loans serviced by the organiz'.1tion and the percentage this representB 
of the total cost o:f the operation? You might undertake to develop 
those :facts for the record. 

Mr. DRUHAN. ,-ven, sir, we tried that before when I was visiting Mr. 
Overmyer to find out why the breakdown was not made on the relation­
ship of services performed by the whole. Their answer in their sub­
~ission to the F_CC is that they chose to use an allocation of employees' 
time and they did not choose to submit based on a relationship to total 
services. They say there is no way they could develop that figure. We did 
not attempt to develop it. I don't know whether it can be developed. 

Mr. Moss. Normally would there not be a record of the number of 
loans serviced? You are talking of the number of 3. Durin a that period 
was there concurrent servicing of m number of loans and the aross total 
cost of m number of television stations? ·what is that m facto~? Do you 
have such records? 

Mr. BYRNES. I woul~ ~ay there wou_ld be a mortgage loan, of course, 
o_n every _r1:al esta~e facility versus takmg down a loan on a communica­
t10ns facility. Tlus, however, alludes to the minor part of the treasury 
function, internal function. 

1\fr: Moss. You _se~, the important thing to determine here is the 
quest10n of the validity of some of these allocations because under the 
custom ot the Federa~ Coml?unications Commission in the past there 
3:re certam rules applied wluch were not applied in the case of the five 
licenses here. 

~o figu_res do become very pertinent to the inquiry. I think that it is 
qmte obvious on the scale of your operation that your accounting would 
b~ sufficiently sophisticated to supply those fi!!Ures and therefore I 
direct that they be supplied and I direct that the record'be held open 
to receive them very promptly. 

Mr. RussELL 1?ROWN. Mr. Moss, just :for clarification will you tell 
us exactly what kmd of papers you are interested in? 

Mr. Moss. We are interested in knowina durina this oeriod of 
serv~cing of three loans for $28,000, the exa~t numb:r of loans beina 
serviced by that organization and the percentage of the gross totJ 
cost $28,000 represented. 

Mr. RussELL BROWN. We can do that very readily. Thank you, sir. 

1111 1111'11rn1ation requested appears in the appendix; see item 12, ,, ) 

I, , I , 1 M. You may proceed. 
I, I i1 11 ~1AN. Mr. Byrnes, are you aware of the FCC rules which 

II'''" 111111. s11l>stant!al and significant_ch_anges occurring to an ap-
1 1111 11111 ,;I be furmshed to the Commiss10n so that it may be kept 

I I It il11I 1• / 

I 111, 1 dMri np.; specifically to FCC rules 1.65, 1.613, and 1.615. 
I, I, I< N 1•:H. No, I have not been familiar with the FCC reITT.llations 

0 ' 

l I I ,1 11 MAN. Is there someone at the witness table that is familiar 
I I, 1 I 11, , 1 I'll le ? I can read them aloud to you i:f you wish. 
I, I 111 111 ," N 1,:1L I am familiar with it; yes, sir. 
I I I .i 11 ~1_A~. Ar~ you aware o:f the financial representations made 

I " c 111 111111~s10~ with respec:t to e~ch of the original CP applications 
1 \ I I 111 I 11 , I I ttsburgh, Cmcmnati, Houston, and San Francisco ? 

I, 11,111 1•·N 1rn. I am aware of them ; yes. 
1, I •,' 11 ~10 N : \Vhy 1 ·then, did the Overmyer interests fail to disclose 
111 I 1111_11111 s 10n pr1or to June 30, 1967, when they applied for the 

1 ,, ti, 1 , ii I hr.-e permits, the followina information· correct me if I 
11 "'"~ , 1d>oot any of this informati~n: ' 

I I, ii 11' 1Hl antial liens had been filed against the Overmyer organ i­
t "" 111 I 11 0 biLe fall of 1966. 
11, ii 1111 •~(\ ~i ens imp~ire~ the pe1:mittee's financial stability and 

111,!, ,I l11lf1llment of their financial r epresentations made t o the 
11111 I HI ii . 

I , II I 111·r111yer intended to sell the five construction permits. 
1 1 11 11 l111 yor for the five construction permits had been found, a 

I I" " ,·l111 sc) agreement executed on March 28, 1967, and $1 million 
1 1 1 ,I 11 11 downpayment pursuant thereto. 
11 , d 11 .':I 111illion loan agreement had been consummated with the 
11 11 ,,,! 1·111,st rn ction permit assignee on March 28 1967. 
I 11 ii 1111 11 _r I lte permittee's stock had been pledged as collateral 
111111 111 1' l1111el s extended pursuant to the stock purchase and loan 
"• 1111 111 •1 11 11d I hat $1.5 million was received by Overmyer pursuant 
II,, 1111111 11, q·CC'ITICllt 0111\fay 3 1967. 

· 111111t· of I li e e items of a ;ubstantial factual nature pertaining 
ti 1 1111 1 I ili ,·1d ion. o:f the Overmyer interests as permittees were 
I 1, ii In I 1111 Cornmission until June 30, 1967. Is that correct? 
I I t 11, '" 1, ,rn. [ don't know whether it is correct or not, but I will 
""'' l111 111 •,111•ryourquestion. -. 
I I I •' 1, ~• 1 . I want to know if that is correct, first. I have made 
11 11 1, I" 1 11', •s wil ich r equire up-ito-date ,informrution to be filed with 
t 1>1111111 ,i 1111 n 'H J) <'_cting the oapacitioo of the permittees. I have 

I I 11111 1!1· 111s which do bear on the applicant's caoacity which 
1 ii 111, I ii i 1 ·d Io I he Commission prior to June 1967 the date an 

11 11 11 "11 Ii l1·d for approval of the transfer of thes~ five permits 
I ( Ill )' 

I 1111 , 1 11 1 r. 1,ishman, I cannot answer to your specific alleo-a-
1 ,,, 1111 I 11 11 1 '1111. T would like the opportuni,ty ,to suggest to you 

1 I 1,1,, 111 11 1 n'specttoeacho:ftheseCP'sastatementwasfiled 
I I I I I, 111 1 ( '01111nnnications <;:)ommission along ,the lines-and 

"1 l , ll" !i 0111 liu t I am readmg one sample: 
1 1,,1 r .. 1111 d I lo p ll l'Cd for outside funds •and hrus just concluded ,ar-

1, 1, 1 Ii i r, • 11ft 111 additional financial resources being made avail-
"' 1111•lli-11ilo11 will be filed. 
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Mr. LISHMAN. vVe are familiar 'vYith that. 
Mr. DoRFNER. This is _prior to the date that you gave in 1bhe state­

ment that we had not notified them of any--
Mr._ L~sHJ\L~N. You are referring to your application for extensions 

for Crnc1m~ati, H~mston, and Sa~1 F_ran:cisco. Tha,t was a partial dis­
c~osure b~1,~ it vm? rn ,a _conte~t wh1ch_rnd1:atecl tha,t Overmyer was get­
trng adcht1onal financial asststance for l11mself to operate the stations. 
You read ,that in its context. Ko one told the FCC that he was in the 
market for a 1?~yer ,a_,nd, tl:erefore, was ,trying to keep these permits in 
a salable concl1t10n. I hat cl 1selosure ,,-as never made to the FCC in writ­
ing until J~me 30, 1967. _vVe ha,·e the files here. You had made your 
agreement rn March, pnor to June. By June 30 the deed had, been 
accomplished. · 

M~. DoRFNE~. I don't know it to be a faet, sir, but the ma-terial I vms 
readrng from 1s dated March '20, 19G7 aud is appended to the attach­
ment to the filing of form--

Mr. LISHMAN. ,Just a moment. Isn't that l day after the stock pur-
chase agreement had been executed? 

Mr. DoRFNER. It could be. I ,rnu]cl accept your ,·iews on that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. You gave me the elate, March '2D. 
Mr. DoRFNER. I certainly did. 
Mr. LISHMAN: 1Vhy didn't you disclose on March '2!) that you had 

already entered rnto a stock purchase agreement a loan agreement and 
a stock pledge agreement. 

Mr. DoRFNER. vVe filed an application in accordance with the reo-u-
lations just as soon-- b 

Mr. LISI-DiAN. 1Vhy didn't you disclose it to the Commission? 
Mr. DoRFNER. vVe did disclose it. 
Mr. L ISHMAN. You did not. 
Mr. DoRFNER. ,Ve filed it as quickly as we did. I would have to do 

some researching to determine it. 
1\fr. LISHMAN. Commission attention was oflicially brou<rht to this 

on .June 80, according to the record ,rn have. b 

Mr. DoRFKER. It was all done in accordance \Yith the advice of our 
counsel. 

M~·· Moss. Just a moment. Let me get that. 
1Vill you repeat the statement you just made? 
Mr. DomnrnR. r~ es. All onr filings as a matter of procedure and as 

a rnatter of practical correspondence are clone with the consultation 
an1 the advice of our counsel whose engagement is for the purpose of 
seemg that ,ve comply and conform ,..,.ith the rei:rulations and rules of 
the FCC. ~ 

_Mr. Moss. In other words, your counsel advi ses you on the '29th day 
of March that you file a request fo r an extension, folly aware that on 
the '28th day of March, the preceding day, you concluded an agree­
ment to sell? 

Mr. DoRFNER. Their advice "·as that that statement that said an 
appli~ation was being filed, "·ith concern to that, was on their advice; 
yes, Sll'. 

Mr. Moss. Thev did? 
Mr. DomwER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. OVERMYER. For the purpose of answering your question, may 

I try to tell you what happened, Mr. Lishman? 
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I I I I 11 \I I ' . '{ ('S. 

I 1 1l 11 1111, 1, Ii. I 11 the summer or early fall of 1966 we found that 
11 , 111 111 I rn1il rndor building our buildings was having financial 
1 Iii 111 \\ ' 11 11\' n , not a,rnre of the extent of the problem until about 

I I I ,ii 1111 • \'l':1 r. T ordered an audit made to determine the extent 
11 1, 111, ,I ,l, •111 ;11 1 ri 11µ; that period of time ,vhich ran from the summer 
I 1 1, 11111 ii 1111· 1Yi111er of January of 1967. During that period of 

, , , 1il 1tc l1•d :1. 1111mber of investment houses, Rhodes, the Du 
111 I '' 11 1'!1 -, 11 ill, Iii <> idea of finding private or public funds to assist 
____ j1 11 l l11w ll1 ('Sl' lelevision stations on the air. 
l 11 I , l,111 11ry ,1f J!)G7 we sold the OYerrnyer network. In ·March we 
1 I 11,l ,•d 111 is II g-n'<>ment to sell ,vith the A VC Corp. This is a rough 

1111 ,, ,,I' 1•1'(1 11l s. 
I , I .i 11 1 , ,'i . M 1·. Overmyer, ·was any ,Yritten record made of the 

11, 111 111 '{ ll'il 11 .\. VC pertaining to the sale or transfer of any of 
.. 11 l1 ·111 ·lio11 permits~ 
1h1 11\11 1,:1c vVe 'have a signed contract and various loan agree-
111 111 l1 111't' l>PPl-i- executed. 
I " 11 \ I , , . \\'it Ii respect to the negotiations themselves, you 

, 11, 11 r I I I 1· 11 rPeo rd? 
1 l I i: 111 1,: 1<. I do not. 
I 1 11 11 , N . I )o _yon lrnmv of anyone that has? 
1 II, 11 11 1 1rn . I do not. 
\1 11 \\ ' 110 n 1 rri ecl on the negotiations? 
I 11 I 11\1 \ l '.li . I did. 
\1 11 Ir I l11•n• was :-1 ,..,.ritten record vou would have it? 

1 l1 1 1111, ,-: Ii . Tl 1:tt is correct. • 
\l 11 • '1'111·11 I !i ll ans"·er to the second question would certainly 

II iii , 11 · 1s ,i11 st 11orccord. 
11 1111"11,, 1c :--,ir. I am only one-half of the negotiating team. The 

11 Ii· 11 I n 1ll'g-ot i:t ting, ~fr. Reichel. 
\ I 1 ,, \\ ' 11s t ii <>re any kind of record taken during the course of 
1>l1 ii lllll S! 

1 11, 111111m . No. 
I 1 11 1 , ..,_ . \Vlrnl. "·as the consideration for the stock purchase 

f 11111 ii i I 
I 1 1 , , 111111 , ,c ,\ s ] recollect it ,vas our out-of-pocket expenditures, 

11 , ,.•,I .' I 111illi o11. 
I I I 1 11 11 , " . I> i, I the figure of $1,131,000 odd represent your out-

1, I " Jll'll. 'l ' S ! 
1 h, 1 1111 i: . ,\hsolntely not. ~fost certai.nly not. It was much 
IL , 11 l li 11 1. I ll'()J li <l<>stimatenotlessthan$'2million. 
I , 1111 1 · \\ ' l, _y <lic1n't you press for the $'2 million? 
1 1 1 1 11 ,111. '1 ' 1, nl. is ,t very good question. I wish I could give you 
I I I rit•d to convince my fo1ks we should go in for a 
I 
I 1 11 11 , \ 1·,•11 't you the sole owner of all the stock in the Over-
I I 1, I 
1 • , 1 1 1 11 , 'l'l1 nf. is correct, I am. I could have forced the issue 
I 111 I , j., ii '1'l11• lirst advice we had was to be as conservative 
111111 1l11 1111'01'111:ition as possible. vVe attempted to do that. 
I 1 , , , \\ !1 111. 11·:ts the considerat ion underlying the option 

I I l11 ' II Jll' l 'i' l ' II(? 
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Mr. OVERMYER. It was part of the overall negotiations. It was some­
thing that we gave up to make the total deal. It is certainly not 
something we wanted to o-ive up. vVe wanted to stay in television and 
continue our interest in this field. I have been in the communications 
business since the early 1960's. Even though we had problems we didn't 
want to get out. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it a fact that the agreement provided that the 
maximum option price for the 20-percent stock interest was $3 million? 

Mr. OvERMYER. There is a formula which permits them durino-, I 
believe the fourth year, to figure 1 percent at a figure which is five 
times the gross sales, add the quick assets, subtract the debt and· •-
divided by 20 percent with a maximum of $3 million. " 

Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't i,t a fact under the formula used in that option 
the price is bound to be $3 million? 

Mr. OVERl\fYER. Absolutely not. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it correct that two methods are provided for 

computing the price of the option? 
M:r. OVERMYER. I believe that is correct, sir. It depends on whether 

or not--
Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't one method that the price shall be the following 

share of the total broadcast revenues for the several markets as com­
puted by the FCC, San Francisco, 3 percent, Houston, 5 percent, 
Atlanta 5 percent, Cincinnati 8 percent, Pittsburgh 8 percent. 

Now isn't it correct that under that method the price would have 
been nearer $5 million? Using the percentage figure that you used, 
of.the broadcast revenues in th?se markets, isn't it a fact at that time, 
usmg those percentages the price would have been $5,230,000? 

Mr: OvERl\IYER. That could well be. But I, as I understand the deal 
we made, correct me if I am saying something I should not, but as I 
understand the deal I made that FCC method of calculating the o-ross 
sales by market only comes into play if the station isn't on the air. 

As a matter of fact, if the station is on the air they have to be 
doing a gross volume of business in excess of $3 million annually and 
have an excess of quick assets over debt for us to get $3 million. If 
you ask me to speculate, and I am sure you are not--

Mr. LISHMAN. As I said, there were two methods of arriving at 
this $3 million figure. Did you realize that under method one that 
you have just testified to that the formula used there would be that 
A VC estimated the gross receipts for the first year of operation at 
$3,920,000? , 

Mr. OVERMYER. I don't know what their estimates are, Mr. Lishman. 
I didn't prepare them. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Under that first method the price was to be amount 
of the gross receipts of the TV companies for 12 months preceding 
the date of purchase, provided the station has been operating at least 
112 hours a week for 18 months preceding elate of purchase. 

Then if the station does not qualify by that method, then you utilized 
the second method calling for a percentage of total broadcast revenues. 

Mr. OVERMYER. If the station wasn't on the air--
Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it correct under either one of these methods there 

is practically no possibility of the price being less than $3 million? 
Mr. OVERMYER. No, sir, I don't agree with you. I think there is a very 

good chance that the price would be less than $3 million. I didn't want 

, 111 o1pt.ion in the first place, but we are stuck with what we have 
11 1, I• d l'or. 
I , I , 11 1 1 ~• ,\ N". Here you have the transferee estimating the gross 

1,1 l11r Ilic first year of operation at $3,920,000. Gross receipts 
11 I ii 111 ii d, •noase in succeeding years. 
1 , 1 11 , 1r ~, nm. If those are his estimates, I don't think I should 

1111111 1,t 1111 t.hetn. 
1 1 I. 11111 M "N. Do you think it is at all possible that the statio~s 

1 I ,I I 11 1111 Lil c air 112 hours a week for 18 months? Where does this 
I l,11111 11. ll'eekfigurecomefrom? 

I 1 , II 1,:ic M nm. I am confident it was a formula calculated by our 
1111'\ 't. 

11 I ,1 11 , "N. Do you know any UHF station in the United States 
11 1111 , 1 ,1r been on the air 112 hours a week? 

I 1 , 11 1 1< ~1 YER. I think ours in Toledo is on the air almost that long. 
1 •111 +w Lo try to answer that first question, if I may. 

\\, 1,111·,·li1~scd Overmyer Communications from the gentleman by 
, 1 111111 nl' 'herrill Corwin some 3 or 4 years ago, on the same 
11111d I nr sirhilar formula and I think this is how this formula got 
111, ii 1'1loda.y. 

11 I ,11-1 11 ~,AN.That formula went through the FCC so you thought 
I , ,,,, 11011 Id cro through, too, isn't that about it? 

1, 1111 1<MY1m. No, sir. I wouldn't want to say that, no. 
11 I , 11 ~,AN.I have no further questions. 

\ 1, ,11H. Mr. Keith, do you have any questions? 
h 1 1 ·1· 11. I would like a clarification. ,vhat we are doing here, 

, it, 1s ac ·mnulating the background information so that we can 
, 11111r11 i11Lclligently the FCC's action. Their judgment in granting 
I , , 11 11 dC\ pended on the evidence submitted to them and kept cur­

' I Intl , lli cy could approve or disapprove your extension request. 
, 11 ,lid _your initial interest in the several enterprises that are con­
" ,I "" y,111r combined profit statement begin and on what date did 

I 11 '111 11 '11 f il('JD? 
1 , I h 1 1r ,, Y ER. I guess we had better start in the beginning if you 
I I I II I 1111'<' I hnt information, sir. I started in public warehousing 

, 1111 111 Toledo, Ohio, on October 1, 1947. My dad and my grand-
11111 1 1111d li<1'n in this line of business back to 1870, 1880, or there­
I ,111 111 I lit' sn me city. About 1954 we were operating in seven towns 

1 "I 11111 Mississippi: Cleveland, Tampa, Fla., Jacksonville, At­
I 1111 , , l1 •111pliis, and Newark, N.J. We kept on growing so today in that 

11 , 11111 r II n'a we own or lease, having constructed 350 buildings in 
111 , 11 r l1Pincr under construction, in this country and in Canada. 

\ 1 11111• 1·1 t11• 11. 1tain of public warehouse facilities. As to my interest 
11 , 111v, 11,i s goes back to the mid-50 period, I couldn't give you the 

1 1 ,, 11 · \V<1 operate a company called the D. H. Overmyer Truck-
' " , 11 I Ii(' It leased equipment to various other interests, and my 

111 , 1111 q11111 y today, which is now called Intermodel Systems 
11, 1,, 1111·., l<'ascs all kinds of equipment all over the United States. 

I 11, 11 I 111111 11 Itel her it does in Canada or not. 
1 1 1 I II I ,1111 I in~ field, Toledo has not had a new bank for 30-some 
11 11, 1,1 _yH1•lf nnd a bunch 0£ fellows started a national bank 
I II I 

1 , 1 .. 111, 1 11 ,1f eommunications, to be as specific as I might, I became 
, , , I 111 1•111 n munications through the purchase of ownership of 
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a small newspaper in To]edo. I think our top circulation at one time 
was about 10,000. 

From ~his, perhaps even _prior to it, I became interested crenerallv in 
c~nnmumcatlons. ·we applied first for-as I lived in Totdo at that 
time-for a UHF station there channel 79 

~r. KEITH. Did yonr fathe~- join you in the acquisition of that 
stat10n? 

Mr. OvERMYE!t. No; he did not. He passed away in Hl60. This ,ms 
s~bsequent to his ''.eat!1. My appJicati?n actually° was in early 1963. 
\\ e commenced thmkmg- about workmg on it in 1DG2. "\Ve subse­
quently were granted a license. 

"\Ve: bu_ilt up a television station operation there that has b~en on 
the air srnce May 3, 1965-excuse me, 19G6. \Ve had been on the air 
2 years. "\Ve have a very high tower. "\Ve provide 2 million several 
hundred thousand ,rnJts of radiated po,ver and crenerally show net\rnrk 
programs. 0 

Toledo is the largest two VHF-TV station market in the United 
States. }Ve are the "U" station there, the third ,::tation in the market. 

J\;1:. l\.EITH. Has ~hat ~tation been an ontsbndingly successful one? 
M1. QVEncVIYER. No,_sir. It has Jost a lot of money. 
Mr. h.EITH. You ~mlt a large tower? 
Mr. OVERMYER. Big tower and big pmver, big losses. 
Mr. KEITH. You spent more than you received~ 
Mr. OvERJWYER. By golly, we sure did. 
J\'.Ir. KEITf· What I am trying to do is discover the grounds on 

wluch the ] CC concluded you could do more of the same or chancre 
~p~~- h 

~fr. OvERMYER. I guess most ne,Ycomers in the field feel thev are 
gorn;g to make a lot of changes and believe we have lots of new ideas. 
I thmk ,ve thonght we had our share of both. I will try to cret into this 
as I go along with this little story. 0 

In Toledo we lost_$1.3 million. Anyway, ,ve became interested i.n this 
field. My warehousmg b:lSiness ,vas growing very rapidly. Our pros­
pects ,vere excellent. I hired Mr. Adams after interviewing him, and 
two other gentlemen. He came to work with ns in Toledo in June 1964. 
He never really ca:ne, he moved to New York because we were in 
tt!rn process of movmg our headquarters office to New York ,at that 
nne. 

He was hired on the basis that he would look into UHF television 
and other areas of the communications field and vrn would formulate 
a program and plan to develop a communications business with the 
help and the strength of the ,rnrehouse company behind it. 

1Ve looked at V's. I remember one of our coi1sultants was a youncr 
Jady by the name of Sunny Miller who ,vent out to D ouo·las Ariz t~ 
look _at a Y there. We ultiinately 1~ade a policy decision to attemp0t to 
acqmre, either throngh purchase or grant, UHF sbltions in major mar­
kets were we would be the fourth station in that market. That is the 
reason that w~ so~1ght _and_ secured construction permits for the cities 
of .Atlanta, Cu~cmnah_, P~ttsb\1rgh, San Francisco, and Houston. 

:we_als? put rn appJicn;tions 1~1 Dallas which we withdrew; an ap­
phcatrnn m Stamford which I thmk ,ve dropped. 
er In 1964 and 1_965 we were _in the proce~s of getting everything to 
,:,et the new stat10ns on the air. 1V e committed ourselves during that 

period of time to total expenditures of about $1.8 million. Mr. Adams 
IP~t and Mr. Bryan came in and took over, and during 1966 we com-
1111 tted ourselves to ·additional total expenditures of about $8 million. 

..'\.t the time we sold these stations to A VC, San Francisco could have 
;.:-o ne on the air in our opinion "·ithin 2 weeks. The substantial work was 
done. Cincinnati perhaps "·as ,vell on the ,my. I had a chat with the 
.\. VG_ folks the other clay and I found that in Hery case they had used 
I li e sites we had selected and I belieYe in all cases but one they had 
11 sed the studio facilities "-e selected. So we advanced their gettiiw the 
,;tations on the air substantially. "" 

-·- Nobody has asked me what my intentions were but I want you to 
know because I think you are ent itled to know. "\Ve nm·er, until we ran 
i11to trouble, had any desire or any idea or any ,vi.sh to sell any of these 
1-, h, tions. "\Ve _bought them; "-e sol cl for a single purpose of putting 
I It em on the air. 

As a part of that purpose "·e tried to get off the ground a fourth net­
,,·ork with the idea of pro,·icling ne,,- outstandino- procrraming both 
I. . r 1, . d cl ' , ,.., _,.., nr o~r L s, m epeh ent Vs, such otner users as were gomg to come on 
lhemr. ,', 

For my judgment for a UHF to be successful it will have to find 
tH.'W areas of progrnming because it is tough enough to get an audience, 
let alone to get an attentive, repetitive one ·without something interest­
i 11g· for them to watch. 

':l\fr. KEITH. You ha Ye been talking about your hard times and yet 
your financial statement shmvs total assets of $10 million, in 1965 $21,­
~:50,000, and in 1966 almost $96 million in assets. 

Mr. OvERlliYER. That is on the earnings. 
Mr. KEITH. 'Well, if you gross $70 million in a year, as is shown 

l1c•re, how do you account for it? 
Mr. OVERMYER. I don't believe "-e ever made $70 million in 1 year. 

I . ·n re wish we had. \Ve had asset growth but that isn't-I am certainly 
11nt :m accountant but that is not a net worth or earnings. vVe increased 
n11r total assets but we also increased our total liabilities. vVe didn't in­
<Tt'ase them $70 million but we didn't--

Mr. KEITH. Let us take the surplus. It goes from $2 million in 1964 
Io $5 million in Hl65, to $14.3 million in 1966. 

What is the trick? 
Mr. OVERMYER. I don't think there was any trick at all. 
Mr. KEITH. I say that a little flippantly. I have been in Congress 

10 years and my net worth is less than it was when I came here. My 
1•11 rnings have increased but my net worth has gone down.. Your earn­
i 11g-s have decreased but your net worth has increased. 

l\fr. OvEHlliYER. Let me try this point, if I might. 
Mr. KEITH. In making its decision, the FCC must have been guided 

I ,y thoughts along the lines : "This fellow made all this money, he man-
11µ:t•s warehouses and does very well." 

. Mr. Ov1mMYE~. I would hope that they would say that but the secret 
1d our growth 1s that we cleYeloped and constructed an economical, 
111!1 1sual building, performing physical distribution services country­
,, 1de that had not been performed on that scale or in that manner here­
I 11 l'ore. vVe were able to sell this idea to major lenders in the United 
~I ates. I think we have 40 or 50 major insurance companies that have 
111 I rnnced funds to construct these buildings on first mortga.ges. If 



98 99

there is a gimmick, or secret, this is what we have done. The rentals in 
those buildings are perhaps 60 percent higher than they were 5 years 
ago, because we have been able to develop a very unique service. 

Mr. KEITH. I am a country boy. 
Mr. OVERMYER. Me too. 
Mr. KEITH. And I am confused. You were able to convince the insur­

~nce compan~e~-and I assume you mean life insurance companies­
m whose policies most of my reserves are invested and they have 
loaned you $70 million ! ' 

Mr. OVERMYER. A good bit mo~e tha!l that. I was going to try to get 
you the current figure. Substantially m excess of a hundred million 
dollars. " 

I don't have the exact figure in front of me. 
Mr. ~EIT_H. You apl?arentl.y have enough expertise to satisfy their 

ecor_10nnsts m tl~a.t particular f1eld, but you haven't clone too well in the 
rad10 and televis10_n field as yet. I a;ssun~e you though_t _you could and 
honestly were lookmg fo_r a way to diversify your act1v1ties. 

Mr. OVERMYER. That is a true statement, sir; yes. 
Mr. KEITH. In all the years I have been in the life insurance business 

I haven't sold a total of $18 million of life insurance. I have now met a 
single individual owning that amount of insurance. I know it must be 
on a term basis without cash value. 
. Mr. _Ov_ERMYER. We hav~n't. been in the position of being able to en­
Joy bmldmg up cash value m llfe insurance. 

Mr. KEITH. I have no further questions today. I will have some to-
morrow for the FCC. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Van Deerlin. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. No questions, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Dingell. 
Mr. DINGELL. No questions, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Moss. Gentlemen, you are excused at this time. I want to im­

pres~ upon y~u the urgency of the committee for the requests of you 
for mformation, that we expect the information to be supplied 
promptly. 

Now I will call to the witness stand Robert F. Adams and Robert 
L.Bryan. 

Mr. q-AGUINE. Mr. Chairman, arn they excused, or do you wish them 
toremam? 

Mr: Moss. Mr. ~ishman, do you have any further requirement for 
the witnesses that Just appeared before the committee? 

Mr. LISHMAN. No, sir. 
Mr. Moss. They are excused. 
Mr. Van Deerli11. 
Mr. VAN DE_ERLIN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

. We gave a little more attention this morning to Mr. Adams than we 
~id to Mr: Bryan. It s~ems to me that Mr. Bryan might well be ques­
t10ned a little further m regard to the culmination of his association 
with the Overmyer interest. 

Mr. Bryan, you did leave the employ of Mr. Overmyer. About how 
long did you serve with him? 

FURTHER TESTIMONY OF ROBERT F. AD'AMS AND ROBERT L. BRYAN 

Mr. BRYAN. From approximately February to December 9, 1966. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. You testified this morning that you were very 

pleased and encouraged by the amount of money tha~ apparently ~as 
I> ,jug made available to you to hire good t3:lent, wh1c~ m your view 
g;tve o-ood promise of success in the broadcast111g enterpnse? 

1\-:fr~BRYAN. Yes. sir. 
Mr. VAN DEERr,'rn. What prompted you to sever your connection? 
Mr. BRYAN. I don't know. I thought I was doing a --- of a job. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. They were severed from you? 
Mr.BRYAN. Yes,sir. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. It is difficult to understand with the apparent 

linancial commitments of these broadcasting enterprises why so little 
1lr' tua1Jy happened. 

Now, we had testimony this _morning t~at t_he~e wa~ a m_atter of 
sit e acquisition for the telecastmg tower 111 Crncmnat~, a difference 
of opinion as to what the property was wor~h. I believe you, Mr. 
/\ dams, testified that-.there had been an appraisal at about $100,000, 
t liat the only firm offer that was approved by your employer was 
$:I0,000. Was that site finally acquired? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. As I understand, it was . 
Mr. BRYAN. Yes; it was, sir. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. What price was finally paid? 
Mr. BRYAN. I am not sure. It was in the vicinity of $50,000 to 

$Mi.000. No more than $55,000. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. This was after how much delay i 
Mr. BRYAN. One of the problems we encountered there was an engi­

ll<'ering problem, where to position the anchor pads for the guys. 
\V hen that was determined, then estimates had to be secured to get up 
to Lhe mountaintop. This led to, I would say, 2 or 3 months' n~go-
1 iations. The price did not seem, if I remember correctly, that_ big a 
point during these negotiations. "\Ve had pretty well settled m,_the 
vicinity of $50,000 to $55,000 that was acceptable to Rose, I beneve 
1 li(l name of the man who owned the property. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. There wasn't any question of your ability to 
rornmit a larger amount during your tenure, at leas~? . 

.Mr. BRYAN. I don't remember a larger amount bemg mentioned. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Larger than the $30,000, which is what Mr. 

Overmyer apparently told Mr. Ad~ms? . . 
Mr. BRYAN. There is no question m my mmd that I could commit 

111ore than that. I had never heard the $30,000 mentioned before until 
today. 

:\fr. VAN DEERLIN. In your opinion, Mr. Bryan, why did nothing 
1111 ppen then? Why, after you were able to buy the site, did you not 
I II ko some action and put the station on the air? 

Mr. BRYAN. About this time tight money became the situation, and 
"11 rould not get a loan commitment in Cmcinnati to go ahead. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Did Mr. Overmyer indicate to you that he had 
, ,111 backup financing th_at could be made available?. 

1\1 ,·. BRYAN. Yes; and 111 fact I had gone ahead with some road con­
t 1·11 -tion going up to the mountaintop and that was stopped. I had a 

111111 ~mitter building placed on top of Bald Knob. When the money 
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became tight we ,vere told to cease and desist and hold on until we had 
a bank commitment. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Did you find, Mr. Bryan, that the estimates that 
had been made by your predecessor in regard to the money required for 
operating the stution for the first year were going to have to be revised? 

Mr. _BRYAN. I did revise them quite drastically upward, as far as 
operatmg expenses are concerned; yes. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Did you see this as a result of absolute necessity 
for operating the station in a market like that? 

Mr. BRYAN. Yes. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. 1Yas there any expression of discomfort by your 

many employers? "-
Mr. BRYAN. Yes; in fact my chief operations man and Mr. Dorfner 

and I spent many hours trying to r evise them down and it just could 
not be done, and run a television station. I believe my operating 
expenses were about $800,000 or $900,000, as opposed to $400,000 or 
$500,000. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIX. I assume that what you had in mind when you 
revised the expense upward was what the realistic cost of acceptable 
programing would be in a sophisticated market? 

Mr. BRYAN. Right. One of the things we were really trying to do was 
become a community-involved station, not necessarily more news but 
just being the voice of that community. 1Ve needed people to do this. 
1Ve decided ,Ye. would have _to do a lot of remote programing, live 
remote programrng, and that is very, very expensive. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Just for engineering charges alone? 
Mr. DRYAX. Right. 1Y e had contracted for film that had been higher 

than budgeted, for in the original budget, some estimates. I had gone 
ahead and purchased, committed. 

Mr. VAN DEJrnLIN. You had every expectation of being the manager 
of a going television property? 

Mr. BRYAN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Mr. Adams, when you prepared these estimates 

of the cost of operating the television station in a major market, had 
you been given any ceiling under which you had to remain, within the 
bounds of which estimate you had to remain? vV ere vou told don't go 
over a certain figure? • 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. The cash commitments of those loans, the com­
mitment letters, the amount of money that vrnuld be required, the 
amount of capital that would be required ,vas discussed, was always 
di_scussed with Mr. Overmyer. Mr. Overmyer always discussed that 
with me and often would suggest it was too high an operating cost in 
his opinion. I£ I did run the station could I operate for less. 

Here again his operating philosophy ,1·ould range from a thousand 
dollars upward. 

Mr. VAN D1mRLIN. vVhich prompted your resignation ultirnat:ely, 
and later Mr. Bryan's departure perhaps for otlier reasons. Did either 
of you ever get the idea that there was some stalling in the top echelon 
of the operation, that there was a desire not to go on the air? 

Mr. RoBERT ADAMS. I ,ms under the impression directly that that 
was so. 

I would say if there was stalling I think Mr. Overmyer testified 
earlier when you first get in the water you test the water to see how 

lUl 

ii. feels. I don't think Mr. Overmyer had looked at a piec1~ of la1(d 
ll'litch ·was not appropriate for wareho_using as Bn:ld Mo~m tam wa.s ,m 
Cincinnati for a hundred thousand or $8q,qoo. I th_mk part of th_e ea:ly 
1·omplications, the delays, ~1is final de~JSIOHS, m1g)1t hav~ very ,,ell 
l1l'en his realization that tlns was a b1:smess that_ did.not ;nclude any 
11ien the kind o-f wa.o·es tbat ,varehonsmg had, thmgs that ne h ad bee1 
IIC'CL{stomed to, $65 for a secretary. The price of our l:rnd, as I recal , 
:10 rrcres was around $30,000 in Toledo. . . _ 

Here was 50 acres in Toledo for $31,000 it_ \Yas, h ere is ;_) acres on 
:1 horrible bald piece of mountaintop which is reall y no goo~ e~cept 
for that tower, and a hundred thousand ~lollars, and other ~earches 
I hat we went through, was a rud~ a;wakemn~. . . . _ . 

P·irt of my problem was not bem~ successful m convmcmg him that 
11·e had o-ood prices for some of thBse things. B_ack <:omes_ the matter 
ol' the operating_philosophy. In thatrespect he is the president and a 
li 1mdred percent owner of the stock. I am an employee .. 

Mr. VxN" DEERLIN. Of course, what the FCC had to Jndge was _not 
how o-ood a warehouseman he is, but how well he could operate m a 

"" rnry different field. . _ · } 
:Mr. RcmERT ADAMS. You see, aga1~1, wh~n ~fr. Hrym~ came m, rn 

,·; ime in at a later date, '2, or 3 montl:is followmg the l1ate ~nat I lef~,_the 
1,11d of Decen:iber. It is not impossible to operat~ a stauon, telev.,1si~n, 
l J JlF, independent television, for ~10,000 or $fa,000 a_ month~ Nov, I 
111n not going to say this is an ultimate, I am ;10t g:01~1g t? :o~y 3:s. a 
J)l'(mdcaster this is what I would recmnmend. _J<,ve~·ythrn_g 1s 1elat1ve. 
J<:very city is different. vVho i~ your /omp_ebtor_ is as, 1;:1P01_-tan~ as 
J,ow many will be your competitors. 1here 1s a l~ttl e Sla,:01: m ~![~1s­
keg-on, Mich., on the air right !1ow. Tl:e only s!at10.17,_l;_nt i t /s cmered 
j 11 that city by three_ VHF stations. Jt is operatrng I 01 $11,4-00 a month 
I nc1ay and it is makmg money. _ _ ·fi i , 

\_o-•tin while I mio-bt suo-o-est that we should opernte at ve, s.x 
lii;nd~·ed' thousand 0 ~ a million dollars, l'lfr. Overmyer, o~ the other 
!,and, had every r:eason and, of course, had t.:ie JH':l~oµ;i-11 : ".e to sar, 
11'<'11 , the cost of it should not exceed 200 or 000 or ,)00, ,1 11d can 1t 
I 1(', done. Yes anything can be done.. . . . 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. v-Vhen the applications for letters <?f credit went 
,,111-, over your signature, the information_ that they c_011,hi_rned 1:robabl~ 
didn't go as far as you would have liked m estmutmg t Le needs 

i'nr credit. . _ , 2 
Mr. ROBERT AnAnIS. The credit letters , 
Mr. VAN DEERLIK. Yes. . 9 
i\lf r. RommT ADAMS. You mean crecht letters from the bank , 
i\fr. VAN DEBRLIN. Yes. , . 
:\fr. ROBERT An,urs. I don·t believe I understanc~. . 
:\[r. VAN DEimLIN. You pres1~n:ably were not makmg_t l: e fn;al deci-

iims on ascertaining or dete1111rnmg what your i:eecls "ere. 1' _ou may 
J1,1 ve ascertained them; but what y_ou went after m the ,ny o-f money 
,.1111 Jcln't have been enough to satisfy your knowledge of \\hat was 
111·\'ded: right? . 

i\fr. RonERT ADAMS. I would have liked to hav~ had more 1'.J<?ney, 
11,,-;; :t considerable amount mo1;e_ money. Con_s1 derabl~ add1t10!1al 

· h of tlie 1,articular cities for each o:f the stations. I thmk 1,1011eys 111 eac ' . · - " · . - _ _ -· t 
1 J11 i need for that money is toda.y becommg more and mm e apparen , 
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as I believe.~r. Dorfner testified, they have been on 2 years and they 
had $1.3 million loss. You can very quickly see that that is $650,000 
on the average per year that they have lost. So the total operating 
expense over and above that has been considerable, I would just 
roughly guess on top of that he spent another $1 million. So they 
probably operated 2 years and he avera<Yed a million and a quarter 
dollars a year operating, total. 0 

Mr. V ~N DEERLIN. Mr. Bryan, after your very happy beginning at 
what pomt did you begin to think that there were reasons other than 
your own management that might---

Mr. BRYAN. It is hard_ to put a definite date on that. I had feJt 
that Mr. Overm_yer had given me _a go-ahead to c~mmit for film prod­
uct, f~r future hlms, for programrng. On that basis, I went ahead and 
committ~d the company. I guess it was in excess of about $3 million 
to my mmd valuable property, first-run features in all of our markets 
and _some time about October or November I was told to stop pur~ 
chasmg, and attempt to renegotiate the contractual terms. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. For a lower price? 
Mr. BRY~N. Not necessarily a lower price. Yes; in some instances, 

a lower pnce. Extend the term, and I managed to do that in all in­
stances. I was given the date at that time in November by Ollie Trez 
through Mr. Overmyer that everything had to be completed by 
December 9. It was, and so was I. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. What did you assume was the reason for the 
orders to retrench? 

Mr. BRYAN. We had expected lines of credit in Cincinnati that 
didn'_t co:ne ~hrough. San Francisco came through, but a little late. 
N othmg m Pittsburgh and Atlanta. In the overall picture we weren't 
able to secure the lines of credit that were necessary. We'just had to 
cut down until we could get going again. 

The CHAIRMAN. Does the gentleman have another question to ask? 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. I have here, dated January 19, 1967, Mr. Adams 

a document headed_ "_Overmy~r C~rre1;t ;'V Status," and a separat~ 
paragraph summarizmg the s1tuat10n m Toledo, San Francisco Cin-
cinnati, Pittsburgh, Atlanta, and Rosenberg, Tex. ' 

Do you recognize this document a;s something you prepared? 
Mr. ROBERT ADAMS. What was that date? 
~fr. VAN DEERLIN. January 19, 1967. Would you like to take a look 

at 1t? 
Mr. RommT ADAMS. Y cs, sir; that is my work. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. In what capacity were you then serving, Mr. 

Adams? 
Mr. Ro1;mnT _ADAMS. I had my own consulting company, talking to 

broa_dcastrng md~stry management, since January 1966, right im­
me~1ately_ followmg my departure from the Overmyer company. 
Th1_s particular memorandum, or the set of facts and figures referred 
to,. 1s a set of figures that I prepared in January 1967 -that were my 
estimates. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. On the state of readiness of the various projects? 
Mr. ROBE~T ADAMS. Yes. I was consultant for several companies. Un­

der the retamer that I received, I am under obligation to such com­
panies to report situations I think might be viable ones. As such I 
prepared this for a client with the thought that perhaps they would 

J.Vu 

be interested in entertaining negotiations with Overmyer companies 
for the acquisition. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. I think, Mr. Chairman, this should be admitted 
into the record without identifying for whom it was prepared, of 
course, because it does contain rather specific information. For exam­
ple, this is in January 1967: 

'I.'ower footings in, Stainless won't deliver until payment from Overmyer. Stain­
lc~s also built PHtsburgh tower which Overmyer has not yet paid for. He said 
he paid for the Cincinnati tower which was built after Pittsburgh which Stain­
h'ss supplied ,toward unpaid Pittsburgh bill. 

-Rosenberg, nothing has been done here. Atlanta, land not tied down yet. 

Al] this seems to me t o indicate that, very near the time of planned 
<livestiture, on a great many of the projects they were hardly nearer 
t,han thev had been 2 vears before. 

The 0HAIRMAN. That might be pertinent in the record. ·without 
objection we will place it in the record. 

( The document referred to appears in the appendix; see item 15, 
p. 539.) , 

The CHAIRMAN. Are there any further questions of these witnesses i 
If not, you may stand aside. 
Our next two witnesses, Mr. Kinsley and Mr. Reichel. Do you want 

them both at the same time? 
Mr. LISHMAN. No; I think Mr. Kinsley first and then Mr. Reichel. 

T shall be very brief. 
The C:HAIRMAN. Will you raise your right hand? 
Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are about 

to give before this subcommittee is the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth, so help you God? 

Mr. KINSLEY. I do. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Lishman. 

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE KINSLEY, FORMER CONTROLLER, 
OVERMYER CO. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Kinsley, were you formerly employed as con-
t,roller for the Overmyer Co.? 

Mr. KINSLEY. Yes. 
Mr. LISHMAN. For what period? 
Mr. KINSLEY. The middle of August 1964 to November 19, 1966. 
Mr. LISHMAN. What were your duties as controller? 
Mr. KINSLEY. I wasn't controller immediately. I became con­

t.roller I think around February 1965. I originally was the assistant 
controller. In that capacity 1as controller I was responsible for 
maintenance of all the books and records of all the Overmyer com­
panies and issuance and preparation of financial statements and var­
ious reports to management. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did you spend any time on the activity of the Toledo, 
() hio station? 

Mr. KINSLEY. I did, but not any material amount. What I did 
was I had an accounting supervisor in charge of the communications 
i,croup of companies who did most of the actual accounting work. I 
nntered into consultations with Mr. Dorfner to devise a chart of 
1l counts. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did you have a difference of opinion with Mr. Over­
myer or Mr. Byrnes regarding acceptable a·ccounting procedures? 
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Mr. K1xsLEY. ~t ':·asn 't a disagreement over acceptable accounting 
procedur~s or prmc1ples. I agreed basically with the principle that 
was used m the ,Yarehouse company for presentation of financial state­
ments ~ut there c:arne a poi11t where I clidn 't agree as to the degree that 
they rn 1ght_be _a<lopted. In other ,yorcls, it was my own personal opinion 
that the pnnc1ple \Yas correct hut the ,va.v it ,...-as beino· applied rnio-ht 

b I . J b b 
not e. say m ight not be, because to my knmYledo-e nothino- was done. 

Mr. LISHMAN. ,v ere you fearful th11t at some time projected costs 
would be used as actual costs'? 

Mr. KINSLEY. I clou't know whether I understand the question but 
the books and rec~rcls were kept on an ac~ual basis with the exception,of 
the rnal estate wluch we booked at appraised valuation. But projectioi1s 
as such -would not be entered into the books. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Are you familiar with the balance sheets that were 
submitted to the FCC in 1964 and 1965 ? 

Mr. KrxsLEY. I don't believe so, no. 
Mr. I-;_ISHMAN. ~Vhen did you leave the Overmyer Co? 
Mr. hINSLEY. November 19, 1966. 
¥r. LISHMAN. I haven't any further questions. 
1he CHAIRiHAN. Any questions of the panel? 
Mr. Moss. Just one. 
The CI-IAIR:IIAN. l\fr. 1\1:oss. 
Mr. Moss. Dur~ng your tenure as c~ntroller, to your knowledge, 

was any value assigned to the construction permits? 
Mr. KrnsLEY. Do you mean for the intrinsic value? 
Mr. Moss. Yes. 
Mr. KINSLEY. The only thing to my knowledge that would be re­

corc!ed on the books would be actual expenditures made by the com­
pames. 

Mr. Moss. Just actual expenditures? 
Mr. KINSLEY. Yes. 
J\fr. Moss. Actual values? 
Mr. KIN~LJ<cY. Right, ~ctual values as they say on the warehouse 

company with the except10n of the appraised valuation. 
Mr. Moss. On the warehouse? 
Mr. KINSLEY. Yes. Th~ communications company as far as I know 

would be actu_al expenditures plus--
. ¥r. M?ss. D,cl you ha,'.e responsibility for_ the_ recordkeeping, s11per­

VISmg of the recorclkeeprng o_f the cornmumcatrnns companies? 
Mr. KINSLEY. Y ~s, up until approximately I think September or 

October _of ~966. Then a _controller was appointed specifically for the 
commu111cat10ns companies. 

Mr. Moss. At that time how many were operating·? 
Mr. KINSLEY. ,fost Toledo, which is May 1, 1966~ 
Mr. Moss. vVas that all handled out of New York or handled out 

of Toledo? " There were you headquartered? 
_M1~. KINsu:Y· vVe \Yere headqnarterecl in New York. ,,ye had cer­

tam m-format10n funneled from Toledo ,...-hich ,Yas recorded in New 
York. 

~fr. Moss. }Vas the activity of tl:at _contr?ller primarily confined 
to Tol_edo? vv a~ there any part of his tune dl!'ected to the other con­
struct10n permits? 

Mr. KINSLEY. That I couldn't specifically answer. I do lmow that 
Ii is responsibility was for all the communications companies. How he 
spent his time I don't know. 

Mr. Moss. Thank you. 
The CHAIRMAN. Any further questions? 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. :bo I understand it was you who prepared the 

estimates of the percentage of personnel tin:e? . 
Mr. KINSLEY. No, sir. I left the company m November. Tlus was 

prepared in 1967, I believe. . . . 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Did you have any chscuss10ns concernmg those 

1· l imates '? 
Mr. KINSLEY. No, sir. · 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRMAN. If there are no further questions, you may be 

('xcused. 
Mr. KINSLEY: Thank you. . . . . 
The CHAIRMAN. qur next witness is Frank H . Reichel, Jr., presi­

dent of the A VC CQrp. 
Will you raise yo11r right ha1;1d? . 
Do you solemnly swear or affll'm that the testimony you are about 

Io give before this subcommittee is the truth, the whole truth, and 
11ol hing but the truth, so help you God? 

Mr. REICHEL. I do. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. REICHEL. I ,vonlcl like to introduce my counsel, Thomas Dowd. 
The CHAIRMAN. vVill you identify yourself for the record? 

TESTIMONY OF FRANK H. REICHEL, JR., PRESIDENT, A VC CORP. ; 
ACCOMPANIED BY COUNSEL, THOMAS DOWD 

Mr. REICHEL. Frank I-I. Reichel, Jr., president of A VC Corp. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you participate in the negotiations for the rur­

c· liase of five construction permits from the Overmyer Commurnca-
1 io ns Co.? 

,\[r. REICHEL. Yes, sir; I did. . . _. 
Mr. L:i;sHMAN. At what time did you begm these negotrnt10ns? 
Mr. REICHEL. Sometime in March . 
.\fr. LISI-IMAN. March of what year? 
.\Ir. REICHEL. March of 1967 . 
. \fr. LIST-IMA~. 1Vhen were these negotiations consummated? 
,\fr. REICHEL. The purchase agreement was c~ated l\Iareh 28. Th:. 

I i11 1e when we had established the parameters m1ght have been 4 too 
cl :1ys prior to that. . . . 

Mr. LISHMAN. In other words, m 4 weeks of negotiations Y<?U ':-ent 
11ilo an arrano·ement whereby the United States Commumcat10ns 
< ',, rp., a wholly owned suhsicl1ary of A VC, ,Yould acquire these fiye 
I ' I "s? 

.\ r r. REICHEL. That is correct. 
,\Ir. LISI-DIAN. Did you keep any ,n-itten record of any of these 

111•gotiations? 
.\Ir. REICHEL. I did not. . 
. \fr. LISI-IMAN. How were these five CP's brought to yom attent10n 

,1.., being possibly for sale? 
n,--5:H- 69-pt. 1--8 
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Mr. REICHEr~. They were ref~rred to us by Mr. Castle of Butcher & 
S~erreard, an _mvestment bankmg firm that specializes in special situ­
ations and private placements. 

Mr. LISHMAN. How did ~hey bring it to your attention? 
b Mr. REICHEL. They me~t10ned that such proper ties might be avail­

a le and would there be n_iterest on our part to investigate furthed 
. Mr_. LISHMAN. Whom did you first contact in the Overmyer orga­mzat10n? 

. J\~r. REICHEL. The first contact was after I had indicated in a pre­
hm~nary way to Mr:. Castl~, that there might be interest. ' 

Mr. LISHMAN. Will you Just summarize the main provisions of 'the 
stock purchase agreement with Overmyer? 

Mr. REICHE~. The transaction was, of course, complicated somewhat 
by the nece~ss~ty for us to_ go to our stockholders for stockholder 
approval. 1 lns concerned mvestment policy as well as the feelina 
that the st~ck~olders _should ~ave an opportunity to review a pur'".'. 
c]iarse of this. size. This n~cessitated a first cJ?sing which was, I be­
lie. e, '.111 opt10n or deposit. The second closmg occurred somet ime 
ear]y m May af ter our stockholders' meeting. 

The actual pur?has~, of course, involved the purchase of the 80 
percent stoc~ ~qmty m these five corporations for a price not to 
excee?- ~1 mill10n and there was negotiated at that time a loan of 
$3 million. 

Mr. LISHMAN. How much money have you disbursed to Mr. Over­
myer under these arrangements? 

Mr. ~EI~H~L. In addition to the $1 million for 80 percent equity 
and a $3 mil110n loan, there was ~isbursed $777,962.59. 
1 ~r. LISHMAN. Whe?-_you acqmred the controlling interest and you 
00 e~ over t~e co1:1dit10ns at each of the locations of the five con­

~truction permit;s, did you find _that there had been substantial progress 
m the construct10n of the station at any of these five locations? 

Mr. REICHEL. Yes. There was substantial pro!!Tess 
Mr. LISHMAN. At which ones? 0 • 

Mr. REICHEL. At several, particularly San Francisco. 
:1\f_r. LisH_MAN, How _far along would you say-when did you make 

this mspect10n or have 1t made? 
Mr. REICHEL. I can't answer that. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Can you give me an approximate date? 
Mr. REICHEL. May 1967. · 

. Mr. LISHM~N. At that time what was the status of the progress 
m San Francisco so far as construction is concerned? 

Mr. REICHEL. I_ cannot answer that specifically. I can determine 
t~at for you. I will _have to re:f'.er to our engineer. I know that the 
site had been established. Considerable construction had been per­
formed. 

Mr. LISHMAN. What kind of construction? -
Mr. REICHEL. I am referring primarily to the transmitter building. 

I was out there. personally, I_ believe sometime in the summer of 
1967. At that _pomt the transmitter was in location but had not been 
complet~ly wired. It was located at the Bruno location. The tower 
was sem1erected or perhaps even totally erected. The antenna, how­
ever, had not been delivered at that time. 

Mr. LISHMAN. What was the situation at Houston? 

i VI 

Mr. REICHEL. They had very excellent studio facilities in San 
Francisco. 

Mr. LISHMAN. How about Houston? What was its status? . 
Mr. REICHEL. In the case of H ouston I think land exploration was 

perhaps the extent of the development there. There was a site located 
which we will probably use . 

Mr. LISHMAN. H ow.about Pittsburgh? 
Mr. REICHEL. Pittsburgh, again considerable land development . 
Mr . LISHMAN. By considerable land development, had the tower been 

erected ? 
-Mr. REICHEL. No. 
Mr. LISHMAN. ,v-hat development had occurred? . . . 
Mr. REICHEL. The evaluation of a number of possible site locations. It 

is our intention that we will probably use one of the locations developed 
by Mr. Overmyer . 

Mr . LISHMAN. And in Atlanta what was the status there? 
Mr. REICHEL. Again, land development, location_ for a studio. To 

what extent buildings had been erected I am uncertam. The tower had 
not been erected, but the locat ion determined. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Cincinnati, what was the status there? 
Mr. REICHEL. Cincinnati was well progressed. The tower was up. 

Transmitter building up, equipment on hand. Again the antenna had 
not been delivered. 

I miaht also mention that in Cincinnati a manager had been hired, 
and I A'iight further add that Cincinnati is currently on the air with 
a test pattern. . . 

Mr. LISHMAN. \iVhen did you hire the manager for the San Francisco 
station? . 

Mr. REICHEL. Mr. Larry Turet came to _U.S. CommumcatJons C?rp. 
I believe in November of 1967. That station went on the air April 1. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Are you faJ?iliar with the fact that Mr: T~ret was a 
member of an advisory committee to the Federal Commumcat10ns Com­
mission so far as UHF matters were concerned ? 

Mr. REICHEL. I did not specifically know of Mr. Turet's affiliati~ns. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you inquire of his past expertise in broadcastmg 

at the time he was hired? 
Mr. REICHEL. The negotiations for Mr. Turet were carried on 

primarily by Mr. Stevens and Mr. Katz. 
Mr. LISHMAN. What would your opinion be as to the usability of 

the equipment and the broadcast rights you purchased from Overmyer? 
Mr. REICHEL. In the case of the equipment, with very minor _excep­

tion the majority of the equipment will be used. Fo~ ex~mple, m San 
Francisco the fact that we were able to get on the air w1thm 2 or 2½ 
months of transfer would indicate that it was essentially fully equipped 
and prepared to go on the air. . . 

Cincinnati likewise. There will be, of course, with the passage of time 
the addition of equipment. We will upgrade some of the equipment and 
enlarae some of the equipment. In most cases it will be utilized. 

MtLISHMAN. How much do you propose to put in for equipment at 
each of these stations? 

Mr. REICHEL. Approximately $1 million in Rosenberg, Tex. 
Pittsburgh will be a similar amount. 
I might also mention that in some instances, for instance in the case 

of Pittsburgh, we believe that it is desirable to go to more power and 
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will he putting in a 110-kilov,att transmitter. This application is being 
filed with the FCC. 

Mr. LrnI-LlHAX. Are these amounts that you mentioned now in addi­
tion to what you have already paid? 

Yfr. REICHEL. The equipment acquin-ld from }fr. Ornrmyer is in­
cluded in this figure ·whi ch ,,-as mentioned earlier. 

Mr. LISH:\L\;;_ Could you give me the same fignrcs for Atlanta and 
Cincin nati alld San Francisco? 

Mr. R1•acI-rnL. Atlanta, $1,348,000. Cincinnati, $1,i5fi0,000. The earlier 
figures that J mentioned were from the application filed with the FCC. 
A s I indicated, ,re have upgraded the equipment in certain of these 111-l:ll'-

kets. :\1ore power, color. · 
.lVIr. L1sFDL\X. How many stations does the U.S. Communieations 

Corn. han-i? 
::\fr. RmcrrnL. 1V e have six stations. 
Mr. LISIIMAN. Included in the six are these five? 
:;\fr. RmcrtEL. Yes, sir. The sixth station being the Philadelphia 

station. 
}Ir. LrsiuuN. 1Vliat background does that compally have in broad-

casting? 
Mr. REICH}JL. U.S. Communications Corp. or Philadelphia? 
Mr. LISH:\IAN. U.S. Communications Corp. 
Mr. REICHEL. U.S. Communications Corp. was a newly created 

corporation of which I am president. I have had no prior background 
in broadcasting. 

}fr. Lrn1n1AN. Is it a wholly owned subsidiary of A VC? 
:I\fr. RmcHEL .. A VC owns approximately 70 percent of the stock in 

U.S. Communications Corp. 
Mr. L1sm,rAN. 1Vhat is the nature of A VC's activities? 
:I\Ir. RmcHRL. A VC is an investment company. However, we have 

made similar investments into operating situations. 
Mr. LrnHJ\fAN. I have no further questions. 
The CHAIR,HAN. J\fr. Moss. 
Mr. Moss. The $3 million loan, what are the terms of that loan 

· agreement? 
-I mean terms. I don't mean the conditions under which it could be 

converted int·o purchase, an instrument of purchase, 20 percent of 
stock. But what is the interest, what is the method of amortizing? 

Mr. REICIIEL. The interest is one-quarter of l percent almrn the 
prime rate normal in transactions of $1 million. 

Mr. Moss. 1Vhat would you say the interest is today? 
:\fr. REICHEL. This was fixed as of the date the loan was incurred 

so it does not fluctua te with fluctuations in the prirne rate. Them are 
two rates, since two separate transactions of $1½ million occurred. 
In the first instance the prime rate at that time was f.i ½ . So our note is 
fi:;.:i. 

In the case of the second loan of a million and a half, the prime rate 
had moved up to 6 percent, so the rate is fi¼. 

:\:fr. Moss. Do they both ham the same d ne chtes? 
·Mr. REICHEL. Yes, si.r. 
.l\fr. }foss. And are they secured? 
l\fr. Rc:rcnEL. Yes, sir. They are s1cic-nred. 
Mr. }foss. By ,vhat? 

Mr. REICHEL. By equity interest, second_ mortgages, C!f a con~ide_r­
n ble number, o-f OYermyer warehouses havmg an appraised eqmty 111 

!'xcess of $6 million. 
Mr. Moss. Not otherwise encumbered? .. 
.:\fr. REICHEL. First mortgages. I could not a11S,ver wha~ add1t10nal 

1•ncumbrances there might be. Hmvever, it i.s my understancbng- t~rnt our 
Pqnity is beyond any of these encumbrances_ by at least $6 m1ll10n. As 
has been stated here earlier, in order to pernut the Overmye~· warel:wuse 
operation flexibility in their operation, Over11;1yer ~ms ~he right of sub­
stitution by which they can substitute properties of eqmvalent or great-

- t•r value. 
Mr. Moss. Attheirelection'? 
Mr. REicirnL. At their election. 
There has been eviderwe submitted by ~fr. Onn:nyer that the rna~ke~ 

value obtained in a sale is very close to or approximates the appnnsec1 
value. - t} 

Mr. Moss . .Apparently Overmyer operated on a r~t~1er current'. me 1-

()(l of valuation in order to create as favorable a pos1t1on as possible on 
t lie balance sheet. ', 

Mr. REICHEL. I cannot comment on that. . . 
Mr. Moss. The fact they seem tJO he current appraisals all the time. 

You started the negotiations in March 1Dfi7 ? 
Mr. REICHEL. That is correct. , 
Mr. Moss. You signed an agreement on the :28th day of March? 
Mr. RElCHEL. That is correct. 
Mr. Moss. You stated that the parameters of t1u1;t agre~me_nt had 

1 >robably been reached and defined at least 1 week pnor to s1gnmg the 
11,rree1nent? 

,.,~fr. REICHEL. That is correct. 
Mr. Moss. That would be about the 21st. 
Mr. REICHEL. Give orrtake 3 or 4 days. 
Naturally being a public. corp_oration it ha\l to be p:·.es~nted to ,on: 

I ,oard of directors. It was prnnanly concluded m approxim,1tely a,, eek 
1>r !5 days later. . . . 

Mr. Moss. I am very much mterested 1_11 the fact !ha!, the parameters 
0 r the ao-reement were reached a week prwr to the Sig~mg o-f the agree-
11 it'nt iu~l yet we are told that no notes were kept durmg the course of 
ll('gotiation. . , . . ~· . , . 

I have negotiated, and I find it d1fficult to env1S_1on a:1yone trustm_g 
:H l completely to memory as would be apparen!, _m this case, that ~t 
11·onld be necessary to reduce the agr_eemen~ to ,Ynb_ng, that ;voi~ld ha, e 
lo be I assume dictated to someone 111 the mtervenmg weeks tune and 
1111,re would have to be a coming together of minds as to the foot that 
I he final draft agreed with the preliminary definition of the type of 
11l,!Teemcnt, that all of t1his was done solely from memory. 
' Mr. REICH1'cL. In this instance the final contract :vas really prepared 

11 ln1ost concurrently with negotiations. So at the time of closmg there 
1111 s rt final closing contract, prior to the 28t,h. _ _ ? 

~fr. Moss. Prior to the :28th the matter was reduced to a final draft, 
M 1·. REIGJ,fEL. That is correct. . 
~fr. Moss. Did the negotiations continu~ onr a period of a " ·eek, 

' 11·veks, 3 ,veeks? Diel t,hey start on the 1st of l\farch? 
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Mr. REICHEL. I do not recall the exact date, but I would estimate 
that my first meeting with Mr. Overmyer might have occurred ap­
proximately March 10 or thereabouts. 
. M_r. Moss. Now you indicated that you inspected the San Francisco 

s1temMay. 
Mr. REICHEL. I believe it was summer. 
Mr. Moss. When did you inspect the other sites? 
Mr. REICHEL. Pardon? 
Mr. Moss. '\¥hen did you inspect the other sites? 
Mr. REICHEL. All sites of course were inspected I believe in all cases 

by our chief engineer. In most, if not all, by our consulting engineers .. 
Mr. Moss. My question was, when? ', 
Mr. RmcHEL. I would guess April and May. 
Mr. Moss. Then you purchased sight unseen? 
Mr. REICHEL. Properties. 
Mr. Moss. Properties. 
Mr. REICHEL. 'Dhat is correct. 
Mr. Moss. So you were purchasing really construction permits: 

That is a rat!her logical conclusion. 
N ~w the gentlemen that are passing up notes, I am going to insist on, 

my right _as a member of this committee t? deny you that. I have asked 
the question of the gentleman on the witness stand. If you want to , 
stand and be sworn and answer for him and he wants you to do that, 
that is fine. 

When I am asking questions of the witness, I want his answers, his 
recollections. If he cannot recall, if he doesn't know, he has but to say 
he can't recall. · 

Isn:t tl_ie answer really that you .did not have any site inspection 
made until after the agreement was signed? 

Mr. REICHEL. That is correct. 
Mr. M<_>ss. So y<_m did buy them sight unseen. ~t was purchase of 

constru?t10n pernn~s. Now you may have had an mventory of equip-­
ment with a ,:-al.uat!on _on ~hem. Some of that apparently was encum­
bered. There is md.1cat10n ma _memorandum which was placed in the 
record that some bills were owmg on some of the equipment that had' 
not been paid. 
· So, for the purpose of your negotiation, minus the permits, what was 
the worth of the packag~ you were buying? 

M:r:. REIC;1IEL. For this figure there were to be contributed equity in· 
certam eqmpment. We of cou~se kne,y from information supplied to , 
us by Mr. Overmyer '."nd by lus associates, Mr. Dorfner, Mr. Byrnes, . 
and others, of a considerable amount of development work that had' 
gone on. 

Mr. Moss. Let us talk about that development work. 
~et me make one cl~ar identification. I am, as I have been for a 

per1<?d of 30 years, a licensed real estate broker in my State of Cali­
fornia. So let us know what we are talking about now when we talk 
about development work, site development work. 

You ment10ned the Houston site location, you said that you prob­
ably would use it. How do you have that tied down? Do you have 
an option on it, the Houston site? 

Mr. REICHEL. We have made an offer on the Houston site. We use, 
the same site that Mr. Overmyer--

Mr. Moss. Do you have an option? 
Mr. REICHEL. I do not believe we have a firm option. 1Ve have made 

1tn offer which is now being considered. 
~~r._M?ss. An offer is one thing. _That is not really binding on anyone 

11nt1l 1t is accepted. '\V'e are talkmg about a transaction now over a 
.Y 'arold. 

Mr. REICHEL. That is right. 
Mr. Moss. The Houston site was either optioned or was not optioned. 
Was it optioned when you bought it? 
Mr. REICHEL. I do not know. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask that the witness be 

directed to su_pply for the record very promptly an inventory of all 
l't'al and physical property which was included in the negotiations, its 
vidue an~ in the case of sites under development whether or not they 
\\'Ore optioned, the terms of the option, whether in the intervening time 
ti I re has had to pea renewal of options in order to keep them available. 

The CHAIRMAN. Can the witness supply this for the record? 
Mr. REICHEL. We Wiill supply it promptly. 
The CHAIRMAN.· As reasonably rapidly as you can. 
Mr. REICHEL. Yes, sir. 
(The information requested appears in the appendix, p. 541.) 
Mr. Moss. I have no further questions. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Brown? 
Mr. Van Deerlin? 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRMAN. Thank you very kindly. 
Do you have any further questions? 
Mr.LISHMAN. No,thankyou. 
The CHAIRMAN. This will end our hearing today. I want to thank 

Mr. Adams, Mr. Bryan, Mr. Dorfner, Mr. Overmyer, Mr. Byrnes, Mr. 
1.; insley, and Mr. Reichel for coming and helping us make a record. 
Thank you very much. 

The committee will stand adjourned until tomorrow morning at 
IO o'clock. 

(Whereupon, at 5 :45 p.m., the subcommittee adjourn eel, to r,ecoffvene-
11!. lO a.m., Wednesday, July 17, 1968.) 
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'fRAFFICKING IN BROADCAST S'fATION LICENSES 
AND CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 17, 1968 

HousE OF REPRESENTATIVES. 

SrECIAL Sunco3nrr1TEE ON lNvESTIGATIOKs . 

Co:irnnTTEE ON lxTERSTATE AND FOREIGN Col\BIERCF.. 

W a&hington, D.C. 
The subcommittee met at 10 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room. 2123, 

nay burn House Office Building, Hon. Harley 0. Staggers ( chairman) 
presiding. .~ 

The C11AIRMAN. The committee will be in order. 
'\Ve will start our session at this time, and for our \\'itnesses ·we hope 

f o change our schedule a little bit here. 
·we would like to have the Chairman, Mr. Hyde, come forward, and 

:\ lso the members of his staff if they are here. The rest of the Commis­
:-i ion will be called shortly. 

Mr. Alford, Mr. Rawson, Mr . .Tunt.illa, Mr. Sheridan, Mr. Sa.ady, 
i\[r. Levy, Mr. George S. Smith, Mr. Stewart, Mr. Lloyd R Smith, 
1\[r. Oppenheimer. 

I would ask that each of you gentlemen stand and ra.ise, your right 
lmnd. 

Do you solemnly swear or. affirm that the testimony you are about 
Io give before this committee will be the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth, so help you Goel? 

Mr. HYDE. I do. 
Mr. ALFORD. I do. 
Mr. RAWSON. I do. 
Mr . .TuNTILLA. I do. 
Mr. SHERIDAN. I do. 
Mr. SAADY. I do. 
Mr. LEVY. I do. 
Mr. GEORGE SMrr1-:r. I do. 
Mr. STEWART. I do. 
Mr. LLOYD SllnTH. I do. 
Mr. OrrENHEIMER. I do. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Chairman, ,vould you identify yourself ancl 

f II ' rest of them for. the record. 
(113) 
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'TESTIMONY OF HON. ROSEL H. HYDE, CHAIRMAN, FEDERAL COM­
lVIUNICA'TIONS COMMISSION; ROBERT H. ALFORD, CHIEF, T'RANS­
FER BRANCH; ROBERT J. RAWSON, CHIEF, RENEWAL AND 
TRANSFER DIVIS<ION; JAMES B. SHERIDAN, FORMER CHIEF, 
BROADCAST BUREAU; SAMUEL L. SAAUY, CHIEF, TELEVISION 
BRANCH; MARTIN I. LEVY, CHIEF, BROADCAST FACILITIES; 
GEORGES. SMITH, CHrnF, BROADCAST BUREAU; JAMES 0. JUN­
TILLA, DEPUTY CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; ROY J. STEWART, 
ATTORNEY ADVISER, BROADCAST BUREAU; LLOYD R. SMITH, 
ENGINEER, BROADCAST BUREAU; AND K. GORDON OPPEN­
HEIM.ER, ATTORNEY, BROADCAST BUREAU 

Mr. HYDE. I am Rosel Hyde, Chairman of <the Federal Communi­
cations Commission. 

To my left is Mr. George Smith, who is Chief of the Broadcast 
Bureau. To my immediate right, Mr. James Jnntilla, who is the Dep­
utY: Chief, Broadcast Bureau. We have Mr. Sheridan, formerly the 
Chief of the Broadcast Bureau, next Mr. Martin Levy, Chief of 
Broadcast Facilities; Mr. Robert Rawson, Chief, Renewal and Trans­
fer Division; Mr. Lloyd Smith, Engineer, Broadcast Bureau; Mr. 
Sa1;11uel L. Saady, Chief of the Television Branch; Mr. Robert Alford, 
Chief, Transfer Branch; Mr. Roy J. Stewart, Television Branch, and 
Gordon Oppenheimer. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Smith, will you start questioning. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Mr. Chairman, with your indulgence and that 

o:f t~e ~ubcommittee and witnesses I should like, first, to complete 
furn~sh_mg documents for th~ record, begun Y:sterday by Mr. Lishman. 

It is important that these items be placed m the record at this time, 
namely: a staff memorandum, reviewing Mr. Overmyer's Federal in­
come tax returns; a staff memorandum summarizing various aspects 
of the Overmyer acquisition of these five CP's and their transfer to 
the U.S. Communications Corp.; a staff memorandum reviewing the 
FCC's examination of loans made by A VC to Overmyer; a staff mem­
orandum dealing with the formula that was utilized in helping to 
compute the out-of-pocket expenses that Mr. Overmyer had approved 
by the Commission; a staff analysis of the FCC's opinion about Mr. 
Ove:r:~y_er's out-of-pocket expenses; a staff analysis of the Overmyer 
acqmsit10n and transfer; a staff memorandum concerning the A VC 
option price discussed in the loan agreement; a letter from the Federal 
Comm1mications Commission to you, Mr. Ohairman, dated March 14, 
to which is appended a list of personnel who worked on the various 
Overmyer applications; next, some information that has long been out­
standing, Mr. Chairman, dealing with station transfers, accompanied 
by a letter of Chairman Hyde to you of ,July 2, 1968. This information 
was requested several years ago and again this past Jammry. Further, 
a list of questions prepared by the subcommittee and responses thereto 
by individual members of the Federal Communications Commission. 
Lastly, a memorandum by Mr. Zelig Robinson, staff consultant to the 
su_bc?mmittee, dealing with the multiple ownership rules of the Com­
mission. 

The CHAIRMAN. Without objection, they will be made a part o:f 
:.the record. 

(The documents referred to appear in the appendix, items 17-27. 
See contents for individual listing.) . 

Mr. ARNOLD SMI'l'H. At the outset, so that we don't become n_ivolved 
in a quagmire of detail, I sh?ul~ like to delineate the three basic areas 
that I have in mind for quest10nmg. 

First, the initial acquisiti~n of th~se !> CP's by ~fr. Overmyer. 
Secondly, Overmyer's extens1?n '.1pphcat10ns, and third, the Over-
myer transfer t~ U.S. C_o~1:1umca~10ns ~orp. . 

One other pomt for mitial clanfic.ation: I am not able to deter_m_ine 
from this FCC memorandum submitted to the chairman, describ_mg 

-Fee staff personnel who worked _on these Over~nyer matt':'rs, JUSt 
exactly who, Chairman Hyde, specifically dealt with the vanous ap-
plications for the 5 CP's. . 

So, if one or more of you are able to answer the questi_ons I pose, 
please speak out. I shall~ therefore, address these questions to the 
gentlemen seated at the witness table as a ~roup. First, l~t. 1;1s deal 
with the Cincinn1'ti application. ~ h~pe t~ discuss the acqm~itions on 
a station-by-station basis: first, Cmcmnati, then A_tlanta, Pittsburgh, 
Houston, and Satl. Francisco, taking them accordmg ~ _the date. on 
which the aJ?plications were approved b:y the Commiss10n. So that 
the Commiss10n is able to follow my questions I have prep_ared a copy 
of the memorandums of the Broadcast Bure~u r~commendmg to mem­
bers of the Commission that these five applications be approved. 

First, with respect to Cincinnati, I h_a ve before me a copy o:f the 
memorandum dated February 8, 1965, signed ~y Mr. Alford for Mr. 
Sheridan Chief of the Broadcast Bureau. Is 1t not tru~ that at the 
time the 'Cincinnati application was processed an applicant_ had to 
show his financial ability to construct and operate for a penod o:f 3 
months? 

Mr. JuNTILLA, Yes. d d 
Mr. AnNOLD SMITH. Mr. Juntilla, where in this 1;11emora~du~ ate 

February 8 is there any discussion of such financial quahficat10ns o:f 
Mr. Overmyer? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. Not discussed. . . , 2 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Is there any reason why 1t was not d1scusse<;1-. 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes. In the transfer items that went to the Commis-

sion if a ,particula~ fac_et of tJh~ appli~ation_ di_d not present a problem 
it was not necessarily discussed m the Commission. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, I would like to suggest, so that these hear­
ings have some meaning, that the witnesses speak loudly enough for 
the members of the committee to hear them. 

Mr. JuNTILLA. I am sorry. . . . . 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. In dealrng with thi~ 3_-month reqmremen~­

where you have to fit your cost and income withm a 3-month operatn~g 
period once the station is constructed-why there was no reference m 
the memorandum to such cost and income data? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes. The staff membe~ who or~ginally prepare_d the 
item would have gone over the financial showmg of the applicant, 
would have concluded that the financial problem was no~ great and 
accordingly, did not write it up in the items of the Comn11ss10n. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Who was the staff member? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Mr. Higgins. 
Mr. KEITH. Will you repeat the answer to the previous question, 

please? 
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Mr. J UNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
If a _particu) ar f11;cet of_ the application, and we are here talkino- about 

financial q1~a~ificati01:i, d1cl not _raise a prolilem in the mind of the staff 
mfen11beCr wnt~ng the item, he did not necessarily discuss it in tJhe items 
O t 1e ,omn11ss10n. 

_Mr. ARN~LD fou:r1!._You mentioned that ),!r. Higgins was the gentle-
1;1~11 ,\~o chd the imtrnl g_roundwork on this application. For the in­
ifrn0t1011 ?f ~he subcommntee members, Mr. Higgins is no lmwer with 
t le om11:-1ss1'?11 ... Who succeeded Mr. Higo·ins at the Comm~ion or 
,vorkecl with him? "° 
.. ~fr-:Tu;'TILLA. '\Ve have ;1fr. :·\Jf<_Jrd here ,vho is Chief of the Trans­
fe1 Branen where tran s~er applications wBre processed. ' 
, Mr. _Raws?1: ~vas Clnef of th e Division. This is the Renewal and 

1 ransfor_ D~vis10n. They ,handled and imrnediatelv supervised the 
preparation items. " 
. Thtr. ARNOLD s~unr. L et me be more succinct. vVbat I f\111 drivino· ·1t t \, at son_iec_me had to m'."lrn Rn analysis for the Commission undertl;~ 
fi•"i s P_~bhc rnterest requ_irr:ment, that an applicant he financially qnal i-

e~ puor to the _Conmnssion grant of a CP. Althouo·h Mr. i-Iio-o·ins 
evi1en~ly was this gontleman, who in his stead can ~eak about~nv 
a:1~ ys1s he made and, further, t_ell us abont any papers or records o·r 
written analyses that \VCre provided Commission members? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. Possibly either Mr. Rawson or Mr. Alford. 
l Mr. ALFORD. '\Ve have a staff accounta~t in the branch. If la ,Yyei·s 
1ave any_ doubt at all about the financial qualification they would 
consult with Mr. Douglas, the staff accountant. 

Mr: ARN_orn ~~IITH. Let me ~sk you this: vVhy was Mr. Douglas 
nbolt listed m tlns letter to ChalI'man Staggers so that we would be 
a e--

Mr. ALFOI:D· ~ ai:n ~ot suggesting th::tt Th~r. Douglas nece.ssaril 
looked at tlus application. I :~m suggestrng 1f Mr. Higgins had :u/ 
doubt at all about the financial qualifications he would have info? 
ma lly consulted Mr. Douglas. 

I am not even sure he had any qualifications and that he did con­
sult Mr. Douglas. 

Mr: ARNOLD SMITH. So we can assume he accepted this without any 
quest10n? · ' 

fi Mr .. ALFORD. At that time, our impression was that he was very ,Yell 
nancrnlly qualified. · 
M~. ARNOLD S~ITH. Let me also ask you ,this: Since a written rec­

ord 1s ~hr: o~ly thmg _tha~ the public has to go on when it comes to the 
Comm1ss10r! s determmat10n, how on the basis of the Cincinnati memo 
recommendrno- ap1Jroval a11d 1· f t th · th · · ~ b . j- 0 . ' · ' ·· · , n ac , e papers , at the Comrmssion 
,-,u_ mit 0 ed t? u~ as bemg the complete record, could one see or deter-
mrne that this vital public interest factor was considered? · 

How do we know, for example, that the financial requirements were 
perused and carefully sc.r:utiniz_ed, or analyzed ? , 
. How are we to det~rmme this? '\Vere there any penciled notations 
made anywhere reflectrng such consideration? 

Mr .. RAWSON. Mr. ~Eggins was a very competent, capable ruttorne, 
an~ did an excellei!t Job, analyzed every facet of an assignment appl[­
ca~10~, and any fame a problem was raised believe me he wo·ulcl 
raise it. ' ' · 

In this part icular case, we, in the interest of bringing to the Com-
111 ission excessive material that was unnecessary for the consider ation 
or the case, were only bringing up those matters which were problems, 
11 nd then we would discuss the problem and we would outline it in 
11 >tail. 

ln this particular instance, this was one of the first cases we had; 
1\1 r. Higgins did unquestionably make an analyis on a 3-month basis 
11 nd, of course, the public could al ways go to the application itself, 
l>ecause it is the application that you '.vill go to as far as the public 
1u1d not our flimsy . 

'±'he flimsy is not available to the public, the memorandum. Dut the 
11 pplication itself will disclose that beyond any doubt Mr. Overmyer 
ll'aS qualified to acquire this station and to build it and operate it 
for 3 months. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Keith wishes to question. 
Mr. KEITH. I -would like to ma.ke an observation, if I may. I have 

IH>.cn sitting here, my silence acquiescing to the line of questions that 
i~ going forward. ' 

JVlr. Hyde is sitting'there acquiescing to the ans,vers that are coming. 
.l, as a committee member who is trying to find out all about this 

111:ttter, feel that your line of questions is being directed to the wrong 
p:trty. vVe have a battalion commander do\vn there and you are 
11 sking questions of the captain and lieutenant. 

13y now Chairman Hyde must be aware of the questions that haYe 
11 r isen , and certainly must be in a position to answer them. He is the 
ll110 to whom the questions should be directed, in my opinion. If he 
11·;1,nts to refer to his staff he should do so. 

J\fr. A RNOLD S3IITII. vVith all due respect, Mr. Keith, I would agn~e 
11 mt Chairman Hyde should certainly be able to provide the answers. 

'L'he li.ne of questions was directed to the staff because we hoped to 
ddcrmine exactly who at the Commission prepared the nuts and bolts 
, , I' these application approval recommendations and to question such 
pl·rsons directly. 

~fr. KEITH. Those of us who sit here listening have gun control 
li ·g islation coming up shortly and then the foreign aid vote. Congress 
ll'i ll recess in a nrnttcr of clavs and I want to know if Chairman Hyde 
I, 11n\YS his job and has been f{il filling his responsibilities. · 

I would resent, if I were he, your asking his staff rather than him. 
I t iii 11k you ought to begin directing questions to :Mr. ~yde. I don't 
ls1 1ow whether the committee agrees ,Yith me but that is the way I 
1\·l'l. 

~Ir. ARNOLD SMrrn. If it is agreeable, I will proceed to ask Chair-
111:i n Hyde and he can inquire down the line if he wishes. 

The CHAm~L\:N'. I might intercede briefly to say that I am sure if 
1·111L do ask Mr. Hvde that he v.·ill have to call on some of these men 
;,,, to ,Yhat their actions were. 

Mr. KEITH. I have read the memorandums girnn to me, stRyed up 
11111 il 12 o'clock last night doing so, and read some more this morning. 
I have read what Mr. Hyde said, what Mr. Cox said, as ,ye]l as Mr. 
.Johnson's rather cursory remarks. 

If I were :Yfr. Hyde, I am sure I ,Yould be able to answer the ques-
t ion s which have been raised about the minority view. 

The CnAIRe1IAN. I ·would like just one brief comment. Your name 

I. i 
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Mr. RAWSON. Rawson. 
The CHAIRMAN. You made the statement that you are sure Mr. 

Higgins made the analysis? 
Mr. RAwsoN. Yes, sir. 
The CHAIRMAN. How are you sure? Did he tell you he did? 
Mr. RAWSON. As Chief of the Division, it is impossible to go over­

e_very single application, but we hire attorneys and they have a check­
list that they make. The checklist would indicate whether or not he 
had made an analysis. 

The CHAIRMAN. Did you read that checklist? 
Mr. RAWSON. No, but I am sure the Branch Chief read it. 
The CHA!RMAN. That is not the kind of business we want to kno~; 

We are trymg to find out where the records are and who did these 
thi~gs a1;1d how they did them. I will yield to the gentleman from 
Cahforma, Mr. Moss. ' 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Rawson, it has been my observation now after 
roughly 14 years of very active investigative responsibility as a Mem­
ber of Congr~ss, that that which cannot happen usually does. 

So :"here 1s the checklist on the application in question? Let us 
establish firmly and finally whether or not the usual procedures were 
in fact followed. 

And I might point out that if you have been with the Commission 
these many years, you ~n?w that it has not been too many years ago 
that we had the Comm1ss10n before us and there were a lot of things 
that we developed that had happened that couldn't and shouldn't but 
did. ' 

So, we have th,e same problem here. 
The CHAIRMAN. I might ask Mr. Hyde, do you have that checklist? 
Mr. HYDE. Mr. Chairman, I do not have the checklist referred to 

by Mr. Rawso~. ~his would be a Bureau tool used for purposes of 
management w1thm the Bureau. We do have with us here this morn­
ing Mr. James Sheridan who was Chief of the Broadcast Bureau at 
the time the report we have been discussing was submitted to the 
Commission. 
· I am sure Mr. Sheridan could give you a more complete report on 

how these matters were handled than anyone else here. 
The CHAIRMAN. Just a moment. I will let our counsel proceed with 

the questioning. 
Mr. AR~OJ:D SMITH. Mr. Hyde, co~ld you tell us exactly what gave 

~he _Comrmss1on, from the rec?rd, the 1~ea that Over:myer:'s application 
md1cated that he was financially qualified to obtam this permit? 

Where i_n the record was a determination made that Mr. Overmyer 
was financially qualified to obtain this permit? 

Mr. HYDE. The basic record on which the Commission would rely 
is the application, itself, and such additional information ac:: mio-ht 
be required by the staff in the process of that examination. ~ 0 

Now; we must, as in the ~ase of any _ot~er agency, rely upon staff 
analysis, staff recommendat10n, and this 1s the wav the Commission 
operated. v 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. What staff analysis did the Commission have 
to ~ely upon that was made in the instance of the Cincinnati appli­
cat10n? 

Mr. HYm1. We had a repor,t from the staff recommendino- that the-
applicant was qualified. 0 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. '\Vb.ere in that report does it show tha:t the ap-
111 i cant was financially qualified? 

Mr. HYDE. The Commission relied on the ability and competence of 
tho staff. If 1there is any question about it i,t can be rechecked 1through 
I.he application, itself. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Chairman Hyde, you and I may know what 
I he Communications Act requires, and you may know that the staff 
does its job. But absent something specific in the record, I don't be­
I i1 ve ,that one can make a determination from it that an analysis was 
11 t .fact made. 

Mr. HYDE. This was not a case where there was any dispute as to 
1 h representations in the application. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Is it not true that in the case of all five Over-
111 yer applications there were no hearings? 

Mr. HYDE. As I recall, there was no hearing in any of the initial 
11 cquisitions. -

Mr. ARNOLD SMrrH. In a case where you don't have a hearing; in a 
1•1tse where there is no \ntervenor who has an ax to grind, so ito speak, 
11-m'1t it even more important that the Commission on its own initiative, 
111:Lk:e a careful analysis so the J?Ublic interest is satisfied? 

Mr. HYDE. It is important, 1t is essential that in any case where the 
( :ommission makes a grant tha:t it be in a position ito make a finding 
1 hat the applicant is qualified and that ,the operation will serve the pub-
1 i · interest, convenience, and necessity. Those are legal requirements. 

For the purpose of making those findings we have a competent staff 
which must in the nature of ,things do much of the detail work for the 

11 Hsistance of the Commissioners. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I won't belabor the point, Commissioner Hyde. 

I think if we talk about certain specifics in the Cincinnati application 
this point can be broughtouitmoreclearly. 

Let us take the bank letter submitted for Cincinnati. This was briefly 
dis ·ussed yesterday. We won't dwell on it now too long buit the Cin-
1·i11nati bank letter, I think, will amplify the point of my question. 

f n 1this letter it was stated that certified financial statements were 
to be submitted by Mr. Overmyer in order for him to obtain 1the neces-
1 1L r_y loan. . . . 

Did Mr. Rawson, or whoever handled this phase of the apphcat10n, 
II H :mitain whether Overmyer was in the habit of providing certified or 
ll111mcial statements in connection with outside financing for his vari-

111 1s enterprises? 
11 or example, did Mr. Overmyer at any time submit certified finan­

l' i11 I statements or audited financial statements to the Commission? 
Did he not submit three financial statements to the Commission, in 

1111dcing application for these five construction permits, one of which 
11 11 s dated August 31, 1964 and another August 31, 1965 for his ware­
house companies, and a personal financial statement also dated August 
,1 1, 1964. None of these statements were certified or audited? 

Mr. HYDE. You have a complete record of our file in the Overmyer 
t'IIHO. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I would refresh the recollection of the Chair-
1111u1. I think these will indicate that the financial submissions to the 
I 'rnnmission by Mr. Overmyer were not certified--
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Mr. HYDE. Mr. Counsel, all representations to the Commission are 
submitted under the penalty of a law which provides for severe sanc­
tions for any misrepresentation to the Government. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. That may be correct, sir. But the specific point 
that we are ta ]king about now is the reasonableness of this commitment 
and any questions which the Commission may have asked about it. 

My question simply is, Did the Commission attempt to ascertain 
"-hether or not Overmyer could fulfill the conditions precedent to his 
obtaining this loan; namely, provide certified financial statements to 
the Cincinnati bank? 

Mr. HYDE. ::\fay I have Mr. Rawson discuss that question? " 
Mr. RAWSON. As the Chairman indicated, these commitments are' 

submitted and the staff accepts the representations made by the ap­
plicant because they are made, and if they turn out to be false there 
are severe sanctions. 

This is the way the Commission operates in the processing of all 
applications because it would be impossible to get any of your work 
done if you had to go to the extent of trying to verify every ans,Yer 
giYen by an applicant on a material point._ 

The CHAIRMAN. vVill the gentleman yield to Mr. Moss? 
Mr. Moss. I find that very difficult to accept as valid. It may well 

be that it would be a valid point as to a number of items on an ap­
plication, but the financial ability of an applicant to perform under 
a permit, if it was finally granted by the Commission, becomes very 
important, almost an overriding element. 

It is the custom in the financial community in the granting of loans 
and in the transf1,ction of business to normally require certified or 
audited statements. 

You are saying that it is the custom in the Federal Communications 
Commission not to require certified or audited statements from ap­
plicants. 

Mr. RAWSON. That is correct, Mr. Moss. 
Mr. Moss. That is a loose practice that ought to be promptly cor­

rected. 
, Mr. RAWSON. The application, itself, certifies that what the appli­

cant has submitted is true rrnd correct. If that turns out to be false , 
Congressman :Moss, the applicant is subjected to very severe sanctions. 

]\1:r. Moss. "\Vhat sn,nctions do you have right now if we establish 
the fact that the applications for Overmyer overstated the available 
cash and the available assets personally held back up the commitments 
made in the application? 

\Vhat sanctions can this Commission now ha.-e? 
Mr. RAWSON. Section 1001 of the Criminal Code would be applicable 

and it would not be the Commission, it would ham to be refened to 
the Department of Justice for their · determination. 

Mr . BRow~. Mr. Chairman, I am having difficulty hearing. 
Mr. RAWSON. Section 1001 of the Criminal Code, which is specifi­

cally referred to in the application form, is handled by the Depart­
ment of Justice. vVhen matters of this nature arise they are referred 
to the Department of Justice for prosecution. 

Mr. Moss. You abdicate the responsibility to the Department of 
,Justice under the criminal laws of the United States? 

Mr. RAWSON. I am sorry, I didn't hear that. 

Mr. Moss. You are saying that the Commission abdicates its respon-
~bil~-- . . 

Mr. RAWSON. The jurisdiction to handle 1001 is by statute under 
the Department of Justice, not under the FCC. . . . 

Mr. Moss. I realize that. That is so very element~l,_it h~rdly J~sbfies 
repeating. I said what sanctions can the_ Commiss101_1 i!Ilpose 1 You 
talked about sanctions. Now you are talkmg about cnmmal prosecu-
tion by the Department of j usti~e._ . 

What sanction does the Commission have available? 
Mr. RAWSON. He has a station in Toledo, Ohio. If t?e matter was 

serious enough to disqu~lif~ him char~cterwise, rev:ocat10n_ or renew.al 
proceedings would be mstitutecl agamst the station which he still 
has. 

Mr. Moss. Characterwise? 
Mr. RAWSON. Yes, sir. 
,Mr. Moss. Well, maybe you will find something. . 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH., Might I just inser! here that the issu~ of the 

bank letter is not whether the bank letter 1s true_ or fal~e. I thi_nk :you 
could read the bank letter and agree that there is nothmg _on its face 
which would be subject to questioning as to truth or fa~si~y. 

The issue is whether against the backdrop of the Commission~s r~les 
nnd policies this bank letter was an acceptable part of an application 
portfolio for these stations. . .. 

Are you familiar Mr. Rawson and Mr. Hyde, with the prov1s10ns 
nn your form 314 (~ee appendix, p. 344), for application for consent 
to transfer? . . 

I ihave specific reference to question 4 ( c). I will read it to refresh 
your recollection: 

For each person who has agreed to furnish funds , _purchase stock ?r exten~ 
,·redit submit a verified copy of the agreement by which each person 1s so obll­
,_-nted,' showing the amount, terms of repayment, if any, and security, if any. 

Are you familiar with ~~ese rrovisions? . . 
Mr. RAWSON. I am familiar with the seot10n; yes, sir. 
Mr ARNOLD SMITH. Are these provisi'ons utilized in analyzing bank 

I t-.ter~ such as the bank letter from the bank in Cincinnati~ 
Mr. RAWSON. No, sir. We accept the bank letter generally. If an 

11 pplicant seems to be healthy financially we have over the years ac-
1·cptecl a bank letter for purposes of finding many financially quali-
li cl. . 

This is even clone in some hearing cases and we make ,the finclmg 
h:t. eel upon bank letters when designating an application for hearing 
11 nd not including a financial issue. . . . 

That has been the practice since I came t_o the Commiss101; m 1946. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Mr. Rawson, I don't mtend to engage m po~em­

ics but I can cite you some decisions of the Commission where~n a 
fin~ncial issue was raised when the specifics of repayment, the specifics 
of interest the specifics of elates when the moneys were to be pro-
l' iued were' not spelled out in the letter. . . 

Indeed, Mr._ Overmyer1 himself, was engaged at ~ne t~rne m ~t­
i (•mp ting to raise such an issue ~bot~t a competmg _apphc.ant s financ1~l 
11bmission for a CP. I would mqmre then, that if, m fact, you don t 

11Lilize the provisions of paragraph 4(c), why then do you have such 
11 provision in your forms? 

97-537-69--pt. 1--9 
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Mr. LEVY. Mr. Smith, may I respond to that, since it cuts across 
not only transfers but we use the same form and requirements in new 
applications, also. That provision to which you refer speaks in terms 
of verificrution. 

Mr. AirnoLD Sivn'l'II. Mr. Levy, was the letter verified from the bank 
in Cincinnati ? 

Mr. LEVY. No, sir; it was not. ,v e do not require verification. OriO'­
inally ~~e a?t requ~red verification. ?-'hat was subsequently chang:d 
to certification which ,,ve now require and we never changed this 
particular provision of the application form. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. vVhy not? \ 
Mr. L:evY. It is just a matter of getting to it, that is all. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMrrH. How long has this form been in existence? 
Mr. LEVY. Several years. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. It has taken several years to revise this form '? 
M~·- LE:'Y· The~e forms ar~ revised more or less continuously but 

the financial quahficat1011 section has not been revised in recent years. 
_Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. As a practicing attorney, how is one to ascer­

tam exactly what the Commission's policies and requirements are if its 
forms, rules, and decisions don't spell them out? How does one O'O 
about m3:king application for a construction permit if what you s~y 
on paper is not really so? 

Mr. HYDE. I can tell you that the application form has proved 
workable. There has been n? difficulty ar1smg from the questions that 
you have asked. Our experience over a long period has proved it is 
adequate for administration of the act. 

Mr. DINGEI;L. Mr. Chairman, that was not the question that was 
asked of you. 

,The question is, How is a practicing aUorney, _a practitioner, or a 
person ,yho has a matter pendmg before the Commiss10n, to know what 
the precise ground.rules under which he plays_ happen to be? 

Perhaps you might make the bald assertion that this has worked 
over the years. The faot of the matter is that you either expect some­
body to ~pe;rate through special friendships with Commission staff 
or C<?numssion members, or to have a crystal ball or ext'raordinary 
prescience. 

~ don't think that is the way a regulatory body should work. I may 
bemerror. 

Mr. _H:rnE. Congressman Dingell, the standards required by the 
Commission are well known. There is no doubt in the minds of the 
practitioners--

Mr. ~INGELL. vVe_ are discuss~ng 3: situatioI,1 wherein you have one 
s~t of s,_andards wluch are publicly mcluded m the forms and a pre­
c~s:lY different set of standards supposedly well known by the prac­
titioners. 

lit ~~ms to me we have an _ex_tra~rdinary situation here. Somebody 
practic~ng ?efore the Comn11ss1on is supposed to know which items 
appearmg m the rules and regulations aI,1d on the forms of your 
agency mean what they say they say and which do not mean what they 
say they mean. Some in fact may mean something else because of tlie 
practices ofthe Commission. 

As I under~tand, the rules have been in good administrrution of 
law, that one 1s supposed to have a clear understanding of what the 

po li cies of the agencies are. These are supposed to be spelled out with 
, rn1 siderable clarity and all persons are supposed to be treated pre­
' 1 11 ly alike. 

If' I am in error, I would appreciate being advised by you so tha.t we 
, 1111 go into that matter. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Dingell, I would like you to understand 
f lin.t, ,the Commission policies on showings required as to proof of 
I 11 1mcial ability are well established. They are in no wise dependent 
1111 special knowledge of people who may have--

lVCr. DINGELL. Now, the forms say one thing is to be done but you !ell 
11 1 t-he standard practice before the Commission is precisely somethmg 
1•1 10 that should be done. 

Which is the case, may I ask you? 
l\fr. HYDE. I will have to concede that the Commission has not re-

111 1• ved the word "verification" from the form subsequent to the change 
111 Lhe act by the Congress. Perhaps we were remiss in this. vVe ought 
f11 have taken away this requirement of verification because it is no 
l11 11 g-er required by Corrgress. 

I\ ut I suggest that the counsel is asking about ·a detailed matter that 
1111 ,· nothing to do with the substance of the matter. 

l\,f r. DINGELL. When did Congress remove this requirement? 
Mr. HYDE. I suppose they wanted to remove from ,the citizens the 

l11 1rden of going to a notary public. 
fr. DINGELL. I didn't say why. I said when . 

l\fr. HYDE. 1962 is my recollection. 
Mr. DINGELL. Since 1962 the forms have shown that these things have 

I 11 I >e1 verified in spite of the fact that the law is not so. 
ow, I may be quibbling about a very minor point but I would expect 

11 11 1 Commission as a part of its good housekeeping would keep its forms 
1,•11scmably current. 

:\1 r. HYDE. 1V-e endeavor to do that. 
1\1 r. DINGELL. It occurs to me that it is now 1968, some 6 years since 

11 11' change in the law. 
1\1 r. HYDE. We wish we could be more up to date in these changes. 
I\ f ,·. DINGELL. If it takes 6 years to change a simple thing like this 

I ,·1 111 see why it takes the Commission 30 years to solve some of the 
.. 1 l11•r matters they have before them. 

1\ 1 r. Moss. Let me ask the gentleman seated next to you, Mr. Chair-
1111111, t.heonethatwrotethe note you just used. 

,\I r. GEORGE SMITH. I am George Smith. 
\ Ir. Moss. All right, Mr. Smi,th, you give us the citation, the Code 

, , I ion. I recall voting for a bill to remove the requirement for swear­
llJ' 1~s to certain types of documents. I think it ,cvas aimed primarily at 

I li 11 <'llllvenience of the individual citizen on such matters as income tax 
, ,ii I It ings oHhat type. 

I I It ink I want to pursue more carefully whether we intended tha t it 
'l 'lil.Y to matters such as the applications filed before the Commission, 

111111 11t'ial documents in support of the application or wheth er i,t wonld 
, , , 111 i ro the Commission to remove that requirement. 

I ,1 •,I n shave the citation in the record. 
,1 r. GEORGE SMITH. Congressman Moss, I do not ham the cita tion. 

t 1, 1 Mr. Geller read this into the record? 
I I 111 CHAIRMAN. I don't think he has been sworn in. 
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Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It is section 308 (b) of the Communications Act 
and the chano-e is deleting the words "under oath" or "affirmation" 
from the last ~entence. So that it now requires certification of an appli­
cation and all exhibits included in the application. 

Mr. Moss. There is nothing to prevent the Commission from requir­
ino- a certified financial statement. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't quite ~nde~stand what you _mean by cer­
tified. You are talkino- about a certificat10n of the financial statement 
separate and apart fr~m the application? 

Mr. Moss. I do indeed mean precisely that. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No; we do not require a specific attachmeµt to 

each exhibit because the application, itself, includes all exhib_its. _The_y 
are identified in the application by number. When the apphcati~n. is 
certified to as being true and correct that includes the several exhrbits 
that were filed as a part of the application. 

The CHAIRMAN. Please proceed, counsel. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I ,would like to read quickly the second para­

graph of the bank letter in Cincinnati, which was written by Mr. 
Ralph H. Brookes, to Mr. Adams: 

We are willing to extend such a credit which would be repre_se1_1ted by a ~ote 
guaranteed by or indorsed by Mr. D. H. Overmyer ba,sed on ~ubm1ss10n of certified 
audited statements satisfactory to us and the broadcastmg company and Mr. 
Overmyer. . • · ht b 

The loan would be contingent upon such terms and conditions as m1g e 
mutually satisfactory to both your company and the bank. 

May I ask you Chairman Hyde, under the provisions of section II~, 
form 314, qu~sti~n 4 ( c), do you consider this b~nk let,~e.r to have "o~h­
o-ated the bank-I am usino- the language "obligated m quotes which 
:ppears in this form-"obligated" the bank to provide these funds. 

Mr. HYDE. No. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Since you didn't consider the. bank _to have 

been so obligated to pr?vide these fu~ds, _why does this specific pro­
vision of for:m 314 re<J.mre su~~ an obhgat10n? 

I will agam read this provis10n : 
For each person who has agreed to furnish bonds, purchase stock or extend 

credit submit copy of the agreement by which each person is so obligated. 

Mr. HYDE. There are many instances where an applicant star:ting 
a new business ,will have enlisted the assistance of friends or associates 
and frequently they will undertake commit!J?.ents to the en~erprise 
and in ,those circumstances we would need evidence of commitments 
by the people who are de:pended upon to ~na~ce the operation. 

This is a form tha.Jt is used for application under many, many 
circumstances. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Is the word "obligated" outdated, too? Should 
this word be stricken? 

Mr. HYDE. The word "obligated," no; it should not be stricken. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Let me ask you this, Commissioner: There arc 

actually two areas of this policy_, ~ne, the form which we hav_e bee~1 
discussing, and, two, the Commiss10n's own pronouncements m tl11s 
policy area. . 

I have reference, for example, to Kokomo P10neer Broadcasters 
Pike & Fischer Radio Regulation 6RR285, a 1960 decision. This, 
I think, enunciates the backdrop of another phase of this policy. It 
was stated in this opinion : 

'l'he Commission's primary concern is not whether the applicant company has 
IPg-al recourse against the promissor. At most, said legal recourse would be 
productive of money damages and not forms of contract but whe~her the ~ecord 
lnlli cates reasonable assurance that the promissor will fulfill his commitment 
to the applicant company. 

'Without o-ettino· into all the nuances of Commission policy ov~r 
i lio years with respect to the bank letters, is it your opinion that tl11s 
lotter from the Bank of Cincinnati, particularly the se:ond para;graph 
which I read, provides "reasonable assurance" that this bank willful-
fi 11 its commitment to Mr. Overmyer? . . . 

Mi. HYDE. I just answered _you_r prev10us q~est10n saymg that we 
did not reo-ard that as an oblwat10n or commitment by the bank. 

Mr. DIN"°GELL. Then, as a matter of fact, it lus about as much ~ele­
Vttncy in the record as an announcement of a program tJie bank might 
liitve with regard to increased interest rates to attract mvestors. 

Am I correct? . 
Mr. HYD1:,. I think there could be an indication of credit standmg 

hort of commitment by the bank. . . 
1\fr. DINGELL. That, is another matter. But this certamly does not 

i 11dicate that the bank expects to take on any obligation in regard to 
i.11 0 radio stations. 

Mr. HYDE. We certainly did not rely upon this as a contract com-
111 it·ment bv the bank to take on this responsibility. 

Mr. DriaELL. If this did not indicate that the bank ~as go!ng ~o 
,,111stain Mr. Overmyer's credit, his application, what precisely did this 
l11Lter indicate to the Commission? 

Mr. HYDE. I would cite that this is one of the evidences of Over-
111 yer's financial standing but not the exclusive evidence of it. 

·Mr. DINGELL. What did it say about his financial sta.nding? 
Mr. HYDE. As I understand the letter, and I have not read it for 

ome months, as I understood the letter, it gave some indi?ation of the 
c'cmditions under which the bank could extend some credit. 

Mr. DINGELL, Under which it could? 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. 
Mr. DINGELL. What were the conditions? 
Mr. HYDE. Counsel has read the letter. I don't have it in front of me. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did the Commission scrutinize to see what these con-

ditions were or when they would come into play or what effect they 
would have on the transactions? 

Mr. HYDE. This would have been examined in connection with the 
ot.her evidences of financial ability none of which was to be considered 
i, lusive of the other evidences. ·· 

Mr. DINGELL. The letter here says, "vVe are willing to extend such 
11 <'redit which would be represented by a note either guaranteed by or 
111dorsed by Mr. Overmyer based upon the s1~bmission of certified 
1111dited figures satisfactory to us, the broadcastmg company and Mr. 
I )vermyer." 

What that says to me is that they would, if he submitted figures 
1111 d data on his financial condition. These figures have not been sub-
111 it,ted. They have no way of knowing what they are, or what they 
,, i 11 be. 

Am I correct on this, Mr. Chairman? 
Mr. HYDE. I think you are. 
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Mr. DINGELL. So that, as a matter of fact, all they ar~ saying is that 
if he submits some fi<Tures and so forth that they will look at the 
figures and mayb3 giveehim credit. Is that right? 

Mr. HYDE. Yes. . . . . 
Mr. DINGELL. This is not a commitment to credit. This is a comnut ­

ment to look at figures. 
Mr. HYDE. That is all it is. 
Mr. DIKGELL. If you were going to engage in a co_mmercial trans~c­

tion wit h Mr. Overmyer, -would you have entered mto a commercial 
transaction based upon a document of this kind? 

Mr. HYDE. It depends entirely, of _cou~·se, on the ven~ure that you 
mio-ht have in mind. I would not be mclmed to treat this as an asset b 

in it self. 
Mr. DINGELL. It could hardly be called anything other than an 

agreement to take a look at certified figur~s. The bank further went on 
and said, "The 1mm would also be contmgent upon such terms and 
conditions as might be usually satisfactory to both your company 
and the bank." 

That, again, is another qualification. 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. 
J\fr. DINGELL. Earlier they said, "You have asked us to consider 

in connection with construction of such a station a $400,000 term 
credit." . 

There is nmvhere in that letter that they agreed that they are gomg 
to extend him a line of $400,000 of term credit, is there? . 

Mr. HYDE. All you have is an offer to consider a loan under condi-
tions which they prescribed. . . 

Mr. DINGELL. 1Vould you loan money on reliance of a letter of this 
kind or would you regard this as something by which you could assumr 
that Mr. Overmyer would have $400,000 in bank credit? 

"'.\fr. HYDE. The letter does--
Mr. DINGELL. W11ere, Mr. Chairman, does this letter give you _an_v 

reason to believe that the bank would extend a $400,000 term credit tn 
Mr. Overymyer? . . 
· Mr. HYDE. There 1s no firm commitment to extend. 

Mr . DINGELL. ,vhere do they in any way indicate they will talk to 
:\fr. Overmver on the subject o:f $400,000? 

Mr. HYDi. I don't find any commitment in the letter. 
J\fr. DINGELL. As a matter of fact, any blockhead -walking- off thr 

street could expect roughly similar treatinent to -what Mr. Overmyer 
cou 1d get under this letter, could he? 

:\fr. HYDE. I am not sure of that. 
Mr. DINGELL. He could expect that they vrnuld tnlk to him. And i f 

he could establish that he was justified in procuring that kind 0£ cred it 
based upon certified audit figures he might get $400,000. 

J\fr. HYDE. I don't believe the bank would issue a letter 0£ that kind 
on such a casual basis. 

J\fr. DINGELL. I am going to ask you no-w if you can again tell m 0 
where in this letter is there anything that indicates the bank is going 
to do anythino- other than talk to Mr. Overmyer about this matter. 

Mr. HYDE. I~gree, Mr. Congressman, there is no firm commitment by 
the hank. 

Mr. DINGELL. Then how can you regard this letter as establishin!! 
any kind of basis for credit for Mr. Overmyer? 

Mr. HYDE. I also indicated that this would only be one of the evi-
1 lnnces submitted to the Commission. 

Mr. DINGELL. 1Vhat other evidences were there? . . 
Mr. HYDE. 1Vell, sir; I would have to have the apphcat10n file and 

l1 11 ve an analysis. . . . . 
Mr. DINGELL. I yield back to Mr: Smith on tlus pomt m_id _let h1m 

,·nnt.inue. But you will agree that this letter, far from estabhshmg any 
li11 sis o-f financial reliance, is quite worthless. . . 

Mr. HYDE. I agree that it is not a firm commitment. Ma:r:be I will 
l1 :1ve Mr. Sheridan, who was Chief of the Bureau at the time these 
11 pplications were consider~d, to discuss this i_natter. . 

Mr. SnERIDAN. Mr. Chall'man, I would like to try to c~an_:fy some-
111 i ng that may be helpful in discussion o-f ~his. Co:,1n~el mdicatecl he 
\\' a S going to take these items up by date of Commission grant. That 
iH ,dry th~s item o-f Cincin~ati com~s first. . . . 

There is a subsequent item which shmYs that the Comm1ss10_n d1d 
11Pa] with the Overmver financial qualifications. I am now referrmg to 
t lie Toledo item wh1ch wi'll be noted is dated ,January 2:3, 1964, for 
( 'rnnmission action on February 5, 1964. . 

Now this particular item deals with thr~e mutually e~c_lusive ap­
plications, Overmyer, Producers, two ; Sprmgfie]d Tele~is~on, _thr~e. 

.U the time that this item -was presented to the Comm1~s10n it ;Vill 
liow in the item that the staff raised financial qualifications ag;amst 

lioth Producers and Springfield Broaclcasti~1g and. sugg:estecl m the 
ii('aring that it was necessary that the fin~nc~al qua_hficati~ms o:f the~e 
1 11·0 parties be thoroughly expl_ored and_ rndicated m the item that it 
11 :i s satisfied with the financial showmg made by the Overmyer 
, 11·o·anization. . 

[ might add that when you have competing applicants the P\thhc 
i-< best protected by their mvn interest and i-f they felt on the basis 0£ 
1 l1 c information in the public files on Overmyer that there was. 3:ny 
q1 1C'stion whatsoever about his finamcial qualifica.tions such petition 
11 nnld have been filed to add an issue against him. 

As I see the file, one was subsequently filed and it was. d~nied. I 
11 11 nted to put it in the conte~t of th~ -fac~ that ~he Commis_s10~ ha~ 
1 I iscussed the Overmyer financrnl qualifications pnor to the Cmcmnati 
If I '111 . 

.\ s a matter of fact, the vear before. 
The CHAIRMAN. A~e you sayino- that there was one opposition filed 

b • d "d?, 11 .-a.inst the financial statement and you sa:Y 1t was ~me. , 
Mr. LEVY. Mr. Chairman, a-fter thi,s particular apphcat10n, the three 

1q1plications for Toledo were designated for hearing_; one of t_he 
p111ties in that hearing asked for an e?laqrement o:f the issues to raise 
1 li<1 financial qualifications issue agamst Mr. 9vermyer. . . 

This petition to enlarge issues was then coi:s1dcred b_y the .Gommis-
1! 111 Review Board. The Review Boa.rd considered this pet1t10n and 

,, rnte a decision finding that there was no sufficient showing_ that 
li11 d been made by the petitioner.to w~rrant en~argement of the issues 
1" raise the financial qualifications issue agamst Mr. Overmyer at 
1 l111t time in that proceeding. . . i 

The CHAIRMAN. Then they were never determmed, were. th(;Y. 
~fr. LEVY. Yes, sir: the Commission made an initial determmat10n 

1 I III t. Mr. Overmyer ~as financially qualified. Upon review of that by 
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the Review Board in the hearing and the submission of additional facts 
by the petitioner the Review Board again found that Mr. Overmyer 
was financially qualified. 

The CHAIRMAN. For what? Financially qualified for what? 
M:r. LEVY. To construct and operate the Toledo station. 
The CHAIRMAN. ,Tust one station? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
The CHAIRMAN.You took that for all of them? 
.Mr. LEVY. That takes into account whatever obligations he may 

have made before the Commission concerning other applications that 
may have been involved. 

The CHAIRMAN. Is this before 1964? 
Mr. LEVY. This was the first one. 
The CHAIRMAN. That vrns for all the rest of them since then? 
1'1:r. LEVY. I can't answer--
Mr. DINGELL. vVas any subsequent review made in connection with 

other applications to ascertain whether or not there was a change in 
Mr. Overmyer's financial condition? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir; when we got down to the application for Dallas 
which we also designated for hearing we raised the financial qualifica­
tions issue against Mr. Overmyer. 

Mr. DINGELL. What year was that? 
Mr. LEVY. This was in 1965. The application was designated for 

hearing on December 30, 1965. 
Mr. DINGELL. He withdrew his application? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. When the financial issue was raised Mr. Over­

myer subsequently dismissed that particular application. 
Mr. DINGELL. Was there any review of Mr. Overmyer's financiaJ 

capability between the first application for Toledo and the time he 
withdrew? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
For instance, in the Rosenberg, Tex., application, when the staff pre­

sented that item to the Commiss10n in August 1965, I think it was, that 
particular memo to the Commission contained the review of Mr. Over­

.. myer's qualifications at that time. 
Mr. DINGELL. What was the staff finding at that time? 
Mr. LEVY. The sta.ff finding at that time was that Mr. Overmyer was 

still qualified. 
Mr. DINGELL. Was still qualified? 
Mr. LEVY.Yes, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. What other strong evidence did you receive of his 

qualifications since you got this first most meaningful letter from the 
bank? 

Mr. LEVY. Well, in each•application, and I can only speak for the 
applictttions which my division handled, we had similar bank letters 
and balance sheets from Mr. Overmver. 

Mr. DINGELL. Those bank letters were the first ones? 
Mr. LEVY Yes, sir. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Brown. 
Mr. BROWN. I want to clarify the situation with reference to the 

Toledo station. 
As I understand what you have said, the Toledo station was the first 

application and there were no others applied for while it was pending 
when the issue of financial responsibility was raised. Is that correct? 

Mr. LEVY. I am not sure on that, sir. I think l may ~ave something 
that indicates that, though. I think that is correct. Cert'.1mly the Toled_o 
application 'Yas the first_ one received. T~ere ,vere, I thrnk, oth_er appl~: 
cations pendmg by the_time_that was d~s1gr:iated but the financial qua}1 
fl.cations or other quahficat10n determm_at10n had not been mude with 
respect to the other applications at that time. . . 

So the way the staff would proceed would be to 1!1ake qu~hficat10~s 
findings on whether Mr. Overmyer c<:mld ~eet h1S_ commi~ments rn 
Toledo and then in subsequent applicat10ns ~1s comm_1tme~ts m To)edo 
would have to be taken into account in mukmg quahficat10ns findmgs 
,vlien later applications came up for action. . . 

Mr. BROWN. There were two other applwmts for the outlet rn 
Toledo? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. . . . • f fi 
Mr. BROWN. When a competmg applicant raises theqt'.estion o. nai:.-

cial aualificatio~n of another applicant, is it a comparative matter or is 
it a si'mple matter of re is or is not qualified? . . . 

Mr. LEVY. It is a pimple matter of whether he _is or is not quahJ'.ied. 
Mr. BROWN. Are you free to say who the applicant was that raised 

the question of financial qualification? , . . 
Mr. LEVY. I am free to say so, sir; but I don t have the ~nformahon 

before me. It could be obtained. I might add that when this pr?ced_ure 
is invoked in the hearing process the Br~mdcast Burea~, which is a 
party to that proceeding-I_a~ told that it was the Sprmgfield Tele-
castino- that raised the financial issue. . . 

Mr.0 Bnowx. Is Springfield Telecasting in there 1:11erely questionmg 
whether or not Mr. Overmyer is qualified financially, they a:r:e not 
raisino-the question as to whether they or Overmyer are more qualified? 

Mr.0 LEvY. No; they are raising the question of whether Overmyer 
is or is not qualified. . . 

Mr. BROWN. In other words, was Springfield at that time still under 
consideration for the license? 

Mr. LEVY. Very much so; yes, sir. That would be the reaso~ they a:r:e 
raising the issue, to have a chance to prove that the competmg appli-
cant is not qualified. . . . . . ,_ 

Mr. BROWN. That pomt of financial quahficat10n could knoc,'" them 
out of competition? , . 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir; if the Commission had made an adverse fincnng 
that would have been the end. . 

Mr. BROWN. So the staff could say this party is qualified to remai?­
in competition but does not make a judgment between the three appli­
cants for the station? 

Mr. LEVY. No, sir. 
The CHAIBMAN. Mr. Smith, you may conttnue. . . 
Mr. ARNOLD SMrrH. Might I just ask this q~rnst10n? N ot:vithstand­

i ng the Toledo application and the problem m Toledo with _respect 
1 o competing parties, is it not a fact that under: the Commumcat10~s 
Act each application for each m3;rket must ?e given a separate publ~c 
interest, convenience, and necessity determmat10n before that appli-
cation can be granted? . . . . . 

Despite what :was_ written _m Toledo, desp_ite what w~s wntte~ _m 
some other apphcat10n, despite what analysis was provided therem, 
i.-n't that a fact? 
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Mr. HYDE. The law clearly requires that the Commission make the 
appropriate finding on each application. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Let me continue-I think the bank letter mat­
ter has been dwelled on long enough-to two further points to try to 
bring out some of the other financial aspects of Overmyer's qualifica­
tions or lack thereof in obtaining this permit in Cincinnati. 

Is it not a fact that Mr. Overmyer had in this application a letter 
signed by Robert Adams, that was accepted for the record yesterday, 
purportedly committing the resources of Mr. Overmyer personally and 
purporting to commit the resources of the D. H. Overmyer 1Vare­
housing Co. & Affiliates to the venture of the Cincinnati station? 

To refresh your recollection I would like to give you this letter 
of February 2, 1965, signed by Mr. Adams ( see appendix, item 10 ( g), 
p. 359) in which he purports to commit the resources of Mr. Overmyer 
personally. 

There is nothing in the record as to what analysis, if any, was made 
of this letter. Is it your opinion that this letter does in fact commit 
the resources of Mr. Overmyer personally and does in fact commit the 
resources of his warehouse company? 

'\Vhile you are reading it, I might add that the reason for having 
dwelled so long on the bank letter is because in the financial sub­
missions to the Commission for the Cincinnati station bank credit v,as 
virtually 50 percent of the money that Mr. Overmyer needed to con­
struct and operate this station. Therefore, if in fact the bank letter was 
no commitment, then Mr. Overmyer in fact did not demonstrate his 
financial qualifications to operate this station. 

Returning o:qce again to the Adams letter, did it, in your opinion, 
commit Mr. Overmyer and the resources of his warehouse companies? 

Mr. RAWSON. Mr. Smith, I would say that this particular letter, 
and we had obviously in this particular case raised a question ,Yith 
Mr. Overmyer concerning his financial qualifications and it was this 
statement along with the bank letter that I am sure led to the finding 
that Mr. Overmyer was financially qualified to construct and operate 
the Cincinnati station. 

This we would take as a representation and we would hold him 
to this representation under certain circumstances that he was com­
mitting his funds, his personal funds and his ,varehouse funds to 
the construction of this particular station. 

Mr. ARNOLD SllnTH. I would request the chairman to ask the Com­
mission to furnish for the record, because staff is unable to find such, 
any questions that the FOC may have raised in writing with respect 
to this letter or with respect to Overmyer's financial fitness for becom­
ing a permittee. 

Mr .. R~wsoN. M~. Chairman, I think, of course, the letter that you 
have mdicates on its face that the staff had conversations with Mr. 
Overmyer or his attorneys and that as a result of those conversations 
they submitted the balance sheets of Overmyer individually and the 
warehouse and made the decision that these would be favorruble. 

Now we do this frequently in order to save the time of the staff and 
to a void the delay in processing applications. vVe will handle matters 
of this kind informally over the telephone. vVe will have the counsel 
over and frequently, of course, counsel can bring the applicant, discuss 
the .problems we have so that there can be no misunderstanding and 
ask that they furnish the information. 

This we find saves us considerable time and delay _in the ~rocess 
of the application, it avoids the writing of a letter, avoids the time of 
11 secretary. . . . . 

Mr. ARNOLD SMI'l'H. Mr. Rawson, did you receive orally or m wnt-
i no- at the time of these conversations, anything which would have led 
t.othe conclusion that Robert Adams, executive vice president <?fa sub­
Hidiary operation of Mr. Overmy~r's, could personal~y commit _Over­
myer and could personally commit :i,no~her c_o~porat10n, of which he 
was not an officer? Was there somethmg m wntmg, such as _a power of 
11ttorney that Overmyer may have given Adams, to enable him to make 
s11 clCcommitments? . . 

Mr. RAWSON. Mr. Adams, I notice, is the executive vice pres1;dent of 
I he Overmyer companies and as ,execu~ive vi<?e president he did com-
111 itthe Overmyer Warehouse Co.s and its affiliates. 

Now we would take this and we would assume, and I assume t~e 
nLtorney who processed this applic~tion too~ this into account m 
lindino- that Mr. Overmyer was financially qualified to not only buy the 

b \ h . ('onstruction permit bvt to construct and_ operat~ t e stat10n. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH'. '\Vere any questions raised orally o~ the at;; 

1 orneys for Mr. Overmyer or for a~yone. e~s~ as to such comm1tme~ts_. 
Mr. RAWSON. I am sorry, Mr. Smith. This 1s dated February 3, HJ6:). 

I just could not possibly answer that question. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITI-1. Is there anyone at the table that can answer 

I.h e question? 
Mr.RAwsoN.No,sir. CC 
The CHAIRMAN. Do you mean to teH me th_at you conduct the F 

with out records; that you allow some people Just to talk and ask q ues-
1 ions and don't keep a record of what goes on? I should ask tlus of 
l\ l r. Hyde. 

Mr. HYDE.No. 
The CHAIRMAN. He savs conversations. '\Ve don't know about con• 

, <'rsations. vVe don't kno~v about anybody picking up telephones. He 
Hn,ys this is back in 1965, he does not recall. Maybe there were _no <:on­
l'Prs,ations with anybody. Maybe they went ahead and granted it '·1th-
rn1t. anything. . 

Mr. R AWSON. The letter says, "Dear Mr. V{aple: P_ursuant to ~n­
rormal conversations with the staff there are subm1tted herew1th 
l,:1l ance sheets of D. H. Overmyer individually and D. H. Overmyer 
\V:trehouse & Affiliates. 

[ think it is reasonable to assume there were conversations. As I say, 
i lH'Se are not formal hearings we are talking about . ~his i~ in the 
processing of the applications t? avoid a lot of delay m assignment 
11 11d transfer ma,tters and to av01d a lot of work on the part of secre­
l II ri al help we frequently handle these matters informally with the 
11 pplic•ant or with the attorney. . . . . . 

The CHAIRMAN. It looks to me like it is public busmess, and yon are 
l111.11dlino- these matters as if vou were two individuals, bargaining. You 
1111 vo no ~io-ht to conduct the Nation's business that wa,y. 

Mr. 1\fo~s. You have identified Mr. Robert Adams as the execut ive 
vi,·o president of the Overmyer companies and therefore you assu!lle 
I ii11t, he had the authority, the power to bind the Overmyer compame~. 

,vasn't he in fact executive vice president of Overmyer's commnm-
1·1tLions, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Overmyer Co. or a wholly 
nwned entity of Overmyer, himself? 
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Mr. RAWSON. Congressman Moss, you may be correct on t~at. vVe 
have a letter here which says the D. H. Overmyer Broadcastmg Co., 
he is executive vice president. . 

Mr. Moss. Then if he was committing the Overmyer compames, 
the warehouse companies, he would certaii:-ly have to be a corporate 
official before you could make the assumption that he had the power 
to bind them. . 

"'\Vhat evidence do you have that he had any such pow~r to bm~? 
Mr. RAWSON. I have no evidence at all. I was atte_mptmg_to g~ve a 

solution to Mr. Smith in connection with the financial quahficat10ns, 
that the attorney who processed. this particular. case operated on tl~e 
assumption that the letter he received together with the balance sheets, 
together with the bank Jetter which n~r. Smith. thinks is inadequate, 
indicated that Mr. Overmyer was financrnl)y qualified. . 

I am sure he must have accepted this as a commitment of Mr. 
Overmyer's personal funds. Maybe he was incorre,ct in doing so. I 
think I would ,rnnt a little bit more, I would want Mr. Overmyer's 
signature. 

Mr. Moss. Do vou review these letters yourself? 
Mr. RA wsoN. ·No. sir; I do not review every one of these letters. 
Mr. Moss. You don't really want me to believe that there is no coi:-

temporaneous memorandum of these discussions? \iVhat happens if 
someone dies? 

Mr. RAWSON. I don't know whether you believe me or not. 
nfr. Moss. To he very candid, I don't, because I have been 20 years 

im·esti1rnting in this particular field. . , 
Mr. RAwso"'. It so happens that on occas10n-I cant say whether 

there would be i memorandum for the file outlining the discussion. I 
do know that most of the time there is no memorandum. That is cor­
rect. 

Mr. Moss. How many cases do you handle a year? 
Mr. RAWSON. 750 cases, and they run an average of sometimes 70 

or 80 a month. It is quite a bit of work. 
Mr. Moss. You have then verbal discussions going on? 

, Mr. RAWSON. Not on every occasion. It is only on occasion that we 
have a problem. In order to expedite and to avoid a lot of unnecessary 
work we, as a matter of fact it has heen the practice for years, han~le 
thinP-s informallv to iron them out because, rmtlly, the only parties 
involved in these cases would be the Commission and the applicant. 
Now, if there were other parties involved we would have to go on the 
record and write a Jetter. 

Mr. Moss. The public is involved the moment the case starts and th_is 
committee is involved in both the House and the Senate because m 
creatino· the Federal Communications Commission we did not legislate 
our responsibility in broadcastin~. We legislated a board ~ut not a 
responsibility. That we retained in the Congress. So we are mvolved. 
So there is not just the two 0£ you involved but there are a whole group 
of us involved .. The informality makes it difficult for us to know what 
you. as our agents, I assume in this instance, have done. 

Mr. RAWSON. I can assure you, Congressman Moss, that this staff, my 
staff, the entire staff 0£ the FCC, works diligently to protect the public 
interest and in each one of these cases the staff members look over and 
scrutinize these things with utmost care. I am sure on occasions there 
may be a mistake of judgment exercised but it usual1y would be area-

.l.UU 

i-;onable mistake 0£ judgmen! a_nd certainly not incompetence. I think 
you have to rely, the Commiss10n has to rely, upon the competence of 
l ite staff and we think we have a very competent staff. 

Mr. Moss. I have a very competent staff, but I expect them to keep 
pretty good memorandums for the fil~s so that I kno~ the substance 
of discussions i£ I want to call them m my office to disc1;1-ss a mat~er 
t,ii::i,t took place a year ago. I don't want them to rely on their memone_s: 
l think it is unfair to burden them, e~pect them_ t? ~ely on then 
memories when they handle a number of items, even if 1t 1s only a half 
dozen. d · 1 

Mr:·K<\wsoN. I think, Congress11:-an ~foss, that depen s entire yon 
the materiality of the matter that is bemg handled mformal~y. If _we 
had a very important matter you can rest assured that the _discussion 
would be "reduced to writing and a memorand_um placed m_the fil~. 

Mr. Moss. I am very pleased tha~ you have_ Just characterized this 
H 'ries 0£ applicatio-ns as no_t a very important item. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Smith, will you carry on? 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. "'(._es, sir. . . . . 
Mr. Rawson, yo~ mentioned that yo1;1 did not do_ th~ rev~ewmg i~ 

t,l ris matter. ·who, m fact, made the review ?n ~h_e Crncrnnat1 stat10~. 
Mr. RAWSON. Mr. Alford, I assume, who is clllef of the branch, did 

I.he reviewing. . 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. :Mr. Alford, do you have any tl!-oughts m 

11,mplification of these matters "·ith respect to the committal letter 
o l' Mr.Adams? . . 

Mr. ALFORD. I don't have any personal recollection of revie:"mg 
it. I do remember at the time feeling that this man was well qualified, 
I.hat he was quite a wealthy man. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. \Vhat did you base tha~ feeling on? . 
Mr. Moss. If you will just yield at that pomt. I want to pomt out 

now exactly the point I was trying to make a few moments ago. . 
You just made a statement, "I don't recall," on a matter that is of 

importance and js now before a committee of the Congress. If there 
were contemporaneous memor'.1nd~ms writt~n.and placed in the files of 
t.his case you would know. It 1s still my opm10n that those memoran­
c I urns exist or did exist. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, I would like to say_ that w_e have 
nndeavored to supply every scrap of paper that there 1s on this case. 
We have not withheld a thing purpose~y. . . 

Mr. Moss. vVe have a fairly extensive number of rnstances ,yhich I 
ll' ill not bother to deal with at this time where that was not evidenced 
liy the material supplied to this committee. . 

Mr. HYDE. You have been examining this case for 6 months. Durmg 
th at time we have made a number 0£ requests. "\i\Te have made a bona 
tide serious effort to give you every one of the papers th~t have be~n 
prepared by the staff for the Board and to supply everythmg about it. 

Mr. Moss. I don't concur jn that. 
The CHAIRMAN. We will review that at the end of the questioning, 

HH to the difficulty we have had. 
Go ahead, Mr. Smith. . 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Since Overmyer's personal and warehouse funds 

hncame an issue in the Cincinnati application, his financial statements, 
both warehouse and persona 1, becnme very relevant. I have in front of 
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me the financial statement referred to earlier ( see appendix, item 10( c), 
p. 34'8), Overmyer's personal statement of August 31, 196'4, which was 
submitted for Cincinnati, and his warehouse balance sheet at August 31, 
1964, which ,vas also submitted in that application. Do any of you 
gentlemen have a copy of these balance sheets? 

Looking at his personal balance sheet, is it not a fact that Mr. Over­
myer's current assets exceeded his current liabilities by $1)63.14? 

M:r. HYDE. On my sheet I have before me dated August 31, 1V64, it 
shows total current assets $10,299.rn. 

Mr. ARNOLD SJ\II'l'H. And his total current liabilities of $V,336.25? 
Mr. HYDE. That is correct. , 
l\fr. ARNOLD SJ\IITH. Therefore, the simple subtradion, unless my 

figures are wrong, would result in a difference of $963.14. 
~Mr. HYDE. That would be the difference. 
Mr. ARNOLD SJ\IITH. Is $963.14 a sufficient amount to comply with the 

requirements of your form 314, section 3, question 4(d), wherein it is 
provided thait current liquid assets must be sufficient in amount to meet 
current liabilities? Does this difference of less than a thousand dollars 
indicate, or did it indicate to you that Overmyer met the requirements 
of this provision? 

T he CnAIR~IAN. Is there anyone who can answer th :1t question? 
Mr. HYDE. Obviously, a difference of less than a thousand dollars 

would not be a sufficient showing. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Chairman Hyde, was this question asked of Mr. 

Overmyer in writing or orally, by yourself or by any of the other mem­
bers of the Commission or staff members present here today, ·with re­
spect to this sum of $963? 

Mr. HYDE. I never asked any such question. I don't know whether 
such question was asked by staff. We will find out. 

Mr. ARNOLD SJ\IITH. Is it your opinion, Commissioner Hyde, that this 
amount does not fulfill the requirement specified in the form? 

Mr. HYDE. You are talking about net current assets on his personal 
account. I believe the application was filed in the corporate name. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I am talking about Mr. Overmyer's personal 
fin ancial sheet. I am talking about it because ostensibly his personal 
resources-Mr. Overmyer's personal net worth of more than $5 mil­
lion-which is referred to time and time again not only in Cincinnati 
but in Atlanta, in Pittsburgh, in San Francisco, and in Houston, would 
come to the aid and rescue of these fledgling permittecs were they to 
need his cash. -

My question is based on your own requirement in form 314. Is this 
requirement met on the basis of the current asset-current liability test ? 

Mr. RAWSON. I think possibly I might be able to answer. I believe 
you have a copy of the item that went to the Commission with the 
KD YA-TV a pp Ii cation in San Francisco? 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Yes. 
Mr. RAWSON. If you refer to that item that is dated October 20, Mr. 

Smith. 
Mr. BROTZJ\L\N. Mr. Chairman, I have been listening to testimony 

here and I am having a terrible time following the documentary evid­
ence. I can't begin to make an evaluation here unless I can allude to 
and refer to the document being considered. 

Do I understand you are replying from a.nother document now? 
vVe have moved from the D. H. Overmyer balance sheet of August 31, 
1964? I have that. 

Mr. RAWSON. Mr. Smith had some questions about his personal 
commitment in connection with San Francisco and the various other 
fledgling permits. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I am questioning Cincinnati at this time. Mr. 
Brotzman, the question is raised because Mr. Overmyer's personal 
finances, his own personal not worth, heavily supported his financial 
qualifications which were presented to the Commission. 

Tam questioning the Commission about its requirement that an ap­
plicant show current assets to meet the liabilities which come due. 

Mr. BROTZMAN. I understand whn.t yon are driving at, and I under­
stand that particular bit of evidence to some extent. I was trying to 
hold it up so that I would get the next document to understand the 
·11·itness' response···where he referred to another document. Am I cor-
rect.? \ 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH., Yes. 
Mr. RAWSON. Yes, sh. He then changed his question. He knocked 

off all the other stations and went back to Cincinnati. I thought I had 
already answered the question about Cincinnati that as far as that 
letter was concerned I certainly would want a signature from J\fr. 
On!rmyer as his personal commitment. I have assumed the effort in 
the Cincinnati case was made because of the :fact that he did have this 
very small excess of current assets over current liabilities. 

l°" snally when this happens ,ve require an applicant to come in and 
make a much stronger showing as to under these circumstances how 
then are you going to be able to finance the construction and opera­
tion o_f the station. I assume that is where the Overmyer properties 
came m, and balance sheets, and the letter from Mr. Adams. 

As I said before, I assume that the attorney processing the applica­
tion used his judgment to believe that that was a commitment from 
Overmyer himself. 

Mr. ARNOLD SJ\IITJI. I am only relating $963 as it appears on this 
financial submission to the Commission with respect to Mr. Overmver's 
financial cmalifications in Cincinnati. " 

I have i·eference to these other stations merely to point out that his 
personal fortune and the fortune of his warehouse operations were 
heavily involved in all 5. vVas a question raised in the Cincinnati ap­
plication about this lack of sufficient assets? vVas there anything writ-
1 en to Mr. Overmyer questioning it? • 

Mr. RAwsoN. Not that I kno,v of, Mr. Smith. 
l\fr. ARNOLD SMITH. vVhy not? 
Mr. RAWSON. I thought I answered that question earlier, that it ,ms 

probably done on an informal basis and we have no letter in onr files 
11·hich would indicate that we had gone back by letter to Mr. Ove11nyer 
raising question along this line. · 

Mr. ARNOLD S3IITH. Let me go on to another point. vVe will rlrop the 
$063 for just a moment. Looking at the same balance sheet, a11othcr 
qnes6on is provoked. I might add that these are questions whic-h are 
rn,ised from the face of Overmyer's submissions that were 111ado to the 
Commission. vVe didn't need to investigate th is 1rnttter for 6 months, as 
Chairman Hyde implied, to ask these kinds of questions. 
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Looking at the statement of _August 31, 1964, isn'_t it a fa~t that 
virtually all of l\fr. Overmye1"s alleged net worth 1s comprised of 
closed corporation stock? 

Mr. RAWSON. That is what it says. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Was any attempt made to ask Mr. Overmyer 

what the value of these securities was? 
Mr. RAWSON. He estimates the value on the balance sheet itself. I 

don't believe there was any effort made to verify it, no, sir. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. So you are saying, that there was no supple­

mental showing of any kind that Mr. Overm.yer's liquid assets would 
provide funds when necessary based on this amount of over $5 million 
in closed corporation securities? 

Mr. R-\ wsoN. I personally couldn't answer the question but I would 
suspect that there ,vas no showing if the applicrution does not show 
it and you have the application and there wasn't any showing made. 

11:r. ARNOLD SMITH. Doesn't form 314, section III, question 4(d) re­
quire that there be such a supplemental showing; that if nonliquid­
ity is going to be used in some way, it be indicated how such funds will 
be obtainable. Doesn't paragraph ( d) refer specifically to this point? 

:M:r. RAWSON. Yes, sir; it does. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Referring to the bank letter from the Bank 

of Cincinnati, they required that Overmyer personally guarantee this 
loan. vVas any question raised about this contingent liability of some 
$400,000 with reference to Overmyer's August 31, 1964, financial state­
ment? 

Mr. RAWSON. I don't know. 
]Hr. Am,ow SMITH. Does anyone at the table know? Mr. Alford? 
Mr. ALFORD.No, I don',t know. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Let me ask you another question about this 

financial statement: Doesn't the provision of section III of form 314, 
paragraph 4 ( d) require a showing of amounts payable during 1 year 
on long-term debt and amounts payable during succeeding years? 

Mr. RAWSON. I didn't get the question. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Isn't it a fact that section III of form 314 re­

quires a breakdown of amounts payable on long-term debt both for the 
year for which the sheet is submitted and for succeeding years? 

Mr. RAWSON. It does. 
Mr. ARNOLD S:i,,nTH. vVhere was such a showing here with respect to 

mortgages payable? 
Mr. RAWSON. I don't know whether there was any showing, sir. I 

haven't reviewed the submission. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH.\Vas any request made that a showing be made? 
Mr. RAWSON. I don't know. 
Mr. ARNOLD s~nTH. Let us leave the personal balance sheet for a 

moment and go to the warehouse balance sheet of August 31, 1964. Mr. 
Rawson, in your opinion what does "surplus" mean in that little block 
"shareholder's equity" do,vn at the bottom of the page there? Surplus 
is shown as $3,207,394.57. vVhat exactly, in your opinion, does the 
word "surplus" mean? 

Mr. RAWSON. To me it just means the balancing figure, that is all. 
The CHAIRMAN. I didn't get that. 
l\fr. RA wsoN. A balancing figure. 
Mr. ARXOLD SMITH. Does it, in your estimation, signify earned 

surplus '/ 

Mr. RA wsoN. No, sir; I "ould not take it to mean that. I don't know 
how the attorney processing the application understood it. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. vVho reviewed this application? 
Mr. RAWSON. Mr. Alford reviewed it. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Mr. Alford, does this word ''surplus," in your 

estimation, mean earned surplus? Does it mean paid in surplus? Does 
it mean appreciated surplus? Since you reviewed this, what did it 
mean? 

Mr. ALFORD. I don't know, sir; I probably checked with the staff 
accountant that we have because whenever we have an accounting prob­
Jem,---we have a staff accountant, and I ask him his opinion which he 
would give me orally. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. In layman's language, when you look at this 
surplus figure, does this indicate to you that the company is in good 
shape, is healthy? 

Mr. LEVY. Mr. Smith--
Mr. ARNOLD fonTH. I was talking to Mr. Alford. 
Mr. LEVY. I am sorry; 
Mr. ALFORD. I have \10 recollection of actually checking this. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. So that to the best of your knowledge, surplus 

could mean any one of the three different possibilities; correct me, I 
don't mean to paraphrase you, to the best of your knowledge the mat­
ter of what surplus actually stood for was not questioned further of 
Mr. Overmyer or of those representing his interests? 

Mr. ALFORD. As far as I remember, no. 
Mr. KEITH. Would counsel yield at this point? 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Yes, sir. 
Mr. KEITH. Do you know, Mr. Alford, how to read a balance sheet? 
Mr. ALFORD. Very little about balance sheets. 
Mr. KEITH. Yet you are the one who is supposed to review the in­

formation that comes in with reference to the financial disclosures. 
Mr. ALFORD. Not the financial information. I have a staff accountant 

that whenever there is any question about finances I refer to him for his 
opinion. 

Mr. KEITH. In order for you to supervise the work of that staff 
accountant it would seem to me that since you are going to recommend 
to the Chairman acceptance or rejection of this application, you would 
do more than ask that the form be filled out? The information is there 
for a purpose. At all levels reviewing this evidence there should be at 
least some ability to read and interpret the balance sheet. Otherwise1 

people could simply insert something that could be very misleading. 
Do you know what a net worth is, for example? 

.l'ifr. ALFORD. My knowledge of accounting is-­
Mr. KEITH. I am talking about balance sheets. 
Mr. ALFORD. I have a very senior accountant who has been with the 

CC?mmission for many years who is responsible for processing the ap­
plications for many years. I trust his judgment and request his advice 
whenever I have any problems with accounting matters. 

Mr. KJ?ITH. Ch~irman Hyde, were you satisfied that the application 
and the ~nformat10n contained therein regarding :financial ability of 
the applicant to construct and operate stations dnrino- the initial lean 
years was in fact present? 0 

9i-5~7-69-pt. 1-10 
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Mr. HYDE. I was satisfied, the Commission was satisfied. Mr. Con­
gressman, I would like to say that in examining these applications we 
,rnre looking for indications that they were bona fide applications, 
th at the applicant would in fact undertake the construction of a sta­
tion. That being so, the Commission was committed by general policy 
to encourage the development of UHF stations. It was not our policy 
to try to discourage applicants or to avoid grants but rather to en­
courage so far as we could on a responsible basis the investment of 
funds in the development of stations. 

Mr. KEITH. Yes; but you also want to have men who can capitalize 
011 their investment and actually make the system work. You were look­
ing for men who had the financial ability plus the management ability, 
the resources, the manpower, and the money to make a succeess of these 
stations? 

Mr. HYDE. Yes; we were. 
Mr. KEITH. You reached the conclusion, it seems to me, which later 

circumstances indicated to be true, that the man did not have the 
financial competence to do this job. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman, you are right. Under changing conditions, 
under changing conditions of the markets, Mr. Overmyer was found 
to be beyond his capacity, that is true, but at the time these applications 
were considered I think the judgments which the Commission made 
were reasonable. 

Mr. KEITH. It appears that the judgments were wrong and were so, 
perhaps, b_ecause of the inability on the pa,rt of the FCC to interpret 
the finan?rnl staten~ents tl~at ,rnre furnished i_n an effort to justify 
the grantrng ~>f CP ,s and hcenses. If you examme the financial state­
ments you will find that the working capital is minimal and it is 
illiquid. 

Mr. lhDE. Up until the poi!lt of his di~culties Mr. Overmyer had 
proved a very resourceful busmessman. It 1s true that he came to re­
verses and this did result in his having to get out of the business. 

Mr. KEITH. He was in a field where he had no knowledo-e or exper­
tise. Apparently he was successful in his loan application ~n the basis 
of his abiJitv in the warehouse business. But it is evident from state­
ments which he has furnished, that once he got out of that field he 
was in trouble. As a matter of fact, it would~ appear that he was in 
trouble in that field, also. 

Mr. I-frm:. I believe, sir, that at the time of his initial--
Mr. KEITH. He was hard pressed for cash and he borrmved exces­

sively. 
Mr. HYDE. You are right, as matters developed he was unable to 

meet a financial crisis which developed later. 
Mr. KEITH. Did you not have some indication early in the series of 

applications that perhaps he could not do in the television business 
what he was doing in the trucking business, that he was in need of 
more and more leverage? -

Mr. HYDE. I did not feel that that was his approach. In the tele­
vision business you cannot assign or transfer properties without ap­
proval of the Commission. vVe have a strict policy which prevents a 
sale in less than 3 years after a license is granted, absent some very 
compelling reason such as loss of health or financial collapse. \Ve also 
have a policy against sale for more than out-of-pocket expense. 

Mr. KEITH. Obviously, in this case, by retaining a 20-percent in­
terest in each of the five stations, he, in effect, did not actually dispose 
of his television interest. He received far in excess of what he put in. 

Mr. HYDE. As it appears to me, he retained about a fifth or 20 per­
cent interest, he undertook the risk of getting more or less, dependent 
upon what happened in the further development of these stations. 

Mr. KEITH. I don't want to interrupt the chain of thought but I 
realize that time is running out. I will cease my questions at this 
point. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Moss has a question. 
l\fr. Moss. You have stated you were not familiar with the reading 

of balance sheets. 
Mr. HYDE. I did not say that. 
Mr. Moss. Just a moment, Mr. Chairman. You listen to the ques­

tion. 
Mr. HYDE. I am sorry. I thought you were speaking to me. 
Mr. Moss. You stated that you were not familiar with reading a 

balance sheet or fina~cial statement. Then do you routinely refer all 
of them to this top-level chief accountant for review and evaluation 
or recommendation? 

Mr. ALFORD. Whenever there is any question; yes. 
Mr. Moss. 1Vell, you do or you don't. 
Mr. ALFORD. Not every one. 
Mr. Moss. You don't know anything about them. You take one like 

this. You can't tell us whether you did or didn't. So you have no regu­
lar r outine. You know what ,the record shows, as far as I am con­
cerned? That you treait these in a most irresponsible manner. I think 
that is a very charitable characterization. Here you have a balance 
sheet and it is not a very impressive one and you are going to recom­
mend that a construction permit be granted or at least you are going 
to the process of firming up a recommendation. 

Mr. ALFORD. May I say this: Nine out of ten applicaitions we have 
come in have very simple balance sheets, that I or anybody can under­
stand. They are listed $100,000 in assets, $10,000 in liabilities, so we 
know he has $90,000, which I don't refer to the accountant. 

Mr. Moss. 1Vas Overmyer's one of those? 
Mr. ALFORD. No, sir. Anything that there is any question about--­
Mr. Moss. Did you give this to your accountant? 
Mr. ALFORD (continuing). I would refer to the accountant and he 

in fact probably consulted with the accountant who handles new ap­
plications for construction permits, because the problems im0olved in 
CP's with respect to cost of operation--

Mr. Moss. Did you give this to your accountant? 
Mr. ALFORD. I have no personal recollection, but I am absolnfoly 

certain that I did because this is the type I would have don e so 
routinely. 

Mr. Moss. What kind of advice did you get back? 
~fr. ALFORD. Obviously, I got back a reply t lrnt tl1 e ac·c·o1 11d :111I. ,,,:is 

satisfied that it met the test. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, I would sugg,,est that. i11 :1 s1ilispq 11 <•1ll s<·s­

sion we lrnve this top-level accountant. in br(•,nw;n if I li :ll 11·:1s i11 f:l<' L 
his finding I think we should examine hirn ll'il Ii ,L'. l'l': 1L c:i rP. 
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Mr. ALFORD. Well, there is one problem with that. vVe have tw0 
senior accountants. They are both retired. I am not sure which one wa& 
on duty at that time. I could find out. 

Mr. Moss. We have authority to subpena a man who is retired. 
Mr. ALFORD. vV e can do that. 
~fr. Moss. If that is the one you had, why, we can bring him back. 
The CHAIRMAN. Do you have any further questions right now?· 

Go ahead if you have something. 
Mr. ARNOLD SJVnTH. I have just a couple of brief questions for Chair­

man Hyde. 
Commissioner Hyde, is it not also important for the Commission to , 

ascertain whether the applicant in fact can pay his bills, forgetting 
the problems of UHF? Isn't this something that the Commission has 
to determine before it can grant a permit? Whether or not he in fact 
can pay his bills? 

Mr. HYDE. ·we must determine that he is legally, technically, and 
financially qualified. If there are any considerations that raise doubts 
as to his financial ability to perform construction we should look 
into it. 

Mr. ARNOLD Sl\HTH. ·what made the Commission :feel that Over­
myer could pay his bills? 

Mr. HYDE. The reports ai_icl analyses supplied to us by staff. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I thmk we went through the only analyses 

submitted for the record. It is this memorandum of the Cincinnati 
station that we have been discussing. I s that the analysis you have· 
ref Prence to, sir? 

Mr. HYDE. Thes~ claims came up from time to time. I couldn't at 
this moment limit myself to a particular document. I would like to 
mention that there was lively discussion of these cases among the· 
Commissioners in each instance. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. ·were any of these discussions recorded? 
Mr. HYDE. No, sir. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Let me ask you this, Commissioner: It was 

mentioned before-I believe you mentioned it-that when these 
memorandums are prepared-I believe Mr. Rawson made reference to­
this-that where there is a controversial fact generally this con­
troversy is made reference to in a memorandum. Mr. Alford just 
said, if I heard him correctly, that the financial submissions of 
Overmyer did in fact pose a problem, they were a little bit unusual, a 
little bit out of the ordinary. Why, therefore, wasn't this referred to in 
t!le memorandum recommending approval of the Cincinnati applica­
t10n? 

Mr. HYDE. I believe that you are confusing the handling of dif­
ferent cases here. Mr. Rawson, or I believe it was Mr. Martin Levy, 
discussed a particular case where there was a challenge by another· 
applicant. Mr. Alford discussed what was the regular practice for 
handling uncontested cases. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Yes, but--
Mr. Moss. If the gentleman will yield. I think it is quite clear on 

this record, if you want to review it, that we have been discussina· 
Cincinnati just as consistently as ·we could. If there is confusion I 
think it is in your mind, not 111 the mind of the committee or of the­
staff. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I asked the question with reference to Cin­
•cinnati. Can someone answer the question why the matter of the 
,controversy did not appear in the memorandum? . . 

Mr. ALFORD. I didn't say it was a matter of controversy. I said 1£ 
there is any doubt in somebody's mind that there is a financial prob­
lem we refer it to the senior accounta.nt. If he was satisfied there was 
110 financial problem, we did not go into it at length in the memoran­
dum because there was no problem. 

~i~. A_RNOLD SMITH. I 3:1ave two_ short ques~ions on the_ Cincinnati 
apphcat10n and then I will be fimshed with 1t, Mr. Chairman. · 

Mr. BROWN. At that point, after you finish questions will you yield 
because I want to ask a question on the points just raised. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Is it the Commission's practice to accept finan­
•cial submissions whereby fixed assets show the appraised value of fixed 
assets rather than their cost less depreciation? Is this the customary 
procedure of appiica:nts? 

Mr. HYDE. I \Yill ~ndertake to answer that. There are no account­
ing regulations appl~cable to broadcast services except to the extent 
that we have an applicatioP. fo~m, we have an annual report form, but 
we do not regula~e accounting practices as we do in the common car­
rier services. An applicant would have an election. He would have a 
choice as to how he presented his evidence of financial ability. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. So that this submission was not unusual? Is 
that the answer? 

Mr. HYDE. In my judgment it would n?t.be unusual in this sense that 
they used appraised value rather than ongrnal cost. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. In the applications you have seen, Mr. Alford, 
is this type of presentation of fixed assets at appraised value the usual 
practice of applicants? 

Mr. ALFORD. I couldn't answer that. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. My last question, then: In this application did 

Mr. Overmyer provide his net income after Federal income tax for 
the previous 2 years of his operations, for himself personally or for his 
warehouse companies? Does anyone know? I ask this question because 
the record does not appear to indicate that such information was pro­
vided. Was such information requested? 

Mr. ALFORD. I don't know whether it was in the application or not. 
If it was there it was there. We didn't ask it if it wasn't. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. vVhy wasn't it requested? I have reference now 
to your form again because I understand, and,correct me if I am wrong, 
that this is what you require applicants to provide. I now have refer­
ence to section III, form 314, question 4(f) whereby the applicant has 
to present net income after Federal income tax for the past 2 years, 
"from each person who has furnished or will furnish funds, property, 
services, credit," and so on. 

·why wasn't this requested if this in fact a requirement? Is this still 
a requirement? 

Mr. ALFORD. The form calls for it. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Is it therefore not a requirement still of the 

Commission? 
Mr. ALFORD. Yes, it is. 
Mr. ARNOLD S11IrrH. ,v-hy, therefore, wasn't it requested of Mr. 

Overmyer? 
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Mr. ALFORD. I don't know in this particular case. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Does anyone else at the table know? 
Mr. RAWSON. If it wasn't there it was material that certainly should 

have been requested by the counsel, Mr. Smith. vVhere this becomes 
a very material consideration the staff is under absolute instructions 
that they are to get the answer to this question. 

Mr. ARNOLD S1"IITH. I have no further questions on Cincinnati, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Moss. Again I find myself very much dissatisfied with the last 
response because it does not answer the question asked by counsel. You 
modified your answer. I don't know what wording, I haven't seen form , 
314, question 4 ( f). As I heard it read it did not modify the request by 
saying "where material" It says, "Net income after Federal income tax 
received for the past 2 years from each person who has furnished or 
will furnish funds, property, service, credit, loans, donations, assur­
ances, or other things of value. A statement of income for required 
periods wherein excess of certain specified amount will be sufficient." 

It does not say "where material." It says this is requested. Do they 
have the right to pick and choose what they will supply the Commis­
sion, or are they required to supply what the form requests? 

Mr. RAWSON. They should answer the question. There is no question 
but that the form calls for an answer to that question. There are 
occasions-and I haven't run across them, I am sure--but I suspect 
they have happened where it was so obvious that the applicant was 
financially qualified that the attorney processing the application may 
not have insisted upon the applicant filing that information. I suspect 
that. There may bejnstances. Proba:b]y in this case Mr. Overmyer did 
not answer the question. I don't know whether he did or not. 

Mr. Moss. If you had examined some of those income tax returns 
you might have found them rather interesting in contrast to the fman­
cial statements and balance sheets. 

The CHAIRMAN. I might say that this is bearing out exactly what 
the attorney has said, there ;ue three parts to this question: first, 
whether the license should have been granted in the first place; This 
shows that there is something wrong. All these things weren't an­
swered, were not done. Second, whether these OP's should have been 
renewed; The third part is why five of these stations in the top 50 
markets of the Nation should have been transferred without a hearing. 

Mr. HYDE. These grants were made before that proposed policy was 
announced. Mr. Chairman. 

The CHAIRMAN. It was the custom, was it not, to grant no more 
than three in the top 50 markets? 

Mr. HYDE. No. These grants going back to 1964 were made before 
this policy order referred to was undertaken. . 

The CHAIRMAN. One of the witnesses said yesterday he did not even 
inspect the assets or anything. He was buying the license and was 
trafficking in licenses and I think the Commission would have known 
that if they had bothered to ask about it. This certainly bears out what 
we thought about the first part of it. Nobody has been able to answer 
the questions. They have said "we assume," "we don't know," "we 
can't recollect." We intend to follow it up a little bit more to find out 
exactly why and where. 

Mr. BRowN. I have one observation to make, going back to the 
question of counsel, that I think we may be on somewhat delicate 

o·round in this committee if we insist on competent accounting prac­
bces or competent accounting usage in all application forms of the 
Federal Government, because we can~t get various agencies of the 
Federal Government to go to a common accounting sy~tem. . 

I mention this in reference to the Government Operat10ns Commit­
tee which has been trying to get this done within the Federal Govern­
ment. It is desirable, certainly, but we may be on somewhat weak 
grounds in that regard. 

Let me ask you two questions, however, with reference to the inf?r­
mation which your forms require fr?m applican~s. _Do_ these _reqmre 
anjshowing of cash flow of the apJ?hc~nt that will_ md1cate h1~ pros­
pects of being able to meet the obhgat10ns of puttmg the stat10n on 
the air? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes. If the applicant in his application relies upon his 
personal balance sheet then he has to show an excess of current assets 
over current liabilities and over Jong-term liabilities becoming current 
next year to show he yan meet that part~c~lar commitment. If, hm_v­
ever, he has a bank lo:;m of, say, a half mill10n dollars and we have rn 
addition to that his balance sheet which may not show current tissets 
but shows assets of alJ kinds in excess of liabil1ties so that we can simply 
second-guess the bank and make some sort of judgment of w_heth~r 
the bank is crazy or not in offering funds that would be sufficient m 
that case. 

But if he depends upon his own personal position, then he is re­
quired by the for_m ~nd in o~r processing we det~rm_ii:e. whE:ther he 
has current and hqmd assets m excess of current lrnb1hties, and that 
portion of the long-term liabilities becoming current in 1 ye:ir to deter­
mine whether he has funds personally to meet that comm1~me11t. . 

Mr. BROW~. But if he provides the bank loan as part of ]11s financial 
statement then you assume the bank has made a good business judg-
ment; is that right~ . . . 

1\~r: LRvY. That is right. All we attempt to do, we 1~eqmre, hnn _m 
acld1t10n to supply a Lalance sheet or the form calls for a frna1~crnl 
statement which is not a term of accounting but gives us some 1~ea 
sirn:ply of whether the bank is exercising some judgment in offerH~g 
him the loan. It is just a matter of second-guessini.; but we do not_m 
that-if he relies upon a loan from the bank then we do not reqmre 
h~m to show in his balance sheet or financial statement that he has an 
excess of current assets over current liabilities. 

Mr. BROWN. And a letter of intent is indication of the bank loan '? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, si r. vVe have gone into this, of whether or not the 

letter from the bank is actually a commitment that does get very 
complicated. The Commission has changed its policy over the years, as 
n, matter of fact. It requires more now than it did several years ago. It 
has gone through several proceedings that have indicated that it 
should have more, and it now insists upon more. 

Mr. BROWN. You also require an estimate of the first year's antici­
pated operating expense and anticipated operating income? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. We do not rely upon the estimate of income, 
however. vVe take the estimate of operating expenses, within very gen­
p,ral terms we are able to make some sort of judgment of whether that 
is simplv within the ballpark or not. Then we fake that figure now­
Llrn figure used to be 3 months, the Commission changed it in 1965 to 
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require ~ showing 0£ a full year. But it is on the basis 0£ the applicant's 
own estm~ate 1:nless we have some basis for making the judgment 
thL3:t that is ent irely 1;1nreasonable. vVe do not rely, however, upon his 
esi,imate 0£ expected mcome. vVe don't rely on that. "\Ve don't give him 
any credit on that. 

Mr. BROWN. I am a little lost on what you mean by that, precisely. 
What do you mean you don't give him credit? 

Mr. LEVY. I am sorry, I should modify that by saying that i£ he 
supplies some evidence of his ability to obtain actual income in some 
cases an applicant will sU'bmit commitments that he has recei;ed from 
advertising or in other situations we have, ourselves, made an analysis 
0£ the particular market in terms of what television stations have been 
able to_ make In the markets in _terms of gross income, an~ then on 
the basis 0£ a Judgment 0£ ours, 1t has been generallv our chm£ econo­
mJst, WE; try to ~ake some judgment that we can e:A~ect to rely upon 
his gettmg any mcome out 0£ that market at all. 

But it is usually a very minor consideration in a findino- 0£ financial 
qualificatir:ns. ~ e can't, 0£ course, give h~m any credit for this in 
terms 0£ his ability to construct the opt>ration and put it on the air in 
the first instance. 

Mr. BROWN. Really, my question does not relate to construction. It 
relates to that first year 0£ operation. Let me put the final question 
and you can go back and elaborate a ] ittle further i£ you will. 
. Do you have a judgment of what the prospects 0£ p"rofitable opera­

tion of a UHF station in various markets might be, and if the pros­
pects for profitable operation are dim do you require any showino-
0£ sources 0£ revenue which will sustain that station until anticipated 
profitable operation can be had? 

Mr. LEVY. The Commission policy at present, the reason for the 
policy of requiring that the applicant show that he has enough assets 
on hand to meet the complete cost of operation during the first 
year--

Mr. BROWN. One year? 
Mr. LEVY. One year-are because the Commission knows well that 

rarely is there a successful-that is, a profitabler-UHF operation dur­
mg the first year or, for that matter, even most VHF operations 
unless you are talking about •a major market and a station with ; 
network affiliation. · 

"\Ve know that the station will generally operate at a loss. It is true 
that the station may operate at a loss well beyond the first year. But 
the Commission has made a policy judgment that its requirement for 
financing will include only a showing o-f its ability to meet the operat­
ing expense during the first year and that, •as i say, was a chano-e 
in 1965 from the requirement that the applicant show tha:t he can me~t 
the operating expenses only during the first 3 months 0£ operation. 

Mr. BROWN. The only observation I would make, and you verified 
some concern that I have, is that in the granting of a license-I am 
i~ot ~ure that the policy 0£ requ~ring that the applicant have enough 
hqmd assets to cover the operation for 1 year, and the assumption 0£ 
no ineome for that year is really a vnlid approach to the prob]em. 
because it seems to me that one has to consider the possibility 0£ a loss 
0£ 20_percent over, say, 5 years, and then you get into a rather vague 
quest10n as to whether or not the other resources of the applicant 

are such that he is going to have in the third, fourth, and fifth year 
resources to cover the cost 0£ his operation or) indeed, whether he has 
gone into this operation with the anticipation of loss and then trading 
in the license. I present it only as a collateral problem to the whole 
piece we are in in this situation but I do think that it is worth some 
consideration. 

I presume that the Commissioners have given it some consideration. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Moss. 
Mr. Moss. I want the record to show quite clearly that my questions 

did not go to the matter of common accounting. I regard that as 
extraneous to any discussion I had. 

Mr. BROWN. I£ the gentleman will yield, 1 was not referring to the 
gentleman from California. 

Mr. Moss. I believe the comments of the Chairman of the Commission 
gratuitously injected the question 0£ common accounting and utility 
practice. Your question on 314, question 4(f) asks for one or the other. 
That is the question which has been promulgated by the Commission, 
not by this committee nor by this member. And it does not require 
common accounting pra'-ctice to answer it. 

The £act is, that it was omitted in this instance, it was not answered. 
Then on this question 0£ the long statement 0£ policy here which is 
interesting, if we had found a smgle thing in the questioning this 
morning to back it up the fact is that there were not shown to be suf­
ficient current assets in this instance on the balance sheet to operate a 
station. There was no commitment 0£ a bank loan. However charitable 
one might be that letter from the bank in Cincinnati was not a loan 
commitment. It was no more of a loan commitment than an ad would 
be from a bank mailed to me at my home inviting me to do business. 

Anyone who has the assets, anyone who can reach an agreement with 
a bank, can borrow money and get a line of credit. That is the bank's 
business and that is just about all that letter says because the conditions 
require that there be certified proof and that there then be agreed-upon 
terms. Those terms were .not referenced in the letter at all as having 
been already submitted. So the matter of the deferred debt, which is 
supposed to show how it is amortized, that wasn't shown. So all your 
principles you stated in response to the statement 0£ the gentleman 
from Ohio are interesting, but they appear to be principles and not 
practices. 

Mr. BROWN. Will the gentleman yield? 
My comment, and I fully agree that it is extraneous, with reference 

to accounting practice went to the comment made to the question by 
counsel that there was something wrong with the FCC in their accept­
ing the Overmyer statement at appraised value 0£ real estate prop­
erty rather than depreciated value 0£ real estate property. It is a small 
point, an insignificant point. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Smith. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Just to oonclude the record on Cincinnati, and 

in fact on the same point that Mr. Brown has referred to, since it has 
been the practice to receive financial sheets such as this whereby fixed 
assets are shown at appraised valuation, let me ask you this,. 
Chairman Hyde: Does the Commission make any attemp"t to con­
firm the appraised valuations as shown on financial sheets such as Mr. 
Overmyer submitted? 
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Mr. HYDE. We don't have a rule of general application on that. W,e 
might in a tiax case. In this inst:iance, in connection with the transfer, 1t 
is my recollection that there was an appraisal by an independent firm 
submitted to the Commission. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Chairman Hyde, if such an independent ap­
praisal was submitted to the Commission, it is not in the record which 
was certified by the Commission to the subcommittee. 

I would request the chairman to have the FCC submit such an 
evaluation, if it in fact exists, so thait we may have it in our record. 

Mr. HYDE. Mr. Counsel, we have not withheld a single document in 
the record in this case. If the full supporting data is not in your po~­
session now it is through some inadvertence. When we discussed this 
case last December the question came up as to the security for the Joan 
which the Overmyer people had obtained from the transferee. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. HYDE. There was submitted in connection with this an appraisal 

of the properties that were given--
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Of the 23 properties, Chairman Hyde, that 

underlie the loans which were involved 1n the A VC transfer. But, sir, 
I am asking a question with respect to the appraisal of assets shown 
here on this statement, August 31, 1964, for Cincinnati. 

Mr. HYDE. The only appraisal that I have any recollection of is the 
one discussed in the earlier hearing which I presume you have. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Yes, sir, we have that. 
Mr. HYDE. That is the only one I know of. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. May I conclude, that unless the Commission 

furnishes information to the contrary, there was in fact no appraisal 
submitted or requested with respect to the appraised valuation of these 
fixed assets shown on the balance sheet dated August 31, 1964. ( See 
appendix, p. 348.) 

And my last point, Chairman Hyde, refers to this pr.oblem which 
has been discussed here concerning language of the balance sheet; the 
fact that to someone an item may mean one thing and to another indi­
vidual something else again; and indeed the complete absence of lmowl­
edge about just general aspects of balance sheet.Would it be a prudent 
policy for the Commission to request from its applicants copies of their 
income tax statements so that the Commission would in fact have 
standard financial information before it at the time it makes its deter­
mination that ,an applicant is or is not qualified? 

Mr. HYDE. I hope we have not given you an impression here that 
the Commission is not knowledgeable as to the reading of balance 
sheets. Members of the Commission, themselves, members of the staff 
are experts in this area. Whether or not it would be appropriate for 
us to ask an applicant to submit a copy of his report to the Internal 
Revenue Service is one on which I would want to give some thought 
before answering. I am not sure that this would be good policy. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I might inject a caveat here that as you are 
well aware, banks and financial institutions customarily request this 
kind of information as a basis for support of loans which they are 
requested to extend. I am only asking for the record whether or not you 
felt such a change for FCC purposes would be a wise one. 

141 

The CHAIRMAN. The committee will have to adjourn for the time 
being. We will adjourn to meet here on Friday at 10 o'clock. vVe have 
an executive session tomorrow. 

Mr. HYDE. Mr. Chairman, I just recall that I am on notice to meet 
with the Administrative Council on Friday at 10 o'clock. Perhaps you 
would not need me. I am a member of the Council. 

The CHAIRMAN. If you can be here, be here; if not, we will have the 
rest of the Commissioners here. 

Mr. HYDE. Thank you, sir. 
(_1V-hereupon, at 12 :40 p.m., the committee was adjourned, to recon­

vene at 10 a.m. Friday, July 19, 1967.) 
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TRAFFICKING IN BROADCAST STATION LICENSES 
AND CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 

FRIDAY, JULY 19, 1968 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SPECIAL SUBCOMMITTEE ON INVESTIGATIONS, 

COMMITTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE, 
Washington, D.O. 

The subcommittee met at 10 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room 2123, 
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Harley 0. Staggers ( chair­
man) presiding~ 

The CHAIRMAN. The committee will be in order. 
Welcome back, Mr. Hyde. I did not think you were going to be with 

us this morning. '. 

FURTHER TESTIMONY OF HON. ROSEL H. HYDE, CHAIRMAN, FED­
ERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION; ROBERT H. ALFORD, 
CHIEF, TRANSFER BRANCH; ROBERT J. RAWSON, CHIEF, RE­
NEWAL AND TRANSFER DIVISION; JAMES 0. JUNTILLA, DEPUTY 
CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; JAMES B. SHERIDAN, FORMER 
CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; SAMUEL L. SAADY, CHIEF, TELE­
VISION BRANCH; MARTIN I. LEVY, CHIEF, BROADCAST FACIL­
ITIES; GEORGES. SMITH, CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; ROY J'. 
STEWART, ATTORNEY AUVISER, BROADCAST BUREAU; LLOYD R. 
SMITH, ENGINEER, BROADCAST BUREAU; AND K. GORDON OPPEN­
HEIMER, ATTO~Y, BROADCAST BUREAU 

Mr. HYDE. I found I could be here. 
The CHAIRMAN. We hope this will not take too much longer. We 

would like you and the same group to take the stand again. 
Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Chairman, while we are waiting for the witnesses 

to assume their proper places, may I ask the Chair whether or not the 
letter of May 7, 1968, directed by the chairman of this committee to 
Mr. Hyde requesting a series of items of information, has been fully 
and properly complied with i 

The CHAIRMAN. Could I ask counsel to reply to that i 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. No, sir; it has not. 
Mr. DINGELL. What information is yet outstanding1 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. The information that is presently outstanding, 

is, first, the record of long-distance phone calls that were made be­
tween the periods of November and December of 1967 and January 
through March of 1968 of all of the members of the Commission as 
well as the employees of the FCC's Complaints and Compliance Divi­
sion of the Broadcast Bureau. This record of telephone calls, both 
incoming and outgoing, to date has not been received. 

Second, we have not been assured that all papers, documents, reports, 
memorandums, or writings (including individual work papers and 
other papers from the Commissioners' own files) which were before 

(149) 
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each men1ber of the Commission at the time it took action on the vari­
ous Overmyer applications-fr?m _acquisition of the 5 CP's through 
their transfer to U.S. Commumcat10ns Corp.-have been turned over 
to the subcommittee. These important items were requested by Chair­
man Staggers in his letter to the Commission of April 12, 1968. 

Mr. DINGELL. The questions that w~re submitted last December to 
the Commission, have those been received i 

Mr. ARNOLD S:v nH. Yes, they have been received. 
Mr. DINGELL. Including the items requested by Mr. Moss and 

myself. . • C · 
Nir. ARNOLD SMITJ r. Yes, sir. As best we can determrne, the omm_1s-

sion has sta:ted that the record which sits on this end of the dias 
is a complete record of the 9vermyer transfer. . 

Mr. DINGELL. Under the Cll'cumstances, Nfr. Chmrma~, ~ won~er 
if Mr. Hyde wou~d want to comment :w~en the requested rnformation 
will be fouthcomrng from the Comm1ss1on. . 

Mr. HYDE. Chairman Staggers, members of the comm1tJtee, we have 
endeavored to supply to the committee all of the papers a~1d repor!s 
that were prepared by the staff in the regular course of b_usmess. It 1s 
my understanding that the letter requested t~at: we subm_1t the papers 
which the staff had prepared for the Comm1ss10n. I believe we have 
done that. . . 

There was a request which counsel has referred to for mformat10n 
re(}'ardino- incomino- and outrroinrr telephone calls to members of the 

b . b .o ~ ~ f l 
Commission, particularly ~o. myself. There_ W'.15 a r~quest . or w 1at 
seemed to me to be the ind1v1dual papers w1thm the immediate office 
of the Chairman and of other Commissioners. 

I called the office of the chairman of the committee to ask for a con­
ference on these matters. Then later I addressed a letter :to the chair­
man, dated May 9, asking in writing for a conference to discuss these 
requests. . 

Mr. DINGELL. The short answer, then, I would assume, is that 1,tem 
1 in the letlter directed to you, Mr. Chairman, by the chairman of this 
subcommittee has not been complied with; is that correct~ 

Mr.I-IYDE. I have asked for an opportunity to discuss this with the 
committee beJieving on the basis of discussion you would be per ­
suaded thlt it would be inappropriate to insist upon a record of my 
telephone calls. This is suggesti,:e of the kind of information that is 
some1times obta ined bv wiretappmg. 

I also beli eve that asking for the individual papers that a Commis­
sioner might use in his examination of a case is getting very close to 
the reasoning pr~cess of _a memb~r o~ the agency. _I beli~ve if I hac; 
had an opportunity t:o_ d1_sc~ss tlus_ vnth the cm:7n!1ttec,_1t w~uld no, 
wish to intrude into thJS rntimate, m the Comm1ss10n, d1scuss10n of a 
case. 

Mr. Moss. vVould the gentleman yield to me? 
Mr. DINGELL. Yes; I would be pleitsed to yield. . . 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman and Mr. Hvde, this is not a new 1Ssue. It 

occurred during the early stages of the hea~ing of the 91~ Overs~ght 
Oommittee. It was determined not to be valid then and 1t 1s certamly 
not valid now. 

The record of telephone calls ,vas supplied to t~1e committee th:n. 
Many internal memoranda requested by the committee were supp_liecl 
to the committee notwithstanding the fact that there were meetmgs 
held by the members and the chairmen of the various so-called inde-

pendent regulatory commissions in an effort to act in concert against 
the committee. 

I for one find no validity or no persuasiveness in the argument you 
have just put forward. For 14 years I have sat in tl~is House as cha_ir­
man of the Subcommittee on Government Information and dealt with 
many of these cases. I think that your role here is really to carry out 
certain of the delegated authority of Congress. As I pointed out the 
other day, we retain that responsibility. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, if you have any information, charges, 
irregularity that would be disclosed on which relevant information 
would--be obtained by looking at a record of my telephone calls or 
my office papers, I will be glad to supply them to you, but absent 
some indication of some irregularity--

Mr. Moss. I don't know what this committee will do, but if we en­
counter a refusal from you and it is not overruled by this Chair and 
you are ordered to- produce the record, I will bring you before my 
Subcommittee on Foreign Operations and Government Information 
and I guarantee you I will get the information I want. 

Mr. HYDE. I have asked you, Congressman, to give this request some 
further consideration. I did very respectfully in a letter of ~fay 9, 
giving the point of view I have expressed here previously, ask that 
it be given some attention. vVhat I wished to do was to have the point 
I make examined on its merits. 

I have not wished to defy the committee. I would like now if I 
may have your permission to submit a brief on this matter. 

(The document requested appears in the appendix; see item 29, 
p. 685.) 
· Mr. DINGELL. I am curious to know of certain other happenings re­
ported to us by the staff regarding the time when our staff went 
down there to secure .certain books and records. I am advised that 
papers which were working papers and documents of the FCC, which 
were at that time being scrutinized by members of our staff, were 
taken from their hands by members of the FCC staff and our staff 
has been compelled to submit letters to the FCC identifying the de­
cisions, the documents and so forth which this committee was inter­
ested in securing. 

Is that part of the FCC's policy? 
~fr. HYDE. The agency must, in order to do business, protect its 

records against unnecessary exposure. "\Ve believe it is good admin­
istration to have a reasonable security of papers prepared within the 
aQ"ency and we have a rule which protects them for official purposes, 
which says that they may not be released except upon written 
request. 

All the staff wnnld lmve bee.n doing in this instance wonlrl have 
l>ePn complying with a rule of f)."eneral application. 

Mr. DnrnELJ,. Do you regard that general application as apply ing 
to the officers of this committee ac.tin.g on official business ? 

Mr. HYDE. Yes: I do. I don't think it is an unreasonable rei:i_-nlation . 
Tt merely requires when there is a request for such paprrs t h ,; t- a writ­
ten reque,:,t. be made for them. They ,vere suppli ed immed iately upon 
receipt of the written request. 

Mr. DINGELL. You have been under notice that thi s com mittre has 
heen inquiring into two matters do1Yn at the FCC for some pr ri od 
of time. A ,vritten request was submi tted to yon by the chairm an of 
this committee for a whole series of things, including memoranda, 
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correspondence, data received by each and every other Commissioner 
with respect to the individuals concerned, letters and writings, includ­
ing field reports and interviews other than material which has been fur­
nished above. 

How much more than that do we have to submit to you, Mr. Chair­
man, to secure the cooperation of your agency? 

Mr. HYDE. I believe the only matters not supplied were the ones 
mentioned by counsel. 

Mr. DINGELL. vVhat do we ha.ve to give you to secure your coopera­
tion when investigators of this committee are sent down to look at the 
FCC's files? 

Mr. HYDE. I believe we have cooperated. 
Mr. DINGELL. Do you regard taking papers from the hands of our 

investigators to be cooperatmg with the committee? 
Mr. HYDE. I have never had such a report of such an incident until 

this moment. I do expect the employees of the Commission to comply 
with our rule regardmg--

Mr. DINGELL. Does your rule apply to investigators of a subcom-
mittee? 

Mr. HYDE. Yes; indeed it does. 
Mr. Moss. 'What is the statutory basis for your rules? 
Mr. HYDE. I would like to supply you with a memorandum on that, 

Mr. Congressman. 
Mr. Moss. I would be most interested. I would hope it is better than 

a recast o:f the 1958 position o:f the regulatory commissions which I 
point out this committee did not honor then and I do not feel that 
we should honor now. 

I will move, Mr. Chairman, that the Commissioner be directed to 
promptly comply with the requests addressed to him under the sig• 
nature of the chairman o:f this committee on May 7, 1968. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, the statute does give the Commis­
sion power to make regulations necessary to the per:f ormances of its 
:functions. It does have that general power. I would like to give you 
a more complete response if I may have time to do that. 

"Mr. Moss. Whenever the Congress has wanted to have a statute 
applied to its own committee and to bar its own committees from 
access, it has spoken with great care and in your statute it did not 
speak in that manner. 

I renew my motion, Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRMAN. The Chairman of the Commission should comply 

with the request. 
Mr. HYDE. I would like to be heard further on my request of May 7 

before you make your ruling. 
Mr. Moss. There is a motion on the floor. 
I move the previous question on the motion. 
Mr. DINGELL. I support the motion, Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRMAN. Will the Chairman comply with the motion? 
Mr. H"l7)E. May I appeal this request to your full committee and 

submit a brief on it? 
Mr. DINGELL. I have to raise a point of order on that, Mr. Chairman. 

I believe that is inappropriate. As you know, I have considerable 
respect for the Commission, but this is an internal matter within the 
committee. 

Mr. HYDE. Chairman Staggers, may I respectfully urge that the re­
quest that you are addressing to me is one that would be of concern 
to every agency in the Government. It is one of very grave significance. 

I believe, sir, that it would be worth more attention than we could 
give it at this moment. 

_Mr. DINGELL .. I would lik~ to continue.if I may, Mr. Chairman. I 
will defer on this matter until we have this before us in executive ses­
sion, but you indicated, Mr. Chairman, the function of the FCC was 
to p_rote?t. its pap~rs agaiJ.1st all unnecessary i_ntrusi_on. Do you regard 
the mqmries of this committee as unnecessary mtrus10n? 

Mr. HYDE. No. 
Mr. DINGELL. Does that mean, then, the inquiries of this committee 

,vill be handled in a more dignified fashion than in the instance to 
which-I have referred? 

. M~. HYDE. We have end~avored to honor them with respect and 
chgmty and we have supplied you a very substantial file. We have 
deferred only, and that for the purpose of discussing the question, in 
respect to the request for telephone calls in and out of the offices of 
the Commissioners-and their individual papers. 

Mr. DINGELL. Are you preparing to tell us, then, that the files that 
"-ere snatched from th'e hands of our investigators were personal 
papers of the Commissioners? 

Mr. HYDE. I must inquire about this incident because this is the first 
information ~bout this that has come to my attention. vVe have as a 
matter of policy endeavored to cooperate fully with the committee. I£ 
there has been an instance where papers have been snatched out o:f 
the hands of investigators, then I should like to look into it. 

Mr. Moss. I would like to v.oint out, and I don't think the Chairman 
of the Commission is unfamiliar with the nature of the inquiry which 
was directed against former Commissioner Richard Mack in 1958 
and 1959. I would point out there were very significant findino-s made 
by the then Oversight Committee of this House on the basis of~ome of 
the detailed telephone records. 

Mr. HYDE. Is my personal integrity under examination here? 
Mr. Moss. Not u_nless you w~nt to put it there by fighting over 

whetl~er you are gomg to forthrightly respond to the requests of this 
committee. 

Mr. HYDE. I wou]d ask this committee to treat me with a little re­
spect and dignity. I am an individual with some personal concerns. 

Mr. Moss. You are also Chairman of the Federal Communications 
Commission. This is an investigation by the Cono-ress of the United 
States and it is asking for material that it requi~es and I believe it 
~s the ~etter judge of wh~ther it requ~res it tl:an you are. I do point out 
m the mstant case there 1s a most umque senes of developments which 
go contrary to the established policies and practices of the Commis­
sion itself. That in itself raises a question as to why. 

Mr. DINGELL. If the gentleman will permit, Mr. Chairman I wonder 
i.f perhaps maybe it could be the information on the inciden't r eferred 
to coul_d ?e submitted in an appropriate form to the Chairman of the 
Comm1ss10n for such comments as he chooses to make and for him 
to give us a clear statement as to the policy of the Commission on 
matters of this kind. 

It is my purpose to find whether or not the behavior of the Com­
m~ss~on employees. are in confor_mance _with official policy of the Com­
m1ss10n, whether 1t be the official policy of the Commi ss ion 1o deny 
staff members of this committee access, full access to information 
sought by this committee, and to have a very clear pronouncement on 

97-537-69-pt, 1-11 
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two points: One, a clear policy of the Commission on this matter, and, 
two, whether or not the behavior to which I have alluded, after careful 
screening by the Chairman of the Commission, complies with the 
policy of the Commission so we may judge in the future what further 
action is required by this committee in order to have the papers which 
are sought by this committee in the course of its official inquiry made 
fully available to the committee and to our staff members. 

Mr. Moss. I would supplement that by asking for the memorandum 
of law and statutory basis for the policy. 

I point out there was a law passed in 1966 which became fully 
effective in 1967, which requires disclosure except under certain 
conditions, and that law states that it is not intended to limit in any 
manner the availability of information to the Congress. 

So in consideration of your policy, I suggest you read that law. If 
you are attempting to plead executive privilege here, I invite your 
attention to that privilege as it has been defined by the present and 
the past Presidents of the United States where it can be invoked only 
at their specific direction in each and every instance. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, of course, I am not undertaking to 
invoke executive privilege. vVe are not a part of the executive arm 
of the Government. vVe are an administrative agency. I am urging 
upon you not to subordinate, not to require us to impair the adminis­
trative process. I am also asking you as a matter of individual con­
cern that I be accorded a measure of respect as an individual. 

The fact that I am a public official, it seems to me, does not deprive 
me of all interests or concerns about my correspondence, my telephone 
calls, my rights to ,transact business without the feeling that there 
will be a subsequent review of my telephone communications. 

Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Chairman, I wish to respond to ,those comments 
by indicating that I intend to treat the Commissioner with accord 
and dignity and I intend to do the same with the other members of 
the Commission. 

I have sought to make this inquiry I have made this morning in 
an extremely restrained and' di~nified fashion. I do not believe the 
questions you have raised are or any merit. The question is whether 
the requests of the chairman will be fully honored since he was act­
ing under the direction of the committee. 

·we have submitted certain requests to the chairman. I hope the 
Chair will assure that these matters will be made fully available to 
us and I would like at this time, Mr. Chairman, to respectfully re­
quest that we proceed to the other matters before us. 

Mr. Moss. Before proceeding, I would like unanimous consent to 
place in the record a memorandum of law which was prepared by use 
of the Special Subcommittee on Legislative Oversight, Committee on 
Interstate and Foreign Commerce, on October 17, 1967, when a simi­
lar question arose before that committee. 

As far as I know, the law in this matter has not been diluted. If 
anything, it was strengthened by the enactment of the information 
statute in 1966. 

The CHAIRMAN. I might say it is the "Right of Access of the Special 
Subcommittee on Legislative Oversight to Civil Aeronautics Board 
Files and Records." Without objection, it will be placed in the record 
and we will proceed on to our other business. 

(The document referred to appears in the appendix, p. 687.) 
The CHAIRMAN. You may proceed, Mr. Smith. 

.J:.VV 

Mr. ARNOLD 81\UTH. As a fitting postscript to \Vednesclay morning's 
12roceedmgs, and also as fitting framework for today's session I should 
like t~ quo~e the Commission'? y;-ords which were supplied ,t~ the sub­
comn11ttee. m_ answer fo quest10n _10. of _the 26 questions submitted to 
the Comm1ss1on members for their mchvidual responses with respect 
to 1the Overmyer transfer. 

I am now reading from page 12, ~nd I shall just excerpt since the 
full answers have already been supplied for ithe record. (See appendix, 
pp. 609-673.) 

.~pplLc!!nt's funds are analyzed both to determine their overall sufficiency and 
t~e1r a~tual availability. If an applicant intends to borrow money to finance 
his station, he must file a loan commitment setting forth the terms and condi­
t10ns of the loans. Initial Yerification of eost of r evenue estimates is limitell to 
examining the supporting documents, balance sheets, letters of credits which 
are filed with the application. 

If ·_these documents ,how firm commitments, if the estimates appear reasonable 
~nd 1f there are sufficient _funds to construct the station and operate it for the 
fust J'.ear, the staff determmes if the applicant is financially qualified. However, 
if estunates for supporting documents involve questionable items, the applicant 
1s requested by the staff to furnish additional information. 
, Proof of financial qualification is further goYerned by section 3 of applica­

t10n forms for new stations, FCC form 301 for assignment of CP's or licenses 
rocformn~ ' 

As c_an be s~en, this financial qualificatiuns section is designed to elicit de­
tailed rnformat10n concerning an apvlicant's financial ability. Page 2 of Section 3 
~ets out extensive requirements for the manner in which the availability and 
the liquidity of funds must be demonstrated. 

The matter of liquidity is coYered in considerable detail in the a 'Jplication form. 
l~urther in the. c:_,se of tl!in corpora tiuns , t he applicant's finauci~l proposals are 
caref~lly ~crutimzed to assure that t he licensee's liquidity will not be unduly 
impaired m early years of operation. :';,et worth is an additional factor used in 
appraising financial ability. 
. "Yhe:e the net worth is substantial and relatively unencumbered and some 
11:d1cat10n _that an applicant has some financia l resources beyond those imme­
d1ate!y relied upon. Of ~ourse, net worth is inconclusive when it rests upon 
,ecu~1ty, clos_ed corporat10ns, personal household goods, et cetera, absent a 
specific commitment to use such properties if needed. 

Wi~h those words of the Commission in mind. we should like this 
mornmg to turn, first, to a discussion of the Ati'anta CP ap1)lication 
which _Mr. Overmyer submi<tted to the FCC. 1 

Cha1rma1:_ Hyde, where i;1 the m~moranclum of your staff, dated 
Decen~ber lu, 1~64, was a cl~cern~matlon_ made that Mr. Overmyer was 
fi_nancially qualified to obtam this pern11t, and on what basis. Commis-
10ner Hyde, was this determination made? , 

Mr. HYDE. May I ask Mr. Juntilla, the Deputv Chief of the Broad­
c~st Bureau, to answer that question? He has the staff report before 
bun. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Please identify yourself. 
Mr. JuNTILLA. ,James Juntilla, Deputy Chief of the Broadcast 

Bureau. 
On _page 2 of th~ item you refer to, there is a definition of the con­

struction costs, estimated cost of operation for the first year, the esti­
mated revenue~, _the statement that Mr. Overmyer's net worth is in 
(•,xcess of $? m~lhon, has agreed to guarantee all cost of constnictiiw 
and ~pe;ratmg ~t. Th_en ther~ are references to loan cornmitments. 0 

This is the d1scuss10n I thmk vou averted to 
Mr. ARNOLJ? SMITH. Mr.,! unt1l~a, where, sir,' in that paragraph that 

you refer to, 1s there any d1scuss10n of the bank interest charges on 
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the alleo-ed $400,000 bank Joan; where in that paragraph is there any 
discussi~n of the equipment installment paymc~1ts; and, w~ere is there 
any discussion of interest payments on the eqmprnent credit allegedly 
extended to Mr. Overmyer? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. There is none. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. ,vhy was there no mention of these costs in this 

particular paragraph, M~_,Juntilla? . . . . 
Mr. JuNTILLA. There 1s a generalized d1scuss10n of the costs ar:i-d of 

the funds that would be forthcoming with obviously heavy reliance 
on the position of the Overmyer_companie~. . , . 

Mr. ARNOLD SJ\,IITH. Mr. ,Tuntilla, there IS, sir, I oeheve, a pad and 
pencil in front of you. I w~uld like to take _just a very brief moment 
to go through some rathe_r s_imple mathe1'.1atics. To refresh your recol­
lection of the actual statrntics, I am havmg handed to you _a copy of 
that part of the financial a.pplication wh~rein there are indicate~ the 
various estimated costs to be incurred with respect to the perm1ttee. 

I also have reference to appendix A in the San Francisco applica­
tion and in the meinorandum submitted by the Broadcast Bureau, 
dated September 22, over Mr. Alford's signature wherein the same 
cost figures are listed. . . 

If you do not have an extra copy of this, you can certamly refer to 
your San Francisco memorandum. (See appen~lix, p. 365.) If we loo_k 
first at the cost or expense side of the ledger, 1t would appear that 1£ 
we total up the purchase price of $100,000, construction _costs of $455,~ 
000, and operations costs of $300,000, we would denve a total of 
approximately $855,000. 

Mr. JuNTILLA. All right. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Then, we add estimated revenues of some 

$200,000, and bank and equipment credits of $700,000. We total to 
$900,000. 

Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes. 
Mr. ARNOLD Sl',HTH. On the :face of it, there-fore, making reference 

ao-ain to your parao-raph on page 2 of the memorandum, it ·would 
appear that Mr. Ov~rmyer by some $45,000 is qualified t_o obtain_ this 
permit. However, if we take yo~r figu r~s, gentlemen, '".'h1ch are _listed 
in appendix A of the San Francisco station, perhaps a different picture 
is seen. 

For example, utilizing figures listed in appendix A of _the San 
Francisco application memorandum, dated September 22, 1t would 
appear that there are some additional sums to be added to the fig~1res al­
ready supplied. First, we s!udl have to add 16 monthly 

1
eqmpment 

installments of $80,000 and mterest payments of $42,000. 'I his results 
in some $120,000 to be added to the cost figure of the ledger. 
If my mathematics are corr~ct, it would appear that ~fr. Overl'!lyer 

on the face of the application 1s some $80,000 shy of bemg financially 
qualified, based on your own figures. _ 

Mr. J UNTILLA. Reliance is also placed on the ability of Overmyer 
and his companies to provide any further financing that may be 
necessary. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I see. You mentioned further reliance is 
~~d. . .. 

Isn1t it a fact that since Mr. Overmyer on the face of his apphcat10n 
is $80,000 under that amount projected as necessary to put the station 

on the air for 3 months, virtually all of the reliance is placed on his 
alleged commitment of personal and warehouse resources~ 

Mr. JuNTILLA. There is no doubt great reliance was placed on that 
facet. 

Mr. ARNOLD Sl\n'l'H. Did we not determine on '\Vednesday that it 
was dubious ,at best, that Mr. Adams, executive vice president of the 
communications company, could in fact commit Mr. Overmyer per­
sonally in these permittee applications without Overmyer's own per­
sonal guarantee, his own signature readily apparent to suppor t such a 
commitment. 

Mf.- JuNTILLA. It was accepted as a reasonable assurance coming 
from Mr. Adams as vice president of the broadcasting companies that 
he could not make this commitment without practically committing 
Mr. Overmyer, who would be the sole stockholder. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I thought that we were all in agreement that 
the commitment of Mr. Adams was of questionable validity. However, 
putting that fact aside, assuming that the commitment was, in fact, 
a valid one, was it not ,also established that Mr. Overmyer's personal 
fimmcial condition at August 31, 1964, showed a liquidity of only 
$963.14? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes, I believe you are right on that. However, the 
warehouse companies showed net assets over current liabilities 0£ 
roughly a million dollars. 

Mr. ARNOLD S:111:rrH. To refresh your recollection, Mr .• Juntilla, did 
we not also establish that the Commission was not certain exactly what 
the word "surplus" meant on the balance sheet that Mr. Overmyer 
submitted on that date and that it was also established, was it not, that 
there was no attempt made by the Commission to ascertain exactly what 
these fixed assets of Mr. Overmyer were, what t heir vaJuation was. 

Mr. J UNTILLA. I was not referring to the fixed assets. I was referring 
to the net liquid position of the warehouse company. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Mr .• Juntil1a, it is a matter that is really sel:f­
evident that the financial condition of Mr. OYcrmyer submitted tu foe 
Commission is based on appraisal values given to assets. And that not­
withstanding Overmyer's appraisals, his liquid assets-the ones that 
he might be able to convert quickly into ready cash for permittee pur­
poses-would not be sufficient to put both the Atlanta and Cincinnati 
stations on the air. 

Mr. JuNTILLA. In response to that, Mr. Smith, you referred to the 
appendix on the San Francisco item, using it as a working document. 

It there sets out the assumptions on each 0£ the items, assumptions 
as to bank credit and assumptions to all outside financing. In the 
item itself, it also makes an assumption with respect to a reasonable 
revenue projection and reasonable reliance on Mr. Overmyer's asset 
position in the companies. 

The Commission made the determination that it was a reasonable 
risk to find him qualified for these six permits. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I do not wish to jump the gun. We will con­
sider this in full detail when ,ve arrive at the San Francisco applica­
tion. Suffice it to say, however, on the face of your rnemor:1n :".. um sub­
mitted to the Commission for its determination in the public interest 
that Mr. Overmyer was financially qualified to have these pennits, 
there was an absence of these very crucial cost factors such as install-
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merrt payments and bank interest, tha~ ·would have indicated to the 
Commission that Mr. Overmyer, excludmg any personal_ net wortl~ and 
net worth of his warehouse company, was !lot _financially quah~ed. 

Mr. JuNTILLA. The entire cost of construct10n is set out, Mr. Smi~h. 
The particular items that you stated are not included. You are qmte 
correct. . 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Chairman Hyde, ·were you aware at the time 
the Commission passed on this application that Th~r. Overmyer'~ finan­
cial condition, as indicated in this paragraph-chd you d~termme, ex­
cludino· his own personal statement and the assets of his warehouse 

b . }' 
company, that he would in fact ~,e able to construct and operate t us 
station for the required 3-year period. 

Mr. HYDE. The recommendation of the staff was that he had the 
qualifications to undertake this project. 

If the Chair would permit, I would like to _discuss this matte~ of 
financial qualifications very briefly. I vrnuld like to present a v1mv­
point which I trust you will find reasonable. 

The act authorizes the Commission to prescribe what facts should 
be required in an application to show legal, technical, and fin3:n_cial 
ability. If the Commission wished to, they could set up co1;-dit10ns 
which would require an applicant to sho-: that he had m~mey m h3:nd 
sufficient to construct and operate a station for a full license penod 
of 3 years. 

Mr. KEITH. Mr. Chairman, you said "legal, technical7 ~nd finan­
cial." It would seem to me, sir, that prior to the entertamrng of the 
financial qualifications and technical qualifications of an applicant, 
vou ,vonlcl be concerned about the le~?:al qualifications. 
• Mr. HYDE. vVe would, sir. - -

l\1:r. KEITH. If you are goi_ng to discuss all t~1ree, I all? part~cularly 
interested in the legal. I admit that the emphasis of the discussion here 
has thus far been on the financial. Perhaps you should pursue the finan­
cial which vou started to do, but I want you to know that I at least 
am ~oncerne·d to an equal extent with the legal aspects.. . . 

Mr. HYDE. As a matter of fact, the test of quahficat10ns 1s very 
broad. It covers legal, technical, and such other qualifications as may 
be relevant. Of course, the primary legal qualification is to be a citizen 
of the United States or, in the case of a corporation, no more.than one­
fifth of its stock may be held by, and no officer _may _be, an alien. 

Mr. KEITH. If I understand the legal qualifications correctly, the 
law spells out certain intents with reference to the policy of the Con­
O"ress. To my way of thinking, that is a major issue. 
b Mr. HYDE. You are quite right. This short statement does not com­
prehend the entire series of legal requirements. There are such things 
as a waiver of any property right to the frequency. _A~ applicant ml~st, 
of course, present a case that ·will assure the Comm1ss1011 the operation 
will be in the public interest. 

Mr. KEITH~ The public interest is what I am speaking of from a 
Ieo-al point of view. Counsel has been pursuing the particuhr train of 
th~ught. I have read the dissenting opinions and I have been impressed 
by tl;em and they do not deal with t~e details as much as with the 
philosopy established as a matter of policy by your Board. 

As I have said, on other occasion;:, from this rostrum, I hope we are 
going to get back into the philosophy. 

Mr. HYDE. I did wish to discuss the policy of the Commission in 
relation to financial qualifications. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Would the gentleman yield? . 
Mr. KEITH. I would be pleased to yield to the gentleman from Cali­

fornia. 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. As a matter of curiosity, what in Mr. Ov~n:nyer's 

backO'round commended him to the attention of the Comm1ss10n to 
spre:d his influence in five additional major communities in the 
United States? . 

Mr. KEITH. That is very pertinent. vVe have an important quest10n 
here~-it seems to me. It is his acqniring influen:e in a particu}a1;· com­
munity where we find that he is interested m commerce, mclustry, 
banking, perhaps even a newspaper. 

Mr. HYDE. I knorw of none. 
Mr. Moss. In Toledo he had a newspaper, according to his o,Yn 

testimony. -
Mr. KEITH. w·e have_ the announced policy, as I understa1;-d i~, of 

trying to inhibit the control of the news media from devolvmg mto 
the hands of one individual. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Keith, may I respond by discussing, fi~·st, 
the policy as to financial qualifications, the reasons for the policy which 
the Commission has established, and then take up these other matters? 

Mr. Moss (presiding). I think we will permit the counsel to proceed. 
This is not foreclosing you and I would be interested, but I want the 
matter confined to the specifics. I realize the Commission has broad 
grants of authority to make rules and regulations, issue standards for 
which applicants must adhere to in order to be considered. 

The question of counsel have gone to the form which the applicant 
is required to submit to the Commission, the backup data and the 
evaluation within the Commission. ,v ould you address yourself to 
those specifics and then the committee would be most interested m 
hearing your discussion. 

Mr. HYDE. I did wish to discuss the overall policy in relation to 
just the financial responsibility at this point, if I may. 

Mr. Moss. ,v e want it tied more into this case. In other ·words, if 
you want to use this case and the manner in which it was handled 
to illustrate the broader policy, that is all right, but we are always 
faced with problems of time. 

I do not want a long discourse on policy matters which I have heard 
repeatedly during my 14 years' service on this committee. 

Mr. HYDE. I will make it very brief. 
Mr. BROWN. There are one or two things I would like to suggest or 

ask. 
In this case are we not dealing with two things, first, the question 

of facts, whether the facts were presented and the requirements of the 
Commission that were factual were met? In other words, whether all 
of the blanks on the form were filled out and were filled out properly, 
-and, secondly, whether the judgment of the Commission was proper 
in regard to the decisio1;-s i~ made base1 on those ~acts which it l~ad_ as 
well as the general prmc1ples of policy by which the Commission 
guides itself or is guided by law. 

It seems to me that counsel is still pursuing the question of whether 
or not-and correct me if I am wrong-all of the facts were gathered 
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on which this judgment should be made and then whether or not the 
jud!mlent at least in the financial area of the Commission was proper. 

!think it is appropriate that we hear :vi~h reference to th~ fin~ncial 
area from the Chairman of the Commiss10n. But I do thrnk m re­
sponse to Mr. Keith's remarks that there are many, many other areas 
here which we ought to o-et into and some of them, as he stated them, 
are not exactly what I u~derstand Commission policy to be. . 

Mr. Moss. I think it might be well to proceed or else we are gomg to 
spend all of our time in a discussion that will not be devoted to the 
paramount matter here. 

Mr. KEITH. I would be willing to do so, Mr. Chairman, and I have 
been tryino- to do so for the last 3 days, but it seems to me we are just 
buildirig ?~e brick in a foundation and that is not the keystone. I hope 
we are gomg to get down to fundamentals pretty soon. 

Mr. DINGELL. I am in accord with what the gentleman from Massa­
chusetts said. 

Mr. KEITH. You will lose the attention of your committee and de­
stroy continuity of interest if we just keep on building this wall so 
slowly. I want to lay more bricks today. . . 

Mr. Moss. "\Ve have just had read the requirements of the Commis­
sion. Counsel is endeavorin~ to determine whether those requirements 
were met by the Commiss10n and the Chairman has been asked to 
address himself to that. 

Mr. KEITH. I have asked for the law and it says "shall set forth 
such facts as the Commission may by regulation prescribe as to the 
citizenship, character, financial, techni?al, and other qu?'li~catior1;s." 

Mr. Moss. It is the rules and regulations of the Comm1ss10n w11:ich 
shall be examined at this point in order to find out what the reqmre­
ments are. This is broad authority that the Congress has made and we 
are questioning what the Comm1ssion has done with this authority. 

You may proceed, Mr. Hyde. 
Mr. HYDE. Counsel asked me what was the basis of the Commission's 

decision that this applicant was qualified. I could undertake i~ a~out 
2 minutes to give you the basis of my answer that the Commission's 
j ud o-ment under the circumstances was reasonable. 

I}md previously stated that the Commission might under the grant 
of authority from Congress require an applicant in each instance to 
show that he had money in hand, liquid assets sufficient to build and 
operate a station for a full 3-year license I?eriod if we wished to _do_ so. 

I would suggest to you that any such policy would be very restrictive, 
that it would bar everyone except those--

Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman: you are going ~ar afield. vVe kno,y }:'OU 
have that authority. Let's discuss the authority that the Commiss10n 
by formal action has decided to operate under. 

Mr. HYDE. I will onlv be a minute to do this. 
On the other hand, ·the Commission might be so lax in its require­

ments -as to financial ability as to find itself in the position of handing 
out grants to people who had no substance and who could not reason­
abl_vLbe expected to put a station on the air. 

r· think what the Commission has done has been to make a reasonable 
compromise. They have seen fit to require a sufficient showing to indi­
cate ability to buil~ this _station and under our m?r~ recent test to 
operate a year. Previously it had been 3 months.Now 1t 1s 1 year. 

.lV.i 

Now, it is important th8;t there. be access to this industry by new 
blood by new interests. It 1s very important that the developm~nt of 
UHF'be encouraged, not restricted, in order to implement the policy of 
Congress as enunciated in the all-channel law. . 

It is particularly important to encourage construction of UHF _sta­
tions because it is in this area where we have most of the reservations 
for educational TV and where we have the possibility of enlarging the 
basis of the television industry, perhaps making provision for a fourth 
network. 

Mr. DINGELL. I am interested in what the Chairman has been saying, 
but r :,vould hope we could get ourselves back on the track. It is now 
5 minutes after 11. The House will meet at 12. 

I would respectfully request at this time that the Chairman of the 
FCC be requested by the Chair to defer further comme_nts _of this kind 
and we o-et back to the question of whether the FCC policy m the Over­
mver ca~e was fully followed. I don't think whether we have a fourth 
ne'twork for UHF or VHF used for eduoational TV is of any relevance 
to the matter before us. , 

Mr. BROWN. Mr. Chairman, one of the problems in this case, it seems 
to me relative to financial opportunity of Mr. Overmyer to ~ake a 
succe;s of the licenses he acquired, is whether or ~ot the FyC cons1dered 
his applications and the granting of construct10n permits en bloc, or 
whether the cumulative effect was taken into account or whether they 
were considered as individual applications and, as granted, the 
financial base which he showed was applied to each individual applica­
tion without consideration of the fact that he was building an obliga­
tion of· some size by the cumulative effect of the applications he had 
received. 

Mr. HYDE. "\Ve did take into account the possible cumulative effect 
of the several applications. The grants were made one at a. ti!lle, but 
in each instance there were cross-references and the Commission was 
concerned as to what the cumulative effeot might be. As a matter of 
fact in the last one which I think was the Dallas, Tex., application, 
we thought he had gone as far as he ought. vVe raised a question in 
a hearing notice on this. . . . . 

Mr. BnowN. vVhat weight, 1f any, is given to the fact that he had 
been o-ranted construction permits? I don't want to make a judgment 
here, but it would appear they had not been pursue~ with diligence or 
dispatch, and that ,then there was no return ~n the mvestment that he 
mio-ht be putting into those construction permits. 

ffr. HYDE. vVe were concerned about these matters. We have been 
concerned about applications for UHF stations in pardcular. 

Mr. BROWN. vVhy? . . . . 
Mr. HYDE. Because concern that applicants might be as~nn_g for t~e 

franchise to speculate on, perhaps ~o resell, to de~er bmldmg until 
someone else let's sav, deve]oped this phase of the mdustry ,to where ' . . it would be obviously_profitable to mv_est your ~oney. . 

Mr. BnowN. That is exactly the pomt and I Just want to pursue this 
for a minute. Isn't it true at the time these applications were being 
made a UHF construction permit would be an extremely specul ative 
prop~rty because nobody reaJly knew then whether a_ 1hil'cl or fourth 
station in some of these markets tha,t was UHF was gomg ,to be snccess­
ful or was going to be unsuccessful? 
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The fact is very few of them had been successful and now history 
has developed a rather significant pattern of their not being successfu]i 
very quickly. 

Mr. HYDE. That is exactly right, Congressman Brown. 
However, Overmyer's first application was Toledo. I think he ap­

plied in 1963 or 1964 and got the permit in late 1964 and put the 
station on the air within a year. This is rather better d1an the usual 
one. 

May I correct that statement? 
He went on the air in 1966. There have been a number of instances 

where grantees of UHF have failed to do this. Overmyer's record was 
relatively good. 

Mr. BROWN. The prospect or the fact of success in the case of that 
UHF station-in other words, I want to know whether the FCC 
considered the fact that a second, third, fourth, and fifth station was 
going to cost him money not only to get on the air, but cost him 111.oney 
perhaps in operating losses and thus would have an effect on your 
judgment of his balance sheet. 

Mr. HYDE. Yes, sir. vVe did take that into consideration and that 
is when we became interested· when the application for Dallas came up. 

Mr. BROWN. Because of the Toledo station? 
Mr. HYDE. But there were substantial amounts gained from ex-

perienc~. 
:Mr. BROWN. ,¥hat was the experience with the Toledo operation? 
Mr. HYDE. I think that went on the air in 1966. 
Mr. KEITH. I don't want to let stand what you and Mr. Brown agreed 

upon, and that is that it was possible that one could speculate in these 
things. 

Mr. BROWN. Don't misunderstand me. 
Mr. Moss. He means in the speculative sense. 
Mr. BROWN. I did not mean speculative in terms o:f buying and sell­

ing, but it was a risky operation. 
Mr. HYDE. And not an ,attractive one in which to speculate because 

of the rule which prohibits a transfer at more than out-o:f-pocket 
expenses. 

Mr. KEITH. That is the main q_uestion we are going to come to even­
tually when we stop building tlns one particular brick. 

Mr. Moss. I must submit with respect to the kind o:f questions by 
counsel, I have sat on investigating committees ever since I have come­
to Congress and I don't see how it iWOuld be possible :for him to build 
a foundation upon which this case must finally be judged without the 
line of questioning he has now initiated. 

Mr. KEITH. I will abide by your judgment as long as I can constrain 
myself. 

Mr. Moss. I hope you will act with due restraint. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Mr. Chairman, in the Communications Act, :for 

an applicant to be legally qualified, he must be financially qualified 
and each .application must stand on its own, and there must be a sepa­
rate in-the-public-interest determination :for each application. 

In the first stage o:f our discussion, we are inquiring into the public­
interest determination made :for each o:f the five stations to see whether, 
in :fact, Overmyer was financially qualified, hence legally qualified, to 
obtain these permits. 

J..VU 

Secondly, we would hope to pr?ceed to see whethei: or not when he 
had these permits renewed,. h~ d~d so to keep them m_ salable statys 
so that, third, he could traffic 111 licenses by v1rtue of lns sale to AV C 
Corp. 

These are the three areas that we hope to explore. We are now con­
cluding our discussion on the Atlanta station. 

Mr. BROWN. May I ask counsel one very quick question because I 
think it will eliminate some areas of concern. 

There is no indication, and I don't want to tip your hand on the case 
or anything but there is no indication in terms o:f the ~actual nat1:1re 
o:f leo-al qu;lification-citizenship and so :forth-there 1s no question 
in th~t area that Mr. Overmyer was qualified. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. BROWN. The question you are pursuin_g in terms o:f legal qualifi­

cation is primarily financial. I gather there 1s not a great deal of ques­
tion in the technical area about his ability there. 

Mr. ARNOLD Sl\IITH. There may be some. 1¥e don't wish to pursue 
that. vVe wish to pursu~ only the matter of h~s finan9ial q_ualifications 
because it is on the basis of his original financial quahficat10ns that the 
transfer to AVC became necessary. . 

What in the Commission staff's memorandum, Chalrman Hyde, 
justified Overmyer's $200,000 revenue estimation for the ~rst year of 
operation of this station? "\¥hat support was offered for tlus figure? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. None. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Why wasn't support requested from Mr. 

Overmyer? 
Mr. J UNTILLA. Revenues, i:f they are to be relied on by the Commis­

sion do require support under Commission policies except that I think 
vou \vill note in some of the items a projection o:f what the staff believed 
~vas a rather minimum revenue that could be expected from the opera­
tion of a UHF station, was projected, for example, in t~e ~an 
Francisco item. It did advert to what would be a reasonable proJection 
of revenues for the station. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I don't wish to interrupt, but that discussion o:f 
the $1 million revenue projection for the six Overmyer stations came at 
a subsequent date. 

My question is directed to this memoran~um and the Commission's 
alleged finding in the public interest that this transfer should have been 
effected. 

vVhat support for the $200,000 was provided? 
Mr. ,JuNTILLA. $200,000-none. · 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. "\¥hat determination was made in this particular 

memorandum, or in any other supporting papers, in considering At­
lanta and Cincinnati together as a group? 

I would refer to Commission's pronouncements in the Sony broadcast 
decision and the Nelson decision which, if valid today, require that 
financial arrangements for all of the applicant's proposed stations be 
considered together to determine whether such applicant is financially 
qualified to construct and operate any of the proposed facilities. 

It is true that the Commission did attempt such a review in con­
nection with San Francisco and Houston. 

But my question concerns Atlanta. 'Where was this determination 
made pursuant to the above decisions? 
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Mr. JuNTILLA. There was no such discussion in the item. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I think we can now proceed to Pittsburgh after 

one last queston on Atlanta. 
,Vhy wasn't this policy carried out with respect to Mr. Overmyer's 

application? 
Mr. J UNTILLA. The Newport-Cincinnati item was granted ~n March 

10 1965. The o-rant of Atlanta was May 12, 1965. They were m rather 
cl~se proximity in time. I think the Commission was quite a:"are of 
the Overmyer applications and ~he f~ct th_at t?-ere _w~re multiple ap­
plications, but there was no specific 1iscuss10n_ m th~s item. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. One concludrng quest10n with res1?ect to lvfr. 
Overmyer's warehouse company and t~ie balance_ sheet_ ·wh1c?- ,ye d1~­
cussed at some lenQ'.th on vVednesday m connection with Cmcmnat1. 
The balance shec,t O shows the current portion of Jong-term debt as 
$257.188. 

Mr. JtJNTILLA. I just got out the document. 
Mr. ARNOLD S:ivcrrH.L-Look where it says current portion of long­

term debt. What did this represent? vVas this amortization? . 
You were saying earlier, as I recall, that. you were. plac_mg great 

reliance on Mr. Overmyer's warehouse operations and his qmck assets. 
of $1 million. 

'\Vith respeot to this figure, what does it represent? , . 
Mr. JuNTILLA. It means that amount of long-term debt tiiat is due 

within a year. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Does that mean that only approximately 3 

percent of his long-term de~t then :vas due within the year? 
Mr. ,T UNTILLA. Yes; that is what it shows. . 
Mr. ARNOLD Sr,nTH. Isn't that somewhat unusual, Mr. J untilla, 

for commercial financing, when you have $8 million in mortgruges out­
standing? 

Mr. J UNTILLA. There is no explanation o:f each item. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. Did you request an explana,tion? 
Mr. J UNTILLA. No, we did not. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMrrH. ·why not? In other words, how can you analyze 

a balance sheet that you a:dmit you don't understan~ and make a re~­
ommenda.tion to the Commission. that it approve this transfer appli-
cation? . 

Mr JuNTILLA. This was a balance sheet submitted, the truth of 
whicl~ would have to be assumed because of the certification of the 
applicant that all matters filed with the application were true and 
correct. 

It does show current portion as stated. . . 
Mr. ARNOLD Sl\U'l'H. Did you then accept the current portion of this 

long-term debt figure as is stated on the face of this statement i 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. '\i\Tithout question. . 
Mr. J UNTILLA. There were no questions; no, sir. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMl"TH. That concludes my questions on Atlanta. 
I would like to proceed to Pittsburgh. . 
Pittsburgh is one of the last three stat10ns we shall talk about-

Pittsburo-h, San Francisco, and Houston. . 
The C~mmission's Ultravision policy was promulgated into law m 

July of 1965, and at this time I should like to read excerpts from the 

Ultrav1sion Broadcasting Co. decision, 5 RR 2d 243, which se~ the 
framework for our discussion with respect to these last three stat10ns. 

Ultravision deals with the financial ability of CP applicants. 
(The excerpts referred to appear in the appendix, p . 40~.) . Y 

Mr. ARNOLD SJYrrrn. Chairman Hyde, Mr. Overmyer 111 his J: itts-
burgh application presented a letter ostensibly purporting to commit 
the vVestern Pennsylvania Bank to a $3507000 loan. . 

However as the record will show, this loan was not provided be­
cause once 'again the problem of submitting certified financial state-
ments was one which Mr. Overmyer could not overe:ome.- . 

My-question is this: "'\Vould it not be prudent po~icy for the C01'.1r.111s­
sion to require alo1w with these bank letters, a hst of the concht1ons 
precedent reqt{ired by the bank which the _a_pplicant has to meet, so 
that the Commission can peruse these c01:-d1t10ns_preceden~ and make 
its determination as to whether the applicant might or might not be 
able to meet them?-

Mr. HYDE. We have found it appropriate to tighten up our policy 
as regards use of letters lfrom banks. 

Currently we do require a more explicit representation from the 
bank than was the case earlier. 

I may say in the Overmyer series ~nd I notice you omitted it, the 
bank loan negotiated at Atlanta was implemented. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. It was implemented a year and a_ hal_:f after 
the application in question, almost 18 months after the apphcabon was 
approved by the Commission. . 

Mr: HYDE. My point is the statement from the bank did have 
meanrng. . . . 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. The vice presidents of the Girard Trust Co. 
who negotiated this loan indicated to me, and I am sure they would do 
the same under oath, that their letter was in no way a commitment to 
extend Mr. Overmyer funds. 

Mr. DINGELL. Would counsel yield at that point? 
Commissioner would you advise the committee what there was in 

the particular it~m of correspondence that would lead you to believe 
that this was a commitment by the bank to extend the loan? 

I will accept an answer from any member of the Commission. 
I would like to know what there was in this document that consti­

tuted a commitment to extend the loan. 
Mr. LEVY. My name is Martin Levy. Are you referring to the one 

from the Girard Trust Co. ? _ 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I am talking about the Western Pennsylvania 

one now. 
Mr. l.iIWY. That was about as good a commitment as you would find 

anvwhere. The conditions of the 'Western Pennsylvania Bank as st at ed 
by' the bank itself in an ex?ibit whic1!- has been J?~t in here wii"h the 
conditions that were put m are ordmary conditions, the company 
securing the necessary equirment credit which it h:tcl already done, 
the approval of the FCC which w~s about to be obtame~, a 0 ·uarant·co 
bv Mr. Overmyer personally, which he had already g1vc11, aiid a!t­
other condition which any bank in its right mind would make, th rtt 1s, 
that his financial condition did not substantially change. 

Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. I would just add, Mr. Levy, as yo11 a rc wr ll 
aware at one time the Commission early in its history made it rnanda-
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tory that such letters be legal commitments before they would be ac­
ceptable by the Commission. 

Mr. LEVY. That is not so today. 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH. My question to Chairman Hyde was whether 

the Commission might make a better decision that the commitment was 
reasonable if the conditions precedent to their fulfillment were sub­
mitted along with the letter? 

Mr. HYDE. I have already answered we have undertaken to require 
a more explicit statement from the bank in such cases. 

Mr. BROWN. If counsel would yield for a moment, let me ask a ques­
tion in this regard : 

"'What does the interest rate have to do with this? Currently, because 
the interest rate has been changing over the last few months on a rather 
regular and kinetic basis, I think most businessmen and most banks 
\vould indicate in their letter a willingness to lend funds at a specified 
interest rate. . 

This was not in any of the letters which were indicated in the ma­
teria1 we have. 

I wonder whether, first, the Commission did not think that was ap­
propriate or whether maybe because of the timing of it that nobody 
was doing that in 1964. 

Mr. HYDE. If the Commission wishes to be tighter on this question 
of financial ability to require a greater degree of proof, they could, ~>f 
conrse, insist that any statement from a bank be a commitment, m 
which event I understand that there would likely be a charge of some 
kind, perhaps a requirement of payment. of some amount of interest. 

As a matter of poJicy, we could put this added burden upon an ap­
plicant. It might extend for substantial periods. 

When an aµplication is filed, an applicant does not know whether 
he will be challenged by a competing application. 

In the case of a challenge, the process through a comparative hearing 
might take years and, of course, this financial burden would be an 
added cost for the broadcast station being erected. 

As I stated earlier, we have tried to insist upon an appropriate 
showing of financial responsibility but not so onerous as to discourage 
entrv into the business, and particularly we do not want to discourage 
gettlng into the business people wh_o ':ill undertake or exploit_ the 
UHF television because of the prmmse 1t offers to a more chvers1fied 
industry. 

My answer is this would be an added burden, we thought, not 
appropriate to impose. 

Mr. Bno,vN. In other words, you are suggesting that the letter of 
intent in supply~ng financial assistance no~ be in t~e for~ of a contract 
but rather just ~n the form of a letter. of mtent, m wh1(h case we iet 
into the semantic area of how emphatically the bank writes that kmd 
of letter; is that right? 

Mr. HYDE. That is right. However, we would reserve the right to 
require more in _one case t_han in another. . . 

For instance, 1f an applicant has a showmg o_f pretty substan!ial n~t 
worth in assets, then one letter from a bank might suffice. But 1f he 1s 
a party it apl?ears is going to be qui~e dependent up?~ bank ~nancing, 
then in that mstance we could reqmre a more exphc1t showmg. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Moss. 

Mr. Moss. I suppose we are referring to the letter of ,T anuary 29, 
1965, which was received by the Federal Communications Commission, 
Office of the Secretary, on May 7, 1965, from the ·western Pennsyl­
vania National Bank. 

Mr. LEVY. I am sorry, sir; I do not have a copy of tha,t letter. 
Mr. Moss. You were rather emphatic in making the statement that 

the letter was a binding form of commitment. 
Mr. LEVY. I have seen the letter, but I do not have it before me 

right now. 
Mr. Moss. vVhat evidence did you have before you that the usual 

,equipment credit had been secured? 
Mr. LEVY. The application itself. It contained a letter from the 

equipment manufaoturer offering credit. 
Mr. Moss. You do depend upon the application, then, £or all of these 

items? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. Moss. We will come back to that later on, because that raises 

some interesting questions. 
A concluding paragraph there and also since the loan would not be 

used by you for 6 to 8 months, we would expect Mr. Overmyer's finan­
cial condition has not changed materially in the interim. 

Mr. LEVY. That is right. 
Mr. Moss. It looks to me like the sort of letter that would not be 

too difficult to get from anyone. 
Mr. LEVY. I think with any bank if it is not expressed, it is implied, 

an offer to make a loan, of course, would be conditioned on the man's 
financial condition being at least approximately the same at the time 
they had to give the money. 

We find that very commonly we get it in all bank letters. 
Mr. Moss. What do vou call a binding commitment i 
Mr. LEVY. I am not· saying it was a binding commitment. It was 

more or less an offer to lend funds. 
Mr. Moss. If they could be satisfied at the time that the person is a 

qualified borrower at the time of the application. 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir; except the bank indicated it had reviewed Mr. 

Overmyer's position at the time it wrote the letter. 
Mr. Moss. They subsequently did not make the loan? 
Mr. LEVY. I don't think that is relevant. 
It may be Mr. Overmyer did not call them on it. The Commission, 

at the time it was trying to review the bank letter, had to see if it 
was a bona fide off er being made. 

Mr. Moss. I am g:o~ng to exam~ne you a lo! mor:e carefully on the 
total of over $2.3 m1lhon of loans m bank credit which was planned to 
be utilized. 

I will defer for the time being. 
Mr. RoGERS. I would like to ask just a few questions. 
As I. understand it, this is Forrest of the staff who did the basic 

work; is that correct, Mr. Chairman, and the Commission felt that 
should be approved? 

Mr. HYDE. That is correct. 
Mr. RoGERS. vVho on the staff was responsible for making the deci­

sion that no hearings should be held? 



168 169

Mr. SHERIDAN. I am James Sheridan. My name is on all of these 
items that are being questioned here at the moment in. terms of the 
initial acquisition of these stations. 

Mr. ROGERS. You made this decision of no hearing? Your recom­
mendation was no hearing? 

Mr. SHERIDAN. Yes; on the recommendation of my subordinates in 
the Bureau. I was Chief of the Bureau. 

Mr. RoGERS. Are any of your subordinates here? 
Mr. SHERIDAN. Yes; they are all here. 
Mr. ROGERS. I want to know the chain of events. 
Mr. SHERIDAN: Are you referring to Pittsburgh now? 
Mr. RoGERS. P1tt::iburgh, any of them. 
Mr. SHERIDAN. That is the item under discussion. 
Mr. RoGERS. I understood there was an acquisition of five. 
Mr. SHERIDAN. You should have the staff item. If you had that, it 

would show a Mr. Reilly was initially responsible for preparing this. 
Mr. RoGERS. Is he here? 
Mr. SHERIDAN. No; he is not here. 
Mr. JuNTILLA. He is retired. 
Mr. SHERIDAN. He then reported 'his findings and investigation of 

the matter to Mr. J untilla who is here. He was Deputy, Chief under me. 
Mr. Juntilla's signature on this item indicates he made the final 

review for the Bureau. 
As in all other cases, I was aware of the item, I approved the item, 

I agreed with the recommendation made by the staff members of the 
Bureau. 

The CHAIRMAN. We are going to have to make a move here in a 
minute. · 

I have been requested by two members of the staff that we have a 
change of witnesses. 

Mr. RoGERS. I will withhold my questioning for now. 
Mr. BROWN. I want to make an dbservation on the testimony just 

immediately preceding Mr. Rogers' questions, and that was the in­
fluence in the financial ability of a potential licensee in getting a 
lice;nse. 

·whether or not he can get bank credit bothers me a little bit a,bout 
whether banks in the large communities can withhold this kind of 
financial capacity to a licensee and thereby influence who gets the 
license. 

But more particularly, the influence of the extension of credit by 
equipment dealers particularly in view of the fact that one of the 
equipment dealers is an affiliate of a network broadcaster. 

The CHAIRMAN. If you gentlemen would step aside for a minute, 
we will have you back. 

I have been requested to ask Mr. Gaguine to come up and take the 
witness stand. 

Do you solemnly swear the testimony you are about to give the sub­
committee will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, 
so help you God? 

Mr. GAGUINE. I do. 
The CHAIRMAN. Would you identify yourself for ,the record, please. 

TESTIMONY OF BENITO GAGUINE, COMMUNICATIONS COUNSEL FOR 
D. H. OVERMYER 

Mr. GAGUINE. My name is Benito Gag~1ine. ~ am a pa_rtner in_ the 
law firm of Fly, Shuebruk, Blu~e & Gaguu~e, ~1th offices m Washmg­
ton and New York. My firm 1s commumcat1ons counsel to D. H. 
Overmyer. . . 

Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Gaguine, would you first subm1t to the conumttee, 
if you please, a schedule of amortization of payments on the long-term 
debt of Mr. Overmyer as of August 1964. _ . 

Mr. GAGUINE. We will attempt to secure that for the committee, 
Slr. . 

Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Gaguine, on the first day of this hearmg: you 
were in the room; were you not? 

Mr. GAGUINE. I was. 
Mr. DINGELL. Will you indicate where in this room you were sitting? 
Mr. GAGUINE. At the time of the testimony---
Mr. DINGELL. When1 the Commission was first before this commit-

tee, where were you seated? . 
Mr. GAGUINE. On thefirstday,sn·, when Mr. Adams-­
Mr. DINGELL. No, when the Commission was here. 
Mr. GAGUINE. I think I sat somewhere over here to my left, and I 

think probably in t~e second row. . 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you come forward durmg that day. When I 

observed you the other day, I tried to recall whe~e I observed ~ou 
sitting in the room. I ~ec~ll I observed you before._D1d you on that first 
day, when the Comm1ss1on was here, have occas10n to come f(!r-:ard 
and consult with Commissioner Lee or any member of the Commission ? 

Mr. GAGUINE. By consulting, I don't know what you mean. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you speak to them at any time? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I certainly believe I spoke to quite a number of people. 

I know every member of the Commission. I know virtually every, if 
not every, member of the staff who is hereto~ay. . 

Mr. DINGELL. Did you speak to them while they were at the witness 
table? 

Mr. GAGUINE. No, sir; I did not. 
Mr. DINGELL. Not at all? 
Mr. GAGUINE. No, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. I would like to direct your atterntion to yesterday. Did 

you visit the Commission at any time yesterday? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I certainly did. 
Mr. DINGELL. Who, yesterday, did you visit? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Mr. Geller, the General Counsel. 
Mr. DINGELL. "\i\Thom else did you visit? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I spoke with Mr. Levy on another matter. I spoke to 

a Mr. Hanson on another matter. When I spoke with Mr. Levy, I ad­
vised Mr. Levy that I had a transcript of the first day's hearing in 
case the Commission wished to make use of it and in case the Com­
mission did not have a copy of the transcript. 

At the present time, I don't have any independent recollection of 
speaking to anyone else-Yes, I spoke with the Deputy General Coun­
sel, Mr. Ohlbaum. 

Mr. DINGELL. What was his name~ 
97- 537-69-pt. 1-12 
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Mr. GAGUINE. O-h-1-b-a-u-m. 
Mr. DINGELL. About what did you speak to Mr. Geller, the General 

Counsel? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I advised Mr. Geller that I had a copy of the tran­

script. I also advised Mr. Geller to the extent the Commission desired 
any information concerning the material which Mr. Overmyer had 
submitted, or if there were any questions which we could answer with 
respect to any questions which the Commission might have, we would, 
as we had in the past, attempt to make it available. 

I may say I have made the same offer to this committee time and 
time again. 

Mr. DINGELL. Did you discuss any other matters with Mr. Gelled 
Mr. GAGUINE. Just a general comment on our phase of the hearing. 
Mr. DINGELL. On your phase of the hearing? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Right. 
Mr. DINGELL. What was your general comment? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I don't think you would be interested in it. 
Mr. DINGELL. Why? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I gave my comments as to the manner in which it had 

been conducted, and I gave my comments that I did not think that the 
committee had been able to discover any evidence or disclose any ma­
terial which in my opinion warranted the proceedings which we are 
having. · 

Mr. DINGELL. ·what else? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I made the statement that I had a copy of the tran­

script and that if the Commission wished, I would be glad to make it 
available. 

Mr. DINGELL. Did you discuss any of the testimony that had been 
given by any member of the Commission at an earlier time, any mem­
ber of the Commission staff? 

Mr. GAGUINE. Not in that context, no. 
Mr. DINGE!,L. Did you discuss it in any context? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Yes, I did make the comment tha.t I did not think 

members of the committee had been particularly gentlemanly in their 
treatment of the Commission. 

Mr. DINGELL. What else? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I think that is generally it. 
Mr. DINGELL. You visited the General Counsel of the FCC to make 

these r~presentations to him: and you offered him a copy of the 
t ranscript? 

Mr. GAGUINE. Sir, I have known the General Counsel of the Com­
mission for, I think, about 20 years. I went in to make available to him 
a copy of the transcript in the event the Commission did not have a 
copy of the transcript. 

Mr. DINGELL. Is that your usual practice? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Sir, very fortunately I don't think that I have been 

involved in a proceeding of this kind. It is a J?ractice which, should it 
ever happen again, I would certainly be willmg to do it again. I see 
absolutely nothing improper and, therefore, I assume I would do it 
.again. 

Mr. DINGELL. You visited Mr. Levy, you indicated? 
Mr. GAGUINE. That is correot. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you discuss this matter at all? 

Mr. GAGUINE. I told Mr. Levy, in connection with this matter, if there 
were any questions we could answer, we would be glad to. I advised him 
we had a, copy of the transcript, and then we discussed another ma-tter. 

Mr. DINGELL. vVhat was the other matter '? 
Mr. GAGUINE. The other question was a matter of a pending request 

for program test authority for a 50-kilowatt station in Eugene, Oreg. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you make any representation to Mr. Levy about 

this hearing as you had to Mr. Geller'/ 
Mr. GAGUINE. I do not believe so, sir, because I don't believe I spoke 

to him for a long enough period to have made such representation. 
I-Io-wever, had the time permit:ited, I believe I probably would. 

Mr. DINGELL. Did you make any comment with regard to the gentle­
manlyness of this committee or with respect to the finding of the com­
mittee as they might relate to the Federal Communica1tions Commission 
,or Mr. Levy ? 

Mr. GAGUINE. You say did I do so to Mr. Levy? 
Mr. DrNGELL. Yes. 
Mr. GAGUINE. Not tb my recollection. 
Mr. DINGELL. But y'ou did with regard to Mr. Geller? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. With rega.rd to Mr. Geller and Mr. Levy, approxi-

mately how long had you spoken with thern? 
Mr. GAGUINE. W:i'th Mr. Geller, probably 5 or 10 minutes. 
l\:fr. DINGELL. Approximately what time of the day? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I think it was about quarter of ten or nine-thirty. 
M:r. DINGELL. vVhat time did you visit Mr. Levy? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Either immediately prior to or after I had seen Mr. 

Geller; 
Mr. DINGELL. For how long? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I would say about a minute and ·a half. 
Mr. DINGELL. You visited.Mr. Hanson when? 
Mr. GAGUINE. After I had seen Mr. Levy. 
Mr. DINGELL. What was the subject matter of your discussion with 

Mr.Hanson? 
l\fr. GAGUINE. The pending application for program test authority 

of KPNW. Mr. Hanson is an engineer. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you have any discussion of the transcript with 

him? 
Mr. GAGUINE. No; he had absolutely nothing to do with it. 
Mr. DINGELL. You indicated you offered the transcript to Mr. 

H anson, too? 
Mr. GAGUINE. No; I did not. 
Mr DINGELL. You offered the transcript to Mr. Levy and Mr. Geller? 
l\fr. G AGUINE. Yes. 
Mr. DINGELL. Diel you off er the transcript to the Deputy General 

Counsel? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I know I did not offer it to .Mr. Ohlbaum. 
Mr. Drnm~LL. Diel you discuss the Overmyer matter with Mr. H an-

son at all? 
}fr. GAGUINE. No. 
Mr. DIXGELL. The Deputy General Counsel you said ,vas-­
)fr. GAGUINE. Mr. Ohlbaum. 
M:r. DINGELL. vVho? 
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Mr. GAGUINE. O-h-1-b-a-u-m. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you discuss this matter with Mr. Ohlbaum? 
Mr. G AGUINE. Just in very general terms. 
Mr. DINGELL. What was the nature of the discussion? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I indicated the manner I felt the committee was han-

dlin o- this matter and how I felt about it. 
M~. DINGELL. Did you offer him a copy of the transcript? 
Mr. GAGUINE. No. 
Mr. DINGELL. When did you visit him? 
Mr. GAGUINE. After I had seen Mr. Geller. They have offices in the 

same complex. I happened to have seen him. I have known the gentle-
man for some 20 years. . . . . 

Mr. DINGELL. Did you pass him in the hall, or did you step mto his-
office? . 

Mr. GAGUINE. I stepped into his office, and if you are interested rn 
the time I spoke to him, for about 2 or 3 minutes. . 

Mr. DINGELL. You visited him to offer him a ~opy o! the ~ranscnpt: 1 
Mr. GAGUINE. I have on three different occas10ns said I did not visit 

him to offer him a copy of the transcript. If you will please reread the 
record after you get the record, you will note that I _specifi~ally ~aid' 
on no occasion did I offer him a copy of the transcnpt. It is a httle 
minor point but I would like to have my testimony correct. . 

Mr. DINGELL. I want to have the record correct, too, so that 1s ,vhy 
I was inquiring. 

You talked to him about a minute or two? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Two or three minutes. ' 
Mr. DINGELL. The.subject of your testimony was entirely--
Mr. GAGUINE. The subject matter was just merely my personal com­

ments on what had transpired in the last couple of days. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you in any way comment on any of the testimony 

that had been given to any of the three gentlemen that you discussed' 
this with-Mr. Geller, Mr. Levy, or Mr. Ohlbaum? 

Mr. GAGUINE. I have no independent recollection of commenting on. 
specific testimony. 

Mr. Moss (presiding). _You went over to the Commission f?r _the pri­
mary purpose of supplyrng General Counsel of the Commission and 
Mr. Le":y with copies of the transcript; is that correct? 

Mr. GAGUINE. No sir; that is your statement. My primary purpose 
in going to the Commission-and I go to the Commission several times . 
a week-my primary purpose in going to the Commission on this 
occasion was to obtain the status of an application. I also had in mind 
the courtesy of offering to the Commission a copy of the transcript 
of the first clay's hearing in the event that the Commission had not· 
received it. 

Mr. Moss. ·where did you get the transcript? 
Ml'. GAGUINE. Where? 
Mr. Moss. Yes. 
Mr. GAGUINE. From whatever the name of the service is. vVe ordered 

the transcript of the first day. vVe ordered the transcript of the second 
day, and we are ordering the third clay. 

Mr. Mo_ss. I _would like to ]rnow b_y what authoi;-ity the reporting · 
com_pan:y is sellmg the transcnpt. I will ask counsel to make armropri­
ate mqmry. ,Ve do have some rules around here. 

.uu 

:\ir. GAGUINE. You should point them out to your staff and to the 
reporting company: I would assume that your rules, whatever your 
rules ·were were ma,cle clear to the reporter and t? the stJaff. 

::V:I:r.1fo~s. I will be interested in your assumptions lruter. 
You felt called upon, however, to observe to Mr. Gelle_r, Mr. Leyy 

and Mr. Ohlbaum the low opinion you had of the committee and its 
conduct of the inquiry? . . . 

Mr. GAGUINE. Not my low opinion of ~he _committee-my op11110n 
,of the manner -in which some of the questionm_g was handled. I have 
the l;i_j_ghest respect for the Congress, the comm1tJtee and the officers of 
,Congress. . . . 

:'.\fr. Moss. You have indicated that m your physical gyrat10ns 
throuo-hout this hearing, signs of the utmost respect.! have obse'rved 
them ~vith grea;t interest. In fact, some of the contor~10ns would have 
been interesting had they been put on film. They migh~ !iave been a 
better substitutes lhan some of the fare we get on televisi~n. 1 

You felt called upori-, however, to ob~erve to th_ese offici.als o~ ti1e 
•Conm1ission your opinion of the committee and its conduct of the 
heiaring? , . . 

Mr. GAGUINE. You made the st,a:tement. I don't know whether I felt 
,called upon. 

Mr. Moss. Di-cl you feel it appropriate? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Did I feel it appropriate? Yes. 
}fr. Moss. You know these gentlemen _are all supposed to?~ removed 

from the political arena and any role 111 becomrng the cntics of the 
Congress, do you not? . . . 

~1i GAGUINE. Sir, I did not inquire as to their views. I merely made 
' l mme 101own. . 
Mr. Moss. You wanted to make it known that you did not _approve 

of it and that you were home safe. I hope at subsequent hearmgs you 
can give a little more pause for thought than you apparently have 

• c -

,given now. . . 
You worked for the Commission :for how many years? . . 
~fr. GAGUINE. From 1941 to 1953 with a hi1atus of 4 years which tune 

I spent in the service. . . . . . 
Mr. Moss. You have contmued smce leavmg the Con11mss1on to 

maintain your contacts with the Commissi~n ~ . . . 
Mr. GAGUINE. Since leaving the Comm1ss10n, my pnmary pra.~tice 

has been representing clients before the Federal Commm11cat10ns 
Commission. . . . 

:\fr. Moss. I asked you if you contrnued to marntam your contacts 
at the Cmmnission. . . 

::\fr. GAGUINE. In representing clients before the Commiss10n, I 
naturally come into contact--

:\fr. Moss. That is not what I asked you. I asked you_ an e~sy ques­
tion tbat can be answered yes or no, and you have the rntelhgence to 
o·ive one or the other. 
0 J'\fr. GAGUINE. I have answered yes because I have to be in contact 
,,ith the Commission. 

Mr. Moss. I merelv asked you if you had. 
What were your ciiities at the Co:11mission ? . 
Mr. GAGUINE. I started out, I thrnk, as an at1orney w,th the staff Jhat 

was investigating the newspaper ownership. I later became an attorney 
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on the staff of the Broadcast Bureau working on, it is mv recollection 
now, various Broadcast Bureau matters. "'\\Then I returi1ed from the 
service, I was with the Broadcast Bureau for a period of time. I then 
was ~ransferred to Safety and Special Services where I served for ap­
proximately 2 years. I then came back and was legal assistant to Com­
missioner Hyde for a period of time-I believe it was about 2 or 3 
years-and my last position before I left the Commission was as a 
hearing examiner. 

Mr. Moss. Do you have fairly free access to the members of the, 
Commission and of the staff of.the Commission as a result of these 
associations in the past? 

Mr. GAGUIXE. I don't know vdrnt you mean by fairly free access. 
Yes, I do see them. · 

:;\1r. Moss. Do you find it quite easy to arrange appointments to see· 
them? 

1fr. GAGUINE. I find it easy but it is no different than anyone else, 
I am sure. 

. ::\fr. Moss. I di~ not ask you that because you are not competent to 
give me that t,e;stimony. You don't really know what the experience· 
of other pract1t10ners has been unless you have broad knowledo·e which 
~U~~~~-- b 

Mr. GAGUINE. I do have a broad knowledo-e since I was 
the assistant-- b 

Mr. Moss. Can you say--
Mr. G AGUINE (continuing). Ever since I have been associated with 

the Commission either as an employee of the Commission or as a 
practitioner before the Commission. I have found that uniformlv the 
members of the staff and the members of the Commission have always 
agreed to meet with, talk with and discuss matters which are proper to· 
discuss; that is, those matters that are not in an adversary status. 

::\fr. Moss. Was the Overmyer matter in an adversary status¥ 
Mr. GA?UINE. No, except during two periods when the application 

was pendmg for Toledo and there were other applicants and, sec• 
ond, there was an application pending for Dallas, and there was· 
another application pending. 

Mr. Moss. In the other instances, you felt free to discuss with the· 
staff and with the members of the Commission the other Overmyer 
matters? 

Mr. GAGUINE. Absolutely, sir, and it is completely proper. 
Mr. Moss. And vou did so? · 
Mr. GAGUINE. I" certainly did, sir. 
Mr. Moss. Did you have other questions, Mr. Dingell? 
Mr. DINGELL. I have just one question. 
Have you ever discussed any portion of this Overmyer matter with 

any member of the Commission itself? 
::\fr. GAGUINE. Oh, sure. 
Mr. DINGELL. Who? 
1~r. GAGUINE. _I think-you say any portion of the Overmyer matter. 

I thmk I have discussed various portions of the Overmyer matter with 
all seven Commissioners and virtually every member of the staff who 
may have worked on it. 

J\fr. DINGELL. This is a matter which is currently of interest. 
Mr. GAGUINE. Are you talking about the current matters? I can't 

completely hear you. 

Mr. DINGELL. These are matters which are current. Diel vou discuss 
the assi o-nment of channels? 0 

Mr. ·GAGUINE. At the time we filed the application, I discussed the 
applications with the staff working on them, with the offer that if the 
staff needed any additional information I would be pleased to supply 
it regardless of what the information was that they needed. 

Mr. DINGELL. Did you discuss this also with any members of the 
Commission? 

Mr. GAGUINE. Yes, sir, I think at the tinrn we filed with the Conunis­
sion I advised some of the members of the Commission that we had: 
filed-the application and generaUy what the substance of the applica­
tion was. 

Mr. DINGELL. vVere there competing applicants? 
J\fr. GAGUINE. No, sir, none. 
Mr DINGELL. Did you make any further representations to the mem­

bers of the Commission? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Yes. I .told the members of the Commission exactly 

what Mr. Overmyer ~ord you and exactly what is in the application . 
Mr. DINGELL. That is .all? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I can't think of anything that has been told to you and 

which is not in the application which could conceivably have been told 
in addition. 

Mr. DINGELL. In connection with the applications to sell construction 
permits, did you discuss these with anyone? 

Mr. GAGUINE. The application for the assignment, sir, is the question 
you just asked me about. 

Mr. DINGELL. I am referring now to the application to sell. 
Mr. GAGUINE. That is the assignment. 
Mr. DINGELL. vVe may have been misunderstanding each other. Did 

you discuss these applications for the licenses on any of the UHF 
channels? 

Mr. GAGUINE. Do you mean at the time that the applications were 
pending? I do not believe so. 

Mr. DINGELL. You do not believe so? 
Mr. GAGUINE. I do not believe so. 
Mr. DINGELL. That is no,t a positive no. 
Mr. GAGUINE. Let me say this: I would have had no hesitancy in 

discussing any of the applications, with the exception of Toledo during 
the time that :ut was in hearing. 

Mr. DINGELL. Why did you have an exception on Toledo? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Any ma1tter that is in an adversary posture is not a 

matter that it is proper to discuss with members of ,the Commission 
aHhough it is proper to discuss it ·with appropriate members of the 
staff. Under the AdministraJtive Procedure A0t, there are certain dif­
ferences. 

Mr. DrNGELL. But you could discuss an application for a channel 
which was not in an adversary proceeding? 

Mr. GAGUINE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. And you would regard that as entirely proper? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Pardon? 
Mr. DINGELL. You would regard that as entirely proper? 
Mr. GAGUINE. Absolutely. 
Mr. Moss. Could you discuss the matter with the staff if they did not 

recommend a hearing on a channel? vVould tha•t be proper? 
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Mr. GAGUINE. Sir, you are making an assumption which I do not 
believe-

Mr. Moss. Let me make something very clear. I am not making any 
assumption. I _asked y~u a question. I 3:ssumed nothing. HI warut to 
make assumpt10ns, I will make ,them qmte vocally for ,the record. Will 
you answer rthe question. 

Mr. GAGUINE. The question, sir, assumes thaitrthe staff is always about 
to designate something for a hearing. I did not discuss--

Mr. Moss. I did not ask you that. I will have the reporter read 
back the question. 

( The pending question was read by ,the repo1.1ter.) 
Mr. GAGUINE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. Moss. In other words, you could discuss with the staff a matter 

they had under consideration where they would finally have to make a 
recommendation as to whether or not a hearing would be held on the 
maitJter? 

Mr. GAGUINE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. Moss. And tha;t you regard as proper? 
Mr .. GAGUINE. Sir, t!1~t is the filing of an applicaition and that means 

the filmg of ~u~h additional material as the staff may desire. lit is not 
only proper, i1t is the procedure which is in use at the Commission. 

Mr. Moss. Do you have any questions, Mr. Kei!th? 
Mr. KEITH. I have no questions. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Brown? 
Mr. BROWN. I have no questions. 
Mr. Moss. Does the staff have any other questions? 
Mr. ARNOLD SMITH.No, sir. 
Mr. Moss. You are excused. 
Mr. G~~GUINE. vVhen ~o yo.u want ,the ma~erial on the schedule? May 

we submit that along with the other material we are to submit on the 
Overmyer matter? 

Mr. Moss. You can discuss that with counsel for the committee. 
. The House now being in session ,to consider a bill of considerable 
impo~·~ance, :111 m~mbers are design_ated ~or aotion on the floor, the 
C<?n~m1ttee will adJourn. The staff will be m touch with the witnesses 
g1vmg them the date and ,the hour of the resumption of the hearings 
nexit week. 

The committee is now adjourned. . 
("\:Vhereupon at 12 :10 p.m., the committee was adjourned.) 

TRAFFICKING IN BROADCAST STATION LICENSES 
AND CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 31, 1968 

HousE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SPECIAL SUBCOMMITTEE ON INVESTIGATIONS, 

CoMMI'ITEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE, 
Washington, D.O. 

The subcommittee met at 10 :25 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room 
2123, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. John E. Moss presiding 
(Hon. Harley 0. Staggers, chairman). 

Mr. Moss. The subcommittee will be in order. 
Fir_st, I want to express an apology to the witnesses called for this 

mornmg. I have been since 9 :30 in another committee where I have 
had a report under consideration from the subcommittee which I 
Chair; and my delay, therefore, was unavoidable. 

At the hear~ng on July 165 1968, the ~ubcommittee, in fairness to 
th~ O:7ermyer mterests, and to make certam that we have a completely 
obJe_ctive record, granted an opportunity by sworn statements or 
aud1t~d statements to correct or rebut any of the written foundational 
material theretofore admitted into the hearing record. 

Su?h sworn statements ?r aud~te~ statements were required to be 
sub1mtted to the subcommittee withm 4 weeks from the close of the· 
hearings. 

The ~earings will be closed August 1. This means that the sworn 
or audited statements must be submitted on or before Auo-ust 29 
1968. b l 

I wish to instruct counsel on behalf of the subcommittee to inform 
the Overmyer interests of this deadline for the filino- date and that 
no unsworn or unaudited statements will be accepted for the record 
after August 29. 

The record will be kept open to permit the introduction of sub­
committee r:eview and an!Llysis of statements submitted by Overmyer 
a:nd to rece1:ve. the material requested from the Federal Communica-
tions Commission. · 

Our witnesses this morning are Robert H. Alford, Robert J. 
Rawi::on, James 0. Juntilla, J~mes B. Sheridan, Samuel L. Saady, 
Martm I. Levy, George S. Smith, Roy J. Stewart, Lloyd R. Smith 
and K. Gordon Oppenheimer. , ' 

A~l of you gen~lemen have been previously sworn and you will 
contmue your testimony under oath before the committee. 

The Chair recognizes Mr. Lishman. 
M~·· LIS:U:MAN. M_r. Ch3:irman and members, I understand that the 

~ea:rmg _this. m~rnmg: will !ast only until 11 o'clock. Within that 
hm1ted time 1t will be impossible to develop the detailed questions con­
ce:n~ng the financial statements submitted by Overmyer to the Com­
mis.s10n. 

(177) 
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So, with the permission of the Chair, I would like to cover a few 
more general topics in this half hour. 

Mr. Moss. I think that would be an appropriate procedure if there 
is no objection to it. The Chair will grant the request. You may 
proceed. 

Mr. LISHMAN. There are certain questions that should be clarified 
for the record. One of them is, did Overmyer conceal or misrepresent 
his financial condition to the Commission i 

Did the Commission, in disregard of its own rules and policies, per­
mit Overmyer to keep at least three of the construction permits in 
salable condition i 

Briefly, on March 28, 1967, Overmyer sold the five construction per­
mits to A VC. He got a down payment of $1 million and pledged 100 per­
cent of the communications company's stock to the Girard Trust Co. to 
.effectuate the sale and completion of arrangements whereby Overmyer 
would receive an additional $3 million. 

Overmyer filed no copy of the March 28, 1967, stock purchase 
agreement, loan agreement, and stock pledge agreement with the Com­
mission, and did not notify the Commission of this sale until June 30, 
1967, when he applied for its approval to make a transfer of the five 
construction permits. 
. Und~r Commis~ion rules, Overmyer was required to notify the FCC 
immediately, but m no event later than 30 days after such substantial 
changes had been effected. 

But on three separate occasions between March 28, 1967, and the date 
of sale, June 30, 1967, Overmyer filed applications with the Commis­
sion for approvals of extensions of time on the construction permit. 

In these applications, Overmyer concealed the fact that the construc­
tion permits ha.cl been sold. His extension applications to the Commis­
·sion represented that he was in the process of securing the additional 
financing needed, apparently for his own operation. 

I think a few questions ·will bring this situation in sharp focus 
and I would now like to ask whoever it is at this table-and I assume 
it wi}l be Mr. Alford-if it is correct that on March 2D, 1967, the D. H. 
Overmyer Broadcasting Co., Inc., filed two applications with the 
Commission to extend the time of its construction permit for Cincin­
nati and Houston? 

FURTHER TESTIMONY OF ROBERT H. ALFORD, CHIEF, TRANSFER 
BRANCH; ROBERT J. RAWSON, CHIEF, RENEWAL AND TRANSFER 
DIVISION; 'GEORGE S. SMITH, CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; 
JAMES 0. JUNTILLA, DEPUTY CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; 
JAMES B. SHERIDAN, FORMER CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; 
SAMUEL L. SAADY, CHIEF, TELEVISION BRANCH; MARTIN I. 
LEVY, CHIEF, BROADCAST FACILITIES; ROY J. STEWART, ATTOR­
NEY ADVISER, BROADCAST' BUREAU; LLOYD R. SiMITH, E.NGI­
NEER, BROADCAST BUREAU; AND K. GORDON OPPENHEIMER, 
ATTORNEY, BROADCAST BUREAU, FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS 
COMMISSION 

Mr:, SAADY. My name is Samuel L. Saady, Chief of the TV Branch. 
It 1s true that the extension applications were filed on that date. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Is it a fact that the applications did not disclose that 
on March 28, 1967, Overmyer entered into a stock purchase agree­
ment with A VC covering stock in the Overmyer Communications Co. 'l 

Mr. SAADY. 'That is true. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it a fact that the applications did not disclose that 

'he had received a downpayment of $1 million and had entered into 
a loan agreement for $3 million? 

Mr. SAADY. That is true. 
l\fr. LISHMAN. Is it a fact it did not disclose that he had entered into 

a stock pledge agreement with Girard Trust Co. covering 100 percent 
of Overmyer stockho]dings in the communications company? 

Mr. SAADY. That is true. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Under the rules of Commission, was he not required 

to supply this information? 
Mr. SAADY. That is correct; under section 1.65, he should have noti­

fied within 30 davs. 
Mr. LISHMAN. 'Diel t},ie Commission take any action on this failure 

·to disclose? 
Mr. SAADY. Not to mJ knowledge. 
Mr. LISHMAN. When did the Commission first learn of these agree-

ments and the $1 million payment? -
Mr. SAADY. I must assume that the Commission found out about it 

as of the June 30 filing. 
Mr. KEITH. vVould you repeat that, please? 
Mr. SAADY. I assume the Commission first knew of the transaction 

when they filed application for transfer of control. 
1fr. LrsHMAN. Is it correct that Overmyer in his March 29, 1967, 

application for extension stated: "Applicant has found the need for 
outside funds and has just concluded arrangements which will result in 
additional financial resources being made available and appropriate 
application will be filed"? 

Mr. SAADY. That is true. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Wnat did you understand that language to mean? 
Mr. SAADY. ,v-e understood this to mean, or I understood it to mean, 

'he was arranging for additional financing, there was possibility that 
some additional parties might be--

Mr. LISHMAN. Additional financing for his own operation? 
Mr. SAADY. Yes. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVas an appropriate application filed as stated? 
Mr. SAADY. Well, the application subsequently filed was applica-

tion for transfer of control. 
Mr. LISHMAN. That was filed June 30? 
Mr. SAADY. That is right. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it correct that on April 19, 1967, D. H. Overmyer 

Communications Co., Inc., filed an application with the Commission 
to extend the time of its construction permit for San Francisco? 

Mr. SAADY. April 20; yes, sir, that is true. 
Mr. LrsHMAN. Did this application disclose the fact--
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Mr. Moss. We have now two dates. Let us have it tied down tightlv. 
I want to make a good record. • 

Mr. Lishman, you used the date April 19 and Mr. Saady used the 
date April 20. 

Which is the correct date? 
Mr. SAADY. My record indicates that the application was filed 

April 20. There is a tender date and there is a filing date. There could 
be some difference there. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did this April 19, 1967, extension application for 
San Francisco disclose that Overmyer, on March 28, 1967, had alreadv 
sold these construction permits? • 

Mr. SAADY. No, it did not. 
Mr. LISHMAN. As the same questions I have already asked you 

concerning Houston and Cincinnati would apply here, I assume y·our 
answers would be the same? · 

Mr. SAADY. Yes; they would. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did he also state in connection with the San Fran­

cisco application that he had :found a need for outside funds and had 
concluded arrangements which would result in additional financial 
resources being made available to him and that an appropriate appli­
cation would be filed? 

Did he use that same language? 
Mr. SAADY. Yes, he did. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did he ever file an appropriate application concern­

ing these additional funds? 
Mr. SAADY. The only application which was filed subsequently was 

the application for transfer of control. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Wasn't the concealment of the substantial facts affect­

ing- his financial positi<;in in violation of Commission rules and policies? 
Mr. SAADY. They violated section 1.65 of the Commission's rules. 
;M~- LISHM~N. Was the date when Overmyer applied to the Com­

mission for his transfer of these five permits June 30? 
Mr. 8.1.ADY. I believe so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. When did the Commission staff submit its memo­

randum to the Commission approving the transfer of these five per­
mits? Was that October 27, 1967? 

Mr. SAADY. Yes, it was. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now :from June 30 to October 28, the Commission 

staff knew that Overmyer had violated the rules of the Commission, 
had made representations and concealments of the fact that he had 
al~e~dy sold the constructio:11; permits, when he was going to the Com­
m1ss10n to try to keep them m a salable condition. vVhy did the staff 
recommend approval of these transfers in the face of these violations 
of the Commission's own rules? 

Mr: SAADY. I am afraid I am not in '1 position to answer that 
question. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Is there anyone at the table who could? 
Mr. Moss. Just ask who has the authority to sign off on the 

recommendations for the Commission. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. My name is George Smith, presently Chief of 

Broadcast Bureau. I am unable to tell you whether or not the contract 
file as such was checked or not. 

Mr. Moss. Just direct the question to the individual who sig11ed off. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Would the reporter repeat the question, please, and 

I will direct this question to Mr. Smith and to Mr. Rawson. 
( Question referred to read by the reporter.) 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. My answer to the question is that when the 

applications were filed on June 30 and the contracts with it we 
proceeded to make an analysis of the application on that basis. 

I am unable to answer your question, sir, as to whether or not the 
staff checked what we call our contract file, which is a file where con­
tracts should be filed in accordance with the rule within 30 days after 
the contract is entered into. 

Do you know, Mr. Rawson? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Smith, may I tell you that we have checked and 

that rules 1.65, 1.613, and 1.615 were not complied with. This informa­
tion was not in the files of the Oommis;;ion according to the file 
certified by the '8eeretary as complete. 

Mr. GEORGE SM:crH. Yes, those are the rules governing the filing of 
the contracts within 30 days. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Those 'were the rules that were violated? 
Mr. GEORGE SMTI'H. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now, were these violations ever brought to the 

attention of the Commission? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It was never brought to my attention. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVhy not? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't know. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I am going to ask ycu a question, Mr. Smith. Is it 

a fact that several members of the staff recommended that in view of 
the novel situation existing here that the approval of these transfers 
should not be given without a hearing? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't believe so. I don't have any recollection 
of that. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I would like to have something better than "I don't 
believe so." Is it a fact or not that members of the staff recommended 
to you that there should be a hearing? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't believe so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I will go down the line and ask all the members of 

the staff present here if they made any such recommendation. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. May I tell you how we handle this? 
Mr. LISHMAN. I would like an ,answer to this question. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Well, I have given it. 
Mr. Moss. Just a moment, Mr. Smith. You have given no answer. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I am sorry, but I don't recall any member of 

the sfaff coming to me suggesting that this applicrution be designated 
for hearing. 

Mr. Moss. Is your answer there was no recommendation made to 
you by any member of the staff that a public hearing be held? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Not unless somebody can refresh my recollec­
tion. I am not trying to dodge the question. I just don't remember any 
such conversation. 

Mr. Moss. Would that be made in the normal conse of events by 
a written memorandum of ,any kind? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It could well be, yes. 
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Mr. Moss. I want you to check your files and to eerti:fy to this com­
mittee whether or not there is in your files a memorandum bearing­
upon this matter directly or indirectly suggesting-· -

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That, sir, I have already done and I have the· 
papers in my files with me and Mr. Lishman has them, too. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Lishman, are you satisfied you have all ,the file? 
Mr. LISHMAN. We believe so, sir. 
Mr. Moss. Let us go around the table as you: suggested, with each 

member of the staff and ascertain whether or not the recommendation 
was made by them. Starting at this end, answer that question. 

Mr. RAWSON. I am Mr. Rawson, Chie:f o:f the Renewal and Transfer­
Division. I discussed this case with Mr. Smith in very general terms 
and in particular we discussed the arrangements for the loans to 
Overmyer. 

We pointed out to Mr. Smith that this was somewhat similar to, 
what the Commission had already approved in several other· cases. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Could you name those other cases? 
Mr. RAwsoN. "\VLFD, Chicago, is one that comes to mind. There was 

:inother one in Chi~ago whe!e the new in~ividual or ne_w group _coming 
mt~ the construct10n permit, the pernnttee corporat10n, received an 
option, for example, to buy the stock of the other group at a price of ' 
$2,500,000, based upon some kind of formula. 

Mr. Moss. vVas it a sufficiently similar one, that there was a con­
cealment of fact from the Commission as required under 1.63 and 1.65 
of the Commission's rules? 

1fr. RAWSON. I was, of course, not aware of what representation was 
contained in the appl~cation for modification to e1-."tend the time to­
complete construction. 

vV: e frequen~ly in these assi~ment cases, since_ the applicants or the­
parties are gomg to have to hle the contract with the assignment of 
transfer application, find that the parties do not submit contracts­
within the 30 days specified by the rules. 

We have had discussions on this, and this has been a matter which 
apprurently has been going on for 20 years. We have talked about doin<r 
something in this area of requiring-- 0 

Mr. LISHMAN. How about the ruling in the Gross case that such 
information must be filed immediately and not later than 30 days ? 

Mr. RAWSON. The rule requires that they be filed in 30 days; yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. And not later than 30 days. Isn't that correct? 
Mr. RAWSON. The rule requires they be filed no later than 30 days. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Why didn't you do something· about the violation of 

these rules? 
Mr. RAWSON. As I say, there were many, many cases-in most trans­

fer cases the parties do _not file within the_ 30-day per:fod _for the sin:ple 
reason that they are gomg to follow up with an apphcat10n for asswn­
ment for transfer which is included with the assignment transfer 
application. 

~ don'~ know that anyon_e was aware of the fact _tihat the parties in 
this particular case had failed to file the contract m accordance with 
the rules of the Commission. 

M_r. Moss. L~t us have an answ~r to the question put to you; 
Did you or did you not make a direct reconnnendation that a hearing 

would be appropriate? 
1fr. RA wsoN. No, sir; I made no direct statement requiring or askin o-

that the application be designated for hearing; 0 

· There were certain facets o:f the application that I, as a personal 
opinion, felt should receive further answers from the licensee. 

Mr. Moss. Did you direct further questions to the licensee? 
Mr.RAWSON. Well,no. 
Mr. Moss. vVhy not? 
Mr. RAWSON. Because it was a judgment question. I am talking now 

about the--
Mr. Moss. Aren't most of your matters judgment matters? 
Mr. RAWSON. Yes, sir; this is a judgment matter in terms of whether 

or not you should allow a SJ?ecific out-of-pocket expense. 
Mr. Moss. '\Vas the additional information supplied? 
Mr. RAWSON. I am talking now only about the out-of-pocket expense. 
Mr. Moss. Did you raise these questions with Mr. Smith? 
Mr. RAwsoN. vVe discussed them, yes, sir. vVe discussed the pros and 

cons. 
Mr. Moss. Did he suggest that you go back and get the additional 

information or did he tell you to leave it alone, not to follow up? 
Mr. RAWSON. vVe just had a discussion. I pointed out that the 

Commission, through its review board, has allowed applicants such 
as Overmyer to recover ornt-of-pocket expenses where salaries have 
been paid to employees for work done in connection ,vith the prosecu­
tion of the application pending. 

Mr. M<?ss. I kn~w that. I also know you had five applications for 
construct10n permits. 

. Mr. RAWSON. The five applications had nothing to do with the ques­
tion. The question was whether or not since they had to go back 
through affidavits and recapture these expenses--

Mr. Moss. '\Ve will explore these matters more fully at a later date. 
Mr. ADAMS. Will the chairman yield for a question? 
Mr. Moss. Yes, I yield to the gentleman from vV ashington. 
Mr. ADAMS. With whom are the contracts filed, which division? 
Mr. RAWSON. They are filed with our Ownership Section. 
Mr. ADAMS. Who lS in charge of the Ownership Section? 
Mr. RAWSON. Mrs. Roberts is in charge. 
Mr. ADAMS. I understand you are with the Transfer and Renewal 

Division. 
Mr. RAWSON. Right, sir. 
Mr. ADAMS. An~ 1~r. Smith is in charge of the Broadcast Bureau. 

Now you have all mdicated that the contract file wasn't looked at. 
My question is, if one o:f you gentlemen will explain to me do you 

ever look or must it come to your attenteion to go back to th~se other 
divisions to look at 1the file as opposed to looking through the file for 
renewal and transfer ? 

Mr. RAWSON. As I explained earlier, the contract in such instances 
must be filed with the assignment or the transfer application so that 
the staff first generally has no oceasion to g·o back and take a look to 
s~e whether or not ~he}'. have tiled a pr:ior contract bec~use they work 
nght from the apphcatwn which contams the contract, itself. 

Mr. ADAMS. Does the contract have a date on it? 
Mr. RAWSON. Yes, sir; it has a signature date. 
M~. ADAMS. Could you tell the c<:ntract date by Jooking in your 

application :form? Could you determme from the file you arc Jookino­
at whether or not it had been filed within the time of tl1e Cominission~ 
rules? 



184 185

I 
, I 

I 

Mr. RAWSON. Yes; you could take a look at the date of the signing 
of the contract by the parties and from that you could determme­
then you would have to go back really to determine whether or not the 
contract was actually filed. . 

I£ the application wasn't filed until 3 or 4 months after the signature 
you would then have to go back to check to see whether or not they 
had filed it within 30 days required by the rule. 

:Mr . ADAMS. In other words, the contract you have in your file or that 
Mr. Smith has in his files, is not a copy with a date stamp on it from 
your own files but is a copy filed by the applicant, himself; is that it? 

Mr. RAWSON. With the application; yes, sir. 
Mr. ADAMS. Thank you. Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Moss. Let us move on to the next one. I would like to have a little 

more succinct response from each of you gentlemen than this fast one. 
Mr. LLOYD SMITH. My name is Lloyd Smith. Up until November of 

1967, I was a TV engineer with the Television Applications Branch. 
My responsibility is limited to the technical requirement only. 

Mr. Moss. You would have no occasion to make any kind of recom­
mendation other than as to the technical adequacy of the proposed 
transmitters? 

Mr. LLOYD SMITH. That is right. 
Mr. RoGERS. It is my understanding that the applicants said they 

would have to make changes in their towers. Was this brought to your 
attention? 

Mr. LLOYD SMITH. I don't recall exactly now but if there were 
changes proposed for an outstanding construction permit, then a modi­
fication or a request Jor modification of construction permit would 
have to be filed. 

Mr. ROGERS. Was this done in the case? 
Mr. SAADY. There was an application for modification in the San 

Francisco case. 
Mr. ROGERS. Only one? 
Mr. SAADY. There were a number of proposed modificationso 
Mr. RoGERS. I mean only one station? 
Mr. SAADY. Oh, no. Maybe I misundertand the question. 
Mr. LLOYD SMITH. May I say this? Any changes that were authorized 

would have been-there would have been a modification of construc­
tion permit filed. 

Mr. ROGERS. Would that have gone to your office? 
Mr. LLOYD SMITH. Right. 
Mr. ROGERS. But you don't recall any? 
Mr. LLOYD SMITH. I do remember that there were modifications as-

sociated with some of the Overmyer applications. 
Mr. ROGERS. Thank you very much. 
Mr. Moss. The next gentleman. 
Mr. ALFORD. My name is Robert Alford, Chief of the Transfer 

Branch. 
The ~pplication "'.ould come to me initially. I then assign it to 

the _semor attorney m my office wh_o handles the most complicated 
affa1rs. He then as a matter of practice, works with the people in the 
front office and I don't get involved. 

So I made no recommendation as to whether the application should 
be designated for hearing. 

Mr. Moss. All you do is assign the work for review by others; is that 
correct? 

Mr. ALFORD. No· I handle the many, many routine and nonroutine. 
vVe have 75 appli~ations a month, most of which don't inyolve any 
serious problems. These I handle and make reco~men~~t10ns, send 
them up in their final form to the front office for d1spos1t10n. 

In the case of the most serious applications, it is more expeditious 
for the senior attorneys working with them not to work through me 
but to work directly with the front office. 

Mr. Moss. Identify the front office. 
Mr. ALFORD. Mr. Rawson, Mr. J untilla, and Mr. Smith. 
Mr. Moss. The next gentleman. 
Mr. LEVY. My name is Martin Levy. I am Chief of the Broadcast 

Facilities Division. My division has nothing to do with the transfer 
of applications. vVe handle applications for new stations, aJ?plicati_ons 
for modification of e}{isting stations, applications £or extens10n of time 
to construct. , 

Mr. Moss. You would , not be in the chain at all £or any kind of 
recommendation on the 'transfer of construction permit? 

Mr. LEVY. No, sir; no recommendation whatsoever. 
Mr. Moss. The next gentleman. 
Mr. JuNTILLA. James Juntilla, Deputy Chief of the Bureau. I did 

not work 011 supervising the review of this particular application. It 
was handled from the Transfer and Renewal Division with Mr. Smith. 
Since I did not become involved in the details I did not make a 
recomm.endation that it be set for hearing. 

Mr. Moss. Was that a normal way of handling a case of this type? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Well, there are divisions of responsibilities because 

of the number of cases ,that oome through the office. 
Mr. Moss. That is not the question I asked. I asked was this case 

handled in the normal manned 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes, because there is a division, yes. 
J\fr. Moss. The next gentleman. 
Mr. SHERIDAN. My name is James B. Sheridan. I was Chief of the 

Broadcast Bureau :from March 1963 until September 1966. On that 
latter date my duties were changed and I left the Broadcast Bureau 
and therefore I had no responsibilities in connection with the transfer 
application rthat you are questioning us about. 

Mr. Moss. You would have, therefore, no reason to make any 
recommendation? 

Mr. SHERIDAN. No. My duties were changed completely and I left 
the Broadcast Bureau. 

Mr. Moss. The next gentleman. 
Mr. OPPENHEIMER. I am Gordon Oppenheimer, senior attorney in 

the Television Branch. The transfer applications don't come through 
us at all. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Smiith, you have testified. 
J\fr. GEORGE SivnTH. I have given my answer. 
Mr. Moss. Now perhaps you can give us a little :fuller explanation 

of ,the conversations as you recall them with Mr. Rawson. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Mr. Chairman, it might save a little time if you 

will permit me to tell you how we came to the recommendation that 
we went before the Commission with. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Lishman, what do you think of that course of action? 
97-537-69-pt. 1-13 
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Mr. LISHMAN. I assume that the reasons the staff made its recom-
mendation are contained in the staff memo. 

I would like to ask a few questions about that staff memo. 
Mr. Moss. Then you want to hold Mr. Smith-~ . 
Mr. LISHMAN. I would like to find out from Mr. Smith what was 

the nature of his conversrution with Mr. Rawson concerning whether 
or not there should be a hearing. That is the only point. 

Mr. Moss. vVas the question discussed? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I am sure somewhere along the line we prob­

ably discussed it, because we do in most all of these big cases dtsc~1ss 
whether or not a hearing _should be recommended to the Comm1ss10n 
or what the recommendation should be. 

I don't have any specific recollection of having discus~ed it with 
Mr. Rawson. That was my answer before and that 1s my best 
recollection. 

I can't say I did or didn't _bec:ciuse I went in!o this case, first off, 
if I may be permitted to say it, I had an analysis ma~e of the whole 
proposal by the senior aittorney that Mr. Alford ment10ned a moment 

~~ . ' 
Mr. LISHMAN. May I interrupt? Where is thait analysis? vVe don t 

have it in the record. Supposedly, we have a comrlete record hei:e. 
Mr. GEORGE S11nTI-r. This was a worksheet analysis. I asked for 1t, 

whe1ther or not it had been kept, and it was not kept. That is not just 
due to the Overmyer case but we just don't kee;p those worksheets. 

I assume the item of October 27, 1967, which went.before the Co!n­
mission ,vas drafted and redrafted and corrected m numerous rn-
stances. That is procedure. . 

"\Ve just don't keep all those copies that have been redrafted, lan-
guage changed. . 

Mr. Moss: Of course, advice of your counsel, analysis by counsel, ~s 
in a different category than working drafts of a proposal to submit 
to the Commission. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Mr. Chairman, I may have used the word 
"analysis" too broadly or not correctly, but procedurally what I had 
done :in this case is that I had a complete, I don't know whet~er yo_u 
would call it a complete draft, it was not really a draft of an item, it 
was a draft of what this case was about, what was involved, wh,at 
the questions were. 

Mr. Moss. Is that attorney present here? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No; he is not. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Keith. 
Mr. KEITH. I think counsel has made great progress here in estab-

lishing where the responsibility laY,. . . . . 
My question is to what. extent, if any, did the Commiss10n mterest 

itself in this decision-makrng proce~s ~ . 
Did any members of the Comm1ss10n consult with any of you gen­

tlemen about the progress being made in this case? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. You mean prior to the time that the item was 

submitted to the Commission? 
Mr. KEI'l'H. Prior to that time and during the time it was under 

consideration. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. In the Bureau? 
Mr. KEITH. Ye.;. 

.LOI 

M1. JEoRGE SMITH. I don't believe so. Not to me, h.,tyhow. 
~fr. KEITH. Does any other member have anything to say to the 

contrary? 
Mr. It'\ wsoN. I had no connection, no conversations with any Com­

missioner until this item was on the agenda. 
Mr. KEITH. At any time during the decision-making process was 

there any interest expressed by the Overmyer interests about the prog­
ress o:f the case ? 

Did you, sir, or did any of your staff receive phone calls from the 
Overmyer interests asking how the case was coming along and whether 
there--were any problems to which they could address themselves? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I did not, but I believe ait the last session we had 
here there was some testimony given that there had been requests 
made to Mr. Gaguine, counsel for Overmyer, for additional informa-
tion. -

Mr. KEITH. Reqtfests made of the Commission by Mr. Gaguine. 
Mr. GEORGE S:t1,IITI-I. Bor certain additional information. I have no 

independent recollect.ion of what it was but I think I read that in the 
transcript of the Friday hearing last. 

Mr. KEITH. Can any.body confirm this and specify the nature of the 
questions? 

Mr. RAWSON. I believe it might have been in connection with the 
questions concerning security for the loans that they were to receive. 
I believe that was the area. 

Of course, it is normal for us to receive inquiries occasionally to 
find out when they could anticipate some action will be taken on an 
application. 

Mr. KEITH. I understand those inquiries. I always preface any 
inquiry o:f mine stating, "I am a Congressman, not an attorney, and 
should I beirin to violate the rules or the customs of the FCC or the 
law please advise me immediately." 

I do everything I can to keep my questions in proper form. There 
was an inquiry made of you people for the Overmyer interests. Did 
you at any time inquire, or was any information ever brought to your 
attention, about the violations of the sections which have been referred 
to in ertrlier discussions? 

Mr. RAWSON. No, sir. 
Mr. KEITH. Did you people rely on the expertise of the attorney 

representing the Overmyer interests to reveal, because of his knowl­
edge of the area and his work with the Commission, the kind of in­
formrttion that apparently was not contained in these applications and 
was therefore not in strict compliance? 

Mr. RAWSON. Congressman Keith, it was not lack of information con­
tained in the application because the information we are talking about 
was and must be filed with the Commission, itself. It wn,s the failnre 
of the parties to submit this particular contract with our ownership 
s~ction _in accordance with the rules within 30 days after they had 
signed it. 

'But they did submit it 2 months later with the applical"ion . '\Ye 
have considered these in the past as just mere technical failure to 
conform to the rules, rightly or wrongly. 

M:r. LISHMAN. May I interject on this? 
Do you consider the Gross case decision just a rn r re technicality? 

I object to the witness characterizing this as a trivial matter. You have 



188 189

five construction permits sold for $4 million. ,v e are inquiring into 
whether there was any trafficking in licenses. . 

Mr. RA wsoN. I did not say this was a trivial matter. What I said 
was, and I thought I 1~iade ·~t cle_ar, I said tha_t we in t~e past have 
considered these techmcal violations because m_ every ms~ance t~e 
licensee must file the contracts with us and there 1s no question of his 
hiding anything. . . . . 

There is no question of concealmg mformation. They must file these 
with the application ultim~tely. . 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. But he did not file the contracts until June 30. And 
in the interim between March 28 and June 30, he was filing applica­
tions for extensions to the Commission which concealed the fact that 
he had entered into these arrangements for the sa1le of the permits. 

Isn't that correct? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I will answer that. I think that is correct. Of 

course you understand none of those appEcationc: were granted by the 
Commission until after the transfer, about the time the transfer was 
granted in December? . . . 

Mr. LISHMAN. That raises another very mterestmg questl?n· . . 
Why did you grant them, once you knew he had been m violation 

of your rules? 
Mr. GEORGE Sl\nTH. You are talking about the-­
Mr. LISHMAN. The applica:tions for extensions. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The rule 1.63? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. And 1.65? 
Mr. LISHMAN.1.65', 1.613, and 1.615. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. vVeH, that has been answered. 
Mr. SAADY. After the Commission grants a transfer--
Mr. Moss. Just a moment. We have a question pending. . 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I have answered that question several times for 

Mr. Lishman. I have no knowledge, I did not research this file to de­
termine whether or not the contracts had been filed. The contracts were 
filed with the transfer application. I don't know anything about them. 
That is why I didn't answer it. 

Mr: ADAMS. "\Vill the chairman yield for a question? 
Mr. Moss. The gentlema~ from Massachus_etts has the floor. He 

yielded to counsel for a quest10n. I must recogmze the gentleman from 
Massachusetts. . 

Mr. KEITH. I will be glad to yield to the gentleman from vVashmg-
ton. 

Mr. ADAMS. Is the renewal filed with you? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. A renewal ofilicense application? 
Mr. ADAMS. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It c_om~s in the Broa~cast Bureau. . e 
Mr. ADAMS. Is an application for extension grant filed with you . 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It is filed in the Bureau. 
Mr. ADAMS. With you? • 1 d · h 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Not with me personally; no. It 1s fi e m t e 

Office of the Secretary. 
Mr. ADAMS. The question that I have, since you are head of the 

Bureau do you !ITant extensions? Two were grant~d March 29 and 
one Ap~il 19-Cb:icinnati, Houston, and San Francisco. Who grants 

those and what files did they use as their backup for making the 
extension? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I will have to ask Martin Levy to answer that 
question, or Mr. Saady, I guess. . . . . 

Mr. SAADY. I handle the extens10n applications as Chief of the Tele­
vision Branch. 

In the particuhtr case in question, when we got th_e e~ension_a:pJ?li­
cation we withheld action which is normal pohcy withm the Div1s10n 
and the Bureau, if we expect an add~tional :1PPlication to be file1. 
vVe withhold judgment on the extens10n until the subsequent addi­
tionalinformation is filed. 

In this particular case, these applications fm:: extension_ we~·e not 
granted until aJter the Commission had made its determination of 
transfer of control. At that stage our action is really to some extent 
admin isterial. Having granted the transfer of control to these new 
parties-- - . 

~.fr. LISHMAN. Mr. Chairman, I fail to see the relevancy of this 
answer to the question of 6oncealment. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Adams, will you yield for a moment? 
Mr. Adams, you might explore what the process was that alerted 

them to the fact that additional--
Mr. ADAMS. This is what I was going to do, Mr. Chairman, if the 

gentleman will yield for a mome;11t. . . . . 
As I understand, the extens10ns expll'ed on Cmcmna~1, Ho?ston, 

and San Francisco, April 1, 1967, and May 20, 1967. That 1s the mfor­
nmtion I lrnve in a, memorandum . Applications were made to extend 
them, Cincinnati on March 29, 1967; Houston, March 29, 1967; and San 
Francisco, April 19, 1967. 

Now a]] of these are after the date when he had entered into a con­
tract dn March 28 which changed his entire financial situation. 

The question that I am asking-and I simply do not know-is who 
approves or disapproves the extension and.what type of ?ackup file or 
information do you require fr?m ~he applicant at that time? 1?e~ause 
if he was applying for extens10n m the normal _course of ~dmnu~tr~­
tive procedure, I would assume you woul1 re9m::-e fr?m him an md1-
cation of whether he had any contracts or 1f his situation had changed 
before you granted extension. 

That is my question. I don't know which one of you can answer 
that. 

Mr. SAADY. I get the extension application~ an!1 I handle th~m. _I 
handle them and I sian them. When the application for extension 1s 
filed it is on a form ~hich indicates the extent of construction and 
indicates thereon if there have been any substantial changes and indi­
cates thereon the reasons why they feel a further extension is justified. 

In this case here when he filed these particular applications, he in­
dicated some additional information was to be filed with the Com­
m1ss10n. 

Under normal circumstances, we withhold action until the informa­
tion is filed. In these particular cases, what subsequently was filed were 
applications for transfer of control. Once that is done, thereafter I 
await the Commission's decision on transfer of control because that 
will determine what we do with the extension applications. 

Mr. ADAMS. Then you did not act, as the memorandum indicates, 
until December 8, 1967. 
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·what was the status of the construction permits, which I understand 
were to expire April 1, 1967, what was the status _of them between 
April 1, 1967, and December 8, 1967? Had they expired? 

Mr. SAADY. No. Under the Commission's rules, the filing of a timely 
filed application for additional time to construct tolls the expiration 
date. 

Mr. ADAMS. In other words, it simply tolled and no action at all 
took place on these construction permits extension for a period of 
about 8 months, is that correct? 

Mr. SAADY. That is right, until after the Commission's action on the 
transfer applications. 

Mr. 1-\.nAMS. Thank you. 
Mr. KEITH. I have further questions but I am going to yield for the 

moment and allow Mr. Lishman to continue. 
It would appear, Mr. Chairman, that it may be advisable for you to 

ask ,the Commission to have present the man who prepared the memo­
randum on this whole question, which no longer exists. 

.Mr . .Moss. vVe will request that he be present. . 
I find it interesting that in the letter of March 14, 1968, the Chair­

man of the Commission assured the chairman of the Committee on 
Interstate and Foreign Commerce that he has supplied the memoran­
dum listino- and identifying those members of the Commission staff 
who were,., involved in the processing of the original Overmyer 
application. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. His name was listed. I understood he was ex-
cused bv counsel because he was on vacation. He is back. 

Mr. LISHMAN. To,whom are you referring '? 
Mr. G,cORGE Sl\HTH. Mr. Hautanen. 
Mr. L1s1nrAN. ,Ve would like to have him here. 
Mr. Moss. Is it Edward W. Hautanen? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Yes, sir. 
~fr. M:oss. vVe will want to have him here. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I would like to ask Mr. Rawson, did you make any 

recommendation to anyone in the Commission or at the Commission 
staff level that ·there should be a hearing on the Overmyer application? 

Mr: RAWSON. Not that I know of. I would not have anv reason to 
make any recommendation to a member of my staff. • 

Mr. LISHMAN. It is a fact, is it not, that the staff memorandum 
approving the transfers, and upon which the Commission placed prac­
tically a hundred percent of its reliance in determining approval, con­
tains a number of statements which indicate that this was the type of 
case that was a problem case, novel and unusual situa:tion which might 
well have required a hearing? 

For example, on page 8 of the staff memo in paragraph 15, the state­
ment is made : 

'.l'he claim for expenses falling in the second category presents a novel question, 
i.e., the right to reimbursement for "out-of-pocket" which are substantiated by 
opinion evidence. 

Now, the novel question involved there, of course, relates to the 
$660,000 claim for unreim'bursed staff expenses of other Overmyer 
com pa,nies. Is that correct? 

Mr. RAWSON. That is correct. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Have you ever had a case before the Commission 
where a request for approval of such out-of-pocket expenses has been 
handled in the manner it was here? 

Mr. RAWSON. No,I can't saythatwehave. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it correct that Commissioner Cox in his dissent 

refers to this as an extremely unusual and novel situation? 
Mr. RAWSON. I believe he does. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Does he not say that indicates there at least should 

have been a hearing on this matter? 
Mr. RAWSON. I think several other Commissioners disagreed with 

him, £Kough. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I am not asking about the several. 
Mr. RAWSON. He did. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it not also correct that the staff memo approving 

this application for transfer states that, "The extension of loan by a 
transferee to a transferor presents an unusual situation which should 
be approached ,vith somy skepticism"? 

Now, under these conditions of a staff memo which indicates that 
it is a novel situation involving tremendous sums of money and an 
unusual situation which should be approached with skepticism, why 
wasn't there a hearing? 

Mr. RAWSON. You will have to ask the Commission that. I can't 
answer that question, obviously. 

Mr. LISHMAN. vVhy didn't the staff recommend a hearing? 
Mr. RAWSON. Because of the facts surrounding the entire matter as 

set out in the mcrnornndmn. · 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now I will just ask some more about the memoran-

dum. 
Does the Commission have any policy regarding enthusiasm? 
Mr. RAWSON. I really don't know. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Do you know th'at the staff memo in its very careful 

a.nalvsis of the situation stated, "Considering the enthusiasm of Over­
mye;'s commitment to entering UHF, there is no question that sub­
stantial expenses were incurred in attempting to get this station on 
the air." 

Mr. RAWSON. That isin thememorandum,yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. How do you equate enthusiasm with money? Can you 

show it on a balance sheet? 
Mr. RAWSON. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVho made the decision that Mr. Overmyer's en­

Hmsiasm proved that he had made Sl1'bstantial expenditures? 
Mr. RAWSON. I don't think the enthusiasm is what supports the 

expenses. Mr. Smith, I am sure, could probably help you. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I approved the language in the memorandum, 

itself, Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVhat does enthusia:sm have to do with out-of-pocket 

expenses? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't think it has anything to do with it. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Can you equate enthusiasm with $660,000? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Not necessarily, no. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Does the FCC have any policy on enthusiasm? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Not that I know of. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Do they have any policy respecting whether or not 

an applicant is dedicated? 



192 193

Mr. GEORGE. SMITH.Not that I know of. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Your memorandum relies on enthusiasm and dedica­

tion as being essential elements in the financial capacity of this gentle­
man and also as an essential element for proof of Overmyer's out-of­
pocket expenses? 

)\'[~. GEORGE SMITH. This, sir, is a recommendation and the Com­
mission does not always accept our recommendations. In numerous 
instances it rejects them. 

Mr. ROGERS. If the gentleman will yield at that point­
Mr. Moss. The gentleman from Florida is recognized. 
Mr. RoGERS. I believe they did accept your recommendations though, , 

in this case, did they not? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The Commission did approve it, yes, sir. 
Mr. RoGERS. These were your recommendations, were they not? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It was my recommendation and the Commission 

came out with a very short order on it. 
Mr. RoGER~. I am not saying that. I am saying this was your 

recommendation. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It certainly was; yes, sir. 
Mr. RoGERS. Was it your recommendation that they waive the top 

50 markets policy and grant their application? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I believe that is in the memorandum, is it not, 

Mr.Rawson? 
Mr. RAWSON. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It is. 
Mr. RoGERS. "',Vas it your recommendation? 
Mr. GEORGE SJ\'nTH. Yes, sir. 
Mr. ROGERS. It was your recommendation that no hearing be held ? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The memorandum that went to the Commis-

sion did not even mention a hearing. 
Mr. ROGERS. That is exactly the point I am making. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct. I did not recommend a hearing. 
Mr. ROGERS. That is what I want to know. Was that a staff decision, 

the work of other people, or was that your decision? 
· Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That wa:s entirely my judgment. 
Mr. ROGERS. Your judgment alone? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. men I submitted the memorandum I accepted 

the respon.sibility for that; yes, sir. 
Mr. ROGERS. That is what I want to know, because I think we will 

get to the heart of this now. 
,you say in your memorandum, as I see it, that "in the Bureau's view 

the financial arrangements here are compatible with the public in­
terest and out-of-pocket expenses which are subject to a question of 
proof have been proven adequately." 

Was that also your recommendation, your finding? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. mat page are you reading from? 
Mr. ROGERS. Page 2. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. If you have read from the memorandum, that is 

my responsibility. 
Mr. ROGERS. Where did you decide that the proof of financial ability 

was sufficient and had been proved? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The only question of financial responsibility here 

went to ,the buyer of these permits, not to the seller. 

Mr. ROGERS. mich are subject to a question of proof and have been 
proven adequately? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. If I understand your question correctly, you 
are correct in what you have just read. 

M1·. RoGERS. So this was your recommendation, too? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Yes, sir. 

. Mr. RoG~Rs. Was there a time when Overmyer was supposed to get 
mto operation? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. You are talking now about the previous con­
struction permit? 

M-r. RoGERS. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Yes. Every construction permit that is issued 

carries a time within which construction should be completed; yes, sir. 
Mr. ROGERS. But this was not done by Overmyer. You let them run 

for 8 months, I believe. 
~r. GEORGE-~MI'l'H. I believe the record shows that; ye.s, sir, at least 

on ban Francisco, and probably on all of them. 
Mr. RoGERS. ·what was your feeling about the 20-percent stock that 

backed up the mortgage? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't know what my feeling may be but what 

I had to say about it or what I approved is in the October 2 
memorandum. 

Mr. RoGERS. Which is what? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't know. I will have to look through it. 
Mr. ROGERS. You don't recall your findings on that? 
Mr. GEORGE Sl\UTH. "'iV ould you like to ask me the question again, 

please? 
Mr. ROGERS. Vv ell, read it. Mr. Reporter. 
(The question was read by the reporter.) 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. You asked me what my feeling was. I just don't 

know what my feeling was. 
Mr. ROGERS. Or your finding. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I did not find that the retention of the 20 

percent of the stock by Overmyer was a "roadblock," if I may use 
that term, to my recommendation that the transfer be granted. 

Mr. RoGERS. Your $3 million figure involved in the loan which 
would be paid at a certain time at which the 20-percent stock would 
then--

Mr. GEORGE S11nTH. I considered the $3-million loan separate and 
apart, a question separate and apart from the retention of 20 percent 
and the option arrangement that had been entered into whereby A VC, 
the purchaser here, could or could not acquire that 20 percent. 

Mr. RoGERS. Whom did you question on that? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't suppose I questioned anyone. I remem­

ber going over the matter. I did not treat this case lightly, Mr. 
Congressman. 

Mr. RomJRS. "What I can't understand is why you did not think a 
hearing was necessary to find out what the terms were and whether 
this was more than out-of-pocket payment for that 20 percent of the 
stock. 

Mr. KEITH. Will the gentleman yield at this point? 
Mr. ROGERS. Yes. 
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Mr. KEITH. In view of these hearings and of what has been re­
veal~d, do you still feel that the arrangement which was entered into 
was m the public interest, with particular reference to the point that 
Mr. Rogers is making? 

Mr. GEo~GE ~MITH. I _have t!10ught about that since these hearings 
started. Hmdsight, I thmk qmte often, is better than foresight. 

When I went through this contract and all the terms of it I came 
up 'Yith _m:y best judgment, my hones~ r~presentat~ons. I donit know, 
I thmk it is a matter for the Commission to decide whether or not 
it would-I think I would have made the same recommendation 
lacking any direction from the Commission. ' 

Mr. KEITH. In view of the great number of cases which you handle, 
~ what ~xtent in your decision_making process did you rely on the 
mformat10n that had been furrnshed you by the Overmyer interests 
and on the personality and character of those who represented those 
interests to you, including their past affiliations with the FCC? 

~fr. GEORGE SMITH. Well, that is a broad mouthful, Congressman 
Kmth. I don't think I considered the Overmyer interests here as much 
as I_ considered the qualificaJtions of the buyer a.nd the potential of 
gettmg_ ~hese five stations on the air in these important markets for 
competitive purposes. · 

I made the determinat_ion that the assignee in these cases had made 
,a; good case toward gettmg these stations on the air which was I be­
hev~ at t!iat time, and still_ i~, consistent with the Commission's policy 
of fostermg UH~ competition wherever we could get it. 

Mr. Moss. I beheve we will have to adjourn at this point and meet 
again a;t 1 :30 this a.fternoon. 

~fr. ADAMS. If you had not a:pproved the. transfer, was there any­
thmg to preve!llt A VC from srmply applymg for these stations in 
these areas? 

Mr. GE?J:GE SMITH. I beli;eve it is established law by a court of ap­
reals deci~10n that an .applicant oannort apply as against a construc­
t10n permit holder. 

I. have to distinguish that because you can file for a station facility 
agamst a renewal of license application. 

Mr. ADAMS. There w.as nothing to prevent A "V"C, if you closed out 
Overmyer, from buying these five stations? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is certainly true if the Overmyer construc­
tion permits had been canceled; yes. 

Mr. ADAMS. Thank you. 
. Mr. Mo~s. It would also have been true if the Overmyer, construc-

11:lon permits had not been extended, they would have just la.psed, 
would they not? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Had they been permitted to lapse, that is 
correct. 

Mr. Moss. So A VC could ha,ye then filed for them? 
Mr. GEORGE s~nTH. That is correct. 
Mr. Moss. The committee will recess until 1 :30 ait which time we 

will expect you gentlemen back, together with the additional witnesses. 
( Whereupon, at 11 :30 a.m. the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene 

at 1 :30 p.m. the same day.) 

AFTER RECESS 

(The committee reconvened at 1 :45 p.m., Hon. John E. Moss 
pvesiding.) 

Mr. Moss. The committee will be in order. 

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT H. ALFORD, CHIEF, TRANSFER BRANCH; 
ROBERT J. RAWSON, CHIEF, RENEWAL AND TRANSFER DIVI­
SION; 1GEORGE S. SMIT'H, CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; JAMES 0. 
JJINTILLA, DEPUTY CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; JAMES B. 
SHERIDAN, FORME,R CHIEF, BROADCAST BUREAU; SAMUEL L. 
SAA.DY, CHIEF, TELEVISION BRANCH; MARTIN I. LEVY, CHIEF, 
BROADC1\ST FACILITIES; ROY J. STEWART, ATTORNEY ADVISE;R, 
BROADCAST BUREAU; LLOYD R. SMITH, ENHINEER, BROADCAST 
BUREAU; AND K. 'GORDON OPPENHEIMER, ATllQRNEY, BROAD­
CAST BUREAU, FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION­
Resumed 

Mr. LTSHMAN. I would like to ask what are out-of-pocket operating 
expenses? 

Mr. GEORGE SllnTH. Do you want to answer that, Mr. Rawson i 
Mr. RAWSON. Out-of-pocket expenses are those expenses which are 

incurred i1~ c~mnection ,vi~h t~ie prosecution of an application before 
the Comm:ss1c_m, a~ apphcat~on f~r a construction permit and any 
other apphcat10ns m connect10n with the construction permit which 
may be authorized or filed necessarily to modify the construction 
permit as originally authorized. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Does the Commission have any rule defining out-of­
pocket expenses? 

Mr. RAwsoN. No, sir. 
Mr. LI~HMf~- How long has the Commission been applying the 

rule that 1t will not approve more than out-of-pocket expenses in con­
nection with a construction permit transfer? 

Mr. RA wsoN. I am not too sure if I understood that last question. 
Mr. LrsI-IJ\.fAN. I will rephrase the question. 
How long has the Commission had a policy that it would not a p­

prove more than out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the trans­
fer of a, construction permit? 

Mr. RAWSON. To m37: knowledge, it has beeA at least 15 or 16 years 
that I k~ow of. vVe did have one more _specifically added by section 
31_1_ relat~ng to out-of-pocket_ expenses m cases that I was very fa­
n11har with before I came mto the assignment and transfer and 
renewal field. 

Mr. Moss. Mr._Lishman, before we. proceed on that line of questions, 
there are two thmgs that I would hke to have done. I would like to 
conclude with the a:dditional members of the staff the answers to the 
9uestion a_s to whether or not they made a recommendation for a hear­
mg on this matter. I don't think we had complet·ed it . I \\" Oul d like 
to swear the attorney who prepared the memorand11m for Mr. Smith 
on analysis, which I believe is the word Mr. Smith used, on this case. 
I would ask the attorney now to stand and be sworn. 
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Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you are about to g_ive 
this subcommittee shall be the truth, the whole truth, and nothmg 
but the truth, so help you God? 

Mr. HAUTA!NEN. I do. 
Mr. Moss. Will you identify yourself for the record. 

TESTIMONY OF EDWARD HAUTANEN, ATTORNEY, ASSIGNMENT 
AND TRANSFER DIVISJ:ON, BROADCAST BUREAU, FEDERAL COM­
MUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Mr. HAUTANEN. My name is Edward Hautanen. I am in the Assign­
ment and Transfer Division of the Broadcast Bureau. 

Mr. Moss. All right, Mr. Lishma!l, you may proceed and conclude 
the orio-inal question you had pendmg as to whether or not the staff 
had ad;ised that a hearing be held. . . 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. Mr. Hautanen, did you make any r~co~mendation 
that there be a hearing in connection with the application for the 
transfer of these five construction permits? . . 

Mr. HAUTANEN. No; there was no such recommendat10n given. 
Mr. LISI-IMAN. Was it discussed? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. There was no possibility-it was not discussed. The 

way this went up, in various draft stages I woul~ rework th~ dmft and 
it would be discussed with Mr. Rawson and with Mr. Smith. _At one 
point when we got fairly close to a finis]:ie~ product Mr. Smith ~elt 
that the thing could go ~p to the Commrssion for a recom1!1endat10n 
for a grant without hearmg. But there was no recommendation on my 
part. . 

Mr. LISHMAN. You prepared an analysis which you subnutted to 
Mr. Smith? 

Mr. HAuTANJ<,N. The analysis consisted of a draft opinion which was 
reworked several times, several copies o! a yellow page dra~. I would 
work that take it back and rework it. So that was bas1ea1ly the 
analysis. I~ final stage it came out as this document here. . 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. Could you give us the substance of that analysis? 
Mr'. lliuTANEN. It is the analysis which appears in the Commission's 

memorandum recommending a grant without hearing. It is memo 
6738. It is the basic memorandum in this case. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Yes; I have it before me. . 
Now in connection with this analysis, and you may answer this 

or any 'other gentlemen at the table may do so, didn't it strike you as 
odd that Overmyer felt entitled to $2 million out-of-pocket expenses, 
yet he was only putting in for $1.3 million? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. The point was noted in the memorandum. How odd 
I mio-ht have considered that I don't know-I realized when the 
memirandum was being written that Overmyer hadn't got everything 
down but the point he made in his request for these out-of-pockets 
was that he felt that his expenses were in excess of $1.3 mil~i~n, that 
they were in actually the neighborood, as I recall, of $1.5 rmlhon but 
he was only claiming $1,331,000, I believe. 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. Why didn't you rusk Mr. Overmyer for this justifi­
cation? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. Because the out~of-pockets were supported by affi­
davits and affidavits by-I think it was T. J, Byrnes o:f the Overmyer 

companies, and I believe the various, I am not sure on this point, but 
I think the various department heads individually swore to the out­
of-pocket expenses they were daiming. I know there was an overall 
affidavit by Mr. Byrnes. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Couldn't the Commission have made some kind of 
investigation as to whether or not these out-of-pocket expenses had 
actually been incurred? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I suppose such an investigation might have been 
made. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Has the Commission made it in other cases? 
Mr~ HAUTANEN. Not that I am aware of, any case that I have 

worked on. 
Mr. LISI-IJl,IAN. Now, the staff memorandum states, "The transfer is 

dictated by reverses in. Overmyer's warehouse operations which make 
it impossible to c<;>nstruct the stations through warehouse profits." 

Now what financial statements of Overmyer or of his warehouse 
companies were submitted to the Commission to prove that his finan­
cial condition forcibly ~uggested that he was not in a position to get the 
stations on the air in the foreseeable future? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. There is a long document filed in this proceeding. I 
think it was entitled "Reasons for Proposed Transfer," something like 
that. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I am asking you what financial statements Mr. 
Overmyer or his warehouse companies submitted to substantiate that 
point. · 

Mr. HAUTANEN. By financial statements you mean balance sheets~ 
Mr. LISHMAN. To justify the statement that it was dictated by 

reverses in his warehouse operations. What financial statement did he 
submit in connection with proving that point? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I don't recall if there were any. I went mainly on 
the fact that this was an affidavit under oath and that the reasons here 
were truthful reasons. There was no reason to suppose the contrary. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Well, Commissioner Cox in his dissent points out 
that it is a very u:nusual situation to have approval o:f an amount of 
indirect expenses which was more than twice that spent directly by the 
five permit tees. What justification is there in the files .for that? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I realize it was unusual. I think the language I used 
in writing the decision was that this was a novel question. Accord­
ingly, we left it to the Commission to determine whether they wished 
to mquire further, but the feeling of the staff was that this statement 
under oath was a sufficient-- · 

Mr. LISHMAN. I would like to have you refer specifically to this 
statement under oath that you are talking about. Will you give me the 
name and date of verification? 

Mr. lfaUTANEN. It is in a dooument called "Reasons for Proposed 
Transfer." 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. Whose sworn statement is it? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. It would be in the application which was certified. 

I think it was personally sworn to by Mr. Byrnes. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it not a fact that this affidavit is a mere justification 

for the fmmula used by Overmyer in allocating the unreimbursed 
staff expenses? That is not an affidavit, is it, that says these amounts 
were actually spent~ Is that correct? 
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Mr. Jfa.uTANEN. Without seeing it-I don't recall, i t has been some 
time since I worked on thrut document. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I wish to call to your attention that you are o-ivino­
the committee the impression that this is a sworn statement, that 
these claimed out-of-pocket expenses were actually expended when 
that is not true. That affidavit says that they made an allocation on 
the b~sis of opinion evidence and that they think the formula they 
used 1s a pretty good :formula, and from their point of view it is. But 
that is not an affidavit that money involving $666,000 was actually 
out-of-pocket e<Xpenses. 

Mr_. HAUTAXEN. It was opinio~ ev:idence that it had been expended, 
that 1s what we went on. \Ve said m the memorandum to the Com­
mission that this was a novel question because it represented the 
recovery-whether out-of-pockets should be allowed when they were 
based on opinion evidence. 

Mr. LISHMAN. "\Vhat base period did Overmyer use in order to come 
up with this $6,66,000 figure? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I have gone over the decision. It is a rather compli­
cated thing. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I just want to ask you one question: \Vhat base 
period did Overmyer use in making this complicated allocation? 

Mr. HAuTANEN. It would have been a base period prior to the time 
that Overmyer's administrative functions were centered in the central 
Overmyer company, apparently July 1964 to---

Mr. LISHMAN. I will give you the base period. It is from September 
1966 to December 1966. 

Mr. HAUTANEN. That is right, sir. 
Mr. LrsHMAN. Had there been any great activity in the communica­

tions activities of the Overmyer company during these periods? 
Mr. Ifa.UTANEN. On the basis of the affidavit which had been filed, 

the document which had been filed, I assumed there had. I had no 
reason to assume to the contrary. 

Mr. Moss. Will you yield there? 
Why have you no reason to assume to the contrary? The Federal 

Communications Commission is created by law to carry out certain 
responsibilities, by the Congress of the United States, because the 
Congress found that in past years it was unrealistic :for it to under­
take those. And it imposed upon you the responsibility to act in the 
public interest. Therefore, you have every reason to seek quietly and 
carefully for the facts. So that this industry will not become just a 
golden egg for the private few who might receive the construction per­
mits or the licenses. You had every reason, in fact I think the exact 
opposite o:£ the implication in your answer, you had every reason to 
question every fact submitted to you, to examine with care and prud­
ence those claimed costs because for one thing this company or this 
holder o:£ permit s had not folly disclosed the fact that it had under­
taken refinancing before it filed application for extension of some of 
its permits. It did not disclose the fact that it had entered into a sales 
agreement before it made application for extension o:f some o:£ these 
permits. 

The cavalier attitude of the members of this staff, I find shocking. 
I don't see anything here on this record that reflects the sense of 
commitment to the public interest that I expect from ·a commission 

and its staff which is vested with the responsibility of carrying out 
the duties given this Congress by the Constitution. 

Mr. Lishman, you may proceed. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Hautanen, are you aware of the fact that in the 

documents filed with the Internal Revenue Service on August 31, 1966, 
the Overmyer company stated that it had expenses from January 1 of 
that year? Mr. HAUTANEN. NO, sir, there was no information in the application 
involving Internal Revenue. 

Mr. LrsHJ\IAN. H this statement filed by the Overmyer company 
with Internal Revenue is correct, then they would have had a record 
of actual out-of-pocket expenses from January through December; 
and I submit to you what would be the necessity for constructing an 
allocation of expenses on a base period when their actual expenditures 
were already recorded if, as I noted, what they said to the Internal 
Revenue Service is true. 

Diel any information ~long this line come to the Commission? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. Not t.o me, sir, and certainly not to anybody that 

would have got the application that would have eventualy come to me. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you question them as to whether they had any 

record o:f out-of-pocket expense? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. The matter of out-of-pocket was discussed at vari­

ous times between Mr. Rawson, Mr. Smith, and myself. It was gone 
over. I am not sure, Mr. Juntilla may have been in on the discussions. 
But the problem was batted around for a while. Eventually I think 
the consensus which emerged was that the expense listed in the appli-
cation that had been documented should be allowed. · 

~fr. KF.JTH. Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. 1\foss. Mr. Keith. 
Mr. KEITH. I represent a district that is quite provincial in some 

respects. Constituents come to Washington occasionally to see if they 
can get channels for radio stations, They hire counsel either from 
Boston or perhaps they hire counsel in "\Vashington. They believe with 
n_rn that we have a government of laws and not of men. This investiga­
tion has caused me to doubt the validity of this belie:£. ·when this 
whole question came up, did you go back to the principals and ask 
them for a more detailed breakdown, or did you pick up the phone 
and call his local counsel? How did you satisfy yourself that these 
were bona fide out-of-pocket expenses? vVhat procedures did vou use? 

Mr. HAUTA~TEN. In this particular case, it was a rather. lernrthy 
docume11;t, let ~s say . seven or eight pages, on which Mr. Oven~yer 
substantiated his various out-o:£-pocket expenses. It was on the basis 
of this document which, as I say, was part of the certified application, 
that we concluded--

Mr. KEITH. ·what kind of certification was on that application? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. The certification I refer to is the warnin o- on ,the 

cover of the application which states that any false st atement~ subject 
you to criminal punishment under section 1001 of title 18. · 

Mr. KErrn:. Does that include also omissions ns well as errors of 
commission ? 

Mr. HAUTANF.N. Yes, sir. 
Mr. KEITI-I. You have to take that at its face value because you have 

to have something to go on and these men do this under a certain 
penalty. 



200 201

~vv 

Mr. HAUTANEN. That is the assumption. ·when they file an applica­
tion, and so certify i!t as a responsible application, they will be held 
to it. 

Mr. KEITH. You never seek to go back of that to check into the 
validity of that document? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. Generally speaking, no. 
Mr. KEITH. Well, may I ask you this: How did the minority of the 

Commission get the detailed data they had to support their dissent­
ing view? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. From the decision itself, from this memo 6738. I 
think at one point, Commissioner Cox may have called for the appli­
cation. I don't recall whether it was sent. 

Mr. KEITH. But was the dissenting view discussed with you gentle­
men? In the process of reaching that dissenting view, does he have 
that document to go on, generally speaking? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. You mean the memorandum? 
Mr. KErTH. Yes. 
Mr. HAUTANEN. He would have that, plus the application itself; 

or he might have basically this document plus the application in writ­
ing his dissent. 

Mr. KEITH. In that decision-making process, if he gradually comes 
to one conclusion and if the majority gradually comes to another 
conclusion, don't they get together and discuss it with this gentleman 
over here, the Chief of the branch? Or do they sort of reach their 
decision in a cellular type of operation where there is no communica• 
tion while the decision is being made? 

Mr. HAm'ANEN. I t-hink at the time this was adopted the dissenting 
Commissioners indicated they would later file dissenting statements. 
It was a matter of weeks before those dissenting statements were out. 
They were not as a rule, that I am aware of, returned to us and re­
hashed. 

Mr. KEITH. This is the same memorandum on which the majority 
based its decision? 

M:r. HAUTANEN. Their votes were taken basically on that, plus what­
ever else might be said at the Commission meeting in response to ques­
tions by the various Commissioners. This matter was, I am sure­
I wasn't at the meeting, but I am told it was-discussed at some length 
back and forth between the various members of the Commission and 
the staff and there was an awareness of the policy question. 

Mr. KEITH. Just as there was no exchange of views or facts of any 
substantive nature between the Commission and its staff, the staff did 
not go back to Overmyer in search of more substantive information. 

Mr. HAUTANEN. There was some question which we put to-while I 
was working on this I remember calling Mr. Overmyer's counsel and 
saying I wished to be satisfied on certain points. 

Mr. KEITH. The interest of the committee was aroused when it was 
reven,led in testimony here that, following one hearing a week or two 
ago, the counsel for the Overmyer interests wandered over to the Com­
mission to give them transcripts of testimony which were not n,vailable 
to members of the Commission. Is i,t customary for a petitioner to more 
or less walk in to the agency to see how things are cominP" along? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. Certainly not, if it is a contested cas~ That ' would 
not be done. ·what happened several weeks ago-I was not in "\Vash­
ington at the time this happened. 

Mr. KEITH. How many contacts would you say were made between 
your office and the Overmyer interests during the deliberative process 
here? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I don't know exactly how many times I called Mr. 
Gaguine. I am certain it must have been a half-dozen times at least. 
Questions would arise, ,ve wanted additional copies of things. I know 
I finally got additional copies of something. A half-dozen times. 

Mr. KEITH. You would not say to him, because you didn't have 
knowledge at the time, ""What about the loan, how does that relate 
to this whole picture? Are you by chance getting more than out-of­
pocket expenses? You have five stations and if you take a 20-percent 
interest in each of those five stations so that you have strings on them, 
it becomes a very important factor. The same end objective could have 
been accomplished in a way by selling four stations and maintaining 
ownership of the fifth and it would have been a. clean deal." The 
nature of the actual sale of 80 percent of each station, however, is 
rather_ extraordinary. I;>id you discuss this with the Overmyer repre-
sentatives? , 

Mr. HAUTANEN. The options here were approved mainly on the basis 
that there were prior Commission decisions sanctioning .such arrange­
ments. I think a list of those was given to the subcommittee staff. The 
"\VFLD proceeding, the WAFT transfer--

Mr. KEITH. You are talking about individual cases. This is a group 
of five stations. 

Mr. l-IAUTANEN. Will you repeat the question? 
Mr. KEITH. The point I was making was that there was a retained 

interest of 20 percent in each of five stations. I can imagine some cases 
where there was one station sold that the buying party could not per­
haps raise all the money and would want to take a note for the balance. 

Mr. HAUTANEN. The Overmyer case was the first. The others in­
volved single stations. 

Mr. KEITH. Thank you. 
Mr. BROWN. You mentioned the certification on the application. In 

point of fact how does the FCC invoke the penalty or take a case up 
where there is indication of erroneous information filed, purposely or 
accidentally? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. The Commission has set down a number of times for 
hearings, Congressman Brown, on ca,ses where the Commission felt 
there were misrepresentations of fact by applicants or by licensees, and 
a number of licenses have been denied on that basis over the years. 

Mr. BROWN. But there is no indication of penalty? There is a 
penalty, I understood. 

l\fr. J UNTILLA. Penalty would be revocation of the license or denial of 
the application. 

Mr. BROWN. I understood the gentleman to say tl1at there was a 
thousand-dollar fine. 

Mr. J UNTILLA. I am sorry. Criminal penalty? 
Mr. BROWN. Yes. 
Mr. JuNTILLA. There would be references by the General Counsel's 

office to the Justice Department in cases where they felt action by the 
Justice Department would be appropriate. 

Mr. BROWN. How many times have such references been made? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. I don't know, sir, but I can check with the General 

Counsel's office. 
97-537-69-pt. 1-14 
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Mr. KEITH. Generally speaking, is it a tool which you have had 
occasion to use? A man in the audience is nodding his head. Is he the 
General Counsel ? 

Mr. Moss. ""\V"ill the gentleman identify himself? 
Mr. SwsBERG. My name is Hilburt Slosberg, Associate General Coun-

sel for the FCC. 
Mr. Moss. Are you going to give testimony? 
Mr. SLOSBERG. The response to the question-­
Mr. Moss. Are you going to give testimony? 
Mr. SLOSBERG. Yes. 
Mr. Moss. Then raise your right hand. 
Do you solemnly swear the testimony you are abont to give this 

subcommittee shall be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 
truth, so help you God? 

Mr. SLOSBERG. I do. 
Mr. Moss. Identify yourself for the record. 

TESTIMONY OF HILBURT SLOSBERG, ASSOCIAlIB GENE,RAL COUN­
SEL, FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Mr. SLoSBERG. I am Hilburt Slosberg, Associate General Counsel 
of the Federal Communications Commission. 

Mr. Moss. You may now give the testimony. 
Mr. SLOSBERG. The response to the question is that over the recent 

years the Commission has referred somewhat in the neighborhood 
of five to 15 cases a year to the Department of Justice for alleged 
viol ation of section 1001 of title 18 of the United States Code. -

Mr. BROWN. And pursued by the Department of Justice? Do you 
lmow how many times the Department of .Justice has brought action 
in such cases? 

Mr. SLOSBERG. I would have to check the record. 
(The information referred to appears in the appendix, p. 778.) 

. Mr. SLOSBERG. Numerous cases involving counts other than the Fed­
eral Co:r:nmunications. The local U.S. attorneys directly proceed to dis­
pose of the case frequently on the basis not of misrepresentation but 
relying on the other count. There have been a number of convidions 
of cases initially involving a 1001 count, but maybe not winding 
up on that basis. There may have been findings of guilty or plea 
of guilty to other counts of indictment which the Court accepted. 

Mr. BROWN. Then is it fair to say that there are really three levels 
here wherein the FCC takes into consideration whether or not the 
statments of the applicant are accurate. 

First, if they are inaccurate it would prejudice consideration of his 
application and perhaps cause his application to be set down or 
thrown out, whatever term you use. 

Secondly, it would be referred, if it were felt that the application 
were sufficiently inaccurate it would be referred to the ,Justice De­
partment and, thirdly, the question of whether or not the ,Justice De­
partment itself chooses to pursue any errors in the application to 
the extent of bringing the case to trial. 

Are those the three levels of reaction of inaccurate or incomplete 
or perjured information in the normal application? 

Mr. SLOSBERG. Generally, yes. 

Mr. BROWN. Are there any other Jevels? . 
Mr. LEVY. May I answer that? I !hink there i~ one add1t,0nal level. 

Information that indicates that m1srepresentat10n occurre~. at s_ome 
other time. If that application is dismissed or fi1;-al ~ec1~10n isn't 
reached by the Commission on that particular apphcat1?n 1~ may ~e 
raised by the Commission at a later date on another application. This 
is quite often done. 

Mr. BROWN. ""\V"hat you are sayin,g: is that inaccu~ac}'. or purposeful 
misleadino- by an applicant prejudices future apphcat10ns? 

Mr. LE~. That is right. 
Mr.-BROWN. Is that right? . 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. He may have to lmve a hearmg on the 

question of whether the'i-e has been misrepresentation or not. 
Mr. KEITH. Are you an attorney, J\fr. Rantanen? 
J\fr. HAUTANEN. Yes, sir 
Mr. KEITH. On questions where there is some flicker of susp1c10_n 

or concern in your mil\d, do y~m call_ UJ? Mr. Slosberg and ask his 
advice and counsel to help you m a ha1rlrne case? 

Mr. HAuTANEN. Generally no; ,ve don't. These mat~ers are handled 
within the Broadcast Bureau. vVe do not confer with the General 
Counsel unless perhaps there was som.ething mmsual. 

Mr. KEITH. Thank you. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Any one of the panel may answer thts: ~t is correct, 

is it not that under section 310(b) of the Commumcat10ns Act no 
construction permit or license or any rights thereunder sha~l be tra!1s­
ferred, assigned, or disposed o-f in any manner unle~s there 1s a find1_ng 
by the Commission that the public interest, convemence, and necessity 
will be served thereby? Is that correct? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct; yes. . . 
Mr. LISHMAN. ""\Vhere in the staff memorandum approvmg this 

transfer is there any determination that the public interest for each 
of the five CP's would be served by the transfer? 

Mr. GEORGE Sl\nTH. Paragraph 26 on page 12 contains the recom­
mendation that the above-captioned applications be granted and the 
Commission of course is aware that it can only grant if it makes a 
fi nding that it is in the public interest. ·we try to save a little work 
where we can and that is the law. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Is it a fact that there is no determination with respect 
to any individual location here as to whether the public interest would 
be served or not? · 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is inherent in the memorandum. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I don't understand that. Aren't conditions differ0nt 

in each market? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. 1V"e recommended that the Commission /:';rn 11 t. 

these transfers for all five. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you make a study of the market C'ond il .ion s 111 

Cincinnati? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. ""\i\Tas any submitted to you by th r, :1pplir·:11il '! 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't believe so. · 
I would like to say, I don't want to ~-ivr, y01 1 n, l1 P<i g <' :111 s 11·p1· l11il 

did not personally examine these appli<'ations 01· 1 Jip l',iii l1il s. Yo 11 
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have. I just haven't looked at them. If there is any market survey in 
connection with the application I would have to say that there is. ·But 
I haven't seen it. 

Mr. Moss. Don't you in your recommendation to the Commission 
make that statement? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. There is no statement made about a market 
survey in my recommendation, I do not believe. 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. Did the Commission have anything before it indi­
cating that the five communities involved in the Overmyer transfer 
had an unusual and urgent need for this additional television service? 

Mr. 9"~0RGE SMI!'H. My memorandum was the only thing before the 
Commission submitted by the Broadcast Bureau. Now the Commis­
sioners keep themselves informed. You must understand that this was 
before the Commission four times. It started out November 8, No­
vember 15, November 22, and finally December 8, and there was much 
discussion about this item at every meeting. 

At one time we were asked to get certain additional information 
from Overmyer, and did. That is that letter of November 21, 1967. 

Mr. Moss. Let me pursue this for just one moment. 
On item No. 2 of the memorandt1m here, November 8, 1967, October 

27, 1967, No. 6738, your office memo, "for AL and TC agenda" to the 
Commission from the Chief, Broadcast Bureau, page 3: 

The applicant has conducted a survey to appraise needs of the communities it 
proposes to serve. The survey consisted of interviews with civic, religious, busi­
ness, education, and other community leaders. From these interviews the appli­
cant _has isolated significant local problems to which its programing efforts will 
be directed. The proposed commercial practices of the applicant present no 
problems. , 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The applicant referred to is the buyer, not 
Overmyer. 

Mr. Moss. I assumed it was the buyer. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I am trying to find that, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Moss. Page 3. Middle of the paragraph. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. What paragraph is that? 
Mr, Moss. Middle of the first. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Apparently the photostat copies do not run the 

same as my copy. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Paragraph No. 2 on page 3. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I am with you, I have found it, sir. 
Mr. Moss. Did you see those? 
Mr .. GEOR?E SMITH. I am sure I did not. That goes to !he ;survey and 

appraisal of program needs as the buyer of these permits mtended to 
serve the public mterest, the service he intended to render. 

Mr. Moss. You don't check those things out? 
Mr. GEORGE SML'l'H. I pretty much rely on my staff on that. As far 

as I can recall, there has never been any question raised by the 
Commission on that point. · 

Mr. Moss. The Oammission se:ems to rely on the staff and the staff 
seems to rely on the lower echelons of the staff. I guess the lower 
echelons of the staff rely upon the submitted documents and the sub­
mitted documents are at the mercy of the applicant and the public 
be damned. That is the way it impresses me. 

Mr. Van De~rlin. 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Does this document refer to representations by 
the chemical firm that was buying the construction permits from 
Overmyer? 

Mr. Moss. I think it was a diversified investment company, was it 
not, rather than a chemical company? 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Because the evidence here is somewhat in con­
trast to anything that the Overmyer interests said they were going to 
offer the viewing public in these five communities. The evidence ad­
duced from Mr. Adams, who was the general manager for Overmyer, 
was that the thrust of their programing was going to consist of-i-f 
I rnayre_ad his testimony. . . . . 

He said: "vVe are gomg to give them another choice on their chal." 
Asked what the fourth choice was going to consist of, he said the same 
type of programing put on any other sta,tion, entertainment fare, 
sports, news, weather, entertainment, movies, reruns, and outworn 
syndicated features; ad infinitum. 

This morning, when ~ach of the staff members covered briefly his 
own area of responsibiJity, I was wondering who especially might 
direct his attention to programing in new applications. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The application, of course, contains several 
questions with regard to programing and puts the burden on the appli­
cant and the applicant that I am now speaking of would be the pro­
posed assignee because he is the one that is proposing to take over 
these permits and render the service. 

The Commissioners themselves, I assure you, sir, are as interested in 
this type of question as you are. If we in submitting an item to the 
Commission ever undertake through inadvertence or to otherwise 
shortcut the answers we are asked to supply them-you asked us a 
question earlier about the nature of the assignee. After my item of 
October 27 was be1fore the Commission at one of the meetings, I don't 
know which one it was, a Commissioner raised the question, "Who is 
the AVC Corp.? You haven't told us very much about who owns it, 
who the people are." 

On November 13 we submitted a supplemental item to the Commis­
sion ,vhich is really on the A VC Corp. apprising the Commission who 
these people were. This is mimeograph 8082. 

Mr. V AN DEERLIN. The thing that has haunted me as much as any­
thing else throughout the hearings has been the apparent assumption 
by the Commiss10n that Mr. Overmyer was the sort of person whom 
we should be seeking to draw into broadcasting in five major popula­
tion centers in the country. I found in the earlier testimony from Mr. 
Overmyer 's representatives that no one on either the staff or among the 
Commissioners had asked a single question regarding their program 
plans. I found this simply beyond understanding. 

Mr. GEORGE Si\HTI-I. You are referring now to the Overmyer pl:tnH 
in the original instance? 

Mr. VAN DEERLIN. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. It is no answer to say that thn,t go<'S Imel llllforn 

my time, but I do note that Commissioner Cox, wl10 g rn·H i1ilo i l11 •H< 
things very thor4:mghly, in ~he third paragraph o f lii H ~Ii. · '.'11Li11 r <.11 (i11 -
ion did say he didn't question Mr. Overmycr's s 1n<·<•nl.y 111 11,·q111r111, 
the permits, nor did he suggest that he so nght. t.lwn1 fo r f 11(1 1111,·pw , 
of specul-ating, and he thought he intended to 1>11ild tt nd ol)(l l'l\1!1 t 11 \ 
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stations. That is about as far as I can go because I have not gone into 
the old representations in the original instance by Mr. Overmyer. 

Mr. BROWN. Will you yield? 
Mr. VAN DEERLIN. I wish to point out first that the general manager, 

Robert Adams, in response to the question, stated flatly that he had 
never once been questioned in regard to what they were going to put 
in the living rooms of the residents of these five major markets. 

I yield to Mr. Brown. · 
Mr. LEVY. Mr. Congressman, may I respond to that? In each of the 

applications originally filed, whether it was an application for a new 
station or an application for an assignment of an existing CP, there 
had to be a complete section 4 which is that part of the application 
form which requires the applicant to give a complete rundown of 
what his proposed programing will be. 

Now more recently the Commission amended that form to require 
also that he show how he went about arriving at his proposed pro­
graming. In other words, whom he surveyed, what kind of survey he 
made, what judgments he arrived at and how he then put those into 
a proposed programing schedule so that in ea,ch case the Commission 
did ask for the complete programing. 

We may not have gone back and asked Mr. Adams personally any 
questions but there was a complete programing proposal in each of tl{e 
applications. 

Mr. VAN lliERLIN. I am a.ware of that. If you and the sta.ff mem­
bers a.re not encouraged from above to go into these rt:.hings I don't 
hold you philosophically responsible, but Mr. Adams was constrained 
to agree that what their programing plan boiled down to, as presented 
to the FOO, amounted to, and I quorte, "The same old stuff." 

Mr. BROWN. If the gentleman will yield. I ,vas also under the im­
pression the gentleman at the table made. tlw point that some pro­
graming plans a.re required. As I understood it, it is the. schedule of 
w:ha.t your programing will be, that is required. I reaJly asked you to 
yield only for an observation. 

I think them are two or three, points involved here related to FCC 
policy, not what it should be but whether or not it is beino- observed; 
that is, whether it is merely sufficient or merely the policy ~,f the FCC 
that we get more stations on the air or whether in trying to get more 
stations on the air we are in n,ddition trying to upgrade or maintain 
or see that at lea.st it doesn't deteriorate too far the quality of the 
broa,dcasting that is done by the additional stations. 

It seems to me that there is aJso one other point. unrelated to the 
cultural aspect of such policies and that is whether or not a market 
can tolerafo additional stations either from the standpoint of tha.t 
station itself, or from the standpoint of what it may do to the exist­
ing stations in the market, so that the station operator can accomplish 
the cultural effort to which Mr. Van Deerlin alludes. 

It seems to me in this case this is merely a matter of observation, not 
necessarily a conclusion at this point, that there is some question as to 
whether Mr. Overmyer had the backing that he needed financially to 
go ahead and pursue putting these stations on the air. But there is 
also some question as to whether the stations can survive once on 
the air. 

It seems to me it is just as appropriate to A VC as it was in the 
Overmyer case except that perhaps AVC may have some more money 
to throw into a losing proposition if that is in fact what we have here. 

I am not sure that on the question of whether Mr. Overmyer's opera­
tions had the wherewithal to get this station on the air or 111 the facts 
developed by the FCC as to whether the market could sustain the 
station as a profitable operation sufficient background work was done. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Congressman Brown, for a long time the Com­
mission's policy on that point was to require •an applicant to have 
enough financial re.sources to get his station on the air and operate it 
for-an initial period of at least 3 months without dependino- upon in­
come. This was sort of a hangover policy from the AM field. I think 
once the C?1:1mission ma.de _up its mind that television, particularly 
UHF television, was not gomg to be as profitaible as AM had been in 
the ~arly stages, it changed its policy. The present policy is that an 
applicant now must demonstrate financial ability to get his station on 
~he air _and opemte it. ~or a. ~inimum period of 1 year without reliance 
111 particular upon estimated mcome. 
. In other words, if an applicant has to rely on any part of estimated 
mcome he has to demonstrate the basis for that estimate. That is pretty 
carefull3; gone ~nto _because ge_nera~l:y speaking an applicant has to 
show pnma facie evidence of his ability to operate the station for the 
first year. 

Mr. BROWN .. If I may make another observation, it seems to me that 
p~rhaps one can justify a policy which says get more programs on the 
all' regardless of what quality is produced. In othe.r words, if they 
don't make any money they may have to maintain a minimum cultural 
offering b.y offering r~-runs. But then the other part of the problem 
comes up, if we are gomg to be concerned about the transfer of licenses 
after a station doe.s get on the air. And that is, has a reasonable judo-­
ment been made about the prospect of the original applicant being able 
!o put this station on the air and maintaining it, even if that maintain­
mg means subsidizing, if the apphcant is willing to lose the money in it 
~nd have a losing proposition that is his business but if he is not will­
mg or able to do that, then he in a way is trafficking with this license 
that he has gotten. 

It seems to me that if A VC doesn't have the resource or doesn't have 
the willi~gness to continue to maintain the station or stations they are 
now buymg from Overmyer that we could come back in another case 
not dissimilar to this where AVC is the principal that raises this whole 
question because a basic judgment has been made as to whether that 
market can sustain an additional station. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Of course we have had dozens and dozens of 
UHF stations that have gone off the air through bankruptcy and just 
couldn't make it. 

Mr. BROWN. What happened to the license? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That was ·canceled. 
Mr. BROWN. How long does it take before that license in effect is 

turned back by the licensee? 
Mr. GEORGE s~nTH. In the instance where they have o-one throuO'h 

bankruptcy proceedings of course that procedure takes iver. But i; a 
lot of instances-
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Mr. BROWN. You say that procedure takes over. Does the FCC make 
a substantive judgment? H a man has filed for bankruptcy he is in no 
position to maintain the stations and therefore his license is returned. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The receiver is appointed and the receiver 
makes a determination whether or not he wants to ask the Commission 
to continue that operation or get authority to remain silent, as we call 
it, in the Commission. 

Mr. BnowN. How long can a man remain silent? 
Mr. LEVY. The Commission policy varies a great deal on that. In 

1954, when a large number of UHF stations went on the air and then 
found they could not make it, they lost substantia.l sums of money, 
they were allowed to keep their construction permits or their licenses 
for a substantial period of time. It wasn't, I don't believe, until about 
1958 or 1960 that the Commission initially undertook to delete the first 
group of licenses that had actually been authorized stations that orig­
inally went on the air in 1954, altiJJ.ough some of those people-the 
corporations had actually gone out of business by that time. 

But this has evolved to the point where now the Commission is 
taking a good, close look at the time the permittee comes in with his 
first apphcrution for extension of time. Now if he indicates at that 
point that he has not made progress in proceeding with construction, 
the staff is now under instructions to bring that application up to the 
Commission for action, and we are proceeding to act in that manner. 

Mr. BROWN. What is the time frame on the construction permit 
which you just discussed and the time frame of the license after the 
station has perhaps gone dark, or gotten into sufficient financial diffi­
culty that it no longer is able to do what it said it would initially do 
in its application? 

Mr. LEVY. It is difficult to sav because the Commission has been 
more lenient with people who pu'.t a station on the air and proceeded 
to lose a good deal of money and it has gone dark, and then generally 
the Commission has allowed them a period of time to try to arrange 
refinancing or something like that; the Commission has been more 
lenient with people who proceeded witJh construction and actually 
operating the station. It is difficult to put it in a time frame. It has 
varied from a great many years to just a few years. 

Mr. BnowN. With the patience of the chairman, I have this one 
other thought. In this case we have two separate distinct problems. 
One is whether or not the Commission made a good judgment in 
reference to the deal that aJlowed Mr. Overmyer ,to get it, whether 
he really got only his initial investment back or his original invest­
ment plus some override. But beyond that it seems to me that there 
is a judgment question here as to whether iit is desirable for Mr. 
Overmyer, having failed to put his stations on the air, to be permitted 
to sell those stations, for the FCC to take ,the license back with the 
thought that by permitting him to sell the station there is somebody 
who will put the stations on the air and hopefully if the judgment 
was bad initially and the FCC wants to proliferate the number of 
stations, somebody will be able to put enough money in it to keep the 
station on the air even though it is losing money. 

Is this what FCC is faced with on this particular problem of con­
struction permits granted to someone who then runs out of money 
and can't put it on it;he air? 

Mr. LEVY. I think it is fair to .say that the present Commission policy 
is that once it has granted a construction permit and then before any 
really substantial construction has been undertaken or money spent in 
great amount, if that permittee decides to assign that permit to a third 
party the Commission's policy has been to go ahead and permit the 
aasignment of the permit so long as ,the reimbursement does not exceed 
the out-of-pocket expenses. That has been the general policy. 

Mr. BROWN. What is the Commission's rationale? 
Mr. LEVY. I think the Commission's rationale is that it is more likely 

to get a station on the air sooner that way. 
Mr:-BROWN. And this is desirable, getting the stations on the air is 

desirable? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir, particularly the UHF, the Commission has 

thought this was desirable. 
Mr. ADAMS. ,vrn the gentleman yield? 
Mr. Moss. Before we go back to counsel, I have looked in the certifi­

cation form. It says, "Willful false statements made on this form are 
punishable by a fine or imprisonment under United States Code 
XVIII, section 1001." ·'· 

That section is referred to in the form. Now I have before me what 
I believe is the statement of reasons for the proposed transfer of the 
application on the part of Overmyer to AVC. Dated June 1, 1967, D. 
H. Overmyer, A VO Corp. This is the application filed under that 
penalty provision in title XVIII. 

Mr. HAU'l'ANEN. Those were contained on the application. 
Mr. Moss. Those boys get way out on the limb in their affidavits. Mr. 

Overmyer says: 
It is my considered judgment that my investment directly and through com­

panies owned by me, or whose debts have been assumed by my company in the 
five companies involved in the present transfer and through such companies' oper­
ation through which the five companies benefits approximately a million and a 
half dollars consisting of over $800,000 in services and facilities contributed to 
the five companies, and approximately $665,000 in cash expenditures by us for 
their betterment. In addition his assets transferred to the five companies by the 
Overmyer Leasing Co. have a market value of many thousands of dollars in 
excess of this cost upon which my investment is based. 

That is a good safe ,statement, "many thousands." It may be one, 
10, or 20. 

And the contracts for acquisition of equipment ,to be made available to the five 
companies have terms particularly on the rates of interest which a purchaser of 
equipment today cannot duplicate. 

Certainly rates of interest are not out of pocket at this point. 
These assets representing values for which it would be entirely proper, I be, 

lieve, for the leasing company to be paid. 

He states that before a notary and that is sworn to. 
I think you would have a lot of fun taking him in and tying him 

down on that. I think it is just shot through with escape hatches. 
Mr. KEITH. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask what they consider 

to be the significance of the notary public on that statement? Does 
it have any standing whatsoever? 

Mr. Moss. It might be an interesting question. 
Mr. l-IAUTANEN. The significance I attach to it was that this was a 

double assurance on Overmyer's part that his statements in that docu­
ment were truthful. 
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Mr. Moss. "What is the penalty i:£ he :falsely swears before a. notary 
on an affidavit that is required by law? 

~Ir. IL\U'f'.ANEN. In terms o:£_ the Commission, Mr. Overmyer re­
mam~ as a licensee o:£ WDHO m Toledo and consequently i:£ he did 
s_ubm1t :false statements then he would be jeopardizing his Toledo 
hcense. 

Mr. Moss. Do you have any precedents you can cite where you 
moved against a licensee in connection with statements made in con­
nection with another matter other than the license he held? 

Mr. HAuTANEN. Possibly WOKO--
Mr. Moss. I think yon had better be precise on that. It will be a 

matter o:£ interest to the committee. 
(For information requested, see appendix, p. 782.) 
Mr. Moss. Let us look at each o:£ these cases described before a notary. 

I don't find one o:£ them that certifies that the figures contained herein 
~:re c~rrect ?r ~ccurate. In every ~nstance he exp£esses a judgment, that 
·I thmk this 1s a proper allocation" or "under the formula contained 
heTein this appears to be consistent with the allocation :formula." 

I don't find these affidavits setting forth what I would call reliable 
backup material to support out-of-pocket costs. 

Have we accepted this :for the record? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. Moss. Is it for the record or is it :for the files? 
Mr. LISHMAN. It is in the files. 
:\fr. Moss. All right. vVe will not insert it in the record at this point, 

but I want the record to very carefully call attention to the nature o:£ 
the affidavits by each o:£ the corporate official making it a part o:£ this 
request. 

Now, Mr. Adams, I had agreed to re.cognize you. 
Mr. ADAMS. Yes. 
Mr. Chairman, I have a question that goes to the head of the Broad­

cast Bureau. Let me put it this way: I will ask the gentleman which 
one makes the recommendation to the C-0mmission :for the approval 
o:£ the transfer. 

Mr: GEORGE Sl\HTH. Mr. Congressman, I do that, or it is done in 
111v name. 

0Mr. ADAMS. This particular situation is rather clearlv drawn but 
it is my understanding that what Mr. Overmyer was to, receive :for 
this transfer was $·1 miJlion, broken down-$1 million :for stock and 
items he was supposed to have contributed to these stations and the 
$3 million loan a-greement based upon his giving the 20 percent 
retain,ed ownership o:£ stock as .security. 

In other words, a bootstrap operation is involved in his retaining 
$4 million. 

Now did you have this before you and consider this at the time you 
made the recommendation that the transfer be approved? 

Mr. GmRGE S1mnr. I am ~ure, technically,~ did. I remember going 
over the document but not with any great detail because I had almady 
been informed what it was all about through one o:£ the drafts o:£ the 
final document which went before the Commission. 

Mr. ADAMS. What •did the draft explain to you about what Mr. 
Overmyer was going to receive :for these five CP;s, the blue draft you 
referred to? · 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I believe that my understanding o:£ that was 

that he was to receive $1 million :for his stock and out-of-pocket ex­
penses, and there was an option that ran :for a period o:£ time, I just 
don't recall right now, where the assignee would have the right to 
acquire Overmyer's additional 20 percent for a price around $3 million 
based upon a formula. 

Mr. Moss. vVill you yield at this point, Mr. Adams; that might be 
helpful to you as you pursue the question? 

Mr. ADAMS. Yes. 
Mr. Moss. What did the 20 percent represent in the eyes o:£ the Com­

mission that Mr. Overmyer retained? vVas it a 20-percent stock unit 
in AVC? What was it? 

Mr. GEoRG:FJ SMITH. No, this was retaining 20 percent interest in 
these different stations. 

Mr. ADAMS. Correct me if I am wrong. vVe call this a boots.trap sak 
Yon sell 80 percent, you retain 20 percent. 

Mr. J\foss. 0:£ what? 
Mr. ADAMS. Of the C;P's, the license and the construction that you 

have. 
Mr. G~oRGE SMITH. This was a stock sale o:£ each o:£ the permittee 

corpora hons. 
Mr. ADAMS. Right. In other words, he has five corporations set up 

and he splits his stock in those corporations, 80-20; sells 80 percent, 
retains 20 percent. Now :for that he receives a million dollars for the 
80 percent interest. Now on the 20 percent he retains, he obtained a 
$3 million loan, pledges the 20 percent stock as security :for the $3 
million loan, and there is conpled with it a stock option that i:£ during 
the period o:£ time the station is running they have achieved certain 
goals, the $3 million debt is canceled and he moves out o:£ the boot­
strap operation with $3 million, having at that point, finally having 
so 1 d 100 percent o:£ the operation. 

That is what he had before him, was it not, or was that proposition 
before you? That is what I am trying to find out. 

Mr. GEORGE s~rITrI. It was a little bit more than the wav you 
described _it. Had the 20 percent stock been the only security or col­
lateral bemg put up by Mr. Overmyer for this $3 million it would 
ha.ve a changed picture en ti.rely. 

Mr. ADAMS. He gave you then an assurance of ether commitments 
from other assets that he personally held as being security :for that $3 
million loan; is that correct? L 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. ADAMS. That drives you back to his financial statement that. he 

had given to you. In my question this morning you indicated that that 
information which was in the contract file wasn't before you at the 
time. Is that right? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No, his contract was with the application. The 
application was before us. 

Mr. ADAMS. I see. In other words, though he had not filed it with th 
original r,equest for extension he had filed it in the.June 30 a,pp 1 ira.Lio11 
:for transfer and so his fina:ncial statement and tha,t, otlrnr i 11 forrn:d ,ion 
as part o:£ that package was before you. Is that correct? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Yes. 
Mr. ADAMS. Now did you check, in making- yo nr rrrommcn da,­

tion, into whether or not those representation. · he li:u l m:1de 1·eg-:ml i ,w 
his other financial interests were cotTP,ct? ,.., 



212 213

In other words, wem you aware of the fact that mechanic liens had 
been filed and in reality his financial empire-I won't classify it as an 
empire-his financial background w::i.s tottering and that none o:f 
these commitments might be of any va1idity unless the whole package 
turn over? 

Mr. GEORGE fonTI-I. No, I don't think I heard of any liens, Mr. 
Adams. But what he had done, of course, was to make his agreement 
with the A VC Corp. as to what he would pledge as secu ritv for this 
$3 million loan which is, I believe, in two parts, a m1llion and a, half and 
a million and a half. 

The way I looked at it, if the assignee never exercised that option, 
the way I would look at this contract, Overmyer has to figure up $3 
million to repay those Joans and he can still remain a 20-percent 
stockholder, of course. I don't believe that this AVC companv, I don:t 
think it is in business for clia,rity. • 

M_r. ADAMS. Now, this I want to make very clear : During the period 
of time that these C'P's. were kept ir_1 existence by a tolling period 
when he filed for extension and then 1t was not acted on because the 
application went in for transfer, so for a period of 8 months these 
things were staying alive by a practice of the Commission. 

Did you in your recommendation to the FCC take into account or 
make a recommendation as to the fact that this whole ball of wax was 
hanging on these CP's, the avaiability of a license, staying ali vc in 
effect, or else Overmyer would be cmnpletely out of business? Did 
that enter into your recommendation? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't think so, as I understand it, because 
actually everything I ,had to tell the Commission except in response 
to any specific question that might have been directed to me durino- a 
Commission meeting, is wrapped up in this document of October 0 27 
plus the November 13 supplement. I just don't believe so. 

Mr. ADAMS. In other words, you did not make an ana,lysis and a 
recommendation to tJhe Commission as to the effect of the licenses and 
the CP's_having to stay_alive during a period of time so that Overmyer 
could bail the whole thmg out? That did not come into your province 
or recommendation at all? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. ADAMs. Your recommendation then was in the area. you wanted 

to keep the UHF stations alive and that you were safrsfied from 
what you could see that Overmyer was all right and he was going to 
transfer them and you looked then really to the transferee's abilities 
a.nd sort of hoped the transferor would be off the hook in this opera­
tion. Is that it? 

Mr. GE~RGE_ SMI'l'H. Let m_e see if. I understand you correctly. On 
these apphcat1ons for extens1011 of time which had been filed within 
w~ich to ~mplete some of these stations, I believe Mr. Saady testified 
this mornmg that Overmyer had indicated in those a.pplications that 
he W!l-S ~ursuing some plan _of refinancing. Nothing was done on those 
applications because of the impending transfer a.pplication which was 
later filed. 

Mr. ADAMS. In other words, between April 29 and June 30 they 
hung up a.nd did not do anything. After June 30 they went to you 
and so they didn't do anything in the Extension Division of the FCC. 

'-'.1..U 

Mr. GEORGE Sl\IITH. I don't know what our timetable is, but I would 
have to give, with Martin Levy's approval-maybe you can answer 
the question better. 

Mr. LEVY. That is right, Congressman. The extention applications 
indica.ted on their face that they weren't going to be able to proceecl 
with the construction, that they were undertaking further financing. I 
might say they also indicated some construction had already been 
completed. But essentially our policy is to withhold action on an 
extension application when the application indicates tha.t further in­
form1l,tion is going to be filed or that additional application is going 
to be filed. 

Mr. ADAMS. That is when he begins to get his grace period as they 
hold up on the extension. 

Now you have the transfer in front of you. As the transfer starts 
you are making a recommendation, not based on what the extension 
people have said other than the fact tha.t you know that those are 
pending and that there may be something wrong with them, but you 
start a whole new proceeding. Is that right? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Substantially correct, I believe, as I understand 
it. 

Mr. ADAMS. The extension runs on. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The la.dy who heads that branch is one of my 

employees, <?f course, I try to keep myself informed of everything 
that goes on m the Bureau. 

Mr. ADAMS. The extension is running on and you start on the 
transfer. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. My Transfe.r Division does. 
Mr. ADAMS. vVho is the Transfer Division? 
Mr. GEORGE Sl\UTH. Mr. Rawson. 
Mr. ADAMS. The Transfer Division is now operating on this thing? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. ADAl\IS. Now you talk to him about the troubles in the exten­

sions? 
Mr. LEVY. May I answer that? 
Mr. ADAMS. Yes . 

. Mr. LEVY. Once we know _in my D~vi?ion th~t the transfer applica­
tion has been filed, we await Comm1ss10n action on the transfer ap­
plications. 

Mr. ADAMS. Will you tell him in the Transfer Division that there is 
trouble? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. He is aware that applications for extension have 
been filed; yes, sir. 

~fr. ADAMS. But you _indicate in_ these applica.tions there is some indi­
cation of trouble. He 1s refmancrng, he has trouble. Are you tellino· 
your brother over here-- 0 

Mr. LEVY. He learns this from the transfer application itself. 
~r. ADAMS. You k~ow that those expenses are going to keep runnin o-

wh1le you operate on it. 0 

Mr. RAWSON. That is correct. 
. M~. ADAMS. You 3:re ope:rating on this on June 30, he has 0,n applica­

tion m. Now you brmg this up and I assume that blue fonns are par­
tially your work. 

Mr. RAWSON. That is correct. 
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Mr. ADAMS. You are bringing that up to the head of the_Broa_dcast 
Bureau or the one in charge of the transfer~. Are you tel_lrng lmn ~n­
analyzing or making a recommendation to him t~at there ~s trouble m 
this operation, that you hav~ looked a~ the extens10n pernuts, ai~d that 
this man may be in a position of havmg to try to float these hcens6;' 
to keep his financial deal alive? Or do you look only at the_ tra~1sfe!·ee? 

Mr. RAWSON. The whole purpose for the transfer apphcat10n 1s to 
make it possible to obtain financing to build the station and in this 
way thev were transferring it to a brandnew party. That was the 
purpose ·of it. We kne,~ they were in trou1?le. ""\Ve knew t}iey_ co1;1ldpot 
complete the construction under the permit that was autnonzeci. 1hat 
is why in Mr. Levy's shop they have the policy of holding off on any 
action on the extension application until we have decided whether or 
not the new buyer, the transfer assignee is qualified to take over the 
permits and complete the construction authorized by the Commission. 

Mr. ADAMS. You pass on the deal that the transferee makes with the 
transferor. 

Mr. RAWSON. Yes, sir. 
Mr. ADAMS. Did you pass on this deal of what I ha.ve termed the 

bootstrap operation where you withhold 20 percent in one deal, you 
sell 80 percent-did you pass on that as being all right when you ma.de 
your recommendation up the line to your chief? 

Mr. RAWSON. Yes; I did. This morning I mentioned the £act that in 
our discussions with Mr. Smith I had pointed out that there were 
other indications where permits had been transferred under somewhat 
similar circumstances. 

Mr. ADAMS. This is the heart of the inquiry that we are involved 
with here. On these, did you feel in this operation that there was a 
payment being made to Overmyer? 

I will not ask you why you felt you put as part of your recom­
mendation up the line that eventually gets to the Commission any 
statement regarding whether or not compensation was being paid as 
part of this $4 million package for the fact that he had licenses, 
whereas the Commission policy that we both are in agreement on js 
that you a.re not supposed to traffic in licenses, you are just supposed 
to get out-of-pocket expenses. 

Mr. RAWSON. The item itself discusses in detail precisely the things 
you are talking about. The Commission was aware that what was 
involved was five construction permits, that in two of the construction 
permits the licensee or the permit.tee-at this point they are all 
permits-the permit.tee had actually almost completed construction of 
two of them, I believe it was San Francisco and Gulfport. There were 
no construction on the others. 

We discussed the problems of Pittsburgh and apparently the efforts 
that Overmyer had made in attempting to find a transmitter site in 
the Pittsburgh area, and the loan agreement was discussed, I thought, 
insufficient detail on page 4 of our memo that we have been referring 
to, beginning at paragraph 7. 

In other words, the outline of the arrangement was given to the 
Commission. 

Mr. ADAMS. Now in that, in order ,to get to the figure that you are 
dealing with here, it would involve that each station would have had 
to have an investment in them separate from the license of over $7 
million. 

Now, I don't believe that is in your recommendation here. Did you 
consider that? . 

Mr. RAWSON. I did not understand thrrt to be the premise. 
Mr. ADAMS. If he is going to retain the 20 percent that mea~lS- he 

is rroino- to rret a million dollars for it and keep $800,000, the remammg 
0 0 0 h b t•7 - ·11 · 80 percent has o·ot to be wort a out $ .u m1 10n. 
Mr. RAWSON.To be honest with you, the way I looked at 20 percent, 

my feeling was tl~a~ ultimate~y Mr. Ove~•myer was going to have to 
kick back the $8 m1ll10n plus his 6 percent rntt'!rest'.. 

Mr. ADAMS. In other words, you felt it was gorng to collapse and he 
was going to have to make it through; other source~? , 

~fr. RAWSON. Not collapse. I felt m my own mrnn there was reason­
able likelihood that the AVC operation, unless these were ext_remely 
successful operations, would under the circumstances exercise the 
option. . . . . 

Mr. ADAMS. "\V,ere you a.ware of the pr?blerns 111 ln~ fina~cial_ enl!pire 
from your brother over here on the CP s from the mvesti~at10n you 
ma.de that he had to put this dea~ together to sa:e anyth111g? 

Mr. RAWSON. vVe knew, and the item of course ~iscloses, that he was 
in financial difficulty acco11ding to his repre~entat10ns; and he doe~ n?t 
have the finances to complete the construct10n and to go ?n the aU' 111 
San Francisco and Newport and to a_c_tually go ahead with c~mstruc­
tion in the other cities. That was evident from ~oth the assign~ent 
a;pplication-that was the purpose of ~li_ng the ass1gnment_apphcat101_1. 

vVe were aware of tlmt, the Commiss10n was aware of i~. The ba;s1s 
for o-rantinrr the assirrnments was so that these UHF stations, wlnch 
the Oommirsion has been encouraging ?Ver the years, c!":mld actually 
be constructed and go on the air with some financially healthy 
organization. . 

Mr. ADAMS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. . 
Mr. BROWN. May I pursue a?oupleo_fpoints, Mr. Cha~rman i . 
Mr. Moss. If you do not mmd lett111g me pursue this same line of 

questioning. . . 
I am still unclea.r and a careful readmg of the recommendat10ns 

does not prove of value in making me uridersta_nd. . 
""\Vhat is the nature of the 20-percent holdmg of Ov~rmyer at ~his 

time? Are there five surviving corporate entities operatmg o: holdm~ 
five separate construction permits, or were they al~ merged mto U.S. 
Communication.; and 20 percent or a stock certificate equal to 20 
percent issued to Overmyer? . . 

Is Overmyer on the permit in any m~nner at the present time, or _is 
it held by the AVC subsidiary? ·what is the nature of the ownership 
of these five construction permits? . . 

Mr. RAWSON. Chairman Moss, the corporation or corp?rat10ns that 
had these permits where Mr: Overmyer was owner still h~s thes,e 
permits. The A VC Corp. acq~nred 80 percent <_)f Mr. Overmyer s stool,.. 
He retained 20 percent. That is my understandmg. 

Mr. Moss. Is that the understanding of all you gentlemen ? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. He retains 20 percent. I think in the case of ~,he San 

Francisco permit, he has an op~ion to ~cquire the 20-percen_t m lere t 
which I think is held by Sherw111 C?rwm and he lrns n:1 opt1011 to ac­
quire th~t later on, ~s I un~erstand it. But he cl~cs 1:ci·a,11: a 20-pr,rccnt 
interest m the perm1ttees smce the t r ansfer app_l ,ea.h ons mvo_lvrd only 
a transfer of 80 percent o:f the stock of the penmttee corporat10ns. 
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Mr. Moss. I am looking at item 2, October 27, 1967 : 
Subject (1) Voluntary transfer of control of permittees of the sta tions from 

D. H. Overmyer to U.S. Communications Corporation; (2) voluntary assign­
ment of licenses of station WPHL---TV, Phila delphia, from Philadelphia 'l'ele­
vision Broadcasting Company to U.S. Communications Corporation; (3) volun­
tary assignment of license of Station WPHL--TV, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 
from U.S. Communications Corporation to its wholly owned subsidiary PTBC, Inc. 

Now D. H . Overmyer proposed to transfer 80 percent o:f his st ock­
ownership in the permittees listed above for the surviving entity. vVho 
holds the permit? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The ,same companies. I am sorry; but our item, 
instead o:f giving the names, in case they are separate companies-I 
don't recall-instead of giving the names of the permittees, we just re­
ferred to those companies as permittees. It is the same corporation. 
There has been no assignment of construction permits. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Lishman, do you concur? 
Mr. LISHMAN. I am sorry, I did not hear the question. 
Mr. Moss. What did the 20 percent represent, whether there had been 

an actual assignment of the construction permits or whether the per­
mits a.re held by the same entities which held them previously and the 
interest in those entities is all that hais been transferred. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I don't understand, myself, Mr. Chairman, what that 
20 percent interest represents. It may well represent 20 percent :in­
terest in the Philadelphia Broadcasting Co., which would in turn make 
it a very valuable asset. 

Mr. lliUTANEN. The various corporations in which interests were 
transferred are listed.in in the order which accompanied the transfer 
and that is Mimeo No. 9408, FCC 67-1312, tihe order number. The 
caption lists the various permittees, control of which would be trans­
ferred. 

Overmyer does not acquire an interest in A VC. The 20 percent 
interest is retained in the various corporate permittees listed here. 

Mr. BROWN. Of the UHF stations? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes, sir. Not Philadelphia. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Mr. Chairman, may I say that it appears that 

there are two corporations involved, the D. H. Overmyer Communica­
tions Co., Inc., is the permittee of the permits at San Francisco, Pitts­
burgh, Newport, Ky., and Atlanta, Ga. And the Rosenberg, Tex., 
permit is held by the D. H. Overmyer Broadcasting Co., Inc. The A VC 
Corp. has acquired 80 percent of the stock in those two corporations. 
Mr. Overmyer retaining 20 percent. 

Mr. Moss. Is this the order released December 11, 1967? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Yes, sir. 
Mr. Moss. FCC 67-1312. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. Moss. It contains language: 
The Commission also has before it the above-captioned assignment application, 

which propoS'es to assign the license for Station WPEL-TV, Philadelphia, Penn­
sylvania, to U.S. Communications Corporation. Since all the above-listed appli­
cations involve stations in the Top Fifty television markets, the applications 
come within the purview of the Interim PoUcy Concerning Acquisition of Tele­
vision Stations (5 RR 2d 271), enunciated June 21, 1965. 

2. The Commission is of the view that a grant of the applications would 
foster the development of UHF television stations. This would be consistent 
with the Commission's efforts to provide a more competitive nationwide tele-

vision service to the public. It is therefore believed the public interest would be 
served by a waiver of the Interim Policy. 

Accordingly, it is ordered that the applications for the transfer of control 
of D. H. Overmyer Communications Co., Inc., permittee of Stations KEMO-TV, 
San Francisco, California ; WECO-TV, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania; WSCO- TV, 
Newport, Kentucky; and DBMC, Atlanta, Georgia, from D. T. Overmyer to U.S. 
Communications Corporation are granted. 

Who is the permittee? Is it U.S. Communications, or is it Over­
myer? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. These are all corporately held; U.S. Communi­
cations. 

Mr~ Moss. Mr. Lishman, will you give us an appropriate memoran­
dum of law that attempts to clarify this point and place it in the 
record at this point? 

Mr. LISHMAN. Yes, sir. 
(The document requested appears in the appendix, see item 31, 

p. 777.) _ 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Brown. 
Mr. BROWN. At the time the transfer was made, what was the status 

of the stations involved, or the permits involved, or the licenses in­
volved? 

Mr. LEVY. I believe substantial construction had been undertaken 
in San Francisco and Cincinnati. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Mr. Levy, I think you ought to explain that the 
Cincinnati site is Newport, Ky. 

Mr. LEVY. Cincinnati is Newport, Ky. I don't believe there was any 
substantial construction with respect to the other permits. 

Mr. BROWN. Would you just say what they are? 
Mr. LEVY. Pittsburgh, Atlanta, and Rosenberg, which is Houston, 

Tex. 
Now, Philadelphia, which was included in this package, was never 

an Overmyer permit, in the first place. The permit was assigned to 
U.S. Commumcations, but it had never been held by Overmyer. 

Mr. BnowN. So what we have, this purchase and loan arrangement 
is for a million dollars, 80 percent of five stations in which construc­
tion, as you suggest, substantial construction, was underway in two 
of those stations. 

Was there any actual construction underway in the other two 
stations? 

Mr. LEVY. I don't believe so, sir. 
I think Mr. Saady can better answer that question than I can. 
Mr. SAADY. There was no actual construction on the other three 

stations, though they had made downpayments on equipment for all 
such stations. 

Mr. BROWN. And sites~ 
Mr. SAADY. And sites. 
Mr. Moss. Let us clarify that, because that is contrary to the te ti­

mony of the other day. 
You said downpayments on sites. I dealt rather carefully with Jhe 

question of sites, and I don't think that your statement, do \rnp:,y­
ment on the surviving or remaining three sites is a correct statement. 

Mr. SAADY. He had made a down payment on equipment. 
Mr. Moss. You said equipment, and then Congrcssm!l.n Brown said, 

"And sites," and you said, "Yes, and sites." 
I want the record to be correct. 

97-537-69-pt. 1--15 
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Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Chairman, may I ask one question, to clarify it? 
Mr. Moss. H Mr . Brown has the time. " 
Mr. LISHMAN.Just to clarify this one question. 
M r. BROWN. Yes, whoever can answer the question as to whether 

or not any move had been made with reference to the sites that would 
involve cost of the potential development o:f a station. 

I am trying to lead into a thought here. 
Yes, go ahead. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it a fact that with respect to San Francisco, 

Overmyer had equipment purchases of $19,700, as of March 31, 1967 ? 
~fr. SAADY. "Which one is this? 
Mr. LISHMAN. San Francisco. 
Mr. Sj1ADY. vVould you please repeat the question? 
Mr. LISHMAN. As o:f March 31, 1967, according to a bahrnce sheet 

submitted to the Commission by Overmyer, he had equipment pur­
chases o:f $19,700 for San Francisco. Is that correct? 

Mr. SAADY. I don't know. I don't have that information before me. 
Mr. LISJUIAN. Is it correct that he also had equipment purchases 

of $79,400 for Athmta? Isn't that on that balance sheet? 
Mr. SAADY. I don't have the balance sheet before me. 
Mr. Moss. Does somebody in the Commission have a copy of the 

balance sheet? You were supposed to he here prepared to give testi­
mony. 

It is contained in exhibit 1 submitted to this committee, if that wi1J 
be o:f any assistance in guiding you. 

Mr. GEORGE Sl\ITTH. vVhat was your figure on San Francisco? 
Mr. LISHMAN. $19,700. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH., That figure appears on page 18 of the staff 

report which I am looking at, of your staff report, so I will accept 
that. 

Mr. Moss. I don't want you to accept that. I want you to take the 
subn1ission from Overmyer, so that we have this clear. 

Mr. GEORGE S3'IITH. I certainly do not c~1allenge the figure. 
Mr. Moss. vVe have handed the material to your staff, down here. 

They are looking it over. 
Mr. 'GEORGE SMITH. I am sorry. I didn 't know they had it. 
Mr. Moss. \Vill the members o:f the staff join the gentlemen and 

point out the area of interest and concern of the figure? 
Mr. HAU'I'ANEN. Is the figure $19,696.16? 
Mr. Moss. Then the answer to Mr. Lishman's statement is "Yes." Is 

that correct? 
Mr. RAWSON. That says the amount paid as of March 15, of that 

amount. That means out of a total of $789,124.75, for equipment and 
constrnction, they paid down $19,696.16. That is right. 

Mr. Moss. Isn't that what Mr. Lishman asked you? 
1\fr. RAWSON. He asked whether they had only expended that, yes. 

That is correct. 
Mr. Moss. All right, then. The answer is, "Yes." 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it in :fact the same balance sheet which shows no 

land or buildings for any of the stations except Cincinnati? 
Mr. Moss. Off on the side there is a list of subjects, or items. 
Mr. HAUTANEN. Yes, that is correct. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I just wanted to have the record clear about the 

immediacy of the completion o:f this station. 

It d?es not seem that an expenditure of $19,700 in San Francisco1 

an~ with no _lan_d or buildings sho,yn for any stations except Cincin­
natJ, would ~ndicate that any stat10ns were anywhere nearly ready 
to go on the air. 

J'.vfr. Moss. Mr. Brown. 
Mr. BROWN. If I may pursue the point that I was undertaking, in 

the deal that was made on March 28, 1967, when the loan agreement 
was consummated, if I understand the situation then , according to 
your comments, construction was underway. 

I don't see how that could be the case, if there was no land pur­
chased; and only $19,700 had been paid. 

But at Cincinnati, the figures indicated here that the land had been 
purchased and $229.6 thousand had been spent; at Pittsburah $89.6 
t,housand ; in Atlanta, $179.5 thousand, and at Houston, $5.9 tho~1sand. 

Mr. HAUTANEN. VVhat we relied on mainly, sir, was that in exhibit 2 
filed wi~h _the appli?ation_, ei;tit}ed ''.Activity o:f D. FI. (?vern:iyer 
compames 111 connect10n with TV stat10ns at Atlanta, San ] ranc1sco 
Newport, Pittsburgh, atid Rosenberg," the statement -was made re: 
specting present status that, "It is stated as a result of the efforts and 
expenditures to date, two sta~ions, San Francisco and Newport, have 
been brought _almost to the pomt o:f readiness for going on the air, and 
very substantial progress has been made in constructing and equipping 
the other f:hree stations, especially Pittsburgh and Atlanta." 

Now, reliance was placed on that statement. 
Mr. BROWN. What is the date of that statement? 
Mr. HA UTANEN. June 1967, exhibit 2. 
Mr. BROWN. That is somewhat later. That is somewhat later than 

the time frame to which I have reference. That time frame is the end 
of March. 

This statem~nt here on page 2, exhibit 3, schedule D, March 15, as 
I understand it, March 28, 1967, was the date o:f the consummation 
of the loan arrangement. Is that correct? 

Mr. HAuTANEN. That is the date when the first loan had been made. 
The first loan was made on May 3, 1967, the first loan o:f $1½ million. 
Now, when the loan agreement was signed, I don't have the exact date 
of that, hut the first loan was made on May 3, 1967. 

Mr. BROWN. At any rate, as of that date, May 3-you said May 3? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. May 3, yes, sir, the first loan was made by AVC to 

the Overmyer company. 
Mr. BROWN. The memorandum I have here indicates that the loan 

was consummated on March 28. Is that correct? 
Mr. LISHMAN. There was a $1 million down payment on that date. 
Mr. BROWN. I refer to this sheet, page 4 of the staff memorandum. 
Mr. HAUTANEN. That probably was the date o:f the down payment . 
Mr. GEORGE S:n-nn-r. I haven't had a chance to look at it. The lalwl 

says "Loan Agreement, March 28, 1967," as you indicated. 
. :Mr . H1HJTA:'<E:--r. The down payment was made on ]\{arch 28. Tl 1; d 1H 

nght. 
Mr. B!10WN. vVhat I am trying to get at is not to hal:111 1·(' t 1, ,, fi µ, 11n·: , 

necessan}y, although I _add up to $424,000 ,-..-01·ih o f 111rn w y l 1111 i 11 11 

of the foth o:f March. It was 2 weeks af ter 1"1 1:1,(. 11 111 1. t.111• l ():111 11 11. 

consummated. 
But I am still trying to work on one t hough, d ifliC'll l t 11:-4 i i i'-l to •l'I 

anybody to know what we are talking al,11111, " ' ' t li (' H<' lig 11 r1•:-i, : ii 1tl 
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that is, that one, and perhaps two, by the 28th of March, construction 
permits ,Yere actually underway. 

In three of the five stations, there is apparently no construction work 
being done. 

The gentleman here indicaited that he had some question in his mind 
m; to the value of the 20 percent of the remaining stock, as it relates 
to the $3 million which was loaned on that stock. 

N o,v, I would presume that relates to one or two possibilities. First, 
that A VO might not pursue the construction, and thereby in e-ff ect 
not have any assets to be of any value, and second, that they might pur­
:sue the construction, get the stations on the air, and the value of 20 
percent of the stock in that station not come up, or those stations not 
come up to the $3 million figure. 

Mr. RAWSON. What I am giving you is my personal feeling at the 
time I looked at this transaction. 

~ felt very confi_dent that A VC entered in this arrangement in good 
faith, and fully 111tended to go forward and complete construction 
and commence the operation of these permits, but my skepticism was 
from just maybe my limited, probably limited experience that this is 
a long, long haul in the UHF field, and I was of the view that A VO is 
not a charitable organization, and they weren't about to make any 
gifts to Mr. Overmyer. 

Mr. ADAMS. Will the gentleman yield at that point? 
Mr. ~AWSON. That was my personal feeling. It had nothing, really, 

to do with my recommendation. 
. Mr. BROWN. Let me pursue this further, and then I will be happy to 

yield. · 
. Presumably_, if Mr. Overmyer paid his interest on the loan, con­

t111ued to service the loan, and the A VC Corp. wa.s satisfied with that 
~rrangement, at_some future date, if this was a g-ood investment at all, 
m thl';se five stat10ns,_there would be some value 111 five operating UHF 
permits, or, b~tter said, 20 percent of the five operating UHF permits. 

Was you~· J_udgment based on the fa:t that it was not likely to be 
wortJ1 $3 m1lhon at any future date, or 1t was not likely to be worth $3 
million by the time the terms of the loan ran out? 

Mr. RAWSON. My feeling wa,s that by the time they would exercise 
the option on these stations the 20 percent would not have that kind 
of value. 

That was my personal feeling. There were people that obviously 
did disagree with my analysis. 
. Mr. ADAMS. The r~ason I wanted to interject at that point was that 
1t would not be possible, under the top 50, actually I guess this is top 
25 markets, for A VC to get five stations in the top market any other 
way than through Overmyer. 

Mr. RAWSON. I don't know whether we have-I doubt whether there 
would be any vacant UHF. 

Mr. ADAMS. I have an opinion that indicates there are one to three 
applications pending for the last channel in all of the markets and 
there is no channel available in the Pittsburgh market. ' 

Mr. RAWSON. I am informed by Mr. Levy that is absolutely correct. 
Mr. ADAMS. ~o t~at AVq goes into this to get licen~es-I go beyond 

the word permit-licenses 111 markets, and do somethmg that it could 
not do any other way than through Overmyer. Is that right? 

Mr. RAWSON. Ye.s, sir. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Unless it acquired a station or permit from 

another person. 
Mr. AJ?AMS. If they go_ out in the market to buy from another per­

son ,-yho ~s already established, they have to pay the going rate, what­
ever 1t might be, to that person. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Yes. 
Mr. ADAMS. This would be the least expensive way then of o-etting 

. t f h "f ' ' 0 111 o any o t ose markets, i they could buy construction permits rathel:'. 
than having to buy an operating .station. ' 

Mr:-GEORGE SMITH. That is quite probable. 
Mr. ADAMS. Now, you gentlemen made a recommendation to the 

FCC on this. I have not read all of it. 
What was your rosition in telling the Commission about this, as to 

what AVC was gomg to get and do, and I go back to my question 
before, wasn't this a trafficking in licenses that they could not do any 
other way? , 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No. vVe considered as we do in all transfer 
cases, whether or not there is any element at all that we could latch on 
to that might be said to constitute trafficking. 

~r. ADAMS. vVhat we are dealing ,v:ith here is that you have a five­
station package. You have a man trymg to create a network. So you 
have a top 50 market system of no more than two . or no more than 
th~ee. I~er~ you have a five-station packa~e goi_ng to a company at a 
pnce of-well, at an exchange of money of $4 million, a v.ery elaborate 
scheme . 

I asked you before whether you were just looking at the transferee's 
financial ability . 

:What was your position on the top 50 market principle beino- set 
aside for AVC\ and t_he fact tlra~you would ordinarily not allow a ~on­
local corporat10n, with no prev10us broadcasting experience ,to stand 
first in line for an application in the market? ' 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Mr. Qhairman, ever sine~ t!1e Congress passed 
the so-called all-channel receiver law, the Commiss10n has continued to 
follow a policy of doing everything it could to foster the development 
of UHF television. 

l'l~r. ADAMS. In other. words, you ~elt that there was an overriding 
pohey to get UHif stations on the air, regardless of-I won't say re­
gavdless, hut despite what Overmyer was doino- and what AVC was 
doing, or what you were awa1;e they were all:,,put together. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No, I thmk we were aware of this whole trans­
action. VVhile this represents construction permits, this is not unusual 
f?r the Commission to approve a permittee that got in trouble finan­
cially to find an angel, so to speak, somebody that wanted to put the 
money in and build the station. 

Now, where the Commission could mak:~ a determination that the 
programing proposals were sound, and that the new party comino- in 
hnd the funds to go ahead ,and promise the Commission that he ciu1d 
build the station and put it in operation, I think it is fair to say that in 
mos~ all those instances, the Commission has approved. 

Mr. BROWN. Let me just pursue this. I think we are o-ctLino· close to 
putting some of these questions in focus. 0 0 
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I 

I 

The question that Mr. Adams is asking about the top 50 markets, 
when Mr. Overmyer made applications for these five stations, it was 
not the policy o-f the Commission to prohibit that. 

Now, when the trans-fer was made, or when the loan was consum-
mated, in late March, 1967, had the poliey provision taken effect as yet? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH.No, it had not. 
Mr. BRowN."'i\Then did that policy take effect? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I lost you, Congressman Brown, on the policy. 
Mr. BROWN. The multiple ownership in the top 50 market. 
Mr. GEORGE s~nTH. Does anybody remember when that was promul-

gated? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. June 1965. 
There was a request in this proceeding for a waiver o-f the top 50 

policy here, and the staff -felt that the waiver, under the circumstances, 
was justified, and the members o-f the Commission discussed this point. 

~fr. BROWN. My point goes to the value o-f the station, and the justi-
fication, i-f any, for the peculiar financial arrangement. 

The value is, o-f course, the individual station permit, and the FCC's 
interpretation that that has a value which is no more or no less than 
what the original permit holder has put into it up to that point. 

I would think that when those become multiple, and the possi­
bilities o-f networking and so forth get into this, and the savings that 
might inure from networking, once you get the stations on the air 
and so forth, that the real market value, the real potential value o-f 
this changes, and then, when you compound this with the top 50 
market prohibition, and the -fact that the Overmyer holdings get 
around that top 50 market provision, that there is an additional mar­
ketable value here that really goes beyond what the FCC policy 
pro-fesses. 

Now, having t ried to lay that base, let me go back and say that in 
point o-f actual fact, once you got into the stations in terms o-f pay­
ment for site, eq_uipment, and all, that until those stations are on the 
air and producmg, that they really haven't got a value, but once 
they are on the air and producing, presumably the networking possi­
bility, the top 50 market possibility, all that does begin to have a 
value, o-f some more value than the 80 percent o-f the rights to go on 
the air. 

Is that the nature o-f the thinking that went into the evaluation o-f 
t his loan arrangement? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. There was no discussion o-f what enhanced values 
these permits might have once the stations were constructed. 

I suppose implicitly we recognized that once the stations were on 
the air, they would have greater value, and the retention o-f the 20-
percent option interest was justified by the staff on the grounds that 
there were at least related decisions where a permittee had retained 
an option interest, an interest coupled with an option in his station. 

There is no discussion in the memorandum o-f the point that these 
might have an enhanced value once the stations actually went on 
the air, although I think that was recognized by the Commission. 

Mr. BROWN. Let me interject another thought, the decision o-f the 
FCC to overlook or ignore the trans-fer o-f these stations in opposition 
to ~n existing policy; that is, the top 50 market multiple-ownership 
policy. 

It _seems to me that they follow the possibility or the desirability o-f 
putt!ng UH;B' ~tations on the air, o-f a financially responsible owner, 
but it also fhes m ~he -face o-f what i_s real 1:1arl~etable value, when you 
have an ~pportumty to_ buy _somethmg which 1s otherwise prohibited 
and that is the five stations m the top market. ' 

Mr:. ~IAuTANEN._~l1;e top 50 mark~t policy on the books did not flatly 
proh1b1t the a~qu~S1~10!1 o-f a certam number o-f stations, or stations 
beyond a cert1;1m hmit m the top 50 market. The rule recoo-nized these 
was an exception. 0 

It:provided i~ such insta!lces, where the top 50 applies, you have to 
mak~ a ~ompellmg affirmative showing that a grant o-f the application 
was Justified. 

The . sta_ff -fel~ her~ that _compelling affirmative showing had been 
made, m_ 1!11.e ·with pnor waivers. The staff felt that they had justified 
the acqmsition. _ 

Mr. ADAMS. Let me pursue this, agai~, Mr. Brown. 
Any ~-f you gentlemen can explam it. There are three things in this 

~ra1;1-sact10n that I want to know, what the present FCC staff directive 
md1cate. 
. One, I ~ant to know whether or not there is now a policy o-f examin­
mg ~na~cial background o-f transferors, as well as transferees when 
apphcat_10ns are up for ~rans-fer, to see i-f there is a trafficking in li~enses. 

That 1s the first quest10n. 
The second th~ng is, whether or not you are o-oino- to continue to 

allow c_onc~ntr:a~10n above five or six stations in tl1e ~ajor 50 markets 
by buymg md1viduals, such as Mr. Ove~myer, who are in this. 

And t~ird, whether or not you are gomg to continue to allow prices 
to b~ paid above out-of-pocket exp~nses when the first two conditions 
~re 1-:;:- _eff~ct-the ma~ has somethmg that nobody else can get. Are 
:you 0 01ng to allow this to f;O above the out-of-pocket expenses? 

Mr. G~ORGE SMITH. I will undertake to answer that, Congressman. 
~ In ~he mstal!-ce o-f a _proposed tra?-s-f~r of a construction permit, the 
::;taff is u~der mstruct10ns to examme mto the claimed out-of-pocket 
~xpenses m order to_ make sure that the permittee is not trafficking, 
m _ot~er words, makn1;g a profit out o-f getting a permit and then not 
bmldmg, o~ not spendmg very much, a_nd then selling that permit for 
a s~bstantial sum. o-f money. ,¥ e go mto that. That is policy past 
pohcy, present pohcy. ' 

Now, there is a limit_to_ t~e number of television stations anv one 
pa_rty may own. That hm1t lS seven. I believe you mentioned some-
thrng about five or six-five VHF and two UHF. · 

Mr. ADAMS. You are going _to observe that policy, even in transfers 
and so on where they use tlus sort o-f method to accumulate? 

Mr. GEORGE Sl\IITH. Oh, yes, that policy has even been tested in 
court. 

Mr. ADAMS. Now, third? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. yVhat was your third question? 
Mr . .t\DAMS. M)'.' third question was, when a mnn has somethino· 

that c~nt ~-e ol:tam~d other:-1is_e, _are you examining whet.lier or n~t 
~heh:rnc~ -will be paid, even 1f 1t mvolves a compli cnt·e(l scheme snch 
uS t .1s, rnr out-of-pocket expenses? 

~r. "GEORGE_ SMITH. Again, i-f it is a_ con~tr11 ction permit, nnd not 
~/.cen:,ed s~ation, he may sell that permit, with Commission approYal 
L 1t gIYes 1t, only for his out-of-pocket expenses. ' ' 
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Now, once a station has been licensed, the Commission will not 
entertain or approve an assignment of license, or a transfer o:f con­
trol, under a period of 3 years, unless some sort of extraordinary 
showing is made to justify such a transfer, such as the death of a 
principal or financial hardship, or matters of that kind. 

Now, once you get past that 3-year jump as a licensee, in theory 
you are entitled to do busines with a buyer, in case you want to sell out, 
as the case may be. 

Mr. DINGELL. Will you yield at that point? 
Mr. ADAMS. Yes. 
Mr. DINGELL. Were there any extraordinary circumstances :found 

by the Commission in connection with this matter, to justify the trans­
fer? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Well, there are circumstances set out in our 
memorandum. 

Mr. DINGELL. Can you tell me very briefly what they are? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. We found that Overmyer had bit off more than 

he could chew. He didn't have money enough to go ahead. 
Mr. DINGELL. Is that why you authorized him to transfer, because 

he bit off more than he could chew ? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Congressman, I can't approve these things. All 

I can do is make an analysis o:f the proposal and make recommenda­
tions to the Commission. 

Mr. DINGELL. I'll ask you again. Is that why you recommended 
transfer approval, because he bit off more than he could chew? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No, I wouldn't say that. 
I have said a lot of 'things in this memorandum. To cull out some­

thing out of context-I hesitate to do it. 
Mr. DINGELL. You haven't culled this out of context. All I am doing 

is taking your own words. You said that you found he had bitten off 
more than he could chew. 

I asked why did you recommend the transfer. You said he bit off 
more than he could chew. 

Mr, GEORGE SMITH. I don't recall that I said he bit off more than 
he could chew. 

Mr. DJNGELL. We can ask the reporter to read that back. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. If I said that, I did say it inadvertently. 
Mr. DINGELL. Read that back, Mr. Reporter, please. 
(The portion of the transcript referred to was read by the reporter.) 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I thought that was a pretty good short answer. 

I am prepared to sit here and read my memorandum to you. 
Mr. Moss. I would prefer not to have you read your memorandum. 

We would much prefer that you respond to the questions put to you 
by the members. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I will certainly try. 
Mr. DINGELL. Perhaps you can tell me where in the rules of the 

FCC there is a requirement for authorization for transferring a license 
or construction permit from one person to another on the ground that 
they had bit off more than they could chew. I would be interested to 
know. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I begin to feel sorry I made that remark, but I 
will answer that question. 

Mr. DINGELL. I did not trap you. You said it, not me. I am curious 
to know where in the rules it is. 

Mr. GEORGE SMrrH. I will answer your quest~on in this way : What I 
meant by bit off more than he could chew, I think Overmy~r, when he 
filed his transfer application, certainly indica~ed that he d~d not have 
the financial qualifications to go ahead and bmld these stations. 

Mr. DINGELL. That is the reason you authorized the transfer? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is one of the reasons. 
Mr. DINGELL. Where in the rules is your justification for that? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. There is no rule. 
The Bureau-I think before you came in it was ascertained that the 

Buveau operates on certain fixed policies. . 
Mr~ DINGELL. Where is the policy that says that somebody can bite 

off more than they can chew, and transfer? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't think the Commission ever heard me 

say bite off more than he could chew, so there is no policy on that. 
Mr. DINGELL. As a matter of fact, these were expired permits. There 

was an application pending to extend them that had not yet been acted 
upon. 

Am I correct? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH:'· Well, they were expired permits _wh~n this 

transfer application was filed, but the pendency of applications to 
extend those permits, to hold those permits--

Mr. DINGELL. Were verified copies of loan stock purchase and escrow 
agreements filed in conformance with the rules of the Commission? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I believe so. 
Mr. DINGELL. vVere any filed with regard to the extension? 
::\1r. GEORGE SJ\IITH. I have to plead that I wasn't there when they 

were filed. 
Mr. Moss. The testimony this morning was, and you can correct me 

if I am wrong, that they were not filed. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I might say to Congressman Dingell, I am re­

sponsible for the recommendation that went to the Commission for 
transfer to the A VC Corp. 

Mr. DINGELL. With regard to the extension--
Mr. SAADY. With regard to the extension application, there were 

no such statements filed. 
Mr. DINGELL. Do the rules require that financial statements be filed? 
Mr. SAADY. No, sir; they do not. 
Mr. DINGELL. Do they require that they be filed previous to the is­

suance of the original construction permit? 
Mr. Moss. You testified this morning that section 1.65 of the Com­

mission rules require that they he filed at the time that an application 
for extension is made. Now you just said that they are not. 

Mr. SAADY. No, sir. I believe my answer this morning referred to the 
fact that when you do enter into a contract involving yonr stations, the 
rules of the Commission require you file a copv of that contract with 
the Commission within 30 days. V 

Mr. Moss. Let us get this straight. 
Tfle question this morning was not talking about a matter of the 

station. It was talking about the application, and M r. Li~hrnan was 
specific in interrogating you on the extension for the cousLruction 
permits, and in response to that, you indicated that the i1stml docu­
ments were not filed. 

Mr. DINGELL. Doesn't rule 1.65 require also that the licensee disclose 
any substantial changes in his financial position? 
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Mr. SAADY. That is correct. . 
Mr. DINGELL. ,vas this rule compli~d ,Yith '? Did Mr. Overmyer di~­

close a:n.y substantial c~anges in his fi.nancia~ po:sition? 
Mr. SAADY. At the time he filed lns apphcat1011, I was not aware of 

any substantial changes. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did he make any disclosure of any substantial 

changes? 
Mr. SAADY. He did not. 
Mr. DINGELL. If he had done so, and you had found that his position 

had changed substantially for the worse, what would your recom­
mendations have been? 

Mr. SAADY. -we would have taken the application for extension up 
to the Commission. 

Mr. DINGELL. You would have? 
Mr. SAADY. Ye,s. 
Mr. DINGELL. I yield now to Mr. Lishman, who has some questions 

to ask you on this particular point. 
Mr. 0 LISHMAN. The questions I asked this morning were in regard 

to the compliance with rule 1.65. Among the questions I a.sked was: 
vVhen did you first receive notice of the loan agreements and the stock 
purchase agreements, and so on. 

You answered, as I recall it, when the application was filed, on 
June 30. 

Mr. SAADY. That is correct. I became aware of the transfer control 
application only after it was filed. It is not filed in my shop, but I was 
aware after it wa.s filed. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I would like to call your attention to rule 1.65. Isn 't 
it a fact that that rule requires that if there is any substantial change, 
there must be an amendment of the extension application? 

Mr. SAADY. Not necessarily. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I will read it to you. I will read the section. 
Each applicant is responsible for the continuing accuracy and completeness 

of information furnished in the pending application, or in Commission pro­
ceedings involving a pending application. 

Whenever the information furnished in the pending application is no longer 
subst!!ntially accurate and complete in all significant respects, the applicant shall 
as promptly as possible, and in any event within 30 days, unless good cause is 
shown, amend or request amendment of bis application so as to furnish such 
additional or corrected information as may be appropriate. 

No,v, that is part of 1.65. Now, is it not also true that the Commis­
sion has many times ruled that filing under rule 1.6~3, O!,' rule 1.615, will 
not satisfy the mandate of 1.65, that the mere filmg m some obscure 
part of the Commission will not satisfy this rule 1.65? _ 

I will refer you to some of these cases: The Cleveland Brorulcast­
ing case, the Central Brorulcasting Corp. ca.se, the GoPdon Sherman 
case, and others, where the Commission ruled that filing under rules 
1.613 and 1.615 will not satisfy the mandate of rule 1.65. 

I believe one of the reasons for it is that the Commission wants to 
be certain that it will have knowledge of these substantial changes, and 
if documents are filed hither, there, or yon, they are not likely to be 
brought to the attention of the Commission. Therefore, they would not 
be acting with an informed judgment when they are passing on appli­
cations for transfer approval. 

Is that correct? 

Mr. SAADY. That is right, but in point of fact, the transfer applica­
tion was filed. 1V e were aware of the transfer application, because "-e 
do operate in the same bureau. 

Mr. LISHMAN. How long after March 28 did you learn that? 
Mr. SAADY. ·when the application was filed. 
Mr. LrsIIMA:N'. 1Vhen was that filed ? 
Mr. SAADY. The application was tendered, I think, June 30. That is 

the file date. VVe became aware at that time. 
Mr. Moss. Before we move on, I have one other point we want to 

clear up. vVe have had cited here today by several of the members of 
the--staff, at least two of the legal staff, the statement that this case 
was based upon precedents which had occurred in other cases. 

I am going to want specific citations of those other cases. I mtnt to 
know whether in any of them there was involved a loan and option 
agreement combined in the petition for transfer of the constrnction 
permit. 

Mr. DINGELL. If you will yield, Mr. Chair-man, I would like to also 
have that indicate predisely the fashion in which the precedent is relied 
upon as a basis for the'-determinations and adions which were taken by 
the FCC in the Overmyer case. 

Mr. Moss. I think that is most appropriate. 
Mr. DrNGELL. I would like to stress, again, Mr. Chairman, that we 

would like to have this request complied with precisely. 
Mr. Moss. Yes. 
It would be the Chair's opinion that it should exist already some­

where in the Commission's files, or at least be in the working papers 
of the staff, and be able to be pulled together promptly. 

(The information requested appears in the appendix, p. 783.) 
Mr. DINGELL. If I could, Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask one of 

the FCC staff here if he could tell us upon which ci rcumstanoos the 
FCC in its staff memorandum, granted the application for transfer 
of the construction permits in the Over1nyer case. 

It had been indicated previously that Mr. Overmyer had bitten off 
more than he could chew. 

I would like to ask, if I could, what other moving circumstances 
there were, if any, that brought this transfer about. 

1'T ere there any? 
Mr. GF..ORGE SMITH. My memorandum is in this docum®t. 
Actually, "-e examined into the trafficking question. vVe examined 

into the 20-percent option matter. 
Mr. DINGELL. Now, the FCC has a very clear policy on trafficking in 

licenses. Does the Overmyer transfer conform with this policy? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. In the Overmyer case? 
Mr. DINGELL. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I think it does. The Commission approved if. 
~Ir. DINGELL. Now, that is not a responsive answer. I :tm s1m' yo 11 

are aware of that. 
What you are actually saying is that because the Con 1111i ssio11 s:1ys 

it does, it does. But you have a well-defined poli cy in t.l1t' H '( ' on 
trafficking. 

Perhaps you would like to enunciate thnt nn<l ft,JJ 11s ,i l1c •f 111'1" f l1i H 
Overmyer transfer conforms to that poli cy. . 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The Overmyer trander ro11 f' oJ'll1S I n 1 iil" p11III' .\', 
as I understand it. 
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Mr. DINGELL. The present policy, or the policy when it was changed 'I 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I am going to give you another one. . 
"'\Ve are in a little state of limbo right now on traffickmg, becamm 

of some recent court decisions. 
Mr. DINGELL. Because of the. chang~ in the !op market ~ule ~I:at 

the Commission has adopted smce this committee began mqmries 
into this matter? . . 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The Commission granted an application for a 
new station I believe it was in North Carolina. The matter of traf­
fickinO' had'been raised. We got all the facts we could get, short of a 
heariig. We came up with the opinion that traffic~ing had not been 
substantiated, and the Commission granted the application. 

That was appealed to the court, and the ?ourt rema1;ded the case 
and directed the Commission to hold a hearmg on the issue of traf-
ficking. . . . . 

Now, the hearing was held. My Bureau_p~rtlcipated m that _hearmg. 
We did prove trafficking, and the Comm1ss10n revoked that license. 

Since that time we have had another case that went to the court 
of appeals involvi~g the issue of trafficking, and just recently, maybe 
Mr. Slosberg might know how recently, the General Counsel asked 
the court to remand that case back to the Commission for further 
consideration. 

That is why I made the remark I did aibout our policy being in 
limbo right now a little bit. 

Mr. DINGELL. Was there any significant broadcast experience found 
in this matted 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Significant? 
Mr. DINGELL. On the part. of the purchaser. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. In both instances, yes. . . 
Mr. DINGELL. I mean in the Overmyer case. Did you find any sig-

nificant broadcasting experience? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. In Overmy,er? 
Mr. DINGELL. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No. 
Mr;' DINGELL. In any of these States? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No. 
Mr. DINGELL. Would they have qualified; would A VC have qualified 

had they been the original appltc~nt for a construction permit¥ 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. In my opmion, yes. 
:Mr. DINGELL. In each one of the transfers? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I believe so. 
Mr. DINGELL. How did they meet the requirements of local service¥ 

Were they residents, or did they have any residential attachment, 
or did they have any identification with the area? Did they have any 
local management? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Residency is not a basic requirement, at all. 
Mr. DINGELL. It is not? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. No. 
Mr. DINGELL. What about Mr. Overmyer's finan6al circumstances? 
You indicated he had bitten off more than he could chew. What was 

it that caused the Commission to come to the conclusion that he had 
bitten off more than he could chew? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. In his statement of reasons for the transfer, 
which I believe Mr. Hautanen went into earlier-I don't have a copy. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Lishman, will you resume the questioning at this 
time? 

Mr. LISHMAN. Yes, sir. 
I would call the attention of FCC staff members to a sentence in its 

memo of October 27, where it says: 
The Bureau recognizes that the extension of loans by a transferee to a trans­

feror presents an unu;;ual situation which should be approached with some 
skepticism. 

With this in mind, the Bureau has carefully scrutinized the underlying loan 
agreements, and is satisfied that they are consistent with the public interest. 
The.loans are fully collateralized by mortgages- and notes on various warehousing 
companies. They bear interest at the prevailing market (Philadelphia) rate plus 
a quarter of a percentage point premium. Interest is payable currently, and 
principal is repayable in 3 years. 

Now, I would like to ask how did you determine thait these loans 
were fully collateralized? "'\Vhat action did the staff take? 

Mr. 1-L.UTANEN. I don't recall exactly, but I am sure there must 
have been, or I would ~ot have made this statement, if there were not 
something in the application. I don't have the exhibit before me indi­
cating that these loans were collateralized. 

The statement would have been made in some document filed in the 
application. 

Mr. DINGELL. Isn't it a fact that the material you are referring to is 
a one-sheet summary of all the Overmyer properties? 

It is not an elaborate document. You have it right there. 
I will ask you a more specific question: Did anyone in the FCC 

look at appraisal reports concerning the Overmyer warehouse proper­
ties that underlie the mortgage loans? Did anybody look at these 
appraisals? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I don't recall whether I did, or not. 
I might say in reference to my prior answer that at one point the 

attorney for Mr. Overmyer furmshed the staff with a letter, a supple­
mental letter, indicating the manner in which these various loans were 
collateralized. 

I think that letter was made available to the subcommittee staff. 
We had a draft of that letter. Mr. Smith, I believe, received it from 
the attorney. 

Mr. DINGELL. Isn't this secondhand information? Isn't it the duty 
of the FCC when a statement is made that a loan is fully collateralized 
that they make certain that that statement is accurate? 

The Commission is going to act on this recommendation. Would not 
a Commi:3Sioner looking a;t th~ statement that the loans were fully 
collaterahzed assume that mqmry or a check had been made to verify 
that fact? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I would be willing to vouch-I can't do it without 
having the application before me, but I would be willing to vouch 
th_at if I said it was fully collateralized, it must have been collater­
ahzed. 

Mr. Moss. I am more curious than you are, so we will find out exa ·tly 
what docu~ent you have to have, and we will get it befon, you so that 
you can agam reaffirm. 

This committee, unlike the Commission, is n-oino- tio, operntc from 
documentation, so the staff has the document. ,..., 

See that it is supJ?lied to the gentleman.Hnot, let 11 s find out who 
has it, and let us get it. 
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Mr LISHMAN. I will continue with some questions. . . " The staff memo further states that Overmyer lost money m un-
successful network ventures." 

Did Overmyer supply any written statement to the Commission 
showing that he had lost money in an unsuccessful network venture? 

Mr. lIAUTANEN. This statement I think would have been taken from 
one of the documents which was filed with the application, perhaps 
in connection with the out-of-pocket expenses. 

Mr. LISHMAN. We have not been able to find that document in the 
set of papers which are supposed to represent everything that was used 
in approving this application. . . 

Mr. DINGELL. In order to simplify the record, may I request that 
that be submitted? 

Mr. Moss.We have the gentlemen before us, we ha;ve the docum~nts; 
all of the documents have been alleged to be supplied the comnuttee. 
The committee staff has the document. They will make it available to 
the staff of the Commission. 

I want to observe I am most impatient with Commission staff of this 
size that appears for a hearing on a subject well defined and does not 
have preparation with sufficient documentation. 

Show him the document, and I want the record to show what he 
relied on. . 

Mr. HAUTANEN. They would most likely be in that document, the 
reasons for proposed transfer. . . . . 

This is the report of the subcommittee staff. It is m the narrative 
statement. 

Mr. Moss. Which subcommittee staff? You mean the House subcom-
mittee staff? 

Mr. LISHMAN. That is a photostatic copy of a doc\1ment. . 
Mr. n-foss. I suggest you read the document with care, bemuse it 

represents more than just a subcommittee staff document. It represents 
a photostat of a document_ from your ~les. 

Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Chairman, I thmk the staff should be ,a;ble to get 
t his document without any difficulty. I wonder if it is the----

Mr. Moss. The committee is most anxious to develop the facts. It 
seems to have great di:fficul~y. . . . , 

Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Chairman, could we save bme 1f we asked ~he 
witness to supply for the record from the file the one page sheet ,~,hich 
was relied upon as showing that the loans were fully collaterahzed? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I will be pleased to ~o t hat. . 
(The document referred to appears m the appendix, p . 802.) 
Mr. Moss. I know you woul_d be pleased: I wo~l~ be pleased to 

shor ten the hearings and permit you to do 1t,_ but if that_ 1s not the 
document then I want to have the opportumty to examme you on 
what doc~mentation you did rely upon. 

r.fr. HAuTANEN. I do not recall whether this is the document which 
was in the application at the tim~ th~ application--

Mr. Moss. You have the application before you, down there on the 
table, haven't you? 

I supplied that to you once today. . . . 
Mr. HAUTANEN. I don't have the application, sir. 
Mr. Moss. Wb.o does have it? 
Mr. RAWSON. Nobody furnished us with an application. T hey gave 

us a copy of an exhibit to the application. 
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Mr. Moss. All I can say, gentlemen, is that I can assure you there 
is going to be some language in the report from this committee. which ' 
takes very, very careful note of therather unusual lack of preparation 
by this staff in order to respond to the proper an.d legitimate demands 
of a committee of the Congress. . 

vVe will now proceed to shorten it, and let the record show the 
incompetence of the witness to respond to the questions placed to him. 

Mr. Dingell. 
Mr. DINGELL. May I ask one question? 
Am you prepared to tell us that there was a verified, certified, fully 

documented statement on this point filed with the F CC before this 
matter was attended to? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. At one point, Mr. Gaguine made available to Mr. 
Smith a letter concerning the various collateral which backed these 
loans. That letter was with me. I had that. letter before this applica­
tion was acted on. I d9n't hfl-ve a copy of that letter now, but the letter 
was supplied by counsel for Overmyer on this point. 

Mr. DINGELL. Was it'-certified by a CPA? vVas it attested to by a 
public accountant? vVere the facts that the loans were collateralized 
in full in any fashion or way documented? 

Mr. l-IAlJTANEN. It was a letter, I believe, which was filed as an 
amendment to the application, or at least filed in connection with the 
application, so it would have been considered . 

.l'lfr. Dr~GELL. No,,·, ·we received the other cl ay-perhaps you gentle­
men were m the room-,-a statement from the FCC as 1o the great value 
of certain other financial information that was submitted to the Com­
mission in connection ,vith certain applications by Mr. Overmyer, 
supposedl_y assuring the Commission that loan agreements were made 
in that letter by a hrnk to Overmyer. 

A careful reading of that document compellrcl the Commissioil to 
conclude that there was no such assurance. 

Now, ,vhich kind of document are we talking about? · One which 
says flat oat these were folly collatemlized, certified by the CPA~ 

Mr. HAUTA:,rnN. It was a letter, I think, from Mr. Gaguine. 
Mr. DrnGELL. J.s he a CPA? 
Mr. H~\UTANEN. No, not to my knowledge. 
Mr. l\foss. Mr. Lishman, you may continue. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did the Commission look at any appraisal reports of 

the Overmyer warehouse properties which were security for the mort­
gage loans? 

Mr. HAUTANEN. I think the letter from Mr. Gaguine may have slated 
something as to the appraisal values. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did you look at the actual appraisals? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. D o you know on what basis they were ma<lc? 
Mr. HAUTANEN. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Certainly they were not cost, less deprrci:1Lio11 '! 
Mr. HAUTANEN. I beg your pardon? 
Mr. LISHMAN. They were not on a cost, less clrprr<'i:1Lioll 1111' 1·• 11 '"'' ' 

they? . 
Mr. H .HTTAXEN. I wouldn'tlrnow. 
Mr. L ISHMAN. :How would yon be ahl1' lo sl:!11· 111 111 llw \11 1111 """ ' 

fully collateralized, if you don't know wliel.li(•r IIH· 11p11n1i .oi l 1111 • "'' 

current market value, or some other bn fi is ? 
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Mr lIAUTANEN. It may be that the statement in paragr!1-ph 17 isn't 
fully· accurate, in terms of accounting principles, but until I see that 
letter, I wouldn't know. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I am going to go back-- . . 
Mr. Moss. Well, I have the letter. I am gomg to han_d !t to you. 

Dated November 21, 1967, to the Secretary of the Commission. 
Identify it, if you ~- . 
Mr. HAUTANEN. This 1s the letter sir; yes. . 
Mr. Moss. That shows that all loans are fully collaterahzed. Is that 

correct? 7 · h' h th' Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Mr. Moss, my item of October 2 , m w 1c is 
statement appears, woul~ not.have been b~se?- on t~at letter 

This letter was not received m the Commission until when , 
Mr. Moss. The 21st of November. . . . 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. My item, in which this appears, is October 27. 

Therefore I would like to take advantage of the offer made-­
Mr. Mo~s. I am not the one who said it was the basis. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I know you are not. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Hautanen is the-- . . . 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The letter from Mr. Gagume gives the details 

which Mr. Lishman wanted. . . . . . 
Now, as I understand it, the origma~ happlication, which with your 

approval we would like to supply you wit -- . 
Mr. Moss. Return the letter to me, if it is not that on which the 

conclusion was based. 
Now let us find out what letter we are talking about. . . 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH'. I thoug~t what yo"!! w_ere trymg to get at ~s 

what Mr. Hautanen relied on m the application when he made tlus 
statement. 

I thought we had been given leave to locate that document. 
Mr. Moss. Let us not again get the record f?ul~d up. 
Mr. HAUTANEN. Without having the application before me, I cannot 

accurately state on what this statement is ~as~d. . 
I£ I had an opportunity to see the application which I had before ~ne~ 

I think I could then locate whatever documents I based my conclusion 
on. 

The applications were rather lengthy. 
Mr. Moss. Give him the full application. 
I am sure you are :familiar with it. . . . . 
Mr. DINGELL. FCC policy, as I understand 1t, requires verified copies 

of the loan or credit aITTeements showing the amount of loans, terms 
of repayment, collater~l, and so forth, if any be submitted in connec­
tion with such matters of this kind. 

Am I correct? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I believe you are, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. So that we can get this in very simple terms, does the 

letter from Mr. Gaguine comply with that requirement? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. May I borrow that, Mr. Chairman? 
Mr. Moss. Will you supply Mr. Smith a copy of the letter from Mr. 

Gaguine? 
Mr. DINGELL. Does this comply with that enunciated FCC policy? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I am not the staff member who worked on this. If 

I only knew what it was that brought this, what was relied on to make 

the statement, I would be better able to answer the question about 
this. 

Mr. Moss. I will tell you what brought it up. It is really the basis of 
the entire hearing. 

We tend to regard this case as rather unusual in many, many of its 
aspects. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I think it is the only one of its kind. 
Mr. Moss. I think it is the only one of its kind, too. 
That brings up all sorts of little red flags. We want to know why it 

is the only one of its kind. '\Ve want to know how the public interest is 
served by this unique case that seems to be violative of almost all of 
t~e policies that the Commission, prior to the granting of this par­
t1cular application for transfer of construction permits--

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Let me see if I can answer your question now, 
Congressman Dingell. 

The req1;1-irement you j:ust read a moment ago from our application 
form reqmre;s certam thmgs to be done where the applicant is to be 
found financially qualified. 

Are we together up ·to there? 
. Mr. D~NGELL. The question, you will agree, I am sure, is: The finan­

cial qualification of the individual either originally to go into the busi­
ness or to go out of the busines.s by transfer was very much an issue 
here, because you told me that originally the transfer was authorized 
because Mr. Overmyer had bitten off more than he could chew. 

I assumed that originally the question of his financial ability to pur­
sue this course of action was again an issue. 

I am asking you whether verified copies of loans or credit agreements, 
showing amount of loans, terms of repayment, balance of collateral 
such matters, were submitted to the Commission. ' 

You have indicated to us that Mr. Gaguine submitted a letter to the 
Commission. I am wondering if that letter complies with FCC policy W 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I think we are getting confused, and I under­
stand you, sir, but this letter of November 21, 1967, had nothing to do 
~th.the question the other day on the bank letter with re.spect to the 
Cincmnat1 case. 

Mr. DINGELL. I am aware of that :fact. I simply wonder if it has the 
same reliability and the same probative value. 

M1·. GEORGE SMITH. No, it couldn't possibly, because this relates to 
another matter. 

Now, this letter is supposed to be evidence of the facts that went be­
hind the loan that A VC was making to Overmyer. Whether or not the 
A VC Corp. used good business judgment might be argumentative. I 
don't know. 

Mr. Moss. Let me, try to state again for the gentleman that Mr. 
Dingell is not asking about the substance of that letter. 

H,J is asking you if it is in the same general classification as to 
reliability as the letters-there were numerous ones from bankers­
atte.sting to the fact that they would consider under certain conditions 
and with appropriate certified statements, the possibilities of making 
lines of credit available. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I will try to answer that question th is way, Mr. 
Chairman. 

97~537-69-pt. 1- 16 
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If Overmyer needed $3 mill~on to complete cm~struction, and pro­
posed to finance that construct10n by a loan, leavmg out any sale of 
st<?ck, proposed to finance that construction by a $3 million loan, I think 
this would be adequate. 

I think the Commis.sion could accept this as evidence of the fact that 
Overmyer could borrow that money. 

This would be as a new applicant. 
M_r. DINGELL. First of all, let me ask you: vVere verified copies of 

credit agreements shown? vVere any of these thino-s I have enunci-
ated m compliance with the policy of the FCC? b 

Let me see that document, please. 
He~e you have a lett~r on the l.etterhead of Fly, Shuebruk, Blume and 

Gagume, by Mr. Bemto Gagume, addressed to B en F. vVaple, with 
copy to Thomas N. Dowd, attorney for A VC, and says here: 

Since certain questions appear to have been raised in respect t o two face ts 
of the agreement involving the proposed-

and so forth. 
It says: 
~oan. As the ~ommission ,vas advised, A VO has agreed to lend $3 million to 

various corporat10ns controlled by Overmyer. 

Are you telling us that this letter complies fully with the FCC 
rules and regulations? 

(The le.tteT r~ferred to a pp.earn in the appendix, p. 898.) 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I certamly am not. 
Mr . . DINGELL. Is this the only document that was relied 011 by t b<> FCC? . ~ av 

Mr. GEORGE SivnTH. I think ,that is what Mr. Hautanen is looking 
for now. 

Mr. PINGE1'.L· ~ ?u just indi:ated to i::ne !hat this was the document, 
that th1s was JU~tified, that this would md1cate that A VC could make 
a loan of $3 million. 

:ivrr. 'GEORGE SMITH. Of cour_se I did not. vVhat I said was I thought 
tlu~ woul~ be acceptal?le, ~iacl it_ ~een filed as an exhibit with an appli­
cation, which apphcat10n 1s cer1ifted to. 

Mr. :f2rNGELL,; Did you go behind this doeument in any fashion? 
Mr. GEORGE ::,MITH. That one there? 
Mr. DINGELL. Yes. 
Mr. GEORGE SllII'l'H. No, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. I think we had better wait and see the document on 

whieh you did rely. ' 
Mr. ~foss. I !hink, ii: view ~f the inability to produce the document 

01~ wluch the issue, or necessity, must be based, that the committee 
will--

Mr. DINGELL. I would like to ask a couple of questions, Mr. Chair­
man. 

I observe the1;·e that at several points on this application Mr. Over­
myer has submitted a number of documents involving appraisals of 
real property, and the property owned by him, by his corporation. 

'\Y° as there ~my check by the FCC as to whether or not these ap­
praisals were m faet eorrect, and conformed to the market values or 
that they did not? ' 

Mr. GEORGE SJ\,IITH. It is my information that they were never 
checked. · 

Mr. DINGELL. vVas there any scrutiny of these papers by any FCC 
staff member, to ascertain whether they were made by certified ap­
praisers, by licensed real estate men? 

Mr. GEORGE SMrrH. The only instance I can recall where we had an 
appraisal involved was an antenna site a.t Cincinnati. 

I think that is the only one. · 
Mr. DINGELL. The only one? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I believe so. 
Mr. DINGELL. Out of approximately how many parcels of real estate? 

Out of a significant number. Am I correct? 
M:r:-GEORGE SMITH. It would be one at each location. At each of five 

locations, at least one. It could be two, on account of studio location. 
Mr. DINGELL. vVe are talking about 23 warehouses. 
Mr. GEORGE SJ\HTH. I was thinking of the permits, Mr. Congressman. 
Mr. DINGELL. vVas there any appraisal on any of the warehouses, 

any independent appraisal? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I qon't know. 
Mr. DINGELL. Does anyone lmow '? 
Mr. GEORGE SMrrH. vVe didn't ask for it. 
Mr. DINGELL. I didn't hear the answer. 
Mr. Ifa.UTANEN. Not that I rum aware of, sir, no. 
Mr. DINGELL. Do you regard this as a good business practice, to 

simply swa1low a filing of this kind whole, and then shoot, without 
finding out whether it has been certified to by some person, some 
independent person other than the 'applieant? 

Mr. GEORGE Sivnnr. I think I vrnulcl have put better reliance on the 
business judgment of the requirements of the money lender, here, the 
AVC Corp. If it ,vere satisfied that it had ample secur ity, I don't 
know why we would have even gone into i t. 

Mr. DINGELL. You don't have the vaguest idea, though, whether these 
parcels of real estate were ·worth what they were purported to be, 
aceording to the documents filed 'I 

Mr. GrwRGE SMITH. vVe went over all the out -of-pocket expenses 
which were under oath, or under certification. 

Mr. Drnm~LL. I did not ask that question. 
Mr. GEORGE SnnTn . Th at includes the parcels. 
Mr. DINGELL. Did you &ver have any certification by independent 

appraisers'? Is there even a eert ification by independent appraisers to 
the worth of this property on file with the Commission? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't think so. 
Mr. DINGELL. Then the Commission, in illfLking its judgment, nrrn 

had the vaguest judgment of what the real worth of these 2H \\ :1 rP 

houses actuaJly happened to be. Am I correct i 
Mr. GEORGE SMrrr-r. I think that is fair to say so, yes. 
Mr. DINGELL. So that they eould have bee11 fixed at a p,·i('(' 11 1:tl \I, 

Overmyer indicated was quite appropriate. Am T <·< 11-r<·, ·I ! 1<'11 1 1,, 
needs? It might have been entirely unre}atecl to t he n<' I 1111 I III I 111 · 11 1 f I" ' 
tracts. Am I correct? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I justhavenolrnowledge :1ho1if 11 . 
Mr. DINGELL. This is definitely within t h , r <' :1 I 11, "r pi , ii II I , I 1 
1Ve find ourselves here in a posit ion or w li1·1 ·1• 111· 11111,· 1!11 \ \ c 

Corp., which is going to be t he p11rr ·lu1,.,·1· , ,1· 1111 ,. ••1111 11111 11,111 
permits-am I correct? 
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Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. DINGELL. Making its reliance on its intended purchase of a $3 

million loan. Am I correct? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That is correct. 
Mr. DINGELL. This is not really an arm's length deal between two per­

sons who are actually engaged in a business transaction which is solely 
involved in the loaning and the borrowing of money. 

It actually involves loaning and borrowmg of money, and purchase 
or other circumstances that are entirely apart from what you find in 
regular commercial transactions. 

Am I correct? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I am not as nearly well versed in commercial 

business transactions, apparently, as you are. 
Mr. DINGELL. You say this was a straight commercial loan? 
Mr. Moss. Will the gentleman yield? 
Mr. DINGELL. Yes. 
Mr. Moss. We had a representative of A VC before the committee, I 

believe at the last hearing. 
In a rare moment of candor, he virtually conceded that what they 

were buying was construction permits. 
Mr. DINGELL. We have here something which I don't think any-­
I would be most pleased if any of you gentlemen can tell me if this 

was a regular commercial transaction. 
I would be glad to hear it. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I would hesitate to stamp it as a regular one, be-

cause I don't know any other like this. 
Mr. DINGELL. This was a purchase, was it not? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. A purchase? 
Mr. DINGELL. The transaction which took place between AVC and 

Overmyer is a purchase? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Yes, I believe Mr. Overmyer originally pur­

chased the same permits, and then there was a subsequent sale. 
Mr. DINGELL. So in fact we have here a purchase of permits, which is 

very, very different than a standard commercial transaction? Am I 
corroot? A standard commercial loan? This is not a standard loan? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. If you want to tell me what is a standard com­
mercial loan--

I am not trying to play games. 
Mr. DINGELL. You give me a mortgage on a piece of real estate, and 

I sign a note. 
This is not that kind of transaction, at all, is it? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I don't think so. 
I know what a mortgage is. I have one. 
Mr. DINGELL. Doesn't this put the Commission staff on notice ,they 

ought to look further than just what appears on the face of the docu­
ment submitted by two persons who are interested in the transfer of a 
construction permit? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. You remember, and again I have to say that--­
Mr. DINGELL. Obviously this document could mean anything that 

the parties wanted it to mean. 
Doesn't this alert the Commission that they ought to go behind it 

and take a look to see what are the real circumstances, whether Mr .. 
Overmyer was in trouble, or whether he was not? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. As I recall, the reason for the existence of the 
letter in the first place is the statement probably made in this October 
27 memorandum to the effect that the loans had been secured by mort­
gages on warehouse properties. 

I think I recall a Commissioner, I wouldn't know which one at 
the time of some of the discussion wanted to know more particu1ars 
:about that. 

We asked counsel for Overmyer to supply those details, and that 
letter was his response. 

Mr. DINGELL. That letter, then, was not submitted as certification of 
the facts contained therein. It was simply a response to an inquiry by 
the Commission? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I think that is true. 
Whether it was filed as an amendment to the application, I don't 

know. 
Mr. DINGELL. Diel the staff raise the question that this was not a con­

ventional mortgage, or it conventional loan, between A VC and Over­
mver, in connection with any of its--

''Mr. GEORGE SMITH. There are two or three different characteriza­
tions of this whole transaction in our item. 

Mr. DINGELL. Perhaps you may help me by characterizing it. I am 
interested in knowing how this was characterized. 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. Paragraph 17, and this has been read before 
today: 

The Bureau recognizes that the extension of loans by a transferee to a trans­
frror presents an unusual si,tuation which should be approached with some 
skeptidsm. 

,v e try to be fair with the Commission. '\i\T e tried to report the facts 
as we found them, in order to enable the Commission to pass on these 
applications. 

Mr. DINGELL. Were there any other characterizations which say 
"extra circumstances"? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. That was gone into. I think Mr. Lishman asked 
some questions about some other phrases. 

Let me find them. 
Mr. DINGELL. I don't want to go over the ground covered by Mr. 

Lishman. 
vV as it ever recommended to the Commission that they should look 

at these documents to see whether the facts were actually as they 
purported to be, or were the documents swallowed whole, without 
checking? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. The only representations the Bureau ever made 
to the Commission are all wrapped up in this one memo. 

Mr. DINGELL. Was there any recommendations that the Commission 
should look behind the circumstances in this rather extraorclinn,ry 
transaction? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. None other than what appears in Lil<•, n1 <1 1110-

randum. 
Mr. DINGELL. Were the mortgages on rthese w::trchousrs fil 11d ill LIH 

jurisdiction in which the real property_ purporLcd I_ o b_o i W '.11'<1 t.li! 
mortgages filed with the county clerk rn the co 1111t.1 ('S 111 wit "'Ii LIH 
rea.1 ,property purported to be? 

Mr. GEORGE '8MITH. I have no knowledge of tl1M. l lmv n't, Lit 
slightest idea. 
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Mr. Moss. Do you know whether or not the mortgages, the 23 mort­
gages, are first or second mortgages? 

Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I do not know; no. 
Mr. DINGELL. Do you know whether there ,vere other mortgages on 

the real property? • 
Mr. GEORGE S::1nTH. No. 
Mr. DINGELL. ,iV as any inquiry made on this point? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I do now know. 
:.\1:r. DINGELL. vVhat was Mr. Overmyer's balance on August 31, 

1964? . 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I ,think that question was asked on a Fridav, 

and somebody gave us the answer. " 
vVhat that the one that said $.9,000, or some? 
Mr. DINGELL. As :J, ~atter of fact, as n_ear as we can figure, his per­

sonal balance sheet mdicated he had a chfference between current as­
sets and current liabilities of $963.14. 

Mr. GEORGE S~nTH. Yes. ?-'hat ,was asked and gone i!1to, not by me. 
I was here, I thmk on a Friday, when that was gone mto. 

Mr. DINGELL. Thank you. 
Mr. :Moss. Do you have any additional questions, Mr. Lishman? 
Mr. LISHMAN. ¥.r·. Chairman, w~ have not finished the questions 

related to the acqmsit1011 of three stations. 
,iV e then intended to go into the question of the substantiatirw of 

data concerning the out-of-pocket expenditures. b 

It will take detailed questioning of some len~h. 
Mr. Moss. It had been the program, certamly it was the hope, the 

prayer of the Chair;, that we could dispense with the further appear­
ance by you gentlemen before this hour today, that this phase of the 
hearing woula be concluded. 

It is evident now, from the record, that this is not possible. 
The committee now adjourns subject fo the call of the Chair for 

further appearance. 
The Chair wants to admonish each of you that he expects in your 

next appearance that you be prepared to respond in the most finite 
detail on the Overmyer case. 

I consider this an important matter. and I don't want the endless 
wasting of time while we search for do~uments and try to define what 
should be matters of common knowledge by the staff which ,vorked 
on this case. 

~r. GE?RGE SMITH. Mr. CI:iairman, may I hav_e a word, please? 
1 ou will recall I spoke with you and Mr. Lishman about o-ettin<r 

some vacation, and then the discussion centered around takITw my 
deposition. 0 

I met with Mr. Arnold Smith that afternoon, and my deposition 
was not _taken, because Mr. Smith_said he did no~ want to tip h1s hand, 

Now, 1f we could only get some idea of what will be gone into-­
Mr. Moss. The entire Overmyer case. 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. vVe know it very ,Yell, but I can't begin to guess 

at some of these questions. 
Mr. Moss. Have you had your vacation? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. I haven't had it. 
Mr. Moss. Is that what you are planning? 
Mr. GEORGE SMITH. If you tell me to stay in town, I will stay in 

town. 

:Mr. Moss. I am asking a question. I am not telling you. 
:.\fr. GEORGE SJ\IITH. I had been plannin.2.· to take some time: yes. 
:.\fr. ::\foss. HO\v much time? ·- ' 
~1:r. G1~RGE SllnTJI. According to my wife, she ,rnnts 3 weeks. I 

thmk I w1ll take 2. 
Mr. Moss. I think probably tomorrow we can confirm the fact that 

we ,vill be able to dispense with any requirement for your tes timony 
for at least that length of time. · 

~.Ir. GEORGE SJ\nTn. I want to be here, if you want me, sir. 
:\fr. Moss. I \VOuld like to see you luwe a rest and come back re­

freshed ai:d ready to again eng_age in a battle of what I hope ,1·i ll l1e 
sharper wits than we have had displayed today. 

:Yir. GEORGE SMITH. Thank you, sir. 
Mr. Moss. The committee will now stand adjourned until 9 :45 in 

the morning, at which time the Commission ,vill be present. 
_:.\Ir. GEORGE ~J\1:ITH. Do you ,rnnt any of the staff in the morning 

with the Comn11ss10ners? 
.:Vfr. Moss. That is up to the Commission. 
}Ir. GEORGE SMITH. '-I mean as far as the Chair is concerned. 
:.\fr. :.\foss. Does counsel desire any particular staff members to ac­

company the Commission? 
}fr. LrnI~MAN. Yes, sir. I think there should be some staff members. 

·vv e are _gomg to continue the line of questions that has already beo·un 
concernmg. Overmye_r's acquisition of the Pittsburgh, Houston, ~ncl 
~an ~ranc1sco renmts, and his financial capability to put these sta­
t10ns rnto operation. 

Then, following that--
~ }fr. _M?ss. I tJ-~ink ,Ye can shorten i~ if the counsel will notify the 

Commission Chairman that the comimttee expects the Commission to 
a1~pear prepared ~o answe~· in a ~·esponsible manner all questions which 
nught be put to rt on tlns subJect, and leave to the Commission the 
determination of its own requirements for staff. 

,Vith that instruction, the committee stands adjourned until 9 :45 
tomorrow morning. 

(1iVhereupon, at 4 :50 p.m., the committee adjourned, to reconveirn 
at 9 :45 a.m., Thursday, August 1, 1968.) · 
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TRAFFICKING IN BROADCAS'l' S'l'A'fION LICENSES 
AND CONS11RUCTION PERMITS 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 1, 1968 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SPECBL SuBCOMMITI'EE ON INVESTIGATIONS, 

CoM11uTTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN C01vrMERc1c, 
W a.shin_qton, D.C. 

The subcommittee met at 9 :45 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room 
2123, Rayburn House G)ffice Building, Hon. Harley 0. Staggers ( chair-
man) presiding. . '-

The CHAIRMAN. The committee will come to order. 
As I understand from the subcommittee chairman who was pre­

siding yesterday, ,ve had agreed ,that the Commission would be first 
this morning. So, will the Commission come :forward and take the 
chairs at the witness table? 

I want to thank you gentlemen for coming up. The situation in the 
House is a rather uncertain thing. "\Ve don't know how long we will be 
here. Ho,vever, we ,rill get started. 

Mr. Hyde, would you :identify the gentlemen? 
Mr. HYDE. We have Commissioner Robert Bartley, Commissioner 

Kenneth Cox, Commissioner Robert E. Lee,. Commissioner Johnson is 
expected. Commissioner vVadsworth was really in some distress this 
morning. He won't be able to be here ·this morning. 

The CHAIRMAN. Have all of you gentlemen been sworn? Those 
who were not, will you please stand? 

Do you solemnly swear the testimony you are about to give to the 
subcommittee is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, 
so help you God? 

Mr. BARTLEY. I do. 
Mr. Cox. I do. 
Mr. LEE. I do. 

TESTIMONY OF HON. ROSEL H. HYDE, CHAIRMAN, FEDERAL COM­
MUNICATIONS COMMISSION; ROBERT T. BARTLEY, COMMIS­
SIONER; ROBERT E. LEE, COMMISSIONER; KENNETH A. COX, 
COMMISSIONER; AND NIOHOLAS JOHNSON, COMMISSIONER 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Mr. Chairman, is it correct that in approving the 

transfer of these five construction permits the Commission relied 
chiefly on the memorandum of the staff dated October 27, 1967? 

Mr. HYDE. The Commission relied heavily upon the memorandum 
and recommendation of the staff. 

Mr. LISHMAN. There was testimony here yesterday by the staff that 
the participants who drafted that staff memorandum did not lmow 
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until ,June 30, 1967, that Overmyer had already sold these permits 
to another company on March 28, 1!)67. 

Are you familiar with that testimony? 
~Ir. HYDE. I understand there "·as some discussion about the alleged 

failure of Overmyer to file a contract before the filino· of his applica-
tion. Is this what you are referring to? 0 

. Mr:. LISHMAN. What I am trying to elicit is when did the Commis­
sion itself first know that Overmyer had consummated a transac,tion 
on March 28, 1967, disposing of the five construction permits? 

_Mr. I-lYDE. Of course, no permittee can dispose of his authorizations 
without the approval of the Commission. I understand that a contract 
looki?-g to,yard the ,tran~fe~ of t~1e1:1, subject to Commission approval, 
was filed_ with the Co1~m1ss10n w1thm 1~bout 28 days of making the con­
tract which would be m accordance w1th ·the rules of the Commission. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Weren't there three applications outstandino- for ex­
tensions of time for several of the construction permits? 0 

. Mr. fIYDE. That may very well be b::cause i~ is expected that applica­
twn will be made to extend the permit well m advance of t he expira­
tion of the permit. 

There are certain rights that accrue under the Administrntive Pro­
cedures Act if an application for renewal of extension is filed before 
the termination of the previous authorization. 

Mr. LISHMAK. Doesr\'t rule ;l.65_ of the Commission require an 
amendment of an extens10n application whenever there is a substantial 
change in the financial st,atus of the applicant? 

Mr. HYDE. I h~ven't the text of the precise rule in mind but as a 
ma~ter of regulation we do_ require th~ filing of _information to keep 
us mformed as to changes m ownership and so forth . 

Mr. LISHMAN. VVas the Commission ever informed that there had 
been a violation of rule 1.65 in that Overmyer had not amended his 
extension applications to sho,,- that he hacl already disposed of the 
five construction permits? 

Mr: H 1.';)E. 1V ell, he couldn't have disposed of the five construction 
perm~ts ,nthout approval of the Commission. 

Mr. LISI-L:UAK. He had entered into a contract for disposal. 
Mr. H YDE. Any s~1c~1 contract would ha,·e to be subj ect to the ap­

proval of the Comm1ss10n. He could not dispose of his interest without 
the a.ppro,0a1 of the Commission. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Moss. 

. l\I~. Moss_. Mr. Hyde, I think you are equivocating because the ques­
t1<?n _1s r each1y a~ns,Yerable by yes or no. ~e did not apprise this Com-

lrn1~s10n of the :._act that he had entered mto any such agreement, did 
16! ' 

Mr. HYDE. I think he had, CongTe-ssman Moss. 
Mr. Moss. If he did, how? ~ 

. Mr. I-b:"DE. It is my ~n~erstanding that a copy of the contract look­
mg t~ward t\1e sale of his m te_r~st subject to Co~mission a~pr<?val had 
been fi_led uncter our rules reqmrmg that changes m o,vnership, mterest, 
or opt10ns be filed within 30 days. 

l\!~r. Moss. All I can say to that, Mr. Chairman, is that you twice 
c~rtifiecl, one~ yourse~f and another time the Secretary of the Cornmis­
swn, that tlus committee had been supplied with copies of all d ocu-

.,: • .--xu 

ments relevant to this case and this committee has not been supplied 
with any documents indicating such filings. 

Did they come into being after the committee requested them? . 
Mr. HYDE. Congressman l\foss, we endeavored to supply you with 

all the documents in this case. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, that is not satisfactory. Your endeavor 

is not an accomplishment. In fact, your files should contain every item 
pertinent to this case. If you did in fact supply those to us, then any 
such filing would have been supplied to this committee. 

M__r. HYDE. Congressman Moss, we made an earnest, diligent effort 
to supply all the papers. This is a case of many documents, as you 
know. Obviously, the staff perparing the materials for me to submit 
directed their attention to the applications, the applications for per­
mits, the applications for modification of permits, the applications for 
consent to assignment of licenses. 

Apparently they overlooked the filing of certain documents that are 
filed in our ownership, records which are separate from application 
files. This is something that could easily happen though you are 
making a most conscientious effort to supply all relevant documents. 

Mr. Moss. I must respectfully disagree with you because the com­
mittee staff, this committee staff, has repeatedly inquired because they 
had a sense of disbe1ief that there would not have been such informa­
tion in the files and they have repeatedly inquired as to whether or not 
the information was contained in the files. 

So, this is not an inadvertent overlooking. I think this becomes a 
very serious omission in supplying information to this committee. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, you do have the information. T he 
contract itself was filed in connection with the application. The only 
thing that is missing--

~Ir. Moss. No; you are getting around here to mixing two different 
thmgs. 

On June 30, or roughly in June, a request for a transfor of the con­
struction permit was made-that application contains the copies of 
the contract and all of that. ·we are talking about the filing in connec­
tion with the request for an extension of t he construct10n permits 
which occurred in March. 

Mr. HYDE. It is my understanding that the contracts looking toward 
possible sale, subject to Commission approval, had been filed separately 
from any application filed in connection with the requirements of a rule 
requiring disclosure of owership interest or options looking toward 
chRnge in ownership interest. 

Mr. Moss. 1Vhat date? 
Mr. HYDE. I can't give you the date from memory. 
Mr. Moss. Don't you have those documents with yon? 
Mr. H Ym;. No; I don't have them with me. 
Mr. Moss. Does anybody here have them ? 
Mr. I-h'DE. They probably would. Mr. Rawson ? 
Mr. Moss. Bring him up. He has been sworn alread y. 
The CnAIR}lfAN. 1Vi11 you gentlemen come to the sl;~nd :rnd snppl y 

us with tlrnJt information. It seems to me, Comrn iss ion er ]1 .,·de, that 
,~e have to go a long way to get a lot of tbcsc clocunwnts aucl informa­
tion. 

Mr. HYDE. Mr. Chairman , I regTct ve n " 11111 c- l1 that there -would be 
any misunderstanding abont suC' ]{' a sim1;ll' matter as this. 
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vVe had a very extensive file in this case. Applications of various 
kinds which are filed in, you might say, for processing of applications 
for various authorizations, exchanges and whatnot. We made a most 
searching effort to comply with your request. It does happen that in 
another office of the Commission we do get the filings of information 
about contracts and whatnot which were overlooked. 

The CHAIRMAN. Thank you. I will say this: I think the Commission 
has known for some time that we wanted to look into this matter. 

Will you state your name, sir. 

FURTHER TESTIMONY OF ROBE.RT J. RAWSON, CHIEF, RENEW AL 
AND TRANSFER DIVISION, FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COM­
MISSION 

Mr. RAWSON. My name is Robert J. Rawson. 
The CHAIRMAN. Have you been sworn? 
Mr. RAWSON. Yes, I have. 
The CHAIRMAN. Will you tell us about these papers, where you got 

them, and where and why the Commission does not have them? 
Mr. R ,w,:soN. Obviously there is some very serious misunderstand­

ing. The committee staff never made any inquiry of the Commission 
staff concerning whether the contracts and pledge agreements had been 
filed in accordance with the rules. 

The letter that you sent to us asked for the information and these 
contracts; all the information that I have here was provided to your 
committee. 

The CHAIRMAN. You mean they have those? 
Mr. RAWSON. They have everything that I have in my hand. 
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Lishman? 
Mr. LISIHIAN. That is not correct. Mr. Rawson, I will now ask you: 

The staff asked for the extension applications; is that correct? 
Mr. RA wsoN. Yes; I believe so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. They received the extension applications; is that 

right? 
Mr. 'RAWSON. I believe so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did the extension applications show that Overmyer 

had made a disposition of the five construction permits on March 28 '? 
Mr. RAWSON. Well, they said they had not made a disposition 

of--
Mr. LISHMAN. I am asking a very simple question. Did the exten­

sion application make that disclosure? 
Mr. RAWSON. No; itcouldn:t. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Under the rules of the Commission, under rule 1.65, 

wasn't the applicant required to amend his application to show a. sub­
stantial change in his :financial condition? 

Mr. RAWSON. I don't know. I would have to take a look at the appli­
cation and examine it. This has nothing-I am very sorry, Congress­
man Moss-I have nothing to do with that aspect of the application. 
I don't know whether it does or not. I vrnuld ha.veto look at the appli­
cation and look at the information. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Rule 1.65 is very clear. I will read it to you. 
Mr. RA wsoN. I am very familiar with it. 
The CHAIRMAN. Let him read it, will you please. 

Mr. LISHJ\IA~. It says, "substantial and significant clmnges in in­
formation furnished by applicants to the Commission." 

It says, "The applicant shall as promptly a.s possible and in any 
event, within 30 days, unless good cr111sr, is shown, amfmcl or request the 
amendment of his application so as to ·furni,:h such additional or cor­
rected information as may be appropriate." 

Now, that language is clear. Isn't it also true that the Commission 
1ias repeatedly ruled that the mere filing of a contract in the owner­
ship section is not a compliance with this rule 1.65? 

Mr. RAWSON. I believe there have been cases along that line. 
JV[r~ LISHMAN. Isn't that the consistent ruling of the Commission? 
Mr. RAWSON. I believe so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVhy was this rule not observed and its violation not 

brought to the attention of the Commission? 
Mr. RAWSON. I haven't any idea. The question that was asked of 

me was, Why wasn't this material furnished? "'\iVhen the staff asked 
for 1the modification aRplications they asked for all the applications 
nnd this information ii:i conta.ined in the applioations to transfer con-
trol of the stations. ·' 

They were offered at one time. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I think we are being confused here. 
Mr. Moss. This man yesterday spent a]most the entire day ducking 

and dodging, just as he is dodging now. 
1fr. RA wsoN. I beg your pardon. 
Mr. Moss. Don't beg my pardon, booause it is a fact. 
Mr. RAWSON. I am not dodging anything. 
Mr. Moss. It is a fact. 
Mr. RA wsoN. The record will speak for itself. 
Mr. Moss. You just be silent. We are discussing wha.t you a;re try­

ing to do now. You said the application to transfer control. vVe are not 
talking 1about that. What we are talking a:bout is the application to 
extend the construction permits. One act took place in March, the other 
took place in June. 

For you to stand there and deliberately a.ttempt to obfuscate this 
record is a. disservice to the Commission and to the committee. 

Mr. RAwsoN. Oongressman Moss, the record here shocws that the 
information w,as furnished to the committee. This is the information 
that is in our ownership files. This w.as furnished rto the committee at 
the committee's request. 

The CHAIBMAN. Just a minute. You say such information was fur­
niPhed to the committee I 

Mr. RAWSON. This information is all part and parcel of the infor­
ma,tion that was furnished to the committee along with all the other 
in :formation and at the same time. 

The CHAIRMAN. ,Just one minute. Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I do not know what the gentleman has in his hrrnds. 

Do you ha Ye in your hands the filing of the contract? 
Mr. RAWSON. Yes, sir; filed on April 28, 1967. 
Mr. LISHMAN. That information was not furnished to us. 
Mr. RAWSON. The information is furnished-well, you asked for 

the infornrntion be:fiore the Commission. This information is the stock 
purchase agreement, and assignment, a stock pledge escrow agree­
ment, and a loan agreement. 
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They are all contained in the files before you. 
:.\fr. LISHMAN. I will respectfully submit that the April 23 letter 

was never submitted to this committee. '\Ve had no know ledge of the 
filing of that contract and one of your own witnesses testified here 
yesterday that he didn't know about it until yesterday. 

Mr. RAWSON. Mr. Lishman, I wasn't sure. You are the one that made 
the statement it had not been filed. I assurned yon were correct. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I didn't say it had not been filed. 
Mr. RA wsoN. You said it had not been filed in accordance with the 

rules. vVhen I went back to the office I checked the ownership section 
where this material goes. It has nothing to do ·with applications. We 
found the information ismy files. 

Mr. L1s1nrAN. My point is that under rule 1.65 where there had 
been a substantial change in the ca,pacity of the applicant, he must 
file an amendment of his application for extension. 

The CHAIR:i\fA:N. Just one minute. I understand from Mr. Moss that 
he has said it is available but it had not been filed with the committee 
yesterdrvy. 

'\Ve ,vill go back to the records to ascertain the truth before we get 
through here. I am beginning to belim~e that we might find an awful 
Jot in this matter that the Commission doesn't know about, but I be­
lieve it is their duty to know. 

Do vou have some comrn.ent? 
}fr: HYDE. Yes, Chairman Staggers. The "-hole difficulty in thi.3 

matter is that certain information ,vas filed separate and ,apart from 
the applications. 

The infonnation alJout the contra,ct looking toward sa.le subject to 
Commission approval had been filed separately from the filing of the 
applications for extensions. 

The material was in what we ca.11 the ownership files o:f the Com-
1nission and was brought to the attention o:f the Commission not from 
the ownership files but in connection with applications for assign­
ment of permits. 

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Clrn.irman, a few moments ago you said you 
didn't"know ,rubout this. I asked i f anybody on your Conunission knew. 
Nobody answered. You finally got the gentleman sitting in the back 
to t€stify. 

Mr. HYDE. No; Mr. Rawson really confirmed what I had stated, 
that the information regarding the oontract for sale had been filed 
in the ownership section o:f the Commission's organization but that 
the same material had been filed in connection with the application 
for ,assignment of license and had been given to the committee in con­
nection with the application for assignment of license. 

What is bothering Mr. Lishman is simply this. 
The CHAIRMAN. Don't tell me what is bothering Mr. Lishman. 1Ve 

will let Mr. Lishman tell us what is bothering him. I think you went 
all the way a,round the subject I asked you about. I think that most of 
these questions can be answered yes or no. 

I asked about the information that had been filed and you said vou 
didn't know. " 

Mr. I-h'l)E. No. I thought vou asked me did I have the papers here. 
I did not. " 

The CHAIRMAN. I did not ask vou i:f you lmd the papers. I wanted 
to know whether the committee has them. 

:'.\fr. I-I-rnE. Tho committee has them. 
The CH.URMAN. Now he says he doesn't lrnYe them. 
Mr. HYDE. He doesn't have the letter relatino· to the---
The C1-L~IRMAN. That is what I was was talkina about and I asked 

you about 1t and none of the Commission seemed t~ know about it and 
finally one of the staff told about it. 
1 He said_ it is filed rmd Mr. Lishman says it isn't. I think there should 
oe a coYermg letter on all the information that has come in. 

Mr. Cox, you held _up your pencil. ,yhat do you have in mind'? 
;\.fr .. Cox. J'lilr. Cha1rm~n, I would J1ke to make this point: I think 

Mr. L1shm_an would be nght, there ,Yonld be a serious question raised 
under se~t10n 1.65_ of the rules if the Commission had acted on these 
req1~ests for extens10n of time to constrn d w ithout learning of his plans 
to dispose of the permits. 

Hm--:ev_er, in fact, as is quite o:ften tr_uc in the case o:f transfers, the 
9omm1ss1?11 d1cl . not act on the extens10n r cq uosts until it a pprovecl 
~he transfer. I d1cl not vote to approrn the transfer but at that time 
m Decemb_er 1967, the C0imnissio~1 F as ach·i scd, of 'course, that whil~ 
the _extension requ?st_s ,vere pendmg, ;,fr. Ornrmyer had contracted, 
su~Jected t? Comm1ss10n approval, to sell th e permits. 

:S~ that m some se!1se l_1is failure to advi se 11s promptly, as the rule 
reqmres, of change m his financial condition- which would have or 
fould hav:e affected action on the cxten~ion rrqu0st--1rns corrected by 
~apse of time, because the Cornm1ss10n did hcLYc that information when 
1t acted. 

The CHAIRMAN. Is this the common practice in tl1e Commission? 
Mr. Cox ... Which? To wait and act on the extension nermits until 

the transfer action? 
The CHAIRMAN. You people do not know ,,hat is o·oi1w on until the 

very end of an appli~ation's process!ng, and then yo~ say go ahead. 
M~. Cox. No. I thmk the staff-if ~hey ?ave an e_xtension request 

pendmg and_ then find that the permittee is requestmg authority to 
sell the pe:m_it-they usually put those in a package and bring them to 
the Commiss10n at the same time. 

The C?mmission, if it does not wish to authorize the transfer not 
only designates that for a hearing but also designates the exte~sion 
request for a hearing. 

H, as was the ca,se here, a majority of the Commission approves the 
transfer: and _finds _no real problem with extending time to construct 
the stat10ns, 1t agam handles both aspects in the same order. I think 
that was done here. 

Tl~e CHAIR~fAN. Ju_st one question and then I have to go to a1iother 
meetmg. Is this not a little unusual? 

Mr. Cox. I dop't recall another. instance where we approved a trans­
fer o:f five pern~1ts at once. Certamly, of course, the fact that we were 
ask~d to a~thonze th~ transfer of five at a time when we had an interim 
policy agamst allowmg anyone to acqui:e mor~ than three in the top 
50 markets was one of the grounds on which I dissented to the transfer. 

f3ut I don't think the proceclur:e is necessarily unusual. I think the 
thmg that was unusual was the size and character of the transaction. 
· The CHAIRMAN. That does sound kind of stra1we does it not when 
yo_u had an interim policy of just. three in the top fn;rkets. You 'would 
thmk then that you would ao into the back0To11nd l)rettv thormwhly 
I- tl t h' • b O .J 0 co see 1a overyt mg was Just so. 
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Mr. Cox. I thought we should have had a hearing, and so indicated. 
But the staff indicated in its memorandum that it believed that a com­
pelling showing of grounds for waiver of the interim policy had been 
made. 

I think it took that position in the light of some earlier actions of 
the majority of the Commission in approving transfers, where I also 
dissented. 

The CHAIRMAN. One thing is this: The Commission took to a great 
extent the word and recommendation of the staff. 

Mr. Cox. I think it has to, pretty much. 
The CHAIRMAN. I am sure of that. But in such an unusual transac­

tion such as this, the first of its kind, maybe the only one, you would 
have thought that perhaps the Commission would have gone into it 
a little further. 

Mr. Cox. I think the majority should be asked why they didn't. 
The CHAIRMAN. That is what we want to find out, whv the transac­

tion did take place, why certain documents were not filed with us and 
why we had a hard time getting them. I will turn the meeting over 
to Mr. Moss. I must go. I will try to come back. 

Mr. HYDE. May I make a very brief statement about the compiling 
of irr£ormation? 

The law prohibits us from requiring applicants to file repetitious 
information. We are told by Congress not to burden applicants with 
filing information already on file. The information about these con­
tracts--

Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, we are not talking about repetitious in­
formation. The inquiry of the staff of the committee goes to supple­
mental information concerning substantive changes in the financial 
picture of the applicant seeking an extension of construction permits. 

'The question bears upon whether or not that was filed in a timely 
fashion and whether it was filed in a proper form. 

Mr. HYDE. What I wanted to explain was that the information 
about the proposed sale had been filed in the ownership files of the 
Commission and was not repeated, apparently, in the applications 
£or extension of permits. 

Mr. Moss (presiding). You could amend something by filing the 
amendment without the original document. 

Mr. HYDE. It could be done. 
Mr. Moss. You will have to give me a whole new body of law and 

I haven't time £or the instruction. But the very nature of amenda­
tory information dictates that it became a part of the original. 

Mr. HYDE. I take the position that the Commission is on notice of 
the change in conditions if the information has been filed in the own­
ership file. 

Mr. Moss. You didn't know a thing about it until in June-­
Mr. HYDE. We certainly did. 
Mr. Moss. Tell me how you found out. 
Mr. HYDE. Mr. Rawson listed a letter that was filed in March. 
Mr. Moss. You said you didn't know about it until June. You did 

say that and it is on that record which that gentleman has just taken. 
Mr. HYDE. I would be charged as a matter of law that notice of 

all materials are filed in the agency. 
Mr. Moss. I am not going to read it. I have volumes of testimony 

which shows that the staff as late as yesterday, the oveJ.1whelming 

majority of your staff, didn't know about it. So I think the important 
question is, was the document supplied to this committee in compli­
ance with the request of the chairman? 

Mr. HYDE. In filing the information about the applications we 
apparently did not supply the information that was available in the 
ownership file. 

Mr. DINGELL. Will you yield? 
Mr. Moss. Yes; I will yield. 
Mr. DINGELL. Is the ownership file a part of the record for the 

purposes of extension or the transfer of the CP's? 
Mr;-HYDE. It is a part of the Commission's records for other pur­

poses, consideration of applications at any time or any other matters. 
Mr. DINGELL. You indicated that you could amend without filing 

a formal paper, am I correct in that matter? 
Mr. HYDE. You can amend without filing any formal petition. 
Mr. DINGELL. What is 1.65? 
Mr. HYDE. Rule 1.65 is simply notice to interested parties prosecut­

ing an application thatl they must keep the Commission apprised of 
changes in circumstance's. 

Mr. DINGELL. Does that not require formal notice to the 
Commission? 

Mr. HYDE. It ca,n be done by a very simple submission by letter. We 
a,re talking, of course, of nonadjudicatory cases, cases that have not 
become the subject of a formal hearing procedure. 

Mr. DINGELL. I want to ask a very simple quest ion. Your records 
are supposed to be such that on judicial review it will be possible 
to appropriately determine what the facts are and decide whether 
the proceedings were fair and everybody had a full opportunity to 
be heard, whether full information was disclosed to all persons. 

Now we have a whole series of rules, the Administrative Procedures 
Act, requirements of the Constitution as far as due process, we have 
requirements of the Commission's own rules. 

Are you going to tell us that any of these requirements are satisfied 
by the simple filing of a letter on questions as important as this before 
the Commission which goes into one place, which is not and does 
not really come to the attention of the Commission in the course 
of their deliberations on the ma,tter ~ 

Mr. HYDE. There obviously should have been some reference to the 
ownership matter in the extension but I would urge upon you that 
the ownership file is a public file. The Commission is on notice of 
material that is in the agency. 

Mr. DINGELL. In theory it is on notice. In fact, in this particular 
case it was not on notice. 

Mr. HYDE. I'm sorry-- _ 
Mr. DINGELL. I said in theory it is on notice by the filin g of the 

paper but in fact it was not so on notice. A large percentage of the 
staff down there who were responsible for the transaction were not 
a ware of the fact that the document was filed. 

It appears that you have rather poor housekeeping do,rn 1 hr re in 
that the staff's left hand does not know what the r ight han d is doing. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman, before the Commission too k any action 
either on the extensions or the assignment it- " ·as -f 11 ll_y aclv ised as 
to the contract. 

!l7--537-69- pt . 1- 17 
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Mr. Moss. Mr. Lishman, you may proceed. 
Mr. LISHMAN. My original question was intended to elicit the 

date on which the Commission first learned that Overmyer had no 
intention of fulfilling his construction obligations and operating the 
stations; 

That substantial liens had been filed against his organizations in the 
fall of 1966, which should have been disclosed in extension applications 
in Atlanta and Pittsburgh; 

That these liens impaired the permittees' financial stability and 
would precluce fulfillment of their financial representations and this 
should have been disclosed in the Atlanta and Pittsburgh extension 
application; 

That Overmyer intended and had already made arran~ements to sell 
the five construction permits. This should have been disclosed in his 
Atlanta and Pittsburgh application; 

That a buyer for the five construction permits had been found: a 
stock purchase agreement executed on March 28, 1967, and $1 million 
received as a downpayment with respect thereto. This should ha,·e 
been disclosed in his applications :for extension with respect to Cincin­
nati and Houston, which were filed 1 day after the execution of the 
stock purchase agreement and prior to his filing of any contract with 
,the Commission, and in the San Francisco application which was filed 
22 days after the March 28 transaction; 

That a $3 million loan agreement had been consummated with the 
proposed construction permit assignee on March 28, 1967. This should 
have been disclosed in the Cincinnati and Houston applications which 
were filed 1 day after the execution of the loan agreement, and in the 
San Francisco application which was filed 22 days thereafter; 

That all of the permittees' stock had been pledged as collateral secu­
rity :for funds extended pursuant to the stock purchase and loan agree­
ment. This should have been disclosed in the Cincinnati and Houston 
applications which were filed, as I said, 1 day after the execution of 
the stock pledge agreement and in the San Francisco application 22 
days thereafter; 

That ,$1½ mi~lion was received pursuant to the loan agreement on 
May 3, 1967. This should have been disclosed in the Cincinnati, Hous­
ton, and San Francisco applications, all pending at this date. 
~ ow ,the thr~st of ~y question is, where you have such serious indi­

cations that this applicant was no longer going to be in business which 
was not disclosed in his applications for extension on :form 701 'where-
. 't. d "H h ' m. 1: 1s _state : . _ave t ere; be~n any changes in this information sub-
mitted m the origmal application for construction permit, any amend­
~ent thereto ?r modi_fication thereof since filing? If the answer is yes,. 
~1ve the p~rticulars m the space below." And Mr. Overmyer and his 
mterests did not sup:ely that in:format!on, my question is, ·why not '? 

Mr. HYDE. Well, 1t 1s my underi=ltandmO' that he had filed certain in­
formation in connection with our ownership records of which the Com­
mission would be on notice. 

Now I a,m not in a position at this moment to analyze your question. 
I would have to have the specific information about these various 
applications. 

Mr. LrsHMAN. This is already in our record from •the testimonv and 
documents. I wish to point out that it is a fact that in the Olev"elancl 
Broadcasting Co. case, in the Central Broadcasting Corp. case and in 

the Gordon Sherman case the Com1:nission ruled that the filing of a, con­
trac~ under rule 1.613 does not satisfy the mandate of rule 1.65 which 
reqmres an amendment of the extension application itself in order that 
the Commission may have it directly. 

Are those citations still in :force? 
Mr. HYDE. I presume you are correct. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Otherwise, what would be the purpose of rule 1.65? 
Mr. HYDE. The purpose of rule 1.65 is to assure the Commission is 

fully advised as to th~ applicant's circ~unstances when _he_ is applying 
for some new author1zat1on of any lnnd. The Comn11ssion also has 
accessto other records in its files. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I also wish to point out that according to the testi­
mony of Mr. Saady yesterday none of the extension applications filed 
b_y: O".'erm_yer were known, at least t o the persons working on the ap­
phcat10n :for transfer ,approval, until June 30. 

Now, isn't that a rather unusual situation? 
Mr. HYDE. vVe expe1 to be advised of all interests of an applicant 

who has a case before u~ a,t the time we act. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Why 'shouldn't the persons who process extensions 

and renewa}s have some knowledge 0£ what had been in the contract 
fi ~es and brmg that t<;> the attenition of the Commission, particularly in 
view of the substantial nature of this tra.nsaction involving five con­
struction permits in the top 25 markets? 

Mr. HYDE. I 1think they should. 
Mr. LrsHMAN. Why didn't they? 
~fr. HrnE. I don't know. 
Mr. LISHMAN. ·when did the Commission, itself first know of the 

March 28, 1961, transaction? ' 
Mr, HYDE. Well, such matters are usually reported in the trade press. 

I t~nk there has been a grea;t deal of discussion of the Overmyer 
pro1ect as an ruttempt to establish a fourth network, the difficulties he 
encount.ered. 

There is t~sually ~ news item in the several specified reporting services 
and magai,;mes which report--

M_r. Mos~. That is e_vasive, Mr. Chairman. You are supposed to have 
official notice. How did you get official notice? 

Mr. HYDE: Our official notice wo~ld_ be the filing of the contract in 
the ownerslnp records of the Comm1ss10n. 

Mr. Moss. I don't think it is necessary for you to start talking about 
~tu:ff you may or may not have read. If you want to talk about specific 
item~ you have read and the dates, go ahead, but let us not have this 
evasive answer . 
. Mr. H YDE. The le:tter w~ich Mr. Rawson had awhile ago would give 
the data, of the official notice to the Commission. 

Mr. Moss. That is fine. 
I suppose it_ t~lls who ?n your sta~ :Vas actually working on it , this 

becomes r~pet1tious and 1t becom~s tirrn~ to_ you and it cer,tainl~· does 
to me, but the man who was workmg on 1t didn't even know it existed. 
. Your files appare~tly are i:ot c_ross-ind_exed. Amendments to a ppl ica-

tlons are not filed_ with applications. It 1s ?' m?st unique filing system. 
M~. ~YDE. I thmk amendments to applications are associated with 

applicrutions. 
Mr. Moss. Was it in this case? 
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~fr. HYDE. There is provision for filing ownership info1111ation sepa• 
rate from applications. 

Mr. Moss. This refers to 1.65 amendments giving you notice of sub­
stantive change in the financial condition of the applicant. 

Mr. HYDE. I will agree that there ought to have been an appropriate 
reference in the applications for extension to the filing of material in 
the ownership file. 

The fact it wasn't there does not mean that the Commission would 
not be on notice. 

Mr. Moss. This case is unique--
Mr. HYDE. This case is really not unique. This is one case out of 

many applications for UHF, many applications for consent to assign­
ment of license. This is the case of where an applicant who had a bona. 
fide interest so far as m1y information that has been brcught to light 
l1as shown-- -

Mr. Moss._ The _staff y_es~erday agreed this was unique in every re­
spect. The dissentrng opmion, and I want to congratulate the gentle­
man who wrote it, found it to be a most unusual case. 

You may cite another transfer where there was a loan agreement 
and the application-- , 

Mr. HYDE. No two of them are alike. 
Mr. Moss. The top 50 rule was violated. You can't give me another 

one~ 
Mr. HYDE. Yes, I can. There are several cases where applica1tions 

for assignment were approved. No two of them are exactly alike. 
Mr. DINGELL. I am mud1 troubled about one thing. Are you telling 

us, Mr. Chairman, that this committee is to assume that yo11 feel satis­
fied the requirements of due process and good administration down 
there in the FCC are fully met if you are informed through the trade 
press about circumstances rather than through formal filings before 
your Commission? 

That is the distinct impression I got from the colloquv vou had with 
Mr. Moss, that you were satisfied with what you rea0d 0 in the trade 
press about the business affairs of Overmyer. 

Mr:HYDE. That is not what I stated at all. The chairn1an asked me 
when did I first learn of this Overmyer contract. I could not tell him 
pre~ise~y when I first learne<;l of it. For purposes of the Commission's 
official mterest we learned of 1t when the contract was filed. 

_Mr. Mos~. The q1'.estion was put to you by the counsel of the com­
mittee and 1t was qmte cleiar·ly in the context of when did vou first o·ain 
official notice. • ,... 

Mr. HYDE. I answered that, Congressman. 
Mr. Moss. You answered it with a widespread discussion of your 

reading of the trade press. · 
Mr. HYDE. Congress Moss, I did not give my readino- of the trade 

press as the official notice to the Commission. i cited th~ letter ,d1ich 
Mr. Rawson said. 

Mr. Moss. "\Vill you please continue, Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. Lrs~lVIAN. I wm'.ld like to get back and attempt to complete 

some que;st10ns concernmg Overmyer's acquisition of the permits in 
the first mstance. We have alreadr had considerable testimony on it. 
Members of 1~he FCC staff h_av~ t?stified that they relied on a $1 million 
0Yermyer vv arehouse Co. 1Iqmd1ty as a resource to back up the finan-

.:..·uv 

cial capacity of Overmyer to unclerbtke the construction and operation 
of these sta,tions. 

I would like to 1ask, how much of this $1 million was actually avail­
able for communication~ company purposes? 

Is there anyone here than can answer that? 

FURTHER 'I'ESTTMONY OF MARTIN I. LEVY, CHIEF, BROADCAST 
F ACILI'l'I'ES, FEDiE.RAL COMidUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

l\1j·~ LEVY. I am Martin Levy, Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I have a number of questions alono- this same line 

so I, assume I may be asking yo'.1 a considerable numb~r of questions. ' 
.:\u·. LEVY. My re~oll~ction 1s, _Mr. Lishman, that Mr. Ornrmyer 

through Mr. Adams, m fact, committed aJl the assets of the D. I-I. Over­
myer vVarehouse Co. Affiliates. 

}fr. LISHMAN. With respect fo the workino- capital situation--
M L "'\T • • b r. EVY. _1_ es, su·; a,re you talkmg about the 1964 balance sheet or 

the 1965 balance sheet? , 
:\fr. LISHMAN. 1964 .. , 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir, 1964; about $1 million in liquid assets. 
Mr. LISHMAN. How much of that cash was actually available for the 

use of the communications companies? 
Mr. L10vY. ,Ve don't knmv. Of course, what I said was that Mr. Over­

myer through Mr. Adams purported to commit all of the assets of the 
D. H. Ornrrnyer vVarehouse Co. Affiliates. 

"\~Tc haYe no knmTledge o:f any specific asset that micrh t· have been 
ava:l~ble. The balanc(-i sheet did indicate, however, a liquidity of about 
a million dollars. 

;rvrr. LISHMAN. You _reli~d on that liquidity as being available ap­
plicable to the com1;rnmcat10ns company's enterprise? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sn·; because of Mr. Adams' commitment. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVould it not be important to 1ascertain whether some 

of that cash had to_ be used to guarantee warehouse construction? 
Mr. LEVY. That is not a normal practice. 

. Mr. LISIHIAN. How can you say that you relied on $1 million liquid­
~ty when you don't know whether that million dolla,rs was committed 
m several other directions? 

. Mr. LEyT. B_e?ause that is wlmt ~1:r. Overmyer relied upon to show 
his financml 1tb1hty. 

M~-. ::P
0
1N~:ELL. Just a minute. A~en't you on very vital questions of 

public u.t~r~st suppose~ to_ go behm~ what Mr. Overmyer relies upon 
a~d a~cer~a,m wheth~r m fact the ~h!1gs made b.y _:Mr. Overmyer are 
tn:e, r~le,ant, and g1v~ the Con11mss1~m a t~·i:e, fair and correct pic­
tuie <:f. ~Ir. Overmyer s actual financial ability to carry ont hi s re-
sponsibility as a licensee? · 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir, we try to. 
. Mr. DINGELL. vVhat did you do to accomplish Jhe oLjective to \\"llich 
rt alludes? 

1~r. L~v~. ~n the sense that Mr. Lishman is ask ing and yo n are 
askmg, we iehed upon these balance sheets that were submitted. 
fi Mr. DIN<?ELL. That is precisely it. The Lrdanc-e sheels were not veri­

ed or certified; they _were not su?mittecl by a CPA firm. They were 
not based upon appraisals by certified appraisers. 
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They are in the language of the law something which can best 
be denominated as a purely self-serving document, are they not? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. Are you a lawyer? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir, I am. . . . 
Mr. DINGELL. vVould this kind of document be admitted m any kmd 

of proceeding in court? . 
Mr. LEVY. I assume it would if Mr. Overmyer asked that it be 

introduced in evidence. 
Mr. DINGELL. vVhat would this kind of document prove in ~ourt '? 
Mr. LEVY. I don't have to have valuations as to cash, Mr. Dmgell. 

The Commission pl3:ce? no reliance in this case-.-.- . . 1 

Mr. DINGELL. This 1s a hearsay document, is it not? It 1s simp1y 
a self-serving docmnent. 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir, it is a self-serving document. It is a document 
prepared by the Overmyer interests, ohviousl~. . 

Mr. DINGELL. There is nothing there to verify that the appr~isals 
are bottomed on any scrutiny by certified appraisers. There is no 
statement of a certified public accountant as to the accuracy of these 
documents. 

H ow in the name o-f commonsense did you people in the FCC rely 
on them? vY ould you rely on them in a personal trans::iction you were 
going to engage in with Mr. Overm:yer? 

Mr. LEVY. I can't answer that quest10n. 
Mr. DINGELL. I think you can. Would you loan Mr. Overmyer 

$100.000 on the basis of that balance sheet? 
Mi-. LEVY. No, sir, I don't think I could. . . . . 
~fr. DINGELL. You would not but you would give l11m a radio license 

or a television license. Am I correct? 
~fr. LEVY. This is what we did, yes, obviously the Commission did 

give it to him. . . . . , 
Mr. DINGELL. You did that without the vaguest idea what the real 

facts are and as near as I can ascertain no steps were taken by either 
the staff or the Commission itself to find out precisely what the real 
facts were in regard to Mr. Overmyer's worth. . . 

Mr. LEVY. vVe didn't go behind the document submitted m the 
application. 

Mr. DINGELL. You concede you would not loan Mr. Overmyer on it? 
Mr. LEVY. Probably not. 
Mr. DINGELL. Thank you. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did the staff ascertain whether there were any legal 

restrictions on Overmyer's ability to withdraw liquid assets from 
the warehouse compa.nv? 

Mr. LEVY. Not from'the application, no, sir. 
Mr. Moss. "Not from the application, no, sir," is not an adeuuate 

response. Did you make any, was the question. 
Mr. LEVY. The answer is no, sir, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Moss. All right, fine. . . . 
Mr. LISHMAN. Does this balance sheet contam any provis10ns or 

does Overmyer's personal balan?e ~~eet for the same pe_riod c~mta~n 
provisions for the contingent ha:bihty Overmyer was mcurrmg m 
guaranteeing alleged bank loans? 

Mr. LEVY. No, sir. 
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Mr. LISHMAN. Now the staff memo of June 14, 1065, said, and I 
quote, "$4,270,000 in unencumbered physical assets of the assignee 
will be a vaila;ble as a credit source when needed." 

Is that correct? That is the staff memo of June 14, 1965. 
Mr. LEVY. I wasn't responsible for that one, Mr. Lishman. 
:.\fr. LISHMAN. The memo so states, does it not? 

FURTHER TESTIMONY OF JAMES 0. JUNTILLA, DEPUTY CHIEF, 
BROADCAST BUREAU, FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

:.\fr. J UNTILLA. Yes, it does. 
Mr. LISHMAN. On what basis did the staff determine that such an 

amount was presently availa:ble? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. The staff, as Mr. Levy testified, relied on the balance 

sheets and the statements of Mr. Overmyer or Mr. Byrnes. That was 
the basis for it, sir. 

:Mr. LISHMAN. Did 3,ou make anv independent inquiry as to the cor­
rectness of the statem@ts on this uncertified balance sheet? 

~fr. JuNTILLA. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. On what basis did the staff determine that such an 

amount would be available in the future? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. On the basis of the documents that we have discussed. 
:.\fr. LISHMAN. Did the staff attempt to ascertain whether Over­

myer's outside commit~1ents already would affect this $4,270,000? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. No, sir. 
\fr. LISHMAN. Did the balance sheet show that a hold would be put 

on these funds by Overmyer so that they would in fact be available 
for communications company operations as distinguished from his 
other operations? 

~Ir. JuNTILLA. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHlVIAN. vVhat financial statements must an applicant submit 

to the Commission other than those in his original application for the 
permit? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. They must file an annual financial report. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I am talking a:bout an applicant for a construction 

permit. 
),fr. LEVY. He is required to keep the information in the applica­

tion up to date. Other than that he has no obligation to file anything. 
Mr. LISHMAN. 'Since Overmyer was not an applicant or a permittee 

whose station had been operating during the year, he would not have 
to file the annual report that Mr. Juntilla just referred to, would he? 

Mr. LEVY. Thart is correct. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I just wanted to make oe11tain that he was not under 

that obligation. 
Don't you think it would be prudent for the Federal Communications 

Commission to require periodic financial statements from permittees 
not covered by fianancial statement requirements in order to keep itself 
apprised of the changes which occur? 

Mr. JuNTILLA. Perhaps so. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Could we have an answer on this point from the 

Commission as well, please? 
Mr. HYDE. I see no reason why we should make any demand beyond 

what we already have. 
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Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it a fact in this case that if the FCC had re­
quired periodic financial staJtements from Overmyer there would have 
been no question that they would have been almost contemporaneously 
apprised of his March 28 transaction wherein he entered into an ar­
rangement for $4 million to dispose of these construction permits? 

Mr. HYDE. "\Ve were contemporaneously advised about his change. 
"\Ve got the notice when he filed his contract. 

Mr. LISHMAN. But the persons who prepared the staff memo on 
which the Commission relied testified yesterday they did not know 
about this un:til June 30, 1967, when Overmyer filed his application 
for transfer approval. 

Mr. HYDE. 1Ve11, they should have known. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vV ell, they didn't know. 
Mr. HYDE. The Commission was fully advised before they came 

to the point where t he~ took any action. . . . . 
Mr. LISHMAN. Agam I come back, when did the Comm1ss10n itself 

lmow? I am not talking about official notice. vVhen did the Commission 
:itself know tha:t this transaction occurred? 

Mr. HYDE. At the 1time they would be making decisions. 
Mr. LISHMAN. That would be when? In December? 
Mr. HYDE. You have the dates before you, I presrnne. 
Mr. Moss. You ought to have them, too, Mr. Chairman. You shmnlcl 

be here prepared to respond to questions. 
Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, the staff has been raking over this 

thing for 6 months. During thait period we have had our full ·weight 
of administrahive d1:uties to do. 

Mr. Moss. During ,that same 6 months this committee has been 
working over it, too, and we have had our full weight of congressional 
duties. These are part of those duties just as supplying information to 
the Congress of the United States is a part of your duties. 

Mr. HYDE. Aren't you asking a good deal when you ask me to 
remember every date of Commission action on these? We handle 
hundreds of cases. 

Mr,, Moss. I think if you were ,appearing before the committee to 
obtain an additiona;l grant of authority or before the Appropriations 
Committee :for an add]tional dollar you would have a carefully indexed 
book. You would have been briefed so precisely that you could respond 
to any question. 

It is convenient here to delay and not answer. 
Mr. HYDE. I suggest that these question are asking for very obscure 

information and that it is unreasonable to expect that the chairman 
of the agency would have detailed answers to each one of these 
questions. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Lishman, there is no need to pursue further this 
line of questions with the Chairman. The record of this hearing is so 
abundantly clear. It is a record upon each member of ,the committee 
can comment, can make findings, conclusions, and recommendations, I 
think for thait purpose it is adequate. 

I suggest you move on to the next subject. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I will just go back to the balance sheets of August 

31, 1964, and August 31, 1965, submit,ted to the Commission in substan­
tiation of the financial capacity of the applicant to 00nstn10t . and 
operate a station. 

I would ask the quest·ion of Mr. Levy. I wish to poilllt out ,that in 
the 1964 balance sheet of the Overmyer vVarehouse Co. & Affiliates 
it shows the total long-term debt at $8,760,000. It also shows the current 
por,tion of this debt as $237,000. 

Do you follow that? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
.:\Ir. LISHJHAN. That is 0.27 percent of the total debt. Is that correct? 
.:\fr. LEVY. Yes, sir. I will take your word for t hat. 
Mr. LISHMAN. N o,v, turning to the August 31, 1965, balance sheet, 

it shows the total long-term debt increased to $25,585,494.67. Is that 
correct? 

Afr. LEVY. Tl.at is right. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now the current portion of ,this debt has incrE1asecl 

to only $450,000 or 0.017 percent of the total debt. 
My question is whether there is anyone here who can explain why 

the required debt-amortization would be lmver for $25.6 million than 
irt "·oulcl be for $8,760,000 ~ 

Mr. LEVY. I couldn'.t explain that, sir. I think only Mr. Overmyer 
could. -

:'11r. LISHMAN. Did the Commission itself or its staff raise any 
question as to this very unusual situation? 

Mr. LEVY. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Doesn't it strike you as being extremely unusual? 
}fr. LEVY. I am not an expert in the amortization of long-term debt. 

sir. I couldn't answer that question . 
.:\Ir. LISHMAN. According to the figures on the balance sheet it 

wonld take approximately 33 years, would it not, to amortize the $8.76 
million and i,t would take 70 years to amortize the $25.6 million? 

}fr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Don't you think that is an unusual enough situa,tion 

that t he staff itself could have made an inquiry into it? 
Mr. LEVY. The staff didn't make an inquirv, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVhy didn't they? • 
~fr. :1,EvY. I ,t apparently was not caught up in this balance sheet 

or 1t did not appear unusual to the people who looked at it. 
Mr. LISHMAN. The Commission has to rely to a large degree be­

cause of the volume of business as you well know, upon the expertise 
of the staff. It seems to me you would not have to be ,an expeiit 
accountant to pick this out. 
. Mr. LEVY. T]rn Commission relied upon the truthfulness, the verac­
ity of the applicant who filed this and took it at face value. . 

Mr. LISHMAN. How could this statement be truthful? 
Mr. LEVY. Sir, it was filed under the certification of the application. 

It was assumed by the Commission to be truthful. Insofar as we 
kno,v, it is true. 

M~·· Moss. Assuming the truthfulness of it, the very period of time 
reqm~ed on the face of the balance sheet certainly should have raised a 
question as to reasonableness. It does not appear to me th~it it is normal 
to have 10- _or 15-year amortization periods for a com mercial-type 
loan or fundmg. 

Mr. LEVY. The previous one was over a 30-year amortizaJtion, Mr. 
Congressman. 

Mr. Moss. I realize that counsel has commented on that. 
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Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. The answer is that it was not analyzed by the 
staff. That is the only answer I can give yo_u. 

Mr. Moss. Do you regard that as a responsible role by the staff when 
it fails to a,nalyze? 

Mr. LEVY. I don't think that the staff is able to analyze in minute 
detail every item. 

Mr. Moss. This is not minor. TI1is is very substantive. 
nifr. LEVY. I can't answer other than I have. The main reliance on 

this balance sheet was on the current and liquid assets, not on the 
fixed assets. 

Mr. DINGELL. If you will yield, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Dingell. 
Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Overmyer's personal balance sheet, which was un­

questioned by the FCC at the tim~ in question a~ I understand it-­
Mr. LEVY. To my knowledge, it was not relied upon at all, Mr. 

Dingell, the personal balance sheet. 
Mr. DINGELL. It was not? 
Mr. LEVY. No, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. It showed he had $962.14. 
Mr. LEVY. I am aware of that. vVe did not rel,r: on that. 
Mr. DINGELL. It showed he had over $5 million in unappraised 

closed corporation stock. 
Mr. LEVY. And we didn't rely upon that. 
Mr. DINGELL. You agree, however, though, that stock in a closely 

held corporation is impossible to evaluate, actually? 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. 
Mr. DINGELL. And, indeed, experts on vVall Street reviewing the 

same closely held corporation can arrive at very, very different esti­
mates as to its value? 

Mr. LEVY. Yes. 
Mr. DINGELL. Of course, no such estimates were presented to the 

Commission here. You also agreed in connection with Mr. Overmyer 
and his personal balance sheet that no provision was made for con -
tingent liabilities, personal guarantees securing bank loans totaling at 
least $2.7 million. 

Am I correct? 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. 
Mr. DINGELL. In the warehouse company balance sheet there are 

a number of circumstances that I want to explore. There is an un­
labeled surplus of some $5 million. 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. We don't rely upon surplus, either. 
Mr. DINGELL. You did not? 
Mr. LEVY. No, sir. 
Mr. DINGELL. Here he shows a liquidity of a million dollars, but with 

restrictions imposed on present or future use of construction permits 
undetermined. 

It also showed increase in real estate mortgages from $8.7 million 
in 1964 to $25 million in 1965 with no corresponding increase in amor­
tization to pay off the debt. And no support was rendered for ap­
praised value of assets. 

Isn't this remarkable under such circumstances? 
Mr. LEVY. It is a remarkable balance sheet. 
Mr. DINGELL. It is. 
Thank you, Mr. Lishman. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I would like to go fort_her into the balance sh_eet 
because I understand the witness has testi?-e~ that the cash posit10n 
shown therein was relied upon by the Com!-mss10n. 

Mr. LEVY. On the liquid position; yes, sir. 1 • 

Mr. LISI-IMAN. The 1964 balance sheet shows cash at $1,660,000 ; is 
that correct? 

Mr. LEVY. That is correct. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it correct that the 1965 balance sheet shows 

$2,262,000? 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. . . 

-Mr. LISHMAN. How much of thJS cash was available for TV 
construction? 

Mr. LEVY. I can't answer that, sir. As I said before-­
Mr. LISHMAN. You said you relied on it. 
Mr. LEVY. Overmyer committed the ,v:areho~1sc,_the warehouse assets. 
Mr. LISHMAN". Did you make any mvestiga~10n to find out how 

much of that cash co\lld be used for TV construct1011 ? 
Iv[r.LEvY.No,sir. , . . , .h. 
Mr. LrsHMAN. Diel you make any mqmry as to how m~uch or t is 

cash was encumbered with warehouse construction lor-tns. 
Mr. LEVY. No, sir. . . , 
Mr. LISHMA:N". Isn't it a £act that tlns cash was obtamed from wans 

for ,varehouse construction? 
Mr. LEVY. I don't know, sir. . . 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did you make any inqmry to ascertam that? 
Mr. LEVY. No, sir. . 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVhat reliance did you place upon Overm:yers repre­

sentation that he had money availabl~ for TV construct10n ? , 
Mr. LEVY. Upon his own r_epres~ntation~ to that effect f!,nd the bal­

ance sheet that we are d1scussmg which shows on its face no 
encumbrance. . 

Mr. LISHMAN. Turning to the costs of financing the Houston penrnt, 
do you have those. . . . , 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. vVhat are you referrmg to, Mr. Lishman 1 
Mr. LISHMAN. In the figures submitted on this-- . . 
Mr. LEVY. Is this in the memorandum to the Comm1ss10n you are 

speaking of? . 
Mr. Moss. Will you identify th~ do~ument, Mr. Lish_m~n ? . 
Mr. LISHMAN. It is in the apphcat10n to the Comm1ss10n. It 1s also 

in the memo. 
Mr. Moss. Is this for the sale? · 
Mr. LISHMAN. This is for the acquisition of the Hous~on statio_n. 
Mr. LEVY. This was an application for a new con~truct10n penmt. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is it a fact that in connection with the I-Ionston 

application construction costs less equipment credit came to $34.n.ooo? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. That first-year operating expense was s11bm itl1'1l as 

$320,000? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Now, is it also true that there should be n,dd,cl to 

these costs equipment installment payments, intere. t, and bank in­
terest, and that would amount to approximately $297,000? 

Mr. LEVY. I think that is probably right, sir. I think in this case 
that that was not added. 
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Mr. LISHMAN. But you admit that those are items of cost, don't you? 
Mr. LEvY. Yes. We_ would ordinarily add them. . . , 1 . 
Mr. LISHMAN. Addmg $297,000 to the figures ,vh1ch ,,,ere t;Uum1tted, 

that ,vould make a cost of $957,000? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir. . . 11 b 
1\fr. LISHMAN. Now on financing it was mchcated there ,vou c e 

a bank loan of $550,000? 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. 
Mr. LISHMAN. And a warehouse loan of $250,000? 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. 
M:r. LISIBIAN. That makes a total o:f $800,000? 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. . . 
Mr. LISHMAN. Hmv were they going to rnake up the deficit be-

tween the $057,000 cost and $800,000 financing! . . . 
Mr. LEvY. I think the memo to the Comnnss1on mchcates that we 

:felt that the balance sheet indicated that Mr. Overmyer would be able 
to make up anything necessary above what we :found he had actually 
committed. 

Mr. DINGELL. I:f you will yield. Didn't you just get done telling me 
that you did not ·rely at all on Mr. Overmyer's personal balance 
sheet? 

1\fr. LEVY. Not on his personal balance sheet. 
Mr. DINGELL. ·what did you rely upon? 
Mr. LEVY. On his warehouse balance sheet. 
Mr. DINGELL. You did not rely on his personal baJar~ce sheet at al~? 
Mr. LEVY. No, sir. In no instance did the Commisswn rely on l11s 

personal balance sheet. · 
Mr. LISHMAN. 1\fr. Levy, wasn't the extent o:f the Overmyer ware­

house commitment an agreement to make a $250,000 loan '? 
Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir: it was in this instance. 
l\fr. LISHMAN. Do you know the reason why the equipment install­

ment payments and interest and interest on bank loa,ns were not shown 
in the staff memorandum, the FCC staff memorandum? 

Mr. L,EVY. Yes, sir. vVe went into that. Jt appears it was sim_ply 
an oversight. At that time we were changing :from the 3-month reqmre­
ment that the Commission previously had to the requirement of 1 year. 

Apparently in preparing the item there was some confusion and 
that vrns missed. At this point that is the only answer I can give. vVe 
did go back over it and tried to figure out, we discovered it had been 
missed and we tried to figure out why. 

The on1v answer we could come up with was that in the confusion 
of changi1Jg over from one policy to another it was missed. 

Mr. LrsnMAN. I would like to know in connection with the bank 
loan representing the $555,000, did the Southern National Bank letter 
o:f January 1965, which I believe was submitted to you--

:i\fr. LEvY. Yes, sir; I have a copy o:f it. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Did that letter meet the requirement o:f section 3, 

form 314? 
Mr. LEVY. Not explicitly; no. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Do you think it met the requirements of the reason­

able assurance test? 
Mr. LEVY. Under today's standards the answer would be no. Under 

the standards that were being applied at that time, yes. 

~01 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did that bank loan letter state what the r ate of 
interest would be and the date for the beginning of any amortization'? 

Mr. LEVY. No, sir; it did not. 
Mr. LISI-IMAN. Didn't that letter also provide that any arrange­

ments would be subject :further to Mr. Ovcnnyer's "substantiating the 
principal assets in a mrmner and form satisfactory to us?" 

Mr. LEVY. Yes, sir; it did. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVould you construe that language as indicating a 

commitment? 
J\fr. LEVY. No, sir; I would not. 
Mr. LISHMAN. ·vvhat did this language mean? 
Mr. LEVY. At the time we felt there was some indication of the 

ability of Mr. Overmyer to get a loan from this bank in this amount. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Are you a,vare that in response to a letter from 

the subcommitt~e, the Southern National Bank advised with re.spe(' t to 
this so-called letter of commitment, and I will quote :from the bank 
letter: "Inasmuch as ~fr. Ovennyer's statement reflected a substanti,d 
investment in a cJoseJy held interrelated company we would ha rn re­
quired a certified statement substantiating the principal assets of 
Mr. Overmyer and his company." 

Are you familiar with that response? 
Mr. LEVY. I don't believe I have seen it but it sounds reasonable. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVhy do banks have higher standards than the 

Federal Communications Commission? Isn't the Federal Communi­
ca:tiom Commission in ,1 position o:f fiduciarv relationship so :far as 
the public interest jg concerned ? • 

Mr. HYDE. Mr. Chairman, may I answer that question? 
Mr. Moss. Wait a moment. 
Mr. LEVY. I can't answer the question, Mr. Moss. 
Mr. HYDE. I would like to try. 
Mr. Moss. Do you want the chairman to respond to your question? 
Mr. LISHMAN. Yes, sir; that would be fine. 
Mr. ):IYDE. ·when you make applications a;t the bank :for a loan you 

:ire askmg: :for cr~dit and the bank. in p_rotection o:f its depositors and 
m protection of its stockholders likewise must have some assurance 
that the loan will be repaid. 
. An applica,nt before the Commission is not applying :for a loan. He 
1s U:PPlymg for an opportunity to risk his capital in develop ing a 
busmess. 

As I told you in a previous hearing, if the Commission waid·ecl to 
mak~ the requirement of financial ability as strict as, :for instlrn ('\\ t liP 
reqmrement :for a loan of fw1ds, we could require a showino· 1 h:tl I lw y 
have money on hand sufficient to build a station and to op; ra t l' it ro·r 
3 years. 

If we did that we would preclude the entry into bnsi,wss or ,111 ~ ,,, 
cept the rich, the wealthy and so fo11th. · 

:Mr. 1\foss. Mr. Chairman, I do not want to apprnr 11111"1': 1. ·1111 :il ,J,. 111• 
arbitrary. You have given us that exp1'a.nation bcfol'< ' .. 

Th~ committee is quite conversant with thn il,•111 1111' 111•1il 11 ·1111 1 , 
applymg for and the na;ture of the ri sk. IL is :il .-o i11f1•1"1 ·-, f, ·d i,, 1111 1 
the Commission adopts certain rules, reg-ul:tli o11 H, 1111d J111l i,•i ,, 11 11 :1 
then proceed~ to operate in contrave11tio11 or I li rn,1• 1'111 1"· 111 1.J 1,11111 ·1,• 
. '.fo that pomt counsel has been :cdd l'<'ss i 11 g- I, iH q 11 1·. f i111 1, ,111.J I 11, , ,ii 
1t 1s unnecessary to have--
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Mr HYDE May I make this observation: He wants to know whY: a 
ba~'~ examination would be more strict ~han the FCC's. The precise 
answer is that with the bank you are as~mg for a loan. At the Coi_n­
mission you are asking for an opportunity to try your skills and re-
sources in developing-- . . 

Mr. Moss.you want assurance that the applicant will be able to con-
struct ,and operate? 

Hr. HYDE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. Moss. You are asking for some prudent ass~rance. 
Mr. HYDE. I think we o·ot reasonable assurance m all of these cases. 
Mr. Moss. Again, Mr.'bhairman, we_ stand on ~he record. T~e record 

is available to the committee to make its conclusions and findmgs and 
to base its recommendations. . 

Mr. Lishman, you may go ahead and proceed to your next question._ 
11,fr. LISHMAN. Isn't it correct that as a result o:f th_e Overmyer 

guar antee of the $550,000 bank loan for :1{ousto~ a1;1-d h1~ g~arante~ 
of bank loans for the three other stat10ns: Cmcmnati, $400,000, 
Atlanta, $400,000; Pittsburgh, $350,000, ~nd Toledo, $500,000, th at 
bank loan guarantees would total approximately $2,200,000. Is that 
correct? 

Mr. J uNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
1fr. LISHMAN. What figure on either o! th~ balance sheets, Over-

myer's personal one of August 31, 19647 or for his_ wareh.~.rnse, at Au£:~st 
31, 1964, supports his ability to prov1de for tlus contmgent liability 
of $2,200,000. . . · , d 7\,1" L . hn .-

1fr. J uNTILLA. N othmg more than we have testifie to, 1.ur. 1s tlan, 
on the balance sheets and the statements of the bank the~ were p re­
pared to loan funds under certain circumstances as set out m the bank 
letters. d 0 

Mr. LISHMAN. Now, in the staff memo reference _was ma e to v~r-
myer's balance sheet of July 15, 1965, and also to his personal commit­
ment and the commitment of his warehouse company? 

Mr. J UNTILLA. Yes. . . 
Mr. ,LISHMAN. "i¥here in the record are any documents contammg 

these personal guarantees by Overmyer_? . 
Mr. LEVY. In the application there is a letter signed by., Mr. Over­

mver as president of the D. H. Overmyer 'Warehouse Co. and ad­
dressed to the D. H. Overmyer Broadcasting Co. . 

Mr. LISHMAN. He is addressing himself as president of one company 
to himself as president of an?ther _company. . 

Mr. LEVY. He was addressmg lumself to the attention of Mr. Adams, 
the executive vice president of the broadcasting company. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Is that for the $250,000? 
Mr. LEVY. That is for the $250,000. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I am asking for the $2 million. Where do we have an 

unlimited commitment to cover this? -
Mr. LEVY. There was a more general commitment by Mr. Adams, I 

believe. Not in the Rosenberg application, of course. Now you are n~t 
just talking about ~he financial commitments for the Rosenberg appli­
cation, you are talkmg about more than that. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Talkmg about the total; yes. 
Be:fore you testify, may I ask you to recognize that the Adams let-

ter does not cover Houston. 
Mr. LEVY. That is right. 

... vu 

Mr. JuNTILLA. In connection with the .San Francisco application, I 
believe a statement was made that they were prepared to use the assets 
of the warehouse companies to the extent necessary to effectuate their 
proposal. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Why wasn't the same kind of guarantee obtained 
with respect to Houston j 

Mr. J UNTILLA. The guarantee was toward that particular one. In 
H ouston the guarantee was toward that particular one. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Doesn't the staff refer to all the assets of Overmyer 
as _backing up this commitment I 

Mr._ JuNTILLA. We made a resume in the item showing the various 
commitments. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I still haven't been able to find any indication that 
b-ank loans aggregating $2,200,000 and personally guaranteed by 
Overmyer were committed to these stations. 

Mr. JuNTILLA~ I believe in each one of the bank letters there is a 
statement that after r~view of his financial statement or contino-ent on 
a later review in some,9f the letters that the bank loans would be ~ade. 

:'\fr. LISHMAN. Turning to San Francisco, is it a fact--
Mr. Moss. Let us clear this up because ther.e has just been a state­

ment made that I don't think accords with the facts as set forth in the 
let ters from the bank. 

I_ don'~ recaU any bank saying that it would make a loan. I recall 
their sayrng that they had further requirements and if those require­
ments were satisfied they would then extend credit. 

::\fr. JuNTILLA. Yes, I believe that was the hallmark of several of the 
bank letters. 

Mr. Moss. I recall an exception to thrut hallmark. 
Mr. DINGELL. As a matter of fact, you gentlemen will recall the very 

lengthy colloquy between Mr. Hyde and myself on that point on which 
we generally agreed that this was not something which constituted 
an~ agreement or c~m~itment by the banks to in any way take any 
act10n on a loan apphcat10n by Mr. Overmyer except to consider it. 

Mr. JuNTILLA. I think we conceded on several hank loans there was 
not a firm commitment; yes, sir. 

Mr. DINGELL. Thank you. 
Mr .. LrsHMAN. The _last station I would like to go into concerns 

financmg at San Franc1sco. 
In a CP application for that city, is it correct that it shows cost of 

construction less equipment credit, at $135,000? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. And fir~t-year operating expenses of $400,000 ? 
Mr. J UNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Does it show equipment installment payments, 

$91,000? 
Mr. ,JuNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Interest on equipment and bank loans, $65,000. 
Mr. J UNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
:;\fr. LISHMAN. Total of $691,0001 
J\fr .• TuNTILLA. Yes, sir. . 
Mr. LISHMAN.Now the financing. Capitalization, $50,000 ~ 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Corwin loan, $80,000! 
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Mr. JuNTILLA, Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Total of $605,000? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. How was the difference between the $691,000 cost and 

the $605,000 financing provided? 
Mr. JuNTILLA. In the item, Mr. Lishman, in appendix A, there is a 

wrap-up of all of the six Overmyer proposals and a]so in the text there 
is a description of the process which led to the conclusion that he ,Yas 
financially qualified. 

It shows that in addition to the specific bank letters and equipment 
credits that reliance was placed on the ·warehouse assets that we have 
been speaking of and also an assumption was made that it would not 
be unreasonable to expect the six stations in maj or markets to generate 
total first-year revenues of $1 million which would assume about $160,-
000 per station. 

This was the process by which financial qualifications were arrived 
at. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Isn't it a fact that the application attempted to show 
$400,000 of estimated first-year revenues? 

Mr. ,T UNTILLA. I think that is correct ; yes, sir . 
Mr. LISHMAN.Was that accepted by the Commission? 
~fr. JuNTILLA. No, sir. 
Mr. LISHMAN. vVhy was it rejected? 
Mr. J UNTILLA. It was felt that there was not a sufficient basis made 

for the projection of that amount. 
Mr. LISHMAN. 11/hat would a reasonable basis be for projecting that 

amount? · 
Mr. J uNTILLA. The staff made the projection which I adverted to of 

roughly $160,000 per station. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I have no further questions on this station. 
Mr. Moss. This concludes the questioning on the stations themselves. 

vVe will suspend for just a few moments while I consult with counsel. 
The committee will now stand in recess until 2 o'clock. 
(Whereupon, at 11 :20 a.m. the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene 

at 2 p.m. the same day.) 
AFTER RECESS 

(The committee reconvened at 2 p.m., Hon. John E. Moss presid­
ing.) 

TESTIMONY OF HON. ROSEL H. HYDE, CHAIRMAN, FEDERAL COM­
MUNICATIONS COMMISSION; ROBERT T. BARTLEY, COMMIS­
SIONER; ROBERT E. LEE, COMMISSIONER; KENNETH A. COX, 
COMMISSIONER; AND NICHOLAS JOHNSON, COMMISSIONER­
Resumed 

Mr. Moss. The committee will be in order. 
Mr. Keith, you are recognized. 
~fr. KEITH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is a pleasant surprise to be 

the first one to have a chance to question the full Commission. 
I read some days ago the opinion of the Commission and the minor­

ity views. I have not had a chance to review it since that time, so mv 
recollection is not as detailed as I would like to have it. • 

. I am not going to_ take the time to try to pi ck and choose from what 
rs here. But I am gomg to try to get a few broad points out in the open 
so that I can understand the atmosphere in which you work and in 
which these decisions were reached. 

_Is there a breakdown of responsibil~ty_ insofar as the various types 
of cases that are heard by the Commiss10n are concerned? In other 
words, has somebody become a specialist in one area, or are you jointly 
interested and jointly responsible? 

Mr. }:IYDE. The Commi s_sioners are all jointly interested and jointly 
responsible. There was a tune when the Comnnssion had divisions but 
for some year? it h'.1s operated as a single administrative body. ' 

There are situations where a committee o:f Commissioners will make 
a special study, but the approving or disapproving of application:; imch 
as these would be a joint matter. 

Mr. ,foHNSON. You might also, Mr. Chairman, want to mention the, 
telephone company. 

Mr. HY~E. vVe have~ T~legraph and Telephone Committee, and it 
has supervised the hearmg m the A.T. & T. investigation. It handles a 
lot of matters by delegation from the Commission. 
. vVe have _had vari?us assignments of Commissioners to handle par­

t icular proJects or Imes of responsibility. Commissioner Cox is cur­
rently our De:fense Commissioner. He handles liaison with the executive 
department on that. 

B~t I _think your question goes to who is re~p_onsible for a finding on 
apphcat10ns such as ~hese we have been exammmg here. 

Mr. ~(EITH. I realize that you are all responsible but I wished to 
ascert~m whet!rnr there w~s any specialization. For' example, on this 
committee I might be considered to be an expert on matters pertaining 
to the SEC, because~ am on a subcommittee which deals with that a rea. 

Mr. HYD~. The_re _is no committee on broadcasting matters as such. 
The whole Comm1ss10n unde_rtakes the responsibility. 

Mr. KE!TH. Another question that concerns me is the horizontal kind 
of ope!·a~10n that you have. The staff does some work and then the 
Commiss10n does some work. The petitioners are supposed to be re­
moved :from those two activities. However there seems to be some 
"' t f '' b b ' . m er ace· etween mem ers of the staff and petitioners. Does that 
mterface e:x;tend to the level of the Commissioners? 

Mr. HYJ?E. There may be a situation where a petitioner on a non­
?on~r?versial mat~er_may have occasion to bring to the attention of an 
i1;1dividual Commissioner, b1;1t that is the exception. In our organiza­
t10n we have bureaus orgamzed to handle the work o:f the three im-
portant divisions of industry. · 

W ~ have our ~roadcast Bureau. They in general will handle matters 
relatmg to that mdustry. 

1Ve have a Common Carrier Bureau--
Mr. ~EITH. I don't w~nt :you t_o elabor~te on it, particularly. 
Now, if y~m have a m1;110~1ty view shapmg up as somcLh in g is d is-

cussed withm the Comm1ss10n, doesn't that put all o:f yo11 on 11 0Licc 
and you say: "1Vell, there is a difference of opinion her·e. 1Vc should 
look into this mo~e closely." 

l\fr: HYDE. This usuaJlt develops _at the time a recornrncnda.t,ion is 
submitted to the Comm1ss10n. Somet1mcs there will be a, divi sion in the 
staff. If so, we will undertake to get the vi ew, , th e d ifferC' nL vi ws of. 
the staff. 

97-.;537--69-,pt. 1-~18 
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Mr. KEITH. On the case we are reviewing here, some very serious 
charges were made, particularly by Commissioner Johnson who filed 
a dis~enting view and, if I recall correctly, he was very critical in his 
openmg sentence of the rest of the Commission. 

He must have felt deeply about this. As you sat around the table 
trying to resolve this problem, you must have made an effort to defend 
your point of view, and he must have made some effort to defend the 
minority view. 

Mr. HYDE. That would be the procedure. It is at the Commission 
meeting where the consideration of views of the several Commissioners 
would take place. 

Mr. KEITH.Under those circumstances, Commissioner Cox, you made 
what _I th_oug~t was an e~tmordinarily well _written justification for 
the mmonty view. H?w did you go about gettmg your facts? How did 
you resolve the questions that must have been in your mind and were 
at variance with those of Mr. Hyde? ' 

I have in m!nd particularly the out-of-pocket ~xpense which seemed 
to be extraordmanly poorly documented, and which would have alerted 
me at once that this whole matter should be studied more closely. 

I. won_dered how you went about satisfying yourself that your mi­
nonty views were well founded. 

Mr. Cox. I proceeded, Congressman Keith, basically on the docu­
ment, the staff report, that was before the Commission and on the 
answers I got from questions to the staff in the course of our delibera­
tions. I did not have the opportunity to dig into the applications them­
selves. It seemed to me, on the face of the analysis that the staff had 
made, that this was the first instance in which we had had this kind of 
effort to establish out-of-pocket expenses. 

Als_o, the met:11-od they ou!l~ned, as I understood it, seemed to be open 
to serious quest10n. The pos1t10n I took was not that I had gone into the 
files an~ really satisfied _myself that the out-of-pocket expenses were 
somethn~g else, but t~at 1t appeared to me that if this was really what 
the appl!cant was domg,_ we clearly needed a hearing to explore this, 
because 1t seemed to me 1t would probably require more than simply 
the analysis and study of the applica.tion to find out what was the actual 
basis. for some of the estimates that went into the out-of-pocket cal­
culations. 

Mr. MITH. It would appear to me that there was a reason for a 
hearing, but to develop this thing did you call any representatives of 
the Overmyer outfit and ask for their justification? 
• Mr. Cox. I did no~ call _them in. I talked a couple of times to counsel 
for Overmyer. I believe m the early stage, when the application had 
be~n filed, Mr .. Overmyer ca~e to my offi~e and undertook to explain 
this. I ~sked him some quest10ns about this matter. I did not get a lot 
of detail thrut _they ha<;l not already supplied. They indicated that much 
of t!iIS material was m the application and indicated that any infor­
mation that the staff wanted additionally they would be happy to 
supply. 

Mr. KEITH. In view of the time that it would take on some other 
aspec!s of this, I would like to have the committee counsel furnish 
me with the statement of figures that were considered to be out-of­
pocket expense and ask you, Mr. Chairman, or Mr. Cox, if your re­
search went as far as, for example, here is an outstanding item. 

I will start the ball rolling and ask what were the legal fees in con­
nection with this a;pplication? 

Mr. Cox. I don't think that that was broken out for us. We were given 
certain lump sum figures, which were described as b-eing-actu-ally ex­
pended by and :for the communications company. They then added an 
even larger sum, whi ch they said was an estimate of services performed 
on a part-time basis by employees in other parts of the Overmyer 
operations. 

Mr. Kmnr. I have seen :L document somewhere that indicated that 
the employees wh o ,rere I i,lrd ,L. those who had done some work had 
tbeir salar ies all oc.:aLt•<l and 11·C'l'c sent lette rs. And I believe 17 or 18 out 
of the 23 rep l iecl t-h:d , Lli r i r r.fl'orts as l'a1· as television stations were con­
cerned were minim al at i>esL, and cerhLinly noLhing justifying the sal­
ary allocation that was conta,ined. 

Is this the information you Jrn l that made you want to have a 
hearing? 

Mr. Cox. No; it was the lack, rea ll y, of p rrcise informa,tion that 
made me feel we should have a hearing. ·we don't reall y have staff 
enough to explore all'<:>£ these things in the fiekl , a. perhaps might be 
desirable. If we are not able to satisfy ourselvc on the basis of the 
information supplied by the parties, we would normally designate the 
matter for hearing, and call witnesses. 

Mr. KEITH. I imagine that the customary thing has to be that you 
don't have hearings or you wouldn't get much done; otherwise you 
would be having hearings all the time. 

In this particular case I have been led to believe by, I think, Mr. 
Hyde that he was pretty lucky to get these interests ,to take over these 
five or six stations and get going with them. Yet I think it was last 
Sunday's New York Times that indicated that the ultrahigh fre­
quency range, let us say, of CC Standard Radio Broadcast is virtually 
used up across the Nation. Only two television channels in the very 
high frequency range and nine TV channels in the ultrahigh fre­
quency range remain unoccupied. 

Mr. HYDE. I did not see that article. 
Mr. KEITrr. The UHF stations referred to are in the 50 top standard 

met ropolitan areas. I do not want to read it out of context. 
Mr. HYDE. I believe all of them were. 
Mr. MITH. So they are in demand, and it would have been, it seems 

to me, in the public interest to have a broader base rather than letting 
priva,te industry dispose of these at will. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman, the demand is not as urgent-- . 
Mr. KEITH. The demand is so good, Mr. Chairman, that they were 

keen to buy them. 
Mr. HYDE. They were sufficiently interested to enter into this arrange­

ment with Overmyer; this is ,true. But the Commission is currently 
sending out notice to a substantial number of UHF permit owners 
putting them on notice that they must undertake the development 
of their stations or show cause why their permits should not be deleted 
because of failure to develop them. 

Mr. K EITH. AVC certainly was very eager to get these. They were 
wil1ing to pay the price equal to the out-of-pocket expenses. 

JV[r. HYDE. Let me say this to you. Suggestion has been made that we 
ought to have had a hearing. If we had hearings in the early instance, 
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,vhere there was some question as to the details of their financial 
resources, this could well delay any construction for years. 

Mr. KEITH. In this salary allocation matter to which I referred a_ 
moment ago, the reported efforts of those who were questioned, a total 
o:f 33 were questioned, and 23 o:f them responded that they had made 
no effort in connection with the radio companies. 

Mr. HYDE. These were apparently questions made by your--
Mr. KEITH. 'iVhen this case began to get hot, when the Congress 

began to inquire into it, when the minority views were expressed, chdn't 
you begin to make some inquiries and recheck yourselves? 

Ivir. HYDE. This case was discussed, according to the markings on 
the agenda items I have before me, on November 8, November 15, and 
November 22. Each ,time the matter was left for further discussion 
until ,the 22d. There was an inquiry made, but it related particularly 
to the identity of the transferees. 

The Commissioners, the majority, were more interested in improving 
their information about the American Vi scose, AVC Corp., which was 
to understake ,the responsibility. There wasn't any great division on the 
allocation o:f cost by Overmyer until Commissioner Cox's dissent came 
out. 

I personally felt that the allocaition on its face was reasonable, and 
I noted in that connection that Overmyer was undertaking to inaugu­
rate a network which was certainly closely related to his interest in 
these applications and permits, did not undertake to charge any of the 
cost of the effort of the network to venture into station construction. 

There was another aspect of this, too, that I would like to mention. 
Mr. KEITH. I have given you a little bit more license to elaborate, 

because I want to give you every opportunity. I must admit from what 
I have seen thus far a lot of things on their face, instead of appearing 
reasonable as you suggest, appear unreasonable. On its face, these 
expenses seem unreasonable to me, particularly when the payroll 
appears <to have been approved by you. 

I would question the source of the information. I wonder if you 
think this payroll on its face is reasonable. It raises a cloud over similar 
petitions. 

Mr. F(YDE. We must, because of the limitations on the staff, place 
lots of reliance on--

Mr. KEITH. You should cover yourself in wri,ting. Probably you 
have. 

But, at any rate, I would like now to get back to Mr. Cox and to Mr. 
Johnson. Gentlemen, Mr. Overmyer is new at this business of process­
ing applications for television stations. He has a counsel, and counsel 
is an old hand. He must have developed a reputation with you people 
for his exper,tise, for the authenticity of what he said, and he must have 
developed a reputation in the field for getting things done for his 
clients. Certainly in this case he appears to have gotten very generous 
treatment for his client. 

Are these expenses, in such large amounts, customary, Mr. Cox? 
Mr. Cox. I would think not. vVe have some sales and transfers or 

permits, even television stations, which go for between $5,000 and 
$20,000, because that was all that was in them. 

In this case we would have expected more than that because, as t o. 
at least two of the stations, some real effort had been made to get them 

on the air so that there w 0 1·e, 1 think, expenditures for sites and for 
equipment. 

But it seemed to me that the claim of in excess of $1,300,000 for out­
o:f-pocket expenses for simply acquirin g five permits and getting them 
no further along than wa::, the case here was excessive on its face. 

I n other cases, where ,ye have h: tcl lesser snms, I have sometimes 
raise<l questions about it because I think we have to be careful to be 
sure that these claims are supported. 

Mr. KEITH. I would think you wou]d. 
I -have people in my district who called me th i. morning ,to inquire 

about your decision to hold up all applications for small r adio stations 
for an indefinite period of time. 

Mr. Cox. Yes. We have put a freeze on new applica,t ions for AM 
radio pending consideration o:f long-range policy there, hrgely be­
cause we think the standard radio service has pretty m11ch reached 
maturity, that the addition o:f stations at this point is tendin g more to 
create add~tional interfhence than it is to bring added needed services. 

"\Ve think the trend now should be to have FM radio for the aural 
service, and we should reserve AM perhaps essen_ti ally for ]ongcr r~nge 
use in areas yet to be developed where they will need local stat10ns. 
So, for the time being, we are not accepting new applications. "\Ve a re 
,continuing to process those which are already on file under the old 
rules. 

Mr. KEITH. For those prospective stations which have gone some 
way toward filing but have not filed, the cu~ofI is _imi:n~diate and fi11:al? 

Mr. Cox. Yes. There is no doubt there will be mdividual hardships. 
The trouble is that that is true at any time you establish a cutoff. If you 
establish a cutoff do,Yn the road to allow anyone who is in process to 
complete and file, you get a lot of people who will fi1e hurried applica­
tions, v,,hich would simply clog up your processes and defeat your 
purpose. 

"\Ve also had a concern about our ability to continue to handle the 
a pplications under existing staff levels. 

Mr. KEITH. No matter whom you know in the communications 
,counseling business, you could not get one in under the wire? 

Mr. Cox. It is always possible to file and ask for a waiver. Our rules 
are stated to be of general applicability. Any party who feels that the 
application oft.he rule in his situation is oontrary to the public in~ere~t, 
or produces a peculiarly harsh result, can file and ask us to waive it. 
vVe sometimes do this. In some fields we grant extensive waivers. I 
don't know what the practice will be here. 

Mr. HYDI~. It certttinly does not depend on the faot o:f who is making­
the application. 

Mr. Ki,rTH. I am happy to make that point. 
Commissioner Johnson, I was somewhat surprised at the hrrvity of 

your statement. You are, may I say with a smile, guilty of t he same 
charge which you levied at the Commission when you I ook iL lo I :i sle 
for not even making a token effort to defend its deci sion wilh n'H so11 s. 

You performed an old trick that my daughter 11 sr, in c(llkgc. You 
incorporate your dissent by reference, but do not deve lop reforcn ees 
that I lack the patience to look up. 



270 271

L. / V 

. I guess if one did look them up, it would substantiate your point of 
view. In any case, would you care to elaborate now the reasons which 
you thought compelled you to develop a dissenting opinion~ 

Mr. JOHNSON. Yes, I would be happy to, Mr. Keith. 
First, I would like to thank you, because it is very seldom that I 

have been criticized for being too terse. I welcome this public repri­
mand for that particular offense. 

The fact of the matter was, quite candidly, that while this is an im­
portant case, it is really but one of a great many cases that I hiwe 
found equally offensive. Some involve a concentration of control of 
media in a small community by someone who owns the newspaper and 
AM station. Some involve the galloping control of multistation owners. 
Some involve the ownership o:f stations by conglomerate corporations. 

It seemed to me in this particular instance that Commissioner Cox 
had done a1_1 excellent job of setting :forth the reasons. And it seemed to 
me at the tune that I had expressed my views so often that there was 
very little to b_e gained by my going into it again and largely repeatino· 
what I had said before and what he had said in this case. "" 

If I may say so, it seems to me that the general ma,tter that you are 
addressing yourself to here is quite serious and is well worth your at­
tention. It is what might be characterized as the distinction between, 
on the one hand, the "broadcasting business" or the "programing busi­
ness," and, on the other hand, the "finance business," the "moneymak­
ing business," the "station transfer business." This may arise in a num­
ber of contexts. 

Here you have addressed yourself to the standards applied by the 
JfCC in awarding th~ construction permits initially, to the informa­
tion before us at the time the construction permits were extended, and 
to the standards applied by us at the time the construction permits were 
transferred. But each of these, I would suggest, is illustrative of prac­
tices that tend to make possible trading in stations by individuals who 
are more interested in profiteering :from involving themselves in 
the station-trading business than they are really interested in the 
broadcasting business. 

Problems may arise with regard to the financial qualifications of 
someone who applies for a station. They may arise at the time when 
we grant extension after extension after extension to someone who is 
not really building stations. They may arise at the time we approve 
the assignment :from one party to another. 

They are involved, I think, when we approve ownership by con­
glomerate corporations, multiple owners, nonresident owners, news­
paper owners, and so forth. 

This case is, in short, an illustration of a number of serious prob­
lems that are, I think, more significant than this case taken alone. 

Mr. KEITH. The thing that interests me most of all is this question~ 
of transfers. That is a problem that is present in a great many areas 
where people get a license to use land for one purpose and then thev 
dispose of it. If the Government overlooks the investment put there, 
a number of abuses can develop. 

It is obvious that someone has benefited substantially from these 
transfers, and it is not the intent of Congress that an individual 
should profit from such transactions. Therefore, in the case of a. 

transfer I should think that the likelihood of a hearing would be 
greatly increased. 

How often are tra.n sfors of this sort made? 
Mr. JOHNSON. I don't know how I would interpret that qualifica­

tion. Certainly the concept of transfor is quite common. 
Mr. KEITH. I mean a transfer of this sort where someone had been 

granted a construction permit and then made only modest efforts to 
develop it and subsequently disposed of it without a hearing. 

Mr. JOHNSON. Yes, Congressman Keith; that is not at all uncom­
mon. Let me suggest that the full reach of your inquiry really goes to 
why-it is we permit transfers of construction permits at all, why i t is 
that we permit transfers of licenses at all. 

It is one thing to inquire into the standards that we use when we 
approve the transfer of a construction permit. One undoubtedly could 
devise better standards than we have for the evaluaition of assign­
ments of construdion permits. But I would suggest that a far more 
fundamental question is why we have the assignment of construction 
permits at all. Why d6 we not have a standard whereby a person who 
wants a construction permit comes to the FCC and gets it? If he puts 
the station on the air, he enjoys the profits that result. If he does not 
succeed in putting the station on the air, he turns his construction 
permit back into the FCC-and if there are other members of the 
public who would like to try their hand, they have the option to do so. 

When a station is assigned, why should the owner of a station be 
the one to select who his successor will be? Why is this not a makter fo r 
public choice? ""\i\Thy is this not a matter for FCC deliberation? 

The answer to that question, in fairness to the Commission, is in 
large measure the statute which you gentlemen enacted (sec. 
310 (b)). It provides that at the time of the license transfer we can not 
view this as we would a comparative hearing, but must rather simply 
look to the applicant that the owner of the station chooses to sell to. 

Mr. KEITH. Before I turn to the other Commissioners, would you 
care to make any further observations in connection with your minor­
ity views? 

Mr. JOHNSON. ·wen, I would simply refer and supply, if you wish, 
numerous other opinions in which these issues have come up. vVe h:iye 
discussed them. 

I would also make a general observation that I think one could not 
help come to as a result of this morning's experience. Here we had the 
Federal Communications Commission of the United States on the one 
hand, the U .S. Congress on the other, trying to get information about 
public licensees. I would only say, if we have difficulty, gentlemen, 
it is probably virtually impossible for the public, itself, to come inro 
this agency and find out who the owners of property are in their com­
munity and what the details are of their ownership and their orwrn­
tion. 

We have numerous files. The ones to which we have al ready rcf'crrc rl 
are not the only ones. It is very difficult for someone)... even within tho 
U.S. Congress or the FCC, to get this information. vcrt a inly for the 
public the information is not compiled in one place. Beyond ,Lh a,t it 
is difficult to find in public files. I think that is most unfortnnate_ 

Mr. HYDE. I would like to answer that. 
The Commission application files, the liccn e files, have been p ublic 

since the inception of the organizaition. Any member of the public 
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can examine the entire license record of any station, including appli­
cations presented to the Commission. 

There is, in addition, a separate file where ownership data is placed. 
It is true that because of the voluminous charaoter of the information 
that it may not be as readily available as would be desirable. vVe are 
undertaking to put this on a computer so that it can be had 
instantaneously. 

I do not think ,that the agency should be accused of not having the 
information rubout its licensees and I don't think that there is any 
reason for the suggestion that the public cannot find out who the 
owners of staJtions are. 

Mr. KEITH. Mr. Chairman, that is a side issue but I think that 
generally speaking the public is under the impression that it takes 
a Philadelphia lawyer to elicit such information. 

Mr. HYDE. It is a mistaken impression. 
Mr. KEITH. I am glad to hear i,t. Now, the impression has been given 

here that you don't have adequate staff at the FCC. 
Mr. HYDE. vVe could use more adequate staff. vVe have made repre­

sentations to this effect from year to year in our budget hearings. 
Mr. KEITH. How many additional staff members did you request at 

the last Appropriations Committee hearings? 
Mr. HYDE. In the order of 1,500 individuals for our entire operation. 
"\Ve asked for additional manpower, particularly for the regulation 

of community antennas, a new operation with us. 
.. We asked for additional manpower for common carrier. vVe were 

under the Executive, you might call it, directive to limit our expendi­
tures to what would be essential matters. 

"\Ve were asking for a substantial increase at the time of our presen­
tation to the Budget Bureau. 

Mr. KEITH. This is fairly general. 
I assumed that with a good deal of pressure on you ;to get more 

people to do a better job, you could make an adequate record before 
the Appropriations Committee. 

Mr. HYDE. I suppose you could say the record is not adequate if we 
don't get the money but I thought we had ma,de a very good 
presentation. 

Mr. J or-rNSON. I want to clear up ,the record about what Chairman 
Hyde said that I said. 

I did not mean to suggest tha,t the agency does not possess pieces of 
paper within the building at 20th and M Streets that have the requisite 
information upon them-although there are instances when we do not. 
That was not the point I was making. 

The point is that the files which we have are numerous. In addition 
to ownership, applications, financial reports, and license files we have 
separate files on fairness complaints, and separate files on other 
comulaints. 

My point is that it would be difficult for members of the public­
·as it would be difficult for a Commissioner or a Member of Congress­
to pull together all the information he might like to have about sta­
tions in which he was interested. 

Mr. KEITH. I would like to ask you one more question. 
I . was quite surprised to discover that a transcript of the first 

-day's testimony, which was not yet -available to me, was volunteered 

as a favor to members of the Commission by an attorney with business 
before -the Commission. 

It raises a question in one's mind about the frequency of people 
·with cases before the Commission dropping in and out of that agency 
as though it were an old home they were coming back to. 

Is that a customary practice for this particular representative of 
Mr. Overmyer? . . . . . 

Mr. JOHNSON. I will note that this particular representative did 
not offer me a copy of the transcript of the preceding day's hearings. 

My own standard is that I make it a practice, in general, not to 
see·1awyers or clients about any business pending before the FCC­
"·hether or not it is covered by the ex parte rules. Some lawyers have 
indicated to me that they welcome that standard. 

So, I suspect I do not get as many people dropping in to say "hello" 
as I mio-ht otherwise. But my office is certainly open to any licensee 
who do~s not have business pending before the Commission, or any 
lawyer or anyone elsy with legimate interest in seeing an FCC Corn.­
missioner at any time, 

I did not see Mr. Gaguine in this particular case. 
Mr. KEITH. Mr. Lee, how do you do. 
Mr. LEE. How do you do. 
Mr. KEITH. You werewiththemajority? 
Mr. LEE. Yes, that is correct. 
Mr. KEITH. In view of all that has transpir ed here, do you still 

feel that a hearing would not be advisable in a case where a petitioner 
submitted a similar bill of expenses? 

Mr. LEE. I would say this: Obviously, if I had known at the time 
that I voted that 18 out of 23 people said they did not work on these 
problems, I would have undertaken to disallow in some way those 
expenses. 

Mr. KEJTH. That is just one item. Certainly if you find one item 
that is padded the chances are that a great many of the others are, 
too. 

Mr. LEE. I am really not familiar with that. 
Mr. KEITH. I don't want to prejudge this situation. 
Mr. LEE. These, of course, are subsequent facts. I thought that 

the amount of the out-of-pocket expenses looked rather high to me 
but I couldn't prove anything wrong. 

Mr. Moss. H the gentleman will yield. 
Your comment strikes me as most unusual. You couldn't pr0ve ?' 

Is that your burden or is that the burden of the applicant? 
Mr. LEE. As I reviewed the material given to me by the staff I 

was convinced that as far as I could see these were indeed legiLimate· 
expenses. 

The alternative of setting up a hearing and delaying ser vice to 
some 30 million people for 4 or 5 years was something I did not c:1re 
to face. 

Mr. KEITH. This permit would expire momentarily am1 then it 
would be up for grabs. . 

Mr. LEE. There were numerous applicants. 
Mr. KEITH. It would only be fair under these circumst:rn ces that the 

numerous applicants should receive a hearing. 
Did you know that $66,000 was listed as preoperational travel and 

entertainment expenses? 
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Mr. LEE. No, offhand I don't think I knew that. 
Mr. KEITH. That would be a red flag to me. 
Mr. Cox. I think, Congressman Keith, if that was included in 

preoperating expenses it was not allowed as out-of-pocket expenses 
but was capitalized in the transaction that was taken over by AVC. 

Mr. KEITH. He was allowed the portion he paid for, according to 
counsel. 

I n any event, if it is submitted as an expense and if an entrepreneur 
has to do that amount of traveling and that amount of entertaining 
in order to get that far along the way to building a station or a half 
dozen stations, there is something wrong with the system. 

Mr. Cox. That figure was not called to our attention. 
The point I am making is that I think undoubtedly Mr. Overmyer 

p ajd for some travel and did recover that from AVC. 
The other travel I think was in accounts that he had not paid for, 

that had been paid for out of loans which A VC was assuming and, 
therefore, they became part of the capital structure of the new 
operation. 

Mr. KEITH. To what extent does the attorney making these repre­
sentations on behal:f of this client fit into this picture? Does he 
certify that these are in fact the case? 

Mr. Cox. I don't think he can do that because I don't think he has 
actual knowledge. He, of course, presents them on behalf of his 
client. As an advocate he tries to make the best case he can. 

Mr. KEITH. He has to justify them, does he not? 
Mr. Cox. I think he has to try to analyze the material that is sup­

plied and make it understandable to the agency, either in written 
pleadings or in oral effort to explain it. 

I have always found counsel who represented Overmyer a very 
persuasive, very able gentleman, but I always listen to him very care­
fu1]y because I know he is an advocate for his clients and he is most 
1ikelv to reflect their interests. 

Mr. KEITH. How about you, Mr. Bartley, would you ca,re to 
comment? 

Mr. BARTLEY. On the open-door policy, I worked on the Hill here 
too long to close my doors. They are more or less swinging doors. I 
see almost anyone who has business with the agency with the excep­
t ion of adjudicatory cases. 

Mr. KEITH. Were you one of the majority or minority? 
Mr. BARTLEY. Minority. 
Mr. KEITH. ,Vhat in particu)ar prompted you to join that group? 
Mr. BARTLEY. I would have been an advocate for a hearing if I 

had been alone in this. It had been my policy to oppose the granting 
of Commission consent to transfer of permits right in the beginning. 

I may have done it a :few times but I can't recall any in which I 
did. So I start right there, profit or no profit, out-of-pocket expenses 
or no out-of-pocket expenses, based on the idea that if the permit is 
not implemented, that it should go back into the public domain and 
be available to anyone else who wants to apply for it. 

Mr. KEITH. That is a very forthright position to take. 
I think you have been very generous, Mr. Chairman. I have no 

further questions, on the assumption that you will discuss this $3 
million loan. 

Mr. Moss. It will either be discussed by me or by counsel. . 
Mr. KEITH. It was really too much for me to comprehe~d how this 

$3 million figure was arrived at. I w~s ~old yesterday by ~1tnesses :for 
the A VO interests that they were w1llmg to buy the station~ :for the 
fnJ.1 out-of-pocket expenses a revelation which leads me to believe that 
it must have been advantageous for Overmyer to take the 20-percent 
fi!!l1re and use it as collateral to get a settlement more favorable than 
c~ ~~ . 1 

There must be some value that could be ·assigned to that particu ar 
20 percent, over and above what it represented in alleged out-of-pocket 
expenses. 

Was the Commission aware that the buyer was eager to pay the full 
p:rice of the out-of-pocket expenses? . . 

Mr. HYDE. Our information was limited to what was m the a_pph­
cat ion and the additional information that the sta.ff had submitted. 
I had no contacts-with the transferee at all. I never met them. . 

Mr. KEITH. This is a unique arrangemen~ where the _original l_icens~ 
retains a minority int.erest in the five stations, re~ervmg :for ~ims~lf 
the right to influence the decisions of those stat10ns as a mmority 
st ockholder. 

I would think it preferable that if there is to be a transaction, the 
stations should be bought outright. . 

Mr. HYDE. This would undoubtedly be an easier case to handle. 
Mr. KEITH. I think that you should have said to the burer: "Cus­

tomarily we require that the transfer be complete. Why it you are 
wi11in 0' to pay the cash don't you do just that and make it a clean 
deal?'~ 

Mr. HYDE. I would suppose that this would be, as you put it, a 
cleaner way to handle it but there ~ave been other _instances_ wh~re 
:permits were assigned and the previous owner retamed a mmonty 
mterest. 

Sometimes the original permittee has found it necessary to engage 
the help of other people that have more money as the expense of the 
operation became apparent. . . . 

There are several other cases where a mmonty mterest was re­
served in connection with the sale. 

Mr. KEITH. Ts a loan with an option proviso something you are 
customarily confronted with? 

Mr. HYDE. I can't recall any other instances where there was a loan 
such as this. 

Mr. KEITH. The thing that disturbs me, Mr. Chairman, is that you 
have approved a package of questionable items, not the least of which 
is this loan and option. 

Mr. HYDE. You will recall that this loan was secured by mort­
gages, I believe second mortgages, but apparently fully secured by 
security. 

My suggestion is that this is the counterpart of the offeror who 
makes the loan. The loan was not made solely as an inducement to 
make the assignment. It was made on the basis of a:dequate security. 

Mr. KEITH. During the course of the hearings I have been marvel­
ling at the notetaking of Mr. Cox. I don't know what he is going to 
,d.o with all the notes he has made. 

Mr. Cox. I file them away, (;ongressmrm. 
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Mr. KEITH. You take notes sometimes when I am talking. I'm 
afraid to ask what you plan to do with them. 

Mr. Cox. I refer back to them occasionally. That is one way I can 
fallow what is going on. 

Mr. KEITH. Would you comment on this particular_ phase? 
Mr. Cox. Aside from the out-of-pocket expenses, this aspect of ~he 

transaction also bothered me greatly. It seems that, even assummg 
that Mr. Overmyer had had expenses of $1,300,000, the most he coukl 
have obtained under the Commission's policy was that amount, but 
that in effect, as you suggested, by taking two steps he has gotten a 
million dollars in cash for out-of-pocket expenses, 80 percent. He has 
kept a 20 percent ~tock equity, on whic_h he gave a!l option to. A VC. 
They were to provide all further financmg, so that if these busmesses 
thrived and his stock would increase in value it would be due to no 
contribution on his part. . . . . . 

Meanwhile, not only did he receive $1 milhon on the day of signmg 
the contract, and before it was filed with the Commission, he also re­
ceived $1½ million of the $3 million that was later to be loaned on 
the security of his stock and of the second mortgage on the ware­
houses 'at about the time, or before, the contracts were filed and months 
before the Commission acted. 

It seemed to me in effect that he, rather than selling for $1.3 mil­
lion, had held out for $4 million for his interest in these permits~ 
which dearly would represent a profit and violate our policy. A:nd 
while it was cast in another form, that seemed to me to be the reality 
of what had happened. 

Mr. KEITH. Another area of concern to me is the fact that here you 
have a buyer who wants to obtain the stations for cash. Fictitious or 
not, the list price of out-of-pocket expenses, he had the money and he 
was eager to do it and the Commission apparently did not inquire as 
to why he would make that kind of deal instead of this one. 

The easiest way to do it is selling it out and going into the truck­
ing business. 

Mr .. Cox. I am interested in the Commission considering a policy 
that would announce that we will not permit this division of interest; 
that if a man has decided he doesn't want to continue with his per­
mit, he should either sell it outright, or if he sells part of it and re­
tains an interest that he should be obliged to bear the burdens of the 
business proportionately with the other parties. I:f he is willing to lend 
money to the corporation, if he is willing to put money in to replace 
losses, then that is fine. 

I can see a case where a man started out in good faith and then did 
need assistance. I don't think that is the case in these transactions 
where ~he optionor is free of any obligation to help finance the further 
operation. · 

Mr. KEITH. It would have been much cleaner if he had sold four 
and kept one. 

Mr. Cox. Yes, it would. I don't think if he had sold four and kept 
one that he would have ended up with ~! million, though, and he ob­
viously needed $4 million. 

Mr. KEITH. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman. 
I have a call to make in the adjoining office. I will leave the door 

open so that I can hear. 

Mr Moss. vVe have Mr. Adams here. 
No~ before turnino- the matter over to Mr. Lishman, I just want 

to find out if the Co~1missioners were aware of the fact that some 
expense was allocated_ here and par~ of the $666,514 ou~-o!~p_ocket 
that came thr01.:wh the mternal allocat10n of personnel and facilities of 
Overmyer Co. i~cluded expenses incurre~ for th~ period July ~ J?e­
cem!Jer 1964 before they became an applicant before the Conurnss1011 
for a construction permit. . . . 

Mr. HYDE. I was not aware of that specific detail. But weren't the 
first applications filed in 1964? 

Mr. Moss. Were they? 
Mr. Cox. My recollection is that _they were. Ther:e 11:ay very well 

be expenses incident to the preparat10n of such apphcat10ns. 
Mr. Moss. They incurred expenses from July to December of 1964 

of $36,397. 
Mr. Cox. I think it is unlikely they incurred that much expense, 

but I think the application for the transfer of the Newport station was 
filed in Auo-ust of 19\64. It was not approved until March 1965, and 
so I assum~ that the- significant expense--which was some hundred 
thousand dollars paid to the t ransferor-would not have been incurred 
until then. 

Mr. Moss. These are not payments to the transferor. They are to 
Overmyer, Inc., the president's office, $4,596; the controller's office, 
$2,416; personne~ department, $2,763; purchasing a:n~l office services, 
$94 7; taxes and rnsurance department, $1,162; aud1tmg department, 
$1,02G; legal department, $2,057; treasurer's department, $1,409; ad­
vertising and public relations, $4,519; finance and development depart­
ment, home office, $8,376; finance and development, regional offices, 
$6,076. 

Mr. Cox. I was not aware of any of those details. Now the staff 
memorandum to the Commission did recite tha,t the formula they 
worked out here started frmn a base period when they thought they 
had some records. They then applied a percentage factor to some other 
periods. It does show they applied the percentage factor to the last 
half of 1964. 

I knew some such allocation was being made. It seemed to me this 
was based on mere assumption which we had not verified and therefore 
it was not wise to accept these results without further inquiry. 

Mr. Moss. I quite agree with you. As a matter of fact, I want to also 
compliment you on what I think is an excellent dissent, well reasoned, 
and dealing vvith a subject matter which is very basic to the proper 
operation of the Commission. 

I think Congress wrote quite clearly on the matter of trafficking in 
license following the 1958 hearings. As I recall, as a result of the 
reports of the Congress, it was the action of the Commission t ltat 
brought into being the limitation on trafficking in licenses. 

I might say that we are probably going to take, unless t-hcrc is some 
more vigorous movement on the part of the Commission, an appro­
priate legislative enactment by the Congress to prohi!Jit t·he t·rnfficking 
"in construction permits. 

I, for one, when we reconvene, will introduce fogi slat· ion wl1 irh will 
place very stringent limitations upon the discretion of the Commis­
sion, because I think the majority in this insta,nce has not acted in 
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accordance with the mandate of the Congress to protect the public 
interest. 

I go now just to the application which you gentlemen had before 
you. I believe this is the reas01;1 for the proposed transfer. _I have g<?ne· 
over these breakouts, the various officers who made their affidavLts. 
I note the loose wording. "It is my opinion based upon my observa;tion 
and experience that in excess of $50,000 in unrecouped salaries and 
overhead cost were expended by Green & White for the Overmyer 
Communications Co." 

Is that sound documentation for $50,000 of out-of-pocket expense~ 
Then we go over here to Mr. Silcox. He deals with a matter of ap­

proximately $126,396 of these. He says-
I have reviewed the application of the base period figures to other peL"iods. 

It is my judgment that the level of TV activity in my department during most of 
the 1966 was on the order of 10 percent greater than it was during the Septem­
ber-December period. 

The level of TV activity in my department in the other periods was at least 
as great as set forth in the attachment referred to. 

Very sound documentation. From an accounting standpoint, I don't 
know how anything could be more persuasive. Well, the others are 
phrased as loosely and are invalid as a "certification." 

In the controller's department-
The Controller's Department 'and other operating departments under my su­

pervision had payroll expenses of $207,602 for the September to December, 1966, 
base period, of which $14,303 was properly allocated to the Communications 
Companies. 

The allocations, based upon such base period for the year '66, '65 and part of 
'64 and '67, as set forth in Exhibit III, are reasonable and accurate in my 
judgment ' 

This is the case of being able to audit yourself and certify that 
you have audited correctly. 

The Commission accepted it, hook, line, and sinker. 
Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. I have only three or four questions. 
Does the Commission still consider local ownership, past broadcast 

experience and participation of the principals in the management of 
the station as key factors in granting of a license or construction 
permit? 

Mr. HYDE. Local ownership would be a relevant :factor, particu­
larly in the instance where there were competing applications. 

In many instances an applicant who was locally oriented has had a 
plus :for that as against an applicant who did not have such local rela­
tionships. 

Mr. LISHMAN. How about past broadcast experience? 
l\fr. HYDE. There have been some instances where past broadcast 

experience was emphasized. I personally think that this might not be 
a valid argument. If you are limiting the entry into the business to 
people who have experience you would never get new blood, new 
ideas, new imagination. 

Mr. LISHMAN. As I understood it, the Commission in many cases has 
stated that the criteria in the granting of a license which is considered 
most important concerns local ownership, past broadcast experience, 
a_nd the participation of the principals in the management of the sta­
t10n. 

In fact, I have read many Commission decisions where licenses have 
been denied on the ground that one or more of these elements has been 
lacking. 

Mr. HYDE. I think you can't find a single case where an application 
not in a comparative hearing has been denied on that. 

Mr. LISHMAN. I am talking about comparative cases. 
Mr. HYDE. In comparative cases where you must examine the rela­

tive merits of two or more applicants, previous experience, identify 
with the community, integrat10n of ownership with the management 
have been found important decisional :factors. 

How different members of the Commission would consider this de­
pends on the individual but I personally have some misgivings about 
the wisdom of putting too much emphasis on past experience. 

I rather like to see new blood brought into the business. 
Mr. LISHMAN. Is there some public interest consideration that justi ­

fies different criteria where there is no comparative hearing than where 
there is a comparative hearing? 

Mr. HYDE. You have the necessity of making a comparison where 
you have a contest. In:- the case of where there is not a contest it may 
very well be in the public interest to grant the application of a man 
who has the substance to do it, to, for mstance, put in a UHF station 
and make it operate. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Did AVC possess any of these qualifications that are 
generally applied to the situation in a comparative hearingi 

Mr. HYDE. I believe that they put some importance upon securing 
the services of personnel who had had experience in Philadelphia but 
on the overall this was not a company engaged in the broadcast busi­
ness. 

You know, Mr. Lishman, if they have broadcast interests then you 
hav:e the q_uestion of multiple owners11;ip and should they be expanding 
their empire. If you don't have experience, then you raise the question 
are they qualified. 

I would urge upon you that if you have people of character and sub­
stance that we should welcome new blood. 

Mr .. Moss. Just f.!-, moment. At that point, don't you have both of 
those issues clearly m :focus here because here you were granting a block 
of five licenses in the top 50 markets. 

You were creating that multiple ownership. 
Mr. ~YDE. In none of these markets_ would _they have anything ap­

proachmg a monopoly. They would be m each mstance undertakino- an 
enterprise which would have challenged the VHF operators 0and 
others. · 

This was not a t~emendous privilege which they were acquirino-. 
They were really bemg permitted to make substantial investments i 11 
a pretty difficult--

Mr. Moss. Your ~n~erim rule wei:it beyond just creating a monopoly 
locally. It also envis10ned a restramt upon too much power in major 
market areas throughout this Nation. · 
. Mr. HYJ?E. T~e interim policy had to do with the acquisition of addi­

tional stations m the top 50 markets. 
Mr. Moss. If I have one and I buy :four more why am I in a di ffer­

ent category than if I have none and I apply for'five? 
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Mr. HYDE. I wouldn't say you are in a different_ c~teg?ry. I would 
like to tell you that an overall concern of the Commission m these cases 
was an interest in seeing the development ~f UHF t_o go ahead prompt-
ly. Here was a company that had the capacity to do i~. . . 

Mr. Moss. I only observe, in any event, by the m_aJonty ~ct.ion _of the 
•Commission that any possibility of a compa!atlve consideration or 
,evaluation ~f potential applicants was effectively foreclosed by the 
Commission o-ranting this block of five. 

Mr. HYDE.°Congressman Moss, permits are s~bseguent to transter. 
This is the policy set by Congress._We were consid~rmg ~hese applica­
tions for assignment under the policy as expressed rn sect10n 310 (b) of 
the Commumcations Act. . . . . 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, you can't cite me one sm1sle lme of legi_s­
lative history that will support the block transfer which took place m 
this instance. 

Mr. Hym:;. There is no discussion of the subject at all. . . 
Mr. Moss. I don't think there are any members of tlus committee 

who ever envisioned we would have before us an example of the block 
transfer of five construction permits, particularly in_vie,:v o~ the str~ng 
admonition o-iven to the Commission on the traffickmg m licenses fol-"' . lowing the 1958 hearmgs. 

M r. ADAMS. Mr. Chau-man. 
Mr. Moss. Mr. Adams. . . . 
Mr. ADAMS. Mr. Chairman, I have a quest10n regarc~mg_ th~ pohcy 

of the Commissioners on holding hearings when an application is made 
for one of the top 25 markets. . . . . 

If an applicant were.to come m durmg the time covered by this case 
and apply for a UHF station ~n one of these five markets, what would 
be your policy in holding hearmgs?. . . . . . 

Mr. HYDE. Our statement of policy mchcated that if an app}1cant 
could present compelling reasons a hearing would not necessarily be 
had. · h 

Now there were certain instances where we held what you mtg t 
call abhreviated hearino-s. I can recall one instance which concerns 
the city of Denver whe~e we invited the applicants to present their 
arO"uments to the Commission in a 1-day presentation. 

You mi o-ht call this an oral presentation. There were other instances 
and one of them relates to the city of ~ilwaukee, :where beca_us~ of the 
circumstances of the case we thought 1t would be m the public mterest 
:1ot to subject the case to a hearing. vVe felt under the circumstances a 
waiver was warranted. There were other such cases. 

Mr. A.DAMS. Oddly, then, if you have an applicant going into the top 
50 markets during this period of time there ";ould be more than one 
applicant and you will generally have a hearmg on that, would you 
not? 

Mr. HYDE. In any ev:ent, where ~here was a contest for the channel 
there would, of necessity, be a hearmg. 

I had reference to such instances as where Kaiser interests applied 
for assi O'nment of a permit or license in Boston. ,v e considered that 

b • d as a case where a waiver was warrante . 
Mr. ADAMS. In this particular case were you aware of the fact that 

the permits had, in effect, rnn out? 
Mr. HYDE. Yes. 

Mr. ADAMS. And that they were being held in abeyance without a 
hearinO' under a policy of extending a construction permit and allow­
ino- the0 rule to effect a toll on it whenever a transfer was pending? 

1rr. HYDE. We were aware n,t the time t he decision was made that 
there were applications for extension of the time for construction. 

Mr. ADAMS. These had not been acted upon. 
Mr. HYDE. No. 
Mr. ADAMS. And would not be acted on ? 
Mr. HYDE. That is right. 
Mr. AnAMS. Therefore, during the period of time that you are mak­

ing your decision you have allowed this group, the Overmyer group, 
to-maintain a valuable commodity in its license, itself, as opposed to 
the money that it put in? 

Mr. HYDE. They would be able to maintain a position which has cer­
tain advantages or values as you put it. They would derive this from 
the operation of law. 

Mr. ADA HS. A dually, it was a Commission policy between your t:Vo 
divisions. the Transfer Division and the division that would ordinanly 
grnnt extension of permits, that simply said that when anybody files 
a transfer application vrn will automatically extend the construction 
permit and in effect keep it in existence which in this case--I am not 
trying to play games with you-in this case, t~is then becomes. the 
wheel around which the whole financial operat10n then comes rnto 
existence. 

Mr. HYDE. They should not issue an extension of a permit unless 
there is some appropriate justification for doing so. 

Let me go back just a step. You have a permit and it expires on a 
given date. If you have in the regular course or if you have as a matter 
of fact filed an application for an extension before the expiration date, 
then you have certain rights under the Administrative Procedures 
Act pending a determination on the merits of the application for 
extension. 

Now when you have an expired permit and the holder of that permit 
had presented another application, perhaps bringing in some financi al 
Rssistance, ,ve would be dutybound to examine the two of them 
together. 

Mr. ADA:\IS. In this particular case you had five potential stations 
involved and you had by extending tlmse construction permits in effect 
created a commodity that a buyer going into the television business 
could not obtain any other place and he obtained this without a hearing 
or without any other competitive group being able to apply in any one 
of the five markets. I am trying to get into your procedures here as to 
why this was done without a hearing that might determine "·hethrr 
there were other applicants that might want one of these five becn,nse 
what is bothering me is by having the package of five and by not lrnv­
ing a hearing he was then able to establish a financial operation that 
picked him up about $4 million on a very shaky half milli on clolhtr in ­
vestment, assuming all the facts that he presented were correct. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman, you are quite right. As the holder of the 
several permits he did have a position which made it, po. siblc for him 
to enter into arrangements with A VC as you have put it. But let me say 
to you that this is characteristic of the law which we must administer. 
You can always apply for a license by going; to the person who has it 

rn~537-69-pt. ·1-- rn 
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and when an application is made for assig~1~ent of a license to use 
the Commission is required by law, as Comnnssioner ,Tohnson has ~1~n: 
tioned, to ]ook at it in terms of ~ransferor and transferee and for bids 
us from looking at any alternatives. . . . , 

Mr. Moss. ,Just a moment. ·will you yield? I tlnnk we have a differ ­
ence, unless I am confused, between the Jaw ~hat controls the construc-
tion permits and the law that controls hcensmg. . 

l\fr. HYDE. I am sure that if you will refer to the language ?f section 
310 that you will find that Congress provides _th~t no permit ma~. be 
assigned without the approval of the Commiss10n , thereby makrng 
them subject to assignment. 

Mr. Moss. I realize that they must always be approved by the 
Commission. . f · 1-

Mr. HYDK But it does provide for assignment o perm1cs. 
Mr. Moss. It what? 1- · f 
Mr. HYDE. It specifically provides for the filing of app icat10ns or 

assi<rnment of permits. . 
l\1i-. Moss. Now, except upon an unusual shc_rwmg you are not sup­

posed to permit a transfer of lic_en~e under a p_er10d of le:s than 3 year": 
Mr. HYDE. vVe have a Comm1sswn_ rule wluch s~ys except _unc~er cer~ 

tain exceptional circumstan~es we w!ll not entertam an apphcat10n for 
an assio-nment of an operatmg stat10n. . . 

May I add this, that there has never been in the Overmyer app~icat,10n 
any iii.dication or evidenc_e that these ,v~re not bona fide apphcat10ns 
lookino- toward construct10n of the stations. 

you bwm find in Commissioner Cox's~. - . . 
Mr. ADAMS. This is why I have :vaited, 1!r. Qhairman, £or thrn 

point to ask my questions. I will, without gorng 1!1-~o the arg1:ment, 
if there be one, of whether Mr. Overmyer was legitimately gomg to 
build the stations and whether he had one on the air and so on. There 
may be questions on that that other member~ ~ay. wan~ to. pursue. 
The thing I want to pursue is what the Comm1ss1on :S do111g 111 terms 
of their process as they start with the transfer of a license. "What ~p­
pea;s to me has happened, and that is what I want you to h~lp ~e with 
and tell' me what your rationale is. A man was ~ble_ to bmld J~ effect 
a large financial package, using the Governments airway_s or licenses 
as it may be, to do this and that you are the gro1;1p at the switch and you 
in this case let a man come in with five perm1!,s, a real package, that 
AVC or no one else could get any place else 111 the wor~d, that was 
created by the Government. 'What bothers me even worse 1s that these 
had in effect expired. . . . f · , 

I n other words, you did not just take lrnn 111 the middl: o h!s opera­
tion and let him bail out but he went _clear to the en_d, 1t expired, the 
Commission's practice allowed the th111gs to stay ahve, and then aK 
proved it without o·ivino- anybody else a chance a those five par~e ~-

Mr. HYDE. Our altern:tive wouid have been ~o conduct the hear111gs 
looking toward a decision as to whether p~rmits sh<:mld be extended. 
I should say that in light of the congressio1:al policy to ma~e such 
authorizations available that we proceeded m accordance with the 
policy set up by Congress. . 

Mr ADAMS Now as the transfer came up and you had five stat10ns 
avail~ble wa~ any 'effort made, investigation con4ucted, or s~rveys 
created to determine whether there were other applicants that wanted 

to break into these five markets with a UHF situation that, though it 
might not be in Mr. Overmyer's interests, that is, he would not pick 
up his $4 million, but in the publi c interest somebody might come in? 

Mr. H YDE. There was no such survey undertaken. One of the reasons 
why we would not make such a survey is that we are under an injunc­
tion from Congress not to consider alternative applicants in this 
situation. 

Mr. ADAMS. Now explain that to me. 
Mr. HYDE. There was a time when the Commission adopted some 

rules which required notice of a proposed transfer and an opportunity 
for other applicants to offel' the same kind of conditions, the same 
cmnpensation, in which event the Com mi ssion would then, according 
to those rules, undertake to make a com pal'ative study. The Commis­
sion found this rule difficult of admin istration. It caused a good deal 
of difficulty through delays of transfers, p:t rt ic11 larly in some instances 
where the holder was in a situation of lmrd.-hip. Congress was not 
satisfied when Fe abandoned the rule. They :,men ded the act to make 
it clear that the Commission would have no a 1il hol'ity to reinstate any 
such rule. If you will give me just a moment, l will give you the lan­
guage of the act. I am looking at the final sent ellce of section 310 (b) : 

Any such application shall be disposed of as if the proposed transferee or 
assignee were making application under Section 308 for the permit or license in 
question, but in acting thereon the Commission may not co nsider whether public 
interest, convenience and necessity might be served by the transfer, assignment, 
or disposal of the permit or license to a person other than the proposed transferee 
or assignee. 

Mr. ADAMS. Then I will ask you or Mr. Cox or Mr.Johnson this: 
In your opinion if this had been denied, Mr. Overmyer or anyone 

had been denied, would these then have been available to other parties 
to come in , or would they, in your opinion, at that point simply have 
stayed dark? 

Mr. Cox. I think there would have been othel' applicants. As Com­
missioner Lee indicated, this might take some time to get them on fil e, 
to get them in hearing, to get a decision reached. But as Congressman 
Keith indicated, in the top 50 markets there just aren't very many 
channels available for the asking any more. They are either granted , 
they are in hearing, or there are applications pending for them. 

Mr. ADAMS. My understanding is that in these five markets there 
were in most of them no other channels available. 

Mr. Cox. I think that is what I cited in my dissenting opinion. 
Mr. ADAMS. You did. 
Mr. Cox. Now I would point out that the chairman is quite right 

when he says that Congress indicated that, in passing on an appli ca­
tion for transfer of a license or a permit, we may not consider that it 
might be more in the public interest for the permit to go to someone 
else. But the statute still requires that we have to find it in the publi r 
interest for it to go to the named transferee. Under onl' in t·eri m 
policy, I did not think we could find it in the public interest, set ting 
all other matters aside, to have five permits in the top 2G nrn rkcts go in 
one package to a single transferee. 

Mr. ADAMs. "\iVould anyone be aware of this in t-110 incl11 st ry generally 
unless you had a public hearing? 

Mr. Cox. Oh, yes, vVe have a requirem ent of publi shing notice of 
applications, so that anyone who is following thi, - not th e general 
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public but anyone who is in the in~ustry or who retains counsel in 
Washington and who is interested. m any of these markets--would 
be advised when transfers were applied for. 

Mr. ADAMS. If there is an application for transfer to A vq that 
notice would be filed. Then would you give notice that you are gomg to 
make a decision on it? 

Mr. Cox. As the chairman points out, under an act of Congres? our 
rules now require that an applicatio_n for transfer has to be published 
in the local newspaper and also notice has to be broadcast on the sta­
tion, itself, of the fact that the applicat ion has been filed and that 
copies are available. . . _ 

Mr. ADAMS. What can anyone do at that pomt 1f they wanted to 
break up this package? 

Mr. Cox.Not much. 
Mr ADAMS.Not anything, could he? 
Mr: Cox. No because of the provision of the statute. He could come 

in in effect and try to tell us that he thinks it would be better for these 
fi~e statio~s to be transferred either by Overmyer to five separate 
individuals~- . <1 

Mr. ADAMS. You can't do this unless you ho~d a. he:i,rmg, can you , 
Mr. Cox. vVe can't do it at all, because our optwn is either to ~pprove 

the transferor's selection of the transferee ·and find that there is noth­
ing contr~ry to the pu~lic interest, or t_o say that _we cann<;>t make t~1~t 
findina without a hearma and then go mto a heanng. But m that hear­
ing th: issue would not be whetl~er there might be others wh? would 
serve the community better. The ISsue would be: whether the~e is some­
thing disqualifying this transferee, or ~01~1ethmg about this tr_ansac­
tion which makes it contrary to the public ~nt~rest. In ~hat hearmg we 
could have found it contrary to the pubh~ mterest ~1ther because _a 
profit was being re'.1'li~ed on the transfer_ of the -rermits or becau~e it 
is contrary ~o public mterest_'to have a smgle ei:itity own five sta~ions 
in these ma3or i:narkets. H~vmg made ~hat findmg, we would then be 
in a posture of simply opemng the permits up. . 

Mr. ADAMS. That is right, they would then open, would t~1ey not, m 
those five markets for application then. In some cases tlus was the 
only channel left. 

Mr. Cox. Yes. . 
Mr. ADAMS. It would then open for someone to come m. 
Mr. Cox. I believe so. 
Mr. ADAMS. If they wanted to apply. 
Mr. Cox. I believe that would be the case. 
Mr. Moss. ,v-m you yield for one moment? 
Mr. ADAMS. Yes. 
Mr. Moss. I want to make the point clear. I should !1ave mor:e cor­

rectly stated a different rule on this matter of co~structi~m pernuts. As 
I recall, when you folks adopted ~he r:ule follo:vmg the IS~uance of the 
report of what "'.as then ,~he leg1slat1ve oversight committee you ex­
empted construct10n per~mts for th<.: 3-year per1_od_ of transfer becau~e 
you felt that your requirement w h1ch woul~ hm~t out-of-rocket. ex­
penses would provide the necessary protect10n of the p~bhc ag,ai_nst 
trafficking in license. It would not be a pro1?len~ to rr~l11b1t traffickmg 
in construction :permits. That was not applied 1~ t~is mstance because 
there was no dihgence on the part of the Commission and after a very 

sorry day both on the p~rt of the ~taff _and the Commission _there was 
no diligence by the stafl: to determme, m fact, whether the figures for 
the out-of-pockeJt expenses were valid at all. It is my iudgment_ aft~r a 
careful review that t hey \\'ere at least 100 percent mflated. I tlnnk 
there I am beillg most generous in recognizing the validity even to that 
extent. 

I thank the gerntl;eman. . . . . 
Mr. ADAMS. Indicate t.o me It you feel tlns is p~oper. I ,:7ant to 

know whether decision ,ms 1n adc not to hold a hearmg. Is tlus done 
in your general course? 
- Mr. HYDE. Yes, it is. . . 

Mr. ADAMS. Is it the present po l icy on those not to hold hearmgs on 
these 1transfer applications ? 

Mr. }h'l)E. It is our present policy not, t.o hold a, hearing unless there 
are circumstances that seem to require it-. There was a difference of 
opinion on this-matter. Reasonable me1;, of <·0 11,·se, can disagr~e as to 
the showinQ'S made on 1the documents. 1here wns no legal reqmrement 
for a heari~w because there were not opposing parties. But the Com­
mission would have~had the discretion to hold :1, hea ring on its own 
initiative as a matter of policy. When you do designate a matter for 
hearing you have to t!l-ke inito _consideration the ~onsequences of that 
action. It may mean m some mstances a hal'Clsh1p, t·he complete de­
struction of a project. It will_ in al~ost any i n:'t:wc? mean _a con­
siderable del,ay in any constructwn or implementin 1·1011 of a permit. You 
would have to consider these factors against the background of the 
Commission's interest in encouraging the investment of funds in the 
development of UHF stations so that people buying all-channel sets 
under the all-channel lmv would get something for their investment in 
UHF. 

In ,the overall of this particular case representing one where you had 
an applicant who the Commission was satisfied had a bona fide interest 
in exploiting UHF stations, who had the money, at least a million and 
a half dollars in liquid assets when he entered the business, to put sta­
tions on the air. Our experience in UHF has been somewhait discour­
aain a. vVe have issued permits in many instances where no construction 
tgok bp1'ace. In this instance the permittee did proceed and his record is 
rather better than manv UHF holders. Then he did come into financial 
difficulties. At ithat po1nt he undertook this assignment to the AVC 
people. ,vhen this matter of assignment came up the Commission would 
have to consider, should we proceed on these applications for exten­
sions, or should we look toward the possibility of some constructive 
course which would see these stations on the air promptly. 

You have an applicant, A VC, which is in strong financial position 
and in the judgment of the majority it was in the public interest to 
get these TV stiations going rather than to undertake deletion of per­
mits and invitations to newcomers. 

Mr. ADAMS. The point that we then come to, which is my last point, 
Mr. Chairrnan, is that we have been presented by the trans fer, of a very 
unusual financial transaction. I have dealt with some few corporate 
mergers and various types of financial arrangements. I c:1,11 i'lay ,-..-ith­
out doubt this is one of the cutest ones I have ever seen. It appears 
ito me in it that you have, through the retention of t l1e SW-percent in­
terest and the basing of an option and repayment system on gross 
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revenues rather than on anv type of operating profit, an al~o~t as~ur­
ance of Mr. Overmyer receiving $1 million dowr.i a~1d $3 million m a 
period of time on a half million investment, basically because we got 
a package of licenses. . . 

I went throucrh this with your staff members on then· recommenda-
tion and it looks to me as though everyb~Kly see;ns to say, "vVe are 
grad to see hi:n be able to get out of t!1e busmess. :w l;atever happens let 
us let him go m order to get these stations on the air. . . . , 

Mr. HYDE. I would hke to say to you tha~ the Commiss~on s con­
cern at the moment of decision here was service to the public. It was 
not making this decision for the relief of Overmyer. . . 

Mr. ADAMS. I am not saying that. vVhat I am worned about is the 
proposition that if you are "cute" enough and you work the system 
well enough you can buy and s~ll licenses. . _ 

To me out of these hearmgs I would hke to ~rnow "'hat you 
crentlemen think as to whether we should do somethmg i:nor~ or you 
~hould do something more or is this thing so unusual that it will never 
ever happen again~ . . 

Mr. HYDE. This is unusual. vVe are dealmg with a rather extraor-
dinary situation. This comes up at a tim_e w~en we are a~l very much 
concerned about the success of UHF, which 1s very, very important t~ 
the development of broadly based televi~ion, t<? •th~ development ~f 
educational stations, many of the reserva~10ns bemg m UHF. There is 
a combination of circumstances here which does present an unusual 

situation. · · f th f t 
Mr. ADAMS. Commissjoner Cox, is my charactenz~t~on o . e ac 

thait Overmyer in e~ect ~ut of this picked up $~ mill1011 with ev~ry 
expecbation that he is _g01~g ~o net that out of it rather than bemg 
a loan, is that charactenzat1011 rn part true~ . . . 

Mr.' Cox. vVe ~re predicting. ~y. analysis, l_1ke yours, is tiiat the 
way the transaction is framed, this 1s the way it seems most likely to 
me to work out. And certainly at a time :when he apparently felt he 
needed large sums of money, instead of simply gettmg back what he 
had invested in these permits through an outright ~ale of them, he 
o·ot back 80 percent of what he claimed he had put mto them plus a 
loan of $3 million which I am morally certain AVC would not h~ve 
made to him if he had not been in a position to transfer t~e permits. 
I don't think if he had been willing to se11 all these permits to them 
for $1,300,000 in one transaction ar.id if he had gone b_acir to A VC 
the next ,veek and said he would hke to borrow $3 n111l10n on the 
security of second mortgages on the warehouses, that they would 
have been at all interested in that transaction. I think he was able to 
cret $4 million within a period of a relatively few months here, to 
help him in th; difficulties he had gotten into in his warehouse business 
simply because he had the permits. 

Now I was anxious, as was the chairman and th~ other members_ of 
the majority to see UHF succeed, to see the pubhc get more service, 
but I arn not so anxious for that that I am willing to forgo all our 
other policies. 

Mr. Overmyer could have sold the ~ve permits £o_r not more than­
he could have so]d them to three parties, two permits to one and two 
to another, and this would not have violated the Commission's then 
interim policy, which represented its then belief as to what was the 
public interest as far as concentration of control is concerned. 

Of course, as you know, the majority, a couple of months after the 
Overmyer transfer, terminated that interim policy, so that there is 
now no numerical limit, except in the sense that anyone seekincr more 
than three UHF or more than brn VHF in the top 50 market~ must 
still make some compelling showing of pub lic interest. In other words, 
the public could have gotten these stations on the air, it could have 
gotten this service, we could have built UHF without violating either 
the interim policy or our longstanding policy of holding transferors 
to out-of-pocket expenses. 
__ J:t seems to me that the Commission was simply so concerned about 

Pxpediting UHF service that they did not maintain a proper regard 
£or these other two policies which I think are equally important. 

Mr. ADAMS. The thing that is bothering me in this, and this happens 
in a number of the other regulatory agencies, is that you often have a 
situation wher~ the two parties before the Commission on a particular 
point have the same interest. In other words, where both l\fr. Overmyer 
as the transferor and A VC as the transferee have made their deal, so 
there is no competitive or adversary proceeding before the Commis­
sion. This being true who maintains the public interest of not letting 
the public license or permit be bought and sold and do we need some 
other set of rules, some other procedure or are you gentlemen here to 
tell us it is not going to happen any more. 

Mr. HYDE. The responsibility certainly is with the Commission. 
It should not approve the transfer in any instance except that it is 
satisfied that the public interest will be served. I think that the dele­
gation of this responsibility to the Commission is an adequate way to 
handle the matter. I think we should have the flexibility which the act 
now gives to us. That is my personal view. But if Congress feels that 
a permit should never under any circumstances be transferred they 
can simply amend the statute and prohibit such transfers. I think 
that that might be discouraging to people who might in good faith 
undertake a project and who might later find themselves in financial 
circumstances such as they could not complete their project. 

Mr. BARTLEY. The question of legislation came up earlier in these 
hearings. At that time I suggested an amendment to 310 (b). You 
will find that in the r ecord here. I thought I would call it to your 
attention at this point. 

Mr. Cox. I think, short of barring the transfer permits, we could 
tighten our policy or Congress could lay do"·n more specific guide­
lines. I believe now we will not approve transfers involving this split 
of interest and an option whereby it appears that the transferor, 
while he gets only some part of out-of-pocket expenses for the in­
terest which is transferred immediately, retains the right to cli spo ·c 
of the remaining portion at a later time. 

Mr. ADAMS. "\,Vhat about a series of hearings where pC'ople arc 
put under oath and on public record as to what they are doing. The 
reason that I might not accept the particular suggest·ion is tliat l tli ink 
this just happens to be one lawyer's dream and that they ll'ill think up 
another one as soon as we moved on the split ownership. I can think 
o{ several they might try, in other \YOrds, to spin off ,t seri0s of sub­
sidiary corporations in which part of yo111· out-of-pocket rxpenses 
were placed in those, and selling one subsidiary and not selling an-
0ther. I can visualize that a smart l:rn·ye r rniglit h:11'e a sr.ries of alter-
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natives It seems that nobodv took the lid off this until after it was 
done a~d the dissent and maj~rity opinions came out. 

If I am mistaken in that and everybody went into it with their eyes 
wide open, then please inform me. The testimony yesterday indicated 
two different divisions within the FCC were playing Alphonse and 
Gaston on the construction permits and that nobody picked up the 
contract file and really looked into it in great detail prior to the recom­
mendation. Then we get to the Commission level and there isn't a 
hearing, and I want to know whether-maybe you should have a public 
hearing on transfers involving more than one station or transfers in­
volving more than a certain amount of money. 

I don't want to burden you with any more hearings. I understand 
you are behind now. But there should be some place where the public 
interest is stated or the public concern is heard over the trafficking in 
license. 

Mr. Cox. I would agree with the chairman's statement that we are 
going to continue to approve many transfers without hearings because 
{ve see no real problem, and nothing other than delay and extra ex­
pense would be involved in a hearing. I agree with him that when we 
see something which is unusual or raises questions we should have that 
hearing, whether or not there is agreement among the Commissioners 
as to when that situation presents itself. It seems to me, and I think 
Commissioners Bartley and Johnson, that in this case it was quite 
clear that this was a novel transaction, it was unusual in its scope, that 
there were a lot of loose ends. We thought, therefore, even though there 
would be delay and expense both to the parties and the Commission, 
that a hearing was im per,ati ve. 

Now, a majority of the Commission disagreed. As long as you leave 
us with discretion to decide when we have hearings and when we don't, 
without more specific guidelines, yem have the possibility, of course, 
that there will continue to be differences and that the majority will con­
tinue to feel that there is no need for a hearing-and that either we 
will never find these things out, or it will have to be through a process 
such as your committee's investigation. 

I think that there is no doubt that your staff-which has been able 
to spend far more time on this than our staff did, certainly in the initial 
processing of these matters-have found out a lot of things that we did 
not find out in processing the applications. But I think we would have 
found them out if we had had a hearing-but we did not have a hearing. 

Mr. ADAMS (presiding). Mr. Lishman. 
Mr. LISHMAN. One question. On what basis did the Commission deter­

mine that each of the communities involved in the Overmyer transfer 
had an unusual and urgent need for additional television service? 

Mr. HYDE. I think that this decision was discussed in the overall. In 
each instance it was a UHF station in an important market. 

Commissioner Bartley reminds me that the Commission has made a 
UHF station allocation to each one of these communities and there 
would be, of course, an interest in seeing that made useful to the public. 
As I indicated in the very first day of the hearings in this matter, we 
had a situation where the grantee had found himself unable to proceed 
and here was an opportunity to approve a transfer to new interests 
who did have the substance to complete the construction and we thought 
this indicated an urgent need. 

Mr. LISHMAN. Was there any determination that the pu°?l_ic ~n­
terest would be served with respect to each of the five commurnties m-
volved by approving this Ln_rnsfm:? . . . . . . 

Mr. H YDE. Our 1ind1 ng o (· publ 1c mterest applies to each s1turut10n. It 
does, yes. . . . · l cl 

:Mr. LrsHMAN. vVhat cl cllWll l s o f the public rnterest were cons1c ere , 
for example inconnectioll with l 'ilt sb11rgh? 

Mr. HYD;. I am remind ed h('rn I lmL t, IJ ~re were three !letwor~ sta­
tions, three network commercial sl:il.ions JJ_l _the com~urnt:y, no mde­
pendent, a general interest in gl'lli11g :tdd1L10na~ stations m markets 
1vJ1ere you had such few altemal i \'I' S for the p~1blic. . 

Mr. LrsHMAN. vVhat was the 11 rgl· 1it. s it 11al 1<_m that r~qmr_ed a n~w 
station in San Francisco so as to m:1 k1· _y o11 wa I vc your mtenm policy 
about 50 markets '? . 

Mr. HYDE. It was the same need lo ha rn i111p lrrnentat10n of UHF 
policy in every one of these markets. . , . 

Mr. LISHMAN. How many stations arc j l~(' l"l' 11: ,sa ,_1 Fra!lcisco? 
Mr. HYDE. I und~rstand that there :11·1• lq11r \ s I I yo u_include O_ak­

land, one UHF, on~ of these Overmyer st :11 io11 s 0 11 I he :ur and Kaiser 
on the air. . 

Mr. LISHMAN. vVhat is there in the record Io show I here is an urgent 
need of a UHF station in San Francisco wit 11 111<ff!1 I li:in 11 stat10ns 
already there? 

Mr. HYDE. There are not more than 11. . , 
Mr. LISHMAN. How many are there servmg I h:il un•1d . 
Mr. Cox. I think that at the time the trn11 s f1•r w:1s atil ho_nzed there 

were four VHF commercial stations on tlw :1ir, :111 l' d11 <'1tl1o_na] VHF 
station on the air, and perhaps one commerci:1 l U 11 I<' st n Li o11 I 1censed to 
Kaiser Broadcasting which was either on the air or :1' 10 111 to go on the 

all". S 1· Now there are other stations in that area, i11 S: 111 .loso :1ll 1l , a mas, 
but th:y would not serve the San Fran?isco 111:1 rk<·I . 

Mr. LISHMAN. I have no further quest10ns. 
Mr. Moss (presiding) . I have just a few quest.ioll s.. . 
Mr. Chairman you used the statement that, 1111 s :i ppl 1cn nt had a 

million and a half dollars in liquid assets. 
There is nothing here that shows that they h:1d :t 111illio11 :111d it half 

dollars available in liquid assets. You don't know t lt 11 11 :1L11re of the 
encumbrance against them. You don't know \\·lid lier U11• cn,sh shown 
there was committed to the construction of ,rn rl'i1 01 1s1•s or was not 
mortgaged . . 

Mr. HYDE. It 1s my understandmg that thr l>a.1:wn sli !'ct we we!e 
looking at, at a previous hearing, of the O1"l• rn1 _y('r w:trl'honses did 
show a million and a half dollars. 

Mr. Moss. It showed $1,661,728.87 in cash. Y 011 don 'L know wha,t _the 
ongoing commitments were and they were int lie t. hrMs o f a11 cxpans10n, 
I believe. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, it is O~)V io11 s 11 0w i11 the li ght of ?ub­
sequent facts that this warehouse_ b11 ~111es~ 1~a s go1 ng to come mto 
financial difficulties but on the ba. 'JS o I t lt e 11 ii om 1a t ion " ·e lrnd n,t the 
time I think it was reasonable t'o expcd, th at. Lil ey could fin ance this 
enterprise. 
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Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, are you aware of the fact that the mem­
ber of your staff who has the responsibility for evaluating these bal­
ance sheets told this committee that he is not very well informed on 
balance sheets and the reading of them. 

Mr. HYDE. I heard the testimony. The employee that you refer to 
is not responsible for final recommendation of staff to the Commission. 

Mr. Moss. Who analyzes the balance sheets for the Commission? 
Mr. HYDE. There is accounting talent in the Broadcast Bureau. 
Mr. Moss. I would hope so. 
'1\fr. HYDE. The officer you refer to is an attorney. I have taken steps 

since this discussion you refer to to see that an examination is made 
by a qualified accountant on any such application. 

Mr. Moss. Now, then, on this matter of the anxiety of the Commis- ' 
sion to get these stations on the air, that was certainly the objective 
of Congress because we enacted the all-channel reserve legislation. 
Creating by the enactment of that legislation the proliferation o:f sets 
capable o:f receiving the signals, we guaranteed that over a period of 
years they would become attractive investment opportunities to an 
increasing number of persons and relieve you of this rather onerous 
responsibility of going out and acting contrary to your normally estab­
lished practice in order to encourage anyone to get into the business. 
Time, itself, is going to put them there. 

Mr. HYDE. Congressman Moss, I fear that time alone will not pro­
vide the answer because of the development of community antenna 
services. 

Mr. Moss. This is another very complex subject and the full dimen­
sions o:f which neither you nor I can :forecast. 

Mr. HYDE. No, we cannot but I do urge this upon you, that we will 
still have need to encourage investment o:f :funds to provide some UHF 
stations. 

Mr. Moss. Mr. Chairman, I agree with you. I think you have need 
to use every prudent, reasonable, and orderly process to encourage 
the utilization of these channels so that the American public can be 
better served. I think a part of that need is also to determine the char­
acter of the broadcaster who is going to operate it. I think one critical 
need f<;>r broadcasting in this country is an upgrading of the character 
of it. That is why I have been a very strong proponent in this com­
mittee for educational television. 

Mr. HYDE. I am with you on that. 
Mr. Moss. I hope by diversity and by competition-­
Mr. HYDE. You will remember my recommendation. 
Mr. Moss. I do indeed. That is why I feel so disappointed with your 

actions in the case here of the blanket transfer of five potentially valu­
able avenues of access to homes in markets where competition certainly 
should be encouraged and doing it in a fashion which really makes no 
finding that the public interest will be served. 

There being no further questions the committee will stand adjourned. 
("iVhereupon, at 4 :15 p.m. the committee -was adjourned.) 
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